
NOVEMBER 19, 201 - City Council Special Wleeting - 7: 00 p. m.

General Order of Business

1. Preliminary
Call to Order

r`       Closed Session

Roll Call

Invocation

City Council Chamber Pledge of Allegiance

390 Towne Centre Drive Announcements by Mayor/ City Mgr.
Lathrop, California Informational Items

209) 941- 7200 Declaration of Conflict of Interest
www. ci. lathrop. ca. us 2. Presentations

3. Citizen' s Forum

Clty COut9C11 4. Consent Calendar

5. Scheduled Items

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor o Public Hearings

Mark Elliott, Vice Mayor Appeals

Referrals and Reports from
Paul Akinjo

Commissions and Committees
Steve Dresser All Other StafF Reports and/ or Action

Martha Salcedo
Items

Study Sessions
6. Council Communications

City St ff
7. Adjournment

Stephen Salvatore, City Manager Order of Discussion

Generally, the order of discussion after introduction
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney of an item by the Mayor will include comments and

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk information by staff followed by City Council
questions and inquiries. The applicant, or their

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer authorized representative, or interested residents,

may then speak on the item; each speaker may
Cari James, Finance & Administrative only speak once to each item. At the close of public

Services Director discussion, the item will be considered by the City
Council and action taken.

Mark Meissner, Community
Development Director

Consent Calendar

Zachary Jones, Parks & Recreation Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be

Director routine by the City Council and will be enacted by
one motion and one vote. There will be no separate

James Hood, Police Chief discussion of these items unless a Councilmember
or interested resident so requests, in which case the

Michael King, Assistant Public Works item will be removed from the Consent Calendar
Director and considered separately.

NOVEMBElt 19, 2018 - Special Meeting l genda - 7: 00 p. m.

Printed on Recycled Paper See Fteverse

1



Addressing the Council

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving
recognition by the Mayor.  Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the
meeting. To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name,
address and number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the
City Council, please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name and
address. In order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will be set by
the Mayor for each speaker ( see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of time, each

speaker may only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your comments to
new material; do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the nature of a

proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else
raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to
the City Council at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Citizen' s Forum

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do so
under the Citizen' s Forum section.  Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk
prior to the commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker
cards, or have expressed an interest to speak,  prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s
Forum will be called upon to speak.  Please be aware the California Government Code

prohibits the City Council from taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear
on the agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the
length of your presentation  ( see instructions on speaker form)  and each speaker may only
speak once on this agenda item.

To leave a voice message for the Mayor and all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial
209)   941- 7220.   To send an e- mail for the Mayor and all Councilmembers

simultaneously, citvcouncil@ci. lathroa. ca. us

This City Council Agenda may be accessed by computer at the following Worldwide
Web Address: www. ci. lathrop. ca. us LIVE STREAMING - Now available, please visit the

City Council Page or use the URL www. ci. lathrou. ca. us/ council/

Information

Copies of the Agenda are available in the lobby at the Lathrop City Hall, 390 Towne Centre

Drive,   Lathrop,   on Thursday preceding a regularly scheduled City Council meeting.

Supplemental documents relating to specific agenda items are available for review in the City
Clerk' s Office. This agenda was posted at the following locations:  City Hall, Community Center,
Generations Center,  Senior Center,  and  " J"  Street Fire Department.  l"he meetings of the
Lathrop City Council are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 97.

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance

with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/ or

accommodations to this meeting. [ 28 CFR 35. 102- 35. 104 ADA Title II] Interested persons must

request the accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by contacting
the City Clerk at ( 209) 941- 7230.

Information about the City or items scheduled on the Agenda may be referred to:

Address:    City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330
Telephone:    ( 209) 941- 7230

Your interest in the conduct of your City's business is appreciated.

2



CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2018

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE: The e wi// be a Closed Session commencina at 5:30 n,m.  The Saecia/ Meetina
wi// reconvene at 7: 00 v. m., or immediatelv fo/% winw the C/osed Session. whichever is later.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER

1. 2 CL05ED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9( b)

5 Potential Cases

1. 2. 2 CbNFEREIVCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Existing Litigation Pursuant
to Government Code 54956. 9( a)

City of Lathrop vs. TCN Properties, L. P., et al., San Joaquin

County Superior Court, Case No. STK- CV- UF- 2017- 0001082

1. 2. 3 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: Pursuant to

Government Code 54957

City Manager
City Attorney

RECONVENE

1. 2. 4 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

1. 3 ROLL CALL

1: 4 INVOCATION

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. 6 ANNOUIVCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Agenda Page 1

3



2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PROCLAMATION - DECLARING NOVEMBER AS SIKH AWARENESS MONTH

2. 2 PROCLAMATION - DECLARING NOVEMBER AS HOMELESS YOUTH

AWARENESS MONTH

2. 3 PRESENTATION   -  OVERVIEW OF THE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGAINST

DRUGS L. E. A. D" PROGRAM PROVIDED TO DETER YOUTH AND ADULTS

FROM DRUG USE, DRUG RELATED CRIMES, BULLYING, AND VIOLENCE

2. 4 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do
so under Citizen' s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior to
the commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker cards,
or have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be

called upon to speak. Please be aware the California Governmen,,t Code prohibits the City
Council from taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear on the
agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The City Council can,
however, allow its members or staff to briefly ( no more than five ( 5) minutes) respond

to statements made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief announcement or
report on his or her own activities.

See California Government Code Section 54954. 2( a)). Unless directed otherwise by a
majority of the City Council, all questions asked and not answerecl at the meeting will be
responded to in writing within 10 business days. ALL PUBLIC COMMENTS MUST BE MADE
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATHROP CITY COUNCIL HANDBOOK OF RULES AND
PROCEDURES!!

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the City Council and will
be enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless the Mayor, Councilmember, or citizen so requests, in which event the item

will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waive the Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda Unless
Otherwise Requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of October 8, 2018

4. 3 TREASURER' S REPORT SEPTEMBER 2018

Approve Quarterly Treasurer' s Investment Report for September 2018

4.4 DELINQUENT UTILITY TURN OFFS

Adopt a Resolution to Suspend Service Disconnections for Delinquent
Accounts Scheduled on December 12, 2018

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Agenda Page 2

4



4. 5 FUNDIIVG FOR A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II IN THE PUBLIC WORKS

DEPARTM ENT

Adopt a Resolution to Approve Funding for a Maintenance Worker I/ II
Position

4. 6 CHRISTMAS PARADE TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURE

Adopt Resolution Approving Temporary Street Closures for the Lathrop
Christmas Parade on December 8, 2018

4. 7 ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE 5T"     STREET SIDEWALK

IMPROVEMENTS CIP PS 15- 19

Adopt a Resolution Accepting Improvements from McFadden Construction,
Inc. and Sinclair General Engineering Construction, Inc. for the 5th Street

Sidewalk Improvement Project CIP PS 15- 19 and Authorize the Filing of a
Notice of Completion

4. 8 ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR MOSSDALE TRAIL LIGHTING CIP PK 18- 10

FROM T& S INTERMODAL MAIIVTENANCE, INC.

Adopt a Resolution Accepting Improvements from T&S Intermodal

Maintenance, Inc.  for CIP PK 18- 10 Mossdale Trail Lighting;  Authorizing
the Filing of a Notice of Completion and the Release of Contract Retention

4. 9 RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO VACATE A PORTION OF I IADRUGA ROAD
TO SO UTH LATH RO P LAN D, L. L. C.

Adopt Resolution Approving the City' s Intention to Vacate 9, 789 Square
Feet of Madruga Road to South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

4. 10 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMEIVT AGREEMENT
SIA)  FOR 89 LOTS IN TRACT 3999 VILLAGE  ' BB"  WITHIN LAKESIDE

EAST DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3999 Village ' BB" within

the Lakeside East District,   Totaling 89 Single- Family Lots and a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development,

LLC,  and Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portions of Garden Farms

Avenue, Bosch Avenue, and Oberlin Avenue

4. 11 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMEfVT
SIA)  FOR 103 LOTS IN TRACT 4001 VILLAGE AA" WITHIN LAKESIDE

EAST DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLAIVDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4001 Village " AA" within

the Lakeside East District, Totaling 103 Single- Family Lots, Common Use
Agreement with Island Reclamation District 2062 for a Portion of

Riverfront Drive, Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands
Development,  LLC,  and Irrevocable OfFer of Dedication for Riverfront
Drive and Bosch Avenue

4. 12 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS ANNUAL BOND ACCOUNTABILITY
REPORT FOR FY 2017/ 18

Receive Report for Bonded and Non Bonded Community Facilities Districts

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Agenda Page 3

5



5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING   ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)   TO CONSIDER PROPOSED

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS NOS. 2018- 1 AND 2018- 2 ( CENTRAL

LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES) CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN

COUIVTY, CALIFORNIA

City Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Consider Approval of Resolutions of the City Council of the
City of Lathrop for the Formation of Community Facilities
Districts, Determine Necessity to Incur Bonded Indebtedness
Within the Community Facilities Districts,  Call A Special

Election,   Declare Results of Special Election and Direct

Recording of Notice of Special Tax Liens, Levy Special Taxes,
And Authorize the Issuance of Bonds.

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED IVOTICE) TO CONSIDER UNMET TRANSIT

fVEEDS FOR FY 19- 20

City Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Council to Consider Unmet Transit Needs within the City of
Lathrop  ( Transportation Development Act Requirements for
Transit Funds)

f.       COUNCIL COMINUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:  Appointment of One  ( 1)  Member to the

Senior Advisory Commission with Term Expiring June 30,  2019,  due to

Unexpired Term Vacancy
One ( 1) Application Received

6. 2 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:  Appointment of One  ( 1)  Member to the

Planning Commission with Term Expiring June 30, 2019, due to Unexpired
Term Vacancy

Six ( 6) Applications Received

6. 3 COUNCILMEMBER DRESSER REFERRAL: TrafFic Calming Measures for the
Lathrop Acres Area

6. 4 COUIVCILMEMBER DRESSER REFERRAL:  Review of Recreational Vehicle

and Boat Parking Regulations,  and Potential Revisions to Ordinance

Language

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Agenda Page 4

6



6. 5 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Central Valley Executive Committee/ LOCC ( Salcedo/ Akinjo)    
Council of Governments ( Dresser/ Dhaliwal)

Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division ( Akinjo/ Elliott)

Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority ( Salvatore)
San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors ( Salvatore)
San Joaquin County Commission on Aging ( Zavala)
San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission ( Dresser)

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District ( Akinjo/ Dhaliwal)
Water Advisory Board ( Dhaliwal/ Elliott)     
Tri Valley-San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority (Akinjo/ Dresser)
San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency ( Elliott/ Dresser)

6. 6 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

7.       ADJOURNMENT

resa Vargas, CMC

City Clerk

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Agenda Page 5

7



8



i ITEM 4. 2 i

CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

r`''      MONDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2018
i'""      

7: 00 P. M.       

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL ,

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE: There was a Closed Session which commenced at 6• 06 v m The Requ/ ar Meetinq
reconvened at 7: 06 v, m.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 6: 06
p. m.      

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9( b)

4 Potential Cases

s     

1. 2. 2 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to

Government Code Section 54956. 8

Property: 99 West Louise Avenue ( APN 191- 190- 18)
Agency Negotiator: Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
Negotiating Parties: Richard Castleman

Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Negotiations

RECONVENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 7: 06 p. m.

1. 2. 3 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported  that direction was.

provided regarding Item 1. 2; no other reportable action taken.

1. 3 ROLL CALL Present: Mayor Dhaliwal; Vice Mayor Elliott;

Councilmembers: Akinjo, Dresser, and Salcedo

i
Absent: None

1. 4 INVOCATION = Pastor Mike Strong, Grace Community Church, provided
the invocation.     

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Pastor Mike Strong led the pledge of
1 allegiance.

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

9



1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR/ CITY MANAGER

City Manager Stephen Salvatore announced Lieutenant Ryan Biedermann
as the newest member of the Lathrop Police Services Department. Mayor
Dhaliwal commented on a fallen tree in the Stonebridge Development

during the weekend, thanked staff for their prompt response and cleanup
of the area.

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST - None

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PROCLAMATION - DECLARING OCTOBER DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

AWARENESS MONTH

Councilmember Salcedo, on behalf of the Lathrop City Council,  provided

the proclamation declaring October 2018 as Domestic Violence Awareness
Month to Anna Alcantara,   with the Women' s Center- Youth Family
Services.  Ms.  Alcantara provided additional information related to the

matter arid announced a candlelight vigil planned to honor those who
have lost their lives as a result of domestic violence.  Event scheduled on

October 25, 2018.

2. 2 NATIONAL NIGHT OUT COMMUNITY PARTNER AWARD

Deputy Sheriff JefFerson Dominguez gave an overview of the National
Night Out event held August 7,  2018.  Deputy Dominguez provided the
Neighborhood Community Partner Award to Tracey Sylvester for the
Platinum/ Quartz/ Stonebridge West community party.  Deputy Dominguez
also announcement a " Drug Take Back" event scheduled on October 27,

2018,  at the Lathrop Senior Center.  The event is intended for safe

disposal of unused, expired, unwanted prescription and over- the- counter
drugs.

2. 3 CERTIFICATES OF APPRECIATION TO ORGANIZERS OF THE ANNUAL

COMMUNITY BBQ HONORING PUBLIC SAFETY OFFICERS

Parks and Recreation Director Zach Jones presented certificates of

appreciation to Stephanie Helmbold, Michele Anderson, Debbie Rock, April

Victorine,  and Vada Klingman for organizing the 3 d Annual Community
BBQ event honoring public safety officers held on September 12,  2018.

Councilmembers commented on the matter and thanked the organizers of
the event.

2. 4 RECEIVE INFORMATION RELATED TO THE PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

REVIEW FOR THE NEW LATHROP POLICE STATION

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

10



Finance and Administrative Services Director Cari James introduced

architect consultant Eric Wohle,  LDA Partners.  Mr.  Wohle provided an

overview of the preliminary site plan design review for the new Lathrop
Police Station.

2. 5 RECEIVE INFORMATION REGARDING FISCAL OVERVIEW OF THE CITY' S

GENERAL FUND AND MEASURE C FUND

Finance and Administrative Services Director Cari James provided the

presentation,  which included an overview of the City' s current fiscal
position,  key fiscal issues for the city in the next five years, options for

addressing said key issues,  and an overview of Measure C funded

projects.   A question and answer period ensued throughout the

presentation. City Manager Stephen Salvatore responded to questions and
provided additional information related to the matter.

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Travis Cooper   ( California Municipal Finance Authority,   ( CMFA))   provided

information related to the CMFA PACE Program,  which provides solar energy

financing solutions to commercial and residential property owners.  Mr.  Cooper

requested that Council adopt a resolution authorizing CMFA PACE as an

authorized financing provider in the City of Lathrop. The City Council expressed
interest in the matter, and requested that more information be brought back to

a future City Council meeting.  Meghan Torres ( Lathrop Chamber of Commerce)
provided information on upcoming events provided by the Lathrop Chamber of
Commerce.

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the City
Council approved the Consent Calendar, except * Item 4. 3 and ** Item 4. 10, by
the following roll call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

Item 4. 3 - The City Council vote on the item separately, following the
vote of the consent calendar.

Item 4. 10 - Staff removed this item from the Consent Calendar; no

action taken on the proposed matter.

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading of ordinances and resolutions on agenda unless

otherwise requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember.

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

11



4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Consolidated Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting and

Special Meeting of the CFD No.  2006- 1 Board of Directors of August 13,

2018, and the Regular Council Meeting of September 10, 2018.

4. 3     * 2018- 2019 REQUESTS FOR FEE WAIVER

Pulled by Councilmember Dresser.  Councilmember Dresser declared his

membership with the Sunrise Rotary Club and potential conflict of

interest. City Clerk Teresa Vargas announced that the item included four
resolutions and the Council could entertain a separate vote on each

resolution. Vice Mayor Elliott and Mayor Dhaliwal declared similar conflicts

of interests due to memberships with the Lathrop Lions Club.

The City Council voted on the following four  ( 4)  resolutions separately

approving various facility fee waiver requests from the Lathrop Lions Club,
Lathrop Little League, Lath.rop HS Theater Arts Boosters, and the Lathrop
Sunrise Rotary Club:

On a motion by Councilmember Dresser,  seconded by Councilmember
Akinjo, the City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4453 approving a facility
fee waiver request from the Lathrop Lions Club for use of city facilities
totaling $ 569, by the following roll call vote:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, and Salcedo

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: Elliott and Dhaliwal ( due to club membership)

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4454 approving a facility fee waiver
request from the Lathrop Little League for use of city facilities totaling

7, 971, by the following roll call vote:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4455 approving a facility fee waiver
request from the Lathrop HS Theater Arts Boosters for use of city facilities
totaling $ 168, by the following roll call vote:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

12



On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the

City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4456 approving a facility fee waiver

request from the Lathrop Sunrise Rotary Club for use of city facilities
totaling $ 270, by the following roll call vote:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: Dresser ( due to club membership)

4. 4 ISU SALE TO LOUISE AVENUE PARTNERS

Adopted Resolution 18- 4457 approving the sale of 15 ISUs to Louise
Avenue Partners for proposed Tru by Hilton Hotel at 161 East Louise
Avenue ( APN 196- 27- 023).      

4. 5 ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STAGE 2B PRECISE PLAN LINE FOR

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

Adopted Resolution 18- 4458 approving a precise plan line for the stage
2B segment of River Islands Parkway, and Common Use Agreement with
Reclamation District 2062.

4. 6 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 38 LOTS IN TRACT 3938 VILLAGE Q" WITHIN EAST VILLAGE

DISTRICT

Adopted Resolution 18- 4459 approving Final Map for Tract 3938 Village
Q"  within East Village District,   totaling 38 single- family lots,   and

Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development,

LLC.

4. 7 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 50 LOTS IN TRACT 3989 VILLAGE ` U" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 18- 4460 approving Final Map for Tract 3989 Village
U"  within the Lakeside East District,  Totaling 50 Single- Family Lots,

Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development,

LLC,  Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portion of Marina Drive from
Dell' Osso Drive to Oberlin Avenue,  and Annexation No.  X for City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District for Villages T, U, T, V, Y, AA and BB.

4. 8 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
SIA) FOR 51 LOTS IN TRACT 3994 VILLAGE T" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5

13



Adopted Resolution 18- 4461 approving Final Map for Tract 3994 Village
T" within the Lakeside East District, Totaling 51 Single- Family Lots, and

Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development,

LLC.

4. 9 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  11 WITH 4LEAF,  INC.  FOR PLAN CHECK

SERVICES

Adopted Resolution 18- 4462 approving Task Order No.  11 with 4Leaf,

Inc. for plan check services in the Building Division.

4. 10 2018 WINTER HOLIDAY AND 2019 CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULES

Consideration of Proposed 2018 Winter Holiday Closure and 2019 City
Council Meeting Schedules

Item 4. 10 pulled from the Consent Calendar by staff.  No action taken
on this item.

4. 11 FUNDING FOR A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II AND A UTILITY OPERATOR

I/ II/ III IN THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Adopted Resolution 18- 4463 approving funding for a Maintenance

Worker I/ II and Utility Operator I/ II/ III position in the Public Works
Department.

4. 12 AGREEMENT WITH CONDOR EARTH FOR ENGINEERING SUPPORT

SERVICES

Adopted Resolution 18- 4464 approving a Professional Service

Agreement with Condor Earth to provide engineering support services.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER THE 2019 SJMSCP

DEVELOPMENT FEE ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT

City Consultant David Niskanen, with JB Anderson Planning, provided the

presentation.   A question and answer period ensued following the

presentation.   Program Planner Steve Mayo   ( San Joaquin Council of

Governments)  provided additional information.  Mayor Dhaliwal opened

the public hearing. There were no speakers.  Mayor Dhaliwal closed the

public hearing.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo,
the City Council:

1.  Held a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopted Resolution iS-4465 approving an annual

adjustment to the San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat
Conservation and Open Space Plan  ( SJMSCP)  Development

Fee for 2019.

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6

14



Ayes:       Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:       None

Absent:   None

Abstain:   None

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO UPDATE THE WEST LATHROP

SPECIFIC PLAN REIMBURSEMENT FEE

Finance and Administrative Services Director Cari  ] ames provided the

presentation.  A question and answer period followed.  Mayor Dhaliwal

opened the public hearing.  There were no speakers.  Mayor Dhaliwal

closed the public hearing.

On a motion by Councilmember Salcedo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the
City Council considered the following:

Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopted Resolution 18- 4466 approving the 2018 West
Lathrop Specific Plan ( WLSP) Reimbursement Fee Update

Ayes:       Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:      None

Absent:   None

Abstain:   None

5. 3 AUTHORIZE TERRAVERDE TO CONDUCT A COMPETITIVE BID PROCESS

FOR PHASE II OF THE CITY OF LATHROP' S SOLAR ENERGY PROJECT

Assistant Public Works Director Michael King introduced City Consultant
Rick Brown,  with TerraVerde Energy,   LLC.   Mr.   Brown provided the

presentation.  A question and answer period ensued throughout the

presentation.   City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided additional

information.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4467 approving TerraVerde Energy,
LLC to conduct a competitive bid process for Phase II Project Installation,

Procurement, and Financing for the City of Lathrop' s Solar Energy Project
GG 12- 14, and approve the minimum projected cost savings for Phase II.

Ayes:       Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:      None
Absent:   None

Abstain:   None

5. 4 CREATE CIP PK 19- 02 FOR PARK IMPROVEMENTS AT SANGALANG,
MOSSDALE, AND VALVERDE PARKS

Parks and Recreation Director Zach Jones provided the presentation.  A

question and answer period followed.

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7

15



On a motion by Councilmember Salcedo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the
City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4468 approving the creation of CIP
PK 19- 02, for the installation of outdoor fitness equipment at Sangalang
Park,  Mossdale Park,  and Valverde Park,  and authorized related budget

amendments.

r

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 5 CREATE CIP PK 19- 03 FOR PARK IMPROVEMENTS AT MOSSDALE SOUTH
NEIGHBORHOOD PARK, AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Parks and Recreation Director Zach  ] ones provided the presentation.  A

question and answer period followed.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4469 approving the creation of CIP
PK 19- 03 for Mossdale South Neighborhood Park, and authorized related
budget amendment

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 6 CREATE CIP PK 19- 04 FOR CITY- WIDE PARK IMPROVEMENTS

Parks and Recreation Director Zach Jones provided the presentation.  A

question and answer period followed.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4470 approving the creation of CIP
PK 19- 04 for the installation of additional amenities at various City Parks,
and authorized related budget amendments.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 7 CITY OF LATHROP CODE OF ETHICS APPLICABLE TO CITY OFFICIALS

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided the presentation.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the '
City Council adopted Resolution 18- 4471 approving proving an Ethics
Policy applicable to Elected and Appointed OfFicials,  City Manager,  City
Attorney and Department Heads.

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8

16



Ayes:    Akinjo, Dresser, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:  Set Application Deadline for Appointment

of One ( 1) Member to the Senior Advisory Commission with Term Expiring
une 30, 2019, due to Unexpired Term Vacancy

City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided an overview,   announced the

resignation of Ms. Patricia Bennett from the Senior Advisory Commission.

The City Council set the application deadline to November 5, 2018, with

appointment at the Special Meeting of November 19, 2018.

6. 2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITT EE REPORT( S)

Councilmember Dresser reported his attendance to the San Joaquin

Regional Rail Commission meeting,  in which locomotive improvements

and Wi- Fi service inside the engines was discussed.

6. 3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmember Akinjo commented on the fiscal health and stability of the
City, and thanked the community organizers of the community BBQ held
on September 12,   2018.   Councilmember Dresser commented on a

previous referral to discuss placing cameras at the entrance and exit
points of the City, and expressed concern with lack of commercial truck

parking in the City. City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided information
on a private project planned for development at the corner of McKinley
and Louise Avenue to provide public truck parking.   Councilmember

Salcedo expresses her appreciation to Council for approval of the park
improvements and recreational facilities for the community.  Vice Mayor

Elliott expressed appreciation on the positive feedback received from

outside agencies and stakeholders, commented on the fiscal health of the

city, and thanked staff for their efforts. Mayor Dhaliwal commented on the
upcoming Election on November 6,  2018,  and the Veteran' s Day event
scheduled on November 11,  2018,  at Valverde Park commencing at 11
p. m. Mayor Dhaliwal also announced the City' s afterhours emergency on-
call number, ( 209) 992- 0028.

7.       AD) OURNMENT - There being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 10: 11 p. m.

eresa Vargas, CMC

City Clerk

October 8, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 9

17



18



ITEM . 3

City of     — L-a-th ro;p.

Quarterly Investment Report
September 2018

This report presents a detailed discussion of the City' s investment portfolio as of September 30, 2018.   It

includes all investments managed by the City on its own behalf as well as the City' s Trustees.  The report

provides information on cash flows, broken down by both investment manager ( City or Trustee) and by
percentage allocation within the portfolio.

As of September 30, 2018, the investment portfolio was in compliance with all state laws and the City' s

Investment Policy( see Attachment 1).

Current Portfolio Summary

As directed by the Investment Policy adopted by City Council, City staff strives to attain three primary goals with

the City' s investments as follows ( in order of priority):

1.   Safety— Preservation of the principal of invested funds

2.   Liquidity— Ability to liquidate one or more of the City' s investments if unexpected expenditures arise
3.   Return— Attainment of a market rate of return

The majority of the portfolio is invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund ( LAIF), which is administered by
the California State Treasurer' s office.  LAIF provides the City with an investment vehicle with yields that are

slightly greater than U. S. Treasuries ( T- bills) with a 2- year maturity or less.  LAIF is a high quality investment in
terms of safety, liquidity, and yield.  Additionally, LAIF is an " On Demand" account; meaning funds may be

withdrawn upon with 1 day notice, representing maximum liquidity.

In addition to LAIF, the City holds investments in Money Market Mutual Funds, Nonnegotiable Certificates of
Deposit, and State and Local Government Securities ( SLGS). These investments are prudent investment choices

and are included in the City' s Investment Policy as allowable investments.

Each investment mentioned above has a specific maturity date.  However, much of the portfolio is On Demand.

The short weighted average maturity provides the City with a great deal of liquidity during this period of

heightened economic uncertainty and period of low investment yields. This liquidity places the City to invest in

longer term maturity investments once interest rates begin to move up toward their historical norms; overall
macroeconomic indicators signal solid and consistent growth in future years.

The following table ( Table: 1) provides a summary of the City' s cash and investments, by holding party, based on
recorded value as of September 30, 2018 compared with the prior quarter:

19



able: 1

June 30, 2018 September 30, 2018

Holding Party Fund Amounts( 1)    % of Portfolio Fund Amounts( 1)     % of Portfolio

Investments/ cash held bythe City 80, 109, 313 70%     84, 978, 674 71%

Investments held by Trustees 35, 408, 124 30%     35, 185, 795 29%

OTAL 117, 517, 437 100%   120, 164, 469 100%

1)  Small variances are due to the summation and rounding of multiple figures to the nearest whole dollar

Please see the following pages ( Tables: 2 through 5) for a more detailed analysis of transactional additions and
reductions due to cash flow needs, debt service payments, and maturities/ rollovers of certain investments.

Revenues arrived during the quarter, per City staff expectations, are as follows: utility payments, property tax,
franchise fees, sales tax ( including Measure C), developer billing fees, grant reimbursements, building permit

fees, plan check fees, and Transient Occupancy Tax ( TOT).

Significant payables paid out during the quarter include:

I. Nonrecurring Expenditure Capital Improvement Projects — General Government, Parks, Streets,

Water, and Wastewater

II. Recurring Expenditures
a.   Contractual— Park& Street Landscaping, and Water Treatment Services
b.   Intergovernmental payments — San Joaquin County ( Police Services), Lathrop Manteca Fire

District

Quarterly Economic Update

According to the latest projections from the Business Forecasting Center at the University of the Pacific,
California' s economic growth is forecast at a strong 3. 4% through 2019, and then declining to 1. 9% in 2021 as

recession risk grows.  Regionally, the Central Valley is expected to show job growth due to the booming logistics
sector as it has added jobs to the trucl<ing and warehousing industry.  In addition, the Center estimates that

most Central Valley metro areas will average single- digit unemployment in 2018.  The strengthening housing

market is lending support to manufacturing, which was hit by deep federal government spending cuts and
slowing global demand.  Locally, the San Joaquin Valley area experienced a decrease in unemployment rates
San Joaquin County: 5%; City of Lathrop: 4. 6%).  While these rates are within the forecasted levels, caution is

key to carry out with the business demands of the City.

I certify that all of the investments reported herein are in accordance with the" City of Lathrop Investment Policy" adopted on November 5, 2012, with the

Government Code, and other contractual agreements. I further certify the investments reported herein provide for the ability of the City to meet cash
flow needs for the next six months.

v/

phen Salvatore Cari Jam

City Manager Director f F nance

20



T QBLE: 2

CITY OF LATHROP

Sumrr ary of All Investments
As of September 30, 201

a o  '      

Local Agency Investment Fund 51, 268, 421 0. 228% 57. 43%   51, 268, 421

Wells Fargo Money Market Mutual Funds 2, 809, 256 0. 000% 3. 15%    2, 809, 256

i     .   e

o      -

Union Bank 3, 697, 184 0. 027% 4. 14% 3, 697, 184

UMB Bank 323, 732 0. 000% 0. 36%    323, 732

US Bank 0.025% 0. 00%    

SJ County Pooled Funds 254, 080 0. 260% 0. 28%    254, 080

PFM Asset Management 30, 420, 205 0. 000% 34. 08%   30, 420, 205

BBVA Compass Bank 490, 594 0. 230% 0. 55%    490, 594

e a 1 14:       

a

Investments Held by the City and Trustees 89, 263, 472 0. 134%       100. 00% 89, 263, 473

Cash in Checking Accounts- Recorded Value 30, 900, 996

Weighted Average Maturity of Portfolio ( days):  1

One month benchmark for U. S. Treasuries:       0. 02%

Three month benchmark for U. S. Treasuries:     0. 03%

Notes:

1) See Table: 4 for detailed investments held by the City.
2) See Table: 5 for detailed investments held by Trustees.

21



TABLE: 3

CITY OF LATHROP

Investments Cash Flovu Analysis

As of September 30 2018

o •     - . o

e

Local Agency Investment Fund ( 1)      51, 268, 421 51, 268, 421

Wells Fargo Money Market Mutual Funds ( 2) 2, 805, 213 4, 043 2, 809, 256

o .  

BBVA Compass Bank 490, 231 363 490, 594

SJ County Pooled Funds 255, 960 1, 880)  $    254, 080

UMB Bank 323, 371 360 323, 732

Union Bank( 3)       6, 060, 892 2, 486, 504 4, 850, 211)  $  3, 697, 184

US Bank

PFM Asset Management 30, 383, 987 3, 991, 711 3, 955, 493)  $ 30, 420, 205

a a      :

s

o    1 1 1    1 ° 1 1 ••

1 1     .      1 : 1 1 e   • •

Notes:

1) LAIF interest income is paid quarterly( Mar/ Jun/ Sept/ Dec) and received in the following month ( Apr/ Jul/ Oct/ Jan).

2) Property Tax, Building permit revenue, TOT, Developer payments, and Utility payments; nonrecurring expenses paid during the month: General
government, Parks, Streets, Wastewater, and Water CIPs; also, recurring expenses: Park& street landscape maintenance, and water treatment

services; lastly, intergovernmental payments and transfers: Police Services expenses, and SSJID SCSWSP O& M expenses.

3) Interest earnings, debt service payments.

22



TABLE: 4

CITY OF LATHROP

Investments Held by City- Detail
As of September 30, 2018

r.     

Local Agency Investment Fund

Money Market Fund City
Acct No. 98- 39- 437

A 0.257° o Varies On Demand 51, 268, 421 51, 268, 421

51, 268, 421   $  51, 268, 421

Wells Fargo Mutual Funds

Money Market Mutual Fund City Acct No.    
N/ A 0. 000%     Varies On Demand 2, 809, 256 2, 809, 25612641627

2, 809, 256  $   2, 809, 256

o :      

23



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Investments Held by Trustee- Detail

As of Sep ember 30, 2018

r.

Investments Held by Union Bank by Account

03- 1 Series 2015- Mossdale Village Assessment District

Mossdale Village Assessment Dist. No. 03- 1 Series 2015- Redemption Fund 0. 010%   10/ 18/ 05 On Demand   $    18  $    18
Mossdale Village Assessment Dist. No. 03- 1 Series 2005/ 2015- Reserve Fund 0. 010%   10/ 18/ 05 On Demand   $     240, 912  $     240, 912

2000 Morth Har/an Improvement District 99-01

Money Ma rket- Reserve Account 0. 010%   7/ 12/ 00 On Demand   $       92, 384  $       92, 384

Money:Market- Redemption Account 0. 010%   7/ 12/ 00 On Demand   $     4  $     4

2003- 2,4 Lathrop CFD

Money Market- Interest Account 0. 010%   12/ 12/ 03 On Demand

LAIF- Interest Account 0. 257%  03/ 19/ 03 On Demand   $     725, 303   $     725, 303

CDPH/ CDWR- SRF Loan

Agreement Account 0. 000%   12/ 22/ 10 On Demand   $    79  $    79

Agreement Account-- Reserve Fund 0. 000%   12/ 22/ 10 On Demand   $     600, 249  $     600, 249

2013- 1 Mossdale Village

2013- 1 Refunding Improvement Bonds 0. 000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand   $    34  $    34
2013- 1 Refunding Improvement Bonds 0. 000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand   $     948, 965   $     948, 965

2013- 1 Special Tax Bonds

2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 0. 000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand   $    19   $    19
2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 0. 000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand

2013- 1 Mossdale Special Tax 0. 000%   10/ 1/ 13 On Demand   $     263, 397   $     263, 397

2015 Crossroads Series B

2015 Crossroads Series B- LOIB RDP 0. 000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand   $    25   $    25
2015 Crossroads Series B- LOIB Reserve 0. 000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand   $     743, 857  $     743, 857
2015 Crossroads Series B- Improvements 0. 000%    9/ 1/ 15 On Demand   $       81, 938  $       81, 938

Total Investments Held by Trustee- Union Bank $   3, 697, 184  $   3, 697, 184

24



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Investments Fleld by Trustee- Detail

As of September 30, 2018

e-     .  .  

Investments Held by BBVA Compass Bank by Account

2012 Water Loan( Refunding of 2000 Water COPs)
Certificate of Deposit- Reserve Fund 0. 230%   4/ 24/ 13 4/ 24/ 14     $     490, 594   $     490, 594

Total Investments lield by Trustee- BBVA Compass Bank  $     490, 594  $     490, 594

Investments Held by UMB Bank by Account

2006- 1 Centra/ Lathrop Phase I Insfrastructure CFD
Special Tax Fund 0. 000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand   $     297, 001   $     297, 001

Interest Fund 0. 000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand   $     1   $     1

TTEE Fee& Comp Exp 0. 002%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand   $       26, 678   $       26, 678

Reserve Fund 0. 000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand   $     0   $     0

Improvement Fund 0. 000%   9/ 12/ 06 On Demand   $    51   $    51

Total Investments Held by Trustee- UMB Bank  $     323, 732   $     323, 732

Investments Held by San Joaquin County by Account

Sanifary Sewer. 4ssessment District 1

Pooled Funds- Redemption Account 0. 260%   10/ 1/ 87 On Demand   $     254, 080   $     254, 080

Total Investments Held by Trustee- San Joaquin County $     254, 080   $     254, 080

25



TABLE: 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Investments Held by Trustee- Detail
As of September 30, 2018

Investments Held by PFM Asset Management by Account

PFM Asset Management

Money Market Fund 0. 000%   5/ 28/ 15 05/ 28/ 15    $       29, 870  $       29, 870

US Treasury Notes 9128282K5 1. 38%    7/ 31/ 17 7/ 31/ 19     $     297, 035   $     297, 035

US Treasury Notes 912828WW6 1. 63%    7/ 31/ 14 7/ 31/ 19     $     644, 846  $     644, 846

US Treasury Notes 912828UL2 1. 38%    1/ 31/ 13 1/ 31/ 20     $     407, 689   $     407, 689

US Treasury Notes 912828H52 1. 25%    12/ 1/ 16 1/ 31/ 20     $     882, 563   $     882, 563

US Treasury Notes 912828H52 1. 25%     2/ 2/ 15 1/ 31/ 20     $   1, 765, 125   $   1, 765, 125

US Treasury Notes 912828W22 1. 38%    2/ 15/ 17 2/ 15/ 20     $     785, 282   $     785, 282

US Treasury Notes 912828J84 1. 38%    3/ 31/ 15 3/ 31/ 20     $   1, 175, 626   $   1, 175, 626

US Treasury Notes 912828K58 1. 38%    4/ 30/ 15 4/ 30/ 20     $     978, 320  $     978, 320

US Treasury Notes 912828XE5 1. 50%     6/ 1/ 15 5/ 31/ 20     $     416, 101  $     416, 101

US Treasury Notes 912828XH8 1. 63%    6/ 30/ 15 6/ 30/ 20     $   1, 494, 381  $   1, 494, 381

US Treasury Notes 912828XM7 1. 63%    7/ 31/ 15 7/ 31/ 20     $     734, 121  $     734, 121

US Treasury Notes 912828L32 1. 38%    8/ 31/ 15 8/ 31/ 20     $   1, 021, 863   $   1, 021, 863

US Treasury Notes 912828L99 1. 38%   10/ 31/ 15 10/ 31/ 20    $   1, 019, 115   $   1, 019, 115

US Treasury Notes 912828M98 1. 63%   11/ 30/ 15 11/ 30/ 20     $     584, 695   $     584, 695

US Treasury Notes 912828N48 1. 75%   12/ 31/ 15 12/ 31/ 20     $     790, 763   $     790, 763

US Treasury Notes 912828N48 1. 75%   12/ 31/ 15 12/ 31/ 20    $   1, 122, 688   $   1, 122, 688

US Treasury Notes 912828N89 1. 38%    1/ 31/ 16 1/ 31/ 21     $     483, 340  $     483, 340

US Treasury Notes 912828N89 1. 38%    1/ 31/ 16 1/ 31/ 21     $     662, 176  $     662, 176

US Treasury N/ B Notes 9128283X6 2. 25%     2/ 1/ 18 2/ 15/ 21     $     606, 424  $     606, 424

US Treasury Notes 912828C57 2. 25%    3/ 31/ 14 3/ 31/ 21     $     468, 005   $     468, 005

US Treasury Notes 912828C57 2. 25%    3/ 31/ 14 3/ 31/ 21     $     566, 532  $     566, 532

US Treasury Notes 912828WG1 2. 25%    4/ 30/ 14 4/ 30/ 21     $   1, 083, 113   $   1, 083, 113

US Treasury Notes 912828WN6 2. 00%     6/ 2/ 14 5/ 31/ 21     $     635, 476  $     635, 476

US Treasury Notes 912828WR7 2. 13%    6/ 30/ 14 6/ 30/ 21     $   1, 053, 710  $   1, 053, 710

US Treasury Notes 9128284W7 2. 75%    8/ 15/ 18 8/ 15/ 21     $     996, 289   $     996, 289

US Treasury Notes 912828D72 2. 00%     9/ 2/ 14 8/ 31/ 21     $   1, 073, 102   $   1, 073, 102

US Treasury N/ B 9128285A4 2. 75%    9/ 17/ 18 9/ 15/ 21     $     498, 106   $     498, 106

US Treasury Subtotal:       22, 246, 483   $  22, 246, 483

Federal Agency Bond/ Note
FNMA Benchmark Note 3135GOJ53 1. 00%    2/ 19/ 16 2/ 26/ 19     $     527, 207  $     527, 207

FHLMC Notes 3137EACA5 3. 75%     3/ 2/ 16 3/ 27/ 19     $     488, 165   $     488, 165

26



TABLE: 5

CITI( OF LATHROP

Investments Held by Trustee- Detail

As of September 30, 2018

Freddie Mac Notes 3137EADZ9 1. 13%    4/ 27/ 16 4/ 15/ 19     $      148, 940   $     148, 940

FHLB Global Notes 3130A8D66 1. 13%     6/ 2/ 16 6/ 21/ 19     $     618, 648   $     618, 648

FHLB Global Notes 3130A8DB6 1. 13%    6/ 27/ 16 6/ 21/ 19     $   1, 014, 583   $   1, 014, 583

FHLMC Reference Note 3137EAEB1 0. 88%    7/ 20/ 16 7/ 19/ 19     $     281, 251   $     281, 251

FHLMC Reference Note 3137EAEB1 0. 88%    10/ 3/ 16 7/ 19/ 19     $     888, 160  $     888, 160

FNMA Benchmark Note 3135GON33 0. 88%     8/ 2/ 16 08/ 02/ 19    $     887, 370  $     887, 370

FNMA Notes 3135GOP49 1. 00%     9/ 2/ 16 08/ 28/ 19     $   1, 517, 804  $   1, 517, 804

FNMA Notes 3135GOT29 1. 50%    2/ 28/ 17 2/ 28/ 20     $     294, 869   $     294, 869

FHLMC Agency Notes 3137EAEF2 1. 38%    4/ 20/ 17 4/ 20/ 20     $     489, 335   $     489, 335

Fannie Mae Notes 3135GOU35 2. 75%    6/ 25/ 18 6/ 22/ 21     $     442, 851  $     442, 851

Federal Home Loan Banks Agcy 313AEXV7 3. 00%    9/ 20/ 18 9/ 20/ 12     $     448, 991  $     448, 991

Federal Agency Subtotal:       8, 048, 173   $   8, 048, 173

Interest

Accrued Interest 95, 679   $       95, 679

Total Investments Held by Trustee- PFM Asset Management  $  30, 420, 205   $  30, 420, 205

Investments made per CLSP Bond Indenture

27



1

28



ITEM 4. 4

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       DELINQUENT UTILITY TURN OFFS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution to Suspend Service

Disconnections for Delinquent Accounts Scheduled

on December 12, 2018

SUMMARY:

As in past years, staff has recommended suspending service disconnections during
the month- of December. The City will still assess a 10% late fee to all accounts with

balances not paid by December 31, 2018. Suspension of service disconnections in

December has been approved by Council since 1996:

BACKGROUND:

The Finance Department produces monthly utility invoices for its water and

wastewater customers.  The cycle of the utility bills is as follows:

Invoice Production:     Utility invoices are created and mailed to City
residents at the beginning of each month.  Utility invoices are due by the 25tn
of each month. A 10% penalty fee is assessed to all outstanding accounts on
the last working day of the month.
Reminder Notice:   Reminder notices are sent to City residents one ( 1) day
after the due date for all outstanding accounts.
Final Notice:   Final notices are normally sent out to City residents two ( 2)

weeks after the due date for all outstanding accounts.   Final Notices inform

the resident that the account is subject to disconnection.     A 72- hour

timeframe is given to residents to submit payment or make payment

arrangements.

Disconnection:  Typically three ( 3) weeks after the due date, accounts with
past due balances after the Final Notice deadline are subject to

disconnection.  Disconnected accounts are assessed a $ 60 reconnection fee.

In the last twelve ( 12) months, the, City disconnected an average of 118 customers
per month.   A $ 60 reconnection fee is assessed to all disconnected accounts.   On

average, the City collected a total of $ 7, 100 in service reconnection charges per

month.

Suspension of turn- offs in the month of December may increase account

delinquency and potentially increase the amount of uncollectible accounts written-
off  ( referred to a collections agency)  at the end of the fiscal year.    Instead of

detecting unpaid accounts in mid- December through the turn- ofF process,  unpaid

accounts are not caught until mid- January, thereby allowing customers to skip late
fees for up to 90- days instead of tlie customary 60- days.

29



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

UTILITY TURN OFFS FOR DECEMBER 2018

If Council decides to suspend turn offs in the month of December,  the service

reconnection charges would not be assessed.   However, the City will still apply a
10% late fee to all delinquent accounts if their balance is not paid by December 31,
2018.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Interruptions of essential City services such as water service due to non- payment
can be disruptive during the holidays. Therefore,  Council may decide to suspend
service disconnections during the month of December.  This action has been

approved by Council since 1996.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Suspension of turn- offs in the month of December has fiscal impacts,  as noted

below:  

Potentially increases the number of customers who fail to pay their bills
timely.
Service reconnection charges estimated at $ 7, 100 would not be assessed

or collected.

Increases the likelihood of having a higher number of unpaid accounts
referred to collections.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

The agenda item promotes Community Values and a Feeling of Safety by ensuring
continuity of water services for our residents during the month of December.

ATTACHMENTS:     

A.  Adopt a Resolution to Allow Suspension of Service Disconnections for

Delinquent Accounts Scheduled on December 12, 2018.

30



CITY M 4Rl/ 4GER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUIVCIL SPECIAL MEETIIVG

UTILITI( TURN OFFS FOR DECENI ER 2018

APP1 0!l 1LS:

V-- r s.       
i"`... -   d S

Vanessa L. Portillo Date

Deputy Finance Director

i'

llf l
Cari Jam Date

Director of inance

J g 1 
Salvador IVavarrete       . Date

City Attorney

l3-(9
S en Salvatore Date

City Manager

31



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

SUSPEND SEISVICE DISCONIVECTIOIeIS FOR DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULED ON DECEMBER 12, 2018

WHERE/ AS, since 1996, the City has allowed utility services to remain
uninterrupted during the month of December for all utility accounts, including
delinquent accounts; and

WFIEREAS,  the City disconnects an average of 118 customers per
month; and

WHEREAS, the fee to reconnect water service after disconnection for

non- payment is $ 60; and

WHEREAS,  the City collects an average of  $ 7, 100 per month in

reconnection fees; and

WHEREAS, the City will continue to charge the delinquent accounts a
10% late fee if the balance is not paid by December 31, 2018;

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that this City Council does
hereby authorize the extension for all delinquent accounts scheduled for turn
off on December 12, 2018.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 19t'' day of November
2018, by the following vote of the City Council:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

A BSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 18-   Page 1 of 1

32



ITEM 4. 5

CITY I RAIIEAGER' S REPOItY

N0 9EMBE6t 13, 201 CITY GOUn9CIL SPECI 4L MEETYNG

ITEM: Fl1NDIn1C FOit /4 MAIIVTEiVANCE WORKE t Y/ II

IN THE PU LIG VVORKS DEPARTME111T

RECAMI ENDATION:       dopt a Resolution to pprove Funeling for a
Maintenance 1A/ orker I/ II position

SllMMARI(:

The Public Works Department is responsible for the daily maintenance of city streets,
parks and buildings. Due to the City' s current growth plan, staff is requesting funding
for one ( 1) Maintenance Worker I/ II position in the Public Works Department.

BACKGIZOUND:

The Public Works Department is responsible for the daily operations and maintenance
of the City' s streets, parks and buildings. As the City grows, it is necessary to expand
staff in order to keep up with the daily needs of the City' s growing infrastructure.
Based on current and future construction trends, there is a need for an additional full

time Maintenance Worker I/ II to meet the demands of the City' s daily operations.

ItECOI 11ME119D TION:

Staff recommends Council fund one ( 1) Maintenance Worker I/ II position in the Public

Works Department.  This will allow staff to maintain daily servicing operations for the
City' s infrastructure.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff request City Council approve a budget amendment in fiscal year 2018/ 19 to
fund the Maintenance Worker II in the amount of $ 62, 200.

Increase Appropriation

1010- 50- 05- 410- 11- 00       $ 20, 200

Increase Appropriation

1010- 50- 70- 410- 11- 00       $ 20, 200

Increase Appropriation

2080- 50- 80- 410- 11- 00       $ 20, 800

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.  Resolution to Approve Funding for a Maintenance Worker I/ II in the Public
Works Department

33



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FUNDING FOR A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II

APPROVALS:

1      l— 1 — 8
Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

a_. e..a rn    2.   l3'   •  t 2• i B

Cari James Date

Finance Director

1 r3--`

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l5 df
S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

34



RESOLUTION 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO FUND

A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II IN THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, the City is expanding and additional staffing is needed to keep
up with that growth; and

WHEREAS,  the Public Works Department is responsible for the daily
maintenance of City streets, parks and buildings; and

WHEREAS, Staff has recommended fund one ( 1)  Maintenance Worker I/ II

position in the Public Works Department;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves the funding to add one ( 1) Maintenance Worker I/ II; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
approve the following amendments to the adopted Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 Budget:

Increase Appropriation

1010- 50- 05- 410- 11- 00       $ 20, 200

Increase Appropriation

1010- 50- 70- 410- 11- 00       $ 20, 200

Increase Appropriation

2080- 50- 80- 410- 11- 00       $ 20, 800

35



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 19th day of November, 2018,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

36



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 4. G
IVOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING    ;

ITEM:       CHRISTMAS PARADE TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURE

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Temporary Street
Closures for the Lathrop Christmas Parade on
December 8, 2018

SUMMARY:

On December 8, 2018, the City of Lathrop will host the annual Christmas Parade.
The parade will begin at 11: 00 a. m. at the corner of Fifth and J Street and travel

south and turn west on Thomsen Road; follow Thomsen Road to Cambridge Drive;

turn north onto Cambridge and follow Cambridge to J Street; turn east onto J street

and conclude at the corner of Fifth and J streets.   Staff has coordinated the route,

and the temporary street closures,  with Public Works,  Community Development,
Lathrop Police Services and the Lathrop Manteca Fire District to ensure the safety of
this event. Since the parade will utilize the entire street at these locations, staff is

requesting Council approval of temporary street closures.

BACKGROUND:

On December 8,  2018, the Parks and Recreation Staff will be hosting the annual
Christmas Parade. This year' s theme is" Rejoice it' s Christmas".  More than 40 entries

are anticipated.

The parade will start at 11: 00 AM.   This year we are returning to a longer parade
route as had been done in previous years.  The parade will begin at Fifth & J Streets;

continue south on Fifth Street and turn west on Thomsen Road; continue on Thomsen

Road and turn north on Cambridge Drive; continue on Cambridge and turn east on J

Street;  parade will continue on J street and conclude at the corner of J and Fifth

Streets.   The Judges Review Stand will be located along J Street.   Staging of the
parade entries will be located on J Street between 6th Street and Revere Lane as well

as Sixth Street between J and K Streets.

Staff will coordinate the temporary street closures with Public Works, Community
Development, Lathrop Police Services and the Fire Department.   Forty- eight hours
prior to the parade, the barricades will be set on the side of the road to alert the

community about areas of No Parking" and Street Closure".   On the day of the
parade,  additional barricades are set with advanced warning signs:  ` Road Closed

Ahead" and ` Detour Ahead".   Approximately / 2 hour prior to the beginning of the
parade, the actual Road Closure" signs are set in place.   STARS  ( Sheriff' s Team

Active Retired Seniors) and Volunteers with the Parks and Recreation staff help at all
intersections for traffic flow.  At the conclusion of the parade, barricades are collected.

The Lathrop- Manteca Fire District ( LMFD) will provide Santa Claus a ride in a unit that
is temporarily placed out of service.  LMFD in- service vehicles will also participate, at

the end of the parade allowing quick response to calls if necessary.

37



CITY MANAGER' S I EPORT P GE 2

IVOVEM ER 19, 018 CITY COUNCIL SPECI L MEETIIVG

CHRI TMA S PARADE TEMPORARY STREET CLOSUR@

Lastly, the Community Development Department has found the Parade to be exempt
from the provisions of CEQA under Title 14 California Code of Regulation5, Chapter

3, Article 19, Section 15304( e) ( Minor Alterations to Land).

REASON FOR I ECOMMENDATION:

The adoption of this resolution will approve the temporary street closures to allow
staff to facilitate the 2018 Christmas Parade.

FISCAL Il i PACT:

Expenses are offset by revenue from donations and entry fees.  No other anticipated

costs, other than staff time to prepare this report.

ATTAC H M E fdTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Temporary Street Closure

B.       Parade Route Map

38



CITY MAN/ AGER' S REPOItT PAGE 3

NOVEMBEIZ 19, 201LS CITY COUMCIL SPECIi4L MEETIIVG

CHItISTNI S PAF DE TEMPORAFtY STREET CLOSl1RE

APPROVALS:

f i - ` 6 r- Zv(.$

Zach Jones Date

Director of Parks and Recreation

o—— t8

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

0- 2 - I
ark ei sne Date

Comm nity De lopment Director

1 D '- g` S

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

D• 23- 1

Ste n Salvatore Date

City Manager

39



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURES FOR THE 2018 CHRISTMAS

PARADE ON DECEMBER 8, 2018

WHEREAS,  on November 19,  2018 the City Staff requested City Council
approval for temporary street closures for the 2018 Christmas Parade; and

WHEREAS, the streets recommended for temporary closure for the parade
route and staging areas include:  Staging of the parade entries will be located on J
Street between 6t" Street and Revere Lane as well as Sixth Street between J and K

Streets.  The parade will begin at Fifth & J Streets; continue south on Fifth Street and

turn west on Thomsen Road;  continue on Thomsen Road and turn north on

Cambridge Drive;  continue on Cambridge and turn east on J Street;  parade will

continue on J street and conclude at the corner of J and Fifth Streets; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop' s Public Works Department has agreed to set
barricades on the side of the road to alert the community about areas of closure 48
hours in advance of the parade; and

WHEREAS,  advanced temporary signage will be placed on the streets

identifying the temporary closure from approximately 10: 00a. m. to 12: 30p. m.  on

December 8, 2018; and

WHEREAS,  the STARS  ( Sheriff' s Team Active Retired Seniors)  has been

contacted to help at intersections for traffic flow during the temporary street closure
and the Fire Department has been coordinated with for the parade route; and

WHEREAS, the parade is exempt from the provisions of CEQA pursuant to

Title 14 California Code of Regulations,  Chapter 3,  Article 19,  Section 15304  ( e)

Minor Alterations to Land);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that pursuant to Vehicle Code Section 21101,

subdivision  ( e),  the City Council of the City of Lathrop does hereby approve
temporary closure of:    Staging of the parade entries will be located on J Street
between 6th Street and Revere Lane as well as Sixth Street between J and K Streets.

The parade will begin at Fifth & J Streets;  continue south on Fifth Street and turn

west on Thomsen Road;  continue on Thomsen Road and turn north on Cambridge

Drive;  continue on Cambridge and turn east on J Street;  parade will continue on J

street and conclude at the corner of J and Fifth Streets from approximately 10: OOa. m.
to 12: 30p. m. on December 8, 2018.

Resolution No. 18-   Page 1 of 2

40



ATTACHMENT A

P SSED AIVD ADOPTED this 19th

day of November 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:      ATTEST:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

Resolution No. 18-   Page 2 of 2

41



ATTACHMENT B

2018 Christmas Parade

Praposec  Route

1  '  . 4
T      "  s:.   

4 

f. _ 

j     

aa       ' . w. p,     
a

4.. _ N    k 3.    ' f3      v,

h,    

i,.7̀7 ° r"

y  h1    r I:  r. s t
4' a" 

t

il!!; • •            .      

r     ,+;

p   .„ F x"       '  

i

Fi

o

r 0.h r"  ;

F p ,'

a.  '   ,'       '
r'-  r "'_.

j !
q°.'      I y'  

c    g`      
i

1

t

4,,;  

1•-  
e, p       .      

T,
t",,,",,

I°`"  '
F     

f ,' i., r'...,;

c-      

y' a$ '  

a..
H

7 *   
J

Y ,.     -

lr P rc    '  :.,.    ?       *'_
ir    .   '   '   %      

y'  '  

c.     . j"" w.,'

ApL   _." _    ,  
n' d^' `;,    z' 3 a' 4     ""  ;'   v n t

r"  ''      s. s    ' 7X i '" y    '=.
a"_ r

A                i    :   <       

q 

M     ...,.       

S v lt

y   ..     , .    " :,^
a-

t , i
i A.

i
R n 9` a",

e
r^"     

i   a' F I  
i'       ;-   

r z
Ffi

r

I
a

aJ         

A:.  -     

a,,.'.   

4

v

r       

t.     

a

Y            a

t6:$
r $'

t,     

h k

l' V  ).       '  f.., A   k
r""'"       C'    j       "      .       

ld.,'sru       
w    

s —      ''     R
x        ;:  ;. .    ..      

Vi

4

i     

Y

rcw&.

3

3  .    

3 `..(      j.      
E ' f.        $   „    

C 3
F

L

0
y

4      a. fe ia

r

e   ;    3 q     _ .
p f a+ i`—   "' -    

i°

i f' vk'  
4 $ 

r'    ..

s  j  ..

Y;.       

p "  y x '

s' d."'}      '"  c'

t 5.     * ,1  °  ,    4
i'   ! ti       .°°°? rau: 

r

y..  -  

sl E«"'   .' d'   :.    

e.w r

t

x
x     

@

g

V    —

E' '     

i   ,

1h-`
y°"         ' ' M     '' ::      w.

TD__ h-, r•    F
q"

C' *  . 3K.-,.j .
ij 

s

ar

E       . r  •. 

SYO81Ik8lLG C a+. s,

s,>

C    
k      .  

h

r

StftL' C{ ICY- lE t t"        S.Gr   ,     " r      

p.

x  -
Y, i       e       r    

Ar,.: " W,
T''.".

s"

w ""-.; n
i      -_       ...      

n ,  , 

k   _
x•.•    _ .:    .

City f

PARKS   REGREATI N    "-._

42



IT IN 4. 7

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITV COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE
5T"   STREET

SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PRO7ECT CIP PS 15- 19

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Accepting Improvements from
McFadden Construction,  Inc. . and Sinclair General

Engineering Construction,  Inc.  for the
5t''  Street

Sidewalk Improvement Project CIP PS 15- 19 and

Authorize the Filing of a Notice of Completion

SUMMARY:

Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PS 15- 19 5th Street Sidewalk Improvement was

included in the approved Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 budget.   The project scope includes

the construction of a sidewalk along the eastern side of 5th Street between H Street
and O Street.

Staff requests that City Council adopt a resolution accepting the improvements
completed pursuant to the

5t" Street Sidewalk Improvement Project CIP PS 15- 19

from Sinclair General Engineering Construction, Inc. ( Sinclair).   Staff also requests

that City Council authorize a Notice of Completion to be filed with the San Joaquin
County Clerk.

BACKGROUND:

At the December 5,  2016 City Council Meeting,  Council approved a construction

contract with McFadden Construction,   Inc.   in the amount of  $ 319, 504 and

authorized a 15%  contingency in the amount of  $ 47, 926 for staff to use as

necessary to achieve the goals of the project.  The total construction budget for the

project was $ 367, 430.

During construction the City and McFadden were unable to agree on the

interpretation of the plans and specifications.   The City and McFadden agreed to
terminate the Construction Contract to McFadden dated December 5, 2016.

On September 27, 2017 the City issued a Notice to Proceed to Sinclair to complete
the construction for the

5t''  Street Sidewalk Improvement CIP PS 15- 19 in the

amount of $ 17, 438.

Staff requests City Council adopt a resolution accepting improvements associated
with CIP PS 15- 19 5th Street Sidewalk Improvement Project as constructed by  
McFadden and Sinclair.     Staff is also requesting authorization to file a Notice of
Completion with the San Joaquin County Clerk.

43



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE 5TH STREET SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT

PROJECT CIP PS 15- 19

APPROVALS:

I I- 7 1
Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

a,n s    2.    i    •      11• iZ• 1 S

Cari James Date

Director of Finance

1--/ y 
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l$

en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

44



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

ACCEPTING IMPROVEMENTS FROM MCFADDEN CONSTRUCTION, INC.

SINCLAIR GENERAL ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION, INC FOR THE 5tn

STREET SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT CIP PS 15- 19 AND AUTHORIZE

THE FILING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2016, City Council awarded the contract for 5th
Street Sidewalk Improvement Project PS 15- 19 to McFadden Construction,  Inc.

McFadden) in the amount of $ 319, 504, and authorized a 15% contingency in the
amount of $47, 926 for a total construction authorization of $ 367, 430; and

WHEREAS, during construction the City and McFadden were unable to agree
on the interpretation of the plans and specifications and the City and McFadden
agreed to terminate the Construction Contract to McFadden dated December 5,

2016; and

WHEREAS,  on September 27,  2017 City issued a Notice to Proceed to
Sinclair General Engineering Construction, Inc. ( Sinclair) for the 5t'' Street Sidewalk

Improvement CIP PS 15- 19 to complete the project; and

WHEREAS,   Sinclair has completed construction of the project,   the

improvements were inspected by City staff for conformance with the plans and
specifications and meet the satisfaction of the Assistant Public Works Director; and    

WHEREAS, adequate funds were allocated in the FY 18/ 19 budget to close

out the project and staff requests City Council to authorize the unused total funds
be returned to the funding sources;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby accepts the work performed by McFadden and Sinclair for the 5tn
Street Sidewalk Improvement Project CIP PS 15- 19 as complete and authorizes the

City Manager, or his designee, to file a Notice of Completion.

45



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 19th

day of November
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO F Mo

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

46



9 J r; u" ii: vt`= t"   ,  :
RECORDING REQUESTED BY

CITY OF LATHROP

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO

NAME Ciry of Lathrop

City Clerk
STREET 390 Tawne Centre Drive

ADDRESS Lathrop, CA 95330
CITY&

STATE

ZIP

NOTICE OF COMPI. ETIOI

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN:

1.   That the interest or estate stated in paragraph 3 herein in the real property herein described is owned by:
NAME STREET AND NO.       CITY STATE

Citv of Lathrop 390 Towne Centre Drive Lathrop California

If more than one owner of the interest stated, the name and address of each must be stated)

2.   That the full name and address of the owner of said interest or estate, if there is only one owner, and that the full
names and addresses of all the co- owners who own said interest or estate as tenants in common, as joint tenants, or

otherwise, if there is more than one owner, are set forth in the preceding paragraph.

3.   That the nature of title or the stated owner, or if more than one owner, then of the stated owner and co- owners is:

The 5` h Street Sidewalk Improvement Project CIP PS 15- 19, bv Mc Fadden Construction, Inc. and Sinclair
General Enaineering Construction, Inc.

4.   That on the 19 day of November, 2018 a work of improvement on the real property herein described was
completed.

5.   That the name of the original contractor, if any, for said work of improvement was: Sinclair General Engineerin
Construction, Inc.

6.   That the name and address of the transferor is:

NAME STREET AND NO.  CITY STATE

McFadden Construction, Inc.  7207 Murray Drive Stockton California

Sinclair General Engineering Construction, Inc.  PO Box 1453 Oakdale California

7.   That the real property herein referred to is situated in the City of Lathrop County of San Joaquin,
State of California, and is described as follows:

The 5`h Street Sidewalk Improvements Proiect, Project No. CIP PS 15- 19

By:

City Manager

That the undersigned has knowledge of the contents herein and states under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is
true and correct.

B y:

City Clerk

47



CEItTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the NOTICE OF COMPLETION
dated November 19,  2018 from McFadden Construction,  Inc.  and Sinclair General

Engineering Construction,  Inc.,  to the City of I.athrop,  a political corporation and/ or

governmental agency, is hereby accepted by the undersigned officer or agent on behalf of the City
Council pursuant to authority conferred by minute action of the City Council adopted on November
19, 201, and the grantee consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer.

Dated By
City Manager

48



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)       1, 1 !,=;; r';:-,`'1 
j    ..

Project: 5th Street Sidewalk Project( PS 15- 19)

Date: 11/ 9/ 18     .

Item Unit QTY Unit Price Ext. Price

CONCRETE SIDEWALK SF 17, 000 $  6. 31  $    107, 270. 00

1 of 1

49



50



a-rEM 4.s

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITIr COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR MOSSDALE TRAIL

LIGHTING CIP PK 18- 10 FROM T& S INTERMODAL

MAINTENANCE, INC.

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Accepting Improvements from
T& S Intermodal Maintenance, Inc. for CIP PK 18- 10

Mossdale Trail Lighting; Authorizing the Filing of a
Notice of Completion and the Release of Contract

Retention

SUMMARY:      

T& S Intermodal Maintenance,  Inc.  ( T& S)  has completed construction of Capital

Improvement Project ( CIP) PK 18- 10 Mossdale Trail Lighting Project.  The project is

complete and stafF is requesting City Council adopt a resolution accepting the
improvements. Staff also requests that City Council authorize the filing of a Notice
of Completion ( NOC) with the San Joaquin County Clerk and authorize the release
of contract retention to T& S 45 days after recording the NOC.

BACKGROUND:

On March 12, 2018, Council approved the formation of the Mossdale Trail Lighting
CIP PK 18- 10. Council requested staff bid the project and select a competent and

responsible contractor to complete the project. Subsequently, Council approved six
6) hard- wired pathway lights along the western edge of the park where no lighting

existed and where a maintenance road provides vehicular access to the levee and

the pump station.

In March 2018, staff completed contract plans and specifications for the Mossdale

Trail Lighting Project.  In accordance with Public Contract Code and LMC 2. 36. 060,
the project was advertised for bids.

On May 23, 2018, the City received three ( 3) sealed bids; the bids were opened by
the City Clerk and publicly read.  T& S submitted the lowest total base bid in the

amount of $ 72, 600 and was determined to be responsive and responsible bidder

based upon previous project history, licensing qualifications and responsiveness to
the bid requirements.  On June il,  2018,  City Council awarded a construction
contract with T& S to construct the Mossdale Trail Lighting Project.

Tonight, staff requests the City Council accept the improvements from T& S for CIP
PK 18- 10 Mossdale Trail Lighting Project.

51



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ACCEPTING MOSSDALE PARK TRAIL LIGHTING PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS

The work has been completed per the contract plans and specifications, inspected by
City staff and meets the satisfaction of the Assistant Public Works Director. Prior to the
release of contract retention,  T&S will provide all lien releases for the materials

supplied and work completed.  Staff requests authorization to file a NOC with the

San Joaquin County Recorder and release the contract retention to T& S 45 days
after filing the NOC.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

T&S has completed the construction of CIP PK 18- 10 Mossdale Trail Lighting. The
improvements were inspected by City stafF for conformance with the contract plans
and specifications, and meet the satisfaction of the Assistant Public Works Director.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

CIP PK 18- 10 Mossdale Trail Lighting promotes Public Safetv by providing lighting
the along the western edge of the Mossdale Park which increases pedestrian safety.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The current CIP budget was sufficient to fund this project and no contingency was
used.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.    A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop Accepting the
Completion of the Mossdale Trail Lighting CIP PK 18- 10 and Authorize the
Filing a Notice of Completion and Release of Contract Retention

B.    Notice of Completion

C.    GASB 34 Report

52



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

CCEP7ING fMOSSDALE P iRIC TRAIL LIGHTING PRO] ECT

APPROVALS:

11 , 2 -2.0 ( 
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

l c- - c -  

Michael King   -     Date

Assistant Public Works Director

a,

Cari Jame Date

Finance Di ct r

U
y  

r 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

t 3- 18
S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

53



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

ACCEPTING IMPROVEMENTS FROM T& S INTERMODAL MAINTENANCE, INC.

FOR CIP PK 18- 10 MOSSDALE TRAIL LIGHTING; AUTHORIZING THE FILING

OF NOTICE A COMPLETION AND RELEASE OF CONTRACT RETENTION

WHEREAS,  on March 12,  2018,  Council approved the formation of CIP PK

18- 10 Mossdale Trail Lighting. Council requested stafF bid the project and select a

competent and responsible contractor to complete the project.   Subsequently,
Council approved six ( 6) hard- wired pathway lights along the western edge of the
park where no lighting existed and where a maintenance road provides vehicular
access to the levee and the pump station; and

WHEREAS, in March 2018, staff completed contract plans and specifications

for the Mossdale Trail Lighting Project. In accordance with Public Contract Code and
LMC 2. 36. 060, formal bidding procedures, the project was advertised for bids; and

WHEREAS, on May 23,  2018, the City received three  ( 3)  sealed bids;  the

bids were opened by the City Clerk and publicly read. T&S Intermodal Maintenance,
Inc.  (T&S) submitted the lowest total base bid in the amount of $ 72, 600 and was

determined to be responsive and responsible bidder based upon- previous project

history, licensing qualifications and responsiveness to the bid requirements; and

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2018, City Council awarded a construction contract
to T& S to complete the Mossdale Trail Lighting Project; and

WHEREAS,    T& S has completed construction of the project,    the

improvements were inspected by City staff for conformance with the plans and
specifications and meet the satisfaction of the Assistant Public Works Director;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby accepts the work performed by T&5 for CIP PK 18- 10 Mossdale Trail
Lighting as complete and author.izes the City Manager,  or his designee, to file a

Notice of Completion  ( NOC) with the San ] oaquin County Recorder and authorize
the release of retention 45 days after recording the Notice of Completion.

54



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 19t'' 

day of November
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to, wit:

AYES:

IVOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

55



1 @9E- 9 69 9    

F

RECORDING REQUESTED BY

CITY OF LATHROP

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO

NAME City of Lathrap

City Clerk
STREET 390 Towne Centre Drive

ADDRESS Lathrop, CA 95330
CITY&

STATE

ZIP

NOTICE OF COIVIPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN:

1.   That the interest or estate stated in paragraph 3 herein in the real property herein described is owned by:
NAME STREET AND NO.       CITY STATE

City of Lathrop 390 Towne Centre Drive Lathrop California

If more than one owner of the interest stated, the name and address of each must be stated)

2.   That the full name and address of the owner of said interest or estate, if there is only one owner, and that the full
names and addresses of all the co- owners who own said interest or estate as tenants in common, as joint tenants, or

otherwise, if there is more than one owner, are set forth in the preceding paragraph.

3.   That the nature of title or the stated owner, or if more than one owner, then of the stated owner and co- owners is:

Mossdale LandinQ Cominunitv Park Trail LiQhting, Project No. CIP PK 18- 10, by T& S Intermodal
Maintenance. Inc.

4.   That on the 19 day of November. 2018 a work of improvement on the real property herein described was
completed.

5.   That the name of the original contractor, if any, for said work of improvement was: T& S Intermodal, Inc.

6.   That the name and address of the transferor is:

NAME STREET AND NO.  CITY STATE

T& S Intermodal Maintenance, Inc.      6540 Austin Road Stockton California

7.   That the real property herein referred to is situated in the Citv of Lathrop County of San Joaquin,
State of California, and is described as follows:

Mossdale LandinQ Community Park Trail LiQhtinQ, Project No. CIP PK 18- 10

B y:

City Manager

That the undersigned has knowledge of the contents herein and states under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is
true and correct.

B y:
City Clerk

56



CEIZTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the NOTICE OF COMPLETION
dated November 19, 2018 froan' S Intermodal Maintenance, Inc., to the City of Lathrop, a
political corporation and/ or governmental agency, is hereby accepted by the undersigned officer or
agent on behalf of the City Council pursuant to authority conferred by minute action of the City

Council adopted on November 19, 2018, and the grantee consents to recordation thereof by its duly
authorized officer.

Dated By
City Manager

57



f, F= G`- C  ..ti

CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)     Date: 1/ 1/ 2018

Submitted by:  Ken Reed ( Senior Construction Manager)

Tract No.:       Mossdale Landing Community Park

Item Unit Qty Unit Price Total Price

LED Lumec S56 80W48LED4K T ACDR
Each 6     $  12, 100. 00      $    72, 600. 00

LE3 UNIV DMG SFX FN1 TN 2. 875C

GN8TX FIXTURE WNI A7 F14' 3" TENON

Grand total for the project 72, 600. 00

58



ITEM 4. 9

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO VACATE A

PORTION OF MADRUGA ROAD TO SOUTH LATHROP

LAND, L. L. C.

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving the City' s Intention to
Vacate 9, 789 Square Feet of Madruga Road to South

Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

SUMMARY:

On September 10, 2018, City Council approved Parcel Map 17- 01 and a Subdivision
Agreement for South Lathrop Commerce Center with South Lathrop Land, L. L. C. As

part of the final map' s approval, the developer was required to construct offsite
improvements.  These offsite improvements include the widening,  extension and

renaming of Madruga Road to Glacier Street.  As a result of the extension of

Madruga Road, a portion of the cul- de- sac, approximately 9, 789 square feet, is no
longer needed by the City and can only be used if inerged with adjoining property,
owned by South Lathrop Land,  L. L. C.  On October 3,  2018 South Lathrop Land,
L. L. C. submitted a letter requesting the City to vacate a portion of Madruga Road.

While the majority of City roadways are easements, Madruga Road is owned in fee

title,  which requires that the City go through a right- of-way vacation process
pursuant to Section 8835( a) of the California Streets and Highways Code. Council

may vacate a street pursuant to the authority provided in this chapter by first
adopting a resolution of intention to vacate.

The first step in the process of vacating a portion of Madruga Road is the adoption
of an initial resolution of intention to vacate that sets the date, hour and place of

the public hearing to consider the abandonment of the street.  Should the Council
approve the resolution of intention,  stafF will take an item to the Planning
Commission to request that the Planning Commission of the proposed street
vacation conforms to the City' s General Plan. If the Planning Commission confirms
the conformity of the proposed right- of-way vacation, staff will return to Council on
December 10,   2018,   recommending Council adopt a resolution to vacate

approximately 9, 789 square feet of Madruga Road.

Staff recommends that Council adopt the resolution of intention to vacate a port'ion
of Madruga Road to South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

59



CITY MANAGEIt' S REPORT Pd4GE 2

NOVEMB R19, 2018 CITI( COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO ! flACATE 9, 789 SQUARE FEET OF M 4DIZdJGQ

ROAD TO SOl1TH LATHROP LAND, L. L. C.

4CKGROUND:

On September 10, 2018, City Council approved Parcel Map 17- 01 and a Subdivision
Agreement for South Lathrop Commerce Center with South Lathrop Land, L. L. C. As

part of the final map' s approval,  the developer was required to construct offsite

improvements.

These offsite improvements include the widening,  extension and renaming of

Madruga Road to Glacier Street. Due to the extension of Madruga Road, a portion of
the former cul- de- sac is no longer needed by the City.  This portion consists of

9, 789 square feet and is of no use to anyone unless merged with the adjoining
property, owned by South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

The first step in the process of vacating a portion of Madruga Road is the adoption
of an initial resolution of intention to vacate that sets the date, hour and place of

the public hearing to consider the abandonment of streets.  This initial step also
directs the Public Works Department to notify the City Clerk to publish and post the
required public notice. Should Council approve the resolution of intention, staff will

take an item to the Planning Commission to request that the Planning Commission
confirm the proposed street vacation conforms with the City' s General Plan. If the

Planning Commission confirms the conformity of the proposed right- of- way
vacation,  staff will return to Council on December 10,  2018,  recommending the
adoption of a resolution to vacate a portion of Madruga Road.

This proposed resolution of intention to vacate and the ultimate vacation are

exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061( b) ( 3) of the State CEQA Guidelines

because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in
question may have significant effect on the environment.

Tonight,  staff requests that the City Council adopt the resolution of intention to
vacate in order to establish a future public hearing to be held on December 10,
2018 at which time Council may consider taking formal action to vacate a portion of
Madruga Road.

REASON FOR RECOMMEIeIDATION:

Due to the extension of Madruga Road in South Lathrop Specific Plan a portion of
the former cul- de- sac is no longer needed and is of no significant use unless
merged with the adjoining property owned by South Lathrop Land, L. L. C. The value

of offsite improvements being constructed by South Lathrop Land, L. L. 0 far exceeds
for the general benefit the value of the portion of cul- de- sac to be vacated.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact at this time.

60



CITY MANAGEIZ' S IaEPORT PAGE 3

NOVEM ER19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECI 4L h7EETING

RESOLUTION OF INl'ENTIOIV TO V 4CQ TE 9, 789 SQUARE FEET OF MADItUGa4

ROAD TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND, L. LeC.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the City of Lathrop' s Intent to Vacate 9, 789 Square
Feet of Madruga Road to South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

B.  South Lathrop Commerce Center Civil Site Plan

C.  Plat of Roadway Vacation & Legal Description of Roadway Vacation

D.  Initiation of Process to Vacate:  Letter from Philip Prassas, Vice President of
South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

61



CITY MANi4GER' S ItEPORT PAGE 4

NOVEMBER.19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETIIVG
FtESOLUTION O INTENTION TO VACATE 9, 789 SQd1 RE FEET OF MADRUG/

ROAD TO SOUTH Le4THROP LAND, L. L. C.

APPitOVi4LS:

g

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

Cari Jamc s       Date

Director of\ nance

j- 3      -

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

ll' !3' l v
St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

62



FtESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF TIiE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP OF

ITS INTENT TO VACATE 9, 789 SQUARE FEET OF MADRUGA ROAD TO

SOUTH LATHROP LA ND, L. L. C.

WHEREAS, due to extension of Madruga Road, a portion of the former cul- de-
sac,  approximately 9, 789 square feet,  which is no longer needed and is of no

significant use unless merged to the adjoining property owned,  by South Lathrop
Land, L. L. C.; and

WHERElAS, there appears to be no further public need or purpose to maintain

the public right- of-way of that former cul- de- sac section of Madruga Road; and

WHEREAS, on October 3, 2018, South Lathrop Land, L. L. C. submitted a letter
to the City requesting the initiation of the process to vacate a portion of Madruga
Road; and

WHEREAS, the proposed vacation could only benefit the adjoining property
owned by South Lathrop Land, L. L. C. Assessor Parcel Number 241- 030- 13 along the
existing alignment of Madruga Road; and

WHEREAS,  land so vacated must be paid for,  or exchanged for value,  in

accordance with Public Streets, Highways, and Service Easements Vacation Law at

California Streets & Highways Code Section 8355( a), and South Lathrop Land agreed
to widen and extend, for general City benefit new Glacier Street, formally Madruga
Road in excess of the required improvements; and

Vi/ HEREAS, the California Government Code Section 65402, subdivision( a),

requires that prior to any action regarding a road vacation being taken by the City
Council,  the Planning Commission find such action to be in conformity with the
general plan, and the City Council must consider the proposed vacation at a duly
noticed public hearing on December 10, 2018; and

WHEREAS,  the environmental impacts of the South Lathrop Specific Plan
project were addressed in a certified Environmental Impact Report  ( SCH No.

2013012064) adopted by the Lathrop City Council on July 20, 2015 by passage of
Resolution No. 15- 3963, and as such, consistent with Public Resources Code Section

21166 and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, there is no basis warranting further
environmental review with respect to the proposed road vacation;

63



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, based on substantial evidence in the

record, hereby finds, determines, and orders as follows:

Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated by
reference herein.

Section 2. Declaration of Intent and Description of Right- of- Way Proposed for
Vacation. The City Council of the City of Lathrop declares its intent to quit claim
the retained public right- of-way in Madruga Road. Quit claim will be contingent
upon the submittal of a Lot Line Adjustment by South Lathrop Land to blend
quit claimed portion into adjacent parcel.

Section 3. Description of Right- of- Way Proposed for Vacation. The description
of the proposed vacation of Madruga Road is shown on the legal description

and map attached as Attachment 2 and incorporated by reference herein.

Section 4.  Authoritv.  The proceedings to vacate the described section of

Madruga Road are conducted under the authority of Chapter 3, Part 3, Division
9 of the California Streets and Highway Code Sections 8320 et seq.

Section 5. Hearina. A hearing on the resolution to vacate is hereby set for
December 10,  2018 at 7 p. m.  at City Hall,  390 Towne Center Dr.,  Lathrop
California 95530.

Section 6. Referral to Planning Commission. The City Council hereby directs
the Planning Commission to prepare and file with the Council,  as soon as

possible and prior to the aforementioned public hearing, a report addressing

the conformity of the proposed road vacation with the Lathrop General Plan
and any applicable specific plans.

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

64



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 19th

day of November
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Sal or avarrete, City Attorney

65



ATTACHMENT B

1

i   '  o E
a

y,. 
ac z    ;

a      '
gg aW w     .

5 f 1    .. r"  
U m A

z      ; ,

S .      ,   T: l,"`' f .    o '.

i e   ..     
i"``+,,

k  ``  :   pj° Yy1.

4
4   }°'* ..      

a    ". F 9,.-       
3y1

x

r           .      

I.
a

E te,   "   , 

x   . .     ,      _, . at

7i  

d

i*,     o

Yi 4  :  e' . s f ,   

4 r",         '      ,       
m   

5;          
y       Cy'.       € .       4i      

r.

ts

b        

y,     i       '' 3';"    «   
a    ._..       k%

Z cn s.  +°'+ .

r y tii  `      '      

g.

Y.+;' a1 k ,.   

c

i      

F ,     .            .
i      ,

k d   *     

x  .     °    t S is`   F c          uw

s

d      +
4.; 5 :  .    m:  e  s

N     '

r

6,
4,, . r   '   

3AY 31IIY3SOA   <    ,.      , y.   
i a o ar

F rv.    &  
m

w F f w   ;  : n

o n.  

f   ..   ,     f ' c ' s   . 

y
P

O

y,.,
s v  rn m

a m
g,

p r'    
P

d     .,.      ryp  w m a

a.  m. 7 e e. P   '.   
f     ,. ;

s    ..     , # .  
f  , 

je
q ., 07,  '°  - s0 0  

s    ,      ;     e s ca ca c

y   .     N-*_   _.    Gl i
S'

s  . .   

j
N

it k      a

y

1,     

6 V

gg...

M"

W
p 6

F
Ya

Q          a Y
r

N
6

a

N   
Q

Y i

Y

W jU W5  q
o  ;     

F,  

sy  ,,  
0 g o

a 6
rt

a

u'..

w
V 

o

V
r.     .

9.'      
2 o j. .

s
t`

g-
rP"   

y„ 
3yM•

9} ;,„,. .  j.:

s   

4     

j hri,.
y: .  .

w .

ce     ::
r-, ,  

p

r

rs     

g 

g a E

r

a a  ,`>  p    i e
d ,     * t<     x,   

e;;'"
m,." y     . r,_,'',       

za:'': 
q .

y

sr"

TM

y,  c „:   
a" a

3r' a
g q r,.

t? fiz'      .. t+&"
a   a

5.: Iq
g,

t w  .     ,  
d .

h\       `^.,
y. 

hA      '
C.

Aw     .  
d

m

k bT

A'      ,      } 

F#'        . J A S

fT'   ] 

6.
u. Wv

J   
e+

i4

g
qb

o-   

4 d^ 4
l, bY  -     .       .  

i e Sv,
t  

V ttie ¢      
t .

y`     yg,

k
t* Ay a'+ Y, "" Y

5p"           r

1, .  _ k    ¢;, <  .  '
4^::

v   .., .,  .-.  

y

66



FF

2s2a3. ai

aiiaiis F

Page 1 of 2
t

E

ATTACHMENT C

LI'sCAL DGSCRIPTION

ROADdVAY VACATTON

CLRTAIN RCAf, P[ ZOI' GRTY SITLfATGD IN Tl-l CITl' O 1.. A,TI- ROP, SAN JUAQUIN COUNTY,       

STATE OF CALIPORNIA, 3FiNG A PO[ tTION OI' PIIBLIC ROAD KNOWN AS NIADIZUGA ROAD.     

AS DESCRIBED IN THE DOCUMENT fZECQRDED AS DQCUM NT NUMBBR 85Q08988, ON

FEBRUARY 7, 1985, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS, BEING MOl PAR1' ICULARLY i
r

DESCRIBED AS' QLLpWS;    

I3EGTNIVING AT Tl-[F, SQtITHWEST RLY CORNER OP SAID MADRUGA RUAD, TI IFNCE

ALONG THE WFSTERLY J[ NI; Ol SATD MAdRUGA ROAD NORTH 0° 42' 48" Ft1.S' 1', GS, 74 FF..E' f;

I' kIENCE LEAVIiVG SAID WESTERLY LINB, A.LONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE I'O THE RIGHT,     
xROM WIiTCH' 1' Hl; RAI) ICJS POINT BEARS SOUT' I-I 24° OS' IS" EAS' T, IAVING A tAD1L1S O F

1977. 50 P CT, TF-1ROUGEI A C NTRAL ANGLC OI 5° 35' S7", AND AN ARC L NGTH OP 143. 25

FEET, TO A POINT ON TH SOUTI- I RLY LIN OF SAIp MADRUGA ROAD;    

i
THrNC ALONG SAID SOUTF-IER. Y I,[NE T- I& I'OL,I.,OWING TWO( 2) COiJRSES:     

i
E

1.   SOUTC- i 39 0' 23" WBS' f, ( 37. 22 FEET;       
i

2,  THENCE S UT}-172° Cil' l7" WEST, 97.99 FEET, TO THE I' OIN1' UI B GINNING.      

CONTA[ N1NG 9, 789 SQUARE I'EET, MQRF., O.R I..fiSS.       

ND OF DESCRII'' I'XOI

i

i

PItEP 1RED BY; 
li

LANO

J
E Mq C

SG'
n

Vw   O
a

i

No.$ 817   '  i     

IAN I3RUCL MACDONALD DATE

LICENSTD LAND SURVEYOR NO. 8817

XP. 12131/ 19)    sT9p o

STATE QF CALIFORNIA
F p- AL Fo

I;
ri

IACKA 8c 0 11PS
CIVIL ENGINEERIN6 Lr1ND PLAN NING L ND SURVENNG

742 franklln DAva Sulto 13, Pl aecxiton. CA. 9A59F33.955
925) 225• Ob90

I4

i;

ti

i;
I
k

E

P:\ 25223\ SRV1Mappingll..egtilslMAl) RUGA 2UAD ABANDONMEIdT. dac

s
t•

67



ATTACHMENT C

ROADWAY VACAT[ ON

LAND i

E MA'

oG   
w

V4-   O ", c
MnnflUun

o RA STqT
UrE1Q No. 8817   e Ro

d*       E C IBED

AREA a
s

q yo Mt"n P
TF

OF CAL

R 9°

y yUN1o' G
tc

VICINITY AAP

NOTE:       

9'    
SCALE:  1" = 3000'

THE BASIS OF BEARING SHQWN HEREON IS
THE SAME AS SNOWN ON PARCEL 1AP FORMERLY MADRUGA ROAD

17- 01, WHICH IS BASED ON THE CALIFORNIA
COORDINATE SYSTEM ZONE 3, NAD 83.   2p

REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID MAP

FOR FURTFIER INfORMATION.  
TE

g   

s

c  
s,     f.

Gj,. v 5  ii      
pARGEL 2

M 17'- 01
l/

c,0'      PM_
5,

p-5°
35

25`    : szx`.   .`
UN18°29' 18" W( R      

93       `     i
A

K ;.:
L' y,}

a -  

rtl 
3`

r.°  R'   

1—       r>, o

o `
1'

1'   

PARCEL 
t J i fS r r t 

YJ`''.
4 g >     pJ  /      

i r       >+'' nj nS
p/   y ! 70 i     yk st"' H '

y+
a.;; y5„'—           

Y!  /— V

2/     /       i i  ,,f' A` J_ fti y` k
r  ":r =  f' l._     
4v`ss 5_~ r

NO° 42' Q8" E
r;:-:;

n

o-
E

65. 74'   N 2g- , gg ROADWAY ABAMDONMEN7

9, 789± SF
P. 0. 8.  

0 50 100 200
PIAT TO ACCO IPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION .

LE,  GEND SCALE: 1"= 100

ROAIDWAY VACAT ON

I BOUNOARY OF DESCRIPTION

I EXISTING PARCEL/ RIGHT OF WAY LINE THROP CAUFORNIA

k P I PARCEL MAP

0f P. O. B.    POINT OF BEGINNING

Aft A OF DESCRIPTION
ENGINEERS Nt Nri es SURYEYORS

5142R fRhNKLIN UR, PLEASANTON, CA 94588    ( 9?.5}225- OG9Q

DRAWN DATE SCALE JOf3 N0.

IBM FEB. 2018 1"= 100' 25223. 41

OB- 14- 4016 9: 06om l.ong La P;\ 25223\ SRJ UAPPINC\ f' NTS\ 61MRUCA QC. OiYC

68



ATTACHMENT D

October 3, 2018

Glea n Gebhardt

City Engineer

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

RE:      Initiation of Process tfl Vacate Outlier Parcel on Madruga Road

Dear Glenr:

I am reaching out to you to ask your assistance in having the City commence proceedings to vacate that
smali section of Madruga Road ( approx. 0. 22 acre) that the City currentiy owns in fee, pursuant ta
5treets& Highw ys Cade section 8355( a). i'his request is being made since, as a result of the approval

by the City Council and anticipated recordation of ParceO Map 17- 01 (" Parcel Map"), the subject

prop rty wil{ become an outlier parcel (" Outlier Parcel") and will no longer be needed for use by the
public given the new public improvement5 that are being eonstructed by 5outh Lathrop land, L. L. C.

South Lathrop tand").

As you know, the City required that South Lathrop Land fund, design, and construct an abundance of
public infrastructure( at a cost of more than$ 28. IiUl) to not only allow for the planned d velopment of

the property awned by South Lathrop Land within the South Lathrop 5pecific Plan area, but also to allow
for the future development of other areas of the City, including the la#hrop Gateway property and the
McKinley corridar property.

1' he vacation and subsequent conveyance in fee of the Outlier Parcel to South Lathrop land is in
accordance with state law, specifically Streets and Mighways Code section 8355( a) as an exchange and

offset, with the value of the ahove- referenced public improvements significantly exceeding the naminal
value of the Outlier Parcel. Please find attached several exhibits that more fully describe the Out3ier
Parcel ( see Attachments 2 and 3 ( consisting of the exhibit showing the location of the Outlier Parcel and
the legal description for same}),

Please let us know what other information the City might need in order to initiate the vacation proces5
and help mave it forward as expeditiously as feasible.

Best,

South L op tand L. L. C.

Philip Pr
Vice President

Attachments

cc:       Chris Ragan, IVadia Costa

CRHf\ 54077\ 17588A9. 2

69



70



ITEM 4. 10

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT ( SIA)  FOR 89 LOTS IN

TRACT 3999 VILLAGE " BB" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3999
Village   ' BB"   within the Lakeside East District,

Totaling 89 Single- Family Lots and a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development,    LLC,    and Irrevocable Offer of

Dedication for portions of Garden  Farms Avenue,

Bosch Avenue, and Oberlin Avenue

SUMMARY:

On June 1, 2015, the City appr.oved an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map Tract
3694  ( VTM 3694),  Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathro.p that revised conditions of
approval for new development within Phase 1. On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning
Commission approved a Neighborhood Design Plan and Architectural Guidelines, and

Design Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside East District ( also known as Stage 2A")

within Phase 1.

This proposed Final Map Tract 3999 for Kiper Homes ( Builder) will be the first tract

map within the Village " BB" area. The Builder is proposing eighty- nine ( 89) 55' x 100'
single- family lots. A Vicinity Map is included as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 3999,
Village BB" within the Lakeside East District, totaling 89 single- family lots and a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement    ( Attachment C)    with River Islands

Development, LLC, and Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portions of Garden Farms

Avenue, Bosch Avenue, and Oberlin Avenue.

BACKGROUND•

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved VTM 3694 and amended VTM 3694 on
June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. Tract 3999 as proposed by River
Islands Development, LLC ( RID), as the subdivider, complies with the most current

conditions of approval.

The land for Tract 3999 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 ( Phase 1)  

first approved by Council on March 27, 2007, and amended on June 1, 2015, with

updated conditions of approval.

71



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3999 VILLAGE BB" TOTALING 89 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

On August 25,  2016,  the City Community Development Department approved a
Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the Stage 2A sub- planning area.
This action allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for VTM 3694 at RID' s

request.

On July 9, 2018, the City Council approved Tract 3908, a large lot final map consistent
with conditions of approval for VTM 3694.  This large lot final map creates large
blocks"  of land that are consistent with future proposed small lot final maps

associated with the Lakeside East planning District. This provides RID the ability to
process small lot final maps in an orderly fashion where one small map does not
depend on another. The approval of Tract 3908 also required the posting of security
for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B
boundary which provides the primary access from the existing River Islands

development to Village BB and the rest of the Stage 2A sub- planning area.

On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning Commission approved a Neighborhood Design
Plan and Architectural Guidelines, and Design Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside

East District ( also known as " Stage 2A") within Phase 1. _ While the NDP contains

conceptual guidance on parks within Lakeside East, a Master Parks Plan amendment

that includes revisions to parks and open space to the Stage 2A area is pending
Planning Commission action.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off- site and on- site

improvements. As a result, the SIA for Tract 3999 requires that security ( bonds, cash
or equivalent) are posted to guarantee unfinished infrastructure within Village " BB."

As a result, a performance bond for $ 1, 340, 761 has been posted as well as a labor
and materials bond for $ 670, 381 has also been posted for performance bonds as

security for all unfinished improvements within Village " BB."

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements (" Off- site Agreement") that was first approved by
the City on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off-site Agreement is still

valid for certain improvements. Tract 3999 will not trigger any additional off- site
improvements and the Off- site Agreement will apply to Tract 3999 as it has to all
previous final maps in River Islands with no additional security for off- site
improvements. Acceptance of all public improvements will be processed by staff at a
later date when the unfinished improvements are complete. At that time, RID will be
required to post one ( 1) year maintenance bonds as a warranty for the completed
infrastructure.

As with all new development within Phase 1 of River Islands,  the villages within

Stage 2A are required to be annexed to the three different Community Facilities
Districts ( CFD' s) for maintenance purposes in accordance with the Third Amendment
to the River Islands Development Agreement.

72



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3999 VILLAGE BB" TOTALING 89 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

As with all new development within Phase 1 of River Islands, Village " BB" annexed to

the three different Community Facilities Districts ( CFD' s) for maintenance purposes.

The CFDs are for City, Reclamation District 2062 ( RD 2062) and River Islands Public

Financing Authority ( RIPFA).   The annexations within Phase 1 of River Islands for

Villages U,   V,   T,   AA,    BB and Y,    recorded with San Joaquin County
Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk Office on November 2, 2018.

Access to Village " BB" will be provided via Garden Farms Avenue. As a result, an

Irrevocable Offer of Dedication  ( IOD) will be necessary for the portion of Garden
Farms Avenue that abuts the Village BB" area,  as well as for portions of Bosch

Avenue and Oberlin Avenue that will provide secondary access to the site.

Finally, before Final Map Tract 3999 is recorded, RID must also satisfy the Escrow
Instructions  ( Attachment D)  that guarantee all fees required in the Sierra Club

Agreement are paid.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has completed the most of the street and utility improvements within
Village " BB". RID has posted security with the City for the unfinished improvements
as required by the SIA. RID shall also provide a 10% maintenance bond to guarantee
the full improvements  ( completed and uncompleted)   for one year once the

improvements are accepted. RID has provided the tract map, the tract improvement
plans, all required documents and all fees for Tract 3999.

Following is a summary of documents and fees related to this subdivision:

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Completed

Miscellaneous Im rovements rovided with Tract 3999

4.      Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted

Landscaping and Miscellaneous Improvements provided Completed

with Tract 3999

5.      Street Improvement, Landscape Plans Completed

6.     Street Light, Joint Trench Plans Completed

7.      Geotechnical Report Completed

8.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks
Agreement for Ded,,ication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

73



J   /     

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3999 VILLAGE BB" TOTALING 89 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

9.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees the creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Deyeloper CFDs for Developer/ other_public agency
Maintenance

10.   Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity,   Completed

Pending
11.   Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter recordation of

final ma

12.   Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

13.   Escrow Instructions Completed

Annexed with FM

14.   Lathrop Community Facilities District ( CFD' s)      3989 on October

10, 2018

15.   Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portions of Garden Approval Pending
Farms Avenue, Bosch Avenue, and Oberlin Avenue with this item

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off- site improvernents to serve this Tract 3999 have already been
completed including construction of levees,   participation in construction of a

Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and related storage

ponds and sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and the construction of utility
infrastructure to serve the proposed Tract. Additional off-site improvements that are

required to serve this Final Map are detailed in the Off- site Agreement approved by
the City Council in 2014.

Before the Final Maps are recorded, RID must also satisfy the Escrow Instructions
Attachment D) that guarantee all required payments to the Sierra Club are made

under the terms of the 3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement.

BUDGET IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City. All City costs are covered by development fees,
and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s
for maintenance.  RID is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff time
required to process their request.

74



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page :5

NO fEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIl4L MEETIIVC

FINAL MAP FOft T18 4CT 3999 VILLAGE BB" TOTALYNG 89 SINGLE- F MILY

LOTS AND A SIA WYTF 1 RIV R ISL/. NDS DE\/ ELOPMENT, LL.0

TTAC H IW E IVT:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3999 Village 6B" within the Lakeside

East District,   Totaling 89 Single- Family Lots,   Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Development,   LLC,   Irrevocable Offer of

Dedication for portions of Garden Farms Avenue, Bosch Avenue, and Oberlin

Avenue

6.       Village BB" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company,  for Tract

3999, Village " BB" ( Includes Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portions of

Garden Farms Avenue, Bosch Avenue, and Oberlin Avenue)

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3999 Village BB"

75



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 6

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL ;SPECIAL MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3999 VILLAGE " BB" TOTALING 89 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

APPROVALS

l        

Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

j  I{ 

Cari James Date

Finance D rec

1---- jg
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

S

S en ]. Salvatore Date

City Manager

76



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP
APPROVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3999 VILLAGE BB" WITHIN THE

LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT, TOTALING 89 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS,

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH RIVER ISLANDS

DEVELOPMENT, LLC, IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICQTION FOR PORTIONS

OF GARDEN FARMS AVENUE, BOSCH AVENUE, AND OBERLIN AVENUE

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map No.  3694  ( VTM 3694)  with Conditions of Approval for a residential and

commercial development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan
WLSP) and the River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, on ] une 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREAS, ; on August 25,   2016,   the City Community Development

Department approved a Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the
Stage 2A sub- planning area that allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for
VTM 3694 and the approval final maps within Stage 2A; and

WHEREAS, Tract 3999, the proposed subdivision, is part of the Lakeside East

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 89 lots covered by
VTM 3694, located on the west side of the San Joaquin River, north of Union Pacific

Railroad; and

WHEREAS,  in its review of Tract 3999,  the Stewart Tract Design Review

Committee recommended approval of Tract 3999 on November 13, 2018; and

WHEREAS,  River Islands Development,  LLC  ( RID),  has completed or has

guaranteed completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3999, as identified
on the approved improvement plans, and has completed or guaranteed completion
of all required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and RID,
and provision of security by RID for unfinished improvements, are required prior to

final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section 16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been signed by RID
and presented to the City for approval and signature; and

WHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure the RID obligation to maintain

all improvements and repair or correct any defective work; and

77



WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

WHEREAS, off- site improvements necessary for access to Village BB and Tract
3999 were guaranteed with performance and labor and materials bonds posted by
RID; and

WHEREAS,  City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of
VTM 3694 required for approval of Final Map 3999 have been met, including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Off- Site Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract 3999
is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM 3694,  is technically correct, and

complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS, RID will satisfy the escrow requirements to fund the Settlement
Fee prior to recordation of the Final Map for Tract 3999; and

WHEREAS, an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication ( IOD) is necessary for portions
of Garden Farms Avenue, Bosch Avenue and Oberlin Avenue to provide access to

Village BB and Tract 3999, with the IOD included; and

WHEREAS, the CFDs ( Villages U, V, T, AA, BB and Y) annexations for the City,
RD 2062 and River Islands Public Financing Authority ( RIPFA) respectively, and the
recorded on November 2, 2018; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the following actions:

1.  That the Final Map for Tract 3999 Villages  " BB"  is hereby approved as
submitted as part of the public record with the San Joaquin County
Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk Office, the file executed copy will be filed with
the City Clerk.

2.  That the City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute and file with
the City Clerk a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands
Development,  LLC,  and Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Garden Farms

Avenue,  Bosch Avenue,  and Oberlin Avenue in substantially the form as
attached to the November 19, 2018 staff report. -

78



Pa SSED ARlD e4DOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 19tn
day of November, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSEfVT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTES'T:       APPRO\/ ED AS TO FORNI:

Teresa Vargas,- City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

79



I
ATTACHMENT" B"

i

y

a      
S   

9
fp

N

OT

G

9i

F9F9p    \ \
P      9i     i.

P

i

O

QG

O

Q

ti a
Q

O      JQ,

NP

5

RNE  
M

I L 2 RFR DHIVE
1 o o

G'
q c

P\   .
G'°

O
Q'    m      y

a

q       

P    

IL A
9y 3

q

yG
UP    JQ

MO
TAV

UE

m

F

V
P

gF'      Ol

y

j   ``\    
I

TRACT 3999a .      
0      

P

oQ\       

G,
o

G9f      ``` I        
MU

RIVE

TRACT 4000 I
i \.--_"   

VILLAGE BB i i
o

i

TRACT 3999 
BWEHERONDRNE  BLUEHEqONCOURT

8E C I o

TRACT 3999 TRACT 4000

s,,     9c̀      GFADENFAAM& AVFNUE.''•.''•.''•.;'•;'':,''•:''•;''•.;'•.''•.''•.''•.''•.''•;''•.''•;''•;''•;''•.

92F I
9

s

I
1 I

asQ

V LLA CC
q o

0

0sc     sm nnrPuac

9T

oQ'

IRREVOCABLE OFFER

OF DEDICATION
B

Sy
U9T   `

u H VF
o RSTqEET pNERISLANDSPARKWAY

e0
BUCHANAflC00qT w

VILLAGE V       
GRINNELLCOURT GRINNELLSTREET

0
LAKE11

Q

VILLAGE U
MIDDLEBURYDfIIV

VILLAGE BB
i"       

1
Q

VICNITY MAPi
Qa'       \  _  _     ,, 

INADRNE

NOVEMBER 20i8TRACT 3992

80



ATTACHMENT C

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS (LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT)— TRACT 3999, VILLAGE BB"

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC,

A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this
19t" day ofNovember, 2018, by and between

the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CITY"),

and River Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company  ( hereinafter

SUBDIVIDER").  

B.       At its meeting on May 15, 2017, CITY approved the temporary closure of Cohen and
Paradise Roads associated with construction and grading activities in Stage 2 of River Islands.
This approval requires SUBDIVIDER to construct a paved public roadway to connect any
remaining gaps between the Paradise Road and Stewart Road intersection and the Somerston
Parkway/ River Islands Parkway intersection by August 1, 2020. As a result, previously provided
security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from the River Islands Public Financing Authority

RIPFA") has guaranteed the replacement of Cohen Road and Paradise Road with a set aside of

bond proceeds ( E ibit G) in the amount of$ 543, 600, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER

does not meet the deadline of August 1, 2020. Further, the amount of set aside bond proceeds shall

be reduced by the City Engineer as River Islands Parkway is extended to replace these removed
roadways. The closed portion of Stewart Road is not anticipated to be replaced, but it remains for

now as legal access to parcels fronting Stewart Road and as emergency access. The security
referenced in this recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with
this access until it is no longer necessary.

C.       At its meeting on July 9, 2018, CITY approved the Tract 3908 large lot final map which
includes the Village BB area within Stage 2A of River Islands.   The approval of Tract 3908

required security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage
2B boundary. As a result, previously provided security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from
the River Islands Public Financing Authority(" RIPFA") has guaranteed the construction of River

Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary with a set aside of bond proceeds
Exhibit H) in the amount of$ 450, 000, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER does not meet

a September 30, 2019, deadline or as may be extended by CITY. The security referenced in this
recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with it until River
Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is fully constructed and accepted
into use by CITY.

81



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"    

Page 2

D.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and

CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 3999. However, SUBDIVIDER

has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tracts

3999 and Tract 4000 ( Village " BB") located within the Lakeside East District of River Islands

Phase 1, which also includes major streets necessary to access the site. The unfinished portion of
improvements total $ 1, 340, 761 ($ 1, 117, 301 plus 20% contingency) and both performance and

labor and materials security is required by the Lathrop Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision
Map Act will be posted as outlined in this Tract 3999 ( Village " BB") Subdivision Improvement

Agreement.

E.       SUBDIVIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tract 3999

and Tract 4000 and as noted in Recital D security shall be required for the unfinished portion of
these improvements along with other required infrastructure associated with Tract 3999 and
Village " BB" overall. ; Improvement plans and street light plans prepared by Power Systems
Design, Inc., have already been approved by CITY. The street, sidewalk, underground utility,
storm drainage, street light, and joint trench improvements ( hereinafter " Improvements") are

substantially completed and minor improvements not yet constructed as part of the required
infrastructure for Tract 3999 and Tract 4000 are required security as outlined in this Agreement.

F.       Access to Tract 3999 and Village " BB", requires an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for

Easement for Roadway Purposes (" IOD") for portions of Bosch Avenue, Garden Farms Avenue

and Oberlin Avenue. Therefore, this IOD shall be required in addition to the dedications of right

of way required with the approval of the final map for Tract 4001. This IOD is included Exhibit I
to this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of CITY' s pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' s
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the Lakeside East neighborhood,

to the limits identified on E thibit A including the public landscaping, streetlight, and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above- referenced

improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of CITY' s

Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop, and the California
Subdivision Map Act.

82



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB'.'  

Page 3

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to December l, 2019.     

3.       CITY, or its agent( s), shall at any time during the progress of the Improvements have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5.       CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.  

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements. As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a
Maintenance Bond in the amount of $ 495, 120 equal to 10% of the estimated cost of the

Improvements for the Village" BB" entire area($ 4, 951, 201) as included in the Engineer' s estimate

attached to this Agreement as Exhibit F to insure SUBDIVIDER' s repair and maintenance of the

Improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Maintenance Bond shall be

released at the end of the one- year guarantee period provided no claims against it are then

outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recitals B and C are required

to provide access and to Tract 3999 and are associated with adjacent tracts as otherwise described

in this Agreement, as well as the " Agreement for Dedicatiori, Inspection and Guarantee of Public
Streets and Improvements (" 2013 AgreemenY'), approved by CITY on September 30, 2013, the .
security required by the 2013 Agreement shall remain in place for the following:

Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/ Cohen and Paradise Roads within the limits of

Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit " D" are now open to the public, and

rehabilitation is guaranteed by a performance bond. Full improvement and acceptance of
these streets shall be completed prior to release of security previously posted by
SUBDIVIDER.

83



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 4

8.       If SUBDNIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily, or

unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair, replace, or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein
as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.  Once action is taken by CITY to complete, repair,  replace,  and/ or reconstruct the
Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY, even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials and repair

and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All
administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499. 4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDNIDER. In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an
action to compel performance of this Agreement or to recover costs of completing such
improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit, and all other
expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

9.      Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to only
post Performance or Labor  &  Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished improvements

associated with Tract 3999 and Tract 4000 as included and described in Exhibit E of this

Agreement.  The amount of the security shall be equal to a perfonnance bond equal to 120% of

the amount of unfinished improvements as shown in Exhibit E($ 1, 117, 301 X 120%_$ 1, 340, 761

performance bond amount) as indicated in Recital D. The corresponding labor and materials
bond amount shall be 50% of the performance bond amount($ 1, 340, 761 X 50%_$ 670,381), also       '

as indicated in Recital D.   Further, SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CITY' s insurance
requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

10.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications which are a part of this Agreement
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof. The above- referenced sureties
hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER,
and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity, or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

84



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 5

13.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents, and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any

liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' s contractors or subcontractors. SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and
expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit, or legal proceedings resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' s
performance or non-performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement or from the

negligent act or omission of itself, its agents, contractors, representatives, servants, or employees.

The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section is not
conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied, or approved
any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any such
indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters. CITY does not and shall
not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold
harmless agreement because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied, or approved of plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors
are,  or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of

SUBDIVIDER' s obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site. SUBDIVIDER' s obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until

after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs) to finance maintenance and improvements. CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improveinents by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by CITY and SUBDIVIDER providing
that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.

SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

85



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)    

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 6

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.

If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER; and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall, at SUBDIVIDER' s expense, obtain and maintain all necessary
permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements.  Prior to the commencement of

Improvement construction,  SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3999 and Tract 4000.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b.       Definitions. The definitions and tenns are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d.       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

86



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 7 of 18

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain

in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.

In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to be performed falls
on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance
shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue. In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A FINAL MAP - TRACT 3999

EXHIBIT B TRACT 3999 AND VILLAGE " BB" AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  COHEN/ PARADISE/ STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT F:   VILLAGE " BB" IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT G:  RIl'FA LETTER OF GUARANTEE - 1NTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT H:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE— RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT I:    IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR BOSCH AVENUE,

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE AND OBERLIN AVENUE

EXHIBIT J:   UTILITY CAPACITY GUARANTEES

87



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this
19t11

day of
November, 2018, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the    -

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM

BY:       l
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso Date

President

SUBDIVIDER"—

i

88



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"  

Page 9

EXI3IBIT A

FINAL MAP- TRACT 3999

89



OWNER' SSTATEMENT

TRACT 3999
5

RIVER LAIHROP R1HE UN ERSI@JED, DOES HEREBY SiAIE IHAT THEY ARE 7HE OWNERS 0( ALl 1HE LAND UELINEATED AND
EMBRACED WITHIN 7HE EXiERIOR BOUNDARY LME OF THE HEftEW EMBODIED FINAL MAP ENTITLED," TRACT 3999,    

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE ZA CORIVER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A, NLLAGE BB', CITY OF LATHftOP, CAUFORNIA, CONSISiINC OF SEYEN7EEN( 17)     

NFNqa       ROJECT SITE
SHEETS, AND WE NEREBY CONSENT TO 7HE PREPARAPON AND FILING OF 7NI5 FINAL IAAP IN 1HE OFFICE OF
iHE COUNTY RECOROER OF SAN JOAOIIIN COUNTY, CAl1fORNIA.       VILLAGE BB

SAN
OUISE AVE

7HE UNOERSIGNED OOES HEREBY OEDICAIE AN EASEIAENT TO 7HE CITY OF LA7HROP FOR PUBLIC A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, 6F1NG

pP

i
RIGHT- OF- WAY PIJRPOSES, 1HOSE POFTIONS OF SAID IANOS E9CNAlEO ON SAI AIAP AS MIIIHOLLAND A SUBOIl1DI0N OF PARLEL 2 OF TRACT 3908( 43 MhP 52),      

p    
v z/

ORIVE, OBERLIN FVENUE, CANNETf ORIVE, BACN COURT, BLUE HERON DRIVE, BLUE HERON COURT, NESIREL LITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA P
RIYE, KESTREL COIIRT, KflUIP LANE, ANO KRUIP COUflT, AS SHOWN ON IHIS FlN0.l IAAP. .  OCTOBER 2018 AR9pS r

R    r

iHE UNDERSIGNED OOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO 1HE CITY OF LAiHROP A NINJ- E% CLUSIYE EASFJAENT TOCEiHER
1NRi THE RICHi TO CONSIRUCT, RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR AND MAMiAIN, POIES, W1RE5, CABLES, PIPES, AND J

P
120

CONDUITS AND iHEIR APPURTENANCES UPON, OVER ANO UN ER hiE S1RIP5 OF LAND AS SHOWN ON THIS pP   '

FINAL MAP OESIGNA7ED AS' P. U. E.'( PUBLIC U1ILITY EASEA7ENT).   

N G 1 N E E fZ 1 N G a  PC`

aPhP R

THE IINOER9GNED DOES HEREBY DEOICATE TO THE CITY Of LATHROP A NON- E% CLUSIVE EASEMENT iOCERiER Q

Wlhi THE RICHi TO CONSTRIICi, RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR AND MAINiAIN, STORM ORAIN FAGLIPES ANO THEIR
UAPPURiENANCES, UPON, OVER AN UN ER 7HE STRIPS OF IAND AS SHOYM ON 1HI5 FINAL MAP DESIGNATED

AS' STORM DRAW EASEAIENT'.

7HE IIN ERSIGNE DOES HEREBY OE ICATE TO THE CITY OF LAIHROP, M fEE, PARCELS A THROUGH F OR

O

tp`'

t I
PARK PIIRPOSES, FENCE MAINIENANCE, AND APPIIRTENANCES THEREiO, FOR THE BENEFIi OF 7HE PU9lIC, A5

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER S     

S 9
SHOWN ON THIS FlNAI MAP.  GRANTIJNE RD

1NE UNOERSICNED DOES HEREBY DE ICATE TO THE CITY OF LAiHROP, M FEE, PARCELS C AND M FOR
5

OLANDSCAPING PURPOSES AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP.       
A NOTARY PUBLIC OR O7HER OFFICER COMPLETINC THIS CERTffICAIE VFPoFlES ONLY 1NE IOENTIIY

R1E UNOERSIGNED OOES HEREBY DEDICAIE TO THE CITY OF LATHROP, IN FEE, PARCELS J AND K FOR
OF THE INDINDUAL WNO SICNED THE OOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICAiE IS ATTACHED, AND VICI NITY MAP

PUftPOSES OF OPEN SPACE, INCLUDINC PUBt1C UTILITIES, FENCE MAIN7ENANCE, AND APPIIRiENANCES THFRETO,  
NOT THE TRU1HFllLNE55, ACCURACY, OR VALIOItt OF 7HAi DOCUMENi

FOR iHE BENEFIT OF 1ME PU9LIC, AS SHOWN ON THIS FlNAL IAAP.

SiA7E OF CAl1FORNlA

PENUSPACEIGINCLUDING PI1Bt1C UPLIPES, TORA/ EORAIN ACN ES FENCE MAINTENANCE,

FANDPURPOSES OF COUNtt Of SAN J AWIN

CITY CLERK' S STATEMENT
APPURiENANCES 1HERETO, FOR THE BENEFIT OF 7HE PUBUC, AS SHOWN ON 7HI5 GINAL MAP. ON 201_ fiffOftE IAE,

A NOTARY PIIBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEAREU,    WNO PROVED TO I, TFRESA VARGAS, CITY CLERN AND QFRK OF THE Cltt COUNpL OF THE qiY OF LA7HpOP, SiAiE OF

7HE UN ERSIGNED DOES HEREBY RELINOUISN TO THE CITY OF LATHROP ALL ABUiIFRS RIGHT OF ACCESS TO AIE ON THE BA515 OF SAiISFACTORY EN ENCE TO 8E THE PEfl50N( 5) WHOSE NAIAE( S) IS/ ARE SUBSCRI9E0 TO CALIFORNIA, 00 HEREBY STATE 7HAT 7HE HEREIN EIABO IED MAP ENTIRm' TRACT 3999, RIYER ISLANDS,
LOTS 6, i2, I3, 18, 24, 30, 35, 54, 63, AND 64, ALONG iHE LOT 11NE5 AS INDICATEO BY THE SYMBOL THE WIIHIN INSiRUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEOGEO TO ME 7HAT HE/ SHE/ THEY E% ECUTED 1HE SAME IN HIS/ HER/ THEIR STACE 2A, NLIACE BB, CITY OF LAIHROP, CALIFORNIA, CONSISTINC OF SEVENTEEN( 17) SHEETS, 7H15

AS SHOYM ON 7H15 FINAL IAAP.    AUTHORIZED CAPACIIY( IES), AND 7HAT BY HIS/ HER/ iHEIR SICNANRE( 5) ON iHE INS7RUMENT 1HE PERSON( S), OR STATEMENT WAS PRESENTED TO SAID CIiY CWNCIL, AS PRONOED 8Y IAW, AT A ftECULAR MEEPNC MEREOF,

iHE ENPiY IiPON BEHALF 0 KHICH 7HE PERSON( 5) ACiED, E%ECUIED THE INSTRUA7ENT. HEID ON THE DAY OF P01 AN THAT SAID CIiY COIINCIL DID
IHE UNOERSIGNEO OOES HEREBY RESERVE PARCELI FOR LAKE PURPOSES, HS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP.   iHEREUPON BY RESOLUPON N0. ULY PASSED AND ADOP7E0 AT SAID
SAID PARCEL IS N0T OEDICATED HEREON, BUT N1LL BE CONVEIED i0 IAANO RECIAMA ON DISTRICT N0. 20fiY IAEEIING, APPROVE SAID MAP, AND AUIHORIZEO ITS RECORDATION, ANO ACCEPiED ON 9EHAlf OF THE qiY
BY SEPARATE OCUMENi SUBSEOIIENT TO THE FlLINC OF 7H15 FINAL MAP, SAIO PARCEL WILL BE SUBJECT TO

I CER7IFY UN Q2 PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE lAWS Of RIE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 7HAT THE FOREGOING
OF LATHROP, FOR PUBl1C I15E, THE OEOICATION OF ALL PUBl1C UTNTY EASEIdENTS, PARCELS A THROUCH N,

A SLOPE EASEMENi AN SHARED OCK ACCESS FOR 1HE BENEFIT OF FOJACENi LAKE FRONi LOTS, TO 6E
PARAGRAPN IS 1RUE AND CORRECT.      

J, K, AN 4 AND THE RELINOUISHIAENT OF ACCESS RIGHTS TO lOT$ 6, 12, 13, 1B, 24, 30, 35, 54, 63, AND
CONVEYED BY SEPPRATE OCUMENT SUBSEOUENT TO 1HE FIUNG THIS FMAL MAV.       VNiNESS MY HAND:       64, ALONG THE LOT LMES AS INDICATED BY THE SYIABOL///////; AND REJECTED THE OFFER OF

EOICATION OF 7HE PU9l1C UPt1TY EASEMENTS ACROSS PAHCELS A THROUCH H, W17H A RESERVATION OF
hiE UNOERSICNEU OES HEREBY RESERVE 7HE NON- E% CLUSIYE' LAKE FILL PIPELME EASEMENT' AND THE SIGNANRE:   THE RICHT TO ACCEPT THE OE ICAPON Of iHE PUBLIC UPLIiY EASEMENiS ACRO55 PARCELS A THROIIGH H
lAl(E CIRCULAPON PIPELINE EASEMENiS', TOGE7HER N1TM 7HE RIGHi TO CONSTRUCT, RECONSiRIICi, REPAIR NAME( PRINT): Ai A NTURE OAIE; AND REJEC7ED THE OFFER OF OE ICAlION OF 7HE STORIA RAM EASEIAENT ACRO55

ANU MAINTAIN, THE LAI( E FIt1 PIPELINE AND LAKE CIRNLA710N PIPEl1NE AND iHEIR APPUR7FNANCES, UPON, PRINCIPAL COUNTV OF BU9NESS:       PARCELS 8, D, E, AND F, W7TH A RESERVAlION OF THE RIGHi TO ACCEP7 1HE OFDICAiION OF 7HE STORM
OVER AND UNDER iHE SIRIPS OG LAND AS SHOWN ON MIS FlNAL MAP DESIGNAiED AS' LAKE FILL PIPELINE MY COIAMIS90N NUM6ER:    DRAIN EASEMENT ACROSS PARCELS B, D, E AND F, AT A FlITURE DAIE; AND ACCEP7ED THE OFFER OF
EASEMENY AND' LhNE CIRCULAlION PIPEUNE EASEIAENY. 1HESE EASEIAENTS ARE NOi DEOICAIED HEREON,  MY COMMISSION E%PIRES:    EDICAPON OF ALL STREETS, AVENUES, ANO WAYS AS SHOVM ON SAID MAP SUB„ fCT TO 1HE IIAPROVEMENTS
BUT W1LL BE CONVEYED TO ISLANO RECLAMATIDN DISiRICT N0. 2062 8Y SEPARAIE INS7RUAIENT Sl1BSE0UENi BEINC COMPLETEO IN ACCOROANCE W11H CNAPTER 16, TI1LE I6. 16 OF THE p1Y OF LATHROP 61UNIQPAI
TO iHE FIl1NC OF 7HIS FlNAL MAP.  CODE.

1HE UNOERSIGNED DOES HEREBY RESERVE PARCELS I THROl1GH 6 FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENL I FURiHER STAIE THAi ALL BONUS AS REOUIRED BY LAW TO ACCOMPANY hiE INIHIN MAP, IF APPLICABLE.

HAVE 9EEN APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNQL OF tATHROP AND FlLEU IN MY OFFICE.

OWNER RIVER ISLANDS UEVELOPMENT, ILC, A CPIIFORNIA LIAIRED LIABILITY COMPANY.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)      
eesn vaecns

BY
pTY CIERK AN CLERK OF iNE CITY COIiNCIL OF THE C17Y OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOApUIN, 57pTE

NAME:   SUSAN OELL' OSSO pq    
A NOTARY PIIBLIC aR OiHFR OFFlCER COAIPLEIINC THIS CERTIFlCATE VERIFIES ONLY 7HE IDENiITV OF CALIFORNIA

ITS:     PRESIDENT
0 iHE INOINOIIAL WHO SIGNED 7HE DOCUMENT TO WHICH 7HI5 CERPFlCATE IS ATiACHED, ANO

NOT THE IRUiHNLNE55, ACCURACY, OR VALIOITY OF 7HAT OOCUMENT

DAIED 7H15_ DAY Of 20I STATE OF CALIFORNIA
RECORDER' S STATEMENTCOUNTY OF SAN JOApUIN

OL REPUBLIC TIRE COMPANY, AS TRUS7EE, UNDER THE DEED OF iRUST RECOROED OECEMBER P1, 2016,    
FlLEO THIS OAY OF 201 pT__ IA.AS DOLUMENT NIIMBER 2016- 160886, OfFlpAL RECOROS OF SAN JOAOUM COUNTV.      ON 101_ BEFORE IAE,  
IN BOOK OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE AT THE REQUEST OF OLO REPUBUCA NOiARY Pl1BL1C, PERSONALLY APPEARED.    WHO PROVED TO     ¶ 7 COMPANY.

ME ON THE BASIS OF SAlISFACTORY EN ENCE i0 BE 7HE PFRSON( S) WHOSE NAME( 5) IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO
BY'  

THE W11HIN INSiRUMENT, AND ACKNOY7 EDGED TO ME THAT HE/ SHE/ 7HE7 E% ECIIiED THE SAME IN HIS/ HER/ iHEIR FEE: 3NAME:
AU7HORIZEO CAPACITY IES AND iHAT BY HIS HER iHEIR SIGNANRE 5 ON 7HE INSTRUMENT 1HE PERSON 5 ORITS:  
THE ENiITY UPON BEHALF) OF WHICH iHE PER ON() ACiED, E% ECUT D' IHE NSIRUMENT. 

I CERPFY UN Qt PENALTY OF PERJURY IINDER 7HE LAWS OF IHE STATE OF CRLIFORNIA 1HAT THE FOREGOING BY:

SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENT PARACRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.      STEYE BESiOLAR10ES A595TANT/ OEPUtt RECORDER
ASSESSOR- RECORDER- COUNTV 0.ERK

7HI5 A1AP CONFOflMS TO TENTATIYE MAP N0. 1694 APPROVED BY 7HE PLANNINC CaMMI5S10N. W17NES5 MY HAND:       SAN JOAOUIN COUNtt, CALIfORNIA

DATE 1HIS_ OAY OF
gGNANRE:

NAIAE( PRWT):

PRINCIPAL COl1NTY OF BUSINE55: E% EMPi FROA1 FEE PER GOVERNAIENT COOE 27388. 1; OOQIMENT
MY COMMISSION NUMBER:     RECORDE IN LONNECTION W1iH A CONCl1RRENi TRANSFER SUBJECT TO
IAY COMIAISSION EXPIRES:     iryE IMPOSITION OF DOCUMENTARY iRANSFER iAX

IAARK IAEISSNER, COAIMUNITY EVELOPMENi DIRECiOR

CITY OF LAIHROP

SHEET 1 oF 17

90



TRACT 3999
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

VILLAGE BB

A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEINC

A SUBOINDION OF PARCEL 2 OfiRACT} g00( 4} MSP 52),

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

OCTOBER Y018

CITY ENGINEER' S STATEMENT
I, GLENN GEBHARDT, HFREBY STATE 7HAT I AM 7HE CI7Y ENGMEER OF 1HE CITY OF LA7HROP,   E N G 1 N E fZ 1 N G
CALIFORNIA AND IHAT I HAVE E% AMWED THIS FINAL IAAP OF' TRACT 3999, RIVER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A.

VILLACE BB', CITY OF lA7HROP, CAIIFORNIA. AND 1HAT THE SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON IS

SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAAIE AS IT APPEARED ON THE VESiING iENiAPVE MAP N0. 3694, AN ANY

APPROVED ALTERAlI0N5 iMEREOF. I FURTNER STATE THAT THIS FINAI MAP COIAPUES W1R1 ALL

APPIJCABLE OROINANCES OF THE CITY OF LATHROP, AND ANY AMENDIAENiS 1HERETO, APPLICA6LE AT

7HE TIME Of APPROVAL OF VESTINC TENTATIVE MAP.

NOTES
DATED MIS DAY OF 201     1.  RIGHi i0 FARM STA7EMENT:

QµofLSAo, y PER
CIi7 OF IATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES, PRE 15, CHAP1Eft 15.49. 04, THE p1Y OF Q

N t
y LAIHROP

PERMITS OPERA710N OF PROPERIY CONOUCTED AGRICULIURAL OPERATIONS' MTHIN 1HE CITY LIMRS,

INCLUOING iHOSE iHAT UTILRE CNEMICAL FERPL2ER5 AN PES7ICIDES. YW ARE HEREBY NDPFlED REFERENCES

iMAT 1HE PROPFRTY YOII ARE PURCHASING MAY BE LOCATED CLOSE TO AGRICULIURAL LANDS AND GIFNN

GEBHARDT, R.GE. 346BI No. 3d681 OPERAPONS. YOU MAY BE SUBJECT TO INCONVENIENCE OR DISCOMFORT AR157NC FROA1 iHE LAWFUL ANO CITY

ENLYNEER OF THE CIiY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA y
R  RECORU

OF SURVEY FlLED AUCUST 4, 2004, IN BOOK 35 OF Sl1RVEY5, PAGE 142, AS COflRECTED BY PROPER USE OF AGRICULTURAL CHElAICALS AND PESTICIDES AND FROM O7HER AIX7ICULTURAL ACTINPES, pi

CERPFICATE

OF CORRECTION RECOROEO JI1LY I5,2005 AS OCIIMENT NUMBER 2005- 171264, S.J.C. R.     INClIl01NC k1TH0UT UTAIiATIONS, CULTIVATION, PLO' MNC, SPRAYINC, IRRICATION, PRUNING, HAR4ESTINC, p

i o
35 SURVEYS 142)  BURNING OF ACRICULNRAL WASTE PROOUCTS, PROiECPON OF CROPS AND ANIMALS FROU DEPftEDAPON, R2)  

TRACT J876, FIlEO MARCH 31, Y016, IN BOON 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PACE 56, S. J. C. R.(42 MdrP 56)   NND
OTHER AC71N11E5 WHICH MAY CENEftATE USi, SMOKE, NOISE, ODOR, ftODENTS AND PESiS. BE AWAftE ALSO,

7HAT THIS PROPERTY lAAY BE LOCAiEO AOJACENT TO AGRICUINRAL OPERAPONS OUTSI E iHE R3) 
CRANT UEED RECORDEO MARCH 30.2001, AS DOCUTAENT NUTA9ER T001- 046177,S.J.C. ft.    CINS JURIS ICTION. CONSEO EN7LY, DFPENDINC ON THE LOCATION OF YOl1R PROPERiY, IT MAY BE R4)  

GRANT EEO RECORDED JANUARY II,2016, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 201 6-0 04 0 77,S. J. C. R.   NECESSARY THAT YOU BE PREPARED TO ACCEPT SUCH INCONVENIENCES OR OISCOMFORi AS NORMAL AND R5)  

CRANT OEEO RECOROED JUNE 3.2016, AS OOCUlAENT NUTABER 2016- 063962, S.J. GR.     NECESSARY
ASGECT OF IINNG IN AN AGRICULNRALLY ACIIVE REpON. R6)  

CRANT OEEO RECOROEO JUNE 3,2016, AS DOCUlAENT NUMBFR 2016- 064006, S.J. C. R.  Z.  
A SOILS REPORT ENIITLED GEOTECHNICAL E%PLORATION, RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 7,LATHROP, CALIFORNIA', CITY

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT REFERENCED
AS PROJECi N0.50445. 001.01 AND DAIED JULY P9,20 5, NAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THIS R7)  

CRANT OEEO RECOROED JUNE 6,2005, AS DOCUMENT NUTABER 2005- 1347J6, S.J. C. R.     PROJECT BY ENGEO, INCORPORAlEO, JOSE J. TOO7LE, G. E. N0. P677, ANO IS ON FlLE YAhi THE CITY OF I,

LANRENCE COSSETT, HEREBY STAIE TNAT I MAVE EXAMWED THIS FlNAL MAP OF' TRACT 3999, RIVER RB)  
TRACT 3826, FILEO SEPIE1dBEfl I,2016, IN 800K 42 OF MAPS ANO PLATS, PAGE 67,S. J. C. R.(42 MkP 67) LATHROP. ISLAN

S,STAGE 2A, VILLACE BB',CITY OF LA7HROP, CALIFORNIA, AND iMAT iNE SUBDMSION SHOWN TRACT 3028, FILEO AUCUST 24,1016, IN fi00K 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PACE 65, AS CORRECTED BY 3  RACi 3999, RIVER ISLANOS, STAGE Z1,VILLACE BB,CONTAINS 89 RESI ENTIAL LOTS, AND 12 lET7ERED HEREON

COMPLIES W11H ALL THE PRONSIONS OF CHAPIER 2 OF iME CALIFOftNIA SUBDINSION MAP ACi,       (R9)  [
ERiIFICATE OF CORRECiION RECOR ED AUGUST 31,2016, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER P016- 102979, S.J. C. R.   PAftCELS CONTAINING 40.79 ACRES, MOftE OR LESS, INttUDING ROA WAYS THAi AftE BEING OEOICAIEU BY AS

AMEN EO, ANO 1HAT 7HI5 FINAL MAP IS TECHNICAILY CORRECT.       42 MkP 65)    1HI5
FlNAL A1AP; AND PARCELS 1 iHROUCH 6 CONTAININC 5.58 ALRES, M RE OR LESS, ALL AS SHOWN ON R10) 

TRACT 3832, FIIED AUCUST 24, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAP$ AND PLAiS, PAGE 66, S. J.C. R.(42 MhP 66)  1NIS
FlNAL MAP( PLEASE REFER TO RiE AREA TABLE BELOW): DATED

iH15 DAY OF 201 P

pROfESt/

O, ya  R11) 

TRACT 3834, FlLED DECEMBER 21, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS ANO PLAiS, PACE 72, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P 72) a  ,

p ,      
UNFlLEO

IAAP ENTITLEO' CAIIFORNIA IRRIGA7FD fAft1A5, UNIT N0. 3 PESCAOERO COLONY BEING RECLAMAPON R12) 

DIS7RICT N0. 206P, SURVEYE APRIL AND MAY 1949 8Y OHIA AND RAAB, AIED NUVEIA9ER 7,1929, flIED IN TIiACT3999AREA5UMMARY LAWRENLE
COSSETT, P.E. 31fi95 iHE OFFlCE OF 7HE SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY SURVEYOR. UNo.

31695 R13) 
PpRCEI

MAP 06-03- PM, FlLED OCTOBER 23,2006, IN fi00K 24 OF PARCEL NAPS, PAGE 51, S. J. C. R LOTS 1 1HROIICH 89 12. 67 ACt y

14
PM 51) s 

r Yl R 
R14) 

iRACT 38}6, FILED MARCH 15,Z017, IN BOOK 41 OF MAPS AN PLATS, PAGE 84.S, J. C. R.(42 M@P 84) PARCElS A THRWCH L 2I. 24 AC2 Of

G   R15) iRACT 3893, FIIE, NNE 1, 2017, IN BOOK 42 0( MAPS AND PLATS, PACE 86, S. J. C. R.( 44 M& P B6) R16) 

1RACT 3895, FILFD JUNE 2q 2017, IN BOOK 42 Of 6 APS ANO PLATS, PAGE 89,S. J. C. R.(42 MAP 89) PpRCELS
1 THROUGH 6 5. 58 ACf TftACi

3836, FlLED NOVEMBER 30, 2017, IN BOOK 43 OF AIAPS AN PLATS, PACE 12, AS CORRECTEO BY SURVEYOR'

SSTATEMENT R17) 
CERPFICAiE OF CORRECPON RECORDED OCTOBER I6,2018, AS OOCUMENT NUMBER Y018- 114B54, S.J. C. R.       STREET

OE ICAPONS 6. 88 AC3 43

IAhP 12)  TO1AL 46. 37 AC3 IHIS

A7AP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECPON ANO IS BASED IIPON A FIELD SURVEY IN R18) 
1RACT 7875, FIIE SEP7EMBER 42,YOI7, IN BOOK 4P OF MAPS AN PLATS. PAGE 100, S. J. C. R.( 42 M&P 100) CONFORMANCE

1NIH 1HE REWIREIAENiS OF THE SUBDINSION MAP ACT AND LOCAL OROINANCE AT 7HE R19) TRACT J831, FlLEO JMlUARY 23, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE I6, S. J. C. R.( 4J M& P 16) REOUEST

OF RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC,ON JUNE 25, 2018. I HERFBY STATE ALL iHE R20) 7RACT 391P, FIlEO FEBRUARY 7,2018, IN BOOK 43 OF AIAPS ANO PLATS, PAGE 19, S. J. C. R.( 43 M&P 19) MONl1MEM5
ARE OF RIE CHARACIER AND OCCUPY THE POSilONS INDICAIED OR THAT 7HEY ri1LL BE R21) 

GRANT EED RECOR ED JJNE 3,201fi, AS DOCIIMENT NUMBER 2D16- 063963, S.J. C. R.  4.  BASED ON INFORMAlION CONTAINED IN 7HE PRELIMINARY TIRE REPORT, ORDER NUTABER I6I4020263- KB SET
IN THOSE POSIPONS BEFORE DECEN6ER 31,2023, ANU THAT 7HE MONUTAENTS ARE,OR THAT THEY VERSION 2).DATEO SEPiEMBER 21,2018, PROVIDED BY OlD REPUBl1C PTLE COlAPAN7. WILL
BE, SIIFFICIENT TO ENABLE 1H15 SURVEY TO BE REiRACED, AND TMAT R115 FINAL MAP RZp TRACT 3908, RIVEfl ISLAN S, SiAGE 2A, LARGE L07 FINAL IAAP, FlLEO SEPTEMBER 20,2018, IN BOOK 43 OF 5.  

OFFSIIE ACCESS IS SHOWN ON iH15 FINAL MAP AS 805CH AVENUE( FUNRE) AND CAROEN FARIAS AVENUE S11B51ANTIALLY
LONFORIAS TO 7HE CON IiIONAIIY APPROKO IENiATIVE AIAP.  IAAP AND PLAiS, PAGE 52, S. J. C. R.(4}& p 52) NNRE),

AS SHOWN ON SHEEfi 7 MROUCH 17,HEREIN; SAI OFFSIIE ACCESS IS fiF1NG CREATED BY DATED

7H15 DAY OF 201 .     SEPARATE
OOCUMENT TO BE RECORDED CONCUftRENRY YAiH THIS FINAL MAP. LANo

Wy{

pCF, y AqLG DriAN
CRAWFORD, P.LS. NO 7788 No. 1108 o SIGNATURE OMISSIONSs

p PURSUANT TO SECTION 66436 OF 1HE CAIIFORNIA SUB MSION IAAP ACi, iHE 9GNAlURES OF 1HE FOLLOYnNG 9rf

OF
CPL F P       

PARPES HAVE BEEN M111TiE0: I,  

RECLAIME ISLAN S IAN COMPAN7, RESEftVAlION FOR OIL, GAS, MMERALS, ANU OTHER HYOROLARBON

SUBSTANCES LYINC BELOW A DEPTH OF 500 FEET, PER DOCUMENT NUAIBER 40D1- 046177, S.

J.C. R. SHEET

2 OF 1 7

91



fl14ER ISLANDS DE4, LLC
HIVEa ISLAN S OEV, LLC

PARCEL 1 TRACT 3999L07 2 DN 2016- 00-0077 IR41
UN 2016- OE3B62 Ifi51

TqAC7- 01 IR11 RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
7FACT 2 IFiI VILLAGE BB

N,

A POftTIINJ OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, BEING

GALIFIA, LLC
A Sl18DIN010N OF PARCEL 2 OF TfiACT 3908( 43 AIhP 52),

PAACEL 21

LITY 0 IATHROP, SAN JOAQIIIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

OCTOBER 2018

PAFCEL i6
M 2oo1- oJ0177 Iq3)

CALIFIA. LLC 7RAC7 3B IRU

LOT 1
AZZ

N 2016- 063Bfi3

Ifl21)

N NG1NEEfZ1NG

0

PAFCEL 17 \\      /

F     O 0'  Y50• 0•
PARCEL i6

CALIFIA, LLC
p29 w22   SCALE: 1'= 500'

3À,   2005- Yd47S6 IA71

TRACY 17 IRiI S9,yl

CALIFIA, LLC  pp   00 7F715 SMEEf SHOWS TIES TO 1HE BASIS OF BEARINGS

PARCEL 4 y AND OTHER MAPS OF RECORD. REFER TO SHEET 4 FOR

DN' 10 01- 04 6177 IR31 1,     7AHCEI. 1-0
pqRG'cL 7

9L
c CALIFIA, LLc

1ME BOUNOARY OF TRACi 7999

TRAGY 7B IRiI
PARCEL 11

141221

IF2D ph,
9 PAHCEL 24

q      

I
Ej,

9 
T       

N 20U1- 046177

Op    IA81

7AqCEL 10 T ACT 38' 5
TflACT 3B lail

LEGEND( SHEETS 3 THROUGH 6 ONLY)
wzz i utir   

a.

I
i,; MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R17), UNLESS OIHERWISE NOTE

EE DETAIL A S/ 4' IRON PIPE WIiH CAP STAMPED° PLS 7788 PER( Rl7),PARCEL2
I UNLE55 OIHERWISE NOTED

TRACT 3908( R22)  oN sHEET 5         I
i

9 SEE SHEET 4
I

MONUMENi TO BE SET PER TRACT 3834( R11)

CAfJFIA, LLC           PAHCEL 12

PAf1Ca' I. 2       \       O9   fl2z     

I I
Q 2- 1/ 2' 6RASS ISK i0 BE SET PER( R17)

ON 2 0 01- 04 6177 IA31          j     
TRAC7 iB IRiI PAHCEI_ B 9

BWNDARY

Ip221
y

s
LOT IJNE OR RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE

99 EASEMENTLINE

Gy,
pr

PAflC' eL 13 PARGEL e

I o CEN7ERLINE
p221 RZ2       

TRAGT JB12qpp 2 0. 00'( RI)     MEASURED ANO RECORD ATA PER REFERENCE( R1)

BEARINGS R1) DENOlES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE LIST ON 91EET 2
PNEFISlAN SPAPNWAY

INTX) MONI11dENT TO CENTERLME IN7ERSECiION

y-       MONIIlIENT TO MONUMENT

PAqCe' L 7
pqRCEL B

SEE DETAIL B I R) RAOIAL BEARINC

CALIFIA, LLc       a221 ON SHEET 5   `     
TNAGT^ oe 4

T)

PARCEL 15 pqqCF_L 4 ail

TOTAL

N 200' I- Od6177 IR31        1P22 
i      B) BWNOARY

TRACT 20 Ip9
ON DOCUTAENT NUMBER

MAqIN0. HIVE `"      
O. R. OFFICIAL RECORD

MON 10NUTAENT

s    

PAFCEL 5 I

CALIFIA. LLC T94p_----' 
IR2D 3

7AftcEL 6

I
J

DN 2o%- ode177 IH31

TRAC7 21 IHU y
YFACT 3032

CALIFIA, LLC IR Ol    

7ARCE1 S

ION 200f- 046177 IR3)    

TRAG7 22 IRU

I
BASIS OF BEARINGS

F.` L°

PARGEL 13
I' I

ACROEMV RIVE

ON 2001- OA6i77 Iq31
17HE BEARING OF NOR7H BEIWEEN FOUND MONUTAENTS ALONC OELL O550 ORIVE AS SHOWN ON 1RACT 3908,      TFACT 2H IRi)   

I TRAc7 392RIYER ISLANOS, STAGE 2A, LARGE LOT FINAL MAP, FILED SEPIEAIBER 20, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS ANO I
B

PLATS, AT PAGE 57, OFF CIAL RECORDS OF SAN JOAWIN COUNTY, WAS TAKEN AS 7HE BA95 OF AEARINGS I

SHOWN ON THIS MAP( ZONE S, NAD83). ALl OISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GROIlNO ISiANCES.   Yyy 1 I
gp 6

NOTES a i I
I. SEE SHEET 6 FOR MDIPONAI NOlES, ftEFERENCES, AND 1HE 11NE TABLE @ CURVE TABI£ OF CWft5E5 I LAI SI E PIVE—

SNOWN ON SHEETS 3 THROUGH 6 ONLY. 

ICALIFIA, LLC           T T
L07 3

i '   TPA Nl$) 9 3 TR 8 826  
ON

20I
6606b006

SHEET  QF 

92



aq
r   TRACT 3999

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2Aa iq
r N"!

c

3e; o„     VILLAGE BB
ar  

q3 OLD R yFR A PORPON OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BE1NG

C `      A SUBDIMOION OF PARCEL 2 OF 7RACT 3908( 43 IAkP 52),

NE CIiY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUN7Y, CALIFORNIA

NROqp` OCTOBER 2018

PAHCEL 17

IR221

NG1N E EfZ7NG

N

0'   ] 5'  I50'      300'

OSCALE: I'= I50'

THIS SHEET SHOWS THE BOUNDARY Of TRACT 3999

B NC PARCEL 2 OF TRACT 3948( R22)

N40' 29' 42 E( R)     
N4027' 37' E( ft)

N47' OS' 22" W( R)    

a e aaHc 1 NOTES
H22 1. SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND AND BA95 OF BEAflINCS.

PARGEL" 1   2. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDIPONAL NOIES, REFERENCES.

pl)     3. SEE SHEET 6 FOR LINE AND CIIRVE TABLES FOR 91EETS J

THROUGH 6 ONLY.

G   9

L  

OUTRIGGER

N3939' 32' W R) I LANE

LI4 S
9 (

zp

I I
r  

N19' 01 07' E( R)   
I

Gb N3675' 39' W( R)  
N12 5' 34' E( R)

CIO
L

L27        
I

LP6
I

3 A L25

I MULHOLLAND

I DRIVE
N0276' 27' E( R)

I I

I

I Io I

o    
PARCEL2

ITRACT3908( R22)    
SEE DETAIL A_ I o

46. 37 AC
ON SHEET 5

I
I

I

I
ARCeL 1'L o NI235' 57' W R) I

I

I
A22'     

I I
9  J

N77' 4Y27' E R

n

N27' 49' 32' E( R I I

L7
I I

L9
0         

is

p

GARDEN FARMS

AVENUE

PAFC_FI_ 13

IR22)       
PARCEL^ u

I

IR221 SEE DET

oN stfEET 5

SHEET 4 oF 17

93



J       TRACT 3999
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

w        VILLAGE BB

PARCEL 1 Cy7      SEE DETAIL A A POR110N OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

7RAG7 0806 R22)   O U THIS SHEET A SUB INOION OF PARCFL 2 Of TRACT 39D8( 43 MkP 52),

Z5     S 2     PARCEL 2 LITY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOAOIIIN COUNTY, CALIfORNIA

OCTOBEft P010

TRACT3908( R22)       -    pAACEL E

o•  1    ias. 00'       oUTRIGGER SEE SHEET 4
m   p.       7 ac7 3a3e tai7)

I  
FASi 255. 00'( M- IdJ( Rt7) —— NE

uaN ENGIN EEi 1NG
o      a ata( Ria) N

p

2' S 2u 22 2' 1 EAST  _ EASi 579A2'( M- M)( R17)

as. 00' 
GARDEN FARMS AVENUE O NOTES

V  

N v TflAGY 3838 IR17)      I. SEE SHEET 3 FOR LECEN ANO BA515 OF BEARINGS.

2. SEE SHEET 2 FOR A ITIONAL NOIES, REFERENCES.

3. SEE SHEET 6 FOR L1NE AND CURVE TABLES FOR SHEETS 726       11 1Z 13 13
THROUGH 6 ONLY.

N
EASi 37J. 50'

r

MULHOLLAND DRIVE
7AAGT 3D3E

ss'     +
IR141

r j'._ 30'     FAST 403.} 9'( N- CL INiX)( R17)

a

10 B 8 I
45'     45'

I

I
w

PA CEI_ 3
PLUMAS

0 7RaC7 3808 IF22J
DRIVE

I
m

z
0 0  w

O m aW.  >
e

m o 0 j
O m I O      ¢

o` ^      

rn"        o

PARCEL 2 m   
z

m  o          7Fac7 aai2
TRAGT 3908( R22)   p      p u,      Y 1, 2m

TRACT 36>& IR171
0

SEE SHEET 4
I

lo

sov No

DRIVE

45'  45'

I

I

A70N PER( R11)     RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
45. 00' EAST 1087. 02'( M- MJ( R71)

EAST 1043. 40   
EAST 1047. 31'( IA- AI)( R22)  - —      RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

ss'  !     _    GARDENFARMSAVENUE

ARGEL 3 I PARCEL 4

o

a5. 00'    a5'

TFACT 3808 IH221 7RAGY^ oeo6
YRACY 3808( R22)      ol

I
iRi" li

TAAGT 36" d

IAi11

u

SEE DETAIL B

THIS SHEET

DETAIL A DETAIL B
NOi TO SCALE NOT TO SCALE

FROM SHEET 3)  FROM SHEET 3)     

5 oF 17SHEET

94



TRACT 3999
LINEANDCURVETABLESFORCOUFSESSHOWNONSHEET54THROl1GH50NLY RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

UNE TABLE CURVE 7ABtE VILLAGE BB
LWE  IRECTION LENGiH CURVE p RADIUS UELTA IENCiH

A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING

Ll EASi 90. 00'      C7 710. 00 p7' 49' 32 344. 81'    
A Sl1BDIN ION OF PARCEL 2 OF 7RACT 3908( 43 AIhP 52),

CIiY OF IAiHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTV, CAf1FORNIA

L2 NORhI p45. 00'     C2 47. 00 49' S7' S5 40. 99' OCTOBER 2018

L3 NORiH 785. 00'     C3 65. 00 90' 23' 24' 101. 54'

L4 N45U0' 00' E 35. 36'      C4 47. 00 46' 34' 03' J0. P0'    

L5 EAST 1043. 40'     C5 770. 00 2629' S4' 356. 11'  E N G 1 N E f 1 N G

Lfi N4276' ll' W 76. 90'      C6 IBJ0. 00 6' 43' 39' 214. 96'

L7 N65' 47' 09' E 60. 81'      C7 1870. 00 7' 25' S0' 237. 33'
NOTES
I. SEE SHEET 7 FOR LEGENO AND BA515 CF BEARINGS.

LB N47' 33' 49' E 33. 74'      CB SB. 00 87' 35' 04" BB. 6fi'    2. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AD IPONAL NOiES. RFFERENCES.

1 SEE SHEET 6 FOR LME AND CURVE TABLES FOR SHEETS 3L9 EAST 261. 9fi'     C9 1970. 00 18' I2' 03' 625. 80'       THROUGH 6 ONIY.

LIO NS6U1' S4' W P33. 44'     C70 1970. 00 16' 24' 40' S64. 26'

Ltt N29' 32' 00' W 17i32'

L72 N1578' 00" E 35. 36'

L13 N60' 28 00° E 141. 18'

L14 NB2' O6' 37' W 34. 83'

LIS N52' 02' 25" E 60. 00'

L16 N671' 2YE 34. 83'

L17 N42' S4' JB E fi0. 6P'

L18 N41' 38' 10' E fi0. 01'

L19 N6626' S7' E 35. 85'

L20 N692I' 40 W 60.00'

L21 N25' 10' 17' w 35. 05'

L22 N46' 47' SO E 35. 85'

L23 N88' 53 58' W 60. 00'

L24 N44' 30' 13' W 35. 6fi'

L25 EAST 373. 50'

L26 N45' 00' 00" E 35. 36'

SHEET 6 oF 1 7

95



TRACT 3999
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

VILLAGE BB

A PORIION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEMG

A SIIB MSION OF PARCEL 1 OF iRACT 3908( 43 MhP 52),
PARCEL 17

CITY OF LAIHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOA4UIN, CALIFORNIA

TRaC-( 39D8 R22)  
OCiOBER 2018

l

PARCEL 17

TRACT 3908 ( R221

NG1N EfZ1NG

N
o.   75,  o.

SCALE'. I'= 150'

PARCEL 14
PARCEL 1 SHEET INDEX

7RACT 3908 IR22)     
PARCELL TRACT 3908 1R22I

LEGEND
ealloaRv

I'        ^       
EASEMENiLME

cf  ' ii

KRUIP LANE      
15 J 19

LOi IINE

I 18   '     18 '    
i,. i. u,

0 PARCELE
SHEETIIJMIDT

LNEESS
PARCEL K. . I'\ ; 

13

14 

P

G

21

20 PARCEL 1

O seeer Nutiiecaa

i    22
OFVSVP

12; 13 23
PARCEL2    ~

P Ea\ 
9

ia        , hRUp
24

ze

Q

MUCHOC( qND
pS'

6

7
e  

P

aP 

31

3o
C(

i9T Zs
s

mc
i

15

PARCDR,
E

pARCELF

16         
MULHOLLAND DRIVE

j   
S 32 pg

27
4 PARCEL4

i     '    I Z     33 T
28

3 2

35
PARCELG

36
PARCEL 

U
3) Q I

38
PARCELI a

C
39 O

O ti

40

41
PARCEL B 89 BB B7 86 85 84 83 82 81 80 79 78 77 76 75 74

73 72    /'
PARCEL H

F'4i9  
42       

i PARCEL E

S9      p BLUE HERON DRIVE I>     BLUE HERON COURT       i
TRACT 3838 IR171

FiL A9 o     rc

TRAGT 39D8'( R? 21 Uq   `

C

45

55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63; i,; 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 p '

F 11
as

47  
as so ei sz s3 sa' \ `     

10
a

9 0 

o PARCELJ PARCEL6 PARCELS
w

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE( FUTURe) GARDEN FARMS AVENUE
1\_ .    --     -       

OBERLIN AVENUNE
9G9,

4  ` 

s
y    PARCEI 13

s  TRAC7 3908 IR221 PARCEL 3

99 —/     
7RACT 3908 IR221

1
9`    `\    

7      - 7
SHEET /  OF 1/

96



LEGEND NOTES

TRACT 3999MONUTAENT TO BE SET PER( R17), UNlE55 OIHERVNSE SHOWN POD. 00'( RI) MEASURED AND RECORD DAiA PER REFERENCE( R1)      LOT LINE 1. 1. 17' BRA55 OISK SiAMPED' PLS 7788' TO 8E SET ON

SET STANOARD CITY OF LATHROP AIONUMENT WELL STAMPED" PLS 7788"    ( ftl)    OENOIES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE LIST ON SHEET P RICHT- OF- WAY LWE CONCRETE SIDEWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RICHT- OF- WAY,     
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE ZA

3/ 4' IRON PIPE WITH PLASTIC PIUC' Pl5 7788" PER( Rl7),   7- AI)   MONUMENT TO NONIIMENT BOUNDARY ALONG PROLONGAiION OF SIOE LOi LINES, OR AS NOTED.

UNLE55 OTHERWISE N TED M- B)   MONIIlAENT TO BOUNDARY EASE6IENT LME
Z. 5/ B' REBAR W1TH CAP' PLS 7788° TO BE SET AT ALL VILLAGE B B

a SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE WITH PLASTIC PWG' PLS 7788'       
REAR LOT CORNERS, UNLE55 OTNFRWISE NOlEO. 

p pORTION OF RANCNO EL PESCAOERO, BEINCBC)   MONUMENT TO BEGINNMC OF A CURYE CENTERLINE 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AO IIIONAL N07E5 ANU REFERENCES. 
q SUBDINSION OF PARCEL 2 OF TRACT 3908 43 MdrP 52

o SEi 3. 00' N1iNE55 CORNER( W.C.) UNLESS OTNERVASE NOiED, MEASURED    ( M- 0. IN7%) MONUMENT TO CENIERLINE INTERSECTION RESTRICIED ACCESS   <. SEE 47EET 3 FOR BA515 OF BEARINGS.   

ALONC LOT LWE. FA IAL UNE, OR PFRPENOICULAR TO STftEET CENiER     (
T     TOiAL

5. SEE SHEET 17 FOR LINE AND CURVE TABLES. CITY OF LAhiROP, COl1NTY OF SAN JOAOUIN, CALIFORNIA

UNE AS NO1ED. 3/ 4' BY 24' IRON PIPE WITH PLASIIC CAP' PLS 7788'    (
8)     BOUNDARY

OCiOBER 2018

Q 4- I/ 2 BRA55 ISK SiAMPED' Pl5 7798 TO 8E SET PER( R17)
P, U. E.   PIIBLIC UPLItt EASEIAENT THIS SHEET SHOWS
S. O. E STORM DRAM EASEMENT

PARCELI ONLY

ENG1 N E ZING

N       

O
o'   is'  iso'      aoo'

scu[: '= iso'

I

BOSCH AVENUE( FUTURE)   ppRCEL L
LINE TABLES FOR COURSES SHOWN ON THIS SHEET ONLY

i

PARCEL 14
5 

LINETA9LE LINETABLE

7RACT 39D8 IR22)    4   

II
PARCEL 1 LINE9 DIRECTION LENGTH LINEB IliECT10N LENGTH

a  
TRAC7 39D8 IR22)       u easT zas. oe   u  Nsroa aaw n.sa•

KRUIP LANE     `- ,    
5

6

P'    y pJ CEL E
z Hes^ iosow iw. ss•   uz Nbrarssw s. 7a

Q  (•

IOJ
zD PARCEL     /   

L3 NIB° 41' 09N!  109. 89'   l33 N65° W3B' W 66. 4Y

PARCEL K;
GjVv \\ 3   

Qv    21   ' 6 ( ZB

Z9 I ;    

L4 N68° 20'00' W 109. 89'   L34 N22° 46' 07' E 57.06'

1(`
5 ZZ

h
L27      ( J    Q

LS N57° 3P26' W 180. 63'   L35 N11° 29' 17' E 36.55'

Z'      
C Z3       Z4 J     

PARCEL 2 J L6 NSfi° O7' 4SW 220. 00'   L36 N3° OB' aTE 55. 00'

G           24 L23 J2 V
Cj``         ZS     J,7 z MU HO    

V N53° 21' S1' W 55. 00'   l3'!  N39° 11' 42W 72. 61'

J

Cj`       9 p L74 c. 1NDDq V MULHOLLAND     8 N4B° 39Y19' W 55.00'   L30 N43% 9'09W 55.00'

6    

8  
OP  

31

30 C

G9T
Z6       L35

5
m    SEE SHEET 1

PARCE 3

E
PARCc"L F

DRIVE N43° 56' 26' W ss.00•   us Nes°s2•ssw 77.89'

Y  _      S'•      3z 29 4 q4 SEE SHEET 16 I L10 N39° 73'44^N 55.00'   L40 NB7° 38' 13' E 55.00'

95y`    
33 '. p^ s 2a

27  ^   

J

a>    
3 Z

n3 lae
L4

PARCEL 4 II CE IL G     
n Naroa• iz• e 56. ST   a  Nd6` 27R0' E ia.ar

34 L
7 \      

6      `` H

v

J

L42 L48 L49 L50 L12 N59° 50' d3' E 9.46'   L12 N36° 13' 03' E 3B. 7fi'
Ul35

2 
PARCEL D

e
L39  40 a     L13 N59° ZB' STE 42. 98'   LC3 N7B° 54' 45' E 5722'

36   o tl
v     L14 N56° 19' 00' E 105. 33'   lA4 N73° 35' 42' W fi6A5'

37   . o PARCEL[       n

B 18. 80 ACRES
R= 140A       Q w       

75 N37° 1fi79' W fi3. 10'   L45 N76° 41' S9W 115.4fi'

3a 4= 84' 36' 13'     L55 UJ     m Li6 N59° 50' S1' W 109. 36'   L4fi N79° 68Y6W 115. 46'

39
L= 206. 73'    

4 yti O U m

L53( T)      V

J     
m L17 M5° ZY96' E 55. 00'   L67 N82° 54' 33W 115, 46'

w
40

4     <
s

89 aa 87 86 85 84 33 02 8 80 79 78 77 76 75 74

73 72         "       +
e N68° 44' SB' E is.as   ae Nes° oos w ns.as

QZ PARCEL B
l79 ND°2709' E SS. OU'   L49 N89° 26' d9' W 95.d9'

Q3 R= 35. 00'

qq
p   y

n= as7rsa•  BLUE HERON DRIVE BLUE HERON COURT tzo ruz=icsz• e st s   so ensr   : s. 00•

s`    F
c C4 N49Z9 SOW( R) 

PAfZCEL H      
1 N7° 29' Sfi' W 55. 00'   L51 N2° 32'41' W 72522'

F

J

y.     55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63-  64 65 66 67 68 69 7D 71 zz N24° 45' 39' W aazs   5z N53° SB71' E se.or

PARCEL 12 SyFFT ,  45
46

L3    
Z       n         

SEE SHEET 10 z SEE SHEET 9
N32° 3Y49' W ' 21. 31'   l59    T 847. 5tl

7RACT 3908 IR22J r/ 47
48 49 SD 51 52 53 54    pARCEL 6 C47 PARCc' L 5

a N41° 10' S3' W ss.zs L54 NOPTH z. zr

C PARCEL J
L2S N45° 3274' E 101. 64'   I.55 NB9° 54' 26' E B. 01'

GARDENFARMS
GARDENFARMSAVENUE FUTURE)       

qVENUE      
fi N43° 222Z' E 5z, z L56 NS° iB' 13' E 99. 5

L27 N69° 11' SB' E 28. 10'   L57 NC9° 29' S1W fi2. OT

qG   
OBERLINAVENUNE za N56° i2' S5' W 5z a

PARCEL 139/
s \ PARCEL 3 Nn°as•oavu s. a

TRACT 39D8 IR221
TRAC7 3908 IR221 uo N59° 7992' W sz a

2

sAq9 1
9'     \ 

I     SHEET  OF 1 /

97



LEGEND NOTES

TRACT 3999MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R17), UNLE55 OTHERYASE SHOWN 200. 00'( RI) IAEASUREO AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R7)      lOT LWE I. 1. 17' BRASS OISK STAAIPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON

OO SET STANUARD CITV OF LATHROP AfONI1MENT WELL STAMPED' PLS 7788'    ( RI)    OEN lES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE LJSi ON SHEET P RICHT-0E- WAY lME coNCReh soewux i. 00' ir+ To n E RicHr- ov- wnr,      
RIVEF ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

3/ 4' IRON PIPE 4NTH PLASTIC PWC' PLS 7788' PER( RI7),   M- IA)   IAONUMENT TO IAON IAENT BOUNDARY
ALONC PROLONGATION OF SIDE LOT LINES, OR AS NOIED.

I1NlE5S OTHERYASE NOTED B)   MONIIMENT TO BOIINDM1RY EASEIAENT LINE
Z. 5/ B' REBAR YA7H CAP' Pl5 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL VILLAGE BB

o SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE WIiH PLASTIC PLI1C' PLS 7789'       
REAR LOi COPNERS, UNLE55 OiHEfiVASE NOTEO. 

p pORPON OF RANCHO El PESCAOERO, 9EING

O SET 3.00' lN1NE55 CORNER W. C.) 11N1E55 OiHERNiSE NOlEO, MEA5URE0     

BC)  MONUMENi TO BECINNING OF A CURYE CENTERIJNE 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AOOIPONAI NOlES ANO REFERENCES. 
p SUB IN90N OF PARCEL 2 OF 7RACT 7908( 43 M& P 52),

IA- Q. INT%) IAONVMENT TO CENIERIJNE INiEftS CTION RESiRICTEO ACCESS 7. SEE SHEEf} fOR BA515 OF BEARINGS.   
CITY OF LAhiROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAWIN, CALIFORNIAALONC LOT 11NE, RADIAL L1NE, OR PFAPENDILIILAR i0 S7REET CENTEft 5. SEE SHEET 17 FOR LWE AND CURVE TA9LE5.

LME AS NOTED. 3/ 4' BY 24' IRON PIPE YAIH PLASPC CAP' PLS 7788'         
BOUNDARY

OCiOBER 2018

Q 2- 1/ 2' BRA55 DISK 57AMPE0 PLS 7788 TO BE SEi PER( RI7)
P. U, E.   PU6lIC U71LItt EASEMENT

S. D. E 570RM DRAIN EASfldENT
PARCEL A

SEE SHEET 16 e 45 45'

ENG1N Ef{ 1NG

PARCEL I EAST 170. 00'( T)
N

SEESHEETB ss. 00'   °   ss. 00'   ° zo. 00'       o'   ao'  o'       eo•

O

bep
SCALE: I'= 40'

1,      

EAST 847. 50'( T)      g'S`' i
S6. SD'        56. 50'      Sfi. 50'      56. 56       56. 50'       56. 50'        56. 50' 

6. 0J35. f.    5. 9 925. F.   

0
6, 5 S4S. F.    I

8   0 80 9 0     8 0     ]  6 0     ] 5
n

NOS' 44' 21' E( R)

z z

I
v

w
aZ       

5, 650 S. F.     5, 650 S. F.      S, 65D S. F.    5, 650 ii.    5, 650 S. F.      5, 650 S. F. "   5, 65 S. F.     p     '  

9, 595CS. f.

H 

G4 E I
p CJ  `

1
x x

o
rc

0 0 0 o

1d P. U. E.  z
W

z z z z z r41' 44' 4I' W( R) :    \
w l, e.            j oa
rq g h o

I.-_--' 1 0, N6 Q I,, m
56. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50' 5fi. 50' Sfi. 50'       41. 68'       - 6 406'      I           

n

EAST B7}. 31'( T) i 6
30, RJ

n

SEE DETAIL C 0 I       ,  I

h BLUE HERON COURT oN sHeer n NIX2TH 2O. OD'  1 i      n     
EAST 595. 27' M- M I I p

o

EAST 410.00'( M- M)_
I  _  

fi1. 32'    
o

a    Ir,     J
soi. s3 I ss.00' s.00'       ais.00    l____ J cP

p

i  I     o      PARCEL E
BLUE HERON DRIVE ; o o hi T    `

PJ i  TRacr aaaa ein
I I EAST 375. 0'( T)       

o C,/ I
i

n

o 40. 00'      S5. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' I'of-_--__--------------_--_-__-_-___-_  ---_-____-__-_ _--      

I
5. 00'   I u i

10' P. U. E. In

I.° 70. 00'  30. 00'   I

o 0 0 0 0 0
0' P. U. E.

64      _   65     _   66     _   67     _   68     _   69     _   70     _    ]    3 - 1
63             6, 188 S. F.    € 5, 500 S. F.   € 5, 500 S. F,   € 5, 500 S. F.    5, 500 S. F.    5, 500 S. F.    5, 500 S. F.     6, 268 S. F.            

I
I

I' 

F

I I
I"   I I

o o,

I ,     0 1-, I 65. 00' SS. Oti 55. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' 65. 00'       

W I
o     

n W
o

I EAST 46. 00'       

I.        Z I I

W
I, z az ' I

o    : I

PARCEL 6          q  
i

PARCEL5 i

5' P. U. E.    1A5 ACRES I
Io I

z

0

30. 00'   70. 00'        10' P. LLE.       i.  J 45. 00'       
45'

ot-       

o

ti

0 J_-----------------------------------------_
L---_--_-----

Z__ ;
l

55. 00'   I'  55. 00' 430. 00'
0 o

EAST 1043. 40'( B)( i)       I

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE( Furuae) EAST Ensr s e. oz' Mru en 

45. 00'( R22)       
MONUMENT

w       PER( R14)

o
p

a  a

PARCEL 3

7RAC7 3908 ( R221

v

SHEET 9 oF 17

98



LEGEND NOTES

MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R17), UN E55 OTHER SE SNOWN 200.00'( R1) MEASURED AND RECORD DAiA PER REFERENCE( R1)      LOT LWE 1. 1. 17' BRASS ISK 57AMPE' Pl5 7708' TO BE SET ON T RACT 3999
o SET STANDARD QTY OF LATHROP MONUMENT WELL SIAAIPED' PLS 7788'    ( RI)    OENOlES REFFFENCE( R7)- SEE REFEftENCE LIST ON SHEEi 2 RIGHT- OF- WAY LME coNcaeTE voewnue i. 00' iNTo me aieHr- or- war,     

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASIIC PLUG' PLS 7788' PER( R17),   M- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUTAENT BOUNDARY A NG PROLONGATION OF SIOE LOTtINES, OR AS N IED.

IINlE55 OIHERWISE NOTEO
1- 8J MONUAIENT 10 BOIIN ARY EASEMENT LINE

Z. 5/ 8' REBAR YA7H CAP' Pl5 7786' TO BE SET AT ALL VILLAGE BB
REAR LOT CORNERS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NO7E0. 

p pORTION OF ftANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEINCo SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PWG° PLS 7788'      M- BC)   MONIIMENT TO BEGINNINC OF A NRVE CENTERLINE 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AOOITIONAL N07E5 ANO REFERENCES.
e SET 3. 00' W111JE55 CORNER( W CJ UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, MEASUflED    ( M- CL INT%) IAONUMENT TO CENiERl1NE INIERSECPON RESIRIC7ED ACCESS   <. SEE F7EET} FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS.  A SUBDIVISION OF PARCEL 2 OF TFACT 3908( 43 M& P 52),

AIONG lOT LINE, RADIAL LINE, OR PERPENOICULAR TO STREET CENiER     ( T     r TA     
5. SEE SHEET 17 FOR LINE AND CUftVE TABLES. CIiY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOApUIN, CALIFORNIA

11NE AS NOTED. 3/ 4' BY 24' IRON PIPE Yd7H PLASiIC CAP' PLS 7788'    
B)     BOUNDARV

OCiOBER 2018

Q 2- 1/ 2' BftA55 OISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET PER( R17)
p, U. E PUBIIC U7ILITY EASEAIENT

S. D. E SiORIA ORAIN EASEIAENT

ENGIN EEfZ1NG

N

PARCEL I o'   so'   ao       eo'

O
SCAIE: 1= 40'

l  .. n.+e'      SEE SHEET 8

Rp613
3Sj4 LI2

EAST B47. SD'( T)

y   I N}• q0' 47' W( R)
56. 50'       56. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50'       56. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50'        56. 50'        56. 50'

I

o.        3'. 3' W. C.

o h`'y     <
I o CENTERLME OF

oy
I-   30' WIDE

xF, m o 0 0 o
I   sroern oanm 89

o
BB B7

0
86

0
85 g 84 83 82 g 81

0
80 g

P. U. E.       EqSEMENT 5, 639 S. F.    5, 650 S. F. -   5, 650 S. F. -   5, 650 S. F. '-   5, 650 S. f.      S, fi50 SF. -   S, fi50 SF.      5, 650 S. F.      5, 650 S. F. -   5, 650 S. F.

PARCEL B . .

z

g
20. 550 SF. I Ntl' S1' 19" E( R) 10' P. U. E.

v
o,

o o

zz z z z z i

N} 0' 27' 34' W( R) I p,

SS4z55L= fi8. 4q.  

z z

J_-__-_ __-----'-------__-----_.--_-_---___
S o 7p   __-__      

6'14  N237522' E( R)   
C8 J8. 67'      S6. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50' S6. 50'      

F,

0°bb    i EASi 873. 31'( T    W
i BLUE HERON DRIVE

o ^ r
90. 60'      

EAST 5952}'( y- M)       q

1
p      _

I     _ 
L_ _ 504. 63_  u EAST 430.00'( M- M)  

W

38. 40   .    501. 83' I 55. 00'  i 55. 00' -   
W

I           
lo       Io

o

q      

i 

v
I

ti e East soi. e'( r) i N
m

zr        
I _  ',      76. 83'\ 55.00' S5. 00 55. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00'       40. 00'

o___-_-_ o----     --__-- '_--_- ' ____________________ (I
o J0. 00'      C50

10' P. LLE.I i ao. 00'  ao. 00' \ lII m w I 55 56 57        58     _   59        60     _   61 62      _    63     '            
8, 812 S. F.        5, 50 S. F.      5, 500 S. F.    5, 500 SF.      5,500 SF.    5, 50 S. F.      5, 500 iF.   x 5, 500 SF.       6, IBB S. F.   I     I 64

N49' 29' SI' W R% 

U

yA
130. 00'      N I g

9

9     °_- 
Z

I
I       

w
I.

6`'

O
s

iv W  n I      I

EA57 245. 09'( T)  I Z p '   I$       0 0 I
I

w I 92. 7fi'    S5. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' 55. 00' S5. 00' S5. 00' 65. 00'    I „     o^ I

Q o'I W    .^'+    I    . 
EaST 54276'  I '   o 

w
I

T

3', a' w. c. '   
wl¢„ I

o  

o

PARCELJ I       z i

Z=  fi82 S. F.   
i      

z

F-       
w I-   o     I  

z -

o

i        
PARCiL 554 A I o PAR AE E6

I'     Ii l SEE OETAIL D 5' P. U. E.
W

ON SHEET 17
z

L16      
y0. 40'  

30. OD' 
o

LI O       1 
0

30. 00'   30. 00'  

i

lo
L13 T)            t--_°o

J_--_--___---_  
J _-__L rj e

o ..   
L soa. ao ss. 00•   I  ss, 00•

EASi 261. 96'( T) I EAST 1043. 40'( 8)( T)     

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE( URE)

N47' 33' 49' E

33.74'( R12)

SHEET 1 Q OF 1 7

99



LEGEND NOTES

ONUMENT TO BE SEi PER( R17), UNLE55 OTHER SE SHOWN 200. 00'( RI) MEASURED AND RECORO DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)      LOT LME I. 1. 17' BRASS OISK STAMPED° PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON T RACT 3 99 9
SEi STANDARD Cltt OF LAIHROP 110NUMENT WELL STAIAPED PLS 7788'    ( RI)    ENOlES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE 115T ON SHEEi 2 RICMT- OF- WAY LME coNcaere smewauc i. 00' iNro n e RicHr- ov- war,     

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
7/ 4° IRON PIPE VNTH PLASTIC PWC" PLS 7788' PER( Rt7),   M- M)   IAONUMENT TO MONUAIENT BOUNOARY

A ONC PROIONGAiION OF SI E LOT LMES, OR AS NOIED.

UNLE55 O7HERINSE NOTED
M- B)   AfONU61ENT TO BWNDARY EASEIAENT LME

2 5/ 8' REHAR N7TH CAP' P4S 7788' TO BE SET Ai ALL VILLAGE BB

a SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE 1511H PLASTIC PLUG' PLS 7788' 
REAR LOi CORNERS, UNLESS OTHERw15E NOTE.

M- BC)   MONl1MENT TO BEGINNINC OF A CURVE CENTERLWE 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AOOITIONAI NOlES AND ftEFERENCES A PORTION OF RANLHO EL PESCA ERO, BEING

O SET 3. 00' WIINE55 CORNER( W. CJ UNLESS OTMEfl4A5E NOIED, MEANRED    ( IA- tt INT%) AIONUAIENT TO CENiERUNE INTERSECTION RESiRICTEO ACCE55 4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR BA515 OF BEARINCS.  A SUBDINSION OF PARCEL I OF TRACT 3908( 43 MkP 52),

ALONC l0T LINE, RAOIAL IINE, OR PERPENDICULAR TO STREET CEMER     (
r     T rA     

5. SEE SHEET 17 FOR LINE AN CURVE TABLES CIiY OF LAhiROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOApUIN, CALIFORNIA

LINE AS NOTED. 3/ 4' BY 24' IRON PIPE YA7H PLASiIC CAP' PLS 7788'    (
B)     6WNDARY

OCTOBfR 20t8

Q 2- 1/ 2' BRA55 ISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET PER( Ri7)
p. U. E.   PUBUC Ulllltt EASEMENT

S. D. E SiORM ORAM EASEIAENT 1   zp9J.       

N ,     7AftCEL I E N G 1 N E iZ 1 N G
4.  S J,

4",'

y

zsJ' B46 0'   25' a'

N

CENTERLINE OF 2B' WIDE LAKE     '' a      58S JT SCPlE: f= 50'     

OFILI PIPEUNE EASEMENT

5 37 1l

y'
r,      R= 65. 0'       h"i     

2i o-;po  ,

py,
a'
1 A= 5476' 14'

Z
qJ•

6%

v L= 61. 76'
N B'

S243 EJ
w,0 3Q5'•

o`

Q`
0 4. i 19.35 R= 65. 00.  

n:
5  

38    \
l

Nye3 a;       4= 5' 19' I7'   ,  -

5.9975. F., o'     sy. oy     
c?(

T   =„,
h' y L= 5. 94'

E69B4

p
lNl4' 1149

le     ,' y   
1  ' 1'

SJ.      N4150' 15E( R) '   R= 65. 00' CENTERLWE OF 38' WIOE IAKE

A= 30' 42' S5   CIRCUlAT10N PIPELINE EASEAIENTP

000  

p

5 9979S. F.,,     
ss

os     N47U4' 32' E( R)    L= 34. 85'    
ooerni F

e '
o`      

Not ro scn e PARCELC       

o

bis«

s2,     y+     QQ SS FROM 1HIS SHEET) ti0 ; 5 4
9

v 2'    
5. 997 S. F.       ' 0•       P. II. E. h.  

0. 3\
OJS 4^       

1    NSs 4j9O N77' 47' 27' E( R)
45

1,   I

6O"
r \       '    ai o Ssao.°' 9s,

1
Fiy

o„

y

iols.\= ti 5 SB3 S. F.     1      
F,

q
o ' b

9,   
czs     `°    42    `,   ss J S',

q      ¢   o P. LLE  

s       5, 555 S. F. 8      0•   

t/  h PARCEL B i
o   '

s'
2

to' a. ue.•' PARCEL 1 GF/
F a zo. sso s.v. I

43 0°    ssoo. Lq      zr 5}' 4Y55
q,9 ss   =    5, 555 S. F. o SEE SHEET e F        b b 40. TO

N(    N ,\       o 1       \ 
SEE DETAIL F

N?
a      zp

CEMERUNE OF 30' WIDE ae y'
9      Sq. N      ON THIS SHEET J2 f     

STORM DRAIN EASEMENT   ^ 

o',, ySS    ^>'   5, 555 S. F, o S. R9'
S,

q    ' z, q,.. e J.• SEE SHEET 10 0—

44 0       

Z6       

o

LF/1/G    /         0
P. U. E

Bps CENTERLWE OF 28' WIDE LAI( E NI pnF
J FlLL PIPELINE EASEMENT

i Ssoo•. a'   PARCELC

9 16, 193 S. F.   CENTERLINE OF 38' WIDE lW( E

F 17. 08' CIRCUlAT10N PIPELINE EASEMENT ml
NIP' 35' S7' W( R      

C``

C7   /    ^ o 5q9N6B70'

OpH,    N4929' S1' W( R  a     " I -- Im
lj    

0

4 ,   0$
89'      W

r      

o-   Sq9q,   Np     30.00 rv Z
4;/      ^.  O

N 8 41 09 W

69
95.       v' Z

N77' 47' 2PE R\       ''     45 54. 99'     
Ip=       

7oj. y'  _    `„ W
C21 . h /  N8910' S0' W I0995'( T)  EAST 245. W'( T)  6, 109 S. F.`

PAftCEL 12

0   _/

o0 46
0

9q   
54. 95'   55. 00'      S5. 00'    55. 00'      S5. 00 80. 09'      _  

N
lo Z o

N27' 49' 32 E( R)    6, 109 S. F. o 3k3_ W. C. i' +       WTRncr asoa iezz   W
a       m A

yb,      70= 6. 1095. F.
y. T 48

G
w Q  == m 2

y"'`     n 6, 109 S. F. w 49      50 0 51 0 52 0 53 0 54 o O  

2 ĵ
om Cg_ 0

6, OBfi S. F. ry 5, 688 S. F.^  5, 555 S. F.-  5, 555 S. F.'  S, 555 S. F.-    7, 454 S. F.      W

f,o I w

N1BV4' OS' E( R R_    '      e p

84' 1122'     \       

IO. Op' d,
27.

99ez` L,     C17   __   _$_   
C75     _     _ ll6yy o

30: 0

3-

0

3
i1

L= 91. 10'( R22)        
36q' ej i 6

0

44. 78'     S5. 00'      S5. 00'     S5. 00'      S2. 10'  
o

L rl
EAST 261. 96'( T)

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE FUTURe
ti

PARCEL 13
2. 0

7RQCT 39D8 IR22)

SHEET 1 1 OF 1 7

100



LEGEND NOTES

MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R17), UNLE55 OTHER SE SHOWN 200. 00'( RI) EASURED AN RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( RI)      L0T LME I. 1. 17' eRA55 OISK STAMPEO' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON T RACT 3999
OO SET STANDARD CITY OF LA7HROP AIONUMENT WfLL STAMPEO' PLS 7788"    ( RI)    DENOIES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE LIST ON SHEEi 2 RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE coNcae, e smcwnuc. oa iNro Tne amHr- or- wnv,     

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASiIC PWC' PLS 7789' PFR( RI7J,   M- IA)   MONUMENT TO FIONUMENT BOUNDARY A aNC PROLONGATION Of SIOE lOT IMES, OR AS NOIE.

UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOTED M- B)   MONVMENT TO BOIIN ARY EASEMENT LINE
2• 5/ 6' REBAR W1iH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET pi ALL VILLAGE BB

o SET 3/ 4' IFON PIPE W1iH PLASTIC PLUG' PLS 7788' 
REAR LOT CORNEftS, UNLE55 OTHERW75E NOTED. 

A PORTION 0 RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEINCA1- BC)  MONUNENT TO BEGINNINC OF A CURYE CENTERLINE 5EE 91EET 2 FOR ADDITIONAL NOlES ANO REFERENCES.
O SET J. 00' 1NINESS CORNER( W. C.) IINLESS OiHERIflSE NOiED, MEASURED    ( M- tt INT%) MONUMENT TO CENiFRl1NE INTERSECPON RESiRICTED ACCE55 4. SEE SMEET 3 FOft 6A515 OF BEARINGS.  A SUBDMSION OF PARCEL 2 OF TRACT 3908( 43 A1& P 52),

AIONC LOT UNE, RADIAL LINE, OR PERPENOICIILAR TO STREEi LENTER     ( T     TOTAL 5. SEE SHEET I7 FOR LINE AND CURVE TA9LE5. CIiY OF LAhiROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAOUIN, CALIFORNIA

LINE AS NOIED. 3/ 4' BY 24' IRON PIPE VN1H PLASPC CAP' PLS 7788' pCi08ER 2018

Q 2- 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK STAMPEU PLS 7788' TO BE SEi PER( R17)
B)     BWNDARY

P. II. E.   PUBLIL UPlltt EASEMENT

S. O. E SiORM ORAIN EASEAIENT

SEE SHEET 13

2 
E N G 7 N E fZ 1 N G

30 29 a

PARCEL I

I N3515' 44' WIR) 101. 00'( T)       34
a'   zo'  ao'       eo'

Z

I
O      SCALE I'= 40'

I I c
3. 00'       N39' 1Y44 W 55.00l I

ry} 4' S9' 3fi W R) 101. ao'  .

I
3t a. 00•    

I
KRUIP I- ANE

I

I o I
5, 665 S. F.    _ N34' 31'

1 I m      I

I I       I N33' 4i00' WIR) 100. 20'( 1)      
37 5

5, 716 S. F.     

o

I N.Im      I

36
a o   2

N3716' 33' W( R) 101. 00'  I
L0

I
d.

l 32 tia
NSS59' 31' E

N u          5, 665 S. F.    
ry

45. 48'
J           

10' P. U. E.    N3675' 38' W ft

10 I       I  - o   ft 101A'

5. 716 S. F.     I
N32' O6' 17' W( R) 101. 00'( T)  

N34' S9' 36' W()JI.   DETAILH 

I PARCELD Nor ro sca 

N31' 33' 31 W( R) 101. 00'  I 4, 234 S. F.      FROM THIS SHEET)

I P. U. E./ S. O. E.

10' P. LLE.           101. 00'

I

N3396' 33 W( R)

g
I U

rc I
U

I N30' S5' 49 W( R) 101. 00'( T)
i

s. ie s. v. PARCEL I
P A R C E L 1 4

i i i sa SEESHEETB Acr s9oa Rzzi

N29' S0' 28' W( R) 101. 00'  I
5, 67P S. F.

i m N31' 33' 31" W( R) 101. 00'
PARCEL K

G5    --— o —     ' 
6. 34'     

7, 772 S. E —.   70. 00'   7a. 00'  
I

o S—EE DETAIL H

PARCEL 14 I I   NI 8 I I N79' 32' 00' W 01. 00'( T)   -      // ON THIS SHEET PAnzE. rK,    9 No o sc

i
w

5, 584 SF.     =--     
f,

o    (     

Fq0A1 THIS SHEET)
7RACT seoa tR221

I      '" I
i<     10' P. U. E.  

W
i

N29' 32' 00' W 101. 02'   I      ^      m I 34 NN49' S0' 2B' W( R) 101. 00'

I         - w 6. 3 5 5 S. F. 
Z 6 W

55pp

LL
I   =  

I
o W I

i p Nq3'
5fi

N

Z I   _   I I
o"       

j 
55. 00 W

8yV

N} 9'
1344W

Cf  

I W
o i m Q

w N30' 09' 13° W 65. 00'  N34' 31' OYW 55. 00', /     N Z -

I NI 5. 5 5 6 S. f.     

i
N

e o: I y W _

I   ¢  

I I
o' W m   o

39   
Q w

N29' 32' 00' W 101. 02'

I        
N29'} 2' 00' W 101. 01'   I        ¢ z j 5. 997BS. F.  ' V    :'

n 3] o n 7 W

m I I I Y    6. 5 35S. F.  3fi 5, 9W S. F.       p     N
I` 0

5. 997 SF.       m

I uI

z       , 

5' P. U. E.       
m

6
P

I    - -`•    z     '         N29' 32' 00' W 101. 01'    

W
I 10

p`\

6, 158 S. F. 

5' P. UE. I o-
J0. 00'   30. 00'_      10' P. U. E     ?       --__ _--

Za o> Q
O

I7. 07'  '
B29   '    ,,

0 U7

N ;  ---___--  

C29 y,
t  `     

6
W

I
rJ - r-56. 00' S. W'      55.00\

0 

C} I    
C30

356.
11j B"  Y

L    _ — r N29' 32' 00' W 175. 32'( B)( i)   R= 770.00'= 2fi" 29' S4 L=
I

f 1y,       tio

sJd''   . 56. 00'.

sEe oETni c
GARDEN FARMS AVENUE( FUTURE) Nss• aa' oo• w ns: az• egT

i
ON THIS SHEEi w r GARDEN FARMS AVENUE FUTURe)

i o

PARCEL I 1       '      a° ti

ry,     
7RAC7 3908 1R221

TRACT 3908 ( R221        PARCFL 12

TRACT 39D8 IR221

SHEET G OF 1 7

101



LEGEND NOTES

TRACT 3999MONUMENi TO BE SET PER( RI7), UNLESS OiHERINSE SHOWN 200. 00'( Rl) A7EASUREO ANO RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)      LOT LME 1. 1. 17" BRA55 OISK STAMPED" PL5 7798' TO BE SEf ON

0 SEi STANDARD CITY OF LATHROP MONUMENT WELL STAMPE' PLS 778B'    ( RI)    OENOiES REFERENCE( RI)- SEE REFERENCE LISi ON SHEEi 2 RIGHT- F- WAY LME caNcaeTe voewniK i. 00' iNro tHe aicnr- or- wnr,     
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

3/ 4' IRON PIPE' MiH PLASTIC PUIC' PLS 7788' PER( R17),   A1- M)   IA NUNENT TO AIONUMENT BOUNDARY
A ONC PR LONGAPON OF SIDE LOT LMES, OR AS NOTED.

UNlE55 OTHERWISE NOlEO M- B)   MINJUMENT TO 80tIN0ARY EASEAIENT LWE
Z. 5/ 8' REBAR YATH CAP" PLS 7788' TO BE SET Ai ALl VILLAGE BB

o SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE IN1H PLASTIC PLUG' PLS 7788' 
REAR LOi CORNFRS, UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOTEO. 

p pORTION OF RANLHO EL PESCA ERO, BEINCM- BC)  MONUTAENT 70 BECINNING OF A CURVE CENTEftUNE 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR M I ONAL NO7E5 AN REFEFENCES.
o SET 3. 00' WIiNE55 CORNER( W. C.) UNLESS OTHERWISE NOIED, MEASURED    ( M- CL INT%) MONIIMENT TO CENiERIJNE INTERSECTION RESiRICTED ACCE55 9. SEE STiEET 3 fOR BA515 OF BEARINGS.  A SUBDIVi510N OF PARCEL 2 OF iRACT 3908( 43 MkP 52),

ALONG LOT UNE, RAOIAL LINE, OR PERPEN ICUTAR TO STREET CENiER     
T     T TA     

5. SEE SHEET 17 FOR LINE AND CURVE iABlES. CITY OF LA7HROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN, CALIFORNIA

LINE AS NOiEO. 3/ 4' BY 24' IRON PIPE H7TH PLASPC CAP' PLS 7788    (
8J BWNOARY

OCTOBER 2018

Q 2- 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK STAAIPED PLS 7788 TO 8E SEi PER( R17)
p. U. E.   PUBLIC UTILIiY EASEMENT

S. O. E SiORlA DRAIN EASENENT

N41' 10' SS' W
NZ4,       E N G 1 N E{ 1 N G

SEE SHEET 14 q 5625'( Tj pL30( T) 0

434$
39• W

zs•fr) p No
I ^ 

3' z3_ W. C./ J}
y.      

0'   20  40       BO'
7' x3' W.C.   SS 56.

I
0 Y SCALE: I'= 40'

PARCELL              
m o     

I 25
I n I 23 6. 9BI S. F.     - 3' x3' W. C.

4, 874 S. F. y
Ji s 2

I 14
IGJ2  ^   

UI       

I
o.' I.^,'     I 10' P. I1. E.  

26 u'''.

I m O
0

10. 028 S. F. i

I  ^
V nlr' pro       N41' 09' 07' W( R) 101. 00'

n J i     _   f----. 10' P. U. E.       

N40' S5' 34' W( R) 101. 00' J  
u       

2 4 N    .- q9

oo l,   ,

ry
f

Z5

I o 10' P. U. E..    

II 0 1-       `-' I 7.059 SF.    m i.      '       (

faB
Wl 

0      ' 

o G13 n    al 9

I
N39' 39' 72' W R pi

W

6, 323 S. F. I

V' 

w m    I R= I7. 00•
z Jf` `    ' g1. 5      24

I   Y I N 3 9' 3 8' 2 5° w( S E E D E T A I L J       ` N
eti R- 5 0. 0 0'

N39' 36' 32 W( R) I       l j 6= 4977' 7fi'  
o

O.^,p       

o _-(--°  
5' P. U. E. ON THIS SHEET 1 270' 42' 15"

I  -      30. 00'      
L= I4; fi0-    

I J   L= 236. 23 T30. 00'       FOR RADIAL BEARINGS
I     a

5' P. U. E.       Z  3' x3' W. G,%

N    5
6.82' 

o!

26"_ J_       
o 

0 9

o C

o    

51/  I 8. 669 SF.  
NI6' 04' S0' W( R)

ll-  . L27-.

j w
J —'-     

8i U1P C
UFT '    c53

i W

o
e= n.ao'

I N3T5775' E( ft)

U
U

N52' 02' 25' E( R)    R
54  M     

i.'     CG      a4912' 36'

Um
I

w
oKRUIPLANE in R= 19fi6. 00') I/( R= 400.00')  

1_    1B2

89_  8  / N/
436. 0 L= 14. 60'( i)

I   ]  56. 02'_ 55. 79'   
o

C56

b,,,
pg'       30.00'     y r      74)    i

SEE SHEETB DETAILK

j 
I

Q

n

NS7' S7' SS' W( R) 111. 82'( M- 8)    57 R 400 0 '      
g65d

t o G. RJ/
Op0

NOT TO SCALE

I
o 5, 5( l'   43 C45 T)    FROM THIS SHEET)

i        n 5' P. U. E.     I
o N45' 10'53' W( R loµ> 4} 0.00' =

12      '

C44

o '--  

o

O
n C42='

28
m 6. 82'    til ,-    L24'==-  UIu yti

ryc-

o r 2J
5 P. U. E. o,      8. 464 S. F.       $.,' a

N3675' 38' WR     '
l0       

N767B' 38' WR 30' /      

Q  

h
o

a

30. 00'      - N36' 29' 33" WR  
29

W 3' x3' W. C.     _

12

P. U. E.  
J          ^

I 7. 309OS. F.   8. 044 S. F.    
o b

25 N6056' SYE R

6, 323 S. F.          „     I el      SEE DETAIL K
e"'.,

e- 

m
nl d   -   r

10' P_ U. E

N      
3' x3' W. C.     y

q09

j

n
ON THIS SHEET

ep9

26

NJ4' S9' 36' W( R) t01. OD•       
m

j N3515' 44' W( R) 101. 00'( T) 
10. 22'     

1 . tiq 0 VI\ Og3fi`u

n

n N56' 19' 00" E l
351  SpS    R= 17. 00'   

c

I I pIN w
w  63. 10'( T)       

N59 24  
4912'] fi'

I I
N17' 1629 W L= 14. 60'( i)    f+,.

5. 716 S. F.     n   `` p;,," i
31      _     SEE DETAIL 1 N37' 07' 46' E R • N76bo5

J

N62' J2' S1' W( R
5, 665 S. F.       

W(R N25' S0' 77' E RON THIS SHEET
S000,   ()

Pz wF         
27

NJ376' 33' W
I e N3J' 41' 00' W

o

G51
oa) iai. 00'       _     -<   a) ioo. zo'( r)

PARCEL K:  y e
N4} q0' 48' E( R] 1

U P GQU F T    \+    
cc!:

1. 772 S, f.       
olK    N14'} 6' 24' W( R)

10

I
32

30    _ 
5q          \. o      y o

Ml         i. ti h

C56_ J   5 M'     q,    /'   Q'
z

I 6' 11' 4B.<\

8285          /^

o-    
4

SEE SHEET 12 NJS' IS' 94' W

m

29 csi 2

R= 400. 00' _     
IOI. 00'( T)  J'      

IQ22'       o   N45' 70' S3' EI       965' G43

C4 4    

45 N33' 07' 10" E R
N5679' OO E 5 5\'

3 e3' W. C

3 
3' 3' W.C.  

n    

R=
43000 C42          IN72' 19' 02' W( R)      28

N347B' 22" E( R)/
31 3 N7776' 29' W 63. 10'( i)  

ryti

o

30
2J

DETAIL 1
Nor ro scr  

DETAILJFROM iHIS SHEET)      
o d PARCELI

NOT TO SCAIE

m     fROM h115 SHEET)

SHEET 1 3 OF 7

102



LEGEND NOTES
MONUMENT TO BE SEi PER( RI7), UNLE55 OTNERWISE SHOWN Z00. 00'( RI) MEASURED AND RECDRD DATA PER REFERENCE( R7)      LOT LINE 1. 1. 17' BRASS DISN STAMPED' PLS 7788" TO 9E SEf ON TRACT 3999

Q SET STANOARD CITY OF LATHROP MONUMENT WEIL STAIAPEO' PLS 7788°    ( R7)    OENOlES RFFERENCE( RI)- SEE REFERENLE 115i ON SNEET 2 RIGHi- OF- WAY LME CONCREIE 90EWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RICHT- OF- WAY,     
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE ZA

3/ 4' IRON PIPE YdTH PLASPC PLUG' PLS 7788' PER( Rt7J,   M- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUMENT BOUNDARY
AIONG FROLONCAPON OF SIOE lOT LINES, OR AS NOIEO.

UNlE55 OTHERKISE NOTE     M- 8)   MONUMENT TO BOUNDARY EASEIAENT LINE
Z. 5/ 8' REBAR WITH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL VILLAGE BB

o SEi 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PWG' PlS 7788'       y_       
REAR LOT CORNFRS, UNLE55 OTHERYASE NOTE. 

q ppR ON OF kANCHO EL PESLAOERO, 9EWCBC)  MONUMENT i0 BEpNNING OF A CURI E CENTERl1NE 3. SEE 47EET 2 FOR A OITIONAL NOlES AN REFERENCES. 
q S JBDIh510N OF PARCEL 2 OF 7RACT 3908O SEi 3.00' W1iNE5S CORNER( W.C.) UNLESS OiHEflW15E NOIED, MEASURE    ( M- CL INTX) MONUMENT i0 CENiERUNE INTERSECTION RESiRIC7E0 ACCESS   <. SEE SHEET 3 FOR BA515 OF BEARINGS.   43 MhP 51),

ALONC LOT LINE, RA IAL L1NE, OR PERPEN ICULAR TO STREET CEMER     (
7)     TOTAL

5. SEE SHEET 17 FOR LME ANO CURVE TABLES. CITY OF LAIHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOA l11N, CALIFORNIA

IJNE AS NOIED. 3/ 4' BY 24' IRON PIPE 1MTH PlASPC CAP' PLS 7788'  OCiOBER 2018

Q 2- 1/ 2' BRASS ISK SiAlAPEO" PLS 7788' TO 8E SET PER( ftI7)
B)     BWNDARY

P. U. E.   PUfiLIC UPLIiY EASEMENT

S. D. E SiORM RA1N EAAIAENT

PARCc" L 1 E N G 7 N E E R 1 N G

7RACT 3908 IR22J

r----    

solel(
d a   zo'  ao'       ao'

R= 52. 00' 
IB'

12p3•
1=

625.   
SCAIF: I'= 40'

a9277' Ol'
R_ 1970. 00 '     

i L= B3. 91'( R2Y)

µ_2000.

00'

B130Z

8gg` M

B     ' '   i p.
5

1B

1c2

56    

in 1g• 1B' 7A''68.
25       /'       N4027' 37' E( R)   n 649.

1T«   
p.

P55' 35 

F- DRIVE s'
9'%    o     w CURVE TABLES FOR COURSES SHOWN ON DETAIL L

ONLY

MULHOLLAND
g_

203000' `    _  , P. U.
E.             

2 N40' 2B' 41' ER e'
4,

y92fi-= 165a     ' I o (pCR055 PARCEL
E)     ppRCEL 2 W

CUflYETABLE N4079' 42' E R   '+  r-  I !       1 1

W W   PARCEL E m I Cn CURVEtl RADIUS DELTA

LENGTH o

C78   ----
C79- 10' P. U. E. I      7.0 5 0 S.

F. G  46' 14' O6'      
y` N}7'22' IP' E( R)    5' P. U. E r, I C7 2030. 00' 0°50' 49'  30.

01'1

O

z
D`

2     z   .      PARCEL 1 y   KE
CIRCULATION C2 2030. 00' 1°31' 20'  S4.

01' pd v   N B3' 00' S6" E{  
8

1 PIPEUNE

EASEMENT PARCELL yo es 7,049 S.
F.       17, 058

SE 4,834 SF.   Q'       STORM DRAIN
EASEMENT 6

4
SS4,

W      0
6 N47D5' 22'W60. 42';    N47' OS' 72' W(  li

5774'    

N61 68.
2$   ,5q919 l=

2
I N74' 41' 45' W R I N47' OS' 22° W 109. 09'       

i 597g12
35 200U' 30. 00'   N 55 54' WIDE

IAKE 1 W 

C67
57•

a6}^ W 57.

4' 
R Zp} 0 0'     

G2

CIRCULATION o

W I IO' P. U.

E ^
oy'/

o

o      19
5774'  

N
N PIPELWE

EASEMENT
I

I\ n 6,018 S.
F.       
p

N56' 1T55W SEE DETAII
M s    % o'/ y ON THIS SHEET

1= 65   
N    I e     '^ I SEE DETAIL L       ^,    p_ 4'}9 2b' 

0
1

1 j ON THIS
SHEET         

1`   
1 "'•

o   

17

p    = O
G

1  1   og
PARCEL2 Na roszz' w roi. 00'

r Ie.is9s. v.      ua-- 
o---   L33

PARCELE
I

n ao. 00' ao.
00'   

i PARCEL I 8, '      a. u.

e.     I       I+     e I s,es° s. r.      SEE SHEET 8 w  ,`` (ACROSS PARCEL E) i
I LL

I

o   r', 1
a1 PARCEL 1 w   ', 1 30' WIDESTORM I

v
I DRAINEASEMENT W N46' 04' 42" W( R) 101. 00'        

i y1 z1'S4, Z I O I N45' S3' IB' W( R)I01. 00'(

i) 

z I U I 10 P. U.
E. 

m 30' W4
16          

W
r

2'       
z     `         N624 5 5'

Il TRACT 908' R2D
I      =     SJ16 S.

F.          

5
U S. 6fi9 S.

F.     a4B' Z6'
06' 1

5401 i      I  -   
i

e o. 00' a l
l W L=42. 27'      y W T

fi I m N4421' 39' W( R)101.
00'  '     Y I

I B
57.

74 N61' OS} 

PARCELI I
I N4476' 74' W( R)100.

35'( O a R=50. 00'       N59' 19

2w I
5 I 4=24674' O6"      N48' 72' S6' W(DETAIL

M L=214. 88'(
T)S. 716 SF.     I

u

m.,          e I
22 NOT TO

SCALE I e I I S. fi74 S.
F.      N47U5' 22' W 109. 09'       FROM THIS

SHEET) I I I N47' OS' 22'

W_N42' 38'
3I• I I L31 N41Y0' SJ' W 20. 00'    30. 00 127'

34' I R)101. 00'  I       
I

N4

p 56. 25'(
T)   

p L= 1.

27' I I 24S' S0' W( F)100.
75'       I

I       

J   J'.
T 14

wc."  5, 716 S. F.     I I

O 10' P. U. E.       5.68135.
F.      '       ZS n   

v     -       
19

DETAILL 1

I   _   
aleo I N07 i0

SCALE I I I FROM THIS
SHEET) N40' S5' J4' W( R)107. 00'  

I I N41' 09' W" 
W I

13 I
I       µ'(R) 101.

00'  Y

Zd o SEE
SHEET

13 q SHEET'+ OF

103



LEGEND

TRACT 3999AIONUNENT TO BE SET PEfl( RI7), UNLESS O7HERYASE SHOWN 10. 00'( RI) AIEASURED AND RECORD DAiA PER REFERENCE( RI)      LOT LINE

SEL STANDARD CIiY OF LATHROP IAONUMQJT WELL SiAA1PE0' PLS 7788'    ( ftl)    OENOIES REFEREN[ E( R7)- SEE REFERENCE llSi ON SHEEi 2 RICHT- OF- WAY LME RNER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1TH PIASiIC PWC" PLS 7788" PER( R17),   M- M)   MONUMEN7 TO MONIIMENT BOUNDARY VILLAGE BB
UNLE55 OTHEftWISE NOTEO M- 8)   AIONtIIAENT TO BWNDARY EASEMENT L1NE

o SEi 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PLUG' PLS 7788"      M- BC)  M0.NUMENT i0 BEGMNING OF A CURVE CENTERLME
A SUBDIVISION OF PARCELC2 OFL7RACTA3909( 43IMhP 52),

o SET 3. 00'' M7NESS CORNER( W. CJ UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOIED, MEASURED    (! A- IN1X) MONUMENT TO CENiERLME INTERSECTION RESTRIC7ED ACCE55
CITY OF LATHROP, COl1NTY OF SAN J AQUIN, CALIFORNIA

ALONG LOT LINE, RA IAL 11NE, OR PERPEN ICIIIAR TO STREET CENTER     (
r)     TOiAI R= 17. 00'      • 

I1NE AS NOTED. 3/ 4' BY 24' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASIIC CAP' PLS 7788' OCiOBER 2018
B)     BWNDARY a26'34' S5'      -^    

Q P- i/ 1 BftA55 DISN STAMPED' PLS 7788 TO BE SET PER( RI7)
P. U. E PU9LIC U71LIiY EASEIAENT NOTES

L= 8. 48     ` o J
SD. E SiORM DRAM EASEIAENT N40q6, 2 O

I. 

CONIX2E E59 EWALH 1. 00' INTO THE

RBGHTO-
OF- WAY,

ON N6jJ511j
4\

HJ
ALONG PROLONGATION OF SI E LDT UNES, OR AS NOIED.      

V 6
65,     

V           N G 1 N- E E R 1 N G

2. 5/ 8 REBAR WITH CAP° PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL
R= 17. 00 oR= 17. 00'   o m    , a, , oG= 16' S2' 16°

REAR LOT CORNERS, UNLE55 O7HERWISE NOTED.    A= 45' 27' 71' '  2 N   
L= 5. 01'   R= 17. 0'  

a'   20'  40'       BD'3. SEE SNEET 2 FOR AO I710NAL NOiES ANO REFERENCES L= 13. 49'( i). W/
o-pg3q' S5'4. SEE SHEET 7 FOR BA515 OF BEARINGS. 5 y       N o

SCAtE: I'= 40'

5. SEE SHEET 17 FOR LME AND CURVE iABLES.  c,
0

y
8. 48

w\ r
R= 17. 00' N82bJ•

y2o.$"    _ L= 1J49'( T)     

Nj7 
5
Wf(RJ

4 Ra

97ooa J    l
6' ss,

d`
1B

zp'     

NgSoo
fl l

I6' S296'J
C,   N22' 15' 34' E( R)675

r
OO     L= 5. 07'

R,
1p \

a,
B.   80 8( r    /

o         
R.?

pJoOp•  
o0

4`

9SQ 8iB\( es

3b   

34pQ,
JJ(   

o

DETAIL N
4

IB•    
zJ  C: J595 30

9'     6 6J Op• NOT i0 SCALE

Q.'       

d•

59B'( esp ,
9157( 8\ \ / o FROAI 7HIS SHEET)

h az
9 

7   
BJ h

j'  Osb'J,     N22' 10' 21_ E( R)  T BO 2
y'     

NI9' Ol' OYE( R)

o   g    N40' 78' 40' E( R).    R= 50. 00'

oQ o
o

G= 27054' 22'

ros PARCEL 2 sa   ^;    L= 2J6. 41'( T)

4)
SS       23. 501 S. F.      10' P. U.    \ 9J \(\

o5j'
4

PARCEL 15' P. U. E.    

30pp.  / N19' O6' 19' E( R ,       

7RACT 39 8 IR221
6

N6`Sb•    0   /.
40 k= 197

W
W 1

0     O
Z0 40'

6q1,   Jg.  D'       0.0 d I6'

h
L 5' P. U. E         `       M LI  _^'     _  

R,
2000. 00' dc

564. 26'

o     0ry   i o J' o./      7oL'
YQDRI   _ I624qp l' 685.98'      

NO2' 36' 27' E( R)    

2

ti :g       (!) \
N6

JS,
w 265  ! 

2  /

tij       
V      d_ g'07' O6' 1456. 

IM_ M` _      

I/
3' M3' W. C.       \    

C84    :\  m U =   
R' ZOJO.Op' o

w
d

7 576 S. F.   \  
y    \

2n/   '/

C92\ \  
ON THISTSHEET

4 7qp%g6 95- 676.90' T)    

I    

p

c    

p\o V o.    
68_   

L _

v e S. N) b75g, ws        ry

N86' S1' S3' W( R) 102. 28•      \     /
Rl    

C90  ss
T  

5'      I NJ3' 10' P. U. E.      

ry

J
N6

I 99.  
97' w PARCEL3 w10' P. U. E.   I

I I J   [ OT
T

7
506 T

1. 45ACRE5 W

P v i a,.  
c i 1     

r J

66.     n 4         so i
N

O5,
8, 610 S. f.       •   l N. e N7

3' x3' W. C. 0 4t`   
7, 808 S. F.'       64/ Sg•

µ,     Ll      39' 22' 1=
Z3 g0 i

N n=    115.
46'     w

w
y

87 by 3' r]'W.

G y,  22`  —
p N79' 48' 16' p 1/ 5. 46'     

a
q

h?    

A
yoh

l
apo0•    `

O^
o' 7 N82' S4' J3" W I15.

46' s         a N86' 00' S1' W 115.
46' 3 p o

r 8,847 S. F.     3 8,637 S.

F.       4°   PARCEL
I 2y ` TJ' 

p4'
y,

00'     3' x3' W. C.    3' v3' W. C.    ,
L

ti SEE SHEET
8 9

p d N84' S2' S6' W 77, 89'       

SSA N87' 38' 13' E

i sHeer 15 oF

104



LEGEND NOTES

TRACT 3999AIONUMENT TO BE SEi PER( RI7), UNLE55 OTHERYASE SHOWN 200. 00'( R1) IAEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( RI)      LOT LINE I. I. 17" BRA55 DISK SiAIAPE" PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON

SET STAN ARD CITY OF LAiHROP IAONUMENT WfLL SiAMPEO' PLS 7768'    ( RI)    OENOIES ftEFERENCE( RI)- SEE REFERENLE 115T ON SHEET 2 R GHT- OF- WAY LME CONCREIE 9 EWALK 1. 00' INTO iHE RICHi- OF- WAY,      RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE ZA
3/ 4' IAON PIPE W7TH PLASiIC PLUG' PLS 7788' PER( ft17),   M- IA)   A70NUMENT TO MONUMENT BOUNDARY ALONC PROLONGATION OF SIOE LOi LMES, OR AS NOIE.

UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOTED
M- B)   IAONUNENT TO BWNOARY EASEIAENT LINE

2• 5/ B' REBAR WITH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET Ai ALL VILLAGE BB

o SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W11H PlASTIC PLUG' PLS 7788"      N- BC)  FIINJUMENT TO BECINNING OF A CURVE CENTERIME 3. SEERSHE ETC2 FR A00 TIONALONOiES ANO REFERENCES.     
A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, 9EINC

o SET 3. 00' WITNE55 CORNER( W. C.) UNLE55 OiHERWISE NOIE, MEASURED    ( M- tt INT%) MONUMENT TO CENiERl1NE INTERSECPON i/''    RESiRIC7ED ACCESS 4. SEE FiEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS.  A S116 IVISION OF PARCEL P OF TRACT 3908( 43 M& P 52),

ALONC LOT IME, RADIAL LINE, Ofl PERPENOICULAR TO SIREET CENTER 5. SEE SHEET 17 FOR LINE AND CURVE TABLES. CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQIIIN, CALIFORNIA

LME AS NOIED. 3/ 4" BY 24° IRON PIPE W11H PLASPC CAP' Pl5 7788'         
BWNDARY

OCi BER 2018

Q 2- 1/ 2' BRA55 OISK STAIAPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SE1 PER( R17J P. U. E.   PUBLIL UTIIIiY EAAMENT

S. D. E SiORM DRAM EAAIAENT

ENG1N Ei 1NG

N
o zo:

PARCEL 1 O I
SCALE: I'= 40'

La2( T)   
TRACT 3908 Ift22) I

R= I970. 00• 
NOT' 3fi' 27' E( P)        so. 00'   30. 00'   1 45. 00'  i      

I
d= 16' 24' 40' L= 564. 26' IB)( n Im       JR 2000. 00' ' 

J9' OT 1= 685.9B'( M- M)i d-1629' 90' 
i N I 

EAST} 73. 50' o
I
U

N
a= ie o6—37zas' z' i MULHOLLANDDRIVE

I  "

p
2 4—     I 21. 50'   H zI

373. 50'       25. 00'        )
w 1 C95 C96( M- IA)     _     45. 00' RI7
W

i o o

N00' S9' 13 E( R)              
395. 00'

Q i EASi 403. 39'( IA- Cl INT%)( R17)
R= 2030.00' 4= g p6 y i fo

EAST 465. 00( M- CL INi%)  
d MULHOLLAND DRIVE

W    ` f-_'-      d=       L= 676. 90'( i)         

10' P. U. E.   16qpjg- 590_ 68'        d= 2' 26' Ol' L= 86. 22' i EAST395. 00'( n o   
i

C97    ' IC99     r390. 00' 
o

N0' 30' 41' E R)   L49 L47   
J

6 45. 00'f0' P. U. E. 

PARCEI 3 I I

PARCELF W   PARCEL4
i

to' r.ue.  I
9, 348 S. F.  

pl          0. 91 ACRES i 45'

P. U. E.  
rv

o

NBp' S4'   
CENTERLINE OF 32' WIDE

I^  PARCELG33' W Sqs.      STORM ORAIN FASEMENT
I 1, 700 S. F.

NB6' 00' S1' W I15. 46•
EAST I

71. 47'       24A2'   EAST 395. 00'( PARCEL 4)( i)   20. 00'

N89' 2fi' 49' W 95. 49'( PARCEL F)( T)    275. 00" 140.00'

W

CENTERLINE OF 32' WIOE LAKE   _    [   I

CIRCl1LATI0N PIPELINE EASEMENT       

OJ
EAST 1J6. 32'_    W I 

PAftCEL 1

SEE SHEET 8 PARCEL A
w

3 30, 375 S. F. u
U

P. U. E.

Qw,
m

i

z
z

I

45' 45'

EASi( 30. 00'( T)

55. 00'   Q 55. 00'    20i00' i

73 I 72      

SEE SHEET 9   PARCEL H
SHE 16 oF 17

105



N G G   G     ;       ;    ;  6 6 G m G > G G
C

m

N F"!^
a     a  ? 

z               ^'

a  ` N ' a   G      v   c

o J       o m H       ' v m m  a  o o     -" i a  
0o I       -         -    

A

m f m       m

3o.oa--    I f N N             m
m

m'  -    -      

m
NOR7H 135. 68'( LOT 74)( T)    

oJ

s      g c H _        

c       G G G     
o

D 2 d $ 
E' G

c

o4          
jY m         

y ,,    m Y -'       (
n

o/
a y  \       o e o g s ; '  -  ' 

g m       -     
a o  rs  m m

IN
o/<       f      f f        f f     f       p

f    
S;    o H -    - Y      o

30.00'__ 1   /  /     
I

y    _    _  _  _  _      
a      ' i    _    '      " 9         

tZn

V I
NORTH 100. 25   m

m

I

w        N  N ti ` H 8  `        

o         
o

A.     o N o f5     ,-,  
ti g    $  _    $ $  _    _ $ $ g 4 4  _    a 2

v\

9 ^       
o 0 0 0 0 0  _  _ o 0 0 0       ,  _  _ o N <  

f

s'.   
O n n fn     

N      u     m a  g  uai p >  Q
lSl9a b

ss
o   

k'   ', ,,    `   _ &     _ b S D ,  

e F n

N S 8      
YX

2    _       _    _      l  _  _  _ y 

ss          s     Ba        m   <

e   000  s s 4 s       s s s $ s s s  _ -

OBERLINAVEN m   ^ ^    "        °`            `     p
P

m

c
UNE

y ^+             g    -  -            e    >
NOS' 07' 78' E 205. 82'(- B)      

N V

p       m

N N       ,    n a N N    , N
v

I. o`   I 1i62.49'       1       

o    

m n     -          g m      ' G     N  .
01.,    Et m i38. 40'      {,

n      \   o /       N     y  + 1 N N    -   _ 1 N N N  _ N N 
o

L?
o N05' OI'       

m       ,       
38' E I62. 49'( M- M)     I

Z       ''     
o al            o U    ` x

D 9S'

l

S
NOS' aJ' JB"    

Z 175. 09' T v     e m &' '  '        ' ` J, 
E'' 

Nii K' E'i N

6E.       

NOS' 07' 38' E 9

CS,(     
a m

p  .
b

0°      8. 02'

i           i-  ao_oo' m S o S o      

a  i v rn I tN"   _ e  -    g  - 4 g  _ S  _      S S S 8 $ S g  _ _ 

o

y

I p w     

N
o I m

I^  

o 0 0

0'    o 0 0  " m
Z 4 0   n n    n N C      q °

mE
r3 -  ` $'      m m m '^   

1"      

m o o i G S s g  y        
y

c^  
I u    

y y m  .  .    .  . y = N a

I I O e X m S '         S `" 9 Ei " r'
9 L  .     

v

J Z
I      

l Y  k     
N

y     4    $ S y
V I

a o
O

i   _ C
o       _  _  _ 

o D Rl c n n n i m

0
o

W a

o $  o  o ,'     o d'  ' ' o g r.+     `" 
g 

S S $  S 4   - 4       -        S S S S    $ - 
C

OBERLIN AVENUNE

o  ` 

o , s     ,      y > "      NOS' 07' J8° v S'
9

y Y'  Yu    v     ' k      ;
s  p  - m fiiE 205. 82'( M- B a

4. 9— 
162. 9

I k'      a N y;   
u

i o o
m

re g    _      y y

I o a
I

I D' m
Z I    --

n g I
lo

Ci7 I

u .    - z

D oo  • o( m

Mm, FRo o m i ro ca m m

m I m£' 
y

gv     ~  _   o
Z I

A^

m N a o oi z
iC          

cA r

V

o o
o m o o Km

I oNaz oy I Am ygz oS" o'^ m8`"     
Z

v   <

s s"       x>

9       o
9z i zy o o" Z      zo 7J

m oi i N o
mm    -  m 

a    
sA J

y= a    A  -"       g D D
z o o

m
o- m    =    p _

A=       =
Z    

A o 
DzC

o    >
m

m

m             N m-- I

N
m

pa m
o    y W

o SA  F
Z DCO

g

z

m4 o o   nD
o     4 bV

o
N     • 

o      .

L

V

106



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 10

EXHIBIT B

TRACT 3999 AND VILLAGE " BB" AREA

107



y

y  a\    
W  v

QS   

Hi
F9

NC\

O9r,

FqFqo     \   \
G Q    ° 9  

P' F
i

O,Q   

QC Q,   
Q

O      JQ    \\  `` d

J 

o RNERFqONTDRIVE
ILL oQ o

v

oP

oE   .

G

JQ    

mo
Q

h
9

P
1G G     , 0 2

G     

I     W
8

m

9

9y9
2 Je'

S
JP

MOZART
AVENUE

m

GF
V

P

PCA VO    ' .

1`

0:

t"'   

os;    

TRACT 3999  " `    
Q

E q  _

m.    

MUWOGiiO uM'D DRryfi
SS?.`'

P\
y  

G',         T
a      ',.  ----

TRACT 4000

i r_

1
VILLAGE BB

w e, u J
6 \
iTRACT 3999    °     .  .

BLUEHERON flNE BLUEHERONCOURT

E C I
y

z
2 .

TRACT 3999  '  ; TRACT 4000
s    

TiARDEN6AAM5i1V N1JE.''.;••.;'•.;••.;'•.;'•.;••.;'•;''•.;'•.;'•;'•.
T

9i`
Fq

s(

Yps
a

V LtA CC
q       o    

S N    
PtWPOSEDCONAUIiIYPAPoC

9t

Q
IRREVOCABLE OFFER

oS',

y

OF DEDICATION
BUSHCOLqT      y VF

o AS7qE  RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

o

2
0

BUCHqryANCOURi       ?
VILLAGE V       

GRINNELLCOURT GRINNELLSTREEf

0
IAKE11

IL
Q

VILLAGE U
MI DLEBUPYDRIV_    EXHIBIT „ B„       

VILLAGE BB
e

1 

VICNIT1( MAPJ

TRACT 3992

INADRNE

NOVEMBER 2018

108



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 11

EXHIBIT C

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to do
business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no less
than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000,000 for each occurrence and $ 2,000,000 in the
aggregate.       

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy
endorsements, executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision

Improvement Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be
attached to the certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability
arising out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or
the equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that" the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to
any loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City of Lathrop at least
thirty( 30) days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language

can be included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d.       The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially
available at reasonable rates.

109



Page 1 of 2

B'      DATE( MMIDD/ YYYY)

A oR     CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURAIVCE 1oi12i2o18

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT
NAME:

Willis Insurance Services of California, Inc. PHONE FAX

AIC No Ext: 
1- 877- 945- 7378 AIC No: 1- 888- 467- 2378

c/ o 26 Century Blvd
E- MAIL

P. O. Box 305191 ADDRESS: certificates@willis. com

Nashville, TN 372305191 USA INSURER S AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURERA: 
United Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED
INSURER B:

River Islands Development, LLC
r

73 W Stewa= t Rd
INSURER C:

Lathrop, CA 95330 INSURERD:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUAABER: wesoze3a REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF IN5URANCE

ADDL SUBR
pOLICY NUMBER MM

DDY
EFF

MMDD/ YYY LIMITSLTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

CLAIMS- MADE OCCUR PREMISES Ea oocu ence    $

p+     MED EXP( Any one person)    $
Y ATN- SE1811644P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

pERSONALBADVINJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' LAGGREGATELIMITAPPLIESPER:   GENERALAGGREGATE      $ 2, 000, 000

POLICY jE  LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OP AGG  $ 2, 000, 000

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT    $
Ea accidenl

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED
BODILY INJURY( Per accident) $

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTYDAMAGE

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

UMBRELLALIAB
OCCUR EACHOCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

A

EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS- MADE
BTN1B14514W 03/ 19/ 2016 03/ 19/ 2021

qGGREGATE 3, 000, 000

DED RETENTION$   

WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y w

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRIETORIPARTNER/ EXECUTIVE E. L. EACH ACCIDENT
OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED? N A

Mandatory in NH)     E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT  $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS I VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

RE: Tract 3999 River Islands- Stage 2A Village BB

The City of Lathrop, its o£ ficers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereo£, its employees and agents

as additional insured as respects the general liability policy. The insurance coverage af£orded by this policy shall

be primary insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its of£icers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
sel£- insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in excess of the

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  fVOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

The City o£ Lathrop
AU7HORIZEDREPRESEN7ATIVE

390 Towne Centre Drive f

Lathrop, CA 95330 j
OO 1988- 2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016103)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

sR ID: 16893409 snTcx: 909382

110



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

A` ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page z of z

AGENCY       NAMEDINSURED

Willis Insurance Services of California, Inc.       
ver islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd

POLICYNUMBER Lathrop, CA 95330

See Page 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

See Page 1 See Page 1 EFFECTNEDATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER:     Z`'      FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Inaurance

insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any loss as respects the insured' s
operations.

ACORD 101 ( 2008/ 01)   02008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 16893409 BATCH: 909382 CERT: W8502834

111



i

POLICY NUMBER: ATN- SF1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 10 0413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s) Or

Or anization s Location s Of Covered Operations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards River Islands @ Lathrop Development
and commissions and members thereof, its,

employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

include as an additional insured the person( s) or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only with apply:

respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property damage" This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage" occurring after:
or in part, by:    1. All work, including materials, parts or equipment

1. Your acts or omissions; or
furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     
project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)

to be performed by or on behalf of the additional
in the performance of your ongoing operations for insured( s) at the location of the covered operations

the additional insured( s)   at the location( s) has been completed; or

designated above. 2. That portion of" your work" out of which the

injury or damage arises has been put to its
However:    

intended use by any person or organization other
1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only

than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and in performing operations for a principal as a part of
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader

than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 0413 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

112



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.  Available under the applicable Limits of

these additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;

Section III— Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
This endorsement shall not increase the applicable

required by a contract or agreement, the most we Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:      

1.  Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13

113



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES. THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN-SF1811644P

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE

Third Party' s Sole Negligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:   

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Section IV  —  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph 4:

Section IV: Commercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood.and agreed that
in the event of a claim or " suit"  arising out of the Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional insured named as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Party to whom this endorsement applies is:

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as required by written contractual agreement with any
Third party for whom you are perForming work."

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07 Page 1 of 1

114



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURAfVCE COMPAPdY

THIS ENDORSEMEfdT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

tVamed Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

THIRD PARTY C NCELLATION IVOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in
SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIi4BILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below( according to the

number of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written
notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective

date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/ Orqanization Number of Davs Notice

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07 Page 1 of 1

115



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 12

EXHIBIT D

COHEN/PARADISE/ STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

116



i

a  

m. .
rsqm+ arvErcaeNo

1 vao ecru w

m,;.:

LEGEND

ROADWAYTOBEFULLREPAIRED, PAVEDANDOPENTOGENERALPUBUC
EXHIBIT D

1 ROADWAYTOBEREPoUREDASALL- WEATHEREMERGENCYVEHICLEACCESSONLY
ROADWAYREHABILITATIONEXHIBIT

COMMUNIIYATSOUTHRIVERBENDPROJECTAREA
RIVER ISLANDS

llll OF LrT11ROG SAV J04QUIN COl! 9TF CdLIPo[ IVLA

v VI D4 511. I.. IUI. H' v.', I?

117



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 13

XHIBIT E

iTNFIle1ISHED I1VIP1aOVEMENT COST ESTIIVIATE

118



1 ' []  L_ L_

ENGINE E R7NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE September 4, 2018

COST TO CONIPLETE Job No.: 25502- 93

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2A

VILLAGE BB( 131 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Storm Drain& Sanitary Sewer Manholes and Gate Valves Raising Iron ( 95% Completion)    1 LS   $   48, 800. 00  $ 48, 800. 00

2 Set Water Boxes and SSCO Boxes ( 95% Completion)     1 LS   $   65, 500. 00  $ 65, 500. 00

3 Survey Monuments( 0% Completion)     1 LS   $    6, 000. 00  $ 6, 000. 00

4 Signing 8 Striping ( o/ Complerion)      1 LS   $   25, 800. 00  $ 25, 800. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $       146, 100. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on contrador' s cost to complete summary sheet and backup documents for Village BB.

J

6200 STONERIDGE W1ALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F209. 571. 2466

T: 125502- River Islands Phase 93- V llage BB Exce Cost To Camplete1201&- 09-04 Vllage BB Bond Estimale. xlsUmprovemenls

119



L7 C C  L_

ENG1NEEft1NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE October 29, 2018

VILLAGE BB( 131 LOTS)   Job No.: 25510. 82

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREETSCAPE

1 Landscape/ Irrigation Improvements 23, 181 SF    $    5. 00  $ 115, 905. 00

Subtotal Streetscape 115, 905. 00

POCKET PARK

1 Landscape/ Irrigation Improvements 106, 912 SF    $    8. 00  $ 855, 296. 00

Subtotal Pocket Park 855, 296. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTIOfd COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $ 97' i, 201. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, frontyard/ pkwy strip landscape
and irrigation, docks, steps/ stairs to docks or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

I

6200 STONcRIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340  F: 209. 571. 2466

T: 25510- River IslandslTo Others1R11Ramon EST- 2018- 10- 26- Slage 2A Village BB- Engineer' s Estimate- 25510. 82NILLAGE BB

120



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 14

EXHIBIT F

VILLAGE " BB" IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

121



u' n C  

ENGINEE R1 NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE March 7, 2018

VILLAGE BB( 131 LOTS)   Job No.: 25502- 93

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 460, 300 SF    $    0.45  $ 207, 135. 00

2 3" AC Paving 50, 400 SF    $    1. 50  $  75, 600. 00

3 4. 5" AC Paving 192, 000 SF    $    2.25  $ 432, 000. 00

4 6" Aggregate Base 34, 100 SF    $    0. 90  $  30, 690. 00

5 7" Aggregate Base 16, 300 SF    $    1. 05  $  17, 115. 00

6 8" Aggregate Base 192, 000 SF    $    1. 20  $ 230, 400. 00

7 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       4, 930 LF    $  15. 00  $  73, 950. 00

8 Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion) 9, 660 LF    $  15. 00  $ 144, 900. 00

9 Type F Median Curb( with AB cushion)     400 LF    $  18. 00  $   7, 200. 00

10 Concrete Sidewalk 77, 200 SF    $    5. 00  $ 386, 000. 00

11 Driveway Approach 161 EA    $ 600. 00  $  96, 600. 00

12 Handicap Ramps 23 EA    $       2, 500.00  $  57, 500. 00

13 Survey Monuments 19 EA    $ 300. 00  $   5, 700. 00

14 Traffic Striping& Signage 7, 700 LF    $    5. 00  $  38, 500. 00

15 Dewatering ( budget)     7, 700 LF    $  40. 00  $ 308, 000. 00

16 Remove Existing Street Barricade 7 EA   $ 500. 00  $   3, 500. 00

17 Barricade 2 EA   $       1, 500. 00  $   3, 000. 00

18 Demolition 1 LS    $      10, 000. 00  $  10, 000. 00

Subtotal Street Work 2, 127, 790. 00

STORM DRAIN

19 Catch Basins( rype A inlet)   23 EA   $       2, 400. 00  $  55, 200. 00

20 Catch Basins( rype A inlet over rype I manhole base)  18 EA   $       2, 800. 00  $  50, 400. 00

21 Catch Basins( rype A inlet over type ll manhole base)   4 EA   $       5, 000. 00  $  20,000. 00

22 CatCh Basins( type A inlet over type lll manhole base)  4 EA    $       7, 500. 00  $  30, 000. 00

22 Field Inlet( type C inlet over type I manhole base)       4 EA   $       2, 800. 00  $  11, 200. 00

23 15" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 790 LF    $  34. 00  $  60, 860. 00

24 18" Storm Drain Pipe 500 LF    $  46. 00  $  23, 000. 00

25 24" Storm Drain Pipe 2, 210 LF    $  65. 00  $ 143, 650. 00

26 36" Storm Drain Pipe 410 LF    $  95. 00  $  38,950. 00

27 42" Storm Drain Pipe 520 LF    $ 120. 00  $  62, 400. 00

28 48" Storm Drain Pipe 660 LF    $ 125. 00  $  82, 500. 00

29 54" Storm Drain Pipe 122 LF    $ 130. 00  $  15, 860. 00

30 Storm Drain Stub& Plug 4 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   4, 000. 00

31 Manholes( rype 1)      2 EA    $       3, 000. 00  $   6, 000. 00

32 Manholes( type Il)      1 EA    $       5, 000. 00  $   5, 000. 00

33 Connect to Existing 9 EA    $       1, 700. 00  $  15, 300. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 624, 320. 00

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F: 2D9. 571. 2466

T:125502- River ISlandslPhase 93- Village BBlExce1 2018-03-07 Stage 26 Villaga BB Engineer' s Estimate.xlsx\ Village BB

122



i i      L

ENG1NEEfi1NG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

SANITARY SEWER

34 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 6, 970 LF    $  28. 00  $ 195, 160. 00

35 Manholes 28 EA    $       4,000. 00  $ 112, 000. 00

36 Sewer Service 161   ' EA   $ 600. 00  $  96, 600. 00

37 Sewer Stub& Plug 3 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   3, 000. 00

38 Connect to Existing 3 EA   $       3, 000. 00  $   9, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 415, 760. 00

WATER SUPPLY

39 8" Water Line( including all appurtenances) 5, 920 LF    $  32. 00  $ 189, 440. 00

40 10" WaterLine( inc/udinga/lappurtenances)      1, 780 LF    $  40. 00  $  71, 200. 00

41 Water Service 161 EA   $       2, 000. 00  $ 322, 000. 00

42 Fire Hydrants 17 EA    $       4, 000. 00  $  68, 000. 00

43 Connect to Existing 8 EA   $       4, 000. 00  $  32, 000. 00

44 Water Plug& Stub 9 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   9, 000. 00

Subtotal WaterSupply 691, 640. 00

NON- POTABLE WATER SUPPLY

45 10" Non- Potable Water Line( including all appurtenances) 2, 630 LF    $  40. 00  $ 105, 200. 00

46 Connect to Existing 5 EA    $       3, 000. 00  $  15, 000. 00

Subtotal Non- Potable Water Supply 120, 200. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $       3, 980, 000. 00

COST PER LOT $  30, 382. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, landscaping,
irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 SIONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F; 209. 571. 2466

T: 25502- River IslandsSPhase 93- Village BB1Exce1 2018-03-07 Stage 2B Village BB Engineer' s Estimale. xlsx\Village BB

123



U' U E= L_ L_

ENGINE E RING

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE October 29, 2018

VILLAGE BB( 131 LOTS)   Job No.: 25510. 82

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREETSCAPE

1 Landscape/ Irrigation Improvements 23, 181 SF    $    5. 00  $ 115, 905. 00

Subtotal Streetscape 115, 905. 00

POCKET PARK

1 Landscape/ Irrigation Improvements 106, 912 SF    $    8. 00  $ 855, 296. 00

Subtotal Pocket Park 855, 296. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $ 971, 201. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, frontyard/ pkwy strip landscape
and irrigation, docks, steps/ stairs to docks or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

J

6200 STONEP. IDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F: 209. 5712466

T: 125510- River Islands\ To OtherslRl\ Ramon EST- 201& 10-26-Stage 2A Village BB- Engineer' s Estlmate- 25510. 82\ VILLAGE BB

124



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 15

EX IIBIT G

IaIPFA LETTER OF GUAI2ANTEE

INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT A1tEA

125



RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINAiVCIIVG AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA 95330

TEL: ( 209) 879- 7900

iV1ay', 2017

Gleml Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 To v ie Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 9 330

Subject: Letter of Guarantee- Constt•uction of Interim Public Elcccss vithin the River

Islands at Lat}u•op Stage? A llcvclopment Area

This Letter of Guarantee is being made in lieu of a performance bond for the construction oC an
interim public access ( public right of vay) within the Stage 2f development area of the River
Islands development project. River Islands Development, LLC (" RID") has requested the

permanent closure of Cohen Road fi om Stage 1 to Paradise Road and Paradise Road fi-om

Stewart Road to the Stage 2A levee ( see Gxhibit" n" attached to tliis Letter of Guarantee). This

closure vould allow the construction of the Stabe 2B levee system. The closure will not allow

public traffic to utilize Paradise Road to access the River Islands development area while the

construction of the Stage 2B levee is occurrin, but still allo emergency vehicles access to the
area via all- veather access roads.

RID plans to construct River Islands Parkway fi•om its cucrent terminus in Stage 1, throu li the
Stage 2 1 developmei area and into Stage 2B and reconstruct Paradise Road within Stage 2B to

restore public access to the project from the "fracy/ Banta area. Until these roads are constructed
and dedicated to the City for public use, the City is requiring security to restore public access to
Paradise Road should RID fail to perform. We are providing you this Letter of Guarantee for
this purpose.

The engineer' s estimate as provided by O' Dell Engineering for a 28- foot- wide paved roadway,
equivalent to existing Cohen Road, in the general alignment of' proposed Rivcr Islands Parkway
fi•om Stage 1 to Paradise Road through Stage 2i3 is $ 4 3, 000 ( See xhibit" B"). The total length

of this" guarantee roadway' is 6, I50 linear feet. t1s a result, ihe Authority hereby agrees to set-
aside funds in the amount of$ 543, 600, which ainount is equal to 120% of the en; ineer' s

estim ite, in- lieu of a performance bond. The fimds are currentl} hcld, and will be set aside, in the

Improvement Fund established ttnder the Fiscal llgent Abreement; dated as of December 1,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmington Trust, National Associltion, as f scal agent. 1 he

Joint Conununity Facilities lgreement; dated as of November 16, 2015, bet veen the Authority
and the City allows for fimds. in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastructure
improvements for the River Islands development, includinb roadways.

Under the tei ns of this Letter of Guarantee, the nuthority shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvement Ptmd unti[ August l, 2020; or until such time that permanent roadways are

126



Glenn Gebhardt, Giiy Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4, 2017
Page 2 of 3

constructed and dedicated to the City to restore permanent public access to Paradise Road,
whichever eomes f rst.  If the permanent roadways acc not constructed, inspected and accepted

by the City by August 1, 2020 and tlic dcadline is not extendcd by the City i i writing, no later
than Au ust 2, 2020, the luthority will cause one of the follawing to occur;

1.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to constcuct a 28-
foot-wide paved roadway in a new alignment, equivalent to the existing Cohen Road or,
to reconstruct the eYisting 28- foot- wide paved Cohen and Paradise roadways in the
original aligiunent at the City' s direction. The Authority shall utilize a suitable coutractor
and bid the work under applicable law. The Authority and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to vhich the roadways necessary to restore access are constructed, ittspected
and operational, not to eaceed December 31, 2020-.

2.       " The t\uthority shall withdraw the funds fi•om the set aside monies in the Improvement
Pund and provide said monies to the City, to be held in a segregated accotmt maintained
by the Cit}, to be used solcly foi• constructio l or reconstruction of the applicable
i•oadways. In such event, tlle City will use reasonable diligcnce to complete the
construction oFthe roadways. Once ermanent access has been constructed to the

satisfaction of the CiCy Engineer, and all costs related thercto have been paid, the City
shall return any of the unspent funds and any investment earnings thereon to the
Authority for redeposit to the Improvement Fund.  Until tlie completion of the coadwa} s
and return of any e cess funds to the Authority, the City ill maintain cecords as to the

reinvestment of the funds provided to it, and will provide the Authority with its records as
to any such investment earnings u on vriiten request of the Authority. Additionally, in
the event that the City advises the Authority in writing that the fiinds provided to the City
are not sufficient to pay all of the costs associated with the roadways necessaty to restore
public access, and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shoi tfall, the Authority
vill advance funds to the City from the Iinprovement Fund in the amount of the shortfall.
In such event, and upon the vritten request of the Authority, thc City will provide to the
Authority a d tailed breakdown oi' the costs of the construction of the remainiu roadway
work necessary to restore public access.

3.       Since the construetion of roadways within Stages 2A and 2B are phased and will continue

to be constructed by RID, RD 2062 or thc Authority over time, the Authority may request
a reduction in the amount of fiinds necessary to be held fcom the Improvement Fund as
scgments of permanent public roadways are constructcd and dedicated to the City. Poi•
instance, segments of Rivei• Islands I' arkway through Stage 2A sliould be completed in
late 2017/ early 2018 and dcdication of this segment a ould reduce the amount of security
described herein. As a result, a reduction of$ 88. 40 per LF ($ 543, 600/ 6, 150 LP) shall be

ranted for cach linear foot permanently constructed and dcdicated to the City.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the two options otitlined above as the
applicable security and to request reduction of the security as described in section 3 above. As
confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guaraiitee Uy the

127



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4, 2017
Aage 3 of 3

City, please si n and date this letter as shown on the next page. Should you have any questions
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at( 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely,

By:
Herb Moniz, Execut v Direetar

River Isiands Pubfic Fi ancing Auihority

Enctosures:    Exhibit" A": Location of Applicable Roadways— Cohen/ Paradise

Exhibit" B": O' Dell Enginee ing— En ineer' s Estimates

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC

John Zhang, O' Dell Engineering, Inc.

I Accept on Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter of Guarantee.

B :       Y
Glenn R Gebhardt, City Engineer

j    

Date

128



i
EXHIBIT "A"

r

1  ,,,;;. i t

Q c t!;  °`-   {^

p r f e'    ,, " .       -       
S

j       t     ' r.r' ,'+ 4 s`'    

a...-._      '",",
y

ry',' ' Q',.

yt,  1 A

F       ,  

i     
9 j      1 1'  Ty+.y,,,  y.-.         - hz     ,,.'             *.  a      •-  ,   ; 

t?§ ;i S     
r.     Y a       '      _  I' F`;

Y

L..t"_    S
C 4`    ` . i  y Y      M\7    

1 rl fiS    , t. rVm' y+..
S STAGE 2B 2,      5 '''     ''

aZ      t`''     .

1•      R'  1,i''     '  •
qy   

AREA      - ,    

i
r `,.   ,    {„;

f.   `' N
e  - 3      

v   ,    
y rw x' y"

a+..,._- .       :     

N.:,       

nt  '    1 f,s;     .
O

BEGIN PERMANENT
G' r'"'   .  , ,,/ f

r,  '       
r`: 

t

si''

ROAD CLOSURE
2 LANE GUARANTEE'      ! ..,   

y
F.

r  „ L
ROADWAY ( 28' WIDE) i      ,,      t        `, . .       , z.     s hr   . ,

fi„ k

i
Fq,,   1       _

rv     " ..'`       

a•   '.     '.`

y'0.'

b hy e   .      .     .. a i

I ouH,.    :'     

a,
3, r3,,   ,'

v    , 

et:,'
s:,

a

2"

uW' i       .

St°a»

N

i,{,+ j.,' r`'  

te;
I

T "'!
J 7+ << y c_,

END PERMANENT i i.
TRANSITION STAGE 2A inrim> >;:-

AREA          _   
ROAD CLOSURE '       

hwTO LEVEE ROAD a'      
r

a

N,,., 

w

i  _ #.
4

g=.
ti ..,  ,' a

4      j'  f       ', i t} ' w.i..'
ti"..P`..

iui        '"'"'  ' <,
E. ,

u, 

PROVIDE ' LOCAL 1„   7:  .     1
J -",'`, ,

a;'

TRAFFIC ONLY'      rr
r, j       .      `    i t n i j 1.

SIGN ( R11- 3)     w,.       
r' w`.

y,  .      

r'   
i

i   -     ,/ L          ,

Z-       
STAGE 1 i

t TRANSITION 1 AREA   y 

X;      TO LEVEE ROADI     I i..` J   
i     j: .

C._.       DELL' OSSO DRIVE     '- a r ncr^ r•-
r—*- -,,', ,   ._  

i'   
s v.;;'  

z`„ ;  

I j.-     -    r       -

u. M,

v

1     !1

Y•'

r

I
y  '

ys ,     

I        

I

1 Y    )a    y.

3, y      '   

r k a  .    
ir< r- i .   .   ,`       ...>  .     

i ,;       ..

f
i_.  .      r""~u      ,

1, -...,:
I I

1    

i,    
Y Y         ..   ..      

r_
I----- L—I. . r Y J .  .

Yak..  -

r.       I I  ,. .. .        .
i  .

W'     ' u, s    4 5,
f      ' ka *:s ,,  •+

y
µ     _       '    i  —    

j    i. f

ti.
LEGEND Y       '  s. l' '       i

i      ^

f n '-    .     , i      
y ,.! ;PHASE1 BOUNDARY y •

r      , RETAIN PUBLIC MAINTAINED
ROAD

s \,   •   -    _   , .:  ..-     ;/          s i*T"

d-_   

1.,PERMANENT ROAD CLOSURE( ABANDONMEN' i) i        STAGE2 INTERIM

ACCESS INTERIM PUBLIC SAFETY FOAD( ALL- WEATHER)   N R IV E R IS LAN

DS 28'PAVED ROADWAY( GUARANTEE SEGMEN      C!    LAND USE

MAP CITV UF LA HHOV SAN JOAOUIN CnUNTV CALIVt)

NNIA ENOIrvlER1N0 MAVd,

129



EXHIBIT " B"

ENG1N ft1NG

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST May 4, 2017
INTERIM ROAD CONNECTION- STAGE 2A

GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Unit

Item Description Quantity Unit Price Amount

SITE PREPARATION

1 Mobilization 1 LS     $     25, 000: 00   $ 22, 750. 00

2 Erosion Control 1 LS     $       2, 500. 00   $  2, 500. 00

Subtotal Site Preparation 25, 250. 00

GRADING

3
EarthworkZ

1, 600 CY    $    5. 00  $  8, 000. 00

Subtotal Grading 8, 000. 00

MISCELLANEOUS

4 3" AC ( 6150LF)       172,200 SF    $    1. 50   $ 258, 300. 00

5 6" AB( 6150 LF)       172, 200 SF    $   0. 90  $ 154, 980. 00

6 Conform to Existing 2 LS .   $       3, 000. 00   $   6,000. 00

Subtotal Miscellaneous 419, 280. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $ 452, 530. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $ 453, 000. 00

Notes:

1) Mobilization assumed to be 5% of total cost.

2) Earthwork quantity includes 35°/ a shrinkage.

8200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330,_PLEASANTON; CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 83a0 • F: 209.571. 24&6

130



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 16

EXI3IBIT H

IaIPFA I,ETTElz OF GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN THE STAGE 2A I) EVELOPI IEI 1T AREA

131



RIVER lSLA NDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA 95330

TEL: ( 209) 879- 7900

June 26, 2018

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: L tter of Guarantee- Constxuetion of River Islands Farkway from I)ell' Osso
Drive to the St ge 2B Bound ry( Lakesid E st District)—Traet 3908

This Letter of Guarantee is being made in lieu ofa performance bond for the construction of
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2 boundary
within the Stage 2A development area of the River Islands development project( lso known as

the Lakeside East District). River Islands Public Financing F uthority( Autharity) is providing
the funding for public imQrovements in the Stage 2A development area, including improvements
to River Islands Parlcway( Improvements). It is our underst nding that a guarantee for
construction of the River Islands Parkway Improvements through Stage 2A is required as a
condition precedent to City Couaicil a praval of the Tract 39081arge lot subciivision map
proposed by River Islands Development, LLC. Since the Authority is already setting aside funds
for the full construction of River Islands Parkway, we are providing you this Letter of Guarantee
as the reyuired subdivision guarantee necessary for the Tract 39081arge lot final anap.

1' he engineer' s estimates as provided by O' Dell Engineering for the full cost of the of River
islands Parkway Improvements from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 5, 264, 000,
and for the unfinished portions( as of June 15, 20] 8} of tiver Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso
Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 338, OU4( attached as Exhibit""). The Authority hereby
agrees to set- aside funds in the amount af$450,000, which amount is equal to 180°10 vf this
engineer' s estimate of the unfinished improvements, in- Iieu of a 100% performance bond and

SO% labor and materials bond. The funds aze currently held, and wiil be set asid, in the

Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as ofDecember 1,

2015, between the Authority and Vlilmingtan Trust, National Association, as fiscal agent. The
Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as of November 16, 2015, between the Authority
and the City allows for funds in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastructure
improvements for the River Islands development, includ'eng Ftiver Islands Parkw y. Also
attached to this Letter of Guarantee is an exhibit showing the portion of tiver Islands Parkway
being guaranteed by this Ietter for yow referance( Exhibit" B").

132



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop— Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 2 of 3  

Under the terms of this Letter of Guarantes, the Authoriry shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Impmvement Fund until July$, 2019, or until such time River Islands Parkway through
Stage 2A is fully constructed, inspected and accepted into service by the City, whichever comes
first. If this portion of River IsIands Parkway is not constructed, inspected and accepted into
service by the City by July 8, 2419 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no
later than Septcmber 30, 2019, the Authority will cause one of the following ta occur:

1.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to construct the
River Islands Parkway Improvements. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under applicable law. The Authority and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadway will be canstructed, inspected and operational, no later
than one year from the deadline noted above.

2.       The Authority shalI withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the Improvement
Fund and provide said monies to the City, to be held in a segregated account maintained
by the City, to be used solely for construction or reconstruction of the applicable portion
of River Islands Pazkway. In such event, the City will use reasonable diligence to
complete the construction of the River Islands Parkway. Until the completion af the River
Islands Parkway and return of any excess funds to the Autharity, the City will maintain
records as to the reinvestment of the funds provided to it and will provide the Authority
with its records as to any such inveshnent eamings upon written request of the Authority.
Additionally, in the event that the City advises the Authority in writing that the funds
provided to the City are not sufficient to pay all of the costs of the construction of the
River Islands Pazkway and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shortfall, the
Authority will advance funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in the amount of
the shortfall. In such event, and upon the written request of the Authority, the City will
provide to the Authority a detailed breakdown of the costs of the construction af the
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the two options outlined above.
However, if any River Islands Parkway improvements remain incomplete on September 30,
2020, the Authority shalI immediately resort to Option 2, and shall provide set aside moneis in
the Improvement Fund as requested by the City to allow the City to complete the uncompleted
improvements.

In addition, the commitment for the Authority to set aside these fiznds shall continue until the
Improvements are conshvcted and accepted by the City Council, and the developer provides a
one year maintenance bond in the amount of$526, 400( 10% of the full cost of the

Improvements), or until the Authority provides an acceptable replacement Ietter of guarantee in
that same amount of$526,400 to guarantee the quality and condition of the full Improvements
for one yeaz from the date of acceptance by the City Council.

133



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop— Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 3 of 3

As confirmation af the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guarantee by the

City, please sign and date this letter as shown on the next page. Should you have any questioras
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at{ 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely,

y:
Herb oniz, ] Exe fiv irector

River Islands Pu ic in cing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Engineer' s Estimate of full impmvements from O' Dell Engineering
and Engineer' s Estimate of unfinished improvements from O' Dell

Engineering
Exhibit"": Location of guarantee on River Islands Parkway

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, River Islands Developrnent, LLC

I Accept on Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter ofGuarantee.

Y

Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

9  /
Date

1

134



6MG1N8 CRING

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PR08ABLE COST March 6, 2018

RIVER ISLANbS- S7AGE ZA Job No.: 25503-01

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

CITY OF LATWROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description QuanUty Unit Unit Pcice Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 621, 700 SF   $ 0. 45  $      279, 765. 00

2 T' AC Paving 316,800 SF   $ 3. 54  $    1, 108, 800. 00

3 11" Aggregate Base 316, 800 SF   $  1. 85  $      522, 720. 00

4 12" Lime Treatrnent 316, 800 SF S 1. 10  $      348,484.00

5 Vertical Curb and Gutter ( wlth AB cushlort)       9,600 LF    $ i5.00  $      144, 0.00

6 Type F Median Curb( wlrh A8 cushton)    9, 100 LF    $ 18.00  $      163, 800. 00

7 Roundabout Concrete 2,400 SF   $ 5.00  $ 12, 000. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 77,400 SF   $ 5.00  $      387, 000, 00

9 Handlcap Ramps 20 EA   $     2, 500. 00  $       50, 000. 04

10 Sunrey Monuments 7 EA          300. 00  $ 2, 100. 04

11 6aRicades 1 EA   $     1, 500. 04  $ 1, 500. 04

12 1' raffic Signing B 5triping 4, 710 LF   $ 5.40  $       23, 550. OD

13 Dewatering{ eudger)     4, 710 l. F S 75. 40  $      353, 250. 00

Subtotal Street Work 3, 396, 985. 00

STORM DRAIN

14 Catch Basins( lypa A lnlet)   24 EA S 2,400.00  $       57. 600. 00

15 15" Siorm Drain Pipe 1, 110 LF   $ 34. 00  $       37, 740. 00

16 78" Stortn Drain Pipe 220 LF   $ 4fi,00  $ 1Q, 120. OQ

17 24" Stortri Orain Pipe 780 LF   $ 65. 00 S 50, 700_00

18 Storm Drain Stub& Plug 9 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 9, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 165, 160. 00

SANITARY SEWER

19 24" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 5o LF   $       15o. ao  $ 7, SOO. QO

28 Manholes 24 LF   $     4,000.00  $       96, 000, 00

2i Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer 2 EA   $     3, OOO. QO  $ 6, OOO. QO

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 109, 500. 00

WA7ER SUPPLY

22 8" Water Line( lnduding eU appurtenanc es)  740 LF   $ 32.00  $       23, 680. 00

23 10" Water Une ( inGuding aIi appurtenances) 280 LF   $ 40. 00  $ 11, 200. 04

24 20" Water Line ( fnGudingalf appurtenartces)       4,630 LF   $       1QQ. 00  $      463, 000, 00

25 Fire Nydrants 16 EA   $     4,000. 00  $       64, 000. 04

2B Water Service 6 EA   $     2, 000. 00  $ 12, 000. 00

27 Water Plug 8 Stub 9 5A   $     1, OOO. QO  $ 9, 000. 00

28 Connect to Existing Water 1 EA   $     4,000. 00  $ 4, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 586, 880. 00

6Z00 STONERff GE htALL ROAQ. SUITE 330, PLEASANT N, CA 9J5&8 • P. 9Z5 223. H340 • F: p9. 57t. 2A86

T• 12558. Rivar IilantlslPhas Ot- RWer lel2ntlf ParkwaylYubrd 8 F ctePGofi Eatimeto12018-03- OB fi:v&r W9nd! Pa kway- Staye 2A Casl EstimetOUmprovementa

135



ENC INEERING

Item Descriptlon Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

RECYCLED WATER

29 8" Recycled Water Flushing Line pncluding alJ appurtenances)       80 LF    $ 45. 00 S 3, 800. 00

30 12" Recycled Water Drain Line ( laduding a!! appurienances) 150 LF    $ 55. 00  $ 8, 250. 00

31 16" Recycled Water Line ( lncluding al! appurtenances)    4,650 LF   $ 65.00  $      302, 250. 00

32 Recyaled Water Plug 8 SWb 4 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 4, 000. 00

33 Conned to Existing Recycled Water 1 EA   $     5, 000. 00  $ 5,000. 00

Subtatsl Recycled Water 323, 100. 00

NON- POTA9LE WATER

34 8" Non- Potable Water Line ( includtng an apParterrances)    850 LF    $ 35. 00  $       22, 750. 00

35 16" Non- Potable Water Line ( 1ncludingallappuneaances) 4, 66U LF   $ SD. 00  $      372,800. 00

36 Non- Potable Water Senrice 6 LF    $     2,000. 00  $ S2, fl00. 00

37 Non- Potable Water Plug 8 Stub 7 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 7,fl00, 00

38 Connect to Existing Non- Potable Water 1 E'A S 3, Oa0. 00  $ 3,000. 00

Subtotal Imgation Water 477, 550. 00

LAKE FILL LINE

39 16" Lake Fi Line( tncruding a 1 appurtenances)    4, 820 LF   $ 50. 00  $      241, 000. 00

40 3" Aeration Line( nGuding a J eppudenances)     4,820 LF   $ 4. 00  $       19, 280. 00

41 Lake Fi[ I Stub& Piug 3 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 3, 000. 00

42 Connect to Existing Lake Fill Line 1 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 1, ODO. UO

Subtotal Lake Fill Line 264, 280. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST s 5, 2B3, 435. OQ

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST Snearest Si, 00D) s 5, Z84, 000. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include suroeying, engineering, clearing. grading, erosion control, joint trench, lanascaping,
irrigation, or street trees,

2) Unit pricss are based on estimated current const uction costs and no provisian for inflation is included.

6200 5T8NERIDGE MAIL ROAD, SU{ TE 330. PIEASANSON CA 94588 • P. 925. 2: 3. 83dD • F Z09. 571 Z46b

T:t25503- RlYar Ialands F haaa OS- River la4mdf Parkwa} M1VWrG 8 ce( Cost EaUmele12018 03-08 RWar( sf& nCs Parkway- St pf 2A Coil Fa0ma9oUmprovameM'

136



NGiNE EftiNG

ENGINE R' S BON ESTlMATE June 13. 2018

COST TO COMPLETE Job No: 25503- 01

R1VER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

RIVEft ISLANDS PARKWAY

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item OsscripUon quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Sanitary Sawer& Water Rafsing Iron{ 9556 CompleNarr;  LS   $    54,400. Q0 3 54,400.40

2 Final AC Lift( 90 6 CaanRletian) 3 LS S 246, 604. 00 5 246, 604 00

3 Final Sipninp, Stripiny& Monument( 096 Complehon)     i LS   $    37, 000. 00 S 37, Oa0 UO

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE 5 338,004.00

Notes. 

1 y Estimate tor eosi lo complele based oa mniradoPn aost fo tompiete summary sheet and baekup doeuments far Staga ZA River tsland Parkway
Oell' Oaso prive to Stege 2A128 Levee) dated June i2, 201 B.

r

62U0 STONEnfDGE 6FALL F,QAQ SUITE 330. rL:, SA d70P! Ca 5.758? • ? Q_ 5,_ 3.& d0 • F? Q5 571: 46fi

S QSSO1Rrvm I pmsWhu Ot- Rhai klands PakwaylWart! Q fi roRCwt[ o Carylde140te- p6 17 6itOc 2F1 R P BonO 6tlmahVmprovem nts

137



l

f

PA 1C `

lD
Rit

sc loaL

r'           

y

y 
RIVEFt ISLAIVDS PARKU IAY

a p    

0 1

a J

0

P       
Wa

t

J'    /- r-

H161T 

RiVER I LAIVD PAR AY

STi CaE 

JULY2018

138



i

Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 17

EXHIBIT I

IRREVOCABL OFFER OF DEDICATION OR

BOSCH AVENUE, GARDEN FAI' IS AVENUE Ale1D OBERLIN AVENUE

139



Recording Requested by and
Please Return to:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

This Instrument Benefits City Only.
No Fee Required.

This Space Above for Recorder' s Use Only

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF EASEMENT

FOR PUBLIC ROADWAY PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

TRACT 3999— OFFSITE 1 OADWAY DEDICATION— BOSCH AVENUE, GARDEN

FARMS AVENUE& OBERLIN AVENUE)

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, River
Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company, hereby grant( s) to the CITY
OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation in the County of San Joaquin, State of California, an
easement for ingress, egress and road purposes, and a public utility easement( PiTE), over and
across the hereinafter described real property situated in City of Lathrop and more particularly
described as follows:  

SEE EXHIBIT " A" ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF

This Offer of Dedication is made pursuant to Section 7050 of the Government Code of the State

of California, and may be accepted at any time by the City Engineer of the City of Lathrop. This
Offer of Dedication may be terminated, and right to accept such offer abandoned in the same
manner as is prescribed for the vacation of streets or highways by Part 3 of Division 9, or
Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the Streets and Highways C.ode of the State of California, whichever

is applicable.

The above described easement is to be kept open, clear and free from buildings and structures of

any kind. This Offer of Dedication shall be irrevocable and shall be binding on the Grantor' s
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.   

SIGNATURES:

Signed this day of 2018

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

a California limited liability company

By:
Name:   Susan Dell' Osso

Its:  President

140



Notary Acicnowledgment Required for Each Signatory)
This is to certify that the interest in real property offered herein to the City of Lathrop is hereby
acknowledged by the undersigned, City Clerk, on behalf of the City of Lathrop City Council to
authority conferred by the Lathrop Municipal Code and the grantee( s) consent( s) to the
recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer

TERESA VARGAS, CITY CLERK

By:

Date:    

141



EXHIBIT " A"  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION AND ADJACENT PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

BOSCH AVENUE, GARDEN FARMS AVENUE& OBERLIN AVENUE)

See Attached)

142



PARCr I  PARCr L 9 7

7RAC7 390       7RAC7 390      
PARCcL 97

7R., C7 390c

PARC L 9

7, c7 oa
N

PARCrL l

PARCEL 1
7RA,C7 390a

SEE SHEET 3

PARC L  ] ]       o'       200'     400'

7RAc7 a oa SCALE:  1" = 400

f

PARCEL 2
TRACT 3908

PARC L  ] \     

7RAC7 3908
PARCEL 1

SEE SHEET 2
J

PARCrI 9

TRAC7 3908 PARC L l3

7RAC7 3908 I PARC I 3

TRAC7 3908

LEGEND

ROADWAY EASEMENT LINE

P, RC L 7   _    RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
or uNE/ RicHT oF wnY uNE

7RAc7 goa
PARc L a

o..7RACT 390a P RC I 1    FREROADWAY

RPOSESEDICAl10N
7RAc7 39oa

EXHIBIT A

DRAWN BY JJ
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A VILLAGE BB

TRACT 3999- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT

Fl E:   25502- 3999 FM LATJ. DWG IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION

BOSCH AVENUE, GARDEN FARMS AVENUE AND OBERLIN AVENUE N G 1 N E fZ 1 N G

DAlE: 10/ 09/ 2me SHEEL• 1 OF 4 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25502—RIVER ISLANDS\ DWG\ FlNAL MAPS\ TRACT 3999— VILLAGE BB\ PLAT\ 25502- 3999 FM_ PLAT_ IOD. DWG

143



TRACT 3999 N

VILLAGE BB

0

o
v

O

PARCEL ONE W o'       25'     250'

7. 04t AC
SCALE:  1  = 250

o POB

L6
L5 L4 L3

D

w

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE( I. O. D.)  

w L31    
L38

T L39
LL32

Iw
PARC L  ] 3 M z  ^IW J

7}  

so'       
PARC L 3

c s m c22
7RAC7 390 8

R16 O R17

C20 C21

J       
LEGEND

L35
ROADWAY EASEMENT LINE

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY
LOT LINE/ RIGHT OF WAY UNE

ARC L   I. O. D.   
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICAl10N

7RAC7 908
i FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES

SEE SHEET 4 FOR LINE, RADIAL AND CURVE TABLES.

EXHIBIT A

DRAWN BY: JJ
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A VILLAGE BB

TRACT 3999-OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT

FlIE:   25502- 3999 FM LATJOD.DWG IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION

BOSCH AVENUE, GARDEN FARMS AVENUE AND OBERLIN AVENUE
N G 1 N fZ 7 N G

DAIE 10/ 09/ 2016 9iEE7: 2 4 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25502- RIVER ISLANDS\ DWG\ FINAL MAPS\ TRACT 3999- VILLAGE BB\ PLAT\ 25502- 3999 FM_ PLAT_ IOD. DWG

144



C10 R10

Ri2  .'`
1 s

R9
LEGEND

PARC L       R13  ,   

R11

c'.,     

ROADWAY EASEMENT LINE

7 c7 3 oa
R       R8

LOT LINE/ RIGHT OF WAY LINE

ca   

R6 I. O. D.   
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICAl10N

FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES

PARC I j 
G1

7RAC7 390       
gOSCH AVENUE( I. O. D.) 

1/

R5

ti L13

L20 L11
GO

R4
1

L22 p 6'O.

C13 8

R14 L9

G C14

ti 1

PARCEL ONEs

920 s   6
R1b

6

7. 04t AC TRACT 3999

A
c 5 VILLAGE BB

99 s

o

a
GARDEN FARMS J     

a'   AVENUE( I. O. D.)            
C4

R3
R2

N

w N
o\  c2 w

R1

PARC I 9
PARCr I  ]? 

u'

7RAc7 a9oa 7RAC7 390    s
L5      

a    —  —
PARC L  ] 

L31
L3

0'       125'     250'

SCALE:  1
p = 

250
SEE SHEET 4 FOR IJNE, RADIAL AND CURVE TABLES.     7RAc7 s oa

2'     EXHIBIT A

or wr+ er: , u
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A VILLAGE BB

TRACT 3999- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT

FlLE:   25502- 3999 FM u1TJOD.DHfG IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION

BOSCH AVENUE, GARDEN FARMS AVENUE AND OBERLIN AVENUE N G 1 N fZ 1 N G

DAiE 10/ 09/ 2018 SHEE7: 3 4 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOApUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25502- RIVER ISLANDS\ DWG\ FINAL MAPS\ TRACT 3999- VILLAGE BB\ PLAT\ 25502- 3999 FM_ PLAT_ IOD. DWG

145



LINE TABLE LJNE TABLE CURVE TABLE.      RADIAL TABLE

LINE DIRECTION LENGTH LINE DIRECTION LENGTH CURVE RADIUS DELTA LENGTH LINE DIREC110N

L1 N45' 00 00" E 35. 36' L23 N60' 28 00" E 214. 00'  C1 710. 00 27' 49 32"   344. 8Y R1 N27' 49' 32" E

L2 EAST 1043. 40       L24 N60' 28'00" E 85.55'  C2 47. 00 49' S7 55°   40. 99 R2 N77' 47 27" E

L3 N42' 26' 11" W 36. 90 L25 N29' 32' 00° W 74.00'  C3 65. 00 90' 23 24"   102. 54 R3 N1235' 57" W

L4 N85' 47 09" E 60. 81' .      L26 N60' 28' 00° E 85. 55  C4 47. 00 46' 34 03°   38. 20' R4 N36' 15' 38" W

L5 N4733 49° E 33. 74 L27 N60' 28' 00" E 214. 00'  C5 770. 00 26' 29 54°   356. 11 R5 N3939 32° W

L6       EAST 261. 96       L28 N74' 32' 00° W 35.36'  C6  '  1830. 00 6' 43 39"   214.87 R6 N47' 0522° W

U:   N56' 01' S4 W 233. 44'       L29 N29' 32' 00° W 175. 32'  C7 1830. 00 7' 25' 50"   237. 33' R7 N40' 29' 42" E

L8 N2932' 00" W 175. 32'       L30 N56' 01' 54" W 321. 38'  C8 58. 00 87' 35' 04°   88. 66' RS N40' 27' 37" E

L9 N15' 28' 00" E 35. 36' L31 EAST 252. 09'  C9 52. 00 92' 27' 01"   83. 91' R9 N47' 05' 22 W

L10 N60' 28' 00" E 141. 18' L32 N42' 26' 11" W 36. 90'  C10 52. 00 92' 27' 01"   83. 91' R10 N47' 05' 22" W

L11 N82' 06 37" W 34. 83' L33 N5' 07 38° E 391. 38  C11 58: 00 8735 04°   88. 66' R11 N45' 21 39° E

L12 N52' 02' 25° E 60. 00' L34 N5' 07' 38" E 89. 24'  C12 1770. 00 17' 33' 22"   542. 35'       R12 N45' 19' 34" E

L13 N6' 11' 27" E 34. 83' L35 N84' 52' 22° W 74.00'  C13 87. 00 15' 12' 13"   23. 09' R13 N47' 05' 22" W

L14 N42' S4' 38" E 60. 62' L36 N5' 07' 38° E 89. 24'  C14 113. 00 15' 12' 13'   29. 98' R14 N14' 19'.47' W

L15 N4138' 18" E 60. 01' L37 N5' 07' 38" E 401. 25' C15   113. 00 15' 12 13°   29. 98' R15 N44' 44' 13" W

L16 N47' 05 22° W 60. 00' L38 N47' 33 49" E 33J4  C16 87. 00 1512' 13"   23. 09 R16 N69' 40 09" W

L17.   N44' 10' 58" E 60. 01' L39 EAST 1053. 27' C17,    830. 00 26' 29' 54"  383. 86'       R17 N79' 55' 25° E  

L18 N42' S4' 38" E 60. 62' L40 N45' 00' OOpW 35. 36'  C18 770. 00 33' 58' 06  456. 50'

U9 N60' 28' 00" E 141. 18' L41 NORTH 110. 00  C19 87. 00 15' 12' 13"   23. 09'

L20 N7432' 00" W 35. 36'       C20 113. 00 15' 12' 13°   29. 98'

L21 N60' 28' 00° E 60. 00'       C21 113. 00 15' 12' 13'   29. 98'  

L22 N15'28'00" E 35. 36       C22 87. 00 15' 12 13"   23. 09'

NA EXHIBIT A

oRA, BY: ,    
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A VILLAGE BB

TRACT 3999- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT

FllE 25502- 3999 Fh1 lATJOD. DwG IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION

BOSCH AVENUE, GARDEN FARMS AVENUE AND OBERLIN AVENUE E N G 1 N fZ 1 N G

DAIE 10/ 09/ 2018 91EET: 4 OF 4 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25502- RIVER ISLANDS\ DWG\ FINAL MAPS\ TRACT 3999- VILLAGE BB\ PLAT\ 25502- 3999 FM_ PLAT_ IOD. DWG

146



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3999 Village" BB"

Page 18 of 18

EXHI IT J

UTILITY CAPACITY GiJARANTEES

In accordance with the First Amendment to the 2003 Amended and Restated Development

Agreement by and Between the City of Lathrop and Califia, LLC, (" DA"), SUBDIVIDER shall

provide the following guarantees for wastewater treatment and recycled water capacity to utilize
an additional 120, 000 gallons per day of treatment capacity from the Lathrop Consolidated
Treatment Facility(" CTF") on an interim basis. As a requirement for the additional 120, 000 gpd

of capacity to be utilized, the following conditions were to be satisfied prior to April 1, 2019:

1.       Have fully constructed, inspected and dedicated to the City the following improvements:
The Paradise Road Sprayfield Expansion( also known as " Sprayfield A34") to

accommodate 250, 000 gpd of treatment capacity
Recycled Water Pipeline extensions to the Sprayfield Expansion as necessary

2. Provide any outstanding funding for RWQCB permits and/ or authorizations to be
completed by the City to allow use of Sprayfield A34.

3. Implement terms and conditions of the Second Amendment to the Sprayfield Lease

Agreement between Califia, LLC and the City, including recordation of the Second
Memorandum of Lease with Option to Purchase.

With the appropriate guarantees in place, SUBDIVIDER shall be allocated and allowed to use

the first 120, 000 gpd of the 650, 000 gpd constructed at the CTF with SUBDIVIDER funding.

147



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS C`

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)      

November 19, 2018

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103

Stockton, CA 95219

Attn:  Karen Sayles

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 3999; Escrow No. 1614020263

Dear Karen:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company(" R/ D"), and the City of
Lathrop (" Cit}') in connection with the above- referenced escrow (" Escrov'). The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the

Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RID as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 31, 2018, at the time
designated in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each a " Closing"). If the Final Map has not been recorded by June 30, 2019, ORTC will

return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" Official Records").

B. 1.  One original Final Map for Tract 3999, executed and
acknowledged by the City.

6.2.  One original Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portions of Garden

Farms Avenue, Bosch Avenue and Oberlin Avenue.

The documents listed in Items B. 1 and 6.2 above are referred to as the "Recordation
Documents." The Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the order referred to

above.  The date on which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the Official

Records is the Recordation Date.

1

148



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FIMAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the

Recordation Documents, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in
accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RID and City (" Settlement Statemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RID.

C. 1 Funds to be wire,transferred directly to the entity set forth below,
immediately upon recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer
instructions for each entity are set forth below:

The amount of$ 125,470. 04, payable to the City pursuant to that certain
Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop, as amended

Sierra Club Agreemenf'), constituting the amount of$ 3,076 multiplied by
40. 79 acres ( or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to
the City upon recordation of the Final Map.  The City' s wire instructions are set
forth below.  

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " Closing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time(s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1. You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellossoCa riverislands. com), Debbie Belmar

dbelmar riverislands. com), Stephen Salvatore ( ssalvatoreCa ci. lathrop. ca. us), Salvador

Navarrete ( snavarrete( a ci. lathrop. ca. us), Cari James ( ciames( a ci. lathrop. ca. us) and Glenn

Gebhardt( qqebhardt(c ci. lathrop.ca. us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is
accurate and acceptable.

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions.

D. 3. The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all
legal descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached.

D. 4. You are prepared to recortl the Recordation Documents, as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete

the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions.

D. 5. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by

2

149



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie. Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation
Documents and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinp Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded.

E. 2.  Record the Recordation Documents in the Official Records.

E.3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E.4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following
entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

l

E. 5.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov. org) of the completion of the Transaction.

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to:  ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330;
and ( 2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330:

A)   A certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

B)  A certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.
Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow

agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

r
3

150



JOIIdT E CROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORD TIOId OF FINi4L MAPS

RIVEI ISLi4NDS i4T LATHROP)

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Date Susan Dell' Osso Date

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Development, LLC

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and the City is hereby
acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed

in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions. The undersigned represents and

warrants to RID and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

4

151



152



ITEM 4. 11

CYTY Mi4NAGER' REPORT

iil0\/ EMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       APPROV L OF FId11AL MAP AIVD SUBDI\/ ISIO I

IMPRO/ EWIEIeIT 4GREEMENT ( SIA) FOR 103 LOTS IN

TRACT 4001 VILLAGE A" WITHIN LAICESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISL 4ND

RECONIMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4001
Village   " AA°'   within the Lakeside East District,

Totaling 103 Single- Family Lots,   Common llse

Agreerr ent with Island Reclarv ation District 2062 for

a Portion of Riverfront Drive,     Subclivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islancls

Developrnent,    LLC,    and Irrevocable Offer of

Dedication for Riverfront Drive and Bosch venue

SUMMQ RY:

On June 1, 2015, the City approved an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map Tract
3694  ( VTM 3694),  Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop that revised conditions of
approval for new development within Phase 1. On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning
Commission approved a Neighborhood Design Plan and Architectural Guidelines, and

Design Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside East District ( also known as " Stage 2A")

within Phase 1.

This proposed Final Map Tract 4001 for Anthem United Homes ( Builder) will be the

first tract map within the Village AA" area. The builder is proposing one- hundred
three ( 103) 50' x 100' single- family lots. A vicinity map is included as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 4001,
Village AA" within the Lakeside East District, totaling 103 single- family lots, Common
Use Agreement with,  Island Reclamation District 2062 for a portion of Riverfront

Drive,  Subdivision Improvement Agreement  ( Attachment C)  with River Islands

Development, LLC, and Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Riverfront Drive and Bosch

Avenue.

BA ClCG IZO U N D:

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved VTM 3694 and amended VTM 3694 on
June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. Tract 4001 as proposed by River
Islands Development, LLC ( RID), as the subdivider, complies with the most current

conditions of approval.

The land for Tract 4001 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 ( Phase 1)

first approved by Council on March 27, 2007, and amended on June 1, 2015, with

updated conditions of approval.

153



CITY Me4N 4GER' S REPOFtY Page 

NOVENIBER 19, 2018, CYT( COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETINC

FINAL MAP FOIa TRACT 4001 / ILLAGE A" TOTALIfVG 103 SINGLE- FAMILIr

LOTS 4ND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC

On August 25,  2016,  the City Community Development Department approved a
Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the Stage 2A sub- planning area.
This action allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for VTM 3694 at RID' s

request.

On July 9, 2018, the City Council approved Tract 3908, a large lot final map consistent
with conditions of approval for VTM 3694.  This large lot final map creates large
blocks"  of land that are consistent with future proposed small lot final maps

associated with the, Lakeside East planning District. This provides RID the ability to
process small lot final maps in an orderly fashion where one small map does not
depend on another. The approval of Tract 3908 also required the posting of security
for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B
boundary which provides the primary access from the existing River Islands

development to Village AA and the rest of the Stage 2A sub- planning area.

On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning Commission approved a Neighborhood Design
Plan and Architectural Guidelines, and. Design Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside

East District ( also known as Stage 2A") within Phase 1.   While the NDP contains

conceptual guidance on parks within Lakeside East, a Master Parks Plan amendment

that includes revisions to parks and open space to the Stage 2A area is pending
Planning Commission action.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off- site and on- site

improvements. As a result, the SIA for Tract 4001 requires that security ( bonds, cash
or equivalent) are posted to guarantee unfinished infrastructure within Village AA."

As a result, a performance bond for $ 586, 362 has been posted as well as a labor and
materials bond for $293, 181 has also been posted for performance bonds as security
for all unfinished improvements within Village " AA."

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements ( Off- site Agreement") that was first approved by
the City on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off- site Agreement is still

valid for certain improvements. Tract 4001 will not trigger any additional off- site
improvements and the Off- site Agreement will apply to Tract 4001 as it has to all
previous final maps in River Islands with no additional security for off- site

improvements. Acceptance of all public improvements will be processed by staff at a
later date when the unfinished improvements are complete. At that time, RID will be
required to post one ( 1) year maintenance bonds as a warranty for the completed
infrastructure.

As with all new development within Phase 1 of River Islands, the villages within

Stage 2A are required to be annexed to the three different Community Facilities
Districts ( CFD' s) for maintenance purposes in accordance with the Third Amendment
to the River Islands Development Agreement.  The CFDs are for the City, RD 2062
and River Islands Public Financing Authority   ( RIPFA)   respectively,   and the

annexations for Villages U, V, T, AA, BB and Y recorded on November 2, 2018.

154



CITI M NAGER' S REPORT Page 3

IvlOi/ EMBEFt 19, 2018, CITY COUNCYL SPECIAL MEETING

FIINAL NIAP FOIt TRACT 4001 VILL GE ° A/" TOTALIRIG 103 SINCLE- FAMIL.Y

LOTS AND A SI il1iITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMEfd7', LLC

To provide for secondary access to Village " AA," Irrevocable Offers of Dedication

IOD)  will be necessary for Riverfront Drive and Bosch Avenue.   These IODs are

attached as Exhibit I of the SIA, included as Attachment C.

There is also a need for a Common Use Agreement  ( CUA)  between City and
Reclamation District No. 2062 ( RD 2062), since a small portion of Riverfront Drive

shares an area with the easements recorded in favor of RD 2062 for the Stage 2A

levee system.   There is also an RD 2062 lake fill pipeline that will be located in

Riverfront Drive as well. The CUA ( included as Attachment E) addresses the terms

and conditions to which RD 2062 can install, operate and maintain its facilities, which

protects the City' s street and other utilities that are located in Riverfront Drive.

Finally, before Final Map Tract 4001 is recorded, RID must also satisfy the Escrow
Instructions  ( Attachment D)  that guarantee all fees required in the Sierra Club

Agreement are paid.

REASON FOR RECON9NiEIVDAI' ION:

The applicant has completed most of street and utility improvements within Village
AA" with some minor improvements left remaining. RID has posted security with the

City for the unfinished improvements as required by the SIA. RID shall also provide
a 10%  maintenance bond to guarantee the full improvements  ( completed and

uncompleted) for one year once the striping is completed.  Prior to acceptance of

these improvements, RID has provided the tract map, the tract improvement plans,
all required documents and all fees for Tract 4001.

Following is a summary of documents and fees related to this subdivision:

Docurnents tatus

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Completed

Miscellaneous Im rovements rovided with Tract 4001

4.      Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted

Landscaping and Miscellaneous Improvements provided Completed

with Tract 4001

5.     Street Improvement, Landscape Plans Completed

6.      Street Light, Joint Trench Plans Completed

7.      Geotechnical Report Completed

8.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks
Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

155



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 4001 VILLAGE AA" TOTALING 103 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

9.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency
Maintenance

10.   Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

11.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

12.    Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

13.    Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

14.     Escrow Instructions Completed

Annexed with FM

15.   Lathrop Community Facilities District ( CFD' s)      3989 on October

10, 2018

16.    Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Riverfront Drive and Approval Pending
Bosch Avenue with this item

17.    Common Use Agreement between City and RD 2062 Approval Pending
for im rovements on Riverfront Drive with this item

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off- site improvements to serve this Tract 4001 have already been
completed including construction of levees,   participation in construction of a

Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and related storage

ponds and sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility
infrastructure to serve the proposed Tract. Additional off- site improvements that are

required to serve this Final Map are detailed in the Off- site Agreement approved by
the City Council in 2014.

Before the Final Maps are recorded, RID must also satisfy the Escrow Instructions
Attachment D) that guarantee all required payments to the Sierra Club are made

under the terms of the 3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement.

156



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 5

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 4001 VILLAGE AA" TOTALING 103 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

BUDGET IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City. All City costs are covered by development fees,
and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s
for maintenance.  RID is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff time
required to process their request.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4001 Village "AA" within the Lakeside
East District, Totaling 103 Single- Family Lots, Common Use Agreement with

Island Reclamation District 2062 for Portion of Riverfront Drive, Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development,   LLC,   and

Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Rivertront Drive and Bosch Avenue

B. Village " AA" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development,   LLC,   a California limited liability company,   for

Tract 4001,   Village   AA"   ( Includes Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for

Riverfront Drive and Bosch Avenue)

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 4001 Village " AA"

E.       Common Use Agreement for Riverfront Drive

157



CITY M 4folAGEl2' S REPORT Page 6

NOi/ EMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETINC

FIN/ 4L M P FOR TItACT 4001 VILLAGE AA" TOTALIIVC 103 SINGLE- F' MILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RI\/ ER ISLAMDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

APPROV LS

Glenn Gebhardt Da

City E gine

Ir l`

Cari Jame Date

Finance Di ct r

l S-
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

F' 1

St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

158



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 4001 VILLAGE AA" WITHIN THE

LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT, TOTALING 103 SINGLE- FAMILY LOTS, COMMON
USE AGREEMENT WITH ISLAND RECLAMATION- DISTRICT 2062 FOR A

PORTION OF RIVERFRONT DRIVE, SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT

AGREEMENT WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC, IRREVOCABLE

OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR RIVERFRONT DRIVE AND BOSCH AVENUE

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map No.  3694  ( VTM 3694)  with Conditions of Approval for a residential and

commercial development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan
WLSP) and the River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREAS,   on August 25,   2016,   the City Community Development

Department approved a Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the
Stage 2A sub- planning area that allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for
VTM 3694 and the approval final maps within Stage 2A; and

WHEREAS, Tract 4001, the proposed subdivision, is part of the Lakeside East

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 103 lots covered by
VTM 3694; and

WHEREAS,  in its review of Tract 4001,  the Stewart Tract Design Review

Committee recommended approval of Tract 4001 on October 11, 2018; and

WHEREAS,  River . Islands Development,  LLC  ( RID),  has completed or has

guaranteed completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 4001, as identified
on the approved improvement plans, and has completed or guaranteed completion
of all required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and RID,
and provision of security by RID for unfinished and deferred improvements,  are

required prior to final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section
16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure the RID obligation to maintain

all improvements and repair or correct any defective work; and

WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

159



WHE tEi4S,  off-site improvements necessary for access to Village AA and
Tract 4001 were guaranteed with performance and labor and materials bonds posted

by RID; and

VI/ HERE S,  City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of
VTM 3694 required for approval of Final Map 4001 have been met, including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Off-Site Agreement; and

WHEREA, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract 4001
is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM 3694,  is technically correct, and

complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS, RID will satisfy all escrow requirements prior to recordation of the
Final Map for Tract 4001; and

WHEt EAS,  secondary access to Tract 4001 and Village AA is necessary
through Riverfront Drive and Bosch Avenue, and an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication

IOD") is necessary to provide this access, with the IOD; and

WHEREAS, a Common Use Agreement (" CUA") is necessary between the City
and Island Reclamation District 2062  ( RD 2062")  for improvements owned and

operated by RD 2062 that transverse City right of way of Riverfront Drive, dedicated
with the Final Map for Tract 4001; and

WFiEREAS, the CFDs ( Villages U, V, T, AA, BB and Y) annexations for the City,
RD 2062 and River Islands Public Financing Authority ( RIPFA) respectively, and the
recorded on November 2, 2018; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, E IT 1tESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the following actions:

1.  That the Final Map for Tract 4001 Villages  ' AA"  is hereby approved as
submitted as part of the public record with the San Joaquin County
Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk Office, the file executed copy will be filed with
the City Clerk.    

2.  That the City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute and file with
the City Clerk a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands
Development,  LLC,  and Common Use Agreement with Island Reclamation

District 2062 for a Portion of Riverfront Drive,  and Irrevocable Offer of

Dedication for Garden Farms Avenue, Bosch Avenue, and Oberlin Avenue in

substantially the form as attached to the November 19, 2018 staff report.

160



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 19tn
day of November, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES: 

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dh aliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FO M:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

i

161



i

ATTACHMENT B

N

O

o`op/ F9   .

i 1

T      i      \

9i

F9F9p    \.
Q\       `    

JP      9i
F

i 

i

04.

Q'
G

r

G

VI A a      JQ

5

j
RIVEqFqp, n.ORIVE    ,     \

i o o

VILLAGE AA
W U

U

m

o

JP' 

M

TAVENUE
m Q\

Y  /(    
CUTRIGuERIA. NE i ili'Al..' Y E.? iJ,.7",.,       `*`'

y
P 1 i

l  "..,  ? 

t

r\

t„_ .,    \ ,''

o MU[ HO 4          *\;       o C r r"I RNE f t i'.je`; T: a '
p9 ldt7NL1! UND DPt1 E              /

T

l I
j,     f,,+.,r ye`

j     r-----------_ f/       ` f,="     -1
m

IAICE 10 i

IJ

VILLAGE BB i"  

BLUE HEFON DRNE BLUE HERON COURT LAKE 9

orI
rll

U'   

w.__,

GAFIOEN FAqMS AVENUE GAROcN FAR4S F'rEI. UE

L  --
V LLAG CC w    - - -   _;-;-^,.: I:      ,.._. _._ l__ l___.

rr, urnas; aiv-
o n-,     L-`:a  ;-

1

PROPOSmC0A61UFUIYPARK o I.  .
J

VILLAGE AA
VICNITY MAP

y

FRSTqF RNEFi ISLANDS PAFiKWAY

NOVEMBER ZO V

162



I'ACI ME° a'

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS (LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT)—TRACT 4001, VILLAGE AA"

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC,

A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

RECITALS

This Agreement is made arid entered into this
19th

day ofNovember, 2018, by and between
the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter" CITY"),

and River Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company  ( hereinafter

SUBDIVIDER").

B.       At its meeting on May 15, 2017, CITY approved the temporary closure of Cohen and
Paradise Roads associated with construction and grading activities in Stage 2 of River Islands.
This approval requires SUBDIVIDER to . construct a paved public roadway to connect any
remaining gaps between the Paradise Road and Stewart Road intersection and the Somerston
Parkway/River Islands Parkway intersection by August 1, 2020. As a result, previously provided
security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from the River Islands Public Financing Authority

RII'FA") has guaranteed the replacement of Cohen Road and Paradise Road with a set aside of

bond proceeds ( Exhibit G) in the amount of$543, 600, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER

does not meet the deadline ofAugust 1, 2020. Further, the amount of set aside bond proceeds shall

be reduced by the City Engineer as River Islands Parkway is extended to replace these removed
roadways. The closed portion of Stewart Road is not anticipated to be replaced,,but it remains for

now as legal access to parcels fronting Stewart Road and as emergency access. The security
referenced in this recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with
this access until it is no longer necessary.

C.       At its meeting on July 9, 2018, CITY approved the Tract 3908 large lot final map which
includes the Village " AA" area within Stage 2A of River Islands.  The approval of Tract 3908

required security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage
2B boundary. As a result, previously proyided security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from
the River Islands Public Financing Authority(" RIPFA") has guaranteed the construction of River

Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary with a set aside ofbond proceeds
Exhibit H) in the amount of$ 450, 000, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER does not meet

a September 30, 2019, deadline or as may be extended by CITY. The security referenced in this
recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with it until River
Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is fully constructed and accepted
into use by CITY.

163



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 2 of 18

D.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and

CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop;  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),      

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 4001. However, SUBDIVIDER

has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tract

4001 ( Village " AA") located within the Lakeside East District of River Islands Phase 1, which

also includes major streets necessary to access the site. The unfinished portion of improvements
total $ 586, 362 ($ 488, 635 plus a 20% contingency) and both performance and labor and materials
security is required by the Lathrop Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act will be
posted as outlined in this Tract 4001 ( Village" AA") Subdivision Improvement Agreement.

E.       SUBDIVIDER has completed almost the entirety of the joint trench improvements for
Tract 4001 anii as noted in Recital D security shall be required for the unfinished portion of these
improvements along with other required infrastructure associated with Tract 4001 and Village
AA" overall. Improvement plans and street light plans prepared by Power Systems Design, Inc.,

have already been approved by CITY. The street, sidewalk, underground utility, storm drainage,
street light,  and joint trench improvements  ( hereinafter  " Improvements")  are substantially

completed and minor improvements not yet constructed as part of the required infrastructure for

Tract 4001 are required security as outlined in this Agreement.

F.       Access to Tract 4001 and Village " AA" requires an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for

Easement for Roadway Purposes (" IOD") for Riverfront Drive and Bosch Avenue that is not

included for dedication with the recordation of Tract 4001. Therefore, this IOD shall be required

in addition to the dedications of right of way required with the approval of the final map for Tract
4001 and shall be recorded concurrently with the final map. This IOD is included Exhibit H to this
Agreement.

G.       Since Village  " AA"  contains a public street that includes improvements of Island

Reclamation District 2062  (" RD 2062"),  including levee improvements,  a Common Use

Agreement (" CUA") between CITY and RD 2062 is required to delineate the rights and

obligations of these agencies regarding CITY' s public street and RD 2062' s improvements. The
CUA is included and incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit J.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of CITY' s pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' s
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the Lakeside East neighborhood,

to the limits identified on EZcliibit A including the public landscaping, streetlight, and joint trench
improvements.     

164



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 3 of 18

All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City Engineer, in a
good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above- referenced improvement plans and

specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of CITY' s Department of Public

Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop, and the California Subdivision Map
Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements,. including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to December 1, 2019.

3. CITY, or its agent( s), shall at any time during the progress of the Improvements have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Ixnprovements. CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to

ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5.       CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Ixnprovements shall be constructed in

compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements. As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a
Maintenance Bond in the amount of $ 236,334, equal to 10% of the estimated cost of the

Improvements for the Village" AA" entire area($ 2, 363, 335) as included in the Engineer' s estimate

attached to this Agreement as Exhibit F, to insure SUBDIVIDER' s repair and maintenance of the

Improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Maintenance Bond shall be

released at the end of the one- year guarantee period provided no claims against it are then

outstanding. 

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recitals B and C are required

to provide access and to Tract 4001 and are associated with adjacent tracts as otherwise described

in this Agreement, as well as the" Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public

Streets and Improvements (" 2013 Agreement"), approved by CITY on September 30, 2013, the
security required by the 2013 Agreement shall remain in place for the following:

Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/ Cohen and Paradise Roads within the limits of

Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit " D" and rehabilitation is guaranteed by
a performance bond. Full improvement and acceptance of these streets shall be completed

prior to release of security previously posted by SUBDNIDER.

165



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 4 of 18

8.       If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily, or

unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair, replace, or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconsfruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein
as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstruction incurred by
CITY.  Once action is taken by CITY to complete, repair,  replace,  and/or reconstruct the
Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY, even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials and repair
and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All
administrative costs, including reason able attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499.4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER. In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an
action to compel perfortnance of this Agreement or to recover costs of completing such
improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit, and all other
expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

9.       Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to only
post Performance or Labor &  Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished improvements

associated with Tract 4001 and Tract 3992 as included and described in E ibit E of this

Agreement.  The amount of the security shall be equal to a performance bond equal to 120% of

the amount of unfinished improvements as shown in Exhibit E ($ 488, 635 X 120% _ $ 586, 362 —

performance bond amount) as indicated in Recital D. The corresponding labor and materials bond
amount shall be 50% of the performance bond amount ($ 586,362 X 50% _ $ 293, 181) also as

indicated in Recital D.   Further,  SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CITY' s insurance
requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

10.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications which are a part of this Agreement
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof. The above- referenced sureties
hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER,
and/ or SUBDNIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

166



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA.

Page 5 of 18

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity, or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or
property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

13.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers,. agents, and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any

liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' s contractors or subcontractors. SUBDNIDER shall, at its own cost and
expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit, or legal proceedings resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' s
performance or non-performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement or from the

negligent act or omission of itself, its agents, contractors, representatives, servants, or employees.

The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section is not
conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied, or approved
any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any such
indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters. CITY does not and shall
not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold
harmless agreement because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages ofevery kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied, or approved of plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors
are, or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of

SUBDIVIDER' s obligations under this Agreement.

15.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements and maintaining safety at the
project site. SUBDIVIDER' s obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied until

after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have. been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs) to finance maintenance and improvements. CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreerrient to be entered into by CITY and SUBDIVIDER providing
that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.

SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

167



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 6 of 18

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two

weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.

If such consent is giveri, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER; and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall bejointly and severally liable hereunder.

19.      SUBDIVIDER shall, at SUBDIVIDER' s expense, obtain and maintain all necessary

permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement of

Improvement construction, SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.

SUBDNIDER shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 4001 and Tract 4002.

21.  .   The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b. Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement. 

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d.       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

168



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 7 of 18

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain

in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.

In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to be performed falls
on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance
shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue. In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A F1NAL MAP - TRACT 4001

EXHIBIT B TRACT 4001 AND VILLAGE " AA" AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  COHEN/ PARADISE/ STEWART REHABILITATION MAP    

EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT F:   VILLAGE " AA" IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT G:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE - 1NTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT H:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE — RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT I:    IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION- RIVERFRONT DRNE& BOSCH

AVENUE

EXHIBIT J:    COMMON USE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND RD 2062—

RIVERFRONT DRIVE

l

169



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 8 of 18

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this 19th day of
November, 2018, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk Gity Manager

APPROVED AS TO FO    I

BY: 1/
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso Date

President

SUBDIVIDER"

170



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 9 of 18

EXHIBIT A

FINAL MAP- TRACT 4001

171



TRACT OO 1
R FR  : . i

1'       

S

LAiHROP RO

OWNER' S STATEMENT RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A o  EN ;       ROJECT SITE
THE UN ERSICNEU, OES HEREBY SiATE THAT iHEY ARE THE ORNERS OF ALL RfE LAND ELINEAlEO ANO V I L LA G E AA

I;-^'
oS'.

p.     R"    '- 

SqN    
j LOIlISE AVE

EMBRACEO Wi7HIN THE EXiERIOR BOUNOARY L1NE OF THE HEREIN EMBOOIED FINAL MAP ENTIREO, iRACi 4001,  p     -
RIYER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A, HLLACE AA', CITY OF LAiHROP, CAl1FOftNIA, CONSISTINC OF FlF7EEN( 15) SHEETS, A PORTION Of RANCHO El PESCADERO, BEING QP     

s       _'"'

a s%/-zAND WE HEREBY CONSENT TO 1HE PREPARAiION AND FlLING OF 1HIS FINAL A AP IN THE OFFICE OF 7HE
A SUBOIN ION OF PARCEL 1 OF iRACT 3908( 43 MhP 52),  

p ry  ,.   '   € c  ';
COUNTY RECOROER OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CAUFORNIA.  

CITY OG LA7HROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY. CALIFORNIA 9?
T 

I 1J '
4      

OCTOBER 2018 4Oi,     RD ,`- F. f, y:     :'     .
THE UN ERSIGNED DOES HEREBY DEOICAiE AN EASEIIENT TO THE CITY 0( LATHROP FOR PUBLIC i      ..

RICHT- OF- WAY PURPOSES, 7HOSE PORTIONS OF SAID LANDS DE9CNAlED ON SAI MAP AS IIOZART AVENIIE,   9;;'  '
RIVERFRONi DRIVE, S7RAU55 COURT, CHOPIN COURT, BACH DRIVE, AND BERNS/ EIN AVENUE, AS SHORN ON Gi    -' , ZQ
TMIS FINAL IAAP.       n;      OP...

y,-

a,a

4`'
pP R     .\ A

THE UN ERSIGNED DOES HEREBY DEOICATE TO THE CITY OF LAiMROP A NON- E% CLUSIVE EASEIAENT TOCEfHER N G 1 N E R l N G i'
YAhi THE RIGHT TO CONSIRUCT, RECONSTRUCT, REPAIR AN AIAINTAIN, NON- POTABLE WAiERLINE FACNPES a p

QP\

ESIGNAIEDAASUWAIERLINE EASEIAENY( W NE)
UNDER 1NE SiRIPS OF LANO AS SHOWN ON h11S FlNAL IAAP

0`•. i.
THE UNOERSIGNED DOES HEREBY OEDICATE TO THE CIIY OF LATHROP A NOM- EXCLUSNE EASEMENT 1

FOR THE RIGMT OF PUBUC INGRESS AND ECRE55 UPON, OVER AN UN ER THE STRIPS OF LAND
205

4,'     I
AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP DESIGNATED AS" P. A. E."( PUBUC ACCESS EASEMENT). ZP

THE UNOERSICNEO DOES HEREBY DE ICATE TO THE CIiY OF LAIHROP A NON- E% CLUSIVE EASEF7ENT i0GE7HER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER S) 
GRANT LINE_ RD_

1N1H THE RICHT TO CONSIRUCT, RECONSTRI1CT, REPAIR AND MAINTAIN, POLES, 1NRE5, CABLES, PIPES, AND
5

OCONDUITS ANO iHEIR APPURiENANCES UPON, OVER ANO UNOER 7HE S1RIP5 OF LANO AS SHOWN ON iH15

FlNAL MAP OESIGNATEO AS' P. U. E.'( PUBIIC UPLITY EASE11ENi).   A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFlCER COMPIEiING THIS CERPFlCAiE VERIFlES ONLY THE IOENTITY
VICINITY MAPOG THE INDINOIIAL WHO 9CNED 7HE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFlCAIE IS ATiACHED. AND

TNE UNOERSIGNEO OOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO iHE CITY OF LATHROP, M FEE, PARCELS A AND C fOR PARK           NOT THE iRUiNNLNE55, ACLURALY, OR VAIJOItt OF THAi OOCUMENT NOT TO SCALE

PURPOSES, INCIUDING PUBLIC UTILIPES, STORIA ORAIN FAqIITIES, SANIiARY SEWER FACILIi1E5, ANU

APPURIENANCES THERETO, FOR THE BENEFlT OF THE PUBLIC, AS SMOWN ON hil5 FINAL AfAP. 
STAIE OF CALIFORNIA

TNE UNOERSIGNEO UOES HEREBY DEOICATE TO THE CIiY OF AiHROP, M FEE, PARCEL B FOR PURPOSES OF
COUNTY OF SAN JOAOUIN

CITY CLERK' S STATEMENT
OPEN SPACE, INCLUDINC PUBLIC UiWPES, AND APPURTENANCES THFRETO, FOR RiE BENEFIT 0 7HE PUBl1C, ry 201_ BEFORE ME,
AS SHOWN ON 7HIS FINAL MAP.   

q NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEAREO,    WHO PROVEO TO I, IERESA VARCAS, Cltt CIERK ANO QERK OF 7HE qTY COIINCIL Of THE CITY Of LATHROP, STAIE OF

THE UNDERSILNEO OOES MEREBY DEOICAIE TO THE Cltt OF LATHROP, W FEE, PARCELS D AND E FOR
E ON THE BASIS OF SAPSFACTORY ENUENCE TO BE 7HE PERSON( S) WHOSE NAIAE( 5) IS/ ARE SI185CRIBEO TO CALIFOftNIA, 0 HEREBY STATE 7HAT TNE HEREM EMBOOIE IAAP ENiI1LED iRACT 4001, RIVER ISLAN S, 

PURPOSES OG OPEN SPACE. AND APPl1RTENANCES MERETO, FOR THE BENEFli OF 7HE PU81JC, AS SHOriN ON 7NE WiiHIN INSIRUMENi, AND ACKNOWLE GED TO ME THAT HE/ SHE/ THEY E% ECUTEO 7HE SANE IN HIS/ HER/ 1HEIR SiAGE 21,' ALLAGE AA', ptt OF LATHROP, CAUFORNIA, CONSISPNC OF FIFTEEN( 15) SHEETS, 7H15

THIS FINAL MAP.   AUTHORIZED CAPACIiYQES), ANO THAT BY HIS/ NER/ THEIR SICNANRE( S) ON THE INSIRl1MENT THE PFRSON( 5), OR STATEMENT WAS PRESENTED TO SAIO pTY LOUNCIL, AS PRONDEO BY LAW, AT A MEEiINC iHEREOF, HELD ON

THE ENiIiY UP N 6EHALF 0 WHICH iHE PERSON( S) ACTED, E% ECUTEO 1HE MSiRUMENT. 
7ME_ OAY OF 201 AND THAT SAID CITY COl1NCIL 01 7HFfiEUPON

THE UNOERSICNED DOES HEREBY RELINQUISH TO THE CITY OF LAiHROP ALL ABIlT1ER5 RIGHT OF ACCESS TO
BY RESOWTION N0. OULY PASSED AND AOOPTED Ai SAI IAEETING, APPROYE

LOTS I, 5, 14. 15, 24, 29, 70, 75, 44, 51, 56, 65, 66, 76, 77, 88, AND 100, ALONC 1HE LOi lINES AS I CERIIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNOER THE LAWS OF 7HE SiATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT IHE FORECOING
SAID MAP, AND AUTHORIZED ITS RECORDATION, ANO ACCEPTEO ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF LAIHROP, FOR

INOICATED BY iHE SYMBOL!/////// AS SHOWN ON THIS FlNAI IAAP.     PARAGRAPH IS 7RUE AN CORRECT.      PUBIIC USE. 7HE OEOICAPON OF ALL PUBLIC UTIIITY EASEMENTS, WATEft LME EASEMENT, PUBl1C ACCE55

EASEMENi, PARCELS A 7HRWGH E, AN IHE REIINpUISHAIENT OF ACCE55 RIGHTS i0 LOTS 1, 5, 14, 15. 24,

THE UN ERSCNED OES MEREBY RESERVE THE NON- E% CLUSIVE' LAKE FILL PIPELME EASEIAENi', TOCE7HER 1M1NE55 A7Y HAND:       
29, 30, 35, 44, 51, 56, 65, 66, 76, 77, 06 AND 100, ALONG TME LOi LINES AS INOICAlEO BY 7HE SYI. IBOL

VN1H THE RIGHT TO CONSIRUCT, ftECON57RUCT, PEPAIR AND MAINiAIN, IHE IAKE FlLL PIPEl1NE AND 7H R L; ANO REJECiEO THE OFFER OF OEOICAlION 0 THE PUBLIC UPLIiY EA4 AENT ACRO55 PARCEL D,

APPURiENANCES, UPIXJ, OYER AND UN ER THE STRIPS OF IAND AS SHOWN ON 1HI5 FlNAL IAAP OESIGNATED SIGNA7URE:   AND 7HE PIIBLIC ACCE55 EASElAENT, WATERIME EASEAIENT, ANO PUBUC UlllliY EASEMENi ACROSS PARCEI

AS" LAKE FILI PIPELWE EASEMENi'. THIS EASEMENi IS NOT EOICAiED HEREON, BUT YALL BE CONVEYED TO NAME( PRINT): E, WIiH A RESERVAiION OF 7HE RIGHT TO ACCEPi 7HE EOICA1lON OF 7HE PUBLIC IITILITY EASEMENT

RIYER ISUNDS PUBIIC FINANCINC AUTHORITY BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT SUBSEOUENi TO THE FIUNG OF THIS PRINCIPAL COIINTY OF BUSINE55:       ACROSS PARCEI 0, AND iHE P119LIC ACCE55 EASEMENT, WAiERl1NE EASEMENT, AND PUBIIC UTNiY

FlNAL MAP.      MY COMAIISSION NIIMBER:    EASEMENT ACROSS PARCEL E, AT A FUNRE DAiE: ANO ACCEPiED THE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF ALL

MY COMMISSION E% PIRES:    STHEETS, AVENUES AND WAYS AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP SUBJECT TO 7HE IMPROYEIAENiS BEINC COIAPLETED

THE UNOERSICNEO DOES MEREBY RESERVE PARCEL 1 FOR NiURE OEVELOPAIENT. 
IN ACCOROANCE' M1H CMAP7ER 16, PTIE 16. 16 OF 7HE CITY OF IAMROP AIUNIqPAL CODE.  

OWNER: RI ER ISLANOS OEVEIOPMENT, LLC, A CAIJFORNIA llAlilEO LIABILITY COMPANY.       I NR7HER STAIE THAT ALL BONDS AS REOUIRED BY LAW i0 ACCOMPANY 7HE VAIHIN IAAP, IF APPIICABLE,

HAVE BEEN APPROVE BY 7HE CITY COUNQL OF LAiHROP pND FILED IN AIY OFFICE.

NA IAE:   SIlSAN DELL' OSSO oA,  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)      7ERESA VARCAS

ITS:     PRESIDENT
CIiY Q£ RK AND CIERK 0 THE CIiY COUNGL OF THE CI1Y OF LATHROP, CWNTY OF SAN JOAOUIN, STATE

OF CALIFORNIA

A NOTARY Pl18UC OR O1HER OFFlCER COAIPIEPNC iH15 CFRTIFlCAIE VEflIFlES ONLY IHE IOENPTY

OF IHE INOIVIDUAL WNO SICNEO IHE OOCUMENT i0 WHICH THIS CERPFlCAIE IS ATfACHED, AND

DAiED THIS DAY OF 201
NOT THE 1RUiHFULNE55, ACCURACY, OR VALIOITY OF THAT DOCUMENi

OLD REPUBLIC PiLE COMPANY, AS TRWIEE, UNDER 7HE DEED OF TRIIST RECORDED DECEMBER 21, 2016,   SiATE OF CAlJFORNIA RECORDER' S STATEMENTAS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- I60886, OFFlCIAI RECORDS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY.      COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN 

BY:  ON 201_ BEFORE ME.  
fIIED 1H15 OAY OF 20i AT__ AI.

NAME: A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED,    WHO PROVED W     
N BOOK OF MAPS AND P1A15, AT PAGE AT RiE REQUESi OF OLD REPUBl1C

1  ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFAC ORY ENOENCE TO BE THE PERSON( 5) KHOSE NAME( 5) IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO
PiLE COMPANY.

iHE YATHIN INSTRUMENT, AN ACKNOWLE GED TO A1E THAT HE/ SHE/ THEY E% ECUiED 7HE SAlAE IN HIS/ HER/ iHEIR FEE: S
A1l1NORIZEO CAPACITYQES), AN THAT BY HIS/ HER/ THEIR SICNANRE( S) ON hiE INSiRUMENT THE PERSON( S), OR

7HE ENPTY UPON BEHALF OF WHICH iHE PERSON( 5) ACiEO, E% ECUTEU IHE INSTRUTAENT.

SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENT I CERTIFY UNOER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER 7HE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CAIIFORNIA iHAi THE FOREGOINC BY:

7H15 MAP CONFORAIS TO TENTAIIVE MAP N0. 5694 APPRO ED BY THE PLANNINC COMMI590N. 
P A APH IS 7flUE AND CORRECi.      SiEVE BESTOLARIOES A595TANT/ DEPUtt RECOROER

ASSESSOR- FECOROER- LOIINtt CLERK

DATEU 1H15 DAY OF 201 .   
W71NES5 IAY HAND:       SAN JOAQUIN CWNiY, CALIFOftNIA

SICNATURE:

NAME( PRINT):

PRINqPAL CWNtt OF 6USINE55: EXEIAPT FROM FEE PER GOYERNIAENT CO E 27388. i; OOCUMENT

AIARN MEISSNER, COMMUNItt DEVELOPIAENT DIRECTIX2
AfY COMMI540N NUMBER:     RECORDEO IN CONNEC710N ri7TH A CONCURRENT TRANSFER SUBJECT i0

CITY OF LARIROP
IAY COIAAlIS40N E% PIRES:     THE IMPOSITION Of OOCUMENTARY IRANSFER TA%

SHEET 1 oF 15

172



TRACT 4001
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A NOTES

VILLAGE AA PER LIT OF LAMROP MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES, TIiLE I5, CHAPTER 15. 4& 04, ME tltt OF LATHROP

PFRIAITS OPERAPON OF PROPERLY CONOUCiEO ACRICULNRAI OPERAPONS WI7HIN 7HE CITY UTAITS, INCW INC iHOSE

A PORTION OF RANCMO EL PESCA ERO, BEING TMAT IIiILIZE CHEMICAL FERIIUZERS ANO PESIICIDES. YOU ARE HFREBY NO71FlE THAT THE PROPERTY YOU AftE

A SUB INDI N OF PARCEI. I OF TRACT 3909( 43 MhP 52),   PURCHASING MAY BE LOCA7ED CI, OSE TO ACRICULNRAL LANDS AND OPERATIONS. YOU MAY BE SU9JECT TO

CITY OF LAhIFOP, SAN JOAWIN CWNiY, CALIFORNIA WCONVEWENCE OR DISCOMFORT ARISING FROM THE LAWFUL ANO PROPER USE OF AGRICULNRAL CHEMICALS AND

CITY ENGINEER' S STATEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

SPRAI7INGSIRRGAPON, PRUNRNGGHIARVESPNGABURMNG OFCAGRICULNRAWWAS7E PRODUC5`PRO ECTION` OF ROPS
AND ANIMALS FROM DEPREDATION, AND OIHER ACPNilES VMICH HAY CENERATE OUST, SIAONE, NOISE, O OR,

I, GIFNN CEBHARDT, HEREBY STATE 1HAT I AM IHE OTY ENCINEFR OF 7HE CITY OF LAIHROP,       RODENTS AND PESTS. BE AWARE ALSO, iHAi iH15 PROPER77 MAY BE LOCAIFD ADJACENT i0 AGRICULNRAL
CAIIFORNIA AND THAT I HA E EXANWED h11S FINAL A7AP OF' IRqCT 4001, RIYER ISlANDS, STAGE 1A.      OPERAPONS WTSI E 1HE CITYS JURISDIC710N. CONSEOUENiLY, DEPENOMG ON iNE LOCATION OF YWR PROPERIY,
NLLAGE AA', Cltt OF LA7HROP, CALIFOftNIA, AND TMAT THE SUBDINSION SHOWN HEREON IS IT IAAY BE NECESSARY iHAT YOU BE PREPAREO TO ACCEPT SUCH INCONVENIENCES OR DISCOMFORT AS NORIAqL
SUBSiAN71ALLY THE SAIAE AS Ii APPEARED ON 7HE VESTINC IENTAIIVE AIAP N0. 3694, AND ANY

E N G 1 N E E iZ l N G AND NECE55ARY ASPECi OF LIVING IN AN AGRICULNRALLY ACTIVE REGION.
APPROVE ALIERATIONS 1HEREOF. I FURIHER STAIE THAT THIS FINAL MAP COMPLIES IN1H ALL

2.  A SOILS REPORT ENPTLE' GEOTECHNICAL E% PLORAPON, RIYER ISLANDS PHASE 1, LATHROP, CAIJFORNIA',
APPUCABLE ORDINANCES OF iHE Cltt OF LAiHROP, ANO ANY AMEN MENiS THERETO, APPIICAALE AT

REFERENCED AS PROJECi N0. 5 44. 5. 001. 01 ANO DATE JULY 29, 2005, HAS BEEN PREPAflED FOR 7HIS PROJECi
n{ E nuE oF r avaovq aF virnNc i[,uiaiivi Mpa.   

LINEANOCURVETABLESFOFiCOl1flSESSHOWNONSHEET54THR0UGH50NLY BY ENGEO, INCORPORATED, JOSEF J. TOORE, G. E. N0. 2677, ANO IS ON FllE N1TH THE q1Y OF LATHROP.

DAiED THIS OAY OF 201       
3.  iRACT 4001, RIVER ISlANDS, STAGE 2A, NILAGE AA. CONTAINS 103 RESIDENTIAL LOTS, AND 5 LET7ERED PARCELS

aQofL55io

CONTNNINC 22. 21 ACRES, MORE OR LE55, INCLU INC ROM1DWAYS THAi ARE BEINC EDICAiED BY 7H15 FlNAL MAP;

4a B
N

y

LME TABIE CUR E TABLE AND PARCEL 1 CONTAININC 4. 40 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, ALL AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP( PLEASE REFER TO

LME OIRECTION LENGiH CURVE 8 RA IUS OELTA LENGTH
T E AREA TABIE BELOW):

CLENN CEBHARUT, R. C. E. 346BI No. 74681 LI N7977' 09' W 514. 98'      CI 317. 00 67' 09' 12" 371. 54'
CIiY ENCINEER OF 1HE CITY OF LAIHROP, CALIFORNIA

r
L2 N74' Sf51' E 116. 24'       TRACT4001 AflEASUMMARY

1Y1 a
C2 383. 00 24' S2' 19' I6fi16'

Of A
p

L3 N55' 3fi' 09' W P60. 59'      C3 1970. OD fi74' 40' S64. 26' LOTS 1 THRIXIGH 107 13. 39 ACi

L4 N45' 00' OO W 35. 36      C4 1970. 00 1872' 03' fi15. 80' PARCELS A THROUGH E 1, 24 pCi

SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT s N45' 39 54° E isa.ea'      cs sz.ao 9p' p7' 01° 83. 91'
PARCEL 1 4. 40 ACt

THIS IAAP WAS PRFPAREO BY ME OR UNOER MY OIRECiION AND IS BASED UPON A FIELD SUR4EY IN L6 N4420' O6' W I. 32'      C6 1270. 00 1fi' 07' O4' 359. 51'
STREET OEOICAPONS 7. 58 ACtCOtVFORMANCE YATH THE REWIREAIENTS OF THE SUBDINSION AIAP ACT AND LOCAL OROINANCE AT 7HE

REWEST Of RIYER ISI. ANDS DEVELOPIAENT, LLC, ON. NNE 25, Y018. I HEREBY STAIE ALL 1HE L7 N4579' S4" E 60. 00'      C7 570. 00 4' 39' 23'  46. 32'
AIONUIdENiS ARE OF THE CHARACIER AND OCCUPY TNE POSITIONS INDICATED Oft 1HAT 1HEY W1LL BE TOTAL I6. fi1 ACi

SEi IN 1HOSE POSIPONS BEFORE ECEAIBER 31, 202J, AND 7HAT 1HE MONUMENTS ARE, OR THAT 7HEY LB N44' 20' O6' W 9. 63'      C9   } p}, 00 31' 27' S7' 177. 39'

WILL BE, SUFFIGENT TO ENABLE THIS SURVEY i0 BE RETRACED, AND THAT 1H15 flNAL MAP

SUBSiANTIALLY CONFORMS TO TNE CON IiIONALLY APPROVE IENTATIVE MAP.       9 N757B' OS' W 5. 83'      C9 377. 00 67' 09' 12° 441. 86'

L10 N69' 30' 42' E 188. 10'     C10 783. 00 7' 45' S8' 1I8. 76'   
4  BASED ON WFORIAATION CONTAWED IN 7HE PRELIMINARY Tlll£ REPORT, ORDER NUTABER 1614020161- KB( VERSION 2),

DATED IHIS DAY OF 201       DATEO SEPiEMBER 21, 2018, PRONDED BY OLD REPUBLIC P1LE COMPANY.

ON
LAN     

L11 N30' 44' S8' E 155. 55'     S.  OFF91E ACCE55 IS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL NAP AS BOSCH AVENUE( FUNRE) AND MULHOLLAND RIVE( NNRE), AS

y N
ca,

y
s Lil JB}, pp 7q6' 21'  47. SD'       

SHOWN ON SHEETS 7 THROUCH 15. HQ2EIN; SAID OFf91E ACCE55 IS BEINC CftEATE BY SEPARAiE DOCUTAENT TO BE

4yayP
o m L12 NI939' 14' E 74. 33'     RECOROED CONWRRENiLY YA1H iH15 FlNAL MAP.

DnAN LRAWFORO, P. LS. NO 7788 r+ a. nee o
LI}   EAST 90. 00'

REFERENCES
P

L14 NOR7H 245. 00'

9faFCA f
P

RI)  flECOft OF SURVEY FlLEO AUGUST 4, 2004, IN BOOK 35 Of SURVEYS, PAGE 142, AS CORREC7ED BY CERIIFICAiE
LIS N45U0' 00' E 35. J6' OF CORRECTION RECOROED JULY I5, 2005 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2005- 17 264, S. J. C. R.( 35 SURYEYS 141)

L76 EAST J7150'    
R2)  1RACT 3876, FllEO IAARCH 31, P016, IN BOON 42 OF AIAPS AN PLATS, PAGE S6, S. J. C. R.( 42 MkP S6)

CITY SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT
R3)  GRANT DEE RECORUEO MARCH 30, 2007, AS DOCUTAENT NUAIBER 2001- 04fi177, S. J. C. R.

LI]  N44' 30' 23' W 35. 66'     R4)  GRANT OEED RECOROE JANUARY 11, 2016, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- 004077, S. J.C. R.

I, LAWRENCE COSSETT, HEREBY STAiE iHAT I HAVE E% AMINEO THIS FINAL MAP OF" 7RACT 4001, RIVER
LIB N88' S3' S8' W 60. 00     

RS)  GRANi DEED RECORDED JUNE 3, 2016, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- 063962, S. J. C. R.

IAANDS. STAGE 2A, hLLACE AA', CITY OF IATHROP, CALIFORNIA, AN 1HAT 7HE SUBDIHSION SHOWN R6)  CRANi EED RECORDEO JUNE 3, 201fi, AS OLUTAENT NUMBER 2016- 0 6 400 6, S. J. C. ft.
HEREON COMPlIES YAiH ALL 1HE PROVISIONS OF CHAPiER 2 OF 7HE CALIFORNIA SUB INSION MAP ACT,

AS AMfN0E0, AND THAT THIS FINAL MAP IS IECHNICALLY CORRECT.    
L19 N46' 47' S0' E 35. 85'     R7)  CRANT EED RECOROEO JUNE 6, 2005, AS OOCUTAENT NlIMBER I005- 134736, S. J. C. R.

L20 N2570' 17' W 35. 85'     
RB)  TRACT JB26, FlIEO SEPTEMBER 1. 201fi, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AN PLAiS, PAGE 67, S. J. C. R.( 42 Md8 67)

OATED 1HI5 DAY OF 201_  
R9  TRACT 3BP8, FllEO Al1CUST 24, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 65, AS CORRECIED BY CERiIGICAiE

aRO SSION    21 N6921' 40' W 60. 00' OF COftREL710N RELOROEO AUCUST 11, 2016, AS CUMQJT NUTABER 201fi- 102979, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P 65)

J.0.'  y R70) TRACT 3832, FlLED AUCUSi 24, 2016, IN BOON 42 OF MAPS AND PLAiS, PAGE 66, S. J. C. R.( 42 IAhP 66)

LAHRENCE GOSSEif, P. E. 31695
ZZ N66' 26' S7' E 35. 85'    

R11) TRACT J8J4, FlLED OECEAIBER 21, 2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AN PLATS, PAGE 77, S. J. C, R.( 42 AI& P 72)
a

No. S1fi95
A

L23 N42' S4' 39' E 53}. 82' UNFILE MAP ENPTLED' CALIFORNIA IRRICAIED FARMS, I1N1T N0.} PESCADFRO COLONY BEINC RECLAAIAiION

y
ft12) DISiRICT N0. 2062, SURVEYED APRIL AN MAY 19I9 BY OHM AN RAA9, OA7E NOYEMBER 7, 1929, FlLEO IN

y      
L24 N68' 30' 37' W 64. 51' THE OFFlCE OF THE SAN JOAOl11N COUNiY SURVEYOR.

0( CA
p R73) PARCEL AIAP 06- 0}- pM, FlLED OCT09ER 23, 2006, IN BOOK 24 OF PARCEL IAAPS, PAGE 51, S. J. C. R.( 24 PM 51)

L25 N870' 15' W 38. 90'    
R74) TRACT J936, FlLED lAARCH 15, T017, IN BOOK 42 OF AIAPS AND PLA7S, PAGE 84, S. J. C. R.( 42 MkP 84)

L26 N31U0' 23' E 60. 00'    R75) TRACT 789}, FlLED JUNE 1, 2017, IN 600K 42 OF MAPS AND PLAiS, PAGE B6, S. J. C. R.( 42 AIkP Bfi)

R16) TRACT 3895, FIIED JUNE 20, 2017, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 89, S. J. C. R.( 42 MAP 89)

L27 N59' 14' S4' W 749. fi6' 7RACT 3838, FlLED NOVEMBER 30, 2017, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AN 7LAi5, PACE 12, AS CORRECTED 8Y CERTIFlCATE

SIGNATURE OMISSIONS L28 N7521' SB' W 419. 83'    

R 
OF CORRECiION RECOROED OCTOBER I6, 2018, AS OOCUTAENi NUMBER 2018- 114854, S. J. C. R.( 43 MkP 12)

R78) 7RACT 3875. FlIED SEP7EIABER 22, 2011, IN BDOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 100, S. J. C. R.( 42 IA@P 100)

PURSUANT TO SEC710N 6643fi OF 1HE CALIFORNIA SUB INSION MAP ACT, THE 9CNANRES OF THE
L29 NBOVI' 21' W 459. 55'    R19) 7RACT 3831, FlIEU JANUARY 23, 2018, IN BOON 43 OF AIAPS AND PLAiS, PACE 16, S. J. C. R.( 43 Ml4P 16)

FOLL0INNG PARiIES HAVE BEEN OIAITTEO:   
L30 N68' 30' 42' E 188. 10'    

R20) 7RACT 3912, FlLED FEBRUARY 7, 4018, IN BOOK 43 OF AIAPS AND PIAIS, PACE 19, S. J. C. R.( 4} Md8 19)

1.  RECLAIMED ISLANOS LANO COMPANY, RESERVATION FOR OIL, CAS, MINERALS, AND 07HER
R21) CRANT DEED RECOROED Jl1NE 3, 2016, AS OOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- 06} 963, S. J. C. R.

HYOROCAR80N SUBSTANCES L11NC BELOW A EP7H OF 500 FEET, PER OCUMENT Nl1MBER
L31 M578' 05° W 5.83'     

RZZ TRpCT} 908, RIYER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A, LARGE LOT FINAL MAP, FILED SEPTEMBER Y0, 1018, IN BOOK 43 OF
2001- 04fi177, S. J. C. R.  LJ2 N4420' O6" W 9. 63' 

MAP ANO PLATS, PACE 52, S. J. GR.( 43 IA& P 52)

2.  LEYEE EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF ISLANO RECLAAIAiION OIS7RICT 2062 PQ2 DOCUTAENi NUM9ER L3]   NORTH 640. 25' ( R17)( RY2)
2018- Ofi0092, S. J. C. R.

SHEET 2 oF 15

173



RIVER ISLANDS OEV, LLL
RIVER ISIANDS DEV, LLC

LOT 2

PARCEL    TRACT 4001
N 2016- 063962 IR51

DN 2016- 004077 IR41

TR^^ a bi iRi      RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
R' Z R     VILLAGE AA

A PORiION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING

A SUBDINOION OF PARCEL 1 OF TftACT 1908( 47 M& P 52),
CALIFIA, LLC

CITY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOAOUIN CWNTY, CAl1FORNIA

PARCEL 16
PAR[ EL 24

OCTOBER 2018

CAIJFIA, LLC IR221
l l DN 2001- o4617Y IR31 I

LOT I
TRACT 39 IRII

I^
N 2016- 063963

IIIR211

N NG1 N E fZ1NG

i'/'///       \ PARCEL i.  \     

o(

09i
F  

o'  zso. wn' i000.PARCEL IS

Ift22)    
IR22)  SCAIF: I'= 500'

CALIFIA. LLc I

9\   
2005- 134736 IR71

TRACT 17 IRtI I   ,'. y29  

CALIFIA, LL[  r94pa` r     9 THIS SNEET SHOWS TIES TO 7HE BA515 OF BEARINGS
PARCEL 4 Giy AND O7HER IAAPS OF RECORD. REFER TO SHEET 4 FOR

DN 2001- 046177( R31 1  PARCEL 14 PARCEL 1
I   92 CpLJFL1, LLC

THE BOUN ARY OF 7RACT 4001
iRACT IB IRII IR221

PARCEL II TRACT3908( R22) c       F9 PARCEL 24

RZzi
SEE SHEET 4 I DN 200 1- 04 6177

IP.31

PARCEL 10 I   7RACT 3830
7RACT 39 IRl)

gzy p q  
LEGEND( SHEETS 3 THROUGH 5 ONLY)

I i,PF(   lAONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R17), UNLESS O7HERN15E NOTED

pJ rE p
SEE DETAIL A!     3/ 4' IRON PIPE YAiN CAP STAIAPED P S 7798' PER( R22),

IR221 ON SHEET 5      I I
r 5% ESREBAR VAIHECAPTEPLS 7788' PER( R77)

CAIJFIA, LLC     \    
9 

PAR[ EL 12

I
I

o IAONUMENT i0 6E SET PER 7RACT 3834( R11)
PARCEL 2 9 Ift22)    fAKE9

DN 2001- 046177 IR31         s      0 2- 1/ 2' BRA55 DISK STAMPED° PLS 7788° TO BE SEi PER( RI7)
TRACT 19 IRII PARCEL 9 9,,    

I ,       BOIlNOARY
IR221 s

I LOT LME OR RIGHT- OF- WAY UNE
9'

3y,4` 
PAftCEL 13 PARCEL 3

I I EASEMENi UNE
IR221 IR221

SEE ETAIL B
7 ioi

12 cENTcauNE

I I 200.00'( R1)     MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( RI)ON SHEET 6
pIVERISlANOSPAFKYlAV ry OENOTES REFERENCE( RI)- SEE REFERENCE IJST ON SHEET 2

M- M)       ONUTAENT TO AIONUTAENT

P     
PA2CEL e BASISOF     '¢     M- LY INi%)     MONUMENT i0 CENTERl1NE IN7ERSECiION

UIJFIA, LLG       
RZ2

R221 BEAFIINGS o R) Rl IAL BEARINC

PARCEL I S          
PARCEL 4

I y TftP.'CT 3834 '     
T TOTAL

DN

TRACTo20 IR71

IR31      \  
Ryp      I

I9'      B) BWN ARY

ON DOCUMENT NIIMBER

I MANINAOPNE
O. R. OFFICIAL RECORD

MON IAONUAIENT

ly\       PARCEL 5 I Yc Q1 EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER- SEE 7HIS SHEEf

CAlIF14. LL[ 
r'

90___--   
IR221       `      

PARCEL b          -  -   
Q 1. 17' BRASS ISH STAMPED PLS 7786' ON 1 FOOT OFFSEi TO BE SET

N 2001- 04 6 1 77 IR31
PER( RI7)

TRACY 21 IRI I I ZO . BRASS OISK STAIAPED° PLS 7788 TO BE SEi ON CONCRETE
i21CT 3832 SIOEWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RIGHT-0E- WAY, ALONC PROLONCAPON OF 9 E

CAIJFl4, LLC fR101

PAF2cEL 5

LOi L1NE5 TO BE SEf PER( R77)

N 2001- 046177 Ift31 I O 5/ 8' REBAR W1iH CAP' PLS 7788' PER( R77)
7RACT 22 IRI1 4Q 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PWC PLS 7788' PER( R77)

BASIS OF BEARINGS
CALIFIA, LLC

I Q 5/ 8° ftEBAR W1iH CAP STAMPEO' Pl5 7798' PEft( R22)
PARCEL 13

I, 

I
ACADEMYDFIVE

DN 2001- 046177 IR31     
THE BEARING OF NORTH BEIWEEN FOUND MONUMENTS ALONC OELL O550 DRIVE AS SHOWN ON iRACT 3908,      TRACT 23 IR11

p 7 382aRIVER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A, LARCE LOT FINAL MqP, Fll£ D SEPTEM9ER 20, 1018, IN BOOK 4J OF MAPS ANO 1 I 1R9   
EASEMENTS

PLATS, AT PAGE 52, OfFlpAL RECORDS OF SAN JOAWIN COUNTY, WAS IAKQV AS 7HE BAAS Of BEARINGS I
SiACE 1A LEVEE EASEIAENT M FAYOR OG IAAN REClA1AAPON OISTRICT 2062SHOWN ON 7HI5 IAAP( ZONE 3, NA083). ALL OISTANCES SHOWN HEftEON ARE GROlINO ISiANCES.    I 7RAR 3a27      '    O7

142 MhP 611
PER ON 2016- 060092, S. J. C. R.

NOTES I I I O fi0' WIOE ROAOWAY EASEIAENT IN FAVOR OF CITY OF LAiHROP PER 408 O. R. 95,S. J. C. R.( CONEN ROAU).( DOES NOL AFFECT iHE SUBJECT PROPERTY).
gl i

1. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDITIONAL NOlES, REFERENCES, AND 7HE LINE TABLE k CURVE iABLE OF COURSES I WKESI EOFIVE-   
SHOWN ON SHEETS 3 THROUGH 5 ONLY.  II

CALIFIA, LLC T T

LOT 3

i i
TftAR15893

iRACTe
826   

i

DN 2016- 064006 G$       

IRfiI I i     SHEET 3 oF 15

174



TRACT 4001
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

VILLAGE AA

f'.a/ 2, A PORiION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEINC

C
2 f

A SUBDINOION OF PARCEL 1 OF TRACT 3908( 4S M& P 52),
4

pN ! q CITY OF LA7HROP, SAN JOApUIN CWNiY, CAl1 ORNiA

T, 2pp/
C(.     OCTOBER 20I8

6

9/ ROQ,, y R3/  
OLD q yER

E N G 1 N E E f{1 N G

N

O
o'   so'  ioo'      soo'

OO  ` SCALE: 1'= 100'

Cz hFpHOqO
PARCEL 17

zq I( RZy) 1HI5 SHEET SHOWS THE BOUN ARY OF TRACT 4D01
RZZ    

BEINC PARCEL 1 OF 7RACT 3908( R22)

PARCEL 17

IR221

C6\    

OEFS[M T

I`` 

z8 NOTES
1. SEE SHEEi} pp ECEN AND BA515 OF BEARINCS.

2 SEE SHEEi 2 FOR ADDIPONAL NOlES, REiERENCES, AND

7HE LME AND CURVE TABlES FIXt SHEETS 3 1HRWGH 5

L2g( g) T  
ONLY.

N47D5' 22' R

PARCEL 14 

R22 N40' 27' 37' E( R)

PARCELI

TRACT 3908( R22)     n

26. 61 AC

f"WW
Cq

W
NI275' 34' E( R) 

1

2 t+isroi• o' t(R)

0

ca
ue

PARCEL 2

9    `'

LI6( B)( i)

R22) N0236' 27' E( R)

SHEET 4 oF 15

175



TRACT 4001
o

oa
EA RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

VILLAGE AA

p 1F, o opg"
I

f
A PORiION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING

DN
Zp A SUBDINOION OF PARCEL 1 OF TRACT 39a8( 43 MhP 52),

ppRc£ 

2G,
39 F' 1 CITY OF LATHROP, SRN JOAWIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

µ11  p
j

OCTOBER 1018

N 4.

E 17B56016} 1' R1" I 
Z

CpHENAOP 
J

I

U( R22)     
Q/

f       ° 
ENGINEER7NG

i2lR
l

I    ' ,—    
9'

P•

F       
s9,

y
o

N

yA, y
l `/ F      

9
G

1

j
l

r— o. e. oti. 

I aARCEL 17 Q%. v 9 200       9Gc

I
7RACT 3908 ( R221 __—___--     

O,
S,'` 3.

9jy soiPJJ O'
9

90 q di.   - o

90 J r%,fl.   i     

NOTES
I       ,  I. SEE SHEET 3 FOR LECEND AND BASIS OF BEAftINGS.

I     9 O
2. SEE SHEET 1 FOR AOOIPONAL NOlES, REiERENCES, ANO

THE LWE AND CURVE TABLES FOR SHFEiS 3 THRWGH 5

I.^J,       

OSTAGE2A ONLY.

EASEMENT LEVEE             :.  n(R77r      
L29(B) R)        R/       

I   \ \       
L6 0     1'l%

j5      
34

35
l PJ

I N}' 23' 01' E R.   C2 T) R   
1\. 

hA

C70   "`    
eP:    N4015' 36' E

1 PARCEL 17

I 32 t7.ae'    iIZACT 3875 IR2)  
f

I
M' M) IRI7)   

F
33      ' 

SEE DETAIL

W
39 =       

36
TFiIS SHEET

I O

i     31 30 O 

w PARCEL 1 I      O,  w ^    e
TRACT3908( R22)   

I  ,,./   I  o         37

26. 61 AC I/-- 1-   
25 260 z   27 28 29 w 

PARCEL 3

s Q2\
r I   3a TRACT 3838

t- 
70'      130. 00'     I

EAST 155. 26'  
IR 7)

I'"—
EASi 245. 00'( IA- M) IR77) ---  ( M- M)( R77)  —'   --\  OSTAGE2A

OUTRIGGERLANE R= s3o. 00'    
EASEMEMLEVEE\

li>    A= 12' 45' 07' fv
r

i/

24 23 I 22 21 L= 117. 96'   

ol o TRAC7 3a3a
M-! A)( RI7)      

2,sJy.         PARCEL 18
n- oo p

IR171 s>

f.     /  TR CT 3 76 IR21

xl     I I 12 13 14 A   
y gloo       '

l  '

PqcT9,
9C `\  /

i  < r2

TkACT 3638     P    "' 9  `       
ll6( B)( T)     MULHOLLAND DRIVE OO • '    ° e 

R171

50. 00'   
EASi 403. 39'( M- CL INl%)(RI7)       L9/ 92  

N /
35 /

N45' 39 54' E R    (
B      `

P,   

10 9 3 7
O7ARCEL 2 PARCEL 3

P,AftCEL I7TRA! T 39D8 IR221

W

ii&       

TRACT 3338    • y
p  

p, 3876 IR21
dl'    TRACT 3838 IR171

o- Os.

oiN
IR171 DETAIL °'' "..

ml^       
NOT TO SCALE

J!'

l9lPDETAIL A raoM n is sHeer    z 

o NOT TO SCALE 9J
FROlA SHEET 7)

SEE SHEET 6
SHEET 5 oF 15

176



SEESHEET5

TRACT 4001
PARCEL z p Paece E

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2Areacr asoa iezz  Sm      iRACT 3838 ( R171

i     VILLAGE AA
v

F10N i-      A PORPON OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

ER( RI4)       p SUB IVIDI N OF PARCEL 1 OF 7RACT 39 8( 43 MAP 52),
EAST EAST 579. D2'( M- MJ( R17)      SEE BELOW LEFT

CIiY OF LAiHftOP, SAN JOAWIN COUNiY, CALIFORNIA
45. 00'     OCTOBER YD78

GARDENFARMSAVENUE

I
HOLBORN N G 1 N E E 1 1 N G

nzAcr aasb DRIVE N

Rldl PARCEL 4 o
TRAC7 39G8 ( R22)   OI o o rrucr aaaa

IRII)

a o w
m z o

I
PLUMAS NOTES

DRIVE
1. SEE SHEET 3 FOR LECEN ANO BA515 OF BEARINGS.

PARCEL 3 EAST EASi 675. 00'( IA- IA)( Rlfi) 2. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDITIONAL NOTES, REFERENCES, ANO

TRACT 3908 ( R22)    45. 00' i ON ONLY. NE ANO CIIRVE TABLES FOR SHEETS 3 THROUGN 5
w PER( R16)   

RINA DRIVE

W
o      >

m I o rt

u      o

TRACT 3912 Iw Y IR20)

I

g     

I$SOLANO
T

DRIVE
aaaz

I

I
IRIO)

P', 1P.CEL 5
9s. 00-

TRAC7 39D8 IR221

I MONPER( R16)
I

w~      RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

I
COURMas. 00'       EAST 1087. 0]'( M- N)( R11)

x----     —     —n EAST 1047. 31'( M- M)( R22) 
RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

W

45. 00'  45  

p

W ITr,acr 3a3a

i ii       

ye

PI
z

PARCEL 9 a      

I7aacT a9oa IR22)     LL o WATERLILY
s. 00_

o      ORIVE
MON

r

a=     PER( R16)      
3 95

I IRI61

a3
DETAIL B

SEE ABOVE RIGHT
NOT TO SCALE

SHEET 6 oF 15FROIA SHEET 3)

177



TRACT 4001

SHEET INDEX RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
VILLAGE AA

LEGEND

1
A POR710N Of RANLHO EL PESCMERO, BEING

BIXINDARY
A SI180IN40N OF PARCEL 1 OF TRACT 3908( 43 M& P 52),

piY OF LAhiROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAOfIIN, CAl1FORNIA

EASEMENiIJNE
OCiOBER 2018

oT uNe N o'   s'  iso'      oo'

RESTRICiFD ACCE55 SCUE: 1'= I50' 

SHEET LIMIT LINE

Q ENG1N fZ1NG

9/
G O SHEET NIIMBER

9

OQ,

Q1 P/       '  

TRACT 39 I R U
PARCcL 17

TRACT 3908 f R22)

O     \    CT fC13 I 6'
I      O,      a y

J
cQ''      2i

P

Q'       
14

ti g  -- ------
PARCELD 11    --    I—'  \  g I

PARCEL 17
2

RIVERFRONT DRIVE TR4C7 3838 IR171 0       ,   

TRAC7 3908 ( ft221       '       i  13 O 15
2 9

3 12 vj 18
30 44   ?   45 55

jQ 4 11 Q 17
28

31 43 O Qc'  '     

46 P

yV : g
6

10        18
26 0[   

32 42   53
w PARCEL 1

4      

R,   S--   

m is o ss ai       a   sz Z p'( R G   
8

9 A
Z 

25

Q 34 40
V

a IZ F     
i

1,   .
BB

87
B6

M
IARTq

N
Z 22 23 24; m 35 3g 37 38 39 p 48 49 5D 51`     

es E    -  
B

ee
es

sz
81

MOZART AVENUE I
p 1A

RNE

sa
91

92

eo 79 78 »;     s 5fi m ioz
ioi       \        M H

f I' 65 64 63 62 61 60 59 58 103
c   .     93 94

76•,     

PAftCEL 14

y  ,   \\    

O \`  95 gs 9 7 98 99 100 I :66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75
7R.4CT 39D8 ( R221      /      

MULHOLLANDDRIVEIF UPEI___
1  _,'

o

s     i   

O
N
O

PARCcL 2

TRACT 3908 1R221r

SHEET 7 oF 15

178



LEGEND NOTES

TRACT 4001MONUMENT TO BE SEi PER( R77) p00.00'( R1) lAEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( RI)    ' LOT LWE 1. 1. 17" BRA55 DISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON

OO SEi STANDAR CITY OF LATHROP AIONIIMENT WELL STAMPEO" Pl5 77B8'    ( RI)    DENOIES REFERENCE( ft1)- SEE RffERENCE LIST ON SHEEi 2 RIGHT- 0E- WAY lME CONCREIE 9 EWALK 1. 00' INTO hIE RICHT- O- WAY,

3/ 4' IRON PIPE VNTH PLASiIC PLUC' PLS 7768' PER( R77),   M- M)   610NVMENT TO AIONl1MENT BOUNDRRY
aioNc rrso oNcanoN oF sme or ur+Es, oa as r+ o o.   

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

UNLESS OiHERYASE NO1ED
N- B)   IAONUNENT TO BWNOARY EASEIAENT LWE

2 5/ 8' REBAR 1N7H CAP' PLS 7788" TO BE& f AT ALL VILLAGE AA
SEi 3/ 4" IRON PIPE` M1H PLA511C PLUC' PLS 7788' 

REAR LOi CORNFRS, UNLE55 OTHERINSE NOlEO.

1Q EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER, SEE SHEET 3

BC)  MONUNENT TO BEGINNINC OF A CURVE EMERLJNE 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AODITIONAL NOlES AND REFERENCES.     A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, 6EING

1 1. 17' BRA55 OISK STAMPED' PLS 7788° ON 1 FOOT OFFSET TO BE SEi    -

CL INTX) MONl1MENT TO CENTERLME INTERSECTION RESTRICTED ACCESS 4. SEE SNEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BERRINCS.  A SUBDIN90N OF PARCEL 1 OF TRACT 3908( 43 IA& P 52),

PER( Rq)      
r)     rora

5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR LME AND CUR4E iABLES. CRY OF IAiHROP. COUNTY OF SAN JOAQl11N, CALIFORNIA

B)     BOUNDARY

OCT06ER 2018

O 7' BRASS 01SK STqMPED' PlS 7788' TO BE SEi ON CONCREIE P. U. E PU6LIC UPLIiY EASEMENi PARCLI_ I]
SIDEWAII( 1. 00' INTO iHE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAPON OF SI E

LOT LINES TO BE SEi PER( R17)      SEE ETAIL D
TRACT 3908 IR22)   159. St b T

03 5/ B' REBAR W1TH CAP' PLS 7789' PER( FI7)       ON SHEET 13 N5974' S4' W 749. 66' T
R= 7278. 00' = 6•     

C102

Q4 3/ 4' IRON PIPE WI7H PLASiIC PWG       ^° ,      
o

R- 278. 00'    E N G 7 N E E Z 1 N G

PLS 7788" PER( R17)     
R= 7803. 00'  (  1O'.       

C701_-
4.47' 00" L= 91. 17' `.. N26' 15' 16' E( R)

R_ 290jOp N20' 3B' 20 E( R)

N5916' 42' W 239. 86'     R= 000. 00'  -__    o{       =    
N19' 45' 43" E R)  l

u
N

0' 00' 07'
L759 n

R- 1092. 00'       

23033' IA- BC)  _ 4     \   

68. 49'( M'! A)      N59' 14' S4' W 258. J6'( IA- M) C- 6' f0' 35' L= 8fi. 24'
R= 1J05. 00' A= 10_ O6' 46_ L=     -

C70 a'   20'  4a'       60'

L= 0. 12'      -(-  
p= 6' 26' 49'_oo-          I

146. 84' 1- 0 ScatE: Y= ao'
N5914' S4' W 43. T7'  159. 59'   S5.00'  43 1'

I    '  I o o

0

22. 81•    lo n v/_
i i i.;       RIVERFRONTDRIVE i.;     iri

n n N5974' S4' W n

i=
750. 55' 7)n

I N59Y4' S4' W 159. 59' T R= 1338. 00' = 6" 26' 49'Jo HI--      
i _

C71--

1y  

JJ

2      '  T i__.__   .-.-.._°.   

L ..°
k,_,._ G12=---      

5' P. U. E.-,\
o_--.' 30. pp

o

79. 49' 80. 10' 2 30. 00

Jr 32.26' 
o P. U. E. w N26' 09' 24' E( R)      

l
0

32. 26  

4 I  ___-  --_  
I 5 29 Ic

U  30. 00'

N

J0.00'    
2       1 6. 1} 4 S. F. e      6. 178 S. F.     6. 069 SF.   "'   1 n

S. F.  m z      N 2 J' 23' 2 9' E I
e            ^ I 100. 00 I

1. 77     I I 110. 15' W   1
N59' 14' S4" W( R)      W I

N5974' S4' W I

p

Ng9'
21' 40

1
N69' 11 40 

I
IOJ. i'   110. 56'       I N59' 14' S9' W

123. 00'    
104. 95' N47'OS' 22' W

n   o

l29
28 11, n

I3 o Q' „   
o s 5. 0625. F.

5, 642 S. F.       I o e N
5, fi71 S. F.      10' P. U. E--

8 26
I

6. 496 S. F.       I 
O

N     

569' 21 40 E      '
1

I
10' PL. E.      

N5974' S4' W      ,     I 116. 61'      1
102. 47'

s•.wo,      115. 12' I n   I N59' 14' S4" W

DETAILH       `"     
rr2.,• I 27 F       

NOT TO SCALE

z     

I N47b5j2• W
12

I-     I       
I 5. 186 S. F.      

N

5, 959 S. F.  
z o I I WFROM iH15 SHEET)   1 o     

I      

n

5, 990 S. F.
1

10' P. U. E-.       
u'=

10' P. U. E
J

d. W
W

m 1
3

1. 77  N69' 21' 1      '' o
N5974' S4' W      l 30. 00' N59' 14' S4' W( R)          

6. 949 S.F. i 3D. OD'     --  104. 95       1-
0,

N

I i2322'   L1B       --   w 
123, 0'  I   o W

1 1 8 26 1'".,   

z1
n

I15. 99'  
ol o

o<„

L    `      5. 632 S. F.       

lj J     
5. 532 S. F.      I

LL!       N¢ 7 6, 280 S. E
6'     ,      

SEE DETAIL Hb5Z1• W
a0- oo      \  

z

11J  

3       ' y0            ON THIS SHEET
9. 2 qp' W 7

j W p L11
N55' 02' S0' W          '       o.    

I 106. 4fi'  N6

I Q ¢     I
4 5. 00'       . I N59' 14' S4• W

107. 45       1.   p

6, 991 S. F.     114. 89'    1"'   = IV`     I
ti

N66' 49' 47• W( R)
1`%  z N5974' S4" W    \ N59' S7' 09° W( R)      

25 1`^   Q
10 19 5. 695 S. F.      1 m

0       '    N50' 07' 3•       6, 7fi3 SF. p y 6       6, 962 S. F.
1 Q]         59. 99'    

W I09. 98' 
Po, 1,5`0 i

7ARCEL 17            I 99. 99'      
d

170' 4055 

0
N66' 19' 49' W 109.

959. 99'  

TRACT 3908 IR221          r- 5' P. LLE.
lq

L14
LIS

Cq    '      N61' 41' 43' W 149. 95'    

S0. 00•       
49. 99'      

I
L16 50. 00' 49. 95 5' P. U. E._,

N I
I n 5 W 1'

6, 053 S. F.  _     s 24   1,      I      '
I 5. 2} 9  _        _ w pi '      23 6. 053 S. f.   1..

S. F.  -    5. 212 o e   - '       1l
SF.    '  S. 215  _^  

5. 915 5254    =  5293
5, 254 SS. F.

9

1-    

o\

c \

o

P S. F.     n'      '+    S. F.      

o

30.00
S. F.    

n      ; m S. F. S. F.  000

1
m      (

7
z a

CI   '--__     10' P. U. E. 

z_  __/  

0 1

rv n

r y    
io' P. u. e.     PARCEL A

I h o C1       ---'__ 5. 126 1------

I
ol

L___-__-  Ct0 0
N41' 02 16" E( R)      

C3 S. F.       
CB

C9

0 NP2' 30' 42' E( R)I n    
C9

C5 C    _-- Cfi_- _-- C7-  
al 01N  .\  

70A=      I
R= I708. 00' d= 18' 3i' 34' L= 55227' T

rv \` 41' S5' 1YE( R) 

N20' 38' 20'
ER)    " 1i.

I6

I J.i N41' 09' 10' E( R)       
N2123' 48' E( R) h      

R= I7} 8. 00' G= 2T16' S7' L= H- B)    MOZART AVENUE rti--

i

I n
J o1

R 176800' d 18' 45' 22' L 57876' T) 
30. 00' 

SEESHEET9 Y 3
T

SHEET  $ OF S

179



LEGEND NOTES

TRACT 4001MONUMENT TO BE SEi PER( R17) 200. 00'( RI) MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)      LOT LME I. 1. 17' BRASS ISK STAMPED' PLS 7708' TO 6E SEi ON

SET STANOARD CITY OF LAiHROP MONUMQJT WELL 57A1APE0' PLS 7788'    ( RI)    DENOlES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE 115i ON SHEEi 2 RIGHT-0E- WAY UNE CONCflETE SIOEWALK 1. 00' INTO iHE RIGHi- OF- WAY,      RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE ZA
3/ 4' IflON PIPE W17H PLASPC PLUC' PLS 7788' PER( R17),   M- M)   NONUMENT TO IAONUMENT BOUNDARY

ALONL PROLDNCATtON OF SIOE LOT LINES, OR AS NOIED.

IlNlE55 O7HERW7SE N01E     
1A- B)   1ADNUTAENT TO BWNDARY EASEMENT 11NE       

5/ 8' REBAR ri1TH CAP PLS 7708' TO BE SET Ai AlL VILLAGE AA

SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE 1NiH PLAS C PLUC' PLS 7798' 
kEAR LOT COftNERS, UNLE55 OINERYASE NOTEO.

IA- BC)  IADNUA7ENT TO BECINNING OF A CURVE ENTERLME 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AODI7IINJAL NOiES AN REFERENCES.     
A PORTION OF RANCNO El PESCA ERO, BEING

1Q EASEMENi REFEF2ENCE NUMBER, SEE SHEEi 3 IA- CL INTX) MONUMENT TO CENTERLINE INTERSECTION RESTRICTED ACCESS 4. SEE STiEET 3 FOR BA515 OF BEARINGS.  A SUB IN90N OF PARCEL 1 Of 1RACT 3908( 43 MkP 52),

5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR LME AND CURVE TABLES. CITY OF LAIHROP, COIINTY OF SAN JOApI11N, CALIFORNIA
1Q 1. 17' BRASS ISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' ON 1 FOOT OFFSET TO BE SEi    ( T)     Tprp   

OCi08Ea 2018
PER( RI7)      

g)     BOUNDARV
QZ 1. 17° BRA55 OISK STAMPED' PLS] J88' TO 8E SET ON CONCREIE P. U. E.   PUBLIC Ulilltt EASEMENI

SI EWAIK 1. 00' INTO 7HE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGATION OF SIOE

LO7 LINES TO BE SET PEF( RI7)

Q 5/ B' REBAR W1TH CAP' PLS 7799' PER( ft17)    1   E N G 7 N E E R 1 N G

Q4 3/ 4° IRON PIPE WI7H PLASTIC PLUG' PLS 7788' PER( RI7)      N

o'   zo''

scn E: f= ao'

V
I

I

I

1
173000

o\     SEE SHEET 8
N2270' 4YE( R) 1 ` 19'} 9(M- M

N

o  , N41U2' 16' E( R) 

olI o

6 2 _ -

30. 00' R= 1708. 00' d= 18' 31' 34' 1= 552. 27' T
I

TRACT 3 OS IR221 i w Na,• s R ' -- _      MOZART AVENUE i N2o•_ a
R

y  —.       
o

N2227' 48' E( R)      

W
N41' 0910' E( R)

R= 177B. 00' 0= 21' i6' S7' L-  5546BM- 8)    

I    

I

j   ','
S6__ 

C3I___   

C30
C20_  ( IS       _  '°

1

U t   l

29 __    
C28

R= 1768. 00' A= 18' 45' T2' L= 578. 76' T)       C22___ --

C21 __'-    

o\

o__-,   30 00 I
C2J C26 C25 C24     ___

C23_______    '      0. 00     \

5' P. U. E.— J„ j  1
m

J
5' P. U. E.       

10' P. II. E.   d
I 1 

w,     

87 77   -
o

i,     m    11 0

B   -    6, 322 S. F. l
y   

BB      _  s, iae 86 g S 1
fi. 448 S. F.   !' _   S. F.  '    S. 188 85 B   

5. 188 V-   F-
I

z S. F. S. IBB
5 8

03 B2 p
bl

5. 189
5. 198 S. F.   r'     

1' 
Q+  W

S. F.   5, 188     -  5, 188
0

5, 188 S. F.       m   _

1
S. F.     _  S. F. S. F.   Q S. F. 

S. F. 1'  i  

I

p

V
I,,   ''' 1'=     \  W

LJ7
L48    .

w   ,
mnl z'\1 N49' 09' J4' W

Ui U8
L47

L49

1,' r   
II

46. 97'   L70 U9
L69 L46

i
I A L68 L67 L66

L40
L41 U2 L43 L44

L45
L53

L51

I

60. 00'( R)  e

L65 l64 L63 L62 L61 L60 L59 LSB L57 L56
L55

L52
L50 1 z

N<>
ns' 22• w  ° PARCEL B w

sa

100        1
1

a. zea R
B9

M 1-
S. F.  '    

fi. 233 S. F.  
99   

n 5. 990

I      '
i

i - 5, 193    -   91 m
y'

9 
98 5. 19J i" `   S. F.     

1'  }
0. 00'  

30. 00 . 1
S. F.  _    5. 191 n _  

5,9193  '` -  93 94     -   95 9fi     _  
5. 193

5. 195 S. F. 
o       

g S. F.  :, o p o 5. 193 5. 193     _  5. 193 5. 193
SF. 

S. F.    Jy
s     

C32___       
SF. S. F. S. F. S. F. S. F.  n

n i o 0z n n
n N

o

J zn

i

o C3J   `-----  

z

C44

C34
10' P. U- E.-

C43
N4427' 40' E( R) .

L-----------
C41

C42  -  
N2215' J4' E( R)N40Z7' 37' E( R) C35

C36-'---_ C37 C38 C39
C40

R= 79) 0. 00' A= 18' 12' O7' L= 62i90' i

i e

MULHOLLAND DRIVE

FUTURE) 
i

L_

PARCcL 14

TRACT 39D8 IR221
PARCEL 2

TRACT 3908 ( R22J

SHEET 9 oF 15

180



LEGEND oTEs

TRACT 4001AIONUMENi TO BE SET PER( Ri7) 200.00'( RI) IAEASUREO AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( RI)      LOT LINE 1. 1. 17" 6RA55 OISK STAAfPED' PLS 7798' TO BE SET ON

OO SET STANDARD CITY OF LATHROP IA NUMENi WEIL STAMPE' PLS 7788'    ( R1)    OENOIES REFERENCE( R7)- SEE REFERENCE U57 ON SHEEi I RIGMT- OF- WAY LINE corvcRete s ocwnuc i. 00' iNTo n+E aicHr- or- wnv,      RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
3/ 4' IRON PIPE YATH PLASiIC PLUC' PLS 7788 PER( R17),   M- M)   HONUNENT TO I ONIIMENT BOUNDARY

ALONC PROLONCAPON OF SIOE LOT LMES, OR AS NOIED.

UNlESS OTHERVNSE NOTED
2. 5/ 8' REBAR 1NTN CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SEf AT ALL VILLAGE AA

SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1M PLASPC PWG" Pl5 7798'      

M- B)   lAONt1MENT TO BWNDARY EASEIAENT LINE
REAR LOi CORNQtS, IINlESS O7NEfl157SE NO7ED. 

q ppRPON OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

1Q EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER, SEE SHEET 3

M- BC)  MONUMENT TO BEGINNING OF A CURVE CENTERLME 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR A D1710NA1 NOIES AND REFEFENCES.

01 1. 17' BRASS OISK STAMPEO' PLS 7768' ON 1 FOOi OFFSET TO 6E SET    (

M- CL INT% jMONUlAENT TO CENiERIJNE INTERSECTION RESiRIC7ED ACCESS 4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR BA515 OF BEAflINCS.   aCTY OIF LA7HROPPCOIINTY OF SANCJOAOUIN( CAIIFORNIA)
PER( R17)      

I1)     TOTAL
5. SEE SNEET 15 FOR LME AN CURVE TABLES.

B)     BOUNDARV

OCTOBER 2018

Q2 1. 17' BRASS ISK STAIAPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREff P.. E.   PUBLIC U7W7Y EASEMENT

SIDEWAU( 1. 00' INTO iHE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONC PROLONCAl10N OF SI E

LOT LMES TO BE SET PER( R17)

5/ 8' REBAR 4ATH CAP' PLS 7788 PER( RI7) N G 1 N E fZ 7 N G

04 3/ 4' IRON PIPE YAiH PLASTIC PWG' PLS 7788" PER( R17)
X 30 00   

3
N    

r-      
5

000

010
0   zo'  ao'       eo'

1
scatF: i'= ao'

n I
L151    I/     Op. g1j E R 

i
N/    

M-
Bo-,

m

SEESHEET11 NO2' 49' 41' E( R) 1$.       , 8  
M

zl

o

J     -
R= 77J8. 00•       

4, s, i r MOZpRT AVENUE
2I' i6'S7'    

R= 1708. 00 C= 15 56' 17' L o y^

7-
64 5_ B     i N78' 45 58 E( R)    

n

NO2' 44' 41' E( R)  \, n

0

o \

N20' 38' 2Q E( F)—         

o

R= 1738. 00' C= 19' 39' 07' L= 596. 17 M)  

C53    --

C54

0  `,

J

o-

3
p 1

o   N78' S2' S2' E( R)   

I

a
o

e i—   16' 08' 1f 1= 497. 92 T)--'  - __ C52 __

o
R= 968. 00' s-   

C50

C51

1

I     
ry_---

C45__-_- C46 ____ C47--__-_ C48      _ C49  _     

56    `,     ,\     ```  m
NIO' 49' 09' E( R) 

57       
fi. 573 S. F.  - oV

1 NJ0. 00'

T 30. 00' \ I 10' P. U. E. J
58 5. 396  '

o o       
m„ 

w   m
I  --- 

I 59 s. 39s S. F.  WZ o

P'° 
r \

1 60 5, 396 S. F. 

i 64     ^   63   '      62 61 5. 785 S. F.  
V

r,
2"   w o

F ml         65 5. 596 r $  5. 396  -     5. 396  '     S. 406
S. F.   L75 7,`n\ m y    

N

6, SJ4 S. F.   S. F.   74 n   

IW
S. F. S. F. SF.   _    

z

L77
Up4

r 6!   
0 11 afi y    =    

w WI' W \
I

z

L78
1103

W W

L92 L90

z

LBt
L80

L79
L102 5' P. U. E.   N 1       `

o     L93
L91

L84
L83

L82 L101

ym'

I  \     L94
LB9 L8B LB7 L86 L85

L99
L100

n L95 L96 L97 L98 W      ] 6   "`   m`      
1

I
U z i 75 0,    

6. 094 S. F.   / 30       '

N¢        4 5 296  '"   

1

0 }

0 

41
5   

o (

a 3 5. 296 S. F.
U Jq7 0/

66 2 N 5296 S. F.   N

o

I Y 6. 0 9 1 S. F. 6] 6B 69 5296
5, 2 9 6 o S. F.      i

o

o

I      
5. P9fi  -  _  5. 496 5. 296 5. 796 S. F.   j+    

30. 00'       

o\

I"— 5' P. U. E. S. F. S. F. S. F. S. F. 
S. F. C55

o ^         o
o o       . v

r _       

n ' o
m oo 

z

o

o

z

o   ;     

UJ8( T)  
z C56z z c

C57 NO2' 76' 27' E( R)

J '__     _______  ________,

P- U. E.-_-____  .    _-_-
C58

9     ---     C59

C65
C64 C63 C62 C61

C60

p= 1970. 00' G= 1fi' 24' 40° L= 56426' T
o

N19' O1' 07' E( R)    

I'

MULHOLLAND DRIVE
FUTURE)       

PARCEL 2

TRACT 3908 ( R221

SHEETIO OF' I5

181



LEGEND NOTES TRACT 4001
MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( RI7) 200. 00'( RI) IAEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)      LOT L1NE 1. 1. 17' 9RA55 OISK STAA7PE0' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

0 SET STANOARD CITY OF LATHROP IAONUMQJT WFIL STAMPED° PLS 7786'    ( RI)    ENOIES RFFERENCE( flt)- SEE REFERENCE LIST ON SHEET 1 RICHT-0E- WAY LME CONCRETE SIOEWALK 1. 00' INTO iHE RICHi- OF- WAY,     
VILLAGE AA

3/ 4' IRON PIPE W11H PLASiIC PLUC' PLS 7788' PER( R77),   N- IA)   NONl1MENT TO IAONUMENT B UNOARY A ONG PROLONGATION OF SIOE LOT LMES, OR AS NOiED.

UNlESS OiHERW15E NOTED 2. 5/ B' REBAR 1N7H CAP' PLS 7788' TO 8E SET AT ALL
IA- B)   610NVAIENT TO BOUNDARY EASEIAENT IINE

REAR LOT COFNERS, UNLESS OTMQtNISE NOTED. 
A PORPON OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1iH PLASTIC PLUG' PLS 7708'       N- BC)  MONIINENT TO BEGINNMC OF A CURV£       CENTQ2l1NE 3. SEE 41EET 4 FOR ADOITIONAL NOiES ANO REFERENCES. 
A SUBDINSION OF PARCEL 1 OF TRACT 39 8( 43 M& P 52),

Q EASEMENT REFFRENCE NUTABER, SEE SHEEi 3
A1- a INT%) MONIIMENT TO CENiERUNE MTERSECPON RESiRICiED ACCE55 4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR 6AS15 OF BEARINGS.   

CITY Of LA7HROP, COUNTV OF SAN JOAWIN, CALIFORNIA

1Q 1. 77' BRASS DISK STAMPEO' PLS 7788' ON 1 F00T OFFSET TO 6E SET    ( i)     iOiAL
5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR LINE AND CURVE TABlES.   OCTOBER 2018

PER( R17)      
B)     BWNDARY

Q2 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAMPED' Pl5 7788' TO BE SEf ON CONCREIE P. U. E PUBLIC IITILIiY EASEMENT

SIDEWAIH 1. 00' INTO THE RICHi-0E- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAPON OF SI E

LOT LMES TO BE SET PEFt( R17)      
r Z 53.      

N G 1 N E E fZ 1 N G

Q 5/ 6' REBAR YA7H LAP' PLS 7788' PfR( R17)      
Q4 3/ 4' IRON PIPE VN7H PLAS C PIUC' P 5 7788"      R= 727B. 00'       N75' P1' S8° W 419. 83'( T)      i ces( r)  

o 

N   

PER( RI7)             d= 16' 07' 04' L= 359. 51'( B) T)    '  417. 30. 
6

o
o   zo'  ao'       eo•

N2o3 
SEE DETAIL E r

sca E: f= ao'
RIVERFRONT DRIVE M- BC) , e  ( M- BL)   «  N80' Oi 21" W

C10a - R- U05. 00'  I"'   _ ON SHEET 1S C90d= 6' 00' 18' L= I36. 77'( M- 1A) N7521' SB' W II9. 97'( N- IA)    N75' 21' 58' W 263. 71'( M- M)     1157

I-   -' d°459. 55( M- M)
d= 2' IB'45'  I- - 1 -

i
T

G= 3' 41' J}• L= B4. 10' 64. 97' S5. 00' S5. 00'   I53. 71'     
I'   

S5. 00'   00121 W418.1fi(n
1= 52. 67'   o I o

I o 08.
m in '      i   In PARCELD-, i    

i=o NI8' 19' 35' E( R)       
I

v    I
M I"  n I   _   6J1 S. F.     .             

C100

o C66 T)       .    N7521' S8' W
o

Im    /  _-  ---____     ____ __ _\
o

jJ     - _     
5    trC67'. i'-,----, i .   . . ( l    

o 
u

o

CENiERl1NE OF 20' YA E
10

T 64. 97'-'_'  

ob,     p` 0
B2. 71' 79. 00'      g'J          L

5' P. LLE

o

C68 o oy     N7T59' O4. E( R)  LAKE fILLPPE E E SEA1E T
a

w

30. 00'   J0. 00'   
I 30

Q qq
I o---   -- o    

i UN A N

e

m      

30. 0o ao. ao

TI 6. 579 S. F.    P n'      
S. fiH4 S.F.     I 70. 00'    70. 00'   I m_____ _'___

I o.   o

J

I m      45 6 s095S. E            I

I
n I z I 7. 959 5..   

W

N7521' SB• W
I

n

m I I'
N  

I

N69' 21' 4p' W r
u'    

100. OD'        "' Z

w 10j., 74'  
100. 00'        I

N7521' SB' W     '   > N
o 43

I
o 0 0  !      

io3. n'    r ¢ r w  
p o 31 s.000 s. r.     N n   - - U n j MS' 2P58' W

54 I 
z f ^     

I
5, 4BI S. F.      W

2 I rZ      5. 35 S. F.     ,^ n= ~    w "° 4 I
L717

700.00'      
f

n'  
o I 46 10' P. U. E.     

z

Z
m N697I' 40' W N75' 21' S9' W I I 5. 913 S. F. 100. 00'   --   -¢    

z I

I 109. I9'     
W

IO' P. U. E.      z

U
N

r-- 10' P. U. E.  N7571' SB' W
I^  

m
I

I      
32

0

5. 42125. F.       I

z
f

o

I 703. 97'    I`_-_{{{-__  I r
I 5. 19} S. F.     

10 P. II. E.--

N

I N7521' S8' W 53       I 
l' Zo

30.00'    
Z 5, 511 S. F.        30.00' 7 30. 00'    w

W

116. 83'   30.00'   

o\ .      I      I i =N69' 21' 40' 
o I rv           N7521' S8' W

I

100. 80'     
1      ,
rr-10' P. U. E 99. 91      I W

w o i i
41              ,

i;

y.       \      

N7721' 03' W( R)     i ` r'n
o I 33 S. J45 S. F.         

I
n     

Cn      

Iy

v      5. 1545. F.   
YI

U

I

1
W 101. 98'       N75' 21' S8' W "   10. 364 S. F.   

q 52
I

U~   ' n!^I a      In             N69'21' 40' W j 1 s+      6. 511 S. F.

105. 34'   

N75' 2Y58' W 1 S  
EEj

15 - \/ NBI' 02' 4 w(R)      o     

II NO2' S3' 32' W( R) ..     ON SN      ^

I 40

I

c,
o`

O   \  

11256'     l/ o       "'      .
34 c L  . U26 N86'

1Y20Y1

62.57'    
5. 64J S. F. 6, 928 S. F.

Sp Po d= 270' 30
5       

NB225'
Sfi W 99. 99

49.
99

o 
N lo.     I n

L125

o  "

I I        
C85

49. 99    3

I      
s

N72' 23' J1' W 109. 98'    N77' 01 37' W 149.95'   49. 99     m '   

1 z

I
59. 99'       4995'       

S0. 00' g

m

49. 99' S0. 00'       55, az<   <
r

5' P. U. E.     50
S. F. i 1-

I-     49 5. 240 e   5' P. U. E.-!
1.--` 

3 O

o 

SS
o1 a w o   

48 1 5. 235 S. F.    
JDa o

35    ; s 36   '     37 38 rl 39 s, z3s s. r.

J^ 6p53 SF. 5, 239   0 5, 254 5293     
5, 254    - SF.    

u1SF. S. F. S. F.      I
S. F. 

I

o

10' P. U. E.

o

z

z

CBD

1
LI51

0.

10. 00     '-   

z

C79 f(R)+   0 J0. 0'  I

l

1' g 59       M'    115

i
n _    o

o

i z z
z

4
I- 10' P. U. E      NO2' 49' 41' E R

1
N

o  89

o,

I C78

N 7 J_ --_____ -' 
C75  -_  

C7fi    
C77

cn ciz cn c a J
a 5. n' T      

PARCELC m      ,.' a= nos.00' e=isse' n'_       
f -

oi
N18' 45 SB" E( R)      1, 076 S. F. _     NO2' 44' 41' E( R)    

1 - ' o- _   
1

N20' I)   

o

R_    
L= 596.2 M) 7J'  -

0`!'
3 0

0 1
E R  

o  
1738. 00' A= 19' 39' 07    

o i N1B' S2' SP' E( R)      MOZARTAVENUE

S I n

R= 1768. 00' 4= 16' OB' 1f L= 497. 9Y i)    1J
30. 0

1 0     \ 1

SEE SHEET 10
SHEET 1' I OF 15

182



R= 120. 00' A= 9' O4' 00' L= 18. 99'     
o

N, Sz Sg
B., Z N80Y11' y W

DETAIL E
TRACT 4001Ssss'    NOT ro sca eW 479.g3'       25.     N7978' S4' W T

gg,-\"

N7577' S8'    4I7. 70'   
T)   - 3

N7    J o S"t 65.1125'    2g,       C95 e RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
w26J.`

MJ  ( M- g '  

C-

o
SEE DETAIL E FOR DETAIL OF

R= 80. 00'      
N80'01' 2• W95g,,

TZB
W78JB6'      R 267. 5  `

5\  

6919

gO
R  VILLAGE AA

0 55_00'  P 757 e M- BC) EASEMENT lOON THI$ SHEET      13• qyP6•     h d= JT56' 35 n /\   A PORiION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

o/ 

J  

9      
7g9 L= 19. J0'     N64' 19' 28' W ry 7)   ` N14' 22' S7' W( R]_      A SU8 IN510N OF PARCEL. 1 OF 1RACT 3908( 43 M@P 52),

RIV
Z

59. 4      
3

C9
CITY OF LAIHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAOUIN, CALIFORNiA

o ERFRpNTpRIV N80' p'      
N} 73' 01° ERL , q       °      OCiOBER 2018

I 21'
o C700 ^+       i _  

E
N80b         

W 454. 55'( T)      Q
y   /

g6  _ on I21 W459. 55( M_
181. IJ' o

J

TJo.oa/(('--       Neonr ul       r

N /
30. 00'°      N72' S9' 04' E( R)       

W 9/ 8. 16'()     `   /    .__  

I I
o-      

w O      N G 7 N E iZ 1 N G

Z /             CENTERLME OF l_'  '- O'.
J o      C95 i lJa

N.        10' WIDE LAKE FlLL 351 Ne 7 -  192.
2i M M

a

w      
Q

W
Qy  „          PIPELWE EASEMENT

75' 0' 01' 2I' W 459. 55' In  
I R=} 50. 00' A= 31' 27 57       '_\$-   

W W N
Q•   zS. Qm     I       `  o(     Zjp3q(

1     
SCAIE: I"= 50'

p" I)
rv.W /   

107.80'_  _ =_

383. 00 A=

C92 B) T) L 
O, 

G98    Oti   C99
NI4R2' S7' W R LL

e            
C97( R17)       `

W          = 2    

y 10' P. U. E.     N0373' 01' E( R)
W m rv

c=i    ao.00,
o,  

o /'-

io' P. ae.  
o     PAoetEs. E                

w
ao.00•       a

SEE SHEET 14 FOR DETAIL OF 5W            LEGEND

a a       EASEMENTS ACROSS PARCEL E 4.°'    ? j y

1 Q     

y /    

y( 

IAONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R17)

p' IpJ
p      

2P            
M-      OO SET STANDARO CITY OF LA7HROP MONUMENT WELL STAMPED PLS 77B6'

4, TRAC7 3838 IR171 F- I Q-/ 1 BRA55 ISN SiAMPEO' PLS 7788" TO BE SET PER( RI7)

I Q
37     • 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1iH PLASTIC PIUC' PLS 7788' PER( R77),

CENTFRLINE OF IS' W10E    / . p"; 4 Iy
I PUBLIC ACCESS EASEIAENi   / '° j

I
UNLE55 OTHERW15E NOTEO

ol,; n    
o  

SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE' MTM PLAS7IC PLUG' PLS 7) BB'

o     

PARCEL 1 Q        
y OI EASEMENT REFEftENCE Nll1ABER, SEE SHEET 34. 40 ACRES

p

I 1
w    200. 0'( R1) MEASURED ANO RECORO DATA PER REFERENCE( fl1)

NB5' S7' S1' W( R) I ftl)    OENOTES REFERENCE( RI)- SEE REFERENCE lIST ON SHEET 2

v

l i  /  I "     I Z lo M- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

j  =
30. 00'     

z      __
v     LJ 5      

J     
7- B)   MONUTAENT TO BOUNDARY

SO. 00e            

p

144 T   -     IA- BC MONUTAENT TO BEGINNINC OF A CURVE
yy,     

N     

T)         N45V0' 00' W

45. 00'  45. 00' i 35.36'       M- CL INT%) M NUTAENT TO CENIERLINE INIERSECiION

N0659' 13" E( R) m   ' "- -      T)     TOTAL
L151 0 I       I o I B)     BOUNDARY

R= 7JB. 00'    M- BC)   "  19. 38    _   I z I  I o
I

P. U. E.   PUBLIC UPUTY EASEMENT4=19' 39' 07° L= 59fi. 12' CB9 1152
J

N74' 52' 4YE I I
M- M)   - o 70. 00'   "' 185. 00'   LOT IJNE

I              EAST 255. 00'( M- Mj( R17)     RIGHT- OF- WAY LME

i   j
10' I OUTRIGGER LANE eauNonar

P. U. E. I EASEMENT LINE

I CENTERLINE
30. 00'  30. 00' I I

W
iii: iuiuii  RESTRIC7EDACCE55

I

I I OO 1. 17' BRASS OISK STAMPED' PLS 7708' ON 1 GOOT OFFSEi TO BE SET
I PER( RI7)

o         o I I Cn L I      2 1, 17' BRA55 DISK STAAIPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SEi ON CONCREIE

F,  I I     =    SIOEWALK 1. 00 INTO IHE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAPON OF SIDE

W w I o _     J
LOT L1NE5 TO BE SET PER( R17)

EAST 150. 0'( 7) 
i W QQ 5/ 8' REBAR W11H CAP' Pl5 7788° PER( R17)

CA. I 50. 00'     S0. 00'     S0. 00'   I p 40 3/ 4' IRON P PE WIiH PLASIIC PtUG' PlS 7788' PER( R17)

W.    NI^- ol
i i p    TRACT 3838 ( R171

i      `" 
i NOTES

I g  103 0  102 101 g        I      

I o 5, 050 a o S, OSD o 0 5, 050 -  I. 1. 17' BRA55 OISK STAMPED PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON

S' P. U. E.       S. F.      SF.      S. f.    I I
z

I I I Z I 3 I-?    CONCREIE SI EWALH 1. 00' INTO 1HE RICHT- OF- WAY,
z      z

i

0

30. 00' 30.00' I ALONC PROLONCAPON OF SI E LOi LWES, OR AS NOiED.
IO' P. U. E

I 2. 5/ e' REBAR W1TH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALLLI41( T) I 45.00'      
REAR LOT CORNERS, UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOiED.

2
0

1} 6. 31'    S0.00'     S0. 00'     S0. 00'     60. 00'    27. 19'-/
o

ol 3. SEE SHEEi 2 fOR A DI7tONAL NOiES AND REFERENCES.

i EAST 373. 50'( i)   4. SEE SHEEi 3 FOR BA95 OF BEARINCS.

5. SEE SHEEi IS FOR LINE AND CURVE TABlES.

45. 00'      EAST 403. 39'( M- CL INTX)( R17)

MULHOLLAND DRIVE
EAST     -

FUTURE)   MULHOLLAND DRIVE

z N_PARCEL 2

7RAC7 39D8 IR221

I _   (        
a 7

SHEET 120F 15I

183



N5974' S4° W 3q9. 66'( n
N75' 21' S8' W 267. 71'( M- M)_    TRA/ T 4,o0' I

Q i oI ss. 00'    o s3' 

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2AN59' I6' 4I"W 239. B9'( T)    

I
PARCEL D—      

o-'-/-------------- i RIVERFRONTDRIVE 5} S. F.    

1 i^  VILLAGEAA
N59' 14Y4' W 4. 80'  

I A PORPON OF RANLHO EL PESCAOERO, 6EING
RIVERFRONT DPNE 4,  N7521' S8' W 153JI'

N3' 45' 00' E( R)  a o  '!' Jp A SUB IN90N OF PARCEL 1 OF TRACT 3908( 43 IA& P 52),
y,` 1 6 P E 1 s, J. Jj.     QTY OF LARiROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOApUIN, CALIFORNIA

w %    68. 49'( AI- M)   N5974' S4' W 258. 36'( AI- M) y9 gb 5      N75' 21' S9" W 161. 71'( T)       6• Jd.,

le      
OCT BER 2016

U  n v i' 8P. 71'    79. 00' 2g
r

N59' 14' S4 W 47. 77'      159. 59'       
0 o•

co
P Q

I
U'---.-- o ' L

a
z n

R=} OB}. 00'  I.    0. 00 I I
a  

rop•ap    DEfAIL D Z

5a p. y
m       NOT ro sca      a 45 55

FftOM StiEET e)      DETAIL E E N G 1 N E fZ 1 N G

M i v Nor To scnt     
i

LEGEND

yo i N5974' 54' W 159. 59'( i) 
fROM SHEET 11)

949,   
AIONl1MENT TO 6E SET PFR( R77)

o3
s. p. 26' 

OO SET STANDARD GTY OF LA7HROP IAONIIMENT WELL STAIAPED' PLS 77B8'
322fi . 

6451'( T)       1 14 3/ 4' IRON PIPE' MTH PLASTIC PWG' Pl5 7788' PER( R17).

N6B'}
B37 W    /

46,       UNL£ 55 OTHFRWISE NOiED

b92°. 7 PARCEL 17      `, 1
SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE M1NTH PLASPC PWC° PLS 7788'

o•    TRACT 3908 fR221  ro9
e Q EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER, SEE SHEET 3

r0  a 0L
200. 00'( R1) MEASURED AND RECORD OAiA PER REfERENCE( R1J

OR
J   \\ 

s,       lJ N75' IB' OS' w 5. 83',     
RI)    OENOTES REFERENCE( RI)- SEE REFERENCE LISi ON SHEET 2

M- IA)   M NUTAENI TO MONUTAENT
q         9       o9y N44' 20' O6' W 10. 95'( T)

sJ      \ R Gn      2•      N4539' S9 E( R)     N- B)   MONUMENT TO BWNDARY

P' U. E.'   OJ 2•      \

4?

0•    ' 7
n      

y
3 23

9. s Qj M- BC)   MONUMENT TO BEGINNING OF A CURYE

CHOPIN COURT       ` 0  /\    2JJy` 7jS 601j,  TOA.      2     ,
L

O.     ryji`
j' p''

Q M- Cl INTX) MONUTAENT TO CENiERLINE INiERSECT10N

10' B I•  VT r)     rora

P. U. E.       

Rj6Qbl
1           4      O    

9  9 1. ( )y 32' R17
B9/

P)

7/

T

G    '  
o'   

B)     BOUNDARY

cB6 R` 5p.00' p= 270"
3018

l'     J l y 9' '     
P. U. E.   PII9LIC UPLITY EASEMENT

40   ,       ca5,  

y a.

r' ,   

3
NHT25'

S6 W 99. 99( n 2p rlie   
ll,   PARCEL 17 PoGHT NOF- WAY LME

N40' 58' S4' E( R) 4
9

o      o. J

opo
TRACT 3876 IR2)    

BOUNDARY
N77' 01' 37' W 149. 95'(' n   ''_   

49. 99'  ry
B  .   ^.   %

y' c'

zl

O

l.. 
3'
ii.  -.     c,'

s EASEMENT IINE
50. 00'   

2y, 
r y4

CQJTERLME

w$    9•   RJ  ° DETAILG RES7RIC7ED ACCE55
4B P/    O     NOT TO SCALE

O••/ !//,L  •      N45' 19' S4' E( flJ     • 
9rq      

FROM THIS SHEET) 1. I7' BRASS UISK STAMPEO' PLS 7789' ON 1 FCOT OfFSET TO BE SET

39 s J PER( R17

o

N75 8' OS' W S. B7'\    Q 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAAIPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SEi ON CONCREIE

PARCELCz      
DETAILF

P    
02

99
SIOEWALN 1. 00' INTO 7HE RICHi- OF- WAY, AIONG PROLONCAPON OF SIOE

3076 SF.   ' N NOT TO SCAIE PARCEL 3
J Oi LINES i0 BE SET PER( R17)

oFROA1 SNEET II)  raacr aaaa iRi 
pd, Jy,     Q} 5/ 8' REBAR 4ARi CAP PLS 7780' PER( RI7)

PJ 4Q 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1iM PlqS C PWG' PLS 7788' PER( R17)
C75

z.     

C76

a= nos. 00' e= i5se' n•= a s.u'( T)    r NOTES
J     

I. 1. 17' BRA55 OISK STAMPED" PLS 7768' 10 BE SET ON

CONCREiE SI EWAIK I. 00' INTO iHE ftICHT- OF- WAY,

RIVERFROM DRIVE g9
ALONG PROLONCAPON OF SIDE LOT LMES, OR AS NOTEO.

NOT TO SCALE
2. 5/ B° REBAR W1TH CAP' PlS 7788' TO 6E SET AT ALL

fROM SHEET 12) R= 350 •      
REAR LOT CORNERS, UNlESS OIHERYASE NOiED.

PARCEL 17 7. SEE SHEEi Y FOR A IPONAL NOiES AND REFERENCES.

n, s` yZ. TRACT 3908 IR221
4 SEE SHEET 3 FOR BA45 OF BEARINCS.

b''
RIVERFRONT

DRIVE o
pz\

M`
MJ

5. SEE SHEEi 15 FOR 11NE AND CURVE TABIES.

P C        
42E\

b9      L I     \\,     -  _-__   
138. 74'      C93( g r) Ri7       -\

F
112ACT 3908 IR221

N66      

M,
MI   ,--  

l

p, q5' o433' 

N69

p4' L`

Hg10   '///  1'      

dcJ
7JJ9'

zpO
d

60712j.    
ap}0`,`

Ql

w J      /   p}
S 706g9 ' C.    './//       \ \ L150  .

9a.

Vj

9 ,
E 65q9E; B\

OlR\
l cb,

9
8 a\  

LI49

C95 r'1 /   abg2 5N68j0 1

1922{
M' M       Il5

R= 350. OD' p= 
l-_ I • Q p    /

a-'    

Q PARCEL 17

R= 2fi7. 50' A= 37' S6' 35_ L= 177]
SIT  

981R4 •     
oJ/    

ua%•.       
TRACT 3876 1R21

ce2( e1( 0 --     •    7RACT 3838 1R171 V p   

C97 R17)     

3L.   0//    J}oo•s s    
SEE DETAIL C

39 33
O    

J.`       ,    

TRACT 3838 IR17) 

0

9 Js

JN
THIS SHEET

SHEET ' I 3 OF' I 5

184



R= 2°°°'      TRACT 4001
a= s•on' oo' PARCEL 17

L= 18. 99'     nu,cr 39oa tezzi RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
VILLAGE AA

C95( i)      
A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING4 I

A SUBOIN90N OF PARCEL 1 F TRACT 3908( 43 M@P 52),N80'01' 2•W,_    N80b1k1• yy
CITY OF LAiHROP, COIINTY OF SAN JOApUIN, CALIFORNIA418. 16( n   959. 55' Af- M   o

i -

RIVERFRONT DRIVE o-—_ 
OCiOBER zme

J 3Ze

20'
lERIJNE OF I

W'
87g6( r)       M    

NBOb/' 21' W 459. 55(  P1PE E EASEMENu

m l o    .     ```  ` 
1`    O R= 350. 00' G= 31' 27' S 92_21—   

7517$,
T ENG1N EfZ1NG

z'     ol

15. sJ•   
s'- N

Z'. 50'      

o'   io'  zo'       ao'

lr1_      _     
70. 6I'    R= 767_50_ A=} 7' S6' 35 L= 177_ 15_tl __-'       

O
SCAIE: I'= 20'

r _
Ia7. g0'( T)( PqRCE' E       

14. 00'- 1

I I _ 4` 6' 75' 38. O R= 3B3. 00'= 31' 27' S7' L= 21034 T)
ft17)

I       ` IO' P. LLE 44. 08' p=24' S219'= 166. 26'( b) T)
a   /  NO3' 23' 01' E{ R)_

CENIERUNE OF IS' VNDE       

WAiER LME EASEMENT  
I

R= 75. 00'

y
az roi' as'    LEGEND
L= 35. 9'

R= 700. 0'       /-
7, uONuIAENT TO BE SEi PFR( R77J

A= 27'07' 36"      /     QQ SET STANDARD Cltt OF LATHROP MONUMENT WELL STAIAPED' PLS 7798'

L= 47. 34'    
3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1iH P ASTIC PWG' PLS 77B9' PER( R77),

PARCEL 1
CENiERIME OF UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTEO

PARCEL E     IS' YA E SET} q' IRON PIPE W17H PLAS C PWG' PLS 7788'

N

a 41, 061 S. F. Pt19L1C ACCE55

EASEMENT 39 1Q EASEAIENT REFERENCE NUTABER, SEE SHEET 3
H 200. 00'( R1) MEASUflED AND RECORD DATA PER REFFRENCE( R1)

h RI)    ENDiES REfERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE LIST ON SHEET 2

j   M- IA)   IAONUMENT TO MONUAIENT

w M- B)   AIONUMENT TO BOUNDARY

M- BC)   UONUMENT TO BECINNING OF A CURVE
m I

M1
yy

M- Cl IN7XJIAONUMENT TO CEN7FRUNE INIERSECPON

4      
y'  

T)     TOTAL

L,
py       

8)     BOUNDARY

h_+' a"    P. U. E.   PUBLIC UiI ITY EASEMEM

y a'    TRACT 3838 IR17) oruNe

Ay/     RICHT- OF- WAY LINE

2^>
1' BOUNDARY

EASEMENT LINE
CENTERLINE OF

CFNTERIINE
20' WIDE IAKE FILL

PIPELME EASEMENT 1
RESTRICTEO ACCE55

a`
O

IQ 1. 17" 9RASS DISK SiAMPE" PLS 7788' ON 1 F00T OFFSET TO BE SEi
0'       

I 
PER( R17)

b

y Q OO BRA55 DISK STAlAPED PLS 7788 TO BE SET ON CONCRETE

SIOEWALK 1. 00' INTO iHE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONCATION OF SIOE

I LOi UNES TO BE SET PER( R17)

o
i i'       Q3 5/ e' REBAR M7H CAP' PLS 7789' PER( R17)

o j Q4 3/ 4' IRON PIPE WIiM PLASiIC PLUG" PLS 77B8" PER( R17)

CENTERUNE OF fi C7

15'' MDE p NOTES
PUBLIC ACCESS I  J

EASEMENT  /    CENIERUNE OF IS' WIOE 1. 1. 17' BRA55 UISK STAIAPED' PLS 7780' TO BE SET ON

Y
WqiER LME EASEMENT CONCREIE SIDEWALK 1, 00' INTO 7HE RIGNT- OFWAY.

a ALONG PROLONCAlION OF SIDE LOT lINES, OR AS NOiEO.

zv>     
T

W 2. 5/ B° REBAR W1TH CAP° PLS 7788' TO BE SET Ai ALL

REAR LOi CORNERS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AOOIPONAL NOTES ANO REFERENLES.
70 m 4. SEE 4fEET 3 FOR BA45 OF BEARINGS.

o v'      
I r p' p. U. E.( RI7)  =  5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR LINE ANO CURVE TABIES.

o

o__________  
o,___

I_____-  DETAILOFEASEMENTSACROSS

I easr eo. 00'    
PARCEL E

I la l   30. 00'   NOT 70 SCALE

I p5. 00'             45. 00' i
N45' 00' 00 W FROIA SHEET 12)  

10' P. U. E—{    -

1N
35. J6'

DELL' OSS O DRIVE SHEET 14 OF 15

185



T

LL

Q

Q         
T

N   s   F

W w
r W

O Q m o
Z 2

H

1'
O¢ 

W    t

U z
Q n> o

z

W   - a      wa

n m e m     _  ry      -    N
o

i'   

N

F
a. av G in     '  In o e  

F nr        +"      r $ '    " s

a $      s    ' S 3 k S o " s ' S S $       -

F      g

g    m       m    m x a m s s o o a o o a
U U U U U U

U'    
b bo    '  o b -       in ia in in in io io in -     N  b '    in h ( n P N     in o

n u i vNi v i u2̀ ` uZ E{ ` u3 v u°{ ` v3 u°{      N      ` 3i S3 vZ̀ ` u{    u3̀ u$ "

o e e S m m 6, m o m m      •    v    •       •  •  •    •    •
3 " 3 ! 3 " -.,,      '        $      `,& i& ', y   -  

o $ 8 0 8 0 0 8 8    _  _

8  5 5 3 3 5 8 G
U

J Z  N _  _  in a n rn      
uNi _   P _  _  o     c      :. o b      — _  _  _

u3      ' u3    ` u3 ` v3 ` u3 a "      `. 3 n    i $ i u4      i i

R

F
m m

u{ u°{ v i  

m  d    
a° 

in i v in v in io iv

m      Oa             
i° b

S'    b`        5' i S^      ^ S S    
F         

n vi

m      o $ e o e o o    -  a

g $      _  _    
o o a o a o a        

rn     a

d " d        d °

dd °
d         

W

cs   c    a         s
Z U

O

O

w
m m -  o ry o m  m a -  r o  -       

g   -  m m o        N
p 3   . S            2 X
U

F. 

w

F    _  _  

w

o _  m      _  v 3   N
r r

F  s   = -   Y d 3          s   

w s; 8 m S  ,      
y; R '        m R

Q     -      z z  i i  z iz z z z z z z z z z
z

z z z z z z z

ty       h fl RI    ' ` Y  S          3 - '  S            Si       5  Y        3

0

Q       n          3 ^ $    F     $ S 8 g g      -

w

o           i      i                             
F       ;     ,  ,    

N        -      ,     ,                a    --<

s ' 6 ` b m S, 
z ^  i

p

z  £ i ẑ i m z i i m i ^ z i i  i i i i i i i `' z "

w

J    9  9  9 J 9 9 ° J ° J J 9    ° mJ g

f.- ` 
g m       ry       o $  -  -  ' s n N N ui v.    v'    i

o r  r r 3 3    3 3  r r r  r 3 r  r    r r r r r r r      ' r  3 3 r r

W F
F'n .    _     

N n         S _    _   o a _    ^ s. 19 r 
t. Ei S

m   fi Y   e v
S' ` S`

1̂
S^. S`    S'      S' f'   S. + e o -  ,    , n -  

m m

i z z i       i       z  i     

I
x 5                    

e ;      ;     a -     o e -  -  :  $ 

y e , -  -      e
m  <     e -  e -

Si A Si F  SS                      5S N      R  R       „

e
w w w w w w w w w w  w  w    

F " Y
F F S  -      -   m A t N N i m N m e v      '    , R $    " 

s
o    -    -    E.    -      '"      

z  
R s  s r    .  ,"< ;    S   r a

i i i     z z  i             A z

h             9
m 

186



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 10 of 18

EXHIBIT B

TRAC' I' 4001 AND VILLAGE " AA" A1ZEA

187



N

o

o(o9i eq

i

i1\

9i
F9F9p        \ ^        

Q

JP    9i F

OP  

VIA
Q a

J

J

RIVERFqOMDRIVE
i i

h

y    —     ... 4  `..+'

t.'
2 o

f,-  1—  —_

VILLAGE AA m
T W   i.__.__ Jo         . (,-;

j

U

1       o    i
MOZqRT

m u`   I I     -   / Je;

Jet
AVeNue J__,__   j I  ,  ;°,

Q

c°       ouiaiGc FLarl 1  ` ,... ,;; s`,
i  >/

y,`       /.``\`      

i       ..  . _

l. 
2{   r

g— .    _ 1       

4~'     .^' \

r- r.t,... /   %   *.

j MUIHOtWJO n'' 4 Cn v do Dq yE
oG9l       ` 1

m?

IGL HOLLn4 CRIHE  —  \ I      

i lj".`.. ,..
I i  /' _ /+,`4`\i/:I P'.

f\        ` 5/`,v   
w-.

I      ---      o
s'' ,   ` __

LAKE 10
I I i I
i I i

L-

VILLAGE BB

6LUE HEflON ORNE BLUE HERON COURT

I
U E'

I s

GAR EN FARMS AVENUE
GARDEN FAnN.S AVe. UF

p
a

r    f  .

r_,.. i_  _

i    i i j        i i I    iC__: I;-..    ___
V LLAG CC PLU' Ja CPIVE

r

I1      ` f    (     ( ` ( Yf_ —"
PHOPaSmCOMJAU? IRYPAFII(      N  '?  !

y i )  t + ,

J

i  = I I I   j ; I  I...
P

E H I B IT " B"      

VILLAGE A 4

VICNITY VIAP
H

FRSrqF,  RIVER ISLAN S PARKWAY NOVEMBEI q 201

188



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, L'LC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 11 of 18

EXHIBIT C

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1.       The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to
do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no

less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000, 000 for each occurrence and $ 2, 000,000 in the
aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy  /
endorsements, executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision

Improvement Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be
attached to the certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability

arising out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or
the equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that" the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to
any loss.  

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City of Lathrop at least

thirty( 30) days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language

can be included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially
available at reasonable rates.

189



I

Page 1 of 2

DATE( MM/ DD/ YYYY)

A` o D CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 1oi12i2o18

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certiFcate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the qolicy, certain policies may require an endorsement. . A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT
NAME:

Willis Inaurance Services of California, Inc. PHONE F

c/ o 26 Centur Blvd
A/C No Ext: 

1- 877- 945- 7378 A/ C No: 1- 888- 467- 2378
1'      E• MAIL

P. O. Sox 305191 AUDRESS: certificates@willis. com

Nashville, TN   372305191 - IISA          INSURERSAFPORDINGCOVERAGE NAIC#

INSURERA: IInited Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED INSURER B:  
River Islands Development, LLC       

73 W Stewazt Rd
INSURERC:   

Lathtop, CA. 95330 INSURER D:     

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: wasoze35 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP     
LIMITS

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER MM/ DD MM/ DD

X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY EACHOCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

CLAIMS- MADE OCCUR . PREM SES Ea occurence    $
A    MED EXP( Any one persan)    $

Y ATN- SF1811644P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021
pERSONALBADVINJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:   GENERAL AGGREGATE      $ 2, 000, 000

POLICY jECT  LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OP AGG  $ 
2, 000, 000

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT    $
Ea accident

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY( Per accident) $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTYDAMAGE

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

UMBRELLA LIAB
OCCUR           EACH OCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

A

x EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS- MADE
BTN1814514W      '   03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

qGGREGATE 3, 000, 000

DED RETENTION$      

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y N

STATUTE

ERH
ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTNERlEXECUTIVE E. L. EACH ACCIDENT       $

OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED?         N A

Mandatory In NH)   E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT  $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATION5/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES( ACORD 707, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more spaee is required)

RE: Tract 4001 River islands- Stage 2A Village AA

The City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

as additional insured as respects the general liability policy. The insurance coverage afforded. by this policy shall

be primary insurance as respects : to the City of Lathrop, its: o££ icers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self- insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its .o£ ficers, employees, or agents shall be in excess o£ the

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.      ,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATNE
The City o£ Lathrop

yyy
390 Towne Centre Drive 7  

Lathrop, CA 95330

O 7988- 2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD-25( 2016/ 03)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

sR ID: 16893409 snTcx: 909382

190



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

AC0       ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page z ot'   z

AGENCY NAMEDINSURED   '
River Islands Development, LLC

Willis Insurance Services of California;.,. Inc.      ,    
3 W Stewart Rd     -     

POLICYNUMBER Lathrop,' CA 95330    

See Page 1"

CARRIER NAIC CODE

See Page 1 See- Page 1 EFFECTIVE DATE: See Page 1:       

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER•     ZS FORM TITLE• Certificate of Liability xnsurance

insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contri. bute to any loss as respects the insured' s
operations.

ACORD 101 ( 2008/ 01)     O 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 16893409 BATCH: 909382  - -      CERT: W8502835

191



i

POLICY NUMBER: ATN- SF1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG20100413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS,  LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART     

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s) Or

Or anization s Location s Of Covered Operations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards River Islands @ Lathrop Development
and commissions and members thereof, its

employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With' respect to the insurance afforded to these

include as an additional insured the person(s) or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions
organization( s) shown in the Schedule; but only with apply:

respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property damage" This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage" occurring after:
or in part, by:    1. All work, including materials, parts or equipment

1. Your acts or omissions; or
furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)

to be performed by or on behalf of the additional
in the performance of your ongoing operations for insured( s) at the location of the covered operations

the additional insured( s)   at the location( s) has been completed; or

designated above. 2. That portion of" your work" out of which the

injury or damage arises has been put to its
However:    

intended use by any person or organization other
1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only

than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and in performing operations for a principal as a part of
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader

than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 04 13 O Insurance Services Office; Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

192



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.  Available under the applicable Limits of

these additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;

Section III- Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is This endorsement shall not increase the applicable
required by a contract or agreement, the most we Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1.  Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13

193



UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATM-SF1811644P

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE

Third Party' s Sole Negligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added . to Section IV  -  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph. 4:

Section IV: Commercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood and agreed that
in the event of a claim or " suit"  arising out of the Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional insured named_.as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Rarty to whom this endorsemenf applies is:

Ci,ty of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as required by written contractual agreement with any
Third partyfor whom you are perForming work." 

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged. .

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07 Page 1 of 1

194



UNIT' ED SPECIALTI( INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CFiANGES ' HE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

THIRD Pi4RTY C 4fdCELLATIOfV IdOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in '

SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCfAL GEiVERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE Pi4RT

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below( according to the

nurviber of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written
notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective

date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notifica4ion will not exgend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/ Orqanization fVumber of Davs Notice

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07 Page 1 of 1

195



i 

Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 12 of 18

EXI3IBIT D

COHEN/PAR iDISE/ STEWART RE IABILITATION MAP

196



m   '     

o, ;     . z       

4.       

i'": r-,":r

A..  

i

l
z

i

Y       .  '_ b y      
t.  -      ';_;

i

b     

4,

a  

af  

iP g      }      
y
r3'' 

j; '
F

r

ti,;       -, 
t    

F
e.;   ,  g

9                  e
1'

t
M1``€"

z 2 6Z` s' ,
I

i

t•      g t-
r    . 

i;*`     in

I V.      

a. 

s,a"       s
m     N t       

I

4

1              _ t    
t'     ' 

K„     `,$

E---     F  -. y      I     l        Pk

pe,
S :.    

yvs4
j

i           

ti'           2          . v( d    
S        

4eNt1EN
X_ s

w.,, r,;  

j

t ''   ,.  `.   
t . ccm. rm rvitt

F _
P' t,

r s6un Rrv=_ esr. no                    .

f eao.re;: raeu
i    

a.  
a

sti.     '€ `      x
3. 

a-' e. s..
t

af;   
s     „-.;      _  k' ;      a  .     w.._   .

r

x       `";,"

4.   
p,.

If
a=

p l 4 - y
i

2    x.      

2.          }      s_

s

tt''

a'"    
t p r  •''` 

t r       "      
v r a              a""      f  f̀i,    .   .

r#     P X ti`' d     :.    

jg     
1 i         ,         

P.   ti4'    
1'"""      4"*   .

5 rt

3 . 
er

d,.   

1 r

r..

LEGEND

ROADWAY TO 8E FULL REPAIRED, PAVED AND OPEN TO GENERAL PUBLIC t       
EX HI I I T I

T

ROADWAY REHABILITATION EXHIBITROADWAYTOBEREPPJREDASALL- WEATHEREMERGENCYVEHICLEACCESSONLY
wa`

0
fi

RIVER ISLANDS
COMMUNITYAT SOUTH RNER BEND PR0.IECTAREA

CITY OF LATfIROP SA'] OAQL' IA COCNIY GILIFORVIA
a  .     i

u

197



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA     

Page 13 of 18

EXHIBIT E

iJNFINIS IED IMPIZOVEMEI IT COST 5TI1l IATE

198



l L:: L L.

ENG1 N EE R7NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE September 4, 2018

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25502- 92

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2A

VILLAGE AA( 128 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Storm Drain& Sanitary Sewer Manholes and Gate Valves Raising Iron ( 95% Completion)    1 LS   $   19, 000. 00  $ 19, 000. 00

2 Set Water Boxes and SSCO Boxes ( 90% Completion)     1 LS   $   83, 000: 00  $ 83, 000. 00

3 Survey Monuments( 0% Completion)     1 LS   $    4, 200. 00  $ 4, 200. 00

4 Signing& Striping ( 0% Completion)      1 LS   $   20, 100. 00  $ 20, 100. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $       126, 300. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on contractors cost to complete summary sheet and backup documents for Village AA.

fi200 STONERIDGE E iALL ROAD. SUITE 330,- PIEASANTON; CA 9a588 • P: 925.223. 83d0 • F2D9. 571. 2466

T125502- River IslandslPhase 92- vllage AAIEXCEL\ COST ESTIMATE\ Cost To Complete 201& 09- 04 Village AA Bond Estimate. xlsUmprovemenls

199



ii   [i)     L L

ENG1 NEE R 1 NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE October 26, 2018

VILLAGE AA( 128 LOTS)   Job No.: 25510. 81

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREETSCAPE

1 Landscape/ Irrigation Improvements 72, 467 SF    $    5. 00  $ 362, 335. 00

Subtotal Streetscape 362, 335. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $ 362, 335. 00

COST PER LOT $    2, 831. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, frontyard/ pkwy strip landscape
and irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

r

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SU1TE 33a, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F: 209. 571. 2466

T: 25510- River IslandslTo Others\ RI\ RamonlEST- 201& 10- 26- Stage 2A Village AA- Engineer' s Estimate- 25510. 81\ VILLAGE AA

200



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 14 of 18

EXHIBIT F

VILLAGE " AA" IMPROVEMENTS EN,GINEER' S ESTIMATE

i

i

201



1 ' L} C _ L

ENGINEE RING

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE March 7, 2018

VILLAGE AA( 128 LOTS)   Job No.: 25502- 92

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 237,100 SF    $    0. 45  $ 106, 695. 00

2 3" AC Paving 32, 700 SF    $    1. 50  $  49, 050. 00

3 4. 5" AC Paving 97, 500 SF    $    2. 25  $ 219, 375. 00

4 6" Aggregate Base 32, 700 SF    $    0. 90  $  29, 430. 00

5 8" Aggregate Base 97, 500 SF    $    1. 20  $ 117, 000. 00

6 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       2, 200 LF    $  15. 00  $  33, 000. 00

7 Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion) 5, 490 LF    $  15. 00  $  82, 350. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 38, 500 SF    $    5. 00  $ 192, 500. 00

9 Driveway Approach 106 EA    $ 600. 00  $  63, 600. 00

10 Handicap Ramps 10 EA    $       2, 500. 00  $  25, 000. 00

11 Survey Monuments 12 EA    $ 300. 00  $   3, 600. 00

12 Traffic Striping& Signage 3, 900 LF    $    5. 00  $  19, 500. 00

13 Dewatering( budget)      3, 600 LF    $  40. 00  $ 144, 000. 00

14 Barricade 3 EA    $       1, 500. 00  $   4, 500. 00

15 Remove Existing Barricade 2 EA   $ 500. 00  $   1, 000. 00

Subtotal Street Work 1, 090, 600. 00

STORM DRAIN

16 Catch Basins( type A inlet)    12 EA    $       2, 400. 00  $  28, 800. 00

17 Catch Basins( type A inlet over type 1 manhole base)  12 EA   $       2, 800. 00  $  33, 600. 00

18 Catch Basins( type A inlet over type ll manhole base)   4 EA   $       5, 000. 00  $  20, 000. 00

19 15" Storm Drain Pipe 980 LF    $  34.00  $  33, 320. 00

20 18" Storm Drain Pipe 420 LF    $  46. 00  $  19,320. 00

21 24" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 030 LF    $  65. 00  $  66, 950. 00

22 30" Storm Drain Pipe 670 LF    $  80. 00  $  53, 600. 00

23 36" Storm Drain Pipe 4 LF    $  95. 00  $     380. 00

24 Manholes( type I)      2 EA    $       3, 000. 00  $   6, 000. 00

25 Manholes( rype ll)      1 EA   $       5,000.00  $   5, 000. 00

26 Connect to Existing 2 EA   $       1, 700. 00  $   3,400. 00

27 Stub& Plug 2 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   2, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 272, 370. 00

SANITARY SEWER

28 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 3, 880 LF    $  28. 00  $ 108, 640. 00

29 Manholes 12 EA    $       4, 000. 00  $  48, 000. 00

30 Sewer Service 106 EA    $ 600. 00  $  63, 600. 00

31 Plug& Stub 1 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   1, 000. 00

32 Connect to Existing 1 EA    $       3, 000. 00  $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 224, 240. 00

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 23. 8340 • F: 209. 571. 2466

T: 125502- River Islands\ Phase 92- Village AA\ EXCELICOST ESTIMATE12018- 03- 07 Stage 2B Village AA Engineer' s EsGmate. xis\VILLAGE AA

202



I

1 1 F!  L L_

ENG7NE fZ1NG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

33 8" Water Line( including all appurtenances) 3, 940 LF    $  32. 00  $ 126, 080. 00

34 Water Plug& Stub 5 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   5, 000. 00

35 Water Service 106 EA    $       2, 000. 00  $ 212, 000. 00

36 Fire Hydrants 9 EA    $       4, 000. 00  $  36, 000. 00

37 Connect to Existing 3 EA    $       4, 000. 00  $  12, 000. 00

Subtotal Water Supply 391, 080. 00

MON- POTABLE WATEf3 SUPPLY

38 8" Non- Potable Water Line( including all appurtenances)   530 LF    $  35. 00  $  18, 550. 00

39 Stub& Plug 1 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   1, 000. 00

40 Connect to Existing 1 EA   $       3, 000. 00  $   3, 000. 00

Subtotal Non- Potable Water Supply 22, 550. 00

TOTi4L CONSTRUCTIOM COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $       2, 001, 000. 00

COST PEf2 LOT $  15, 633. 00

Notes:

1) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

2) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, landscaping,

irrigation, or street trees.

6200 STONEP.IDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON; CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 83A0 • F: 2D9. 511. 2466

T:125502- River Islands\ Phase 92- Village AAIEXCELICOST ESTIMATE\ 2018- 03- 07 Stage 2B Ilage AA Engineer' s Estimate. x151VILLAGE AA

203



L)   l   L L_

NG1NE i 1NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE October 26, 2018

VILLAGE AA( 128 LOTS)   Job No.: 25510. 81

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUfVTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREETSCAPE

1 Landscape/ Irrigation Improvements 72, 467 SF    $    5. 00  $ 362, 335. 00

Subtotal Streetscape 362, 335. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $ 362, 335. 00

COST PER LOT $   2, 831. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, frontyard/ pkwy strip landscape
and irrigation, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F209.571. 2466

T:125510- River Islands\To Others\ RI\ Ramon\ EST- 2018- 10- 26-Stage 2A Village AA- Engineer' s Eslimate- 25510. 81\ VILLAGE AA

204



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 15 of 18

E7 IIBIT G

RIPFA LETTER OF GUARAleTTEE

INTERIM PiJBLIC ACCESS WITHIN THE STAGE 2A D VELOPMENT AREA

i

205



RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA 95330

TEL: ( 209) 879- 7900

Ulay 4, 2017

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 9 330

Subject: Letter of Gua• antee- Ccensti•uction of Interim Public Access within the River

Islands at Lathrop S age 2A I) evelopment Arca

This Letter of Guarantee is being made in lieu oPa perfortnance bond for the construction oCan
interim public access ( public ri ht of vay) within the Stage 2A development arel of the River
Islands development project. River Islands Development, LLC (" RID") has requested the

pei nanent closure of Cohen Road from Stage 1 to Pa• adise Road a id Paradise Road fi•om

Ste vart Road to the Stage 2A levee ( see Eahibit" A" attached to this Letter of Guarantee). This

closttre vould allo v the consu•uction of the Sta e 2B levee system. The closure will not allow

public traffic to utilize Paradise Road to access the River Islands development area vhile the

consn•uction of the Stage 2B levee is occurring, but still allo v emergency vehicles access to the
area via all- veather access roads.

RID plans to construct River Islands Parkway from its current terminus in Stage 1, through the
Stage 2f1 developmen area and into Stage 2B and reconstruct Paradise R ad within Stage 2B to

restore public access to the project from the" I' racy/ Banta area. Until these roads are constructed
and dedicated to tlle City for public use, the City is requiring security to restore public access to
Paradise Road shotild RID fail to perform. We are providing you this Letter of Guarantee for
this purpose.

The engineer' s estimate as provided by. 0' Dell Engineering for a 28- foot- wide paved roadway,
equivalent to e isting Cohcn Road, in the general aligmnent af proposed River Islands Parkway
from Stage 1 to Paradise Road through Stabe 2I3 is$ 453, 000 ( See Exhibit" B"). The total length

of this" guarantee roadway" is 6, 150 linear feet. As a result, the Authority hereby agrees to set-
aside funds in the amount of$ 43, 600, which amount is equal to 1? 0% of the engineer' s

estimate, in- lieu of a performance bond. The funds are currently held, and will be set aside, in ihe
Itnprovement Fund established under the Piscal lgent A reement, dated as of December 1,
2015, bet veen the Authority and Uilmington Trust; National ssociation, as f scal agent. The

Joint Conimunity Facilities lgreement, dated as of NovemUer 16, 2015, between the Authocity
and the City allows for funds in the Improvement Pund ta e used to pay costs of inPr struciure
impi•ovements for the River Islands developmcnt, including raaci vays.

Under the tei7ns af this Lettei• of Guarantee, thc uthority shall hold the tunds as stated herein in
the Improvement Fut d until August 1, 2p20, or until such tim that permanentroadways are

206



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4, 2017
Page 2 of 3

constructed and dedicated to the City to restore permanent public access to Paradise Road,
vhichever comes first.  If the permanent roadways are not constructed, inspected and accepted

by the City by August 1, 2020 and tlie deadline is not extended by thc City in writing, no later
than Au ust 2, 2020, the Authority vill cause one of lhe follo ving to occui:

l.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to construct a 28-
foot- wide paved roadway in a new alignment, quivalent to the eaistin Cohen Road or,

to reconstruct the e isting 28- foot- wide paved Cohcn and Paradise roadways itt tfte
original aligmnent at the City' s direction. The Authority shall utilize a suita le contractor
and bid the vork under applicable law. The Authority and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadways necessary to restore access are constructed, inspected
and operational, not to exceed December 31, 2020-.

2.       The Authority shall withdra the funds from the set aside monies in the Improvement

P md and provide said monies o the City, o be held in a segregated account maintained
b} the City, to be used solely for constructio l or reconstruction oI' the applicable
road vays. In such event, the City will use reasonable diligence to com} lete the
construction of the roadways. Once ermanent access has been construeted to the

satisfaction of the City Engineer, and all costs related thereto have been paid, the City
shall return any of the unspent fi nds and any investment earnin s thereon to the
Authority for redeposit to the Improvement Fund.  Until the completion of the roadways
and return oC any e cess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain records as to the
reinveslment of the fimds provided to it, and ill provide the Authority with its records as
to aiiy such investment earnings upon written request of the Authority. Additional ly, in
tl e event that the Gity advises the Authority in writing that the fiinds provided to the City
are not sui'ficient to pay all of the costs associated with the roadways necessary to restore
public access, and advises the Authority as to the. amount of the shortfall, the Authority
will advance funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in thc amount of the shortfall.
In such event, and upon the vritten requcst of tl e Authority; the City will provide to the
Authority a detailed breakclown of the costs of the construction oCthe remaining roadway
work necessacy to restore public access.

3.       Since the construction ot' roadways widlin Stages 2t1 and 2Ii are phased and will continue

to be constructed by RID, RD 2062 or the Authority over time, the Authority may request
a reduction in the amount of fi nds necessary to be held from the Improvement Fund as
segments of permanent public roadways are constructed and dedicated Co the City. For
instance, segments of River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A should be completed in
late 2017/ early 201 S and dedication of this se ment« ould reduce the amount of security
described herein.  As a result, a reduction of$ 88. 0 per LF ($ 54;, 600/ 6, 150 LP) shall be

granted for each linear Coot permanently constructed and dedicated to the City.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the t vo options outlined above as the
a plicable sectu ity and to request reduction of ihe security as described in section 3 above. As
contirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guaratltee by the

207



Glenn Gebhardt, Ciry Engineer
City of Lathrop
May 4,? Ol7

Page 3 of 3

t

City, please sign and date this letter as st owm on the next page. Should you have any questions
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at( 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely,

By:  
Herb 1Vloniz, Execut v Director

ltiver Isiands Pubfic Fi ancing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Location of Applicable Roadways— Cohen/ Paradise

Exhibit" B": O' Dell Engineering-- Engineer' s Estemates

cc:      Susan Dell' 055, River Islands Development, LLC

John Zhang, O' Dell Engineering, Inc.

I Accept on Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the foregaing Letter of Guarantee.

B Y
Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

1.S' 2 l
Date

208



3    ,

i"Ili

III EXHIBIT " A"
r

g

ua:<.  z .  m a; a• .` i. 4*.,`      "
s

1..   . .
i

r...,  .     ' ryt     . w...-   
t

1 4-

a.,       5..... "   .    H'. l  

I;,.

x>'` US  
1.  a^S  

i t." z

T_  y
w yz  ,,,  

m

x+ +

4
I       . .`.,!       .,  ,  ', .*«. d:.  v,'..

a    ,     

z Mr• r.
i t tJ : 13"".

ti 17    
0 1 w+. ,•

n.
hi I   ..'       .

r1'    
y    •,, y y,, L,"'  '  # ..

F„   .. ,.

r STAGE 28 b   llp>  
a5{', 

51.`   , i1y,' Nr
g AREA t=       x

y", f...,
w:,.,,

h r 4Fq,      .. t   . aa    _ 
F_"

y': i' i.
II y 1

a. u, .;:.    .+ 3'    .',       f p       t
t

vr, r'    
d k." u E a M+'  ' t,}   .

BEGIN PERMANENT y""
r              

za ' z,".'  ..
ROAD CLOSURE

2 LANE UARANTEE"        , r    . y`.';erf   '"

ROADWAY( 28' WIDE)      
n : L_21 '; ,     a t       .  . . a a,„   ..; ti:  ',.

A
1t•,

r

g t;,..,    
e,: t           `°? a+.+"  

y .. 
a z',.    .;. 2    .  re. v,  i ' 1i

i°,1a",.Y A

I b a   vro,.       d. f.
m  .: .

a-•, s a,
a ty.,, tyr

y'..•*+' : 1. 5' * N i
9 YI  

4E'       
ew n e onri',      _

5''*
r` 4,..

d.

f

b. 1«' y a ,
Y=

II
tr:. a y i a i,   t.a

Q
f     \ W    

I 
ty                 a q

r

y. pa. 
Y.

t  " '.,: i?v
g.."

r ,, 5 y ' :

il+!}I{l`      >:,      
t l-.t.=!,  _  

k,' END PERMANENT`='
k      .,,    lil;,?

TRANSITION i STAGE 2A ROAD CLOSURE inrsmrr,  .

TO LEVEE ROAD AREA i' P,      °

i

t` i y`    

µ,„ , 

Jw
i ;,          i._   

fl i

ry L:  „ 1"
7          I    ;       

ue     t u x.`  i      ".A 9. e„y, e       ` t ' T 1 `'   [ !

u..   r        " c

a µ PROVIDE "

LOCAL
w

3!  
E    ,        

1     r, TRAFFIC
ONLY.      ra   

r      '       {   '    

I 7' 

a+e'*SIGN ( R11-

3)  w     , .       f,:„  ,„     i
w;     

i G    ,
K;w.

I ,<     

e.     l.
TRANSITION

1 S RE,
q '     `  

1 ks TO LEVEE ROAD/          "-- J "       _ ,       ,     .
t,:  Y DELL' OSSO

DRIVE y    

nm--- p-,,,         ,   -  - i a,           

y+      "'      _   .,,         

r

1.
y:     ,,.

m'  I

a. i

y..  y   
v: u s

x' t
I`   '

i'.     u,  

f

y

a

r   ,  

t, :,
3 

Y

i  

i     `      ^  ` ":u,      " 2 `  `°" fp ,,,   '  
t`.  ,,:, .   

4.. y,. w

i      ' r g :,      ' 9.      .. .      cr=::.  s Y.'+: .          r'       1 i         .     #A- tr v       

1   . u

1   ,    

a     .        x     

f-       '

1 w. r    ' .,..      Y,:       :   s I I       ,  

x  .

a

x       
f`  P     .;,  J   ,      I

r;    

f*.,

r

rn
1

w1        

a

I  '      
3.      ,.'"   .!' s;

f G   :,...   .        „-,       ' 4       

y,       y LEGEND

a_;.;    µ  -= w'    . `

ri 

f' i i iY'+   
PHASE 1 BOUNDARY 3+

l a  ° : s '   

r              i'
ad    ,`!

1  fn RETAIN
PUBLIC

MAINTAINED
ROAD r           j   - - - - -   PERMANENT ROAD CLOSURE( ABANDONMENT)     "°      I STAGE

2 INTERIM ACCESS M  ' '    INTERIM PUBLIC SAFETY ROAD( ALL- WEATHER)     N R I VER

I SLAN DS 28' PAVED ROADWAY( GUARANTEE SEGMEN      C

LAND USE MAP CITV OF LATHROP SAN JOAOUIN

COUNTV CA IFORNIA

209



EXHIBIT " B"
C 11 L _ -- L

ENGIN RING

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST May 4, 2017

INTERIM ROAD CONNECTION- STAGE 2A

GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Unit

Item Description Quantity Unit Price Amount

SITE PREPARATION

1 Mobilization 1 LS     $     25, 000. 00   $ 22, 750. 00

2 Erosion Control 1 LS     $      2, 500. 00   $  2,500. 00

Subtotal Site Preparation 25, 250. 00

GRADING

3
Earthwork2

1, 600 CY    $    5. 00   $  8, 000. 00

Subtotal Grading 8, 000. 00

MISCELLANEOUS

4 3" AC ( 6150 LF)       172, 200 SF     $    1. 50   $ 258, 300. 00

5 6" AB( 6150 LF)       172, 200 SF    $    0. 90   $ 154, 980. 00

6 Conform to Existing 2 LS     $       3, 000. 00   $   6, 000. 00

Subtotal Miscellaneous 419, 280. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $ 452, 530. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTIOfV COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $ 453, 000. 00

Notes:

1) Mobilization assumed to be 5% of total cost.

2) Earthwork quantity includes 35% shrinkage.

fi200 STONERiDrE UALL ROAD. SUITE 33G, PLEAS:+ NTOP; CA 94588 • a: 925. 223. 83aa • F: 09.571 66

210



y s-
X„"-.       XHIB T_ Aw

t x.

i a,.:
5

t:  

T

yyqq;; pp  
p4{*   ` `       

M1

M.'       =-'

y        2!'

R!
y d   `

i`

r   .,

5.    -.,   I fY       
y"*

5
Y

i

M9  
A

Tr I

la7F '. 
l.       :...      "'-    .::7 ;

y,{     ! e
a      .     

4

gSY       .      .'.
s,  "  

A   " j.        .    
ti     "

R

LL ..      rr`   

T..     
t'     

y    
I       .,+    '

t  ri:

j   y'
wr 3TAQE 2B   „';   r  ,"     

r

ARFA   `., y           

r

a       

1       

a   ..        - -- -—'- e   '[ L,:..   _. rA"   

BEGIN PERINANENT.-. r° ,, , ,,;

ROAD CLOSURE   `    '  
2 LANE GUARANTEE'     ,' 4f'  i

R APWAY( 28_ WI E}   wf ,   •
r::

l..'     

r, l-`      
N  

e +,

r".   r. w.,. u. a 
r •

4     

1 !ti

t wn

s`  f^ a r  c"    p j      "

r' 

w l y

f      J  :      

y`+    y,.

j rt3 Y      4/  e..'   
er i.' Y,

x,»'

1 y,  ;, vlR

r_

1.....--.
a y„ F..{ T,. r'}

i    .    ,
ENO PERMANENT  

s         ;

TRANSITION     `     ' u
w ROAD C1. 03tJRESTAQE 2A•  r an, r:,

a       u

aC..« 1C..     
1        AREATO LEVEE ROAD,

r     _      _.   r
r.. _ x

t-:  .      .,      

y Py Y"
r'  

r—,     

h 4    . . L s x   
a

t
a i+t',

PROVIDE' LOCAL;    

F

e a _  
r -  1 i  1

TRAFFIC ONLY'   
a

r-ra•,i.„# `

J:       
1   ` y,    

t .

SI( 3N( R11- 3)     c,

s

L       

f-„ 
STADE 1 i

TRANSITION e       ARE4 j      tt

t cr,  q s     
q'  

1  .. 
j TO LEVEE ROAO!     :    

4    , .,,.:       

m.:.,
10ELL' OSSO ORIVE'   °  ._ ./"/•.   ( [' ` 7 G(°.",  ,,       f.'' :   n

a i\ I: l

i

a  

fi      .     „.

q i e.
fl

4

y«,:  ,.,  :.      ... „",., ry f'   1 1....-..     . '      ^    ,.;*' t
X:' .     

1 a     

f y.
M_ 

v.       b   ".`  

Ar/+Fh+,. .         .     ..  ..     .      

y
y..       ..

Y^
p

M

r.«
Y >`.        I     ,jS          

Ya r'       r
w       t* ...

w

j   ,  p cr s     

v  . 

L .`    r 
J/    

y    

er" 4" f:,+        

l
w..,

y    ..   .    

T

r/'       ,         . •,/°/

f
w

7Ia l`   :    P
n    

r  /  
a

hs'., d".P       ., y      ,    
r'      r

r..
rCa:, fi'..

r__ J.:._   1 ir   • -!    i
I r

LEGEND
t`   i!  • . 

o  Pw t a+ oiwv i     ;,   r _ s 

RETAN R LIC M11M1 ANE0 ROAD
M-        

0 n
t  ` 

STAGE 2 INTERIM ACCESS I

ra wPuauce nr awc u.•w n ro

t' .

r

4` , 

RIVER ISLANDS

AN ROADNfAY( QWRIIHT lE IRIi   

LAND USE MAP

un unsrr yw ar HT'   

we. w a wo unv. w r

211



EXHlBIT " B"  

EIJ[ 31Nf£ fI1NC3

ENGiNEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST May 4, 2017

INTERIM ROAD COPINECTION- STAGE 2A

GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1

CITY OF WTHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Unit

ltem DeaaNpBon Guantlty Unit Price Amount

r+ITE P EPARATION

1 Mobilization     1 LS    $     25, 000.00  $ 22, 750. Od

2 Erosion Control 1 LS    $      2, 500. 00  $  2, 500. 00

Subtotal Site Preparation 25, 250. 00

S'$ 9Qldss
3

Earthwork2 1, 600 CY       5.00 S 8, 000. 00

Subtota) Grading 8, 000. 00

uns etu;

4 3" AC( 6d50 LF)    172, 200 SF    $   1. 50 S 258, 300. 00

5 6" AB( 615o LF}     172, 200 SF    $   0.90 3 754. 980. 00

6 Conform to Existing 2 LS    $      3, 000. 00   $  6,000. 00

Subtotal Miscellaneous 419, 280. Od

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST S 452, 530. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( naarest 57, 000) §       453, 000, 00

Nctes:

1) MabilizaUon assumed to be 596 01 total cost

2) EaAhwork quantity fncludes 3596 shrinkage.

6^_00 STON'cRIDGE 0.9ALL ROAD SUI iE 330, PLEASANTON GA 9d588 • P 9 5 223. 83d0 • F G9.577.. A66

212



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 16 of 18

EXHIBIT H

itIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE

RIVEI ISL DS PARKWAY WITHIN THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

213



FfIVER ISLANDS Pl1 LlC FINANCING AUTMORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHROP, CAI. IFORNIA 95330

TEL; ( 209) 8T8- 7900

June 26, 2018

Calenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Tawne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: Le# er off Guaran ee- Construction of River Islands Parkway froan IDe9I' Osso
Drive tm the St ge 2 t oundary L„ keside E st I?istrict)—Tract 3908

This Letter of Guarantee is being made in lieu of a performance bond for the construction of
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary
within the Stage 2A development area of the River Islands development project( also known as

the Lakeside East District). River Islands Public Financing Authority( Authority) is groviding
the funding for public improvements in the Stage 2A development area, including improvements
to River Islands Parkway( Improvements). It is our understanding that a guarantee for
constructian of the River Islands Parkway Improvements throug, Stage 2A is required as a
condition precedent to City Council approval of the Tract 39081arge lot subdivision map
proposed by River Islands Development, LLC. Since the Authority is already setting aside funds
far the full construction of River Islands Park-vay, we are providing you this Letter of Cuarantee
as the required subdivision guarantee necessary for the Tract 39081arge lot final map.

The engineer' s estimates as provided by O' Dell Engineering for the full cost of the of River
islands Parkway Improvements from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 5, 264, 000,
and for the unfinished portions( as of June 15, 2018) of River Islands Parkway from Deil' Osso
Drive to the Stage 2B baundary is$ 338, 004 ( attached as Exhibit" A"). The. uthority hereby
agrees to set- aside funds in the amount of$450, 000, wfiich amount is equal to 180°l0 of this

engineer' s estimate of the unfinished improv ments, in- Iieu of a 100°ro performance bond and

SQ% labor and materials bond. The funds are cunently held, and wiil be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of December 1,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmington Trust, National Associatian, as fiscal agent. The
Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as ofNovember 16, 2Q15, between the Authority
and the City allows for funds in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastructure
improvements for the River Islands development, including River Islands Parkway. Also
attached to this Letter of Guarantee is an exhibit showing the portion of River Islands Paricway
being guaranteed by this Ietter for your reference( Exhibit" B").

ti

214



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop-- Letter of Guarantee for Tract 390$

June 15, 2018

Page 2 of 3

Under the terms of this Letter of Guarantee, the Authority shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvement Fund until July 8, 2019, or unti] such time River Islands Parkway through
Stage 2A is fully constructed, inspected and accepted into service by the City, whichever comes
first.  If this portion of River Islands Parkway is not constructed, inspected and accepted into
service by the City by July 8, 2019 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no
later than September 30, 2019, the Authority will cause one of#he following to occur:

1.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to construct the
River Islands Parkway Improvements. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under agplicabie law. The Authority and the City shaIl mutually agree
to a tirneline to which the roadway will be canstructed, inspected and operational, no later
than one year from the deadline noted above.

2.       The Auth rity shall withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the Improvement
Fund and provide said monies to the City, to be held in a segregated account maintained
by the City, to be used solely for cons#ruction or reconstruction of the applicabte portion
of River Islands Parkway. In snch event, the City will use reasonable diligence to
complete the construction of the River Islands Parkway. Until the completion of the River
Islands' ark vay and return of any excess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain
records as to the reinvestment of the funds provided to it and wilI provide the Authority
dvith its records as to any such investment eamings upon written request of the Authority.
Additionally, in the event that the City advises the Authority in writing that the funds
pr vided tv the City are not sufficient to pay all of the costs of the construction of the
River Islands Parkway and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shortfalI, the
Authority will advance funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in the amount of
the shortfatl. In such event, and up n the written request of the Authority, the City will
provide to the Authority a detailed breakdown of the costs of the construction of the
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the hvo options outlined above.
However, if any River Islands Parkway improvements remain incomplete on September 30,
2020, the Authority shall ira2mediately resort to Option 2, and shall provide set aside moneis in
the Improvement Fund as requested by the City to allow the City to complete the uncompleted
improvements.

In addition, the c mmitrnent for the Authority to set aside these funds shall continue until ihe
Improvements are constructed and accepted by the City Council, and the developer provides a
one year maintenance bond in the amount of 526, 400 ( 10% of the full cost of the

Improvements), or until the Authority provides an acceptable replacement letter af guarantee in
that same amount of$ 526, 400 to guarantee the quaIity and condition of the full Improvements
for one year from the date of acceptance by the City Council.

215



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop— Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 1 S, 2018

Page 3 of 3

As confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and canditions of this Letter of Guarantee by t,he
City, please sign and date this letter as shown on the next page.  Should you have any questions
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at( 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely,

By:    
Herb oniz, Ex tiv irector

River Islands Pu ic in cing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Engineer' s Estimate of full improvements from C}' Dell Engineering
and Engineer' s Estimate of unfinished improvements from O' Dell

Engineering
Exhibit" B": Location of guarantee on River Islands Parkway

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, River Islands 3. evelopment, LLC

I Accept on Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter of Guarantee.

B .   Y
Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

7 9  /
Dace

216



ENGINE8RING

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COSi'  March 6, 2018

RNER ISLAPdDS- S7AGE 2A Job No.: 25503-01

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOA4UIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Descriptlmn Q aantl4y Undt Unit Price Amount

STR E' WORK

1 Fine Grading 621, 700 SF   $  0. 45        279, 765. 00

2 7" AC Paving 316, 8 0 SF   $ 3. 50  $    1, 108, 800. 00

3 11" Aggregate Base 316,800 SF   $  1. 65  $      522, 720. 00

4 12" Lime Treatment 316, 8 0 SF   $  9. i0  $      3d8, 480. 00

5 Vertical Curb and Gutter { wFth AB cushlon)       9,800 LF    $ 15, 00  $      144, 000. 00

6 Type F Msdian Curb( wJrh Ae cushlon)    9, 100 LF    $ 18,00  $      163, 800.00

7 ftoundabout Concrete 2, 400 5F   $ 5.00  $ 12, 000. 04

8 Concrete Sidewalk 77,400 5F   $      
r

5. 00  $      387, 000. 00

9 Handicap Ramps 20 EA   $     2, 500. 00  $ 50,000. 00

10 Survey PNonuments 7 EA   $       300. 00   2, 100. 04

11 Baaicades 1 EA   $     1, 500. 00  $ 1, 500, 00

12 7raffic Signing& Striping 4, 710 LF    $  5. 00  $ 23, 550. 04

i3 Dewatering{ eudget)     4,71U LF    $ 75. 00  $      353, 250. 00

Subtotal Street Work 3, 396, 965, 00

STORPt7 DRA9N

4 Catch Basins( type A 1n er}   2a EA   $     2, A00. 00  $       57, 600. 00

15 15" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 110 LF    $ 34. 00  $ 37, 740_00

16 18" Storm Drain Pipe 220 LF    $ 46.00  $ 10, 124.4Q

17 24" Storm Orain Pipe 780 L    $ 65. 00  $ 50, 704. 00

18 Storm Drain Stub& Plug 9 EA   $     1, 004.40  $ 9, 000.00

Subtotal Storm Drain 165, 160, 00

SAPlITARY SEI IER

1, 9 24" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 50 LF    $       150. 00  $ 7, 50Q. 00

20 Manhofes 24 LF    $     4, 000. 00  $ 96, 000, 00

21 Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer 2 EA   $     3, 000.00  $ 6, 000. 00

Subtota) Sanitary 5ewer 1 9, 504. 00

UVA' ER SUPPLY

22 8" Water Line ( fncluding a! 1 appurtenartces}  7AQ LF    $ 32. 00  $ 23, 680. 00

23 10" Water Line ( including al1 appurtenances) 284 LF    $ 40. 00  $ 11, 2Q0. 00

24 20" Water Une ( including e!! appurtenances)       4,630 LF    $       1 Q0. 00  $      463, OOO. flO

25 Fite Hydrants 16 EA   $     4, 000. 00  $ 64, 000. 00

26 Water Service 6 EA   $     2, 000. 00  $ 12, 000. 00

27 Water Plug 8, Stub 9 EA   $     1, d00. 00  $ 9, 000. 00

28 Connect to Existing Water 1 EA   $     4, 000. 00  $ 4, oao. oa

Subtotal Water Supply 586, 880. 00

62 0 STONEftIDGE MAl. L ROAD SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 9a5o8 • P 925 223. 8340 • F269.571. 2466

T t25503. Rfver IslandslPheea 61- Rfvar lalandt AerkxaylWord d EzcellCo t Ee mete12019A3- 08 Rtver Itfenda Parkwey- S1ape 2A Cosl F.stMateUmpro emeMs

217



5NGINEEFt1NG

EYam Description Quantity 13nit Unit Pric  Acnount

RECYCLED lRlA3ER

29 8" Recycled Water Flushing Line ( including al! appurienances)       84 LF    $ 45.00  $ 3, 600. 00

30 12" Recycled Water Drain Line ( including a! appurisnances) 150 LF    $ 55. 00  $ 8,250. OQ

31 1fi" Recyclsd Water Line ( including slJ appurtenances}    4,650 LF    $ 65.00  $      302, 250. 00

32 Recycled Water Plug& Stub 4 EA   $     1, 000.00  $ 4, OD0. 00

33 Connect to Existing Recycied Water 1 EA   $     5, 000.00  $ 5,060. fl0

Subtotal Recycled Water 323, 100. 00

P ON- PO ABLE WATER

34 8" Non- Patable Water Line ( inctuding aU appunenances)    650 LF    $ 35. 00  22, 750. Q0

35 16" idon- Potable Water Line ( IrrcludJng a!! appurienances) 4,660 LF    $ 80. 00  $      372, 800. 00

36 Non- Potable Water Service 6 LF    $     2,OQ0. 00  $ 12, 004.00

37 Non- Potable Water Piug& Stub 7 EA        ' l, 000. 00  $ 7, OQ0. 00

38 Connect to Existing Non- Potable Water 1 EA   $     3,000. 00 5 3, 000. 00

Subtotal Irrigation Water 497, 550. 00

L 4K FIL L9NE

39 16" Lake Flll Line ( TnGuding af! appurtenances)    4, 82Q LF    $ 50.00  $      241, U00. 00

40 3" Aeration line( JnGuding aR appurtenances)      4, 820 LF    $ 4.00  $ 19, 280. 00

41 Laka Fill Stub& Plug 3 EA   $     1, 000. 60   3, 000. 00

42 Connect to Existing Lake Fill Line 1 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ i,00Q. 00

5ubto4al Lake Fill Line 264, 280. OD

SUBTOTAL CONSTRU T90fd COS7' $    5, 263, 436. U0

TOTA CO ISTRUCTION COST{ nesrest 51, OD0) $    5, 254, 000. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, landscaping,       
ir ga6on, or street trees,

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERIDGE hlALL ROAD. SU{ TE 330, PLEASANTON CA94586 • P. 925223. 83i0 • F 249, 57L2466

T:125503- R{uer IalundstPhaae Ot• Rlver IalarWa PerkwaylWmd 8 EscellCosl Eatlmale1201B- 03-08 Rluer Islanda PaMwey• Stape A Cosl E UmmeVmprovsmems

218



ENG1N ft9N ,{",

EfdGINEER' S BOND ESTlMATE J ne 13, 2018

COST TO COf PLETE Job No.: 25503- 01

RIVER ISLAPdDS- STAGE 2J1

RIVER ISLAPIDS PARKWAY

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN CDUNTY, CALIFQRNIA

Item Descripqon Quantit   Unit Unit Prica AmBunt

1 Sanitary Sewer& VVater Raising Iron{ 95% Complet; arr}  1 LS S 54, 400. OD S 54, A40. Q0
2 Final AC Lift( 9o96 Campletion) 1 lS S 246, 604, 0  S 246, 604. 00

3 Final Signing, Striping& Monument( 0° 5 Campledon     1 LS 5 37, 000, 00  $ 37, 000. 00

TOTAL COST TO COAAPLETE S 338, 004, 00

Nates:

1) Eslimale! or a si to compiete based an contraaars Cost to cornplete summary sheet and backup documents far Stage 2A River tslanda Parkway
dell' Oaeo Drive ta Stage 2AI2B Levec} dated June 12, 2fl1 B,

fi3G0 SiOtJERIDGE ASALL nOAD SUITe 330. PLEASA JTON CA 9- i5B? + P 925133, E3 1G • F 2Q9 571? s6o

T: 1ZSSti1Ruer I Ica7tlPnaa Ot- flNc Islu db p; ihvny Wo d EacoMasi to Cors lefet20t8-03 1] 6tspv 2A RtP 8ond EntlmateVm swortmnb

219



1-

1

1J

p 

r'

r{'``,,   

SCHOOL

Q
Z`       

y

y       o-  

y'     
R11/ ER 1SLANDS PARKUVe4Y

p    

1
a d

y     

w L,

IAKK lo

0

P RK w
a

f
I

ir
i

J  _..

tl     
I       \

lV

67a.. i' p

iV R I     I S PAR       lY

TA E

JUL 2 1

220



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 17 of 18

EXHIBI'I' I

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION

12IVERFRONT DRI E & BOSCH AVENUE

i

221



Recording Requested by and C Y
Please Return to:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

This Instrument Benefits City Only.
No Fee Required.

This Space Above for Recorder' s Use Only

II2REVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF EASEMENT

FOR PUBLIC ROADWAY PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

TRACT 4001— OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION— RIVERFRONT DRIVE &

BOSCH AVENUE)

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, River
Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company, hereby grant(s) to the CITY
OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation in the County of San Joaquin, State of California, an
easement for ingress, egress and road purposes, and a public utility easement( PUE), over and

across the hereinafter described real property situated in City of Lathrop and more particularly
d'escribed as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT " A" ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF

This Offer of,Dedication is made pursuant to Section 7050 of the Government Code of the State

of California, and may be accepted at any time by the City Engineer of the City of Lathrop. This
Offer of Dedication may be terminated, and right to accept such offer abandoned in the same
manner as is prescribed for the vacation of streets or highways by Part 3 of Division 9, or
Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California, whichever

is applicable.

The above described easement is to be kept open, clear and free from buildings and structures of

any kind. This Offer of Dedication shall be irrevocable and shall be binding on the Grantor' s
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

SIGNATURES:

Signed this day of 2018

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

a California limited liability company

By:
Name:   Susan Dell' Osso

Its:  President

222



Notary Acknowledgment Required for Each Signatory)
This is to certify that the interest in real property offered herein to the City of Lathrop is hereby
acknowledged by the undersigned, City Clerk, on behalf of the City of Lathrop City Council to
authority conferred by the Lathrop Municipal Code and the grantee( s) consent( s) to the
recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer

TERESA VARGAS, CITY CLERK

By:

Date:

223



EXHIBIT "A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION AND ADJACENT PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
RIVERFRONT DRIVE & BOSCH AVENUE)

See Attached)

224



OCTOBER 23, 2018

JN 25502

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES

TRACT 4001 - VILLAGE AA

OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION- MULHOLLAND DRIVE AND BOSCH AVENUE

RIVER ISLANDS

LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEING A PORTION OF PARCELS 2, 14 AND 17, AS SAID PARCELS ARE SHOWN ON THAT
CERTAIN MAP ENTITLED" TRACT 3908, RIVER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A, LARGE LOT FINAL MAP",
FILED SEPTEMBER 20, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE 52, MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PARCEL 1 ( ROADWAY EASEMENTI:`

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEASTERN CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 2, AT THE NORTHEASTERLY
TERMINUS OF COURSE L208, LABELED AS" NORTH 45° 00' 00" EAST 35. 36 FEET", AS SHOWN ON
SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP OF TRACT 3908;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, ALONG THE NORTHERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL
2, AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP, THE FOLLOWING TEN ( 10) COURSES:

1)  SOUTH 45° 00' 00" WEST 35. 36 FEET,

2)  WEST 373. 50 FEET,     

3)  NORTH 44° 30' 23" WEST 35. 66 FEET,

4)  NORTH 88° 53' 58" WEST 60. 00 FEET,

5)  SOUTH 46° 47' 50" WEST 35. 85 FEET,

6)  ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1, 970. 00 FEET,
FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 02° 36' 27" EAST, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 16° 24' 40", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 564. 26 FEET,

7)  NORTH 25° 10' 17" WEST 35. 85 FEET,

8)  NORTH 69° 21' 40" WEST 60. 00 FEET,

9)  SOUTH 66° 26' 57" WEST 35. 85 FEET, AND

10) ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1, 970.00 FEET,
FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 22° 15'34" EAST, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 18° 12' 03", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 625. 80 FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID NORTHERN LINE, ALONG THE MOST WESTERN LINE OF PARCEL 14,
AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP, ALONG A COMPOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF
52. 00 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 92° 27' 01", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 83. 91 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF PARCEL 17, AS SHOWN ON SHEET 16 OF SAID
MAP, THE FOLLOWING TWO( 2) COURSES:

1)  NORTH 42° 54'38" EAST 533. 82 FEET, AND

2)  NORTH 68° 38' 37" WEST 64. 51 FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID SOUTHEASTERN LINE, SOUTH 42° 54'38" WEST 510. 12 FEET TO A POINT
ON THE SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 17, SAID POINT BEING THE NORTHWESTERN
TERMINUS OF COURSE L188, LABELED AS " NORTH 47° 05' 22" WEST 60. 00 FEET", AS SHOWN ON
SHEET 16 OF SAID MAP;

PAGE 1 OF 5  \

T:125502- River IslandslDWG\ FINAL MAPSITRACT 4001- VILLAGE AA\ Legal descriPnon 2ssoz- e n_ Tractaoo_ ioo.doc

225



EXHIBIT A       OCTOBER 23, 2018

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION JN 25502

FOR OFF- SITE ROADWAY PURPOSES

FOR TRACT 4001- VILLAGE AA

THENCE, ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 17, AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP,
THE FOLLOWING TWO( 2) COURSES:

1)  ALONG i4 TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 52. 00 FEET,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 92° 27' 01", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 83. 91 FEET,

AND

2)  SOUTH 44° 10' 58" WEST 60. 01 FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF PARCEL 17, ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE
TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 58. 00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE
BEARS SOUTH 45° 19' 34" WEST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 87° 35' 04", AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 88. 66 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 47° 05'22" EAST 60. 00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHWESTERN LINE OF
SAID PARCEL 2, AT THE NORTHEASTERN TERMINUS OF COURSE L190, LABELED AS" NORTH
42° 54'38" EAST 60.62 FEET", AS SHOWN ON SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP;      

THENCE, ALONG THE NORTHERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 2, ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO
THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 58.00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE
BEARS SOUTH 47°05'22" EAST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 87°35'04", AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 88. 66 FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID NORTHERN LINE, ALONG A REVERSE CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A
RADIUS OF 2, 030. 00 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 40° 29' 42", AN ARC DISTANCE OF
1434. 75 FEET;

THENCE, EAST 395. 00 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 45°00'00" EAST 35.36 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERN LINE OF SAID
PARCEL 2;

THENCE, ALONG SAID EASTERN LINE OF PARCEL 2, NORTH 110. 00 FEET TO SAID POINT OF
BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 3. 80 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

ATTACHED HERETO IS A PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION, AND BY THIS

REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF.

END OF DESCRIPTION

pPPK T SG
Q F  

PAUL KITTREDGE DATE a No. 5790 0
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

CALIFORNIA NO. 5790 s. 

9

F CAL F

PAGE 2 OF 5 25502- LEGAL TRACT 4001 IOD

226



LEGEND

ROADWAY EASEMENT LINE

LOT LINE/ RIGHT OF WAY LINE

I. O. D.    
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION

FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES

N

ar cri ,  PARCEL 17
0 

R\
R

rr,a" r ° TRACT 3908

PARCEL 14
TRACT 4001

TRACT 3908 VILLAGE AA

rr'

1fr"
l.rirl '

7FiAC7 U

PARCEL 1
PARCEL 2 SEE SHEET 4

TRACT 3908 N
0

W

PAFiCrI j

7r A 7 : J J

GARDEN FARMS AVENUE

ar cr 1J aricr J

7riac- r a    rr c7 

SCALE: 1" = 400'   EXHIBIT A

DRAWN BY: BK
RIVER ISLANDS - STAGE 2A, VILLAGE AA

TRACT 4001- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT
Fi E:      

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION- MULHOLLAND DRIVE AND BOSCH AVENUE N G 1 N E E f 1 N G

DATE: 10/ i/ 2018 SHEET: 3 OF 5 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25502- RIVER ISLANDS\ DWG\ FINAL MAPS\ TRACT 4001- VILLAGE AA PLAT RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A- VILLAGE AA- FM 4001- IOD. DWG

227



8

PARCEL 17

TRACT 3908 p1

o `°' PARCEL 17

aJ. TRACT 3908

ti     ' 4, N

o
G

cz PARCEL 14

TRACT 3908
U

TRACT 4001

C    4 s     ,       
VILLAGE AA

9 04 R

o      •
Op,    PAr; rl J

a,
8

PARCEL 1
rr a 7 oU,

ol, -
20

C\  

3. 80 AC±

9

oR s8o,

r`    
6 Pog

O s

R
2

3p``

4     R= 197p 00' 4: 16 24'40"  _      
94?` ` 564. 26' e   

L3 o
v 2 EAST 373. 50

a1434, JS,  _     cv vi

LEGEND
N
o

ROADWAY EASEMENT LINE
EAST 395.00 W

PARCEL 2
LOT LINE/ RIGHT OF WAY LINE

TRACT 3908
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION

NOTES:

I. O. D.    
FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES

1)   SEE SHEET 5 FOR LINE, CURVE AND RADIAL LINE TABLES

2)   THIS PLAT DOES NOT SHOWN EASEMENTS OF RECORD

S A E: , = zoo•   EXHIBIT A

DRAWN BY: BK RIVER ISLANDS — STAGE 2A, VILLAGE AA

TRACT 4001- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT
F E:      

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION- MULHOLLAND DRIVE AND BOSCH AVEIVUE E N G 1 N f{1 N G

DATE: 10/ 1/ 2018 SHEET: 4 OF 5
CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25502- RIVER ISLANDS\ DWG\ FINAL MAPS\ TRACT 4001- VILLAGE AA\ PLAT RIVER ISLAN S- STAGE 2A- VIL AGE AA- FM 4001- IOD. DWG

228



i

LINE TABLE LINE TABLE RADIAL BEARINGS CURVE TABLE

LINE#   DIRECTION LENGTH LINE#   DIRECTION LENGTH LINE#   DIRECTION CURVE#   RADIUS DELTA LENGTH

Li N45° 00' 00" E 35. 36' L7 N66° 26' 57" E 35. 85'  1( R)     NO2° 36' 27" E C1 52. 00'    92° 27' 01"    83. 91'

L2 N44° 30' 23" W 35. 66' L8 N68° 38' 37" W 64. 51'  2( R)     N22° 15' 34" E C2 52. 00'    92° 27' 01"    83. 91'

L3 N88° 53' 58" W 60. 00' L9 N44° 10' 58" E 60. 01'  3( R)     N45° 19' 34" E C3 58. 00'    87° 35' 04"    88. 66'

L4 N46° 47' 50" E 35. 85'       L10 N47° 05' 22" W 60. 00'  4( R)     N47° 05' 22" W C4 58. 00'    87° 35'04"    88. 66'

L5 N25° 10' 17" W 35. 85'       L11 N45° 00' 00" W 35. 36'  5( R)     N40° 29' 42" E

L6 N69° 21' 40" W 60. 00'       L12 NORTH 110. 00'

scn E: ," = zoo'   EXHIBIT A

DRAWN BY: BK
RIVER ISLANDS — STAGE 2A, VILLAGE AA

TRACT 4001- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT
Fi E:      

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION- MULHOLLAND DRIVE AND BOSCH AVENUE N G 1 N fZ 1 N G

on: io/ t/ zoia SHEET: 5 OF 5 CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

T:\ 25502— RIVER ISLANDS\ DWG\ FINAL MAPS\ TRACi 4001— VILIAGE AA\ PLAT RIVER ISLANOS— STAGE 2A—VILLAGE AA—FM 4001— IOD. DWG

229



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 4001- Village AA

Page 18 of 18

EXHIBI'T J

COMMON USE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND RD 2062

1zIVE1 FIZONT DRIVE

230



COMIlION USE AGIZEEMENT

FOR THE STAGE 2A PORTION OF RIVERFRON'I' DRIVE

BY A1 TD BETWEEN ' I'HE

CI'I'Y OF LATHROP

AND

ISLAIeTD RECLAll IATION DISTRICT NO. 2062

This COMMON USE AGREEMENT FOR THE STAGE 2A PORTION OF

RIVERFRONT DRIVE, associated with Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop, entered into on this
19th day of November, 2018 (" Agreement") and is made and entered into by ISLAND
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062, a reclamation district organized under the laws of the

State of California( the " District"), and the CITY OF LATH1tOP, a municipal corporation in

the State of California( the " City"), together, " the Parties".

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement relates to certain real property to be dedicated to City for public right of
way purposes known as Riverfront Drive; a local street within the River Islands at Lathrop
Master Planned Community, (" River Islands Site"), being developed by River Islands
Development, LLC, ("River Islands").

B.       On May 31, 2018, the District recorded easements across properties owned by Califia,
LLC and River Islands for the right to control and maintain the levees constructed by District for
flood protection purposes to protect development of both the Stage 2A and Stage 2B sub-

planning areas of the River Islands Site (" Levee Easements").

C.       River Islands has proposed Tract 4001, a final map that will create a single family
subdivision within the Stage 2A sub- planning of the River Islands Site, specifically located
within Village AA. Tract 4001 contains a portion ofRiverfront Drive, a local street that extends
into a portion of the existing Levee Easements (" Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive"), as

depicted in Exhibit " A" to this Agreement.

D.       The District also is proposing a pipeline to be placed within the right of way of Riverfront
Drive to interconnect lakes owned and/ or maintained by the District(" Lake Interconnect Line")

and to assign a twenty( 20) foot easement at the center line of the Lake Interconnect Line to
allow the District to provide maintenance as necessary after construction, as depicted by Exhibit
B" to this Agreement. The 20- foot easement would be reserved with the recordation of the Tract

4001 final map subject to the terms of the Agreement.

E.       Since the Levee Easements have been recorded to provide appropriate legal access and

authority to District for its flood protection works (" District Works") in accordance with the

State Water Code and applicable FEMA regulations, and these levees are designed to provide

200- year Urban Level of Flood Protection( ULOP) in accordance with approved State

Department ofWater Resources Standards and since the City has no objection to the Lake

Page 1 of 7

231



Interconnect Line as proposed by the District, prior to the approval of Tract 4001 and the
dedication of right of way for the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive, the Parties
acknowledge and agree that it is necessary for the Parties to enter into an agreement to outline
the duties and responsibilities of each Party, for the betterment of the public and to avoid
conflicts in each Party' s individual obligations under applicable law to those portions of River
Islands Parkway right of way located within portions of the Levee Easements and within the
Lake Interconnect (" Common Use Area").

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants

hereinafter set forth, City and District do hereby agree as follows:

1. City hereby agrees to the construction, reconstruction, maintenance or use by District of
the District Works located within the Common Use Area which is more particularly described on

Exhibit " A" to this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

2.       District hereby agrees to the construction, reconstruction, maintenance or use by City of
the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive within the Common Use Area which is more

particularly described on E ibit "A" to this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

3.       District and City acknowledge the priority of title of each other wherever applicable to
the Common Use Area.

4.       District has reviewed the Village AA improvement plans for surface improvements,

underground pipelines, street lighting, landscaping and joint trench construction prepared by
O'Dell Engineering and Power Systems Design and has no objections to the design and proposed
construction of the facilities on these improvement plans that are located within the Common

Use Area.

5. In the event that the future use of the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive shall at any
time necessitate rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of any of the District' s works within
the Common Use Area, City shall notify District in writing of such necessity pursuant to
applicable sections of the Water Code and City agrees to pay the cost of such rearrangement,
relocation or reconstruction of District' s works following approval of all plans and specifications
of said rearrangement, relocation, or reconstruction by the District, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

6. In the event that the future use of the District Works shall at any time necessitate
rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of any of the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive
within the Common Use Area, District shall notify City in writing of such necessity and District

agrees to pay the cost of such rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of Village AA Portion
of Riverfront Drive following approval of all plans and specifications of said rearrangement,
relocation, or reconstruction by the City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Page 2 of 7

232



7. City shall pay the cost to maintain, repair or replace City's facilities located in the
Common Use Area at its sole expense, and for construction, rearrangement, modification,

alteration or relocation not requested or undertaken by District, except for damage resulting from
maintenance, repair or replacement by District.

8.       District or its assignees shall pay the cost to maintain, repair and replace District' s
facilities located in the Common Use Area at its sole expense, and for construction,

rearrangement, modification, alteration or relocation not requested or undertaken by City,

excepting damage resulting from maintenance, repair or replacement by City.

9.       District, when working within the Common Use Area shall comply with the following
provisions:

a)      Except in times of emergency, including during a high water or flooding event,
District shall provide reasonable notice to City before performing any work in the Common Use
Area where such work will be performed in or on the traveled way or improved shoulders,

sidewalk or landscaping of the roadway or will otherwise obstruct vehicular and/ or pedestrian
traffic.

b) In all cases, District shall make adequate provisions for the protection of the

travelling public and provide such barricades and safety devices as are required by City
standards, and in cases of non- emergency, provide a Traffic Control Plan as required by City
standards and specifications.

c) All work shall be planned and carried out so there will be minimum inconvenience to

the traveling public.

d) All work shall be replacement in kind, conform to the existing facilities as to width
and depth of surfacing thereof, meet all applicable City standards and specifications as
determined by the City Engineer and shall be subject to inspection by City.

10.      District and City shall use said Common Use Area in such manner as to not unreasonably
interfere with the rights of either Party.

11.      District shall not be responsible for any damage occurring to the City facilities in the
Common Use Area that are not as a direct result of the District' s maintenance, construction or

reconstruction activities, or from its flood control facilities located on or near the Common Use

Area. All costs for repairing such damage to City' s facilities shall be borne by City.

12.      City shall not be responsible for any damage occurring to District facilities in the
Common Use Area that are not as a direct result of the City' s maintenance, construction or
reconstruction activities of its right of way or improvements on or near the Common Use Area.
All costs for repairing such damage to District' s facilities shall be borne by District.

13.      District is responsible for maintaining the aesthetic, structural integrity, and safety of its
pedestrian bridges constructed by District that may transverse City right of way, including the
Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive, including, but not limited to the bridge decks, piers,
foundations, railings, abutment walls, and ramps. City shall not be responsible for the inspection,
maintenance or repair of any District pedestrian bridges, including safety inspections of the
bridge structure, footings, or abutments.

Page 3 of 7

233



14.      District shall be responsible for the vegetation and weed control activities of its levee

slopes and adjacent areas that may transverse the Common Use Area. City shall be responsible
for any landscaping and irrigation improvements within its right of way, including within the
Common Use Area. The City or its assignees shall become responsibility for weed control within
portions of the Common Use Area that are landscaped by the City.

15.      The District' s right to construct, maintain and operate the Lake Interconnect Line as

prescribed by the easement provided with the recordation of the Tract 4001 Tract Map, shall be
allowed by virtue of an encroachment permit provided by the City of Lathrop, at no charge or
fee, subject to the provisions of Title 12 of the Lathrop Municipal Code and of such amendments
to said Title as may enacted from time to time, as to matters relating to District' s obtaining
permits for the construction, maintenance and repair of its facilities situated within the public

street, safety
precautions, and the repair of public streets due to the presence of said District's facilities,

District Works or any other District authorized work thereon.

16.      To the extent that the City' s rights to its rights of way for Riverfront Drive under the
applicable laws of the State of California do not hinder or conflict with the rights of the District
under applicable laws of the State of California, such rights of the District shall remain and be in

full force and effect. Should any conflict with the rights of the City by rights of the District be
identified, the District hereby subrogates its rights to the City, subject to review and approval of
the District' s legal counsel.

17.      This Agreement shall not have a prescribed term. Termination of Agreement shall only
occur if the Common Use Area ceases to be in existence and the need for this Agreement and its

rights and obligations contained herein cease to be necessary. Either Party may provide written
notice of such termination, subject to review and verification of the other Party.

18.      Notices. Any and all notices required to be given hereunder will be deemed to have been
delivered upon deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to either of the

parties at the address hereinafter specified or as later amended by either party in writing:

City of Lathrop
Attention: City Clerk
390' Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Reclamation District No. 2062

73 West Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attention: President

19.      This Agreement, and all terms, covenants, and conditions hereof, will apply to and bind
the successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto. Neither Party will assign nor sublet
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party.

Page 4 of 7

234



r

20.      This Agreement is governed by California law.

21.      This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in writing signed by both
parties.

22.      Each party must, in all activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, comply and
cause its contractors, agents and employees to comply with all Federal, State and local laws,
statutes, orders, ordinances, rules, and regulations.

23.      It is expressly understood that this Agreement does not in any way whatsoever grant or
convey any permanent easement, fee or other interest in a party' s real property to the other Party.

24.      This Agreement, together with all exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire

agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and District have signed this Agreement effective as
of the Effective Date.

ISLAND RECLAMATION

CITY OF LATI3ROP DISTRICT

A California municipal corporation NO. 2062 a CaGfornia reclamation

district

By: By:
Stephen Salvatore, City Manager Susan Dell' Osso, President

ATTEST':

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORIVI:

By:
Salvador V. Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 5 of 7

235



EXI3IBIT " A"

COMMON USE AREA DEPICTION

Page 6 of 7

236



LEGEND

BOUNDARY

LOT LINE

LEVEE EASEMENT BOUNDARY ( RD 2062)

COMMON USE AREA ( RIVERFRONT DRIVE)

O
P\

PARCEL 17

COMMON USE AREA
rnt+cr 3soa cRzz,,,  -------'       `  ,

COMMON USE AREA i p
i

E`
a y

STAGE 2A LEVEE EASEMENT     Q,
Q

P/ s`

U
Q          

14
ti

PAacEL 17 c    p j 7RA a3a cR17) O
7RAC7 3908 IR22)      j    

13    O 15
29

3 12 16

Q    4 11        17
2B 31        U   ,    rq

v

i C.   5 10         18        >   32 42 Z Q
EPARCELI

m       
s    

B
9       

s 25   =   a     a    =    a   s2 Z pU'fR GG
U W

A
20 Q

B8
B 

86

M
IAqTqV   

21   
24

m

35 3g 37 38 39 C     

51

2
U

e ea
es ez

MOZART AVENUE 2 N pR\VE
I

90
91

92       

81 80 79 7B n      & 5 64   62 61 60 59 58 57 56 m 103
102

101 M1 L1 OL

96 97 76

908 R221
99 100 66 67 6B 69 70 71 72 73 74 75

MULHOLLANDDRIVEIF R I ____--

o

G

PARCEL 2

7RAC7 3908 ( R22)

N

EXI--I I IT " A"

01 LL GE AA
o       , So       300      COMMON USE AREA

SCALE:  1" = 300 

IVOVEMBER 2018

237



COMMON USE AGREEMENT

FOR T iE STAGE 2A PORTION OF 1ZIVERFRONT DRIVE
Y AND BETWEEI T THE

CITY OF I.,ATHROP

AND

ISLAND 1tECLAIi IATION DI5TRICT NO. 2062

This COMMON USE AGREEMENT FOR THE STAGE 2A PORTION OF
RIVERFRONT DRIVE, associated with Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop, entered into on this
19th day of November, 2018 (" Agreement") and is made and entered into by ISLAND
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062, a reclamation district organized under the laws of the
State of California( the " District"), and the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation in

the State of Califomia( the " City"), together, " the Parties".

1 ECITALS

A.       This Agreement relates to certain real property to be dedicated to City for public right of
way purposes known as Riverfront Drive; a local street within the River Islands at Lathrop
Master Planned Community, (" River Islands Site"), being developed by River Islands
Development, LLC, ("River Islands").

B.       On May 31, 2018, the District recorded easements across properties owned by Califia,
LLC and River Islands for the right to control and maintain the levees constructed by District for
flood protection purposes to protect development of both the Stage 2A and Stage 2B sub-

planning areas of the River Islands Site(" Levee Easements").

C.       River Islands has proposed Tract 4001, a final map that will create a single family
subdivision within the Stage 2A sub- planning of the River Islands Site, specifically located
within Village AA. Tract 4001 contains a portion of Riverfront Drive, a local street that extends

into a portion of the existing Levee Easements (" Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive"), as

depicted in Exhibit" A" to this Agreement.

D.       The District also is proposing a pipeline to be placed within the right of way of Riverfront
Drive to interconnect lakes owned and/ or maintained by the District(" Lake Interconnect Line")

and to assign a twenty( 20) foot easement at the center line of the Lake Interconnect Line to
allow the District to provide maintenance as necessary after construction, as depicted by Exhibit
B" to this Agreement. The 20- foot easement would be reserved with the recordation of the Tract

4001 final map subject to the terms of the Agreement.

E.       Since the Levee Easements have been recorded to provide appropriate legal access and

authority to District for its flood protection works (" District Works") in accordance with the

State Water Code and applicable FEMA regulations, and these levees are designed to provide

200- year Urban Level of Flood Protection( ULOP) in accordance with approved State

Department of Water Resources Standards and since the City has no objection to the Lake

Page 1 of 7

238



Interconnect Line as proposed by the District, prior to the approval of Tract 4001 and the
dedication of right of way for the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive, the Parties
acknowledge and agree that it is necessary for the Parties to enter into an agreement to outline
the duties and responsibilities of each Party, for the betterment of the public and to avoid
conflicts in each Party' s individual obligations under applicable law to those portions of River
Islands Parkway right of way located within portions of the Levee Easements and within the
Lake Interconnect(" Common Use Area").

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants

hereinafter set forth, City and District do hereby agree as follows:

1. City hereby agrees to the construction, reconstruction, maintenance or use by District of
the District Works located within the Common Use Area which is more particularly described on
Exhibit "A" to this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

2.       District hereby agrees to the construction, reconstruction, maintenance or use by City of
the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive within the Common Use Area which is more

particularly described on Exhibit " A" to this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

3.       District and City acknowledge the priority of title of each other wherever applicable to
the Common Use Area.

4.       District has reviewed the Village AA improvement plans for surface improvements,

underground pipelines, street lighting, landscaping and joint trench construction prepared by
O'Dell Engineering and Power Systems Design and has no objections to the design and proposed
construction of the facilities on these improvement plans that are located within the Common

Use Area.     

5. In the event that the future use of the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive shall at any
time necessitate rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of any of the District' s works within
the Common Use Area, City shall notify District in writing of such necessity pursuant to
applicable sections of the Water Code and City agrees to pay the cost of such rearrangement,
relocation or reconstruction of District' s works following approval of all plans and specifications
of said rearrangement, relocation, or reconstruction by the District, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

6. In the event that the future use of the District Works shall at any time necessitate
rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of any of the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive
within the Common Use Area, District shall notify City in writing of such necessity and District
agrees to pay the cost of such rearrangeinent, relocation or reconstruction of Village AA Portion
of Riverfront Drive following approval of all plans and specifications of said rearrangement,
relocation, or reconstruction by the City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Page 2 of 7

239



7. City shall pay the cost to maintain, repair or replace City' s facilities located in the
Common Use Area at its sole expense, and for construction, rearrangement, modification,

alteration or relocation not requested or undertaken by District, except for dainage resulting from
maintenance, repair or replacement by District.

8.       District or its assignees shall pay the cost to maintain, repair and replace District' s
facilities located in the Common Use Area at its sole expense, and for construction,

rearrangement, modification, alteration or relocation not requested or undertaken by City,
excepting damage resulting froin maintenance, repair or replacement by City.

9.       District, when working within the Common Use Area shall comply with the following
provisions:

a)      Except in times of emergency, including during a high water or flooding event,
District shall provide reasonable notice to City before performing any work in the Common Use
Area where such work will be performed in or on the traveled way or improved shoulders,
sidewalk or landscaping of the roadway or will otherwise obstruct vehicular and/ or pedestrian
traffic.

b) In all cases, District shall make adequate provisions for the protection of the

travelling public and provide such barricades and safety devices as are required by City
standards, and in cases of non- emergency, provide a Traffic Control Plan as required by City
standards and specifications.

c) All work shall be planned and carried out so there will be minimum inconvenience to

the traveling public.

d) All work shall be replacement in kind, conform to the existing facilities as to width
and depth of surfacing thereof, meet all applicable City standards and specifications as
determined by the City Engineer and shall be subject to inspection by City.

10.      District and City shall use said Common Use Area in such manner as to not unreasonably
interfere with the rights of either Party.

11.      District shall not be responsible for any damage occurring to the City facilities in the
Common Use Area that are not as a direct result of the District' s maintenance, construction or

reconstruction activities, or from its flood control facilities located on or near the Common Use

Area. All costs for repairing such damage to City's facilities shall be borne by City.

12.      City shall not be responsible for any damage occurring to District facilities in the
Common Use Area that are not as a direct result of the City' s maintenance, construction or
reconstruction activities of its right of way or improvements on or near the Common Use Area.
All costs for repairing such damage to District' s facilities shall be borne by District.

13.      District is responsible for maintaining the aesthetic, structural integrity, and safety of its
pedestrian bridges constructed by District that may transverse City right of way, including the
Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive, including, but not limited to the bridge decks, piers,
foundations, railings, abutment walls, and ramps. City shall not be responsible for the inspection,
maintenance or repair of any District pedestrian bridges, including safety inspections of the
bridge structure, footings, or abutments.

Page 3 of 7

240



14.      District shall be responsible for the vegetation and weed control activities of its levee

slopes and adjacent areas that may transverse the Common Use Area. City shall be responsible
for any landscaping and irrigation improvements within its right of way, including within the
Common Use Area. The City or its assignees shall become responsibility for weed control within
portions of the Common Use Area that are landscaped by the City.

15.      The District' s right to construct, maintain and operate the Lake Interconnect Line as

prescribed by the easement provided with the recordation of the Tract 4001 Tract Map, shall be
allowed by virtue of an encroachment permit provided by the City of Lathrop, at no charge or
fee, subject to the provisions of Title 12 of the Lathrop Municipal Code and of such amendments
to said Title as may enacted from time to time, as to matters relating to District' s obtaining
permits for the construction, maintenance and repair of its facilities situated within the public

street, safety

precautions, and the repair of public streets due to the presence of said District' s facilities,

District Works or any other District authorized work thereon.

16.      To the extent that the City' s rights to its rights of way for Riverfront Drive under the
applicable laws of the State of California do not hinder or conflict with the rights of the District

under applicable laws of the State of California, such rights of the District shall remain and be in

full force and effect. Should any conflict with the rights of the City by rights of the District be
identified, the District hereby subrogates. its rights to the City, subject to review and approval of
the District' s legal counsel.

17.      This Agreement shall not have a prescribed term. Termination of Agreement shall only
occur if the Common Use Area ceases to be in existence and the need for this Agreement and its

rights and obligations contained herein cease to be necessary. Either Party may provide written
notice of such termination, subject to review and verification of the other Party.

18.      Notices. Any and all notices required to be given hereunder will be deemed to have been
delivered upon deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to either of the

parties at the address hereinafter specified or as later amended by either party in writing:  .

City of Lathrop
Attention: City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Reclamation District No. 2062

73 West Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attention: President

19.      This Agreement, and all terms, covenants, and conditions hereof, will apply to and bind

the successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto. Neither Party will assign nor sublet
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party.

Page 4 of 7

241



20.      This Agreement is governed by California law.

21.      This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in writing signed by both
parties.

22.      Each party must, in all activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, comply and
cause its contractors, agents and employees to comply with all Federal, State and local laws,
statutes, orders, ordinances, rules, and regulations.

23.      It is expressly understood that this Agreement does not in any way whatsoever grant or
convey any permanent easement, fee or other interest in a party' s real property to the other Party.

24.      This Agreement, together with all exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire

agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and District have signed this Agreement effective as
of the Effective Date.

ISLAIVD RECI,AMATION

CITY OF LATHI OP DISTRICT

A California municipal corporation NO. 2062 a California reclamation

district

By: By:
Stephen Salvatore, City Manager Susan Dell' Osso, President

ATTEST:

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Salvador V. Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 5 of 7

242



EXHIBIT " A"

COMMON USE AREA DEPIC' I'ION

Page 6 of 7

243



LEGEND

BOUNDARY

LOT LINE i

LEVEE EASEMENT BOUNDARY ( RD 2062)

COMMON USE AREA ( RIVERFRONT DRIVE) 

Q\0

PARCEL 17

7RAC7 3908 ( R22) 
COMMON USE AREA

i
COMMON USE AREA       ,  p

c

Q4 gs
R

1 STAGE 2A LEVEE EASEMENT
Q       

v

PARCEL 17 2 .   ,

14
7RA 838 ( R17I O :J

TRAC7 3908 ( R22)    %=      
3

123       
g

28

30 44 a~C 45         

4 11  :    ." 17
31        

c7 qs       

V   5 10         18           32 42 .   53
W

PARCEL 1

0
B r

e , 9

19        _.   33 41'   

U .  4Z 52 W V'\
GG

i 88 IyO      
A a

21.  
2q 24

m  

5       qg 49 50 51 .
2

87
66

RT
AVE/V

96 97 38 99 C

B
5  E

jj QR\VEU

ss e2
B1

MOZART AVENUE y    
U

p
tf

91 79 78 57    m 102
so ao u   o     M

92
93

n 65 64 , 63 82 61 60 59 58 103

908 R22) '      

86 97 gg 99 100:  '   
6fi 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76

rti

R  -      __,'

F
MULHOCLANDDRIVEIF__-     

9

PARCEL 2

7RACT 3908 ( R22)    

N

EXHIBIT A,

VILLAGE AA
o       , 50       300      COMMON USE AREA

SCALE:  1- 300 
NOVEMBER 2018

244



EXHIBIT " B"

LAKE INTERCONl ECT LINE DEPICTION

Page 7 of 7

245



LEGEND NOTES LAKE INTERCONNECT LINE
AIONUMENT TO BE SET PER( Rl7) 200. 00'( R1) AIEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)      LDT LINE t. 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAMPE' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
SET STAN AR CITY OF LATHROP AIIXJIIMENT WELI STAAIPE' PLS 7788"    ( R1)    ENOlES REFERENCE( R7)- SEE REFERENCE LIST ON SHEEi 2 RIGHT- 0E- WAY LINE CONCREIE$ IDEWALK 1. 00' INTO hIE PoCHT- OF- WAY,      

TRACT 400 - VILLAGE AA
3/ 4' IRON PIPE YA7H PLASPC PIUG' PLS 7788' PER( R17),   AI- M)   AIONUNENT i0 MONUMENT BOUNDARY A ONG PROLONGAPON Of SI E LOT LINES, OR AS NOIED.

UNLE55 OhIER1NSE NOTE    
2. 5/ 8' REBAR YAiH CAP' PLS 7788' i0 BE SET AT ALL

q pORPON OF RPNCHO E PESCAOERO, BEINC
M- B)   AIONUAIENT TO 60UNDARY EASEMENT LINE

REM LOT CORNERS, UNLE55 O1HQtX15E NOiED.
SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W17H PLASnC PLUG" PLS 7788'      

AI- BC)   MONUMENT i0 BECANNMG OF A CURYE CENTERIJNE 3. SEE SMEET 2 FOR A OITIONAL NOiES AN REFERENCES. 
A wBDIN510N OF PARCEL I OF 7RACT 3908( 43 4hP 52),

EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER, SEE SHEET 3
n TOTAL RESTRIC7ED ACCESS 4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS Of BEARMGS.   

CITY OF LA7HROP, CWNTY OF SAN, qAIXIIN, CAIIFORNIA

1 I. 17' BRA55 ISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' ON 1 FOOT OFFSET TO BE SET    ( B)     BWNDPRY
5. SEE SHEEi IS FOR LME AND CURVE TABLES.  SEP7EMBER 2018

PER( R17)      P. U. E PUBIJC UPLItt EASEAIENi

1. 17' BRA55 DISK SiAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE

SIDEWAlI( I. 00' INiO 7HE RICNT- Oi- WAY, ALONC PROLONCATION OF SDE

Oi uNES io eE seT aeR( an) N G 1 N E+Z 1 N G
z. sa'  

N3) 5/ B' REBAR YAiH CAP' PLS 7788' PER( R17) 

C96( T)   _-
3/ 4' IRON PIPE N17H PUSTIC PLUG' PLS 7788'      R= 1278. 00'       N7521' S8' W 419. 83'( T)    

PER( R17)     d= 76' 07' 04' L= 646720' B T   >

a'   2C   o'       4G.

N20' JB' 20' E( R)      

417. 29'   g n ..= 4 i

i n
RIVERFRONT DRIVE oN

HEETI
13 us M- ec'   (

M- eC     NBOV1' 21 W
R= 305. Op' d= 6' 00' 18' L= 136. 77'( M- M) N7521' S8' W 119. 97' M- M)    N75' 21' S8' W 263. 71'( M- M)      C90

i - - -       !
o,  

159. 55' M-// 1

C66 T

64. 97 55. 00'   

I
55. 00'   753. 71' S5. 00'    

c      '.  

418. 16'(

N    /     

S

l

N80' O7' 21' W
q 8 S

g
PARCELD     I g

n 6S1 SF.    I
g

r+ snrsa' w          I m

o 0----------------   --         
cioo  ;,-li^

05  °      cs- f  ` '     I CENTERLINE OF 20' WIDE
5' P. U. E

Cfi8

1   

0

82. 71' 79. 00'   , 9'J       

N    ('

70. 00'   __' I
JO. 00' 44

I  .__'   __ 4   m M 9 ,
I I 30 m"'     w.00 o. 00'

S, fi84 S. F.     I-  3( 1. 00'    30. 00'   I I I

I
v i, I 6, 579 S. F.  m            ----- 45--      6. 209 S. F. ---       

n I I I 7. 959 S. F.   
w

I
I

N75' 21' S8' W
I I

a' = 

I
IN6971' 40' W

I 100. 00'      I  "' Z

w 107. 31'  

I W. 00'      
I I

N7521' S8' W w > m
I

I I I 10J. 71'    I r Q
o gl 3   s. 000 s. v.     

i<    
I-  m       N szYsa' w

54 i$ 
z       _   

I
5. 481 S. F. w  ^

2 I      "' I I i 5. 350 S. F.     v" i i   I

mU
I 100. 00'      

46 10' P. U. E.   I Z
N6977, p• W

L117 g I 5. 913 S. F.       IN7521' S8' W I 2 100. 00'    
w

I I 709. 79'     I V   I I

f- 10' P. U. E.      
42 g  

z 10' P. U. E.  
N7521' S8' W

I h
m

I

g I 10}. 91'       
32 5, 421 S. F.       I o

iI 5. 193S. f.     I N7571' 58' W
l   --    Q>I 10' P. U. E.

N

30. 00'_    
L127 5. 51135. F.     

I

Y 

30.00' 
I

30. 00'   I w
L120 116. 83'   30. 00'    '

o\ o
U

Ir        
m olry I

N69' 7' 40 W
N7521 SB• W

IM

100. 80'     c%     ,  ,'    99 91'      I

m
I ` W

w  gi q      i  _    <            NnnroSw( a)    N

w      

In          

5. 1543S. F.  
5, 345 S. F.     $     

1//-
4. 00.     < II 10. 784 S. F. 

I

N
II

LLI 101. 98'    
I

t/ N7521' S8' W "    
52 n r      I

Cn             Nfi971' p' W A
F 6. 517 S. F.     

705. 34'   

N 7 52 1' S 6' W 1
EES 1 3   10' P. U. E. NB7' 02' 41' W( R) 

I• p      

I      
I N8251' 32' W( R)     _ 

ONSN'     \   I

n      40 7320
W 112.

Sfi o I

34 C N.   1'   L126   NBb 5257    a IQ
1

5. 643 S. F. 6. 928 S. F. y s' SO

1
d= 270' 3   /   

N82' 25' Sfi W 99. 99' 4999'       

g 
I I

N71' 27' 31' W 109. 98'    N7T 1' 37' W 149. 95      

LI25\_   C85 49. 99'    

49. 99    

I         
59. 99"     

50. 00'      49. 95'      50. 00'       

J

J 149. 99'
S1

5, 824
mi I 1

S' P. U. E.     I I 50   '

Y
o S. F. 

pW  (I qg      5, 24a 5' P. U. E.-      .       155
c

i I w g 48       5. 235 s.F.   z
3oA° 1

35     s 36    8 37    t 38   I 39 S  
0

5, 2351  '     S. F.

I^ 6, 053 SF. 5, 239 y, 0 5, 254      5293
c'

P = 
5. 254 S. F.     o.

I S. F. S. F.   n   S. F.      I S. F. 

1

0

10' P. 0 E
L751    7+

J0. 00''
i-  _'       

o

y^   

11' E
30. 00'      

J     _-        C79

1' ^  , 59
Rl   M B  52

z
o

o.  
z

z o

i i i s

1
a       

0
1 0' P. U. E.

C7 8 N 0 2' 4 9' 4 1' E( R)  $. N00

Cg 9      
q          

C76
C77

J

c e 1
R

c cn c 3 c a

PARCEL C 8.  
v'I

N

R= 1708. 00' C= 15' S6' 17' 1= 475. 11' T m

S  N18' 45' S8' E( R)      3. 076 S. F.    -   -  NO2' N' 41' E( R)  I n

1

I

N207B' 20' E R
596. 2' M-)    EX H I B I T BR= 1738. 0' 4= 19' 39' 07'_       W pp  `

N, asz sz• e( a>      MOZARTAVENUE
3pp0  '     

G I n

p= 1768. 00' = 16' OB' 11' 1= 49792' 1)    

PAG E 1s SEE SHEET 10 1     

246



DETAILE LAKE INTERCONNECT LINEN'
521

w<
9. N7878' 544W

N80bi' z^ W
45955' r NOT TO SCALE

ea•     /- zsr 5g9 - r RNER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
N) 5.       qi      

T)  
C9  .  E 6

W 163.
M? M)

C`

o SEE DETAIL E ON THIS SHEET    ' 

25

Ngpp 2•

xN` J: 33? g w
5960o

R-
26750     

N69

9,

g R   

TRACT 4001 - VILLAGE AA
O

S Ss. pp   L S
M- B   M- g  $     FOR DETAIL Of EASEMENT( 1     

3qyZg   N64' 29' 28' W

5g' S5' T       
d_ 3T56_35'` n

h
X/    

c9

A SUBDINS ION OF PARCELCt

OFLiRACTA
908( 43IM8P 51),

C90 n L= 19. 30'     S9<       N73' 13' 28" W r     y R 7     N7472' S7" R Cltt OF LAIHROP, CWNtt OF SAN JOAOUIN, CALIFORNIA

4     c R/ EqF 29. 25' 
32

W SEP7EM ER 2010

j     n RO     _  N0321' O7' E R

g R I VE Na o rorzrW 4

39
v'    ` ., 

C—

o

n 12i' W 459. 55'( M\  

59. 55'( T)   __
o.'

O      

Ni2' S9' oa' E R)    
rveuui n w in. io      )_       j g. /   

ij O      N G 1 N$$ f 1 N G

i    35I. 75' oo      

C95      
1   Y

i.   I p'(M_
ul     w      ¢  N    

W N80b1' 21' W 459. 55'( T)%        
I R= 350. 00' d= 31' 27' S0"` S W> o

zS' A`.-'

J -
L,   

loo'

CENTERLINE OF 20' WIDE i      3+•«--' O
ry  /-

W ; 

LAKE FILL PIPELINE EASEMENT 0, 80,     "/_-

C8=83. 00'_ 4=
C92 8 8'

10

3; 9
aa  o

3 C97( ft17)     
C N14' 22' S7' W R

C99

Wi    
N. 10' P. U. E.    NO3' 23' 01' E R

32

30.
N— 10' P. LLE N PARCEL E   '

1~      /w      ,° J0.00,-
0 /    0 41. 061 S. F.     

m           SEE SH ET 14 FOR TAI F o`Q̀`'`           
LEGEND

Z/y N       EASEMENTS ACROSS PARCEL E
j y=    

39 AION PFR( R77)
MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R17)

p    

e,           
v20_00'      OO SET STAN AR CITY OF LA7HROP AIONUAIENi KELL STAAIPEO' PLS 7788

V4i
E             5" Z 3/ 4' IRON PIPE N11H PLASTIC PLUG' PLS 7788' PER( R22),

Z I,  "
4

I CENTERLINE OF     `       

P         

7RAC7 3338 IR17)    F- I uN ESs O7HER nSE NOIE

o W    "        15 W1DE    / q">;       

3I    ' SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE VA7H PLASPC PLUG' PLS 7788'

f- a I EASEMENT REFERENCE NUAIBER, SEE SHEET 7o' M     PUB IC ACCESS   C , o      ,       O O

o  o        PARCEL 1 EASEMENT
3, 

U 200. 00'( RI) MEASURED M! D FECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)

o w o        
191, 624 S. F.  w W    R1)    DENOIES REFQ2ENCE( R1)-$ EE REFERENCE IJST ON SHEET 2

m m li          W M- M)   MONUMENT TO AIONUMENT

N8557' S1" W( R) A       a       

o     
M- B)   MONUMENT TO BOUN ARY

I 1     

r/-    

I    

I       
25 26      p

I  
27       ( u- ec)  ua+uuENr ro eccir+r+ ir+c or n cuav

j  -
30. 00' \ I

v    

J  =   T)     TOTAL
30. 00'      /`     

L144-(T)  
SJ.\  B)     BOUNDARY

45. 00'   45. 00'/    P. U. E.   PUBLIC U17LItt EASEMENT
N00' S9' 73" E( R e m $ T --- I--'     \ 

LOT LINE
LI51 0 I          

MON PER         I RIGHT- OF- WAY LINEF= 1738. 00'     AI- BC   "    19. 38'  I I /(
R     g MON PER R17d=19' 39' OT= 596. 12'  C89 L152

l

N3452' 42' E I I /      I             BOUNDAflY

M- M)   In a I y,
l   a. 00'      ies. 00' r      _ _      -— EASEMENTLINE

o• 

z
ensr zss. 00'( u- M>( en 

OUTRIGGER LANE i  aesm icho nccess

o           

P. U. E. I
1. 17' BRASS DISK STAIAPE" PLS 7788' ON t F00T OFFSET TO 9E SET

ao. 00'  ao. 00' i w aea( Rn)

I 2 1. 17' BRA55 DISK STAMPEO' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE
I I

m 9DEWALN 1. 00' INTO iHE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGA710N OF SI E

I I H$ LOT LMES TO BE SET PER( R17)

o       o I 8 I n^o y 4
Z3 22 2]      ( 5/ 8' REBAR N1hi CAP' PLS 7788' PER( R77)

f-
I I     m p  4 J/ 4' IRON PIPE' MTH PLASiIC PLUG" PLS 7788' PER( R77)

w  ;,    n i EasT iso.00'( r 
I  S       

xn ^       ' i so. 00 so. ao     so. 00 i o NOTES
w       msl I

8
W I         

I
1. 1. 17' BRA55 DISK STAAIPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON

I
H

i

I

o

r

CONCREiE 9DEWAl1( 1. 00' INTO 1HE RIGHT- 0E- WAY,o

lO3 $  lOZ o    ALONG PROLONGAPON OF SIDE LOT LWES, OR AS NOiED.

I o g 5, 050 0  5, 050 0  5, 050
g 2. 5/ 8' REBAR N17H CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET Ai ALL

REAR LOT CORNERS, IINLESS OiHERW15E NOIED.1 5' P. U. E.    SF. 
f   

SF, "  SF.                
I Z 3 4

3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDI710NA1 NOlES AND REFERENCES.30. 00'  30. pp'  
10' P. U. E. I <----   4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINCS.

L141 T     45. 00'    5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR LWE AND CURYE TABLES.

o
2 _  176. 31'    S0. 00'     S0. 00'     50. 00'     60. 0'   27. 19'   g

EAST 373. 50'( T)

u0N PER( R17)
N

45. 00' NIf EAST 407. 39'( M- M)( R17)

MULHOLLAND DRIVE
ensr— -

FUTuae   MULHOLLAND DRNE EX H I B I T B
PARCEL 2

Taacr aeoa Rzv io I 9 a 7
PAGE 2

247



N64' 29' 28' W LAKE INTERCONNECT LINE
se. u'( r)  PkZCEL 17

3, ze.   
rn.4cr aeoa iezz     RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

s TRACT 4001 - VILLAGE AA

i A PORiION OF RM'CHD EL PESCADERO, BEINC

neuur
w q      

Ngpq 21.     
A SUBDINSION OF PARCEL I OF iRACi 3908( 4} M8P 51),

b. io       
W

15955'( y_ M   
Cltt OF LAiHROP, CWNTY OF SAN JOAWIN, CALIGORNIA

SEPICMOCR 2018

RIVERFRONT DRIVE

CEN7EpUNE pF       \- `` N», U' zs.w s. sa' z2r( u- ul
tiao' oi' 2• W

zp N9DE LAKE u g
R_ 350. 00' C- 3TY7' S8'    

E N G 1 N£ R 1 N G
59. ss. p PIPEIINE

EASEMENT           I351. I5'  

15. 63'  
8   N

o'   _.   .,       , oa

zi. sa p 

O
a

0.67' R= 267. 50_ C_ 3T56' 35' L= 1112. 9i T) _--'      c

IO7. B0'(
iNPARCELE)       '

4  ?

50'       

CEN Ef NE F 20 W E 3i R= 38300' A= 3f27' 58 L= 210' 34 1)
R17)

4= 6' JS' 
c F'( B)

10' P. U. E.  1
1= 44. 08' 215219

LAKF FILL PIPELINE EASEMENT
i Noa73ro• ER

CENTERt1NE OF 15' WtDE
p= 75. ao'

WATER L1NE EASEMENT t Z ar36-

7
LEGEND

L 253. 07'

q_ ppp•   IAONUMENi TO 6E SEi PER( R17)

2I 7' JS'        C' SET 51ANDARD Cltt Oi U7HROP HONVMENT NELL STANPED' PLS 7789'
L= 234.0J'/      3/ 1 IRON PIPE MiTH PLASPC PWG PLS 7788' PEP( R21),

PARCEL t
7 CENTERLINE OF uN ss oNCRvns r+a o

PARCEL E t5' wtDE s r a/" iaa vipE vnm Purnc a uc' P s nea'
at, 06i SE PUBLIC ACCESS

N 39 EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER, SEE SMEET 3
EASEMENT

pp, pp'( RI) ME SURED AND RECOR DAiA PER REFERENCE( R1)

W
N" M)   MONUAIENi TOypN UMENT-

ffE REFEREVCE!'. Si CN SFEET 2

w
N- B)   MONUIIENT i0 BOUNOARY

W M- BC)   MONUMENT TO BEGINNING OF A CURVC

m tiry TOiAL

BJ BWNOARY

P. U. E.    PUBLIC UiIIJTY EASEMENT
o #'       y0

eq:

2,   
LOi LINE

r'   TRAC7 3a3a ( R171
aip+r- oF- wnruNe

BWNDARY

EASENENiLJNE

CE717ERLINE

CENTERLME OF U
iiiiiiiiiiiii RESiRICTED ACCE55

20' W1DE LAKE FlLL
PIPELINE EASEMENT J » BRASS DISK STAMPm' PLS 7788' ON 1 FOOT OFFSET TO BE SET

io''      PER( R17)

o''; h
vl » ASS OISK SiAMPED PLS 7788' i0 BE SET ON CONCREIE

O     9DEWPi1( 7. 00' INTO 1HE RIGHT- Oi- WAV, ALONG PROLONGAiION OF SIDE

LOi 11NE$ i0 BE SET PER( R17)

3' S/ B' REBAR NIiH CAP' PLS 7788' PER( R17)

3/' IRON PIPE 1NTM PLASTIC PWG' PLS 7788' PER( R17)

CENTERLINE OF 20' WIDE w
cEN RUNE o    LAKE FILL PIPELINE EASEMENT

26 Z NOTES

15' VADE p t. 1. 77' BRASS DISN STAAIPE' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON

PUBLIC ACCESS     /      CENTERLINE OF 15' W1DE
CONCREiE SI EwAU( I. 00' INiO 1HE RIGHi- OF- wAY,

EASEMENT    `     
WpTER LINE EASE fENT

woNc PRaoNcnnor or voc ar ur+ Es, oR s Noho.

2. 5/ B' REBAR VA7H CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALl

T REAR LOT CORNERS, UNLE55 OiHERN15E NOIED.

3. SEE SMEET 1 FOR AODIPONAL NOlES AND REFERE7rCE5.

y.      4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR 0AS15 Of BEARWCS.

o      
5. SEE SMEET t5 FOR L'NE AND CURVE TnBLES.

o..      

e   a
10' P. U. E( R77)  z

n.
v

ff

e
Iz

r___(^_________   
I' 

DETNLOFEASEMENTSACROSS

Easi 90. 00'    
PAFCEL E

NOT To A      

EXH I B IT Bs. 00'     4s. ao
R+ou sH r iz)

o P E    8
PAGE 3

DELL' OSSO DRIVE

248



ATTACHMENT D

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS ' -  --   - -----  ---- - --  -  -- --   '

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

November 19, 2018
1

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103

Stockton, CA 95219

Attn:  Karen Sayles

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 4001; Escrow No. 1614020161

Dear Karen:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Insfructions") of River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company (" R/D"), and the City of
Lathrop (" Cif}') in connection with the above- referenced escrow(" Escrovd'). The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the
Transaction." Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designatetl by RID as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 31, 2018, at the time
designated in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each a " C/osin'). If the Final Map has not been recorded by June 30, 2019, ORTC will

return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" Official Records").

B. 1.  One original Final Map for Tract 4001, executed and
acknowledged by the City.

B. 2.  One original Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Riverfront Drive

and Bosch Avenue, executed and acknowledged by the City.

The documents listed in Items B. 1 and B. 2 above are referred to as the "Recordation
Documents." The Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the order referred to

above.  The date on which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the Official

Records is the Recordation Date.

1

249



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the

Recordation Documents, in immediately available funds, the following amounts`, in
accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RID and City (" Setflement Stafemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RID.

C. 1 Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below,
immediately upon recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer
instructions for each entity are set forth below:

The amount of$ 68, 327. 19, payable to the City pursuant to that certain
Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop, as amended

Sierra Club Agreement"), constituting the amount of$ 3, 076 multiplied by
22. 22 acres ( or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to
the City upon recordation of the Final Map.  The City' s wire instructions are set
forth below.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " Closing Funds."

D.       Closinp Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time( s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1. You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to: Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellossoCa riverislands. com), Debbie Belmar

dbelmar( c riverislands. com), Stephen Salvatore ( ssalvatore( c ci. lathrop. ca. us), Salvador

Navarrete ( snavarreteCc ci. lathrop. ca. us), Cari James ( ciames( c ci. lathrop. ca. us) and Glenn

Gebhardt( gQebhardt( a ci. lathrop. ca. us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is
accurate and` acceptable.

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions.  

D. 3. The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all
legal descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached.

D. 4. You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents, as
designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete
the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions.

D. 5. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by

2

250



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation

Documents and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded.

E.2.  Record the Recordation Documents in the Official Records.

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following
entity and address:-

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. 5.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov. org) of the completion of the Transaction.

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) busiriess days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to:  ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330;
and ( 2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330:

A)   A certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

B)   A certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.
Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,
by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning_it to both of the undersigned.

3

251



JOINT ESCIaOW INSTRUCTIORI

RECORDe4TION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLAND i4T LATHROP)

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Susan Dell' Osso

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Development, LLC

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and the City is hereby
acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed

in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions. The undersigned represents and

warrants to RID and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

4

252



ATTACHIVIEIvIT E

COMIVIOI T USE AGREEMENT

FOR THE STAGE 2A PORTION OF RIVERFRONT D12IVE
B' ANI) BETWEEN THE

CITY OF LATH120P

AND

ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062

This COMMON USE AGREEMENT FOR THE STAGE 2A PORTION OF

RIVERFRONT DRIVE, associated with Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop, entered into on this
19th day of November, 201 (" Agreement") and is made and entered into by ISLAND
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062, a reclamation district organized under the laws of the

State of California( the " District"), and the CITY OF LATH1tOP, a municipal corporation in

the State of California( the " City"), together, " the Parties".

IgECITALS

A.       This Agreement relates to certain real property to be dedicated to City for public right of
way purposes known as Riverfront Drive; a local street within the River Islands at Lathrop
Master Planned Community, (" River Islands Site"), being developed by River Islands
Development, LLC, (" River Islands").

B.       On May 31, 2018, the District recorded easements across properties owned by Califia,
LLC and River Islands for the right to control and maintain the levees constructed by District for
flood protection purposes to protect development of both the Stage 2A and Stage 2B sub-

planning areas of the River Islands Site(" Levee Easements").

C.       River Islands has proposed Tract 4001, a final map that will create a single family
subdivision within the Stage 2A sub- planning of the River Islands Site, specifically located
within Village AA. Tract 4001 contains a portion of Riverfront Drive, a local street that extends

into a portion of the existing Levee Easements (" Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive"), as

depicted in Exhibit " A" to this Agreement.

D.       The District also is proposing a pipeline to be placed within the right of way of Riverfront
Drive to interconnect lakes owned and/ or maintained by the District (" Lake Interconnect Line")

and to assign a twenty( 20) foot easement at the center line of the Lake Interconnect Line to
allow the District to provide inaintenance as necessary after construction, as depicted by Exhibit
B" to this Agreement. The 20- foot easement would be reserved with the recordation of the Tract

4001 final map subject to the terms of the Agreement.

E.       Since the Levee Easements have been recorded to provide appropriate legal access and

authority to District for its flood protection works (" District Works") in accordance with the

State Water Code and applicable FEMA regulations, and these levees are designed to provide

200- year Urban Level of Flood Protection ( ULOP) in accordance with approved State

Department of Water Resources Standards and since the City has no objection to the Lake

Page 1 of 7

253



l

Interconnect Line as proposed by the District, prior to the approval of Tract 4001 and the
dedication of right of way for the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive, the Parties
acknowledge and agree that it is necessary for the Parties to enter into an agreement to outline
the duties and responsibilities of each Party, for the betterment of the public and to avoid
conflicts in each Party' s individual obligations under applicable law to those portions of River
Islands Parkway right of way located within portions of the Levee Easements and within the
Lake Interconnect(" Common Use Area").

AGREEMENT       ,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants

hereinafter set forth, City and District do hereby agree as follows:

1. City hereby agrees to the construction, reconstruction, maintenance or use by District of
the District Works located within the Common Use Area which is more particularly described on
Exhibit " A" to this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

2.       District hereby agrees to the construction, reconstruction, maintenance or use by City of
the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive within the Common Use Area which is more

particularly described on Exhibit "A" to this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

3.       District and City acknowledge the priority of title of each other wherever applicable to
the Common Use Area.

4.       District has reviewed the Village AA improvement plans for surface improvements,

underground pipelines, street lighting, landscaping and joint trench construction prepared by
O'Dell Engineering and Power Systems Design and has no objections to the design and proposed
construction of the facilities on these improvement plans that are located within the Common

Use Area.

5.       In the event that the future use of the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive shall at any

time necessitate rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of any of the District' s works within
the Common Use Area, City shall notify District in writing of such necessity pursuant to
applicable sections of the Water Code and City agrees to pay fhe cost of such rearrangement,
relocation or reconstruction of District' s works following approval of all plans and specifications
of said rearrangement, relocation, or reconstruction by the District, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.      

6. In the event that the future use of the District Works shall at any time necessitate
rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of any of the Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive
within the Common Use Area, District shall notify City in writing of such necessity and District
agrees to pay the cost of such rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of Village AA Portion
of Riverfront Drive following approval of all plans and specifications of said rearrangement,
relocation, or reconstruction by the City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Page 2 of 7

254



7. City shall pay the cost to maintain, repair or replace City's facilities located in the
Common Use Area at its sole expense, and for construction, rearrangement, modification,

alteration or relocation not requested or undertaken by District, except for damage resulting from
maintenance, repair or replacement by District.

8.       District or its assignees shall pay the cost to maintain, repair and replace District' s
facilities located in the Common Use Area at its sole expense, and for construction,

rearrangement, modification, alteration or relocation not requested or undertaken by City,

excepting damage resulting from maintenance, repair or replacement by City.

9.       District, when working within the Common Use Area shall comply with the following
provisions:

a)      Except in times of emergency, including during a high water or flooding event,
District shall provide reasonable notice to City before performing any work in the Common Use
Area where such work will be performed in or on the traveled way or improved shoulders,
sidewalk or landscaping of the roadway or will otherwise obstruct vehicular and/ or pedestrian
traffic.

b) In all cases, District shall make adequate provisions for the protection of the

travelling public and provide such barricades and safety devices as are required by City
standards, and in cases of non-emergency, provide a Traffic Control Plan as required by City
standards and specifications.

c) All work shall be planned and carried out so there will be minimum inconvenience to

the traveling public.

d) All work shall be replacement in kind, conform to the existing facilities as to width
and depth of surfacing thereof, meet all applicable City standards and specifications as
determined by the City Engineer and shall be subject to inspection by City.

10.      District and City shall use said Common Use Area in such manner as to not unreasonably
interfere with the rights of either Party.

11.      District shall not be responsible for any damage occurring to the City facilities in the
Common Use Area that are not as a direct result of the District' s maintenance, construction or

reconstruction activities, or from its flood control facilities located on or near the Common Use

Area. All costs for repairing such damage to City's facilities shall be borne by City.

12.      City shall not be responsible for any damage occurring to District facilities in the
Common Use Area that are not as a direct result of the City' s maintenance, construction or
reconstruction activities of its right of way or improvements on or near the Common Use Area.
All costs for repairing such damage to District's facilities shall be borne by District.

13.      District is responsible for maintaining the aesthetic, structural integrity, and safety of its
pedestrian bridges constructed by District that may transverse City right of way, including the
Village AA Portion of Riverfront Drive, including, but not limited to the bridge decks, piers,
foundations, railings, abutment walls, and ramps. City shall not be responsible for the inspection,
maintenance or repair of any District pedestrian bridges, including safety inspections of the
bridge structure, footings, or abutments.

Page 3 of 7

255



14.      District shall be responsible for the vegetation and weed control activities of its levee

slopes and adjacent areas that may transverse the Common Use Area. City shall be responsible
for any landscaping and irrigation improvements within its right of way, including within the
Common Use Area. The City or its assignees shall become responsibility for weed control within
portions of the Common Use Area that are landscaped by the City.

15.      The District' s right to construct, maintain and operate the Lake Interconnect Line as

prescribed by the easement provided with the recordation of the Tract 4001 Tract Map, shall be
allowed by virtue of an encroachment permit provided by the City of Lathrop, at no charge or
fee, subject to the provisions of Title 12 of the Lathrop Municipal Code and of such amendments
to said Title as may enacted from time to time, as to matters relating to District's obtaining
permits for the construction, maintenance and repair of its facilities situated within the public

street, safety

precautions, and the repair of public streets due to the presence of said District' s facilities,

District Works or any other District authorized work thereon.

16.      To the extent that the City' s rights to its rights of way for Riverfront Drive under the
applicable laws of the State of California do not hinder or conflict with the rights of the District

under applicable laws of the State of California, such rights of the District shall remain and be in

full force and effect. Should any conflict with the rights of the City by rights of the District be
identified, the District hereby subrogates its rights to the City, subject to review and approval of
the District' s legal counsel.

17.      This Agreement shall not have a prescribed term. Termination of Agreement shall only
occur if the Common Use Area ceases to be in existence and the need for this Agreement and its

rights and obligations contained herein cease to be necessary. Either Party may provide written
notice of such termination, subject to review and verification of the other Party.

18.      Notices. Any and all notices required to be given hereunder will be deemed to have been
delivered upon deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to either of the

parties at the address hereinafter specified or as later amended by either party in writing:

City of Lathrop
Attention: City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Reclamation District No. 2062

73 West Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attention: President

19.      This Agreement, and all terms, covenants, and conditions hereof, will apply to and bind
the successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto. Neither Party will assign nor sublet
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party.

Page 4 of 7

256



I

20.      This Agreement is governed by California law.

21.      This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in writing signed by both
parties.

22.      Each party must, in all activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, comply and
cause its contractors, agents and employees to comply with all Federal, State and local laws,
statutes, orders, ordinances, rules, and regulations.

23.      It is expressly understood that this Agreement does not in any way whatsoever grant or
convey any permanent easement, fee or other interest in a party's real property to the other Party.

24.      This Agreement, together with all exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire

agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and District have signed this Agreement effective as
of the Effective Date.

ISLAND RECLAMATION

CITY OF LATHROP DISTRICT

A California municipal corporation 1V0. 2062 a California reclamation

district

By: By:
Stephen Salvatore, City Manager Susan Dell'Osso, President

ATT ST:

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Salvador V. Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 5 of 7

257



EXHIBIT " A"

COMMON USE AREA DEPICTION

i

Page 6 of 7

258



LEGEND

BOUNDARY

LOT NE

LEVEE EASEMENT BOUNDARY ( RD 2062)

COMMON USE AREA ( RIVERFRONT DRIVE)

0

PARCEL 17

COMMON USE AREA
r u+cr asos cRzzi,  ,-------'    

COMMON USE AREA

P' P F'C

Q`

OC,

O

gs
c

STAGE 2A LEVEE EASEMENT

tni       `

1  ``    -      

V
Q

L------       

PARCEL 17 2 '    

14 j TRA 838 ( R17) O
7RAC7 3908 fR22)      J<V

18    O 15
P9

30 44 2 45 55 4       3 12 16

jQ 4 11        17
2B 31        

c.7 46
54

c''
v

V   5 10 y    18           32         a W PARCEL 1

0       
6    

B
9

19 25   =   a     a    U ai z W p'( R GG
A U 34 40

BB
87

e6

M
2A9TqV N

20   

23 24
m

35 38 37 38 39  48 49 50 51 2
85 UF Y

B
es az MOZART AVENUE p,N

pRN

I
g 

91
92

g3      

81
gp 79 7e       

65 84 63 62 61 60 59 58 57 56 m 103
102101

MVLH

908' R221

96 97 9e gg 100
66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76

O

F
MULHOLLANDDRIVEI

aE_---'  

p

9
L
t

PARCEL 2

7RACT 3908 IR22)

N

EXHI IT "A"

i/I LLACa E A/
o       , 50       300      COMfVION USE AREA

S A:  , - 3°° 

NOVEIVIBER 2018

259



EXHIBIT " B"

LAKE INTERCONIVECT LINE DEPICTION

Page 7 of 7

260



LEGEND

BOUNDARY

LOT NE

LEVEE EASEMENT BOUNDARY ( RD 2062)

COMMON USE AREA ( RIVERFRONT DRIVE)

0

PARCEL 17

COMMON USE AREA
rnacr asoa Rzz      ,  ------'     \`  ,

i

i

COMMON USE AREA       ,    J, a,

o/      ays y
Rr

STAGE 2A LEVEE EASEMENT     Q, F

Q 

U

14

PARCEL 17
7RA 838 ( R17)  O

2 J

7RACT 3908 1R22)      J<4
13    O 15

29
30 44      45 553 12        16

2B
v

Q 4 11 J
17

3t     `   U rl
Qv

C   5
6               

18
27      

32 42         
PARCELI

Q

m   B
9

s 2s i        a        a   s Z p'(
P`

GGER

E

A
20 Q

B    

A7
86 

RTq FN 

21   
24

m

35 3g 37 38 99 p 48 49 50 51

W

89
90

ez
B 80

MOZARTAVENUE

y tot U N,
A

DO`
V

9  
92

93    

9 78 n      `  gq 63 62 61 60 59 58 57  `  ca 102

908 fR22) 

96
97   

99 100
66 67 88 69 70 71 72 3 4 5  6

MULHOLLAND DRIVE IF UR I ___---' 
o

G
tt

PARCEL 2

TRAC7 3908 lR22)

N

EXHI IT " A"

VILLACaE A 4

o       , So       300      COMMOtV USE AREA
SCALE:  1• - 300 

IVOVEM ER 2018

261



EXHIBIT " B"

LAKE INTERCONNECT LINE DEPICTION

Page 7 of 8

262



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 4. 12       
NOVEMBER 19, 2018 SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING      ,  

ITEM:       COMNIUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS ANNUAL BOND

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT FOR FY 2017/ 18

RECOMMENDATION:     Receive Report for Bonded and Non Bonded

Community Facilities Districts

SUMMARY:    

As mandated by the California Government Code sections 53411 and 50075. 3, City
Staff is submitting the Annual Bond Accountability Report for the City' s Community
Facilities Districts (' CFDs") for FY ended June 30, 2018.

BACKGROUND:

Senate Bill 165 enacted the Local Agency Special Tax Bond Accountability Act. This
Act requires the annual preparation of a report containing specific information
concerning the use of the proceeds or annual special taxes for CFDs. The Act only
applies to bonds issued on or after) anuary 1, 2001 in accor-dance with Section 53410
of the California Government Code. There are seven CFDs included in the FY 2017/ 18

annual report, three bonded CFDs and four non- bonded services CFDs shown on

separate pages ( see Attachment "A" for a detailed listing).

Section 53411 and 50075. 3 of the "California Government Code requires the chief

fiscal officer of the issuing local agency to file the annual report with its governing
body no later than Jan 1 every year.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The report will ensure compliance with Sections 53410, 53411 and 50075. 3 of the

California Government Code.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff time to prepare report.  

ATTAC H M E NTS:  

A.       Annual CFD Report for FY Ending June 30, 2018.

263



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 SPECIi4L CITY COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY Fe4CILITIES DISTRICTS ANNUAL OfVD ACCOUNTABILITY

ItEPORT FOR FY 2017/ 18

APPIZOVALS:

D  b
Cari James/    Date

Finance Dir c r-

1  -/ D r/ 

g'
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

o• l l

S en Salvatore Date

City Manager

264



ATTACHMENT  {      "

CITY OF LATHROP

BOfVDED COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS REPORT

FOR FY ENDED 6/ 30/ 2018

Initial Amount Deposited to

Improvement Fund or 6/ 30/ 2018 Expended Project

District Project Costs( 1)      Balance Amount Status( 2)

CFD 2003- 1

Mossdale Village- Water)       6, 716, 563. 00 0. 00       $ 6, 716, 563. 00 Complete

CFD 2003- 2

Joint Wastewater) 6, 096, 532. 33 0. 00       $ 6, 096, 532. 33 Complete

CFD 2006- 1

Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Infrastructure)    37, 263, 908. 50 50. 81      $ 37, 263, 857. 69 Ongoing

Note ( 1)

For CFD 2006- 1 amount excludes$ 4, 000, 000 initially deposited in the Escrow Fund per the Bond Indenture.

Note ( 2)

For CFD 2003- 2, the project is now complete.

For CFD 2006- 1, the Improvement Fund proceeds of the initial issuance are almost completely expended, however
the CFD is authorized for an additional $ 150 million of special tax bonds and future proceeds are meant to fund a

portion of a project within an overall estimated cost( in 2006 dollars) of$ 271 million.

265



CITY OF LATHROP

NON- BONDED COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS REPORT

FOR FY ENDED 6/ 30/ 2018

Special Taxes Expended

7/ 1/ 2017 collected during Amount and 6/ 30/ 2018 Project

District Balance( 1)       FY 2017/ 18( 2)     Encumbrances( 3)       Balance Status( 4)

CFD 04- 1

Mossdale Services)       318, 130. 51 2, 140, 493. 76       $ 2, 276, 539. 65       $ 182, 084. 62 Ongoing

CFD 2005- 1

Historic Lathrop Services)  54,743. 22 46, 669. 83 46, 698. 97 54, 714. 08 Ongoing

CFD 2006- 2

Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Services)   0. 00 353, 780. 62 353, 611. 62 169. 00 On oin

CFD No. 2013- 1

River Islands)      135, 375. 73 564, 815. 26 581, 925. 65       $ 118, 265. 34 On oin

Note( 1)

Beginning balances include previous year encumbrances carried forward for payment in the subsequent fiscal year.

Note( 2)

For CFD 04- 1 this amount represents the annual special taxes remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor- Controller,
building permit collections, interest earnings, and a transfer for capital equipment replacement.

For CFD 2005- 1 this amount represents the annual special tax amounts remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor-
Controller and interest earnings.

For CFD 2006- 2 this amount represents the annual special tax amounts remitted by San Joaquin County Auditor- Controller
and interest earnings. The total tax amount is comprised of the total public safety component($ 221, 400), and the actual

receipts of the general governmental component( levied in the amount of$ 199, 151. 76). ( This CFD was partially removed
from the San Joaquin County Teeter Plan beginning in FY 2010/ 11, and only the public safety portion of the annual budget is
remitted via the Teeter Plan. The general governmental portion is a separate County tax code and remittance only includes
actual collections.)

For CFD 2013- 1 this amount represents the annual special tax amounts remitted by the San Joaquin County Auditor-
Controller and interest earnings.

Note( 3)

For CFD 2006- 2, City staff reduced the level of service to the CLSP area( except for Public Safety), thus reducing payables; in
response to San Joaquin County partial suspension of Teeter Plan funding to the CFD in October 2012. This was done in an
effort to preserve the fund balance, which is anticipated to be needed in future fiscal years, to augment ongoing CFD revenue,
as the CLSP area develops at a slower rate than originally anticipated.

Note( 4)

All CFDs listed above are intended to provide funding for ongoing, perpetual operations and maintenance services.

266



ITEM S. 1 -,

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER PROPOSED COMMUNITY FACILITIES

DISTRICTS NOS.   2018- 1 AND 2018- 2   ( CENTRAL

LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)   CITY OF

LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

RECOMMENDATION:     City Council to Consider the Following:

1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  Consider Approval of Resolutions of the City

Council of the City of Lathrop For The Formation of
Community Facilities Districts,      Determine

Necessity to Incur Bonded Indebtedness Within
The Community Facilities Districts, Call A Special
Election,  Declare Results of Special Election and

Direct Recording of Notice of Special Tax Liens,
Levy Special Taxes, And Authorize The Issuance of
Bonds.

SUMMARY:  

CFD 2006- 1 has been, and continues to be, unable to meet its financial obligations.

CFD 2006- 1' s obligations consist primarily of payments of principal and interest on its
Special Tax Bonds, Series 2006 ( Base CUSIP No.  51825P)  (" 2006- 1 Bonds"). As a

result of the non- payment of Special Tax by the property owners within the boundaries
of CFD 2006- 1, CFD 2006- 1 has been unable to pay principal payments on the 2006-
1 Bonds since 2007 and has only made minimal interest payments to the owners of
the 2006- 1 Bonds. As of June 30, 2018, the principal balance due on the 2006- 1 Bonds
is $ 49, 750, 000, of that amount $3, 900, 000 is currently due and payable.  In addition,

as of June 30, 2018, there was approximately $ 25, 955, 800 in accrued and unpaid

interest due the owners of the 2006- 1 Bonds.  Council approved a Restructuring
Agreement on August 13, 2018.

Pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement, tfie City is to establish CFD 2018- 1 and CFD
2018- 2 for the purpose of paying off in full the obligations of the 2006- 1 Bonds owned
by Saybrook Bondholder.  The boundaries of CFD 2018- 1 and CFD 2018- 2 are identical
but the parcels within CFD 2018- 1 and CFD 2018- 2 are only portion of the parcels
that make up CFD 2006- 1.   CFD 2006- 1 future obligations will be removed from all

parcels not owned by Saybrook.

This agenda item allows Council to take the actions necessary to authorize and issue
the Series 2018- 1 Bonds on behalf of CFD 2018- 1 and the Series 2018- 2 Bonds on

behalf of CFD 2018- 2 ( collectively, " Series 2018 Bonds") in the collective approximate

amount of $ 71. 8 million for the purpose of paying off in full and cancelling the CFD

267



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER PROPOSED

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS NOS. 2018- 1 AND 2018- 2

2006- 1 Bonds, owned by Saybrook Bondholder. The Series 2018 Bonds will be secured
by the levy of special taxes pursuant to the applicable Rate and Method of

Apportionment of Special Taxes CFD 2018- 1 and CFD 2018- 2. The 2006- 1 bonds of
Minority Bondholders  ( all bondholders other than Saybrook Bondholder)  in the

approximate amount of $4 million plus accrued interest of approximately $ 2. 1 million

will be paid in full as part of the closing of the transactions under the Restructuring
Agreement.  

BACKGROUND:

The City initiated the process of forming Community. Facilities District 2018- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement approved by
the Council in its Resolution No. 18- 4437.

Pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement, the current landowners ask the City to
proceed with the establishment of two new CFDs- Community Facilities District No.
2018- 1   ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)   (" CFD 2018- 1"),   and five

improvement areas therein, and Community Facilities District No.  2018- 2  ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)  (" CFD 2018- 2")  in order to restructure the 2006- 1

special taxes and bond debt remaining after the payment in full of the 2006- 1 Bonds
held by the Minority Bondholders and facilitate the prepayment of and a termination
of all remaining special taxes ( including all penalties and interest) on parcels within

the CFD 2006- 1.  After the consummation of the Bond transaction contemplated

herein, resulting in the prepayment of special taxes for CFD 2006- 1, CFD 2006- 1 will
be dissolved. CFD 2018- 1 would cover approximately $ 45, 800, 000 of the outstanding
CFD 2006- 1 Bond obligation and CFD 2018- 02 would cover approximately.

26, 000, 000 of the remaining outstanding Bond CFD 2006- 1 obligation.  After

restructure, 2006- 01 will be satisfied on all land and only Saybrook- owned land will
be subject to the special liens of CFDs 2018- 1 and 2018- 2.      

On the same night the Restructuring Agreement was approved, Council adopted a

Resolution of Intention to form CFDs 2018- 1 and 2018- 2 and a Resolution to Incur

Indebtedness ( to pay ofF the 2006- 1 Bonds) for each CFD.  In accord with Mello- Roos

law, a public hearing on those matters was scheduled for today' s Council meeting.
The resolutions attached to this report will complete the formation of the two new

CFDs, call and hold an election ( ballots have previously been distributed to the sole
landowner), declare the results of the election and authorize the levy of the special
taxes.  By separate additional resolution, the Council has the opportunity to authorize
the issuance of the Bonds for each CFD as contemplated by the Restructuring
Agreement.

The documents attached to this report complete the formation of CFDs 2018- 1 and

2018- 2 as detailed below:

1.      Resolution of Formation of Community Facilities District. This officially forms
the CFD, authorizes the special taxes to be collected and calls for the required

property owner vote on the levy of taxes and the establishment of an

268



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER PROPOSED

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS NOS. 2018- 1 AND 201 8- 2

appropriations limit for the CFD ( under Article XIIIB of the Constitution).  The

Exhibit( s) to this resolution show the facilities and services to be financed and

the formula by which the special taxes will be levied in the CFD.

2.      Resolution Determining Necessity to Incur Bonded Indebtedness Within

Community Facilities District.   This makes the determination to issue bonds to be

financed by the special taxes. The amount of bonds is a ' not to exceed" amount. This
resolution also calls for the required landowner vote on the issuance of bonds.
3.      Resolution Calling Special Election. This sets the election for November 19,

2018 and provides the form of the special ballot to be used by the landowner-voter.
Calling the election and actually having the election on the same night is allowed
under CFD law due to the fact that the sole landowner in the CFD have waived certain

time requirements for proceeding to the election.

4.      Resolution Declaring Results of Special Election and Directing Recordina of
Notice of Special Tax Lien. This Resolution may be adopted by the Council after the
vote is announced by -the City Clerk.   This Resolution confirms the outcome of the

property owner election for the CFD and incorporates the attached copy of the official
Canvass and Statement of Result of Election to be completed by the Clerk after the
vote is announced.  This resolution also directs the filing of the Notice of Special Tax
Lien against the lands in the CFD to allow collection of the special tax on each

property.

5.      Ordinance Levying Special Taxes. Under applicable law, the Council must levy
the special taxes by ordinance. Under the ordinance, the levy is made once by the
adoption of this ordinance, and, in each year hereafter, the process of determining

the special taxes and processing the collection is done administratively by the
Director of Finance ( or a consultant) and no further Council action is required.

6.      Resolution Authorizing Issuance of Bonds.    This Resolution completes the

authorization to issue the bonds according to the terms of the Indenture, which is
approved by Council in the Resolution. The Indenture is the document that authorizes

the terms and conditions for the bonds. It provides that a fiscal agent will receive

moneys generated from the special taxes levied in the CFD and use the moneys to

pay bondholders.  It also provides for the safekeeping of a reserve fund to cover
payments should any deficiencies occur because of non- payment of special taxes.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Taking the above actions will conclude the formation process for the new CFDs and
authorize the issuance of a series of bonds for each CFD, steps necessary to complete
the restructure of CFD 2006- 1 pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement.  The bond

transactions are anticipated to close on or about December 18th, provided all of the

conditions of the Restructuring Agreement are met. The effectiveness of the new CFDs
and the issuance of new bonds are contingent on the actual closing and conditions of
the Restructure Agreement including the pay.ment in full of the 2006- 1 Bonds held by

269



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER PROPOSED

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS NOS. 2018- 1 AND 2018- 2

the Minority Bondholders.   Upon closing, the 2006- 1 Bonds will be deemed paid and
the special tax obligation related to them extinguished.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no negative Fiscal Impact to the City or its general fund.   Pursuant to the

Deposit Agreement,  as amended,  by and between the City and the Majority
Landowners,  all costs of the transactions contemplated under the Restructuring
Agreement are paid by the Landowner.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

1.  Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop to form a Community
Facilities District and five improvement areas therein and to levy a special tax
to refinance the cost of certain public facilities in and for such district, City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan).

2.  Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop determining necessity to
incur bonded indebtedness for a Community Facilities District and five

improvement areas therein, City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan).

3.  Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop calling special election for a
community facilities district and five improvement areas therein, City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan).

4.  Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop declaring results of special
election for a community Facilities District and directing recording of notice of
special tax lien, City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan).
5.  Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Lathrop levying special taxes within

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District no. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities).

6.  Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop authorizing the issuance of
special tax bonds for and on behalf of each improvement area of a Community
Facilities District, approving and directing the execution of indentures, approving
sale of such bonds, and approving other related documents and actions, City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan).

7.  Bond Indenture,  City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1

Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area fVo. 1 2018 Special

Tax Bonds

8.  City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities) Community Facilities District Report. 

9.  Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop to form a Community
Facilities District and to levy a special tax to refinance the cost of certain public
facilities in and for such district, City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan).

10. Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop determining necessity to
incwr bonded indebtedness within a Community Facilities District City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific

270



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER PROPOSED

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS NOS. 2018- 1 AND 2018- 2

Plan).

11. Resolution of the City. Council of the City of Lathrop calling special election,
City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities).

12. Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop declaring results of special
election and directing recording of notice of special tax lien, City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan).

13. Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Lathrop levying special taxes within
City of Lathrop Community Facilities District no. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities).

14. Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop authorizing the issuance of
special tax bonds for and on behalf of a Community Facilities District,
approving and directing the execution of an indenture, approving sale of such
bonds, and approving other related documents and actions, City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan).

15. Bond Indenture, City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) 2018 Special Tax Bond.

16. City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities) Community Facilities District Report.

f

r

271



CITY MANAGER' S REPOIST

NOVEMBER 19, 2018, CITi( COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

PUBLIC HEARINC ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDEI PROPOSED

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS NOS. 2018- 1 AND 2018- 2

4PPROVALS:

r  ( 5 
Cari Ja Date

Director of i ance

1- 
V 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

lC` g ' S
St n J. Salvatore Date

ity Manager

272



Attachment 1

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO FORM A

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT AND FIVE IMPROVEMENT AREAS AND TO LEVY A

SPECIAL TAX TO REFINANCE THE COST OF CERTAIN PUBLIC FACILITIES IN AND FOR

SUCH DISTRICT

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

WHEREAS, on August 13, 2018, pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of
1982, as amended, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311,
of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the City Council ( the " Council") of the City of
Lathrop ( the " City") adopted a resolution entitled " Resolution of Intent to Establish a Community
Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas Therein and Levy a Special Tax" ( Resolution No.

18- 4438, the" Resolution of Intention"), stating its intention to form ( i) " City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District . No.  2018- 1   ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)  ( the  " CFD"),  ( ii)

Improvement Area 1 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 1"); ( iii) " Improvement Area 2 of the City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018-.1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"

Improvement Area 2"), ( iv) " Improvement Area 3. of the. City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"  (" Improvement Area 3"),  ( v)

Improvement Area 4 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 4"), and ( vi) " Improvement Area 5 of the

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"
Improvement Area 5" and together, the " Improvement Areas");

WHEREAS; the Resolution of Intention, incorporating a map of the proposed boundaries
of the CFD and the Improvement Areas and stating the facilities to be provided ( the" Facilities" as
set forth in the list attached hereto as Exhibit A), the cost of providing such facilities, and the rate
and method of apportionment of the special tax to be levied within each of the Improvement Areas

to pay the principal and interest on bonds proposed to be issued with respect to each
Improvement Area, is on file with the City Clerk and the provisions thereof are incorporated herein
by this reference as if fully set forth herein;

WHEREAS, on this date, the Council held a noticed public hearing as required by the Act
and the Resolution of Intention relative to the proposed formation of the CFD and the Improvement

Areas;

WHEREAS, at the hearing all interested persons desiring to be heard on all matters
pertaining to the formation of the CFD and the Improvement Areas, the facilities to be provided
therein, and the levy of said special tax were heard and a full and fair hearing was held;

WHEREAS, at the hearing evidence was presented to the Council on said matters before
it, including a report caused to be prepared by a designated official of the City ( the " Report") as

to the facilities to be provided through the CFD and the Improvement Areas and the costs thereof,

a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, and the Council at the conclusion of said hearing is
fully advised in the premises;

273



WHEREAS, the special tax proposed to be levied in each of the Improvement Areas of

the CFD to pay for the proposed facilities to be provided therein, as set forth in the formula in
Exhibits B through F hereto, has not been eliminated by protest by fifty percent ( 50%) or more of

the registered voters residing within the territory of the Improvement Areas or the owners of one-
half( 1/ 2) or more of the area of land within any of the Improvement Areas and not exempt from
the special tax; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

1.       Recitals Correct. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2. No Majority Protest. The proposed special tax to be levied within the CFD has
not been precluded by majority protest pursuant to Section 53324 of the Act.

3. Prior Proceedings Valid. All prior proceedings taken by the Council in connection
with the establishment of the CFD and the Improvement Areas and the levy of the special tax
have been duly considered and are hereby found and determined to be valid and in conformity
with the Act.  

4.       Name of CFD and Improvement Areas.  The community facilities district
designated " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities)" is hereby established pursuant to the Act.

The following improvement areas within the CFD are hereby established pursuant to the
Act:

i)       " Improvement Area 1 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 1").

ii)      " Improvement Area 2 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 2").

iii)      " Improvement Area 3 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 3").

iv)      " Improvement Area 4 of the City of_Cathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"(" Improvement Area 4").

v)      " Improvement Area 5 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 5").

5.       Boundaries of CFD. The boundaries of the CFD and the Improvement Areas, as

set forth in the map of the CFD heretofore recorded in the office of the County Recorder of the
County of San Joaquin on October 31, 2018, at Book 6 of Maps of Assessment and Community
Facilities Districts at Page 141, as Document No. 2018=120652, are hereby approved, are
incorporated herein by reference and shall be the boundaries of the CFD and the Improvement
Areas.

6. Description of Facilities. The CFD is being formed to pay and prepay the special
tax obligation of the 2006 CFD ( as described in the Resolution of Intention) and thereby provide
redemption of the 2006 Bonds ( as described in the Resolution of. lntention) secured by such

2

274



special tax. The type of public facilities financed by the 2006 CFD and to be refinanced by the
CFD and the Improvement Areas pursuant to the Act shall consist of those items listed as facilities

in Exhibit A hereto and by this reference incorporated herein ( the " Facilities").

7.       Special Tax. Except to the extent that funds are otherwise available to the CFD

and each of the Improvement Areas to pay for the Facilities and/ or the principal and interest as it
becomes due on bonds issued with respect to each respective Improvement Area to finance the
Facilities, a special tax ( the " Improvement Area Special Tax") sufficient to pay the costs thereof,
secured by the recordation of a continuing lien. against all non- exempt real property in each
respective Improvement Area, is intended to be levied annually within each Improvement Area,
and collected in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem taxes are collected and shall have the
same lien priority, and be subject to the same penalties and the same procedure and sale in cases
of delinquency as provided for ad valorem taxes; provided, however, that special taxes may be
directly billed by the City and/ or the Council may provide for other appropriate methods of
collection by resolution of the Council.  In addition, the provisions of Section 53356. 1 of the Act

shall apply to delinquent special tax payments.     

The proposed rate and method of apportionment of the Special Tax among the parcels of
real property within each Improvement Area ( as to each Improvement Area,  its " Rate and

Method"), in sufficient detail to allow each landowner within each Improvement Area to estimate

the maximum amount such owner will have to pay, are shown in the five respective Rate and
Methods attached hereto as Exhibits B through F and hereby incorporated herein. 

As to each Improvement Area, the Improvement Area Special Tax to finance the Facilities
shall not be levied in such Improvement Area after the fiscal year specified in the respective Rate

and Method, except that a Special Tax that was lawfully levied in or before the final tax year and
that remains delinquent may be collected in subsequent years. In the case of any Special Tax to
pay for the Facilities and to be levied against any parcel used for private residential purposes: ( i)

the maximum special tax shall be specified as a dollar amount which shall be calculated and

there6y established not later than the date on which the parcel is first subject to the tax because
of its use for private residential purposes and which amount shall not be increased over time over

two percent per year; ( ii) the tax year after which no further Special Tax subject to this sentence

shall be levied . or collected shall be as set forth in Exhibit B hereto;  and  ( iii) under no

circumstances will the Special Tax levied against any parcel subject to this sentence be increased
as a consequence of delinquency or default by the owner of any other parcel within the CFD by
more than ten percent. For the purposes hereof, a parcel is used for" private residential purposes"

not later than the date on which an occupancy permit for private residential use is issued.

8. Increased Demands. It is hereby found and determined that the Facilities are
necessary to meet increased demands placed upon local agencies as the result of development
occurring in the CFD and the Improvement Areas.

9. Responsible OfFicial. The Finance Director of the City of Lathrop, 390 Towne
Centre Drive, Lathrop, California 95330, ( 209) 941- 7320, is the officer of the City who will be
responsible for preparing. annually a current roll of special tax levy obligations by assessor' s parcel
number and who will be responsible for estimating future special tax levies pursuant to the Act.

10:      Tax Lien. Upon recordation of a notice of special tax lien pursuant to Section

3114. 5 of the Streets and Highways Code of California, a continuing lien to secure each levy of
the special tax shall attach to all nonexempt real property in each respective Improvement Area
and this lien shall continue in force and effect until the special tax obligation is prepaid and

3

275



permanently satisfied and the lien canceled in accordance with law or until collection of the tax by
the City ceases.

11.      Appropriations Limit: In accordance with the Act, the annual appropriations limit,

as defined by subdivision ( h) of Section 8 of Article XIII B of the California ConstiYution, of the
Improvement Areas is hereby preliminarily established at $ 13, 630, 000 for Improvement Area 1,

8, 945, 000 for Improvement Area 2,  $ 16, 625, 000 for Improvement Area 3,  $ 6, 565, 000 for

Improvement Area 4, and $ 4,970, 000 for Improvement Area 5, and said appropriations limit shall

be submitted to the voters of each respective Improvement Area as hereafter provided.  The

proposition establishing said annual appropriations limit shall become effective if approved by the
qualified electors voting thereon and shall be adjusted in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Act.

12.      Election. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the proposition of the levy of the
Improvement Area Special Tax and the proposition of the establishment of the appropriations limit

specified above shall be submitted to the qualified, electors- of each Improvement Area at an

election.   The time, place and conditions of the election shall be as specified by a separate
resolution of the Council. -    

13.      Callable Bonds and Tender. Any bonds issued in these proceedings shall be
callable in accordance with the provisions of the Act and as more specifically to be set forth in any
resolution providing for the form, execution and issuance of bonds.  In accordance with Sections

53344. 1 and 53356. 8 of the Act, bonds issued for any Improvement Area shall be permitted to be
tendered for special taxes and the interest and penalties thereon, as specified in the documents
setting forth the rights of the bondholders.     

14.      Prior Proceedings Valid. This City Council now finds and determines that all
proceedings up to and including the adoption of this Resolution were and are valid and in
conformity with the requirements of the Act. This determination and finding is final and conclusive
in accordance with Government Code Section 53325. 1.

15.      Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

4

276



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and adopted by the
City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the 19th day of November, 2018, by the
following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador IVavarrete, City Attorney

5

277



EXHIBIT A

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

City of Lathrop, California

LIST OF AUTHORIZED FACILITIES

The Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 ( the " Act") authorizes the creation of a

Community Facilities District to finance publie facilities, within or of benefit to the land in the district
and/or to pay a special tax obligation and thereby provide redemption of indebtedness secured
by such special tax.  The CFD is proposed to be formed to pay the special tax obligation of the
City's Community Facilities District No.  2006- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1
Infrastructure)( the" 2006 CFD") and thereby provide redemption of the City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District No. 2006- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure) Special Tax
Bonds, Series 2006 ( the " 2006 Bonds").

The facilities authorized for the 2006 CFD and related costs that were financed in whole
or in part pursuanf to the proceedings for the formation of the 2006 CFD included roadways and
related improvements, wastewater system facilities and related improvements, potable water
system facilities and related improvements, drainage system facilities and related improvements,
recycled water system facilities and related improvements, park and open space facilities, habitat
mitigation improvements,and other public facilities necessary to meet development requirements.

In addition to the above purposes,  the CFD may pay or provide financing for all
administrative costs as allowed by the Act, including but not limited to costs associated with the
creation of the CFD, issuance of bonds; determination of the amount of taxes, collection of taxes,

payment of taxes,  all  " Administrative Expenses"  as set forth in the Rate and Method of

Apportionment of Special Tax for each Improvement Area and all costs otherwise incurred to carry
out the authorized purposes of the CFD.

Exhibit A

Page 1

278



EXHIBIT B

R TE i4ND METHOD OF

APPORTIONMENT

CITV OF L 4THROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018-' 0
CENTRAL LATH120P SPECIFIC PLAfV FACILITIES) 

IMPROVEMERlT AREi41

Exhibit B

Page 1

279



IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1 OF THE .

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

A Special Tax applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in Improvement Area No. 1 of the City of
Lathrop Cominunity Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)
shall be levied and collected according to the tax liability deternuned by the City or its designee
through the application of the appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Property, as described
below.   All of the property in Improvement Area No. 1, unless exempted by law or by the
provisions of Section G below, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent, and in the manner

herein provided, including property subsequently annexed to Improvement Area No. 1 unless a
separate Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax is adopted for the annexation area.

A:      DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

Accessory Unit" means a second residential unit of limited size ( e. g., granny cottage, second
unit) that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit:

Acre" or " Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor' s Parcel as shown on an Assessor' s

Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map, the land area shown on
the applicable Final Map or other parcel map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office.

Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5,
commencing with Section 53311), Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following: the fees and expenses of any
fiscal agent or trustee ( including any fees or expenses of its counsel) employed in connection
with any Bonds,  and the expenses of the City in carrying out its duties with respect to
Improvement Area No. 1 and the Bonds related thereto, including, but not limited to, the levy
and collection of the Special Tax, the fees and expenses of its counsel, charges levied by the
County in connection with the levy and collection of the Special T, costs related to property

owner inquiries regarding the Special Tax,  amounts needed to pay rebate to the federal
government with respect to the Bonds,  costs associated with complying with continuing
disclosure requirements with respect to the Bonds and the Special Tax, and all other costs and

expenses of the City and County in any way related to administration of the CFD including costs
related to any dispute, litigation, settlement, or defense of any matter related to the CFD.

IA No. 1 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 1 August 8, 2018

280



Administrative Expense Cap" means $ 15, 000 for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 and $ 15, 000 for Fiscal

Year 2019- 20. No Administrative Expense Cap shall apply after Fiscal Year 2019- 20.

Administrative Expense Reimbursement Amount" means a total of$ 40, 000.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by the City to administer the Special Tax
according to this RMA.

Airspace Parcel" means a parcel with an assigned Assessor' s Parcel number that constitutes

vertical space of an underlying land Parcel.

Assessor' s Parcel" or " Parcel" means a lot or parcel, including an Airspace Parcel, shown on
a County Assessor' s Parcel Map with an assigned County Assessor' s Parcel number.

Assessor' s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor designating Parcels by
Assessor' s Parcel number.

Association Property" means any property within Improvement Area No. 1 that is owned by a
homeowners' association or property owners' association, excluding such property that is under
the pad or footprint of a residential unit or building.

Authorized Facilities" means the public facilities authorized to be fmanced, in whole or in

part, by Special Taxes collected within the CFD, pursuant to the documents adopted by the City
Council at CFD Formation.

Base Special Tax" means, in Fiscal Year 2018- 19, $ 9, 680 per Net Acre for any Parcel or
portion of a Parcel developed or expected to be developed as Residential Property and$ 4,000 per
Net Acre for any Parcel or portion of a Parcel developed or expected to be developed as Non-
Residential Property, which amounts shall increase on July 1, 2019 and each July 1 thereafter by
two percent( 2%) of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year. The deternunation of Expected

Land Use shall be made by the Administrator based on review of land use and development
plans, and in coordination with the City Planning Department.

Bonds" means bonds or other debt( as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, which

are secured by Special Tax revenues and were issued, insured or assumed by Improvement Area
No. 1 to fund Authorized Facilities.

CFD" or " CFD No. 2018- 1" means the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation for CFD No. 2018- 1

was adopted by the City Council.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

IA No. 1 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 2 August 8, 2018

281



County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount" means an amount equal to 50% of the greatest

interest payment due in any single bond year, as defined in the Indenture.

Developed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
building pernut for new construction ( which shall not include a permit issued solely for
construction of the foundation if another permit remains to be issued for vertical construction of

the building) was issued prior to June 1 of the preceding Fiscal Year.

EDU" means an equivalent dwelling unit, as used in Section C. 3 to determine the relative
relationship among SFD Lots.

EDU Factor" means the equivalent dwelling unit factor assigned to SFD Lots in Section C. 3
below.

Expected Land Use" means the Land Use( s) and/ or Public Property anticipated on a Parcel in
Improvement Area No. 1.  The Expected Land Uses at the time of CFD Formation are identified

in Attachment 1 of this RMA, and such Expected Land Uses may be updated pursuant to
Sections C and D below.

Final Map" means a final map, or portion thereof, recorded by the County pursuant to the
Subdivision Map Act ( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) that creates SFD

Lots.  The term" Final Map" shall not include any Assessor' s Parcel Map or subdivision map, or
portion thereof, that does not create SFD Lots, including Assessor' s Parcels that are designated
as remainder parcels.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Improvement Area No. 1" means Improvement Area No. 1 of the City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific P1an.Facilities).

Indenture" means the bond indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or

other instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued,  as modified,  amended,  and/ or

supplemented from time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

Land Use" means Residential Property or Non-Residential Property.

Land Use Change" means a proposed or approved change to the Expected Land Use( s) on a

Parcel of Taxable Property.

Large Lot Map" means a subdivision map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office that  ,
subdivides all or a portion of the property in Improvement Area No. 1 into large Parcels, most of
which will be subject to future subdivision.

IA No. 1 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 3 August 8, 20I8

282



Maximum Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Special Tax that can be levied on a

Parcel of Taxable Property in any Fiscal Year, as deternuned in accordance with Sections C and
D below.   The Maximum Special Tax based on Expected Land Uses for each Parcel in

Improvement Area No. 1 at the time of CFD Formation is set forth in Attachment 1.

Multi- Family Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed Property for
which a building pernut was issued for construction of a residential structure with five or more
Units that share a single Assessor' s Parcel number, are offered for rent to the general public, and

cannot be purchased by individual homebuyers.

Net Acreage" means the estimated acreage of Residential Property and Non-Residential
Property on an Original Parcel after taking out expected Public Property, not including internal
streets.  The Net Acreage within each Original Parcel at the time of CFD Formation is shown in
Attachment 1, and such Net Acreage shall be updated each time an Original Parcel subdivides or

a Land Use Change is approved. " Net Acre" means one acre of the Net Acreage calculated for a

Parcel.

Non- Residential Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Properly that are not
Taxable Public Property for which a building pernut was issued for a use other than Residential
Property.  If a Parcel includes or is expected to include both Units and non- residential land uses,
the Net Acreage to be taxed as Non- Residential Property shall be calculated by dividing the net
leasable and net saleable square footage of non- residential uses on the Parcel ( as deternuned by
the Adininistrator) by the aggregate net leasable and net saleable square footage built or expected
to be built on the Parcel ( as deternuned by the Administrator), then multiplying the quotient by
the Net Acreage of the underlying land Parcel for purposes of calculating the Maximum Special
Tax and levying the Special Tax in any Fiscal Year.

Original Parcel" means: ( i) an Assessor' s Parcel included in Improvement Area No. 1 at the

time of CFD Formation, ( ii) an Assessor' s Parcel that annexes into Improvement Area No. 1

after CFD Formation, or( iii) a Successor Parcel that was created after subdivision of an Original

Parcel and is being further subdivided.

Proportionately" means, for Developed Property, that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied
in any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Special Tax authorized to be levied in that Fiscal Year is
equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property.     For Undeveloped Property,
Proportionately" means that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied to the Maximum Special

Tax authorized to be levied is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Undeveloped Property.

Public Property" means any properiy within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 1 that is
owned by or irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, State of California,
County, City, or other `local governments or public agencies. For purposes of this RMA, all
Association Properly shall also be categorized as Public Property.

Required Coverage" means that the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue must be at least

110% of the debt service on the Bonds in every bond year, as defined in the Indenture.

IA No. 1 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 4 August 8, 2018

283



Required Revenue"  means,  after one or more series of Bonds have been issued for

Improvement Area No. 1, the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue that must be available in

order to maintain Required Coverage.  Upon prepayment of all or a portion of the Maximum

Special Tax obligation assigned to any Parcel in Improvement Area No. 1, the Required Revenue
shall be reduced by the Special Tax that will no longer be levied on the Parcel for which a
prepayment was received, as determined by the Administrator. For purposes of Section C below,
Required Revenue shall be $ 0. 00 prior to issuance of the first series of Bonds for Improvement

Area No. 1.

Residential Property" means, collectively, Single Family Detached Property, Single Family
Attached Property, and Multi- Family Property.  If a Parcel includes or is expected to include

both Units and non- residential land uses, the Net Acreage to be taxed as Residential Property
shall be calculated by dividing the net leasable and net saleable square footage of residential uses
on the Parcel ( as determined by the Administrator) by the aggregate net leasable and net saleable
square footage built or expected to be built on the Parcel ( as determined by the Administrator),
then multiplying the quotient by the Net Acreage of the underlying land Parcel for purposes of
calculating the Maximum Special Tax and levying the Special Tax in any Fiscal Year.

RMA" means this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

SFD Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and numbered on a recorded Final

Map, on which a building pernut has been or is pernutted to be issued for construction of a single
family detached unit without further subdivision of the lot and for which no further subdivision
of the lot is anticipated pursuant to an approved tentative map.

Single Family Attached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed
Property for which a building permit or use permit was issued for construction of a residential
structure consisting of two or more Units that share common walls, have separate Assessor' s
Parcel numbers assigned to them ( except for a duplex unit, which may share a Parcel with
another duplex unit), and may be purchased by individual homebuyers ( which shall still be the
case even if the Units are purchased and subsequently offered for rent by the owner of the Unit),
including such residential structures that meet the statutory defuution of a condominium
contained in Civil Code Section 1351.

Single Family Detached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed
Property for which a building pernut was issued for construction of a Unit that does not share a
common wall with another Unit.

Special Tax"  means a special tax levied in any Fiscal Year to pay the Special Tax
Requirement.

Special Tax Requirement" means the amount necessary in any Fiscal Year to:  ( i) pay
principal and interest on Bonds that is due in the calendar year that begins in such Fiscal Year;

ii) create and/ or replenish debt service reserve funds as required by the Indenture for the Bonds
to the extent such replenishment has not been included in the computation of the Special Tax
Requirement in a previous Fiscal Year; ( iii) cure any delinquencies in the payment of principal

IA No. I of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 5 August 8, 20I8

284



or interest on Bonds which have occurred in the prior Fiscal Year; ( iv) pay Administrative
Expenses, subject to the Adininistrative Expense Cap if applicable for the Fiscal Year; (v) create
and/ or replenish reserve funds for Administrative Expenses; and ( vi) pay for extraordinary
administrative expense reserve reimbursement, as described in the Indenture.   The amounts

referred to in clauses ( i) and( ii) of the preceding sentence may be reduced in any Fiscal Year by:
i) interest earnings on or surplus balances in funds and accounts for the Bonds to the extent that

such earnings or balances are available to apply against debt service pursuant to the Indenture;
ii) proceeds received from the collection of penalties associated with delinquent Special Taxes;

and ( iii) any other revenues available to reduce the Special Tax Requirement as deternuned by
the Administrator.

Successor Parcel"  means a Parcel of Taxable Property created from subdivision or
reconfiguration of an Original Parcel.

Taxable Property" means all Parcels within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 1 that( i)
are not exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to law or Section G below, and ( ii) which upon
subdivision of an Original Parcel, are assigned Expected Land Uses and are not expected to be

Public Property.  

Taxable Public Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, any Parcel of Public Property within
Improvement Area No. 1 that had been assigned a. Maximum Special Tax obligation based on
Expected Land Uses being assigned to the Parcel.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (i) a
prepayment is received in an amount sufficient to pay off the full Maximum Special Tax
obligation assigned to the Parcel, or( ii) the City determines that, in the Fiscal Year in which the
Parcel would first be categorized as Taxable Public Property, an equal amount of Acreage within
the CFD that had been Public Property became Taxable Property, then the Parcel of Public
Property can be deemed exempt from the Special Tax if the Administrator determines that the
Total Maximum Special T Revenue after granting such exemption is greater than or equal to
the Required Revenue.     

Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue" means the aggregate amount of revenue that can be

generated in any Fiscal Year by levying the Maximum Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable
Properiy within Improvement Area No. 1.

Undeveloped Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property that are not
Developed Property.

Unit" means a single family detached unit or an individual unit within a duplex, triplex,
halfplex, fourplex, condominium, townhome, live/work, or apartment structure.  An Accessory
Unit that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit shall not be considered a separate
Unit for purposes of this RMA.

IA No. I of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 6 August 8, 2018

285



B.       DATA FOR ADMINISTRATION OF SPECIAL TAX

On or about July 1 of each Fiscal Year, the Aiiministrator shall identify( i) the current Assessor' s
Parcel numbers for all Parcels of Developed Property and Undeveloped Property within
Improvement Area No. 1, ( ii) the number of Units expected within each building on each Parcel
of Single Family Attached Property, ( iii) the square footage of all SFD Lots that were created in
the prior Fiscal Year, ( iv) whether the Administrative Expense Reimbursement Amount and the

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount have been fully funded by special tax revenues from
prior fiscal years, and ( v) the Special Tax Requirement for the Fiscal Year.  In addition, on an

ongoing basis, the Administrator shall monitor Land Use Changes and the subdivision of Parcels
in Improvement Area No. 1 and ( i) allocate the Maximum Special Tax assigned to the Original

Parcel( s) to the Successor Parcels created by the subdivision pursuant to Section C below, and
ii) ensure that such Land Use Changes do not result in Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue

that is less than the Required Revenue.  After the recordation of each Large Lot Map within
Improvement Area No.  1, the Administrator shall also review and revise,  as needed, the

Expected Land Uses, Net Acreage, and Maximum Special Taxes for each Successor Parcel

created by recordation of the Large Lot Map, and update Attachment 1 accordingly, as set forth
in Section C below.

In any Fiscal Year, if it is deternuned that: ( i) a parcel map for property in Improvement Area
No. 1 was recorded after January 1 of the prior Fiscal Year ( or any other date after which the
Assessor will not incorporate the newly- created parcels into the then current tax roll), ( ii)

because of the date the parcel map was recorded, the Assessor does not yet recagnize the new
parcels created by the parcel map, and ( iii) a building pernut was issued prior to June 1 of the
prior Fiscal Year for development on one or more of the newly- created parcels,  the

Administrator shall calculate the Special Tax for each Land Use within the subdivided area and

levy such Special Tax on the Original Parcel that was subdivided by recordation of the parcel
map.  

C.      MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

1.       Original Parcels in Improvement Area No. 1 at CFD Formation

Attachment 1 to fhis RMA identifies the Maximum Special Tax assigned to each Original Parcel

in Improvement Area No. 1 for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 based on the Expected Land Use( s) for each

Parcel as of CFD Formation.   After recordation of each Large Lot Map for property in
Improvement Area No. 1, the Administrator shall review current maps and land use plans for the

property within the Large Lot Map and, in consultation with the City Planning Deparhnent,
reevaluate the Expected Land Uses for each of the Successor Parcels created by recordation of
the Large Lot Map.  Attachment 1 shall be updated to reflect the Assessor' s Parcel numbers,

Expected Land Uses, Net Acreage, and corresponding Maximum Special Tax assigned to each
Parcel after applying the Base Special Tax to each Land Use on each Successor Parcel.  If, based
on changes to the Expected Land Uses within the Large Lot Map area, the Total Maximum
Special Tax Revenue that could be generated in Improvement Area No.  1 is less than the

Required Revenue, the Maximum Special Tax on each Successor Parcel created by the Large Lot

IA No. 1 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 7 August 8, 2018

286



Map shall be increased proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue is equal
to the Required Revenue.  If there is an increase in the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue

based on Expected Land Uses within the Large Lot Map, the Administrator shall reflect such
increased Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue in the updated Attachment 1.

If, before or after the comprehensive review after recordation of a Large Lot Map, there are any
other Land Use Changes proposed for any Parcel prior to fmal subdivision of the Parcel, the
Administrator shall deternune the Maximum Special Tax that would be assigned to the Parcel if

the Base Special Tax was applied to the Net Acreage of Residential Property and/ or Non-
Residential Property on the Parcel after the proposed Land Use Change.   If, based on this

Maximum Special Tax calcularion, the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue would be less than

the Required Revenue,  the Maximum Special Tax for such Parcel shall be increased

proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue is equal to the Required Revenue.
If there is an increase in the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue after the Land Use Change,

the Administrator shall reflect such increased Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue in an

updated Attachment 1.

2.       Successor Parcels that are not SFD Lots

The Maximum Special Tax for each Original Parcel for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 is identified in

Attachment 1, which may be updated as set forth above. After such update, if an Original Parcel
is subdivided or reconfigured and none of the Successor Parcels are SFD Lots, the Administrator

shall assign the Maximum Special Tax to the Successor Parcels by applying the following steps:

Step 1:     Based on reference to Land Use plans and, if needed, coordination with the

City Planning Department, deternune the Net Acreage of each Land Use on
each Successor Parcel created from subdivision or reconfiguration of the

Original Parcel.

Step 2:     For each Successor Parcel, multiply the Base Special Tax for each Land Use
by the Net Acreage of each Land Use determined in Step 1, and calculate the
aggregate Maximum Special Tax that could be generated from the Successor

Parcels created from subdivision of the Original Parcel.

Step 3:     If the aggregate Maximum Special Tax for all Successor Parcels is greater

than or equal to the Maximum Special Tax that had been assigned to the

Original Parcel before it was subdivided, the Maximum Special Tax for each
Successor Parcel shall be the amount determined in Step 2,  and the

Administrator shall recalculate the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue to

include the increased Maximum Special Tax.   If the aggregate Maximum

Special Tax for all Successor Parcels is less than the Maximum Special Tax

assigned to the Original Parcel, and such reduction would reduce the Total

Maximum Special Tax Revenue to an amount less than the Required Revenue,

then the Administrator shall increase the amount calculated for each Successor

Parcel in Step 2 proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax
Revenue after the subdivision is equal to the Required Revenue.

IA No. 1 of Lathrop CFD No. 20I8- 1 8 August 8, 2018

287



Step 4:     If all or a portion of the Original Parcel was subdivided to create individual

Parcels ( which may be Airspace Parcels) for Units on Single Family Attached
Property, divide the Maximum Special Tax assigned to the Original Parcel ( or
portion thereo, as may be adjusted pursuant to Step 3 above, by the total
number of Units that will be built on the Original Parcel ( or portion thereo to

calculate the Maximum Special Tax that will be assigned to each Parcel.

Upon each application of this Section C.2, there shall be no reduction in the Required Revenue

unless there has been a prepayment for one or more Parcels within Improvement Area No. 1.

3.       Successor Parcels of which All or Soine are SFD Lots

Upon subdivision of an Original Parcel into Successor Parcels, of which all or some are SFD

Lots, the Administrator shall apply the following steps to determine the Maximum Special Tax
for each Parcel:

Step 1:     Determine the Net Acreage and Expected Land Use for each Successor Parcel

created from subdivision of the Original Parcel.  Apply the steps set forth in
Section C. 2 above to allocate the Maximum Special Tax from the Original

Parcel to each Successor Parcel.

Step 2:     Apply one of the following EDU Factors to each SFD Lot based on the square
footage of each lot, and calculate the aggregate EDUs from all .SFD Lots

created by subdivision of the Original Parcel:

Lot Size EDU Factor

Greater than 8, 000 square feet 1. 25

6, 501- 8, 000 square feet 1. 14

5, 001- 6, 500 square feet 1. 00

3, 501- 5, 000 square feet 0. 87

2, 800- 3, 500 square feet 0. 81

Less than 2, 800 square feet 0. 73

Step 3:     For SFD Lots, sum the Maximum Special Tax assigned in Step 1 to all
Successor Parcels that are SFD Lots, and divide this amount by the total
EDUs determined in Step 2 to calculate a Maximum Special Tax per EDU.
Multiply the Maximum Special Tax per EDU by the EDU Factor for each
SFD Lot to determine the Maximum Special Tax for each Successor Parcel

that is a SFD Lot.  This Maximum Special Tax shall be the Maximum Special

Tax for the Parcel when it is Undeveloped Property and when it becomes
Developed Property.

For Successor Parcels that are not S' D Lots, the Maximum Special Tax

shall be the amount deternuned for each Parcel pursuant to Step 1 above.

IA No. 1 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 9 August 8, 20I8

288



At no time shall the distribution of the Maximum Special Tax upon subdivision or

reconfiguration of a Parcel result in Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue that is lower than the

Required Revenue.   If an Original Parcel is subdivided, and the Successor Parcels include a

combination of Land Uses, the Administrator shall delineate the Maximum Special Tax to the

Taxable Property created by the subdivision based on the best information available at the time,
and based on application of Sections C. 2 and C. 3 of this RMA.

4.       Parcels of Taxable Public Property

The Maximum Special Tax for a Parcel of Taxable Public Property shall be equal to the
M imum Special Tax that applied prior to the Parcel becoming Public Property.

5.       Annexations

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel or Parcels annex into Improvement Area No. 1, the Administrator
shall, in coordination with the City Planning Department, identify the Expected Land Uses for
the Parcel( s).  The Administrator shall then ( i) apply the Base Special Tax to each Land Use to
calculate the Ma umum Special Tax for the Parcel, ( ii) add the Maximum Special Tax for the

Parcel to the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue, and ( iii) levy the Special Tax on the
Parcel( s) pursuant to this RMA in the next Fiscal Year and all future Fiscal Years unless a

prepayment is received to fully release the Parcel( s) from the Special Tax obligation.

D.      ADJUSTMENTS TO THE MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

1.       Escalation of Maacimum Special Tax

Beginning July 1, 2019 and each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel in
Improvement Area No. 1 shall be increased by two percent ( 2%) of the amount in effect in the

prior Fiscal Year.

2.       Conversion of a Parcel of Public Property to Private Use

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel of Public Property is converted to private use, which shall include
a lease to a private entity allowing the property to be taxed pursuant to Section 53340. 1 of the
Act, such Parcel shall be subject to the levy of the Special Tax.  The Maximum Special Tax for

each such Parcel shall be deternuned based on applying the Base Special Tax to the Net Acreage
of each Expected Land Use on the Parcel.     

E.       METHOD OF LEVY OF THE SPECIAL TAX

1.       Each Fiscal Year prior to the time at which the Administrative Expense Reimbursement

Amount has been repaid pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and the Debt Service

Reserve Funding Amount has been fully funded pursuant to the terms of the Indenture,

IA No. 1 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 10 August 8, 2018

289



the Administrator shall levy the Maximum Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable
Property.

2.       Each Fiscal Year beginning with the Fiscal Year in which the Administrative Expense
Reimbursement Amount has been repaid pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and the

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount has been fully funded pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture, the Administrator shall determine the Special Tax Requirement and levy the

Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable Property as follows:

Step 1:     The Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel of Developed
Property, other than Taxable Public Property, up to 100% of the Maximum

Special Tax for each Parcel until the amount levied on Developed Property is
equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

Step 2:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 1 to pay the Special Tax
Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel
of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each

Parcel until the ainount levied on Developed Property and Undeveloped
Properly is equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

Step 3:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 2 to pay the Special Tax
Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel
of Taxable Public Property, up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each

Parcel.

F.       MANNER OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX

The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem properly taxes, provided, however, that the City may directly bill, collect at a different
time or in a different manner, and/ or collect delinquent Special Taxes through foreclosure or

other available methods:

The Special Tax shall be levied and collected until principal and interest on the Bonds have been

repaid, costs of constructing or acquiring Authorized Facilities from Special Tax proceeds have
been paid, and all Adniinistrative Expenses have been paid or reimbursed. However, in no event
shall a Special Tax be levied after Fiscal Year 2060- 61, except that a Special Tax that was

lawfully levied in or before the Fiscal Year 2060- 61 and remains delinquent may be collected in
subsequent Fiscal Years.  Under no circumstances may the Special Tax on a Parcel. in residential
use be increased in any Fiscal Year as a consequence of delinquency or default in payment of the
Special Tax levied on another Parcel or Parcels by more than ten percent ( 10%) above the

amount that would have been levied in that Fiscal Year had there never been any such
delinquencies or defaults.

IA No. 1 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 ll August 8, 20I8

290



G.      EXEMPTIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this RMA, no Special Tax shall be levied on the
following: ( i) Public Property, except Taxable Public Property, ( ii) Parcels that are designated as

permanent open space or common space on which no structure is permitted to be constructed,

iii) Parcels owned by a public utility for an unmanned facility, or ( iv) Parcels subject to an
easement that precludes any use on the Parcel other than that permitted by the easement.  In

addition, no Special Tax shall be levied on any Parcel that has fully prepaid the Special Tax
obligation assigned to the Parcel, as• determined pursuant to the formula set forth in Section H

below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Special Tax has been levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal
Year, and the Parcel subsequently meets the criteria for any of the exempted categories above,
the Parcel shall remain subject to the Special Tax levy unless and until a prepayment is made to
release the Parcel from its Special Tax obligation or, in the case of Public Property, the City
determines that the parcel can be exempted from the Special Tax after making the deternunations
listed in the definition of Taxable Public Property above.

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel of Public Property is converted to private use, such Parcel shall be
subject to the levy of Special Taxes pursuant to Section D.2 above.

I3.      PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

The following defuutions apply to this Section H:

Outstanding Bonds" means all Previously Issued Bonds which remain outstanding,
with the following exception:  if a Special Tax has been levied against, or already paid
by, an Assessor' s Parcel making a prepayment, and a portion of the Special Tax will be
used to pay a portion of the next principal payment on the Bonds that remain outstanding
as determined by the Administrator), that next principal payment shall be subtracted

from the total Bond principal that remains outstanding, and the difference shall be used as
the amount of Outstanding Bonds for purposes of this prepayment formula.

Previously Issued Bonds" means all Bonds that have been issued prior to the date of
prepayment.

1.       Full Prepayment

The Special Tax obligation applicable to a Parcel in Improvement Area No. 1 may be fully
prepaid and the obligation of the Parcel to pay the Special Tax permanently satisfied as described
herein, provided that a prepayment may be made only if there are no delinquent Special Taxes
with respect to such Parcel at the time of prepayment.  An owner of a Parcel intending to prepay
the Special Tax obligation shall provide the City with written notice of intent to prepay. Within
30 days of receipt of such written notice, the City or its designee shall notify such owner of the
prepayment amount for such Parcel.  Prepayments must be made not less than 50 days prior to

any redemption date for the Bonds to be redeemed with the proceeds of such prepaid Special
Taxes.

IA No. 1 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 12 August 8, 2018

291



The Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows( capitalized terms as defined below):

Bond Redemption Amount

plus Redemption Premium

plus Defeasance Requirement

plus,   Administrative Fees and Expenses

less Reserve Fund Credit

equals Prepayment Amount

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be deternuned by

application of the following steps:

Step 1:     Determine the total Maximum Special Tax that could be collected from the

Parcel prepaying the Special Tax in the Fiscal Year in which prepayment      
would be received by the City.

Step 2:     Divide the Maximum Special Tax computed pursuant to Step 1 by the Total
Maximum Special Tax Revenue for the Fiscal Year in which prepayment

would be received by the City.

Step 3:     Multiply the quotient computed pursuant to Step 2 by the Outstanding Bonds
to compute the amount of Outstanding Bonds to be retired and prepaid ( the

Bond Redenzption Amount'.

Step 4:     Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount computed pursuant to Step 3 by the
applicable redemption premium, if any, on the Outstanding Bonds to be
redeemed( the " Redemption Premiuni'.

Step 5:     Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount
starting with the last Outstanding Bond interest payment date on which
interest has been or will be paid by Special Taxes already levied until the
earliest redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 6:     Compute the amount of interest the City reasonably expects to derive from
reinvestment of the Bond Redemption Amount plus the Redemption Premium

from the first Outstanding Bond interest payment date after which the
prepayment has been received until the redemption date for the Outstanding
Bonds.

Step 7:     Take the amount computed pursuant to Step 5 and subtract the amount
computed pursuant to Step 6 ( the " Defeasance Requirement'.

Step 8:     Deternune the costs of computing the prepayment amount,  redeeming

Outstanding Bonds, and recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and
redemption( the " Administrative Fees and Expe zses'.

IA No. 1 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 13 August 8, 2018

292



5tep 9:     If and to the extent so provided in the Indenture, a reserve fund credit shall be

calculated as a reduction in the applicable reserve fund for the Outstanding
Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to the prepayment ( the  " Reserve Fund

Credit'.

Step 10:   The Special Tax prepayment is equal to the sum of the amounts computed

pursuant to Steps 3, 4, 7, and 8, less the amount computed pursuant to Step 9
the " Prepayment Amount'.

Once a full prepayment of a Parcel' s Special Tax obligation has been received, a Notice of

Cancellation of Special Tax Lien shall be recorded against the Parcel to reflect the discharge of

the Parcel' s obligation to pay the Special Tax. However, a Notice of Cancellation of Special Tax
Lien shall not be recorded until all Special Taxes levied on the Parcel in the current or prior

Fiscal Years have been collected.

2.       Partial Prepayment.

A partial prepayment may be made in an amount equal to any percentage of full prepayment
desired by the party making a partial prepayment, except that the full amount of Administrative
Fees and Expenses determined in Step 8 shall be included in the partial prepayment.   The

Maximum Special Tax that can be levied on a Parcel after a partial prepayment is made shall be

deternuned as follows:

Step 1.     Calculate the full prepayment  ( not including the amount collected for
Administrative Fees and Expenses) that would be due from the Parcel if the

entire Special Tax obligation were being prepaid pursuant to Section H. 1
above.

Step 2.     Divide the partial prepayment amount for the Parcel( not including the amount
coliected for Administrative Fees and Expenses) by the amount computed in
Step 1 to deternune a percentage.

Step 3.     Subtract the percentage computed in Step 2 from 100% to determine the

Remaining Percentage".       

Step 4.     Multiply the Remaining Percentage from Step 3 by the Maximum Special Tax
for the Parcel to deternune the new Maximum Special Tax that will be in

effect for the Parcel after the partial prepayment is applied.

I.       INTERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

The City may, by resolution or ordinance, interpret, clarify, and/ or revise this RMA to correct
any inconsistency,  vagueness,  or ambiguity as it relates to the Special Tax,  method of

apportionment, classification of properties, or any definition applicable to the CFD, as long as

IA No. 1 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 14 August 8, 2018

293



such correction does not materially affect the levy and collection of Special Taxes and any
security for the Bonds.  The City, upon the request of an owner of land within the CFD which is
not Developed Property, may also amend this RMA in any manner acceptable to the City, by
resolution or ordinance following a public hearing, upon the affirmative vote of such owner to
such amendment and without the vote of owners of any other land within the CFD,
provided such amendment only affects such owner' s land and does not reduce the Total
Maximum Special Tax Revenue that can be collected from the Parcel.

IA No. 1 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- I 1 S August 8, 2018

294



Attachment 1

Improvement Area# 10#the

City of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1

Exp c d l.and Uses and IVlaximum Annual Special Yax per rE l

Fiscal Year 2018- 19)

Total

Maximurvt

Annual

fVet Expected Base Special Ta t

AP 1 Asreag Land Use Special Tax/ 1 Revenue/ 1

1 1=2 A- 3R 22, 9 Residential 9, 680 221, 672

1=2_ A-  22. 7 Residential 9, 680 219, 73

3.- 2. pn d0 15. 2 Residential 9, 680 147,

2. 0_41 12, 3 Residential 9, 680 119, OC4

191- 210- 42 16. 3 Residential 9, 680 5y,' 4

191- 210- 43 4. 1 Public( Park)    0 d_
Total Maximum Annual Special Yax Revenue/ 1 C, 9

1 S ginning luly 1, 2019, and each luly 1 thereafter, the Base Special ax, M i injuiii

A nnual 5p cial Tax, and Total Maximum Annual Special Tax Revenue shall inEr a
tay 2'% of h amount in ffect in the prior Fiscal Year.

GAodwln on ult/ng Group, lnc.      G/ 2U/ 2d1g

295



EXHIBIT C

RATE AND METHOD OF

APPORTIONMENT

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1

CEiVTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)

IMPROVEMENT i4REA 2

Exhibit C

Page 1

296



i

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 2 OF THE

CITY OF LATHROP

OMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1

CENTRAL LATHIZOP SPECIFIC PLAN'+ ACILITIES

RATE AND 1VIETHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

A Special Tax applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in Improvement Area No. 2 of the City of

Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)
shall be levied and collected according to the tax liability deternuned by the City or its designee
through the application of the appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Property, as described
below.   All of the property in Improvement Area No. 2, unless exempted by law or by the
provisions of Section G below, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent, and in the manner

herein provided, including property subsequently annexed to Improvement Area No. 2 unless a
separate Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax is adopted for the annexation area.

A.      DEFINITIOPTS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

Accessory Unit" means a second residential unit of limited size ( e. g., granny cottage, second

unit) that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit.

Acre" or " Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor' s Parcel as shown on an Assessor' s

Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map, the land area shown on
the applicable Final Map or other parcel map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office.

Act" means the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5,
commencing with Section 53311), Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following: the fees and expenses of any
fiscal agent or trustee ( including any fees or expenses of its counsel) employed in connection
with any Bonds,  and the expenses of the City in carrying out its duties with respect to
Improvement Area No. 2 and the Bonds related thereto, including, but not limited to, the levy
and collection of the Special Tax, the fees and expenses of its counsel, charges levied by the
County in connection with the levy and collection of the Special Tax, costs related to property
owner inquiries regarding the Special Tax,  amounts needed to pay rebate to the federal
government with respect to the Bonds,  costs associated with complying with continuing

disclosure requirements with respect to the Bonds and the Special Tax, and all other costs and

expenses of the City and County in any way related to administration of the CFD including costs
related to any dispute, litigation, settlement, or defense of any matter related to the CFD.

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- I 1 August 8, 2018

297



Administrative Expense Cap" means $ 15, 000 for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 and$ 15, 000 for Fiscal

Year 2019-20. No Administrative Expense Cap shall apply after Fiscal Year 2019- 20.

Administrative Expense Reimbursement Amount" means a total of$40,000.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by the City to administer the Special Tax
according to this RMA.

Airspace Parcel" means a parcel with an assigned Assessor' s Parcel number that constitutes

vertical space of an underlying land Parcel.

Assessor' s Parcel" or " Parcel" means a lot or parcel, including an Airspace Parcel, shown on
a County Assessor' s Parcel Map with an assigned County Assessor' s Parcel number.

Assessor' s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor designating Parcels by
Assessor' s Parcel number.

Association Property" means any property within Improvement Area No. 2 that is owned by a
homeowners' association or properky owners' association, excluding such property that is under
the pad or footprint of a residential unit or building.

Authorized Facilities" means the public facilities authorized to be fmanced, in whole or in

part, by Special Taxes collected within the CFD, pursuant to the documents adopted by the City
Council at CFD Formation.

Base Special Tax" means, in Fiscal Year 2018- 19, $ 9, 680 per Net Acre for any Parcel or
portion of a Parcel developed or expected to be developed as Residential Property and$ 4, 000 per
Net Acre for any Parcel or portion of a Parcel developed or expected to be developed as Non-
Residential Property, which amounts shall increase on July 1, 2019 and each July 1 thereafter by
two percent( 2%) of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year. The determination of Expected
Land Use shall be made by the Administrator based on review of land use and development .
plans, and in coordination with the City Planning Department.

Bonds" means bonds or other debt( as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, which

are secured by Special Tax revenues and were issued, insured or assumed by Improvement Area
No. 2 to fund Authorized Facilities.

CFD" or " CFD No. 2018- 1" means the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation for CFD No. 2018- 1

was adopted by the City Council.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 2 August 8, 2018

298



County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount" means an amount equal to 50% of the greatest

interest payment due in any single bond year, as defined in the Indenture.

Developed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
building permit for new construction ( which shall not include a pernut issued solely for
construction of the foundation if another permit remains to be issued for vertical construction of

the building) was issued prior to June 1 of the preceding Fiscal Year.

EDU" means an equivalent dwelling unit, as used in Section C.3 to determine the relative
relationship among SFD Lots.

EDU Factor" means the equivalent dwelling unit factor assigned to SFD Lots in Section C. 3
below.

Expected Land Use" means the Land Use( s) andlor Public Property anticipated on a Parcel in
Improvement Area No. 2.  The Expected Land Uses at the time of CFD Formation are identified

in Attachment 1 of this RMA, and such Expected Land Uses may be updated pursuant to
Sections C and D below.

Final Map" means a final map, or portion thereof, recorded by the County pursuant to the
Subdivision Map Act ( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) that creates SFD

Lots.  The term" Final Map" shall not include any Assessor' s Parcel Map or subdivision map, or
portion thereof, that does not create SFD Lots, including Assessor' s Parcels that are designated
as remainder parcels.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Improvement Area No. 2" means Improvement Area No. 2 of the City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).

Indenture" means the bond indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or

other instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued,  as modified,  amended,  and/ or

supplemented from time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

Land Use" means Residential Property or Non-Residential Property.

Land Use Change" means a proposed or approved change to the Expected Land Use( s) on a

Parcel of Taxable Property.

Large Lot Map" means a subdivision map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office that
subdivides all or a portion of the property in Improvement Area No. 2 into large Parcels, most of
which will be subject to future subdivision.

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD 1Vo. 2018- 1 3 August 8, 2018

299



Maximum Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Special Tax that can be levied on a

Parcel of Taxable Property in any Fiscal Year, as deternuned in accordance with Sections C and
D below.   The Maximum Special Tax based on Expected Land Uses for each Parcel in

Improvement Area No. 2 at the time of CFD Formation is set forth in Attachment 1.

Multi- Family Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed Property for
which a building permit was issued for construction of a residential structure with five or more
Units that share a single Assessor' s Parcel number, are offered for rent to the general public, and

cannot be purchased by individual homebuyers.

Net Acreage" means the estimated acreage of Residential Property and Non-Residential
Property on an Original Parcel after taking out expected Public Property, not including internal
streets.  The Net Acreage within each Original Parcel at the time of CFD Formation is shown in

Attachment 1, and such Net Acreage shall be updated each time an Original Parcel subdivides or

a Land Use Change is approved. " Net Acre" means one acre of the Net Acreage calculated for a

Parcel.

Non- Residential Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property that are not
Taxable Public Property for which a building permit was issued for a use other than Residential
Property.  If a Parcel includes or is expected to include both Units and non-residential land uses,
the Net Acreage to be taxed as Non-Residential Property shall be calculated by dividing the net
leasable and net saleable square footage of non- residential uses on the Parcel ( as determined by
the Administrator) by the aggregate net leasable and net saleable square footage built or expected
to be built on the Parcel ( as determined by the Administrator), then multiplying the quotient by
the Net Acreage of the underlying land Parcel for purposes of calculating the Maximum Special
Tax and levying the Special Tax in any Fiscal Year.

Original Parcel" means: ( i) an Assessor' s Parcel included in Improvement Area No. 2 at the

time of CFD Formation, ( ii) an Assessor' s Parcel that annexes into Improvement Area No. 2

after CFD Formation, or( iii) a Successor Parcel that was created after subdivision of an Original

Parcel and is being further subdivided.

Proportionately" means, for Developed Property, that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied
in any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Special Tax authorized to be levied in that Fiscal Year is
equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property.     For Undeveloped Property,
Proportionately" means that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied to the Maximum Special

Tax authorized to be levied is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Undeveloped Property.

Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 2 that is
owned by or irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, State of California,
County, City, or other local governments or public agencies. For purposes of this RMA, all
Association Properly shall also be categorized as Public Property.

Required Coverage" means that the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue must be at least

110% of the debt service on the Bonds in every bond year, as defined in the Indenture.

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD No. 20I8- 1 4 August 8, 2018

300



Required Revenue"  means,  after.  one or more series of Bonds have been issued for

Improvement Area No. 2, the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue that must be available in

order to maintain Required Coverage.  Upon prepayment of all or a portion of the Maximum

Special Tax obligation assigned to any Parcel in Improvement Area No. 2, the Required Revenue
shall be reduced by the Special Tax that will no longer be levied on the Parcel for which a
prepayment was received, as determined by the Adnuiustrator. For purposes of Section C below,
Required Revenue shall be $ 0.00 prior to issuance of the first series of Bonds for Improvement

Area No. 2.

Residential Property" means, collectively, Single Family Detached Property, Single Family
Attached Properly, and Multi- Fanuly Property.  If a Parcel includes or is expected to include
both Units and non-residential land uses, the Net Acreage to be taxed as Residential Property
shall be calculated by dividing the net leasable and net saleable square footage of residential uses
on the Parcel ( as deternvned by the Administrator) by the aggregate net leasable and net saleable
square footage built or expected to be built on the Parcel ( as determined by the Administrator),
then multiplying the quotient by the Net Acreage of the underlying land Parcel for purposes of
calculating the Maximum Special Tax and levying the Special T in any Fiscal Year.

RMA" means this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

SFD Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and numbered on a recorded Final

Map, on which a building pernut has been or is pernutted to be issued for construction of a single
family detached unit without further subdivision of the lot and for which no further subdivision
of the lot is anticipated pursuant to an approved tentative map.

Single Family Attached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed
Property for which a building pernut or use pernut was issued for construction of a residential
structure consisting of two or more Units that share common walls, have separate Assessor' s
Parcel numbers assigned to them ( except for a duplex unit, which may share a Parcel with
another duplex unit), and may be purchased by individual homebuyers ( which shall still be the
case even if the Units are purchased and subsequently offered for rent by the owner of the Unit),
including such residential structures that meet the statutory definition of a condominium
contained in Civil Code Section 1351.

Single Family Detached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed
Property for which a building permit was issued for construction of a Unit that does not share a
common wall with another Unit.

Special Tax"  means a special tax levied in any Fiscal Year to pay the Special Tax
Requirement.

Special Tax Requirement" means the amount necessary in any Fiscal Year to:  ( i) pay
principal and interest on Bonds that is due in the calendar year. that begins in such Fiscal Year;

ii) create and/ or replenish debt service reserve funds as required by the Indenture for the Bonds
to the extent such replenishment has not been included in the computation of the Special Tax

Requirement in a previous Fiscal Year; ( iii) cure any delinquencies in the payment of principal

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD No. 20I8- 1 S August 8, 2018

301



or interest on Bonds which have occurred in the prior Fiscal Year; ( iv) pay Administrative
Expenses, subject to the Administrative Expense Cap if applicable for the Fiscal Year; ( v) create

and/ or replenish reserve funds for Administrative Expenses;  and ( vi) pay for extraordinary
administrative expense reserve reimbursement, as described in the Indenture.   The amounts

referred to in clauses ( i) and ( ii) of the preceding sentence may be reduced in any Fiscal Year by:
i) interest earnings on or surplus balances in funds and accounts for the Bonds to the extent that

such earnings or balances are available to apply against debt service pursuant to the Indenture;
ii) proceeds received from the collection of penalties associated with delinquent Special Taxes;

and ( iii) any other revenues available to reduce the Special Tax Requirement as determined by
the Administrator.

Successor Parcel"  means a Parcel of Taxable Property created from subdivision or
reconfiguration of an Original Parcel.

Taxable Property" means all Parcels within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 2 that( i)
are not exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to law or Section G below, and ( ii) which upon

subdivision of an Original Parcel, are assigned Expected Land Uses and are not expected to be

Public Property.

Taxable Public Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, any Parcel of Public Property within
Improvement Area No. 2 that had been assigned a Maximum Special Tax obligation based on

Expected Land Uses being assigned to the Parcel.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (i) a
prepayment is received in an amount sufficient to pay off the full Maximum Special Tax
obligation assigned to the Parcel, or( ii) the City determines that, in the Fiscal Year in which the
Parcel would first be categorized as Taxable Public Property, an equal amount of Acreage within
the CFD that had been Public Property became Taxable Properiy, then the Parcel of Public
Property can be deemed exempt from the Special Tax if the Administrator determines that the
Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue after granting such exemption is greater than or equal to
the Required Revenue.

Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue" means the aggregate amount of revenue that can be

generated in any Fiscal Year by levying the Maximum Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable
Property within Improvement Area No. 2.

Undeveloped Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property that are not
Developed Property.

Unit" means a single family detached unit or an individual unit within a duplex, triplex,
halfplex, fourplex, condominium, townhome, live/ work, or apartment structure.  An Accessory
Unit that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit shall not be considered a separate
Unit for purposes of this RMA.

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 6 August 8, 20I8

302



B.      DATA FOR ADMINISTRATION OF SPECIAL TAX

On or about July 1 of each Fiscal Year, the Aiiministrator shall identify( i) the current Assessor' s
Parcel numbers for all Parcels of Developed Property and Undeveloped Property within
Improvement Area No. 2, ( ii) the number of Units expected within each building on each Parcel
of Single Fanuly Attached Property, ( iii) the square footage of all SFD Lots that were created in
the prior Fiscal Year, ( iv) whether the Administrative Expense Reimbursement Amount and the

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount have been fully funded by special tax revenues from
prior fiscal years, and ( v) the Special Tax Requirement for the Fiscal Year.  In addition, on an

ongoing basis, the Administrator shall monitor Land Use Changes and the subdivision of Parcels
in Improvement Area No. 2 and ( i) allocate the Maximum Special Tax assigned to the Original

Parcel( s) to the Successor Parcels created by the subdivision pursuant to Section C below, and       
ii) ensure that such Land Use Changes do not result in Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue

that is less than the Required Revenue.  After the recordation of each Large Lot Map within
Improvement Area No.  2,  the Adininistrator shall also review and revise,  as needed, the

Expected Land Uses, Net Acreage, and Maximum Special Taxes for each Successor Parcel

created by recordation of the Large Lot Map, and update Attachment 1 accordingly, as set forth
in Section C below.

In any Fiscal Year, if it is deternuned that: ( i) a parcel map for properly in Improvement Area
No. 2 was recorded after January 1 of the prior Fiscal Year ( or any other date after which the
Assessor will not incorporate the newly- created parcels into the then current tax roll),  ( ii)

because of the date the parcel map was recorded, the Assessor does not yet recognize the new
parcels created by the parcel map, and ( iii) a building permit was issued prior to June 1 of the
prior Fiscal Year for development on one or more of the newly- created parcels,  the

Administrator shall calculate the Special Tax for each Land Use within the subdivided area and

levy such Special Tax on the Original Parcel that was subdivided by recordation of the parcel
map.

C.      MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

1.       Original Parcels in Improvement Area No. 2 at CFD Formation

Attachment 1 to this RMA identifies the Maximum Special Tax assigned to each Original Parcel

in Improvement Area No. 2 for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 based on the Expected Land Use( s) for each

Parcel as of CFD Formation.   After recordation of each Large Lot Map for property in
Improvement Area No. 2, the Administrator shall review current maps and land use plans for the

property within the Large Lot Map and, in consultation with the City Planning Deparhnent,
reevaluate the Expected Land Uses for each of the Successor Parcels created by recordation of
the Large Lot Map.  Attachment 1 shall be updated to reflect the Assessor' s Parcel numbers,

Expected Land Uses, Net Acreage, and corresponding Maximum Special Tax assigned to each
Parcel after applying the Base Special Tax to each Land Use ori each Successor Parcel.  If,based
on changes to the Expected Land Uses within the Large Lot Map area, the Total Maximum
Special Tax Revenue that could be generated in Improvement Area No. 2 is less than the

Required Revenue, the Maximum Special Tax on each Successor Parcel created by the Large Lot

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 7 August 8, 2018

303



Map shall be increased proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue is equal
to the Required Revenue.  If there is an increase in the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue

based on Expected Land Uses within the Large Lot Map, the Administrator shall reflect such
increased Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue in the updated Attachment 1.

If, before or after the comprehensive review after recordation of a Large Lot Map, there are any
other Land Use Changes proposed for any Parcel prior to fmal subdivision of the Parcel, the
Administrator shall deternune the Maximum Special Tax that would be assigned to the Parcel if

the Base Special Tax was applied to the Net Acreage of Residential Property and/ or Non-
Residential Property on the Parcel after the proposed Land Use Change.   If, based on this

Maximum Special Tax. calculation, the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue would be less than

the Required Revenue,  the Maximum Special Tax for such Parcel shall be increased

proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue is equal to the Required Revenue.
If there is an increase in the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue after the Land Use Change,

the Adininistrator shall reflect such increased Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue in an

updated Attachment 1.

2.       Successor Parcels that are not SFI) Lots

The Maximum Special Tax for each Original Parcel for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 is identified in

Attachment l, which may be updated as set forth above.  After such update, if an Original Parcel
is subdivided or reconfigured and none of the Successor Parcels are SFD Lots, the Administrator

shall assign the Maximum Special Tax to the Successor Parcels by applying the following steps:

Step 1:     Based on reference to Land Use plans and, if needed, coordination with the

City Planning Department, deternune the Net Acreage of each Land Use on
each Successor Parcel created from subdivision or reconfiguration of the

Original Parcel.

Step 2:     For each Successor Parcel, multiply the Base Special Tax for each Land Use
by the Net Acreage of each Land Use deternuned in Step 1, and calculate the
aggregate Maximum Special Tax that could be generated from the Successor

Parcels created from subdivision of the Original Parcel.

Step 3:     If the aggregate Maximum Special Tax for all Successor Parcels is greater

than or equal to the Maximum Special Tax that had been assigned to the

Original Parcel before it was subdivided, the Maximum Special Tax for each

Successor Parcel shall be the amount deterniined in Step 2,  and the

Administrator shall recalculate the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue to

include the increased 1Vtaximum Special Tax.   If the aggregate Maximum

Special Tax for all Successor Parcels is less than the Maximum Special Tax

assigned to the Original Parcel, and such reduction would reduce the Total

Maximum Special Tax Revenue to an amount less than the Required Revenue,

then the Administrator shall increase the amount calculated for each Successor

Parcel in Step 2 proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax
Revenue after the subdivision is equal to the Required Revenue.

IA No. 2 of Latlzrop CFD No. 2018- 1 8 August 8, 20I8

304



Step 4:     If all or a portion of the Original Parcel was subdivided to create individual

Parcels ( which may be Airspace Parcels) for Units on Single Family Attached
Properly, divide the Maximum Special Tax assigned to the Original Parcel( or
portion thereo fl, as may be adjusted pursuant to Step 3 above, by the total
number of Units that will be built on the Original Parcel( or portion thereo to

calculate the Maximum Special Tax that will be assigned to each Parcel.

Upon each application of this Section C.2, there shall be no reduction in the Required Revenue

unless there has been a prepayment for one or more Parcels within Improvement Area No. 2.

3.       Successor Parcels of which All or Some are SFD Lots

Upon subdivision of an Original Parcel into Successor Parcels, of which all or some are SFD

Lots, the Administrator shall apply the following steps to deternune the Maximum Special Tax
for each Parcel:

Step 1:     Determine the Net Acreage and Expected Land Use for each Successor Parcel

created from subdivision of the Original Parcel.  Apply the steps set forth in
Section C. 2 above to allocate the Maximum Special Tax from the Original

Parcel to each Successor Parcel.

Step 2:     Apply one of the following EDU Factors to each SFD Lot based on the square
footage of each lot, and calculate the aggregate EDUs from all SFD Lots

created by subdivision of the Original Parcel:

Lot Size EDU Factor

Greater than 8, 000 square feet 1. 25

6, 501- 8, 000 square feet 1. 14

5, 001- 6, 500 square feet 1. 00

3, 501- 5, 000 square feet 0. 87

2, 800- 3, 500 square feet 0. 81

Less than 2, 800 square feet 0. 73

Step 3:     For SFD Lots, suxn the Maximum Special Tax assigned in Step 1 to all
Successor Parcels that are SFD Lots, and divide this amount by the total
EDUs deternuned in Step 2 to calculate a Maximum Special Tax per EDU.
Multiply the Maximum Special Tax per EDU by the EDU Factor for each
SFD Lot to deternune the Maximum Special Tax for each Successor Parcel

that is a SFD Lot.  This Maximum Special Tax shall be the Maximum Special

Tax for the Parcel when it is Undeveloped Property and when it becomes
Developed Property.

For Successor Parcels that are not SFD Lots, the Maximum Special Tax

shall be the amount determined for each Parcel pursuant to Step 1 above.

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- I 9 August 8, 2018

305



At no time shall the distribution of the Maximum Special Tax upon subdivision or

reconfiguration of a Parcel result in Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue that is lower than the

Required Revenue.   If an Original Parcel is subdivided, and the Successor Parcels include a

combination of Land Uses, the Administrator shall delineate the Maximum Special Tax to the

Taxable Property created by the subdivision based on the best information available at the time,
and based on application of Sections C. 2 and C. 3 of this RMA.

4.       Parcels of Taxable Public Property

The Maximutn Special Tax for a Parcel of Taxable Public Property shall be equal to the
Maximum Special Tax that applied prior to the Parcel becoming Public Property.

5.       Annexations

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel or Parcels annex into Improvement Area No. 2, the Administrator
shall, in coordination with the City Planning Department, identify the Expected Land Uses for
the Parcel( s).  The Administrator shall then ( i) apply the Base Special Tax to each Land Use to
calculate the Maximum Special Ta c for the Parcel, ( ii) add the Maximum Special Tax for the

Parcel to the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue, and ( iii) levy the Special Tax on the
Parcel( s) pursuant to this RMA in the next Fiscal Year and all future Fiscal Years unless a

prepayment is received to fully release the Parcel( s) from the Special Tax obligation.

D.      ADJUSTMENTS TO THE MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

1.       Escalation of Maximum Special Tax

Beginning July 1, 2019 and each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel in
Improvement Area No. 2 shall be increased by two percent ( 2%) of the amount in effect in the

prior Fiscal Year.

2.       Conversion of a Parcel of Public Property to Private Use

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel of Public Property is converted to private use, which shall include
a lease to a private entity allowing the property to be taxed pursuant to Section 53340. 1 of the
Act, such Parcel shall be subject to the levy of the Special Tax.  The Maximum Special Tax for

each such Parcel shall be deternuned based on applying the Base Special Tax to the Net Acreage
of each Expected Land Use on the Parcel.

E.       METHOD OF LEVY OF THE SPECIAL TAX

1.       Each Fiscal Year prior to the time at which the Administrative Expense Reimbursement

Amount has been repaid pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and the Debt Service

Reserve Funding Amount has been fully funded pursuant to the terms of the Indenture,

IA No. 2 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- I 10 August 8, 2018

306



the Aduiinistrator shall levy the Maximum Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable
Property.

2.       Each Fiscal Year beginning with the Fiscal Year in which the Administrative Expense
Reimbursement Amount has been repaid pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and the

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount has been fully funded pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture, the Administrator shall deternune the Special Tax Requirement and levy the
Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable Property as follows:

Step 1:     The Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel of Developed
Property, other than Taxable Public Property, up to 100% of the Maximum

Special Tax for each Parcel until the amount levied on Developed Property is
equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

Step 2:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 1 to pay the Special Tax
Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel
of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each

Parcel until the amount levied on Developed Property . and Undeveloped
Property is equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

Step 3:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 2 to pay the Special Tax
Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel
of Taxable Public Property, up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each

Parcel.

F.       1VIANNER OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX

The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad
valorem property taxes, provided, however, that the City may directly bill, collect at a different
time or in a different manner, and/ or collect delinquent Special Taxes through foreclosure or

other available methods.

The Special Tax shall be levied and collected until principal and interest on the Bonds have been

repaid, costs of constructing or acquiring Authorized Facilities from Special Tax proceeds have
been paid, and all Administrative Expenses have been paid or reimbursed.  However, in no event

shall a Special Tax be levied after Fiscal Year 2060- 61, except that a Special Tax that was

lawfully levied in or before the Fiscal Year 2060- 61 and remains delinquent may be collected in
subsequent Fiscal Years.  Under no circumstances may the Special Tax on a Parcel in residential
use be increased in any Fiscal Year as a consequence of delinquency or default in payment of the
Special Tax levied on another Parcel or Parcels by more than ten percent ( 10%) above the

amount that would have been levied in that Fiscal Year had there never been any such
delinquencies or defaults.

IA No. 2 of LatJ: rop CFD No. 2018- 1 11 August 8, 20I8

307



G.      EXEli IPTIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this RMA, no Special Tax shall be levied on the
following: ( i) Public Property, except Taxable Public Property, ( ii) Parcels that are designated as
permanent open space or common space on which no structure is permitted to be constructed,

iii) Parcels owned by a public utility for an unmanned facility, or ( iv) Parcels subject to an
easement that precludes any use on the Parcel other than that pernutted by the easement.  In

addition, no Special Tax shall be levied on any Parcel that has fully prepaid the Special Tax
obligation assigned to the Parcel, as determined pursuant to the formula set forth in Section H

below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Special Tax has been levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal
Year, and the Parcel subsequently meets the criteria for any of the exempted categories above,
the Parcel shall remain subject to the Special Tax levy unless and until a prepayment is made to
release the Parcel from its Special Tax obligation or, in the case of Public Property, the City
deternunes that the parcel can be exempted from the Special Tax after making the deternunations
listed in the definition ofTaxable Public Property above.

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel of Public Property is converted to private use, such Parcel shall be
subject to the levy of Special Taxes pursuant to Section D.2 above.

I.      P12EPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

The following definitions apply to this Section H:

Outstanding Bonds" means all Previously Issued Bonds which remain outstanding,
with the following exception:  if a Special Tax has been levied against, or already paid
by, an Assessor' s Parcel making a prepayment, and a portion of the Special Tax will be
used to pay a portion of the next principal payment on the Bonds that remain outstanding
as deternuned by the Administrator), that next principal payment shall be subtracted

from the total Bond principal that remains outstanding, and the difference shall be used as
the amount of Outstanding Bonds for purposes of this prepayment formula.

Previously Issued Bonds" means all Bonds that have been issued prior to the date of
prepayment.

1.       Full Prepayment

The Special Tax obligation applicable to a Parcel in Improvement Area No. 2 may be fully
prepaid and the obligation of the Parcel to pay the Special Tax permanently satisfied as described
herein, provided that a prepayment may be made only if there are no delinquent Special Taxes
with respect to such Parcel at the time of prepayment.  An owner of a Parcel intending to prepay
the Special Tax obligation shall provide the City with written notice of intent to prepay. Within
30 days of receipt of such written notice, the City or its designee shall notify such owner of the
prepayment amount for such Parcel.  Prepayments must be made not less than 50 days prior to

any redemption date for the Bonds to be redeemed with the proceeds of such prepaid Special
Taxes.

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 12 August 8, 2018

308



The Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows ( capitalized terms as defined below):

Bond Redemption Amount

plus Redemption Premium

plus Defeasance Requirement

plus Administrative Fees and Expenses

less Reserve Fund Credit

equals Prepayment Amount

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be determined by
application of the following steps:

Step 1:     Determine the total Maximum Special Tax that could be collected from the

Parcel prepaying the Special Tax in the Fiscal Year in which prepayment
would be received by the City.

Step B:     Divide the Maximum Special Tax computed pursuant to Step 1 by the Total
Maximum Special Tax Revenue for the Fiscal Year in which prepayment

would be received by the City.

Step 3:     Multiply the quotient computed pursuant to Step 2 by the Outstanding Bonds
to compute the amount of Outstanding Bonds to be retired and prepaid ( the

Bond Izedemption Amount'.

Step 4:     Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount computed pursuant to Step 3 by the
applicable redemption premium,  if any, on the Outstanding Bonds to be
redeemed( the " Redemption Premium'.

Step 5:     Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount
starting with the last Outstanding Bond interest payment date on which
interest has been or will be paid by Special Taxes already levied until the
earliest redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 6:     Compute the amount of interest the City reasonably expects to derive from
reinvestment of the Bond Redemption Amount plus the Redemption Premium

from the first Outstanding Bond interest payment date after which the
prepayment has been received until the redemption date for the Outstanding
Bonds.

Step 7:     Take the amount computed pursuant to Step 5 and subtract the amount
computed pursuant to Step 6 ( the " Defeasance Idequirement'.

Step 8:     Determine the costs of computing the prepayment amount,  redeeming

Outstanding Bonds, and recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and
redemption( the " 4drrzinistYative Fees and Expenses'.

IA No. 2 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 13 August 8, 20I8

309



Step 9:     If and to the extent so provided in the Indenture, a reserve fund credit shall be

calculated as a reduction in the applicable reserve fund for the Outstanding
Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to the prepayment ( the  " Reserve Fund

Credit'.

Step 10:   The Special Tax prepayment is equal to the sum of the amounts computed

pursuant to Steps 3, 4, 7, and 8, less the amount computed pursuant to Step 9
the " Prepayment Amount'.

Once a full prepayment of a Parcel' s Special Tax obligation has been received, a Notice of

Cancellation of Special Tax Lien shall be recorded against the Parcel to reflect the discharge of

the Parcel' s obligation to pay the Special Tax. However, a Notice of Cancellation of Special Tax
Lien shall not be recorded until all Special Taxes levied on the Parcel in the current or prior

Fiscal Years have been collected.

2.       Partial Prepayment

A partial prepayment may be made in an amount equal to any percentage of full prepayment
desired by the party making a partial prepayment, except that the full amount of Administrative
Fees and Expenses determined in Step 8 shall be included in the partial prepayment.   The

Maximum Special Tax that can be levied on a Parcel after a partial prepayment is made shall be

determined as follows:

Step 1.     Calculate the full prepayment  ( not including the amount collected for
Administrative Fees and Expenses) that would be due from the Parcel if the

entire Special Tax obligation were being prepaid pursuant to Section H. 1
above.

Step 2.     Divide the partial prepayment amount for the Parcel( not including the amount
collected for Administrative Fees and Expenses) by the amount computed in
Step 1 to determine a percentage.

Step 3.     Subtract the percentage computed in Step 2 from 100% to deternune the

Remaining Percentage".

Step 4.     Multiply the Remaining Percentage from Step 3 by the Maximum Special Tax
for the Parcel to determine the new Maximum Special Tax that will be in

effect for the Parcel after the partial prepayment is applied.

I.       INTERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

The City may, by resolution or ordinance, interpret, clarify, and/or revise this RMA to correct
any inconsistency,  vagueness,  or ambiguity as it relates to the Special Tax,  method of

apportionment, classification of properties, or any definition applicable to the CFD, as long as

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 14 August 8, 2018

310



such correction does not materially affect the levy and collection of Special Taxes and any
security for the Bonds.  The City, upon the request of an owner of land within the CFD which is
not Developed Property, may also amend this RMA in any manner acceptable to the City, by
resolution or ordinance following a public hearing, upon the affirmative vote of such owner to
such amendment and without the vote of owners of any other land within the CFD,
provided such amendment only affects such owner' s land and does not reduce the Total
Maximum Special Tax Revenue that can be collected from the Parcel.

IA No. 2 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- I 1 S August 8, 2018

311



Attachment 1

Imgarovement Area# 2 of the

City of Lathrop CFD iVo. 201$- 1

xpected Lan¢I Uses and IVlaximum Annual Speeial 1` x eN 1` @I

Fiscal Year 2018- 19)

rat l

Maxir ur

Annu l

Net Expected Base Speei l Y x

AP6U Acreage Land Use Special Tax/ 1 R v nu/ 1

191- 2 D0- 21 17. 0 Residential 9, 680 1 4,

1- 2fD0- 23 10. 8 Residential 9, 680 1d4, 54 1

2. l Ap=24 15. 3 Residential 9, 680 14, 0

2. 10 17 13. 7 Residential 9, 680 3.32 C

1 1- 200- 25 4. 5 Public( Parlc)    0 8

otal Mascimur Annual Special Tax Pdevenue/ 1 54, d

1 Beginning July 1, 2019, and each July 1 thereafter, the Hase Special Te, MakiY lUi
Annual Special Tax, and Total Maximum Annual Special T x Ft vpnu 51j 11 it1EP

I y 2'% of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year,

C oodwin Consulting Group, lnc.      ij+,8,, 8

312



EXHIBIT D

RATE AND METHOD OF

APPORTIONMENT

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)

IMPROVEMENT AREA 3

Exhibit D

Page 1313



IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3 OF THE

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1

CENTRAL I ATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

A Special Tax applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in Improvement Area No. 3 of the City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Latlirop Specific Plan Facilities)
shall be levied and collected according to the tax liability deternuned by the City or its designee
through the application of the appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Properly, as described
below.   All of the property in Improvement Area No. 3, unless exempted by law or by the
provisions of Section G below, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent, and in the manner

herein provided, including property subsequently annexed to Improvement Area No. 3 unless a
separate Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax is adopted for the annexation area.

A.      DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:     

Accessory Unit" means a second residential unit of limited size ( e. g., granny cottage, second

unit) that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit.

Acre" or " Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor' s Parcel as shown on an Assessor' s

Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map, the land area shown on
the applicable Final Map or other parcel map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office.     

Act" means the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5,
commencing with Section 53311), Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following: the fees and expenses of any
fiscal agent or trustee ( including any fees or expenses of its counsel) employed in connection
with any Bonds,  and the expenses of the City in carrying out its duties with respect to
Improvement Area No. 3 and the Bonds related thereto, including, but not limited to, the levy
and collection of the Special Tax, the fees and expenses of its counsel, charges levied by the
County in connection with the levy and collection of the Special Tax, costs related to property
owner inquiries regarding the Special Tax,  amounts needed to pay rebate to the federal
government with respect to the Bonds,  costs associate. d with complying with continuing
disclosure requirements with respect to the Bonds and the Special Tax, and all other costs and

expenses of the City and County in any way related to administration of the CFD including costs
related to any dispute, litigation, settlement, or defense of any matter related to the CFD.

IA No. 3 oJLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 1 August 8, 20I8

314



Administrative Expense Cap" means $ 15, 000 for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 and$ 15, 000 for Fiscal

Year 2019- 20. No Administrative Expense Cap shall apply after Fiscal Year 2019- 20.

Administrative Expense Reimbursement Amount" means a total of$ 40, 000.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by the City to-adininister the Special Tax
according to this RMA.

Airspace Parcel" means a parcel with an assigned Assessor' s Parcel number that constitutes

vertical space of an underlying land Parcel.

Assessor' s Parcel" or " Parcel" means a lot or parcel, including an Airspace Parcel, shown on
a County Assessor' s Parcel Map with an assigned County Assessor' s Parcel number.

Assessor' s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor designating Parcels by
Assessor' s Parcel number.

Association Property" means any property within Improvement Area No. 3 that is owned by a
homeowners' association or property owners' association, excluding such property that is under
the pad or footprint of a residential unit or building.

Authorized Facilities" means the public facilities authorized to be fmanced, in whole or in

part, by Special Taxes collected within the CFD, pursuant to the documents adopted by the City
Council at CFD Formation.

Base Special Tax" means, in Fiscal Year 2018- 19, $ 9, 680 per Net Acre for any Parcel or
portion of a Parcel developed or expected to be developed as Residential Properly and$ 4, 000 per
Net Acre for any Parcel or portion of a Parcel developed or expected to be developed as Non-
Residential Property, which amounts shall increase on July 1, 2019 and each July 1 thereafter by
two percent( 2%) of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year. The deteimination of Expected

Land Use shall be made by the Administrator based on review of land use and development
plans, and in coordination with the City Planning Department.

Bonds" means bonds or other debt( as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, which

are secured by Special Tax revenues and were issued, insured or assumed by Improvement Area
No. 3 to fund Authorized Facilities. 

CFD" or " CFD No. 2018- 1" means the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation for CFD No. 2018- 1

was adopted by the City Council.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

IA No. 3 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 2 August 8, 2018

315



County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount" means an amount equal to 50% of the greatest

interest payment due in any single bond year, as defined in the Indenture.

Developed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
building permit for new construction ( which shall not include a pernut issued solely for
construction of the foundation if another pernut remains to be issued for vertical construction of

the building) was issued prior to June 1 of the preceding Fiscal Year.

EDU" means an equivalent dwelling unit, as used in Section C. 3 to determine the relative
relationship among SFD Lots.

EI) U actor" means the equivalent dwelling unit factor assigned to SFD Lots in Sec'tion C. 3
below.

Expected Land Use" means the Land Use( s) andJor Public Property anticipated on a Parcel in
Improvement Area No. 3.  The Expected Land Uses at the time of CFD Formation are identified

in Attachment 1 of this RMA, and such Expected Land Uses may be updated pursuant to
Sections C and D below.

Final Map" means a final map, or portion thereof, recorded by the County pursuant to the
Subdivision Map Act ( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) that creates SFD

Lots.  The term" Final Map" shall not include any Assessor' s Parcel Map or subdivision map, or
portion thereof, that does not create SFD Lots, including Assessor' s Parcels that are designated
as remainder parcels.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Improve ent Area No. 3" means Improvement Area No. 3 of the City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).

Indenture" means the bond indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or

other instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued,  as modified,  amended,  and/ or

supplemented from time to tiine, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

Land Use" means Residential Property or Non- Residential Property.

Land Use Change" means a proposed or approved change to the Expected Land Use( s) on a

Parcel of Taxable Property.

G6Large Lot 1VIap" means a subdivision map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office that
subdivides all or a portion of the property in Improvement Area No. 3 into large Parcels, most of
which will be subject to future subdivision.

IA No. 3 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 3 August 8, 2018

316



Maximum Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Special Tax that can be levied on a

Parcel of Taxable Property in any Fiscal Year, as determined in accordance with Sections C and
D below.   The Maximum Special Tax based on Expected Land Uses for each Parcel in

Improvement Area No. 3 at the time of CFD Formation is set forth in Attachment 1.

Multi- Family Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed Property for
which a building permit was issued for construction of a residential structure with five or more
Units that share a single Assessor' s Parcel number, are offered for rent to the general public, and

cannot be purchased by individual homebuyers.

Net Acreage" means the estimated acreage of Residential Property and Non- Residential
Property on an Original Parcel after taking out expected Public Properly, not including internal
streets.  The Net Acreage within each Original Parcel at the time of CFD Formation is shown in

Attachment 1, and such Net Acreage shall be updated each time an Original Parcel subdivides or

a Land Use Change is approved. " Net Acre" means one acre of the Net Acreage calculated for a

Parcel.

Non-Residential Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property that are not
Taxable Public Property for which a building pernut was issued for a use other than Residential
Property.  If a Parcel includes or is expected to include both Units and non- residential land uses,
the Net Acreage to be taxed as Non-Residential Property shall be calculated by dividing the net
leasable and net saleable square footage of non- residential uses on the Parcel ( as determined by
the Administrator) by.the aggregate net leasable and net saleable square footage built or expected
to be built on the Parcel ( as deteilnined by the Administrator), then multiplying the quotient by
the Net Acreage of the underlying land Parcel for purposes of calculating the Maximum Special
Tax and levying the Special Tax in any Fiscal Year.

Original Parcel" means: ( i) an Assessor' s Parcel included in Improvement Area No. 3 at the

time of CFD Formation, ( ii) an Assessor' s Parcel that annexes into Improvement Area No. 3

after CFD Formation, or( iii) a Successor Parcel that was created after subdivision of an Original

Parcel and is being further subdivided.

Proportionately" means, for Developed Property, that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied
in any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Special Tax authorized to be levied in that Fiscal Year is
equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property.     For Undeveloped Property,
Proportionately" means that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied to the Maximum Special

Tax authorized to be levied is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels ofUndeveloped Property.

Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 3 that is
owned by or irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, State of California,
County, City, or other local governments or public agencies. For purposes of this RMA, all
Association Property shall also be categorized as Public Property.

Required Coverage" means that the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue must be at least

110% of the debt service on the Bonds in every bond year, as defined in the Indenture.

IA No. 3 ofLathrop CFD No. 20I8- 1 4 August 8, 2018

317



Required Revenue"  means,  after one or more series of Bonds have been issued for

Improvement Area No. 3, the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue that must be available in

order to maintain Required Coverage.  Upon prepayment of all or a portion of the Maximum

Special Tax obligation assigned to any Parcel in Improvement Area No. 3, the Required Revenue
shall be reduced by the Special Tax that will no longer be levied on the Parcel for which a
prepayment was received, as determined by the Administrator. For purposes of Section C below,
Required Revenue shall be $ 0.00 prior to issuance of the first series of Bonds for Improvement

Area No. 3.

Residential Property" means, collectively, Single Family Detached Property, Single Family
Attached Property, and Multi- Family Property.  If a Parcel includes or is expected to include

both Units and non-residential land uses, the Net Acreage to be taxed as Residential Property
shall be calculated by dividing the net leasable and net saleable square footage of residential uses
on the Parcel ( as determined by the Administrator) by the aggregate net leasable and net saleable
square footage built or expected to be built on the Parcel ( as determined by the Administrator),
then multiplying the quotient by the Net Acreage of the underlying land Parcel for purposes of
calculating the Maximum Special Tax and levying the Special Tax in any Fiscal Year.

RMA" means this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

SFD Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and numbered on a recorded Final

Map, on which a building pernut has been or is pernutted to be issued for construction of a single
family detached unit without further subdivision of the lot and for which no further subdivision
of the lot is anticipated pursuant to an approved tentative map.

Single Family Attaehed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed
Property for which a building pernut or use pernut was issued for construction of a residential
structure consisting of two or more Units that share common walls, have separate Assessor' s
Parcel numbers assigned to them ( except for a duplex unit, which may share a Parcel with
another duplex unit), and may be purchased by individual homebuyers ( which shall still be the
case even if the Units are purchased and subsequently offered for rent by the owner of the Unit),
including such residential structures that meet the statutory defuution of a condominium
contained in Civil Code Section 1351.

Single Family Detached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed
Property for which a building pernut was issued for construction of a Unit that does not share a
common wall with another Unit.

Special Tax"  means a special tax levied in any Fiscal Year to pay the Special Tax
Requirement.

Speeial Tax Requirement" means the amount necessary in any Fiscal Year to:  ( i) pay

principal and interest on Bonds that is due in the calendar year that begins in such Fiscal Year;

ii) create and/ or replenish debt service reserve funds as required by the Indenture for the Bonds
to the extent such replenishment has not been included in the computation of the Special Tax

Requirement in a previous Fiscal Year; ( iii) cure any delinquencies in the payment of principal

IA No. 3 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- I 5 August 8, 20I8

318



or interest on Bonds which have occurred in the prior Fiscal Year; ( iv) pay Administrative
Expenses, subject to the Administrative Expense Cap if applicable for the Fiscal Year; ( v) create

and/ or replenish reserve funds for Administrative Expenses;  and ( vi) pay for extraordinary
administrative expense reserve reimbursement, as described in the Indenture.   The amounts

referred to in clauses ( i) and ( ii) of the preceding sentence may be reduced in any Fiscal Year by:
i) interest earnings on or surplus balances in funds and accounts for the Bonds to the extent that

such earnings or balances are available to apply against debt service pursuant to the Indenture;
ii) proceeds received from the collection of penalties associated with delinquent Special Taxes;

and ( iii) any other revenues available to reduce the Special Tax Requirement as deternuned by
the Administrator.

Successor Parcel"  means a Parcel of Taxable Property created from subdivision or
reconfiguration of an Original Parcel.

Taxable Property" means all Parcels within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 3 that( i)
are not exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to law or Section G below, and ( ii) which upon
subdivision of an Original Parcel, are assigned Expected Land Uses and are not expected to be

Public Property.

Taxable Public Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, any Parcel of Public Property within
Improvement Area No. 3 that had been assigned a Maximum Special Tax obligation based on

Expected Land Uses being assigned to the Parcel.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (i) a

prepayment is received in an amount sufficient to pay off the full Maximum Special Tax
obligation assigned to the Parcel, or( ii) the City deternunes that, in the Fiscal Year in which the
Parcel would first be categorized as Taxable Public Property, an equal amount of Acreage within
the CFD that had been Public Property became Taxable Property, then the Parcel of Public
Properiy can be deemed exempt from the Special Tax if the Administrator determines that the
Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue after granting such exemption is greater than or equal to
the Required Revenue.

Total 1Vlaximum Special Tax Revenue" means the aggregate amount of revenue that can be

generated in any Fiscal Year by levying the Maximum Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable
Property within Improvement Area No. 3.

Undeveloped P roperty" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property that are not
Developed Property.

Unit" means a single family detached unit or an individual unit within a duplex, triplex,
halfplex, fourplex, condominium, townhome, live/work, or aparhnent structure.  An Accessory
Unit that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit shall not be considered a separate
Unit for purposes of this RMA.    

IA No. 3 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 6 August 8, 20I8

319



B.      DATA FOR ADMINISTRATION OF SPECIAL TAX

On or about July 1 of each Fiscal Year, the Adininistrator shall identify( i) the current Assessor' s
Parcel numbers for all Parcels of Developed Property and Undeveloped Properfy within
Improvement Area No. 3, ( ii) the number of Units expected within each building on each Parcel
of Single Family Attached Property, ( iii) the square footage of all SFD Lots that were created in

the prior Fiscal Year, ( iv) whether the Administrative Expense Reimbursement Amount and the

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount have been fully funded by special tax revenues from
prior fiscal years, and ( v) the Special Tax Requirement for the Fiscal Year.  In addition, on an

ongoing basis, the Administrator shall monitor Land Use Changes and the subdivision of Parcels
in Improvement Area No. 3 and ( i) allocate the Maximum Special Tax assigned to the Original

Parcel( s) to the Successor Parcels created by the subdivision pursuant to Section C below, and
ii) ensure that such Land Use Changes do not result in Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue

that is less than the Required Revenue.  After the recordation of each Large Lot Map within
Improvement Area No.  3, the Administrator shall also review and revise,  as needed, the

Expected Land Uses, Net Acreage, and Maximum Special Taxes for each Successor Parcel

created by recordation of the Large Lot Map, and update Attachment 1 accordingly, as set forth
in Section C below.

In any Fiscal Year, if it is deternuned that: ( i) a parcel map for property in Improvement Area
No. 3 was recorded after January 1 of the prior Fiscal Year ( or any other date after which the
Assessor will not incorporate the newly- created parcels into the then current tax roll),.( ii)

because of the date the parcel map was recorded, the Assessor does not yet recognize the new
parcels created by the parcel map, and ( iii) a building pernut was issued prior to June 1 of the
prior Fiscal Year for development on one or more of the newly- created parcels,  the

Administrator shall calculate the Special Tax for each Land Use within the subdivided area and

levy such Special Tax on the Original Parcel that was subdivided by recordation of the parcel
map.

C.      MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

1.       Original Parcels in Improvement Area No. 3 at CFD Formation

Attachment 1 to this RMA identifies the Maximum Special Tax assigned to each Original Paxcel

in Improvement Area No. 3 for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 based on the Expected Land Use( s) for each

Parcel as of CFD Formation.   After recordation of each Large Lot Map for properly in
Improvement Area No. 3, the Administrator shall review current maps and land use plans for the

property within the Large Lot Map and, in consultation with the City Planning Deparhnent,
reevaluate the Expected Land Uses for each of the Successor Parcels created by recordation of
the Large Lot Map.  Attachment 1 shall be updated to reflect the Assessor' s Parcel numbers,

Expected Land Uses, Net Acreage, and corresponding Ma cimum Special Tax assigned to each
Parcel after applying the Base Special Tax to each Land Use on each Successor Parcel. If, based
on changes to the Expected Land Uses within the Large Lot Map area, the Total Maximum
Special Tax Revenue that could be generated in Improvement Area No. 3 is less than the

Required Revenue, the Maximum Special Tax on each Successor Parcel created by the Large Lot

IA No. 3 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- I 7 August 8, 2018

320



Map shall be increased proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue is equal
to the Required Revenue.  If there is an increase in the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue

based on Expected Land Uses within the Large Lot Map, the Administrator shall reflect such
increased Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue in the updated Attachment 1.

If, before or after the comprehensive review after recordation of a Large Lot Map, there are any
other Land Use Changes proposed for any Parcel prior to fmal subdivision of the Parcel, the
Administrator shall deternune the Maximum Special Tax that would be assigned to the Parcel if

the Base Special Tax was applied to the Net Acreage of Residential Property and/ or Non-
Residential Property on the Parcel after the proposed Land Use Change.   If, based on this

Maximum Special Tax calculation, the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue would be less than

the Required Revenue,  the Maximum Special Tax for such Parcel shall be increased

proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue is equal to the Required Revenue.
If there is an increase in the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue after the Land Use Change,

the Administrator shall reflect such increased Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue in an

updated Attachment 1.

2.       Successor Parcels that are not SFD Lots

The Maximum Special Tax for each Original Parcel for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 is identified in

Attachment 1, which may be updated as set forth above. After such update, if an Original Parcel
is subdivided or reconfigured and none of the Successor Parcels are SFD Lots, the Administrator

shall assign the Maximum Special Tax to the Successor Parcels by applying the following steps:

Step 1:     Based on reference to Land Use plans and, if needed, coordination with the

City Planning Department, determine the Net Acreage of each Land Use on
each Successor Parcel created from subdivision or reconfiguration of the _

Original Parcel.

Step 2:     For each Successor Parcel, multiply the Base Special Tax for each Land Use
by the Net Acreage of each Land Use deternuned in Step 1, and calculate the
aggregate Maximum Special Tax that could be generated from the Successor

Parcels created from subdivision of the Original Parcel.

Step 3:     If the aggregate Maximum Special Tax for all Successor Parcels is greater

than or equal to the Maximum Special Tax that had been assigned to the

Original Parcel before it was subdivided, the Maximum Special Tax for each

Successor Parcel shall be the amount determined in Step 2,  and the

Administrator shall recalculate the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue to

include the increased Maximum Special Tax.   If the aggregate Maximuin

Special Tax for all Successor Parcels is less than the Maximum Special Tax

assigned to the Original Parcel, and such reduction would reduce the Total

Maximum Special Tax Revenue to an amount less than the Required Revenue,

then the Administrator shall increase the amount calculated for each Successor

Parcel in Step 2 proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax
Revenue after the subdivision is equal to the Required Revenue.

IA No. 3 of Latl: rop CFD No. 2018- 1 8 August 8, 2018

321



Step 4:     If all or a portion of the Original Parcel was subdivided to create individual

Parcels ( which may be Airspace Parcels) for Units on Single Family Attached
Property, divide the Maximum Special Tax assigned to the Original Parcel ( or
portion thereo, as may be adjusted pursuant to Step 3 above, by the total
number of Units that will be built on the Original Parcel( or portion thereo to

calculate the Maximum Special Tax that will be assigned to each Parcel.

Upon each application of this Section C.2, there shall be no reduction in the Required Revenue

unless there has been a prepayment for one or more Parcels within Improvement Area No. 3.

3.       Successor Parcels of which All or Some are SFD Lots

Upon subdivision of an Original Parcel into Successor Parcels, of which all or some are SFD

Lots, the Administrator shall apply the following steps to deternune the Maximum Special Tax
for each Parcel:

Step 1:     Determine the Net Acreage and Expected Land Use for each Successor Parcel

created from subdivision of the Original Parcel.  Apply the steps set forth in
Section C. 2 above to allocate the Maximum Special Tax from the Original

Parcel to each Successor Parcel.

Step 2:     Apply one of the following EDU Factors to each SFD Lot based on the square
footage of each lot, and calculate the aggregate EDUs from all SFD Lots

created by subdivision of the Original Parcel:

Lot Size EDU Factor

Greater than 8, 000 square feet 1. 25

6, 501- 8, 000 square feet 1. 14

5, 001- 6,500 square feet 1. 00

3, 501- 5, 000 square feet 0. 87

2, 800- 3, 500 square feet 0. 81

Less than 2, 800 square feet 0. 73

Step 3:     For SFD Lots, sum the Maximum Special Tax assigned in Step 1 to all
Successor Parcels that are SFD Lots, and divide this amount by the total
EDUs determined in Step 2 to calculate a Maximum Special Tax per EDU.
Multiply the Maximum Special Tax per EDU by the EDU Factor for each
SFD Lot to deternune the Maximum Special Tax for each Successor Parcel

that is a SFD Lot. This Maximum Special Tax shall be the Maximum Special

Tax for the Parcel when it is Undeveloped Properiy and when it becomes
Developed Property.

For SuccessoY Parcels that are not SFD Lots, the Maximum Special Tax

shall be the amount deternuned for each Parcel pursuant to Step 1 above.

IA No. 3 of Latlzrop CFD No. 2018- 1 9 August 8, 2018

322



At no time shall the distribution of the Maximum Special Tax upon subdivision or

reconfiguration of a Parcel result in Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue that is lower than the

Required Revenue.   If an Original Parcel is subdivided, and the Successor Parcels include a

combination of Land Uses, the Administrator shall delineate the Maximum Special Tax to the

Taxable Property created by the subdivision based on the best information available at the time,
and based on application of Sections C. 2 and C. 3 of this RMA.

4.       Parcels of Taxable Public Property

The Maximum Special Tax for a Parcel of Taxable Public Property shall be equal to the
Maximum Special Tax that applied prior to the Parcel becoming Public Property.

5.       Annexations

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel or Parcels annex into Improvement Area No. 3, the Administrator
shall, in coordination with the City Planning Department, identify the Expected Land Uses for
the Parcel( s).  The Administrator shall then ( i) apply the Base Special Tax to each Land Use to
calculate the Maximum Special Tax for the Parcel, ( ii) add the Maximum Special Tax for the

Parcel to the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue, and ( iii) levy the Special Tax on the
Parcel( s) pursuant to this RMA in the next Fiscal Year and all future Fiscal Years unless a

prepayment is received to fully release the Parcel( s) from the Special Tax obligation.

D.      ADJUSTMENTS TO THE MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

1.       Escalation of Maacimum Special Tax

Begimiing July 1, 2019 and each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel in
Improvement Area No. 3 shall be increased by two percent ( 2%) of the amount in effect in the

prior Fiscal Year.

2.       Conversion of a Parcel of Public Property to Private Use

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel of Public Property is converted to private use, which shall include
a lease to a private entity allowing the properly to be taxed pursuant to Section 53340. 1 of the
Act, such Parcel shall be subject to the levy of the Special Tax.  The Maximum Special Tax for

each such Parcel shall be deternuned based on applying the Base Special Tax to the Net Acreage
of each Expected Land Use on the Parcel.

E.       METHOD OF LEVY OF THE SPECIAL TAX

1.       Each Fiscal Year prior to the time at which the Administrative Expense Reimbursement

Amount has been repaid pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and the Debt Service

Reserve Funding Amount has been fully funded pursuant to the terms of the Indenture,

IA No. 3 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- I IO August 8, 2018

323



the Administrator shall levy the Maximum Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable
Property.   

2.       Each Fiscal Year beginning with the Fiscal Year in which the Administrative Expense
Reimbursement Amount has been repaid pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and the

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount has been fully funded pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture, the Administrator shall determine the Special Tax Requirement and levy the
Special Tax on all Parcels of T able Property as follows:

Step 1:     The Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel of Developed
Property, other than Taxable Public Property, up to 100% of the Maximum

Special Tax for each Parcel until the amount levied on Developed Property is
equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

Step 2:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 1 to pay the Special Tax
Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel
of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each

Parcel until the amount levied on Developed Property and Undeveloped
Property is equal to the Special Taac Requirement.

Step 3:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 2 to pay the Special Tax
Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel
of Taxable Public Property, up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for ea h

Parcel.

F.       MANNER OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX

The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad
valorem property taxes, provided, however, that the City may directly bill, collect at a different
time or in a different manner, and/ or collect delinquent Special Taxes through foreclosure or

other available methods.

The Special Tax shall be levied and collected until principal and interest on the Bonds have been

repaid, costs of constructing or acquiring Authorized Facilities from Special Tax proceeds have
been paid, and all Administrative Expenses have been paid or reimbursed.  However, in no event

shall a Special Tax be levied after Fiscal Year 2060- 61, except that a Special Tax that was

lawfully levied in or before the Fiscal Year 2060- 61 and remains delinquent may be collected in
subsequent Fiscal Years. Under no circumstances may the Special Tax on a Parcel in residential
use be increased in any Fiscal Year as a consequence of delinquency or default in payment of the
Special Tax levied on another Parcel or Parcels by more than ten percent ( 10%) above the

amount that would have been levied in that Fiscal Year had there never been any such
delinquencies or defaults.

IA No. 3 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 11 August 8, 2018

324



G.      EXEMPTIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this RMA, no Special Tax shall be levied on the
following: ( i) Public Property, except Taxable Public Property, ( ii) Parcels that are designated as
permanent open space or common space on which no structure is permitted to be constructed,

iii) Parcels owned by a public utility for an unmanned facility, or ( iv) Parcels subject to an
easement that precludes any use on the Parcel other than that pernutted by the easement.  In

addition, no Special Tax shall be levied on any Parcel that has fully prepaid the Special Tax
obligation assigned to the Parcel, as deternuned pursuant to the formula set forth in Section H

below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Special Tax has been levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal
Year, and the Parcel subsequently meets the criteria for any of the exempted categories above,
the Parcel shall remain subject to the Special Tax levy unless and until a prepayment is made to
release the Parcel from its Special Tax obligation or, in the case of Public Property, the City
deternunes that the parcel can be exempted from the Special Tax after making the determinations
listed in the definition of Taxable Public Property above.

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel of Public Property is converted to private use, such Parcel shall be
subject to the levy of Special Taxes pursuant to Section D.2 above.

H.      PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

The following definition' s apply to this Section H:

Outstanding Bonds" means all Previously Issued Bonds which remain outstanding,
with the following exception:  if a Special Tax has been levied against, or already paid
by, an Assessor' s Parcel making a prepayment, and a portion of the Special Tax will be
used to pay a portion of the next principal payment on the Bonds that remain outstanding
as deternuned by the Administrator), that next principal payment shall be subtracted

from the total Bond principal that remains outstanding, and the difference shall be used as
the amount of Outstanding Bonds for purposes of this prepayment formula.

Previously Issued Bonds" means all Bonds that have been issued prior to the date of
prepayment.

1.       Full Prepayment

The Special Tax obligation applicable to a Parcel in Improvement Area No. 3 may be fully
prepaid and the obligation of the Parcel to pay the Special T permanently satisfied as described
herein, provided that a prepayment may be made only if there are no delinquent Special Taxes
with respect to such Parcel at the time of prepayment.  An owner of a Parcel intending to prepay
the Special Tax obligation shall provide the City with written notice of intent to prepay. Within
30 days of receipt of such written notice, the City or its designee shall notify such owner of the
prepayment amount for such Parcel.  Prepayments must be made not less than 50 days prior to

any redemption date for the Bonds to be redeemed with the proceeds of such prepaid Special
Taxes.

IA No. 3 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 12 August 8, 2018

325



The Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows ( capitalized terms as defined below):

Bond Redemption Amount

plus Redemption Premium

plus Defeasance Requirement

plus Administrative Fees and Expenses

less Reserve Fund Credit

equals Prepayment Amount

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be determined by
application of the following steps:

Step 1:     Determine the total Maximum Special Tax that could be collected from the

Parcel prepaying the Special Tax in the Fiscal Year in which prepayment
would be received by the City.

Step B:     Divide the Maximum Special Tax computed pursuant to Step 1 by the Total
Maximum Special Tax Revenue for the Fiscal Year in which prepayment

would be received by the City.

Step 3:     Multiply the quotient computed pursuant to Step 2 by the Outstanding Bonds
to compute the amount of Outstanding Bonds to be retired and prepaid ( the

Bond Reclemption Amount'.

Step 4:     Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount computed pursuant to Step 3 by the
applicable redemption premium,  if any, on the Outstanding Bonds to be
redeemed( the " dZedemption Pre nium'.

Step 5:     Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount
starting with the last Outstanding Bond interest payment date on which
interest has been or will be paid by Special Taxes already levied until the
earliest redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 6:     Compute the amount of interest the City reasonably expects to derive from
reinvestment of the Bond Redemption Amount plus the Redemption Premium

from the first Outstanding Bond interest payment date after which the
prepayment has been received until the redemption date for the Outstanding
Bonds.

Step 7:     Take the amount computed pursuant to Step 5 and subtract the amount
computed pursuant to Step 6 ( the " I)efeasance RequireIInent'.

Step :     Deternune the costs of computing the prepayment amount,  redeeming

Outstanding Bonds, and recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and
redemption( the ` Administrative Fees and Expenses'.

IA No. 3 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 13 August 8, 2018

326



Step 9:     If and to the extent so provided in the Indenture, a reserve fund credit shall be

calculated as a reduction in the applicable reserve fund for the Outstanding
Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to the prepayment ( the " Reserve Fund

CrediY.

Step 10:   The Special Tax prepayment is equal to the sum of the amounts computed

pursuant to Steps 3, 4, 7, and 8, less the amount computed pursuant to Step 9
the " PrepaymentAmount'.

Once a full prepayment of a Parcel' s Special Tax obligation has been received, a Notice of
Cancellation of Special Tax Lien shall be recorded against the Parcel to reflect the discharge of

the Parcel' s obligation to pay the Special Tax. However, a Notice of Cancellation of Special Tax
Lien shall not be recorded until all Special Taxes levied on the Parcel in the current or prior

Fiscal Years have been collected.

2.       Partial Prepayment

A partial prepayment may be made in an amount equal to any percentage of full prepayment
desired by the party making a partial prepayment, except that the' full amount of Adininistrative
Fees and Expenses deternuned in Step 8 shall be included in the partial prepayment.   The

Maximum Special Tax that can be levied on a Parcel after a partial prepayment is made shall be

deternuned as follows:

Step 1.     Calculate the full prepayment  ( not including the amount collected for
Administrative Fees and Expenses) that would be due from the Parcel if the

entire Special Tax obligation were being prepaid pursuant to Section H. 1
above.

Step 2.     Divide the partial prepayment amount for the Parcel( not including the amount
collected for Administrative Fees and Expenses) by the amount computed in
Step 1 to deternline a percentage.

Step 3.     Subtract the percentage computed in Step 2 from 100% to deternune the

Remaining Percentage".

Step 4.     Multiply the Remaining Percentage from Step 3 by the Maximum Special Tax
for the Parcel to determine the new Maximum Special Tax that will be in

effect for the Parcel after the partial prepayment is applied.

I.       INTERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

The City may, by resolution or ordinance, interpret, clarify, and/ or revise this RMA to correct
any inconsistency,  vagueness,  or ambiguity as it relates to the Special Tax,  method of

apportionment, classification of properties, or any definition applicable to the CFD, as long as

IA No. 3 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 14 August 8, 2018

327



such correction does not materially affect the levy and collection of Special Taxes and any
security for the Bonds.  The City, upon the request of an owner of land within the CFD which is
not Developed Property, may also amend this RMA in any manner acceptable to the City, by
resolution or ordinance following a public hearing, upon the affirmative vote of such owner to
such amendment and without the vote of owners of any other land within the CFD,
provided such amendment only affects such owner' s land and does not reduce the Total
Maximum Special Tax Revenue that can be collected from the Parcel.

IA No. 3 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 1 S August 8, 2018

328



Attachment 1

IPn roveme¢ t Area# 3 of the

City of Lathrop CFD IVo. 2018- 1

E% p d L nd llses and Maximum Anreual Special Tax per P' e)

Fiscal Y ar 2018- 19)

at l

R/ Ia i[

H d

fUet Expected ase 5p r i l7' t
A N Acreage Land Use Special 7 x/    t v hue

1'91- 2 0- 26 12. 2 Residential 9, 680 i, 9

9. p 1  16. 8 Residential 9, 680 16.,+

1.=. 1  18. 0 Residential 9, 680 174, 24a

191 2. 0-,  22. 5 Residential 9, 680 2 7, 8b0

21 0- 22 20. 9 Residential 9, 680 0, 12

1- 210- 23 19. 5 Residential 9, 680 8,' 0

191- 210- 20 5. 1 Public( Park)    0 6

Atal I/ la tinnum 4e ua) Special Tax Re enue/ 1 i,b 3,

S; inning July 1, 2019, and each July 1 thereafter, the Base Special x, M irijur t

Annual apecial Tax, and Total Maximum Annual Special Tax Itevenue sliall inEr e

by 2% of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year.

Goode vin Consulting Group, Inc.      b i

329



EXHIBIT E

RAl' E AMD METHOD OF

APPORTIOIdMENT

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)

IMPROVEMENT AREA 4

Exhibit E

Page 1330



IMPROVEMENT AREA 10T0. 4 OF THE

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITYES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

A Special Tax applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in Improvement Area No. 4 of the City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)
shall be levied and collected according to the tax liability determined by the City or its designee
through the application of the appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Property, as described
below.   All of the property in Improvement Area No. 4, unless exempted by law or by the
provisions of Section G below, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent, and in the manner

herein provided, including property subsequently annexed to Improvement Area No. 4 unless a
separate Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax is adopted for the annexation area.

A.      DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

G6Accessory Unit" means a second residential unit of limited size ( e. g., granny cottage, second

unit) that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit.

Acre" or " Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor' s Parcel as shown on an Assessor' s

Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map, the land area shown on
the applicable Final Map or other parcel map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office.

Act" means the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5,
commencing with Section 53311), Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following: the fees and expenses of any
fiscal agent or trustee ( including any fees or expenses of its counsel) employed in connection
with any Bonds,  and the expenses of the City in carrying out its duties with respect to
Improvement Area No. 4 and the Bonds related thereto, including, but not limited to, the levy
and collection of the Special Tax, the fees and expenses of its counsel, charges levied by the
County in connection with the levy and collection of the Special Tax, costs related to property
owner inquiries regarding the Special Tax,  amounts needed to pay rebate to the federal
government with respect to the Bonds,  costs associated with complying with continuing

disclosure requirements with respect to the Bonds and the Special Tax, and all other costs and

expenses of the City and County in any way related to administration of the CFD including costs
related to any dispute, litigation, settlement, or defense of any matter related to the CFD.

IA No. 4 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 1 August 8, 2018

331



Administrative Expense Cap" means $ 15, 000 for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 and $ 15, 000 for Fiscal

Year 2019- 20. No Administrative Expense Cap shall apply after Fiscal Year 2019- 20.

Administrative Expense Reimbursement Amount" means a total of$ 40, 000.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by the City to administer the Special Tax
according to this RMA.

Airspace Parcel" means a parcel with an assigned Assessor' s Parcel number that constitutes

vertical space of an underlying land Parcel.

Assessor' s Parcel" or " Parcel" means a lot or parcel, including an Airspace Parcel, shown on
a County Assessor' s Parcel Map with an assigned County Assessor' s Parcel number.

Assessor' s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor designating Parcels by
Assessor' s Parcel number.

Association Property" means any property within Improvement Area No. 4 that is owned by a
homeowners' association or property owners' association, excluding such property that is under
the pad or footprint of a residential unit or building.

Authorized Facilities" means the public facilities authorized to be fmanced, in whole or in

part, by Special Taxes collected within the CFD, pursuant to the documents adopted by the City
Council at CFD Formation.

Base Special Tax" means, in Fiscal Year 2018- 19, $ 9, 680 per Net Acre for any Parcel or
portion of a Parcel developed or expected to be developed as Residential Property and$ 4,000 per
Net Acre for any Parcel or portion of a Parcel developed or expected to be developed as Non-
Residential Property, which amounts shall increase on July 1, 2019 and each July 1 thereafter by
two percent( 2%) of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year. The determination of Expected

Land Use shall be made by the Administrator based on review of land use and development
plans, and in coordination with the City Planning Department.

Bonds" means bonds or other debt( as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, which

are secured by Special Tax revenues and were issued, insured or assumed by Improvement Area
No. 4 to fund Authorized Facilities.

CFD" or " CFD No. 2018- 1" means the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018= 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation for CFD No. 2018- 1

was adopted by the City Council.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

IA No. 4 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 2 August 8, 2018

332



County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount" means an amount equal to 50% of the greatest

interest payment due in any single bond year, as defined in the Indenture.

Developed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
building pernut for new construction ( which shall not include a pernut issued solely for
construction of the foundation if another permit remains to be issued for vertical construction of

the building) was issued prior to June 1 of the preceding Fiscal Year.

EDU" means an equivalent dwelling unit, as used in Section C. 3 to determine the relative
relationship among SFD Lots. 

EDU Factor" means the equivalent dwelling unit factor assigned to SFD Lots in Section C. 3
below.

Expected Land Use" means the Land Use( s) and/ or Public Property anticipated on a Parcel in
Improvement Area No. 4.  The Expected Land Uses at the time of CFD Formation are identified

in Attachxnent 1 of this RMA, and such Expected Land Uses may be updated pursuant to
Sections C and D below.

Final Map" means a fmal map, or portion thereof, recorded by the County pursuant to the
Subdivision Map Act ( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) that creates SFD

Lots.  The term" Final Map" shall not include any Assessor' s Parcel Map or subdivision map, or
portion thereof, that does not create SFD Lots, including Assessor' s Parcels that are designated
as remainder parcels.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Improvement Area No. 4" means Improvement Area No. 4 of the City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).

Indenture" means the bond indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or

other instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued,  as modified,  amended,  and/ or

supplemented from time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

Land Use" means Residential Property or Non-Residential Properly.

Land Use Change" means a proposed or approved change to the Expected Land Use( s) on a

Parcel of Taxable Property.

Large Lot Map" means a subdivision map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office that
subdivides all or a portion of the property in Improvement Area No. 4 into large Parcels, most of
which will be subject to future subdivision.

IA No. 4 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 3 August 8, 2018

333



Maximum Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Special Tax that can be levied on a

Parcel of Taxable Property in any Fiscal Year, as determined in accordance with Sections C and
D below.   The Maximum Special Tax based on Expected Land Uses for each Parcel in

Improvement Area No. 4 at the time of CFD Formation is set forth in Attachment 1.

Multi- Family Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed Property for
which a building pernut was issued for construction of a residential structure with five or more
Units that share a single Assessor' s Parcel number, are offered for rent to the general public, and

cannot be purchased by individual homebuyers.

Net Acreage" means the estimated acreage of Residential Property and Non-Residential
Property on an Original Parcel after taking out expected Public Property, not including internal
streets.  The Net Acreage within each Original Parcel at the time of CFD Formation is shown in

Attachment 1, and such Net Acreage shall be updated each time an Original Parcel subdivides or

a Land Use Change is approved. Net Acre" means one acre of the Net Acreage calculated for a

Parcel.

Non- Residential Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property that are not
Taxable Public Property for which a building pernut was issued for a use other than Residential
Property.  If a Parcel includes or is expected to include both Units and non- residential land uses,
the Net Acreage to be taxed as Non- Residential Property shall be calculated by dividing the net
leasable and net saleable square footage of non- residential uses on the Parcel ( as deternuned by
the Administrator) by the aggregate net leasable and net saleable square footage built or expected
to be built on the Parcel ( as deterniined by the Administrator), then multiplying the quotient by
the Net Acreage of the underlying land Parcel for purposes of calculating the Maximum Special
Tax and levying the Special Tax in any Fiscal Year.

Original Parcel" means: ( i) an Assessor' s Parcel included in Improvement Area No. 4 at the

time of CFD Formation, ( ii) an Assessor' s Parcel that annexes into Improvement Area No. 4

after CFD Formation, or( iii) a Successor Parcel that was created after subdivision of an Original

Parcel and is being further subdivided.

Proportionately" means, for Developed Property, that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied
in any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Special Tax authorized to be levied in that Fiscal Year is
equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property.     For Undeveloped Property,
Proportionately" means that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied to the Maximum Special

Tax authorized to be levied is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Undeveloped Property.

Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 4 that is
owned by or irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, State of California,
County, City, or other local governments or public agencies. For purposes of this RMA, all
Association Property shall also be categorized as Public Property.

Required Coverage" means that the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue must be at least

110% of the debt service on the Bonds in every bond year, as defined in the Indenture.

IA No. 4 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 4 August 8, 2018

334



Required Revenue"  means,  after one or more series of Bonds have been issued for

Improvement Area No. 4, the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue that must be available in

order to maintain Required Coverage.  Upon prepayment of all or a portion of the Maximum

Special Tax obligation assigned to any Parcel iri Improvement Area No. 4, the Required Revenue
shall be reduced by the Special Tax that will no longer be levied on the Parcel for which a
prepayment was received, as determined by the Administrator. For purposes of Section C below,
Required Revenue shall be $ 0. 00 prior to issuance of the first series of Bonds for Improvement

Area No. 4.

Residential Property" means, collectively, Single Family Detached Property, Single Family
Attached Property, and Multi- Family Property,  If a Parcel includes or is expected to include

both Units and non-residential land uses, the Net Acreage to be taxed as Residential Property       
shall be calculated by dividing the net leasable and net saleable square footage of residential uses
on the Parcel ( as detennined by the Administrator) by the aggregate net leasable and net saleable
square footage built or expected to be built on the Parcel ( as determined by the Administrator),
then multiplying the quotient by the Net Acreage of the underlying land Parcel for purposes of
calculating the Maximum Special Tax and levying the Special Tax in any Fiscal Year.

RMA" means this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

SFD Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and numbered on a recorded Final

Map, on which a building pernut has been or is pernutted to be issued for construction of a single
family detached unit without further subdivision of the lot and for which no further subdivision
of the lot is anticipated pursuant to an approved tentative map.

Single Family Attached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed
Property for which a building pernut or use permit was issued for construction of a residential
structure consisting of two or more Units that share common walls, have separate Assessor' s
Parcel numbers assigned to them ( except for a duplex unit, which may share a Parcel with
another duplex unit), and may be purchased by individual homebuyers ( which shall still be the
case even if the Units are purchased and subsequently offered for rent by the owner of the Unit),
including such residential structures that meet the statutory definition of a condominium
contained in Civil Code Section 1351.

Single Family Detached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed
Property for which a building perxnit was issued for construction of a Unit that does not share a
common wall with another Unit.

Special Tax"  means a special tax levied in any Fiscal Year to pay the Special Tax
Requirement.

Special Tax Requirement" means the amount necessary in any Fiscal Year to:  ( i) pay

principal and interest on Bonds that is due in the calendar year that begins in such Fiscal Year;

ii) create and/or replenish debt service reserve funds as required by the Indenture for the Bonds
to the extent such replenishment has not been included in the computation of the Special Tax
Requirement in a previous Fiscal Year; ( iii) cure any delinquencies in the payment of principal

IA No. 4 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- I 5 August 8, 2018

335



or interest on Bonds which have occurred in the prior Fiscal Year; ( iv) pay Administrative
Expenses, subject to the Aciminisfrative Expense Cap if applicable for the Fiscal Year; ( v) create

and/ or replenish reserve funds for. Administrative' Expenses;  and ( vi) pay for extraordinary
administrative expense reserve reimbursement, as described in the Indenture.   The amounts

referred to in clauses ( i) and( ii) of the preceding sentence may be reduced in any Fiscal Year by:
i) interest earnings on or surplus balances in funds and accounts for the Bonds to the extent that

such earnings or balances are available to apply against debt service pursuant to the Indenture;
ii) proceeds received from the collection of penalties associated with delinquent Special Taxes;

and ( iii) any other revenues available to reduce the Special Tax Requireinent as determined by
the Administrator.

Successor Parcel"  means a Parcel of Taxable Property created from subdivision or
reconfiguration of an Original Parcel.

Taxable Property" means all Parcels within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 4 that( i)
are not exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to law or Section G below, and ( ii) which upon

subdivision of an Original Parcel, are assigned Expected Land Uses and are not expected to be

Public Property.

Taxable Public Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, any Parcel of Public Property within
Improvement Area No. 4 that had been assigned a Maximum Special Tax obligation based on

Expected Land Uses being assigned to the Parcel.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (i) a
prepayment is received in an amount sufficient to pay off the full 1Vlaximum Special Tax
obligation assigned to the Parcel, or( ii) the City determines that, in the Fiscal Year in which the
Parcel would first be categorized as Taxable Public Property, an equal amount of Acreage within
the CFD that had been Public Property became Taxable Property, then the Parcel of Public
Property can be deemed exempt from the Special Tax if the Administrator deternunes that the
Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue after granting such exemption is greater than or equal to
the Required Revenue.

Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue" means the aggregate amount of revenue that can be

generated in any Fiscal Year by leyying the_Maximum Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable
Property within Improvement Area No. 4:

Undeveloped Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property that are not
Developed Property.

Unit" means a single family detached unit or an individual unit within a duplex, triplex,
halfplex, fourplex, condominium, townhome, live/work, or aparhnent structure.  An Accessory
Unit that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit shall not be considered a separate
Unit for purposes of this RMA.

IA No. 4 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 6 August 8, 2018

336



B.      DATA FOR ADMINISTRATION OF SPECIAL TAX

On or about July 1 of each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall identify( i) the current Assessor' s
Parcel numbers for all Parcels of Developed Property and Undeveloped Property within
Improvement Area No. 4, ( ii) the number of Units expected within each building on each Parcel
of Single Family Attached Property, (iii) the square footage of all SFD Lots that were created in
the prior Fiscal Year, ( iv) whether the Administrative Expense Reimbursement Amount and the

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount have been fully funded by special tax revenues from
prior fiscal years, and ( v) the Special Tax Requirement for the Fiscal Year.  In addition, on an

ongoing basis, the Administrator shall monitor Land Use Changes and the subdivision of Parcels
in Improvement Area No. 4 and ( i) allocate the Maximum Special Tax assigned to the Original

Parcel( s) to the Successor Parcels created by the subdivision pursuant to Section C below, and
ii) ensure that such Land Use Changes do not result in Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue

that is less than the Required Revenue.  After the recordation of each Large Lot Map within
Improvement Area No.  4; the Adininistrator shall also review and revise,  as needed,  the

Expected Land Uses, Net Acreage, and Maximum Special Taxes for each Successor Parcel

created by recordation of the Large Lot Map, and update Attachment 1 accordingly, as set forth
in Section C below.

In any Fiscal Year, if it is determined that: ( i) a parcel map for property in Improvement Area
No. 4 was recorded after January 1 of the prior Fiscal Year ( or any other date after which the
Assessor will not incorporate the newly- created parcels into the then current tax roll), ( ii)

because of the date the parcel map was recorded, the Assessor does not yet recognize the new
parcels created by the parcel map, and ( iii) a building pernut was issued prior to June 1 of the
prior Fiscal Year for development on one or more of the newly- created parcels,  the

Administrator shall calculate the Special Tax for each Land Use within the subdivided area and

levy such Special Tax on the Original Parcel that" was subdivided by recordation of the parcel
map.

C.      MAXIMLTM SPECIAL TAX

1.       Original Parcels in Improvement Area No. 4 at CFD Formation

Attachment 1 to this RMA identifies the Ma cimum Special Tax assigned to each Original Parcel

in Improvement Area No. 4 for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 based on the Expected Land Use( s) for each

Parcel as of CFD Fortnation.   After recordation of each Large Lot Map for property in
Improvement Area No. 4, the Administrator shall review current maps and land use plans for the

properfy within the Large Lot Map and, in consultation with the City Planning Department,
reevaluate the Expected Land Uses for each of the Successor Parcels created by recordation of
the Large Lot Map.  Attachment 1 shall be updated to reflect the Assessor' s Parcel numbers,

Expected Land Uses, Net Acreage, and corresponding Maximum Special Tax assigned to each
Parcel after applying the Base Special Tax to each Land Use on each Successor Parcel.  If, based
on changes to the Expected Land Uses within the Large Lot Map area, the Total Maximum
Special Tax Revenue that could be generated in Improvement Area No. 4 is less than the

Required Revenue, the Maximum Special Tax on each Successor Parcel created by the Large Lot

IA No. 4 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 7 August 8, 2018

337



Map shall be increased proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue is equal
to the Required Revenue.  If there is an increase in the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue

based on Expected Land Uses within the Large Lot Map, the Administrator shall reflect such
increased Total Maximutn Special Tax Revenue in the updated Attachment 1.

If, before or after the comprehensive review after recordation of a Large Lot Map, there are any
other Land Use Changes proposed for any Parcel prior to fmal subdivision of the Parcel, the
Administrator shall determine the Maximum Special Tax that would be assigned to the Parcel if

the Base Special Tax was applied to the Net Acreage of Residential Properiy and/ or Non-
Residential Property on the Parcel after the proposed Land Use Change.   If, based on this

Maximum Special Tax calculation, the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue would be less than

the Required Revenue,  the Maximum Special Tax for such Parcel shall be increased

proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue is equal to the Required Revenue.
If there is an increase in the Total Maximum Special Ta c Revenue after the Land Use Change,

the Administrator shall reflect such increased Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue in an

updated Attachment 1.

2.       Successor Parcels that are not SFD Lots

The Maximum Special Tax for each Original Parcel for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 is identified in

Attachment 1, which may be updated as set forth above. After such update, if an Original Parcel
is subdivided or reconfigured and none of the Successor Parcels are SFD Lots, the Administrator

shall assign the Maximum Special Tax to the Successor Parcels by applying the following steps:

Step 1:     Based on reference to Land Use plans and, if needed, coordination with the

City Planning Department, deternune the Net Acreage of each Land Use on
each Successor Parcel created from subdivision, or reconfiguration of the

Original Parcel.

Step 2:     For each Successor Parcel, multiply the Base Special Tax for each Land Use
by the Net Acreage of each Land Use deterinined in Step 1, and calculate the
aggregate Maximum Special Tax that could be generated from the Successor

Parcels created from subdivision of the Original Parcel.

Step 3:     If the aggregate Maximum Special Tax for all Successor Parcels is greater

than or equal to the Maximum Special Tax that had been assigned to the

Original Parcel before it was subdivided, the Maximum Special Tax for each

Successor Parcel shall be the amount determined in Step 2,  and the

Administrator shall recalculate the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue to

include the increased Maximum Special Tax.   If the aggregate Maximum

Special Tax for all Successor Parcels is less than the Maximum Special Tax

assigned to the Original Parcel, and such reduction would reduce the Total

Maximum Special Tax Revenue to an amount less than the Required Revenue,

then the Administrator shall increase the amount calculated for each Successor

Parcel in Step 2 proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax
Revenue after the subdivision is equal to the Required Revenue.

IA No. 4 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 8 August 8, 2018

338



Step 4:     If all or a portion of the Original Parcel was subdivided to create individual

Parcels ( which may be Airspace Parcels) for Units on Single Family Attached
Properiy, divide the Maximum Special Tax assigned to the Original Parcel ( or
portion thereo, as may be adjusted pursuant to Step 3 above, by the total
number of Units that will be built on the Original Parcel( or portion thereo fl to
calculate the Maximum Special Tax that will be assigned to each Parcel.

Upon each application of this Section C.2, there shall be no reduction in the Required Revenue

unless there has been a prepayment for one or more Parcels within Improvement Area No. 4.

3.       Successor Parcels of which All or 5ome are SFD Lots

Upon subdivision of an Original Parcel into Successor Parcels, of which all or some are SFD

Lots, the Administrator shall apply the following steps to deternune the Maximum Special Tax
for each Parcel:

Step 1:     Deternune the Net Acreage and Expected Land Use for each Successor Parcel

created from subdivision of the Original Parcel.  Apply the steps set forth in
Section C. 2 above to allocate the Maximum Special Tax from the Original

Parcel to each Successor Parcel.

Step 2:     Apply one of the following EDU Factors to each SFD Lot based on the square
footage of each lot, and calculate the aggregate EDUs from all SFD Lots

created by subdivision of the Original Parcel:

Lot Size EDU Factor

Greater than 8, 000 square feet 1. 25

6, 501- 8, 000 square feet 1. 14

5, 001- 6, 500 square feet 1. 00

3, 501- 5, 000 square feet 0. 87

2, 800- 3, 500 square feet 0. 81

Less than 2, 800 square feet 0. 73

Step 3:     FoY SFD Lots, sum the Maximum Special Tax assigned in Step 1 to all
Successor Parcels that are SFD Lots, and divide this amount by the total
EDUs determined in Step 2 to calculate a Maximum Special Tax per EDU.
Multiply the Maximum Special Tax per EDU by the EDU Factor for each
SFD Lot to determine the Maximum Special Tax for each Successor Parcel

that is a SFD Lot. This Maximum Special Tax shall be the Maximum Special

Tax for the Parcel when it is Undeveloped Property and when it becomes
Developed Property.

For Successor Parcels that are not SFD Lots, the Maximum Special Tax

shall be the amount deternuned for each Parcel pursuant to Step 1 above.

IA No. 4 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 9 August 8, 2018

339



At no time shall the distribution of the Maximum Special Tax upon subdivision or

reconfiguration of a Parcel result in Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue that is lower than the

Required Revenue.   If an Original Parcel is subdivided, and the Successor Parcels include a

combination of Land Uses, the Administrator shall delineate the Maximum Special Tax to the

Taxable Properly created by the subdivision based on the best information available at the time,
and based on application of Sections C. 2 and C. 3 of this RMA.

4.       Parcels of Taxable Public Property

The Maximum Special Tax for a Parcel of Taxable Public Property shall be equal to the
Maximum Special Tax that applied prior to the Parcel becoming Public Property.

5.       Annexations

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel or Parcels annex into Improvement Area No. 4, the Administrator
shall, in coordination with the City Planning Deparhnent, identify the Expected Land Uses for
the Parcel( s).  The Administrator shall then ( i) apply the Base Special Tax to each Land Use to
calculate the Maximum Special Tax for the Parcel, ( ii) add the Maximum Special Tax for the

Parcel to the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue, and ( iii) levy the Special Tax on the
Parcel( s) pursuant to this RMA in the next Fiscal Year and all future Fiscal Years unless a

prepayment is received to fully release the Parcel( s) from the Special Tax obligation.

D.      ADJUSTMENTS TO THE MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

1.   -   Escalation of Maximum Special Tax

Begiiming July 1, 2019 and each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel in
Improvement Area No. 4 shall be increased by two percent ( 2%) of the amount in effect in the

prior Fiscal Year. 

2.       Conversion of a Parcel of Public Property to Private Use

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel of Public Property is converted to private use, which shall include
a lease to a private entity allowing the property to be taxed pursuant to Section 53340. 1 of the
Act, such Parcel shall be subject to the levy of the Special Tax.  The Maximum Special Tax for
each such Parcel shall be determined based on applying the Base Special Tax to the Net Acreage
of each Expected Land Use on the Parcel.

E.       METHOD OF LEVY OF THE SPECIAL TAX

1.       Each Fiscal Year prior to the time at which the Administrative Expense Reimbursement

Amount has been repaid pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and the Debt Service

Reserve Funding Amount has been fully funded pursuant to the terms of the Indenture,

IA No. 4 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 10 August 8, 2018

340



the Administrator shall levy the Maximum Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable
Property.

2.       Each Fiscal Year beginning with the Fiscal Year in which the Administrative Expense
Reimbursement Amount has been repaid pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and the

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount has been fully funded pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture, the Administrator shall determine the Special Tax Requirement and levy the
Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable Property as follows:

Step 1:     The Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel of Developed
Property, other than Taxable Public Property, up to 100% of the Maximum

Special Tax for each Parcel until the amount levied on Developed Property is
equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

Step 2:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 1 to pay the Special Tax
Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel
of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each

Parcel until the amount levied on Developed Property and Undeveloped
Property is equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

Step 3:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 2 to pay the Special Tax
Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel
of Taxable Public Properiy, up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each

Parcel.

F.       MANNER OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX

The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad
valorem property taxes, provided, however, that the City may directly bill, collect at a different
time or in a different manner, and/ or collect delinquent Special Taxes through foreclosure or

other available methods.

The Special Tax shall be levied and collected until principal and interest on the Bonds have been

repaid, costs of constructing or acquiring Authorized Facilities from Special Tax proceeds have
been paid, and all Administrative Expenses have been paid or reimbursed. However, in no event

shall a Special Tax be levied after Fiscal Year 2060- 61, except that a Special Tax that was

lawfully levied in or before the Fiscal Year 2060- 61 and remains delinquent may be collected in
subsequent Fiscal Years.  Under no circumstances may the Special Tax on a Parcel in residential
use be increased in any Fiscal Year as a consequence of delinquency or default in payment of the
Special Tax levied on another Parcel or Parcels by more than ten percent ( 10%) above the

amount that would have been levied in that Fiscal Year had there never been any such
delinquencies or defaults.

IA No. 4 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 11 August 8, 2018

341



G.      EXEMPTIONS

Notwithstanding any other. provision of this RMA, no Special Tax shall be levied on the
following: ( i) Public Property, except Taxable Public Property, ( ii) Parcels that are designated as
permanent open space or common space on which no structure is permitted to be constructed,

iii) Parcels owned by a public utility for an unmanned facility, or ( iv) Parcels subject to an
easement that precludes any use on the Parcel other than that pernutted by the easement.  In

addition, no Special Tax shall be levied on any Parcel that has fully prepaid the Special Tax
obligation assigned to the Parcel, as determined pursuant to the formula set forth in Section H

below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Special Tax has been levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal
Year, and the Parcel subsequently meets the criteria for any of the exempted categories above,
the Parcel shall remain subject to the Special Tax levy unless and until a prepayxnent is made to
release the Parcel from its Special Tax obligation or, in the case of Public Property, the City
detennines that the parcel can be exempted from the Special Tax after making the determinations
listed in the defuution of Taxable Public Property above.

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel of Public Property is converted to private use, such Parcel shall be
subject to the levy of Special Taxes pursuant to Section D.2 above.

H.      PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

The following definitions apply to this Section H:

Outstanding Bonds" means all Previously Issued Bonds which remain outstanding,
with the following exception:  if a Special Tax has been levied against, or already paid
by, an Assessor' s Parcel making a prepayment, and a portion of the Special Tax will be
used to pay a portion of the next principal payment on the Bonds that remain outstanding

as deternuned by the Administrator), that next principal payment shall be subtracted

from the total Bond principal that remains outstanding, and the difference shall be used as
the amount of Outstanding Bonds for purposes of this prepayment formula.

Previously Issued Bonds" means all Bonds that have been issued prior to the date of
prepayment.

1.       Full Prepayment

The Special Tax obligation applicable to a Parcel in Improvement Area No. 4 may be fully
prepaid and the obligation of the Parcel to pay the Special Tax permanently satisfied as described
herein, provided that a prepayment may be made only if there are no delinquent Special Taxes
with respect to such Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of a Parcel intending to prepay
the Special Tax obligation shall provide the City with written notice of intent to prepay. Within
30 days of receipt of such written notice, the City or its designee shall notify such owner of the
prepayment amount for such Parcel.  Prepayments must be made not less than 50 days prior to

any redemption date for the Bonds to be redeemed with the proceeds of such prepaid Special
Taxes.

IA No. 4 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 12 August 8, 2018

342



The Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows( capitalized terms as defined below):

Bond Redemption Amount

plus Redemption Premium

plus Defeasance Requirement

plus Administrative Fees and Expenses

less Reserve Fund Credit

equals Prepayment Amount

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be deternuned by
application of the following steps:

Step 1:     Deternune the total Maximum Special Tax that could be collected from the

Parcel prepaying the Special Tax in the Fiscal Year in which prepayment
would be received by the City.

Step 2:     Divide the Maximum Special Tax computed pursuant to Step 1 by the Total
Maximum Special Tax Revenue for the Fiscal Year in which prepayment

would be received by the City.

Step 3:     Multiply the quotient computed pursuant to Step 2 by the Outstanding Bonds
to compute the amount of Outstanding Bonds to be retired and prepaid ( the
Bond Redemption Amount'.

Step 4:     Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount computed pursuant to Step 3 by the
applicable redemption premium, if any, on the Outstanding Bonds to be
redeemed( the ` Redemption Premium'.

Step 5:     Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount
starting with the last Outstanding Bond interest payment date on which
interest has been or will be paid by Special Taxes already levied until the
earliest redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 6:     Compute the amount of interest the City reasonably expects to derive from
reinvestment of the Bond Redemption Amount plus the Redemption Premium

from the first Outstanding Bond interest payment date after which the
prepayment has been received until the redemption date for the Outstanding
Bonds.

Step 7:     Take the amount computed pursuant to Step 5 and subtract the amount
computed pursuant to Step 6 ( the " Defeasance RequiremenY.

Step 8:     Determine the costs of computing the prepayment amount,  redeeming

Outstanding Bonds, and recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and
redemption( the " Administrative Fees and Expenses'.

IA No. 4 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 13 August 8, 2018

343



Step 9:     If and to the extent so provided in the Indenture, a reserve fund credit shall be

calculated as a reduction in the applicable reserve fund for the Outstanding
Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to the prepayment ( the " Reserve Fund

Credit'.

Step 10:   The Special Tax prepayment is equal to the sum of the amounts computed

pursuant to Steps 3, 4, 7, and 8, less the amount computed pursuant to Step 9
the " Prepayment Amount'.

Once a full prepayment of a Parcel' s Special Tax obligation has been received, a Notice of

Cancellation of Special Tax Lien shall be recorded against the Parcel to reflect the discharge of

the Parcel' s obligation to pay the Special Tax. However, a Notice of Cancellation of Special Tax
Lien shall not be recorded until all Special Taxes levied on the Parcel in the current or prior

Fiscal Years have been collected.

2.       Partial Prepayment

A partial prepayment may be made in an amount equal to any percentage of full prepayment
desired by the party making a partial prepayment, except that the full amount of Administrative
Fees and Expenses deternuned in Step 8 shall be included in the partial prepayment.   The

Maximum Special Tax that can be levied on a Parcel after a partial prepayment is made shall be

determined as follows:

Step 1.     Calculate the full prepayment  ( not including the amount collected for
Adininistrative Fees and Expenses) that would be due from the Parcel if the

entire Special Tax obligation were being prepaid pursuant to Section H. 1
above.

Step 2.     Divide the partial prepayment amount for the Parcel ( not including the amount
collected for Administrative Fees and Expenses) by the amount computed in
Step 1 to deternune a percentage.

Step 3.     Subtract the percentage computed in Step 2 from 100% to determine the

Remaining Percentage".

Step 4.     Multiply the Remaining Percentage from Step 3 by the Maximum Special Tax
for the Parcel to determine the new Maximum Special Tax that will be in

effect for the Parcel after the partial prepayment is applied.

I.       INTERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

The City may, by resolution or ordinance, interpret, clarify, andlor revise this RMA to correct
any inconsistency,  vagueness,  or ambiguity as it relates to the Special Tax,  method of

apportionment, classification of properties, or any definition applicable to the CFD, as long as

IA No. 4 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 14 August 8, 2018

344



such correction does not materially affect the levy and collection of Special Taxes and any
security for the Bonds.  The City, upon the request of an owner of land within the CFD which is
not Developed Property, may also amend this RMA in any manner acceptable to the City, by
resolution or ordinance following a public hearing, upon the affirmative vote of such owner to
such amendment and without the vote of owners of any other land within the CFD,
provided such amendment only affects such owner' s land and does not reduce the Total
M imum Special Tax Revenue that can be collected from the Parcel.

IA No. 4 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 1 S August 8, 2018

345



Attachment 1

Improvement Area# 4 0# the

City of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1
E sp et d Land Uses and Maximum Annual Special Tax p r p r l

Fiscal Year 2018- 19)     

t l

Nl ti u

4HHu 1

IVe4 Expected B s@ p i ll' t

laPl1! Acreage Land llse Special Tax/    Rpv ht,.

19- 33 19. 5 Residential 9, 680 i,

1.= Q. 20, 6 Residential 9, 680 9, A6

2.. p- 3 1 7. 8 Pond/ Sprayfield 0 U

1a 1 A- 3  28. 5 Public( Park)    0 d

1- 21- 32 16. 4 Fublic 0 C

3- 210- 34 5. 0 Public( Park)    0 6_

7' c al( Vlaximum Annual 5peeial Yax Ftevenue/ 1 3, C

3 inningluly 1, 2019, and each July 1 thereafter, the Base 5p ci l fi x, tVl xfi lu
AnnUa) Special Tax, and Total Maximum Annual Special T x Ctevenue shall iner

Wy 2'/ o Qf the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year.

Goodwin Consulting Group, lnc.      i, g

346



EXHIBIT F

RATE AND METHOD OF

APPORTIONiVIENT

CITY OF L THROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT N0. 2018- 1

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLe4N FACILITIES)

IMPROVEMENT AREA 5

Exhibit F

Page 1347



IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 5 OF THE

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 201H- 1

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

A Special Tax applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in Improvement Area No. 5 of the City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)
shall be levied and collected according to the tax liability determined by the City or its designee
through the application of the appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Property, as described
below.   All of the property in Improvement Area No. 5, unless exempted by law or by the
provisions of Section G below, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent, and in the manner

herein provided, including property subsequently annexed to Improvement Area No. 5 unless a
separate Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax is adopted for the annexation area.

A.      DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

Accessory Unit" means a second residential unit of limited size ( e. g., granny cottage, second

unit) that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit.

Acre" or " Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor' s Parcel as shown on an Assessor' s

Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map, the land area shown on
the applicable Final Map or other parcel map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office.

Act" means the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5,
commencing with Section 53311), Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following: the fees and expenses of any  .
fiscal agent or trustee ( including any fees or expenses of its counsel) employed in connection
with any Bonds,  and the expenses of the City in carrying out its duties with respect to
Improvement Area No. 5 and the Bonds related thereto, including, but not limited to, the levy
and collection of the Special Tax, the fees and expenses of its counsel, charges levied by the
County in connection with the Tevy and collection of the Special Tax, costs related to property
owner inquiries regarding the Special Tax,  amounts needed to pay rebate to the federal
government with respect to the Bonds,  costs associated with complying with continuing
disclosure requirements with respect to the Bonds and the Special Tax, and all other costs and

expenses of the City and County in any way related to administration of the CFD including costs
related to any dispute, litigation, settlement,.or defense of any matter related to the CFD.

IA No. 5 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 1 August 8, 2018

348



Administrative Expense Cap" means $ 15, 000 for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 and$ 15, 000 for Fiscal

Year 2019- 20. IVo Administrative Expense Cap shall apply after Fiscal Year 2019 20.

Administrative Expense Reimbursement Amount" means a total of$ 40, 000.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by the City to aduiinister the Special Tax
according to this RMA.

Airspace Parcel" means a parcel with an assigned Assessor' s Parcel number that constitutes

vertical space of an underlying land Parcel.

Assessor' s Parcel" or " Parcel" means a lot or parcel, including an Airspace Parcel, shown on
a County Assessor' s Parcel Map with an assigned County Assessor' s Parcel number.

Assessor' s Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor designating Parcels by
Assessor' s Parcel number.

Association Property" means any property within Improvement Area No. 5 that is owned by a
homeowners' association or property owners' association, excluding such property that is under
the pad or footprint of a residential unit or building.

Authorized Facilities" means the public facilities authorized to be financed, in whole or in

part, by Special Taxes collected within the CFD, pursuant to the documents adopted by the City
Council at CFD Formation.

Base Special Tax" means, in Fiscal Year 2018- 19, $ 9, 680 per Net Acre for any_Parcel or
portion of a Parcel developed or expected to be developed as Residential Property and$ 4,000 per
Net Acre for any Parcel or portion of a Parcel developed or expected to be developed as Non-
Residential Property, which amounts shall increase on July 1, 2019 and each July 1 thereafter by
two percent( 2%). of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year. The deternunation of Expected

Land Use shall be made by the Administrator based on review of land use and development
plans, and in coordination with the City Planning Department.     

Bonds" means bonds or other debt( as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, which

are secured by Special Tax revenues and were issued, insured or assumed by Improvement Area
No. 5 to fund Authorized Facilities.

CFD" or" CFD No. 2018- 1" means the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation for CFD No. 2018- 1

was adopted by the City Council.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

IA No. S ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 2 August 8, 2018

349



County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount" means an amount equal to 50% of the greatest

interest payment due in any single bond year, as defined in the Indenture.

Developed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
building pernut for new construction ( which shall not include a permit issued solely for
construction of the foundation if another pernut remains to be issued for vertical construction of

the building) was issued prior to June 1 of the preceding Fiscal Year.

EDU" means an equivalent dwelling unit, as used in Section C.3 to determine the relative
relationship among SFD Lots.

EDU Factor" means the equivalent dwelling unit factor assigned to SFD Lots in Section C. 3
below.

Expected Land Use" means the Land Use( s) and/ or Public Property anticipated on a Parcel in
Improvement Area No. 5.  The Expected Land Uses at the time of CFD Formation are identified

in Attachment 1 of this RMA, and such Expected Land Uses may be updated pursuant to
Sections C and D below.

Final Map" means a final map, or portion thereof, recorded by the County pursuant to the
Subdivision Map Act ( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) that creates SFD

Lots.  The term" Final Map" shall not include any Assessor' s Parcel Map or subdivision map, or
portion thereof, that, does not create SFD Lots, including Assessor' s Parcels that are designated
as remainder parcels.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Improvement Area No. 5" means Improvement Area No. 5 of the City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).

Indenture" means the bond indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or

other instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued,  as modified,  amended,  and/ or

supplemented from time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

Land Use" means Residential Properly or Non-Residential Property.

Land Use. Change" means a proposed or approved change to the Expected Land Use( s) on a

Parcel of Taxable Property.

Large Lot Map" means a subdivision map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office that
subdivides all or a portion of the property in Improvement Area No. 5 into large Parcels, most of
which will be subject to future subdivision.

IA No. S ofLathrop CFD No. 20I8- 1 3 August 8, 2018

350



Maximum Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Special Tax that can be levied on a

Parcel of Taxable Property in any Fiscal Year, as determined in accordance with Sections C and
D below.   The Maximum Special Tax based on Expected Land Uses for each Parcel in

Improvement Area No. 5 at the time of CFD Formation is set forth in Attachment 1.

Multi- Family Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed Property for
which a building permit was issued for construction of a residential structure with five or more
Units that share a single Assessor' s Parcel number, are offered for rent to the general public, and

cannot be purchased by individual homebuyers.

Net Acreage" means the estimated acreage of Residential Property and Non-Residential
Property on an Original Parcel after taking out expected Public Property, not including internal
streets.  The Net Acreage within each Original Parcel at the time of CFD Formation is shown in

Attachment l, and such Net Acreage shall be updated each time an Original Parcel subdivides or

a Land Use Change is approved. " Net Acre" means one acre of the Net Acreage calculated for a

Parcel.       

Non- Residential Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property that are not
Taxable Public Property for which a building permit was issued for a use other than Residential
Property.  If a Parcel includes or is expected to include both Units and non- residential land uses,
the Net Acreage to.be taxed as Non-Residential Property shall be calculated by dividing the net
leasable and net saleable square footage of non- residential uses on the Parcel ( as determined by
the Administrator) by the aggregate net leasable and net saleable square footage built or expected
to be built on the Parcel ( as determined by the Administrator), then multiplying the quotient by
the Net Acreage of the underlying land Parcel for purposes of calculating the Maximum Special
Tax and levying the Special Tax in any Fiscal Year:

Original Parcel" means: ( i) an Assessor' s Parcel included in Improvement Area No. 5 at the

time of CFD Formation, ( ii) an Assessor' s Parcel that annexes into Improvement Area No. 5
after CFD Formation, or( iii) a Successor Parcel that was created after subdivision of an Original

Parcel and is being further subdivided.

Proportionately" means, for Developed Property, that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied
in any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Special Tax authorized to be levied in that Fiscal Year is
equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property.     For Undeveloped Property,
Proportionately" means that the ratio of the actual Special Tax levied to the Maximum Special

Tax authorized to be levied is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels ofUndeveloped Property.

Public Property" means any' property within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 5 that is
owned by or irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, State of California,
County, City, or other local governments or public agencies. For purposes of this RMA, all
Association Property shall also be categorized as Public Property.

Required Coverage" means that the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue must be at least

110% of the debt service on the Bonds in every bond year, as defined in the Indenture.

IA 1Vo. S ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 4 August 8, 20I8

351



Required Revenue"  means,  after one or more series of Bonds have been issued for

Improvement Area No. 5, the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue that must be available in

order to maintain Required Coverage.  Upon prepayment of all or a portion of the Maximum

Special Tax obligation assigned to any Parcel in Improvement Area No. 5, the Required Revenue
shall be reduced by the Special Tax that will no longer be levied on the Parcel for which a
prepayment was received, as determined by the Administrator. For purposes of Section C below,
Required Revenue shall be $ 0. 00 prior to issuance of the first series of Bonds for Improvement

Area No. 5.

Residential Property" means, collectively, Single Family Detached Property, 5ingle Family
Attached Property; and Multi- Family Property.  If a Parcel includes or is expected to include

both Units and non- residential land uses; the Net Acreage to be taxed as Residential Property
shall be calculated by dividing the net leasable and net saleable square footage of residential uses
on the Parcel ( as determined by the Administrator) by the aggregate net leasable and net saleable
square footage built or expected to be built on the Parcel ( as deternuned by the Administrator),
then multiplying the quotient by the Net Acreage of the underlying land Parcel for purposes of
calculating the Maximum Special Tax and levying the Special Tax in any Fiscal Year.

RMA" means this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

SFD Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and numbered on a recorded Final

Map, on which a building permit has been or is perniitted to be issued for construction of a single
family detached unit_without further subdivision of the lot and for which no further subdivision
of the lot is anticipated pursuant to an approved tentative map.

Single Family Attached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed
Properiy for which a building permit or use pernut was issued for construction of a residential
structure consisting of two or more Units that share common walls, have separate Assessor' s
Parcel numbers assigned to them ( except for a duplex unit, which may share a Parcel with
another duplex unit), and may be purchased by individual homebuyers ( which shall still be the
case even if the Units are purchased and subsequently offered for rent by the owner of the Unit),
including such residential structures that meet the statutory definition of a condominium
contained in Civil Code Section 1351.

5ingle Family Detached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Developed
Property for which a building pernut was issued for construction of a Unit that does not share a
common wall with another Unit.

Special Tax"  means a special tax levied in any Fiscal Year to pay the Special Tax
Requirement.

Special Tax Requirement" means the amount necessary in any Fiscal Year to:  ( i) pay
principal and interest on Bonds that is due in tlie calendar year that begins in such Fiscal Year;

ii) create and/ or replenisfi debt service reserve funds as required by the Indenture for the Bonds
to the extent such replenishment has not been included in the computation of the Special Tax
Requirement in a previous Fiscal Year; ( iii) cure any delinquencies in the payment of principal

IA No. S of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 S August 8, 2018

352



or interest on Bonds which have occurred in the prior Fiscal Year; ( iv) pay Administrative
Expenses, subject to the Adininistrative Expense Cap if applicable for the Fiscal Year; ( v) create
and/or replenish reserve funds for Administrative Expenses;  and ( vi) pay for extraordinary
administrative expense reserve, reimbursement, as described in the Indenture.   The amounts

referred to in clauses ( i) and( ii) of the preceding sentence may be reduc,ed in any Fiscal Year by:
i) interest earnings on or surplus balances in funds and accounts for the Bonds to the extent that

such earnings or balances are available to apply against debt service pursuant to the Indenture;
ii) proceeds received from the collection of penalties associated with delinquent Special Taxes;

and ( iii) any other revenues available to reduce the Special Tax Requirement as determined by
the Administrator.

Successor Parcel"  means a Parcel of Taxable Property created from subdivision or
reconfiguration of an Original Parcel.

Taxable Property" means all Parcels within the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 5 that( i)
are not exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to law or Section G below,: and ( ii) which upon

subdivision of an Original Parcel, are assigned Expected Land Uses and are not expected to be

Public Property.   

Taxable Public Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, any Parcel of Public Property within
Improvement Area No. 5 that had been assigned a Maximum Special Tax obligation based on
Expected Land Uses being assigned to the Parcel.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (i) a
prepayment is received in an amount sufficient to pay off the full 1Vlaximum Special Tax
obligation assigned to the Parcel, or( ii) the City deternunes that, in the Fiscal Year in which the
Parcel would first be categorized as Taxable Public Property, an equal amount of Acreage within
the CFD that had been Public Property became .Taxable Property, then the Parcel of Public
Property can be deemed exempt from the Special Tax if the Administrator determines that the
Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue after granting such exemption is greater than or equal to
the Required Revenue. 

Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue" means the aggregate amount of revenue that can be

generated in any Fiscal Year by levying the Maximum Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable
Properiy wi.thin Improvement Area No. 5:  

Undeveloped Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Properly that are not
Developed Property.

Unit" means a single family detached unit or an individual unit within a duplex, triplex,
halfplex, fourplex, condominium, townhome, live/work, or apartment structure.  An Accessory
Unit that shares a Parcel with a single- farriily detached unit shall not be considered a separate
Unit for purposes of this RMA.

IA No. S ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 6 August 8, 2018

353



B.      DATA FOR ADMIlvISTRATION OF SPECIAL TAX

On or about July 1 of each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall identify( i) the current Assessor' s
Parcel numbers for all Parcels of Developed Property and Undeveloped Property within      .
Improvement Area No. 5, ( ii) the number of Units expected within each building on each Parcel
of Single Family Attached Properly, ( iii) the square footage of all SFD Lots that were created in
the prior Fiscal Year, ( iv) whether the Administrative Expense Reimbursement Amount and the

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount have been fully funded by special tax revenues from
prior fiscal years, and ( v) the Special Tax Requirement for the Fiscal Year.  In addition, on an

ongoing basis, the Administrator shall monitor Land Use Changes and the subdivision of Parcels
in Improvement Area No. 5 and ( i) allocate the Maximum Special Tax assigned to the Original
Parcel( s) to the Successor Parcels created by the subdivision pursuant to Section C below, and
ii) ensure that such Land Use Changes do not result in Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue

that is less than the Required Revenue.  After the recordation of each Large Lot Map within
Improvement Area No.  5,  the Adininistrator shall also review and revise,  as needed, the

Expected Land Uses, Net Acreage, and Ma mum Special Taxes for each Successor Parcel

created by recordation of the Large Lot Map, and update Attachment 1 accordingly, as set forth
in Section C below.

In any Fiscal Year, if it is detennined that: ( i) a parcel map for property in Improvement Area
No. 5 was recorded after January 1 of the prior Fiscal Year ( or any other date after which the
Assessor will not incorporate the newly- created parcels into the then current tax roll), ( ii)

because of the date the parcel map was recorded, the Assessor does not yet recognize the new
parcels created by the parcel map, and ( iii) a building pernut was issued prior to June 1 of the
prior Fiscal Year for development on one or more of the newly- created parcels,  the

Administrator shall calculate the Special T for each Land Use within the subdivided area and

levy such Special Tax on the Original Parcel that was subdivided by recordation of the parcel
map.

C.      MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

1.       Original Parcels in Improvement Area No. 5 at CFD Formation

Attachment 1 to this RMA identifies the Maximum Special Tax assigned to each Original Parcel

in Improvement Area No. 5 for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 based on the Expected Land Use( s) for each

Parcel as of CFD Formation.   After recordation of each Large Lot Map for property in
Improvement Area No. 5, the Administrator shall review current maps and land use plans for the

property within the Large Lot Map and, in consultation with the City Planning Department,
reevaluate the Expected Land Uses for each of the Successor Parcels created by recordation of
the Large Lot Map.  Attachment 1 shall be updated to reflect the Assessor' s Parcel numbers,

Expected Land Uses, Net Acreage, and corresponding Maximum Special Tax assigned to each
Parcel after applying the Base Special Tax to each Land Use on each Successor Parcel.  If,based
on changes to the Expected Land Uses within the Large Lot Map area, the Total Maximum
Special Tax Revenue that could be generated in Improvement Area No. 5 is less than the

Required Revenue, the Maximum Special Tax on each Successor Parcel created by the Large Lot

IA No. 5 of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 7     August 8, 2018

354



Map shall be increased proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue is equal
to the Required Revenue.  If there is an increase in the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue

based on Expected Land Uses within the Large Lot Map, the Administrator shall reflect such
increased Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue in the updated Attachment 1.

If, before or after the comprehensive review after recordation of a Large Lot Map, there are any
other Land Use Changes proposed for any Parcel prior to fmal subdivision of the Parcel, the
Adininistrator shall determine the Maximum Special Tax that would be assigned to the Parcel if

the Base Special Tax was applied to the Net Acreage of Residential Property and/ or Non-
Residential Property on the Parcel after the proposed Land Use Change.   If, based on this

Maximum Special Tax calculation, the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue would be less than

the Required Revenue,  the Maximum Special Tax for such Parcel shall be increased

proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue is equal to the Required Revenue.
If there is an increase in the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue after the Land Use Change,

the Administrator shall reflect such increased Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue in an

updated Attachment 1.

2.       Successor Parcels that are not SFD Lots

The Maximum Special Tax for each Original Parcel for Fiscal Year 2018- 19 is identified in

Attachment 1, which may be updated as set forth above. After such update, if an Original Parcel
is subdivided or reconfigured and none of the Successor Parcels are SFD Lots, the Administrator

shall assign the Maximum Special Tax to the Successor Parcels by applying the following steps:

Step 1:     Based on reference to Land Use plans and, if needed, coordination with the

City Planning Deparhnent, determine the Net Acreage of each Land Use on
each Successor Parcel created from subdivision or reconfiguration of the

Original Parcel.

Step 2:     For each Successor Parcel, multiply the Base Special Tax for each Land Use
by the Net Acreage of each Land Use deternuned in Step 1, and calculate the
aggregate Maximum Special Tax that could be generated from the Successor

Parcels created from subdivision of the Original Parcel.

Step 3:     If the aggregate Maximum Special Tax for all Successor Parcels is greater

than or equal to the Maximum Special Tax that had been assigned to the

Original Parcel before it was subdivided, the Maximum Special Tax for each

Successor Parcel shall be the amount deternuned in Step 2,  and the

Administrator shall recalculate the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue to

include the increased Maximum Special Tax.   If the aggregate Maximum

Special Tax for all Successor Parcels is less than the Maximum Special Tax

assigned to the Original Parcel, and such reduction. would reduce the Total

Maximum Special Tax Revenue to an amount less than the Required Revenue,

then the Administrator shall increase the amount calculated for each Successor

Parcel in Step 2 proportionately until the Total Maximum Special Tax
Revenue after the subdivision is equal to the Required Revenue.

IA No. S of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- I 8 August 8, 2018

355



Step 4:     If all or a portion of the Original Parcel was subdivided to create individual

Parcels (which may be Airspace Parcels) for Units on Single Family Attached
Property, divide the Maximum Special Tax assigned to the Original Parcel ( or
portion thereo, as may be adjusted pursuant to Step 3 above, by the total
number of Units that will be built on the Original Parcel ( or portion thereo fl to
calculate the Maximum Special Tax that will be assigned to each Parcel.

Upon each application of this Section C. 2, there shall be no reduction in the Required Revenue

unless there has been a prepayment for one or more Parcels within Improvement Area No. 5.

3.       Successor Parcels of which All or Some are SFD Lots

Upon subdivision of an Original Parcel into Successor Parcels, of which all or some are SFD

Lots, the Administrator shall apply the following steps to determine the Maximum Special Tax
for each Parcel:

Step 1:     Deternune the Net Acreage and Expected Land Use for each Successor Parcel

created from subdivision of the Original Parcel.  Apply the steps set forth in
Section C. 2 above to allocate the Maximum Special Tax from the Original

Parcel to each Successor Parcel.

Step 2:     Apply one of the following EDU Factors to each SFD Lot based on the square
footage of each lot, and calculate the aggregate EDUs from all SFD Lots

created by subdivision of the Original Parcel:

Lot Size EDU Factor

Greater than 8, 000 square feet 1. 25

6, 501- 8, 000 square feet 1. 14

5, 001- 6, 500 square feet 1. 00

3, 501- 5, 000 square feet 0. 87

2, 800- 3, 500 square feet 0. 81

Less than 2, 800 square feet 0. 73

Step 3:     For SFD Lots, sum the Maximum Special Tax assigned in Step 1 to all.
Successor Parcels that are SFD Lots, and divide this amount by the total
EDUs deternuned in Step 2 to calculate a Maximum Special Tax per EDU.
Multiply the Maximum Special Tax per EDU by the EDU Factor for each
SFD Lot to determine the Maximum Special Tax for each Successor Parcel

that is a SFD Lot.  This Maximum Special Tax shall be the Maximum Special

Tax for the Parcel when it is Undeveloped Property and when it becomes
Developed Property.

For Successor Parcels that are not SFD Lots, the Maximum Special Tax

shall be the amount deternuned for each Parcel pursuant to Step 1 above.   

IA No. S of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 9 August 8, 20I8

356



At no time shall the distribution of the Maximum Special Tax upon subdivision or

reconfiguration of a Parcel result in Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue that is lower than the

Required Revenue.   If an Original Parcel is subdivided, and the Successor Parcels include a

combination of Land Uses, the Administrator shall delineate the Maximum Special Tax to the

Taxable Properiy created by the subdivision based on the best information available at the time,
and based on application of Sections C.2 and C. 3 of this RMA.

4.       Parcels of Taxable Public Property

The Maximum Special Tax for a Parcel of Taxable Public Properly shall be equal to the
Maximum Special Tax that applied prior to the Parcel becoming Public Property.

5.       Annexations

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel or Parcels annex into Improvement Area No. 5, the Administrator
shall, in coordination with the City Planning Department, identify the Expected Land Uses for
the Parcel( s).  The Administrator shall then ( i) apply the Base Special Tax to each Land Use to
calculate the Maximum Special Tax for the Parcel, ( ii) add the Maximum Special Tax for the

Parcel to the Total Maximum Special Tax Revenue, and ( iii) levy the Special Tax on the
Parcel( s) pursuant to this RMA in the next Fiscal Year and all future Fiscal Years unless a

prepayment is received to fully release the Parcel( s) from the Special Tax obligation.

D.      ADJUSTMENTS TO TIiE MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

1.       Escalation of Maximum 5pecial Tax

Beginning July 1, 2019 and each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special Tax for each Parcel in
Improvement Area No. 5 shall be increased by two percent ( 2%) of the amount in effect in the

prior Fiscal Year,

2.       Conversion of a Parcel of Public Property to Private Use

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel of Public Property is converted to private use, which shall include
a lease to a private entity allowing the property to be taxed pursuant to Section 53340. 1 of the
Act, such Parcel shall be subject to the levy of the Special Tax.  The Maximum Special Tax for

each such Parcel shall be determined based on applying the Base Special Tax to the Net Acreage
of each Expected Land Use on the Parcel.

E.       METHOD OF LEVY OF THE SPECIAL TAX

1.       Each Fiscal Year prior to the time at which the Administrative Expense Reimbursement

Amount has been repaid pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and the Debt Service

Reserve Funding Amount has been fully funded pursuant to the terms of the Indenture,

IA No. S of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 10 August 8, 20I8

357



the Administrator shall levy the Maximum Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable
Property.

2.       Each Fiscal Year beginning with the Fiscal Year in which the Administrative Expense
Reimbursement Amount has been repaid pursuant to the terms of the Indenture and the

Debt Service Reserve Funding Amount has been fully funded pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture, the Administrator shall determine the Special Tax Requirement and levy the
Special Tax on all Parcels of Taxable Property as follows:

Step 1:     The Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel of Developed
Property, other than Taxable Public Property, up to 100% of the Maximum

Special Tax for each Parcel until the amount levied on Developed Property is
equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

Step 2:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 1 to pay the Special Tax
Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel
of Undeveloped Property up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each

Parcel until the amount levied on Developed Property and Undeveloped
Property is equal to the Special Tax Requirement.

Step 3:     If additional revenue is needed after Step 2 to pay the Special Tax
Requirement, the Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on each Parcel
of Taxable Public Property, up to 100% of the Maximum Special Tax for each

Parcel.

F.       MANNER OF COLLECTION OF 5PECIAL TAX

The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad
valorem property taxes, provided, however, that the City may directly bill, collect at a different
time or in a different manner, and/ or collect delinquent Special Taxes through foreclosure or_

other available methods.

The Special Tax shall be levied and collected until principal and interest on the Bonds have been

repaid, costs of constructing or acquiring Authorized Facilities from Special Tax proceeds have
been paid, and all Administrative Expenses have been paid or reimbursed. However, in no event

shall a Special Tax be levied after Fiscal Year 2060- 61, except that a 5pecial Tax that was

lawfully levied in or before the Fiscal Year 2060- 61 and remains delinquent may be collected in
subsequent Fiscal Years.  Under no circumstances may the Special Tax on a Parcel in residential
use be increased in any Fiscal Year as a consequence of delinquency or default in payment of the
Special Tax levied on another Parcel or Parcels by more than ten percent ( 10%) above the

amount that would have been levied in that Fiscal Year had there never been any such
delinquencies or defaults.

IA No. S of Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 II August 8, 20I8

358



G.      EXEMPTIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this RMA, no Special Tax shall be levied on the
following: ( i) Public Property, except Taxable Public Property, ( ii) Parcels that are designated as
permanent open space or common space on which no structure is pernutted to be constructed,

iii) Parcels owned by a public utility for an unmanned facility, or ( iv) Parcels subject to an
easement that precludes any use on the Parcel other than that pernutted by the easement.  In

addition, no Special Tax shall be levied on any Parcel that has fully prepaid the Special Tax
obligation assigned to the Parcel, as determined pursuant to the formula set forth in Section H

below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Special Tax has been levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal
Year, and the Parcel subsequently meets the criteria for any of the exempted categories above,
the Parcel shall remain subject to the Special Tax levy unless and until a prepayment is made to
release the Parcel from its Special Tax obligation or, in the case of Public Property, the City
detertnines that the parcel can be exempted from the Special Tax after making the determinations
listed in the definition of Taxable Public Property above.

If, in any Fiscal Year, a Parcel of Public Property is converted to private use, such Parcel shall be
subject to the levy of Special Taxes pursuant to Section D.2 above.

H.      PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

The following defuutions apply to this Section H:

Outstanding Bonds" means all Previously Issued Bonds which remain outstanding,
with the following exception:  if a Special Tax has been levied against, or already paid
by, an Assessor' s Parcel making a prepayment, and a portion of the Special Tax will be
used to pay a portion of the next principal payment on the Bonds that remain outstanding

as deternuned by the Administrator), that next principal payment shall be subtracted

from the total Bond principal that remains outstanding, and the difference shall be used as
the amount of Outstanding Bonds for purposes of this prepayment formula.

Previously Issued Bonds" means all Bonds that have been issued prior to the date of
prepayment.

1.       Full Prepayment

The Special Tax obligation applicable to a Parcel in Improvement Area No. 5 may be fully
prepaid and the obligation of the Parcel to pay the Special Tax permanently satisfied as described
herein, provided that a prepayment may be made only if there are no delinquent Special Taxes
with respect to such Parcel at the time of prepayment.  An owner of a Parcel intending to prepay
the Special Tax obligation shall provide the City with written notice of intent to prepay. Within
30 days of receipt of such written notice, the City or its designee shall notify such owner of the
prepayment amount for such Parcel.  Prepayments must be made not less than 50 days prior to

any redemption date for the Bonds to be redeemed with the proceeds of such prepaid Special
Taxes.

IA No. S ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 12 August 8, 2018

359



The Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows( capitalized terms as defined below):

Bond Redemption Amount

plus Redemption Premium

plus Defeasance Requirement

plus Administrative Fees and Expenses.

less Reserve Fund Credit

equals Prepayment Amount

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be determined by
application of the following steps:   

Step 1:     Deternline the total Maximum Special Tax that could be collected from the

Parcel prepaying the Special Tax in the Fiscal Year in which prepayment
would be received by the City.

Step 2:     Divide the Maximum Special Tax computed pursuant to Step 1 by the Total
Maximum Special Tax Revenue for the Fiscal Year in which prepayment

would be received by the City.

Step 3:     Multiply the quotient computed pursuant to Step 2 by the Outstanding Bonds
to compute the amount of Outstanding Bonds to be retired and prepaid ( the
Bond Redemption Amount'.

Step 4:     Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount computed pursuant to Step 3 by the
applicable redemption premium, if any, on the Outstanding Bonds to be
redeemed( the " Redemption Premium'.

Step 5:     Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount
starting with the last Outstanding Bond interest payment date on which
interest has been or will be paid by Special Taxes already levied until the
earliest redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 6:     Compute the amount of interest the City reasonably expects to derive from
reinvestment of the Bond Redemption Amount plus the Redemption Premium

from the first Outstanding Bond interest payment date after which the
prepayment has been received until the redemption date for the Outstanding
Bonds.

Step 7:     Take the amount computed pursuant to Step 5 and subtract the amount
computed pursuant to Step 6 ( the " Defeasance Requirement'.

Step 8:     Determine the costs of computing the prepayment amount,  redeeming

Outstanding Bonds, and recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and
redemption( the ` Admtnistrative Fees and Expenses'.

IA No. S ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 13 August 8, 2018

360



Step 9:     If and to the extent so provided in the Indenture, a reserve fund credit shall be

calculated as a reduction in the applicable reserve fund for the Outstanding
Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to the prepayment ( the " Reserve Fund

Credit'.      

Step 10:   The Special Tax prepayment is equal to the sum of the amounts computed

pursuant to Steps 3, 4, 7, and 8, less the amount computed pursuant to Step 9
the " Prepayment Amount'. .

Once a full prepayment of a Parcel' s Special Tax obligation has been received, a Notice of

Cancellation of Special Tax Lien shall be recorded against the Parcel to reflect the discharge of

the Parcel' s obligation to pay the Special Tax. However, a Notice of Cancellation of Special Tax
Lien shall not be recorded until all Special Taxes levied on the Parcel in the current or prior

Fiscal Years have been collected.

2.       Partial Prepayment

A partial prepayment may be made in an amount equal to any percentage of full prepayment
desired by the parly making a partial prepayment, except that the full amount of Administrative
Fees and Expenses deternuned in Step 8 shall be included in the partial prepayment.   The

Maximum Special Tax that can be levied on a Parcel after a partial prepayment is made shall be

determined as follows:

Step 1.     Calculate the full prepayment  ( not including the amount collected for
Administrative Fees and Expenses) that would be due from the Parcel if the

entire Special Tax obligation were being prepaid pursuant to Section H. 1
above.

Step 2.     Divide the partial prepayment amount for the Parcel( not including the amount
collected for Administrative Fees and Expenses) by the amount computed in
Step 1 to deternune a percentage.       

Step 3.     Subtract the percentage computed in Step 2 from 100% to determine the

Remaining Percentage".

Step 4.     Multiply the Remaining Percentage from Step 3 by the Maximum Special Tax
for the Parcel to determine the new Maximum Special Tax that will be in

effect for the Parcel after the partial prepayment is applied.

L INTERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

The City may, by resolution or ordinance, interpret, clarify, andlor revise this RMA to correct
any inconsistency,  vagueness,  or ambiguity as it relates to the Special Tax,  method of
apportionment, classification of properties, or any defuution applicable to the CFD, as long as

IA No. S ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 l4 August 8, 20I8

361



such correction does not materially affect the levy and collection of Special Taxes and any
security for the Bonds.  The City, upon the request of an owner of land within the CFD which is
not Developed Property, may also amend this ItMA in any manner acceptable to the City, by
resolution or ordinance following a public hearing, upon the affirmative vote of such owner to
such amendment and without the vote of owners of any other land within the CFD,
provided sucli amendment only affects such owner' s land and does not reduce the Total
Maximum Special Tax Revenue that can be collected from the Parcel.

IA No. 5 ofLathrop CFD No. 2018- 1 1 S August 8, 2018

362



Attachment 1

Irriprovement Area# 5 of the

City of Lathrop CFD No. 018- 1

E p ted Land Uses and Maxiroium Annual Special Tax per Parc l

Fiscal Year 2018- 19)

Total

Maximunr

Annual

Net Expected Base Special7e t

API A r age Land Use Special Tax/ 1 R venue/ 1

1- 2A- 16 11. 2 Non- Residential 4, 000 44, f1b

1 1- 200- 17 18. 3 Non- Residential 4, 000 7,

193- 200- 1  24. 3 Non- Residential 4, 000 9, nb

1'91- 210- 10 19. 0 Non- Residential 4, 000 8 1

200- 19 8. 4 Pond/ Sprayfield 0 6

1 1= 10=A7 14. 4 Pond/ Sprayfield 0 Cl

ZP 9=lD8 18. 6 Pond/ Sprayfield 0 0

1 9.-. 9=  19. 5 Pond/ Sprayfield 0 0

Tv'k l Maximum Annual Specia! Tax Revenue/ 1 291, b0

J. R eginning July 1, 2019, and each July 1 thereafter, the Base Special T x, M xirnurlt
Ann[) Spscial Tax, and Total Maximum Annual Special Tax Revenue shall increas

Uy 9/0 of tlte amount in effect in the prior Fiscal Year.

9odwirr Consu/ ting Group; Inc.      6/,/, li

363



r

Attachment 2

RESOWTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP DETERMINING
NECESSITY. TO INCUR BONDED INDEBTEDNESS FOR A COMMUNITY FACILITIES

DISTRICT AND FIVE IMPROVEMENT AREAS THEREIN

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018-1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

WHEREAS, on August 13, 2018, pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of
1982, as amended, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section
53311, of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the City Council ( the " Council") of the City
of Lathrop  ( the  " City")  adopted a resolution entitled  " Resolution of Intent to Establish a

Community Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas Therein and Levy a Special Tax"
Resolution No. 18- 4438, the " Resolution of Intention") stating its intention to form ( i) " City of

Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the

CFD"), ( ii) " Improvement Area 1 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)",(" Improvement Area 1"), ( iii) " Improvement Area 2 of

the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 2"), ( iv) " Improvemenf Area 3 of the City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 3"),

v) " Improvement Area 4 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central
Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 4"), and ( vi) " Improvement Area 5 of the

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 5" and together, the " Improvement Areas");

WHEREAS,  on August 13, 2018,  the Council also adopted a resolution entitled " A

Resolution of Intent to Incur Bonded Indebtedness for Each Improvement Area of a Community
Facilities District" ( Resolution No. 18- 4439, the " Resolution of Intention to Incur Indebtedness")

stating its intention to incur bonded indebtedness ( as contemplated by the Act) within the
boundaries of the CFD and the Improvement Areas for the purpose of financing the costs of
certain facilities specified in the Resolution of Infention;

WHEREAS, the Council has held a noticed public hearing as required by the Act about
the determination to proceed with the formation of the CFD and the Improvement Areas, the

refinancing of eertain public facilities by the CFD and the rate and method of apportionment of
the special tax to be levied within the Improvement Areas to pay the cost of the Facilities ( as
described in the Resolution of Intention),  the principal and interest on proposed bonded

indebtedness for each Improvement Area, and the administrative costs of the City relative to the
CFD;

WHEREAS, subsequent to the public hearing, this City Council adopted a resolution
entitled " Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas and to
Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District( the
Resolution of Formation");

WHEREAS, this City Council has also held a noticed public hearing as required by the
Act relative to the matters material to the questions set forth in the Resolution of Intention to
Incur Indebtedness; and

364



WHEREAS, no written protests with respect to the matters material to the questions set

forth in the Resolution of Intention to Incur Indebtedness have been filed with the City Clerk.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

1. Recitals Correct. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2.       Necessity. In order to finance the costs of the Facilities, including, but not limited
to, the costs of issuing and selling bonds to finance all or a portion of the Facilities and the costs
of the City in establishing and administering the CFD, it is necessary for the City to incur bonded
indebtedness on behalf of each Improvement Area in an aggregate amount not to exceed

13, 630, 000 for Improvement Area 1, $ 8, 945,000 for Improvement Area 2, $ 16, 625, 000 for

Improvement Area 3, $ 6, 565, 000 for Improvement Area 4, and $ 4,970,000 for Improvement

Area 5.

3. Each Entire Improvement Area Liable. The whole of each Improvement Area

shall pay for the bonded indebtedness issued by the City for each respective Improvement Area
through the levy of the facilities special tax within such Improvement Area.  The tax shall be .

apportioned in accordance with the respective formula for each Improvement Area set forth in
the respective Exhibits " B- F" to the Resolution of Formation.

4.       Bonds. Subject to Section 2 above, bonds ( as contemplated by the Act) in the
aggregate maximum amount of not to exceed $ 13, 630, 000 for Improvement Area 1, $ 8, 945, 000

for Improvement Area 2, $ 16, 625, 000 for Improvement Area 3, $ 6, 565,000 for Improvement

Area 4, and $ 4,970, 000 for Improvement Area 5 are hereby authorized for each Improvement
Area subject to voter approval.   Bonds subject to this limit shall only include indebtedness
evidenced by bonds or notes and shall not include bonds described in Section 53364. 2( e) of the
Act. The bonds for each Improvement Area may be issued in one or more series and mature
and bear interest at such rate or rates, payable semiannually or in such other manner, all as this
City Council or its designee shall determine,  at the time or times of sale of such bonds;
provided, however, that the interest rate or rates shall not to exceed the maximum interest rate

permitted by applicable law at the time of sale of the bonds and the bonds or any series thereof
shall have a maximum term of not to exceed 40 years.

5. Election. The proposition of the City incurring the bonds for each Improvement
Area as herein authorized shall be submitted to the qualified electors of each Improvement Area

and shall be consolidated with elections on the proposition of levying special taxes within each
Improvement Area and the establishment of an appropriations limit for each Improvement Area

pursuant to Section 53353. 5 of the Act. The time, place and further particulars and conditions of

such election shall be as specified by separate resolution of this City Council.

6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

2

365



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and adopted by the
City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the 19 h

day of November, 2018, by the
following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

3

366



IIAttachment 3

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP CALLING SPECIAL
ELECTIOIV FOR A COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT AND FIVE IMPROVEMENT AREAS

THEREIN

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2. 5
of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311, of the California Government
Code ( the " Act"), the City Council ( the " Council") of the City of Lathrop ( the " City") has adopted a

resolution entitled " Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and Five Improvement
Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain Public Facilities in and for
Such District ( the " Resolution of Formation"), ordering the formation of ( i) " City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD"),

ii) " Improvement Area 1 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central
Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 1"), ( iii) " Improvement Area 2 of the City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"

Improvement Area 2"), ( iv) " Improvement Area 3 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"  (" Improvement Area 3"),  ( v)

Improvement Area 4 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 4"), and ( vi) " Improvement Area 5 of the

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 5" and together, the " Improvement Areas"), authorizing the levy
of a special tax on property within the Improvement Areas and preliminarily establishing an
appropriations limit for each Improvement Area; and

WHEREAS, the Council has also adopted a resolution entitled " Resolution Determining
Necessity to Incur Bonded Indebtedness for a Community Facilities District and Five

Improvement Areas Therein"  ( the  " Resolution Determining Necessity"),  determining the
necessity to incur bonded indebtedness in the maximum aggregate principal amount of

13, 630, 000 for Improvement Area 1, $ 8, 945, 000 for Improvement Area 2, $ 16, 625, 000 for.

Improvement Area 3, $ 6,565, 000 for Improvement Area 4, and $ 4, 970, 000 for Improvement

Area 5 upon the security of the facilities special tax to be levied within each respective
Improvement Area pursuant to the Act; and

WHEREAS,  pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution of Formation and the

Resolution Determining Necessity,  the propositions of the levy of the special tax,  the

establishment of the appropriations limit and the incurring of the bonded indebtedness shall be
submitted to the qualified electors of each Improvement Area as required by the provisions of
the Act;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, as follows:

1.       Issued Submitted. Pursuant to Sections 53326, 53351 and 53325. 7 of the Act,

the issues of the levy of the special tax,  the incurring of bonded indebtedness and the
establishment of the appropriations limit with respect to the improvement areas shall be

submitted to the qualified electors ( as defined below) of each Improvement Area at an election

called therefor as provided below.    

367



2.       Qualified Electors. The Council hereby finds that fewer than 12 persons have
been registered to vote within the territory of each Improvement Area for each of the 90 days
preceding the close of the public hearings heretofore conducted and concluded by the Council
for the purposes of these proceedings.  Accordingly, and pursuant to Section 53326 of the Act,
the Council finds that, for these proceedings, the qualified electors for each Improvement Area

are the landowners within each respective Improvement Area and that the vote shall be by such
landowners or their authorized representatives in a single ballot, each having one vote for each
acre or portion thereof such landowner owns in such Improvement Area not exempt from the
special tax as of the close of the public hearings.

3.       Conduct of Election. The Council acknowledges receipt of waivers of certain

election formalities from the owners of all the land in the CFD and hereby calls a special election
in each Improvement Area to consider the measures described in section 1 above, which

election shall be held on November 19, 2018, and the results thereof canvassed at the meeting
of the Council on November 19, 2018.  The City Clerk is hereby designated as the official to
conduct the election and to receive all ballots until 7: 00 p. m. on the election date.  It is hereby
acknowledged that the City Clerk has on file the Resolution of Formation, a certified map of the
boundaries of the CFD and each Improvement Area, and a sufficient description to allow the

City Clerk to determine the electors of each Improvement Area. Pursuant to Section 53327 of
the Act, the election shall be conducted by messenger or mail- delivered ballot pursuant to
Section 4000 of the California Elections Code, except as modified by waivers of the electors,
and except that Sections 53326 and 53327 of the Act shall govern for purposes of determining
the date of election.

4.       Ballot. The Council finds that a single landowner owns all of the land within all

the Improvement Areas. As authorized by Section 53353. 5 of the Act, the three propositions
described in Section 1 above shall be combined into a single ballot measure for each
Improvement Area of the CFD, the forms of which are attached hereto as Exhibit "A- 1" through

A-5" and by this reference incorporated herein and the forms of ballot are hereby approved.
The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to cause the ballots, in substantially the form of
Exhibit " A- 1" through " A-5" to be delivered to the landowner, as the sole qualified elector for
each Improvement Area.  The ballot shall indicate the number of votes for the respective

Improvement Area to be voted by the landowner. The Council hereby finds that the provisions of
Section 53327 and 53327. 5 of the Act requiring that each ballot be accompanied by all supplies
and written instructions necessary for the use and return of the ballot and the envelope to be
used to return the ballot stiall be enclosed with the ballot,  return postage prepaid,  and

containing representations and requirements as to certain election procedures are for the
protection of the qualified electors of each Improvement Area and there is on file with the City
Clerk a written waiver such procedures and requirements executed by all of the qualified
electors of each Improvement Area, all electors of which have requested formation of the

Improvement Areas and levy of special taxes.  Accordingly, the Council finds and determines
that the qualified electors have been fully apprised of and have agreed to the conduct of the
election without such procedures and requirements, and have thereby been fully protected in
these proceedings upon distribution and return of the ballots in the manner deemed appropriate

by the City and all of the electors.     

5.       Waivers. The Council hereby urther finds that the provisions of Section 53326 of
the Act requiring a minimum of 90 days following the adoption of the Resolution of Formation to
elapse before the special election are for the protection of the qualified electors of each

Improvement Area.  There is on file with the City Clerk a written waiver executed by all of the

2

368



qualified electors of each Improvement Area allowing for a shortening of the time for the special
election to expedite the process of formation of each Improvement Area and waiving any
requirement for notice, analysis and arguments in connection with the election.  Accordingly, the
Council finds and determines that the qualified electors have been fully apprised of and have
agreed to the shortened time for the election and waiver of analysis and arguments, and have

thereby been fully protected in these proceedings.  The Council also finds and determines that

the City Clerk has concurred in the shortened time for the election. Analysis and arguments with
respect to the ballot measures are hereby waived, as provided in Section 53327 of the Act.

6.       Accountability. The Council hereby finds that the proposed issuance of bonds
and other debt for each Improvement Area constitutes a " local bond measure" within the

meaning of Sections 53410, et seq. of the California Government Code.  As a result, the bond

measure shall provide accountability measures that include: ( a) the specific purpose of the      _,

bonds; ( b) any proceeds received from the sale of any bonds and other debt shall be applied
only to the purposes; ( c) the proceeds of any bonds and other debt shall be deposited into
special accounts to be created therefor as part of the issuance of the bonds; and ( d) the City
shall cause a report to be prepared annually under Section 53411 of the Government Code.

Under Section 50075. 1 of the Government Code, the following accountability provisions
shall apply to the special taxes: ( a) the provision and/ or acquisition of the Facilities, the payment

of debt service on the bonds and other debt and the incidental costs thereof, all as defined in
the Resolution of Formation, shall constitute the specific single purpose; ( b) the proceeds of the

special tax shall be applied only to the specific purposes identified in ( a) above; ( c) there shall

be created special account( s) or funds( s) into which the proceeds shall be deposited; and ( d)
there shall be caused to be prepared an annual audit and report of the CFD.

7. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

3

369



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and adopted by the
City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the 19th

day of November, 2018, by the
following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

4

370



EXHIBIT A- 1

CITY OF LATHROP

Improvement Area No. 1 of

Community Facilities District No. 2018-1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) 

OFFICIAL BALLOT

SPECIAL TAX ELECTION

This ballot is for a special, landowner election.  You must return this ballot to the office of the

City Clerk of the City of Lathrop no later than the hour of 7: 00 p. m. on November 19, 2018,
either by mail or in person.  The City Clerk' s office is located at City Hall, 390 Towne Centre
Drive, Lathrop, California.

To vote, mark a cross ( X) on the voting line after the word " YES" or after the word " NO".  All

marks otherwise made are forbidden.   All distinguishing marks are forbidden and make the
ballot void.  If you wrongly mark, tear, or deface this ballot, return it to the City Clerk of the City
of Lathrop and obtain another.

The amount of money raised annually and the rate and duration of the tax to be levied by this
measure can be determined by application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment.

BALLOT MEASURE:   Shall the measure pursuant to which ( i) the City of
Lathrop ( the" City") levy a special tax solely on lands within Improvement Area No. 1 of
the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities)  ( the  " CFD"),  in accordance with the rate and method for such

improvement area contained in the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District
and Five Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of
Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District (" Formation Resolution"), commencing

in or after the City' s fiscal year 2018- 19, to pay for the public facilities specified in the
Formation Resolution and to pay the costs of the City in administering the CFD; shall
the annual appropriations limit of Improvement Area No. 1 be established in the amount
of$ 13, 630, 000; and shall the City issue bonds (" bonds") for Improvement Area No. 1 in

the maximum aggregate principal amount of$ 13, 630, 000 with interest at a rate or rates

not to exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such
bonds on behalf of such Improvement Area, the proceeds of which bonds will be used

to refinance the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds and
related expenses be adopted?

YES:

NO:

A- 1

371



By execution in the space provided below, you also indicate your waiver of ( i) the time limit pertaining to
the conduct of the election, ( ii) any requirement for analysis and arguments with respect to the ballot
measure, and ( iii) any irregularity in the proceedings that may be claimed as a result of the application of
such waivers.

Improvement Area No. 1 Property Owner:
Number of Acres:  93. 5

Number of Votes:  94 Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company

By: Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC, its
managing member

By:
Jeffrey M. Wilson

A-2

372



EXHIBIT A-2

CITY OF LATHROP

Improvement Area No. 2 of

Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

OFFICIAL BALLOT

SPECIAL TAX ELECTION

This ballot is for a special, landowner election.  You must return this ballot to the office of the

City Clerk of the City of Lathrop no later than the hour of 7:00 p. m. on November 19, 2018,
either by mail or in person.  The City Clerk' s office is located at City Hall, 390 Towne Centre
Drive, Lathrop, California.

To vote, mark a cross ( X) on the voting line after the word " YES" or after the word " NO".  All

marks otherwise made are forbidden.   All distinguishing marks are forbidden and make the
ballot void.  If you wrongly mark, tear, or deface this ballot, return it to the City Clerk of the City
of Lathrop and obtain another.

The amount of money raised annually and the rate and duration of the tax to be levied by this
measure can be determined by application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment.

BALLOT MEASURE:   Shall the measure pursuant to which ( i) the City of
Lathrop ( the " City") levy a special tax solely on lands within Improvement Area No. 2 of
the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities)  ( the  " CFD"),  in accordance with the rate and method for such

improvement area contained in the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District
and Five Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of
Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District (" Formation Resolution"), commencing

in or after the City' s fiscal year 2018- 19, to pay for the public facilities specified in the
Formation Resolution and to pay the costs of the City in administering the CFD; shall
the annual appropriations limit of Improvement Area No. 2 be established in the amount

of$ 8, 945,000; and shall the City issue bonds (" bonds") for Improvement Area No. 2 in

the maximum aggregate principal amount of$ 8, 945, 000 with interest at a rate or rates

not to exceed the max'imum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such
bonds on behalf of such Improvement Area, the proceeds of which bonds will be used

to refinance the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds and
related expenses be adopted?

YES:

NO:

A- 3

373



By execution in the space provided below, you also indicate your waiver of( i) the time limit pertaining to
the conduct of the election, ( ii) any requirement for analysis and arguments with respect to the ballot
measure, and ( iii) any irregularity in the proceedings that may be claimed as a result of the application of
such waivers.

Improvement Area No. 2 Property Owner:
Number of Acres:  61. 3

Number of Votes:  62 Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company

By: Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC, its
managing member

By:
Jeffrey M. Wilson

A-4

374



EXHIBIT A-

CITY OF LATHROP

Improvement Area No. 3 of

Community Facilities District No. 3018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

OFFICIAL BALLOT

SPECIAL TAX ELECTION

This ballot is for a special, landowner election.  You must return this ballot to the office of the

City Clerk of the City of Lathrop no later than the hour of 7: 00 p. m. on November 19, 2018,
either by mail or in person.  The City Clerk' s office is located at City Hall, 390 Towne Centre
Drive, Lathrop, California.

To vote, mark a cross ( X) on the voting line after the word " YES" or after the word " NO".  All

marks otherwise made are forbidden.   All distinguishing marks are forbidden and make the
ballot void.  If you wrongly mark, tear, or deface this ballot, return it to the City Clerk of the City
of Lathrop and obtain another.

The amount of money raised annually and the rate and. duration of the tax to be levied by this
rrieasure can be determined by application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment.

BALLOT MEASURE:   Shall the measure pursuant to which ( i) the City of
Lathrop ( the " City") levy a special tax solely on lands within Improvement Area No. 3 of
the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 3018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities)  ( the  " CFD"),  in accordance with the rate and method for such

improvement area contained in the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District
and Five Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of
Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District (" Formation Resolution"), commencing

in or after the City' s fiscal year 2018- 19, to pay for the public facilities specified in the
Formation Resolution and to pay the costs of the City in administering the CFD; shall
the annual appropriations limit of Improvement Area No. 3 be established in the amount

of$ 16, 625, 000; and shall the City issue bonds (" bonds") for Improvement Area No. 3 in

the maximum aggregate principal amount of$ 16, 625, 000 with interest at a rate or rates

not to exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such
bonds on behalf of such Improvement Area, the proceeds of which bonds will be used

to refinance the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds and
related expenses be adopted?

YES:

NO:

A- 5

375



By execution in the space provided below, you also indicate your waiver of ( i) the time limit pertaining to
the conduct of the election, ( ii) any requirement for analysis and arguments with respect to the ballot
measure, and ( iii) any irregularity in the proceedings that may be claimed as a result of the application of
such waivers.

Improvement Area No. 3 Property Owner:
Number of Acres:  115. 0

Number of Votes:  115 Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company

By: Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC, its
managing member

By:
Jeffrey M. Wilson

A- 6

376



EXF8IBIT A-4

CITY OF LATHROP

Improvement Area No. 4 of

Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

OFFICIAL BALLOT

SPECIAL TAX ELECTION

This ballot is for a special, landowner election.  You must return this ballot to the office of the

City Clerk of the City of Lathrop no later than the hour of 7: 00 p. m. on November 19, 2018,
either by mail or in person.  The City Clerk' s office is located at City Hall, 390 Towne Centre
Drive, Lathrop, California.

To vote, mark a cross ( X) on the voting line after the word " YES" or after the word " NO".  All

marks otherwise made are forbidden.   All distinguishing marks are forbidden and make the
ballot void.  If you wrongly mark, tear, or deface this ballot, return it to the City Clerk of the City
of Lathrop and obtain another.

The amount of money raised annually and the rate and duration of the tax to be levied by this
measure can be determined by application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment.

BALLOT MEASURE:   Shall the measure pursuant to which ( i) the City of

Lathrop ( the" City") levy a special tax solely on lands within Improvement Area No. 4 of
the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities)  ( the  " CFD"),  in accordance with the rate and method for such

improvement area contained in the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District
and Five Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of
Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District (" Formation Resolution"), commencing

in or after the City' s fiscal year 2018- 19, to pay for the public facilities specified in the
Formation Resolution and to pay the costs of the City in administering the CFD; shall
the annual appropriations limit of Improvement Area No. 4 be established in the amount

of$ 6, 565, 000; and shall the City issue bonds (" bonds") for Improvement Area No. 4 in

the maximum aggregate principal amount of$ 6, 565, 000 with interest at a rate or rates

not to exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such
bonds on behalf of such Improvement Area, the proceeds of which bonds will be used

to refinance the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds and
related expenses be adopted?

YES:

NO:

A- 7

377



By execution in the space provided below, you also indicate your waiver of ( i) the time limit pertaining to
the conduct of the election, ( ii) any requirement for analysis and arguments with respect to the ballot
measure, and ( iii) any irregularity in the proceedings that may be claimed as a result of the application of
such waivers.

Improvement Area No. 4 Property Owner:    
Number of Acres:  97. 8

Number of Votes:  98 Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company

By: Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC, its
managing member

By:
Jeffrey M. Wilson

A-8

378



EXHIBIT A- 5

CITY OF LATHROP

Improvement Area No. 5 of

Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

OFFICIAL BALLOT

SPECIAL TAX ELECTION

This ballot is for a special, landowner election.  You must return this ballot to the office of the

City Clerk of the City of Lathrop no later than the hour of 7: 00 p. m. on November 19, 2018,
either by mail or in person.  The City Clerk' s office is located at City Hall, 390 Towne Centre
Drive, Lathrop, California.

To vote, mark a cross ( X) on the voting line after the word " YES" or after the word " NO".  All

marks otherwise made are forbidden.   All distinguishing marks are forbidden and make the
ballot void.  If you wrongly mark, tear, or deface this ballot, return it to the City Clerk of the City
of Lathrop and obtain another.

The amount of money raised annually and the rate and duration of the tax to be levied by this
measure can be determined by application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment.

BALLOT MEASURE:   Shall the measure pursuant to which ( i) the City of
Lathrop ( the" City") levy a special tax solely on lands within Improvement Area No. 5 of
the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities)  ( the  ° CFD"),  in accordance with the rate and method for such

improvement area contained in the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District
and Five Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of
Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District (" Formation Resolution"), commencing

in or after the City' s fiscal year 2018- 19, to pay for the public facilities specified in the
Formation Resolution and to pay the costs of the City in administering the CFD; shall
the annual appropriations limit of Improvement Area No. 5 be established in the amount
of$ 4, 970, 000; and shall the City issue bonds (" bonds") for Improvement Area No. 5 in

the maximum aggregate principal amount of$ 4, 970, 000 with interest at a rate or ates

not to exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such
bonds on behalf of such Improvement Area, the proceeds of which bonds will be used

to refinance the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds and
related expenses be adopted?      

YES:

NO:

A- 9

379



By execution in the space provided below, you also indicate your waiver of( i) the time limit pertaining to
the conduct of the election, ( ii) any requirement for analysis and arguments with respect to the ballot
measure, and ( iii) any irregularity in the proceedings that may be claimed as a result of the application of
such waivers.

Improvement Area No. 5 Property Owner:
Number of Acres:  133. 7

Number of Votes:  134 Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company

By: Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC, its
managing member

By:
Jeffrey M. Wilson

A- 10      

380



Attachment 4

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP DECLARING RESULTS
OF SPECIAL ELECTIONS FOR A COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT AND DIRECTING

RECORDING OF NOTICE OF SPECIAL TAX LIEN

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2. 5
of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311, of the California Government
Code ( the " Act"), the City Council ( the " Council") of the City of Lathrop ( the " City") has adopted a

resolution entitled " Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and Five Improvement
Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain Public Facilities in and for
Such District" ( the " Resolution of Formation"), ordering ( A) the formation of ( i) " City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD"),

ii) " Improvement Area 1 of the City of Lathrop' Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central
Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 1"), ( iii) " Improvement Area 2 of the City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"

Improvement Area 2`'), ( iv) " Improvement Area 3 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"  (" Improvement Area 3"),  ( v)

Improvement Area 4 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.' 2018- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 4"), and ( vi) " Improvement Area 5 of the

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 5" and together, the " Improvement Areas"); and ( B) authorizing
the levy of a special tax on property within each Improvement Area and preliminarily
establishing an appropriations limit for each Improvement Area; and

WHEREAS, the Council has also adopted a resolution entitled " Resolution Determining

Necessity to Incur Bonded Indebtedness fo  a Community Facilities District and Five
Improvement Areas Therein" ( the " Resolution of Necessity"), determining the necessity to incur
bonded indebtedness in the maximum aggregate principal amount of  $ 13, 630, 000 for

Improvement Area 1, $ 8, 945, 000 for Improvement Area 2, $ 16, 625, 000 for Improvement Area

3, $ 6, 565, 000 for Improvement Area 4, and $ 4,970, 000 for Improvement Area 5 upon the

security of the special tax to be levied within each Improvement Area pursuant to the Act; and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Resolution of Formation and the Resolution of

Necessity and pursuant to a " Resolution Calling Special Election for a Community Facilities
District and Five Improvement Areas Therein"  ( the  " Election Resolution")  adopted by the
Council,  the propositions for each Improvement Area of the levy of the special tax,  the
establishment of the appropriations limit and the incurring of the bonded indebtedness were
submitted to the qualified electors of each Improvement Area as required by the provisions of
the Act.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Election Resolution, which are by this reference
incorporated herein, the special election has been held for each Improvement Area and the City
Clerk has on file a Canvass and Statement of Results of Election, ( the " Canvass") a copy of
which is attached hereto as Exhibit A- 1 through A-5; and

381



WHEREAS, the Council has reviewed the Canvass, finds it appropriate and wishes to

complete its proceedings for each Improvement Area.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, as follows:

1.       Recitals Correct. The foregoing recitals are all frue and correct.

2.       Issues Presented. The issues presented at the special elections were the levy
of a special tax within each Improvement Area, the incurring of a bonded indebtedness for each
Improvement Area, and the approval of an annual appropriations limit for each Improvement

Area, all pursuant to the Resolution of Formation and the Resolution of Necessity.

3.       Canvass and Issues Approved. The Council hereby approves the Canvass and
finds that it shall be a permanent part of the record of its proceedings. for each Improvement

Area. Pursuant to the Canvass, the issues presented at the special elections were approved by
the qualified electors of each Improvement Area by more than two- thirds ( 2/ 3) of the votes cast
at the respective special election.

4. Proceedings Approved.  Pursuant to the voter approval,  each Improvement

Area is hereby declared to be fully formed with the authority to levy the special taxes, to incur
the approved bonded indebtedness and to have the established appropriations limit,  all as
heretofore provided in these proceedings and in the Act.   It is hereby found that all prior
proceedings and actions taken by the Council with respect to the CFD and each Improvement
Area were valid and in conformity with the Act.

5.       Notice of Tax Lien. The City Clerk is hereby directed to complete, execute and
cause to be recorded in the office of the County Recorder of the County of San Joaquin a. notice
of special tax lien for each Improvement Area in the form required by the Act, such recording to
occur no later than fifteen ( 15) days_following adoption by the Council of this resolution.

6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

2

382



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and adopted by the
City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the

19t" 

day of November, 2018, by the
following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

3

383



CANVASS AND STATEMENT OF RESULT OF ELECTION

Improvement Area No. 1 of

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

I hereby certify that on November 19,  2018 I canvassed the returns of the special
election held on November 19,  2018 in Improvement Area No.  1 of the City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) and the total
number of ballots cast in said District and the total number of votes cast for and against the
measure are as follows and the totals as shown for and against the measure are full, true and
correct:

Qualified

Landowner Votes

Votes Cast YES NO

Improvement Area 1

BALLOT MEASURE:  Shall the measure pursuant to which ( i) the City of Lathrop
the" City") levy a special tax solely on lands within Improvement Area No. 1 of the City of

Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)
the " CFD"),  in accordance with the rate and method for such improvement area

contained in the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and Five
Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain Public
Facilities in and for Such District (" Formation Resolution"), commencing in or after the
City's fiscal year 2018- 19, to pay for the public facilities specified in the Formation
Resolution and to pay the costs of the City in administering the CFD; shall the annual
appropriations limit of Improvement Area No.  1 be established in the amount of

13, 630, 000; and shall the City issue bonds (" bonds") for Improvement Area No. 1 in the

maximum aggregate principal amount of$ 13, 630, 000 with interest at a rate or rates not

to exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such bonds
on behalf of such Improvement Area, the proceeds of which bonds will be used to

refinance the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds and
related expenses be adopted?

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND this day of
2018.

By:
City Clerk

EXHIBIT A

384



CANVASS AND STATEMENT OF RESULT OF ELECTION

Improvement Area No. 2 of

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

I hereby certify that on November 19,. 2018 I canvassed the returns of the special
election held on November 19,  2018 in Improvement Area No.  2 of the City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) and the total
number of ballots cast in said District and the total number of votes cast for and against the
measure are as follows and the totals as shown for and against the measure are full, true and
correct:

Qualified

Landowner Votes

Votes Cast YES NO

Improvement Area 1

BALLOT MEASURE:  Shall the measure pursuant to which ( i) the City of Lathrop
the" City") levy a special tax solely on lands within Improvement Area No. 2 of the City of

Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1    ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Facilities) ( the " CFD"), in accordance with the rate and method for such improvement

area contained in the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and Five
Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain Public
Facilities in and for Such District (" Formation Resolution"), commencing in or after the
City' s fiscal year 2018- 19, to pay for the public facilities specified in the Formation
Resolution and to pay the costs of the City in administering the CFD; shall the annual
appropriations limit of Improvement Area No.  2 be established in the amount of

8, 945, 000; and shall the City issue bonds (" bonds") for Improvement Area No. 2 in the

maximum aggregate principal amount of$ 8, 945, 000 with interest at a rate or rates not to

exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such bonds on
behalf of such Improvement Area, the proceeds of which bonds will be used to refinance

the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds and related
expenses be adopted?

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND this day of
2018.

By:
City Clerk

EXHIBIT A

385



CANVASS AND STATEMENT OF RESULT OF ELECTION

Improvement Area No. 3 of

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

I hereby certify that on November 19, 2018 I canvassed the returns of the special
election held on November 19,  2018 in Improvement Area No.  3 of the City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 201. 8- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) and the total
number of ballots cast in said District and the total number of votes cast for and against the
measure are as follows and the totals as shown for and against the measure are full, true and
correct:

Qualified

Landowner Votes

Votes Cast YES NO

Improvement Area 1

BALLOT MEASURE:  Shall the measure pursuant to which ( i) the City of Lathrop
the" Cit') levy a special tax solely on lands within Improvement Area No. 3 of the City of

Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  3018- 1    ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Facilities) ( the " CFD"), in accordance with the rate and method for such improvement

area contained in the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and Five
Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain Public
Facilities in and for Such District (" Formation Resolution"), commencing in or after the
City's fiscal year 2018- 19, to pay for the public facilities specified in the Formation
Resolution and to pay the costs of the City in administering the CFD; shall the annual
appropriations limit of Improvement Area No.  3 be established in the amount of

16, 625, 000; and shall the City issue bonds (" bonds") for Improvement Area No. 3 in the

maximum aggregate principal amount of$ 16, 625, 000 with interest at a rate or rates not

to exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such bonds
on behalf of such Improvement Area, the proceeds of which bonds will be used to.

refinance the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds and
related expenses be adopted?

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND this day of
2018.

By:
City Clerk

EXHIBIT A

386



CANVASS AND STATEMENT OF RESULT OF ELECTION

Improvement Area No. 4 of

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

I hereby certify that on November 19, 2018 I canvassed the returns of the special
election held on November 19,  2018 in Improvement Area No.  4 of the City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) and the total
number of ballots cast in said District and the total number of votes cast for and against the
measure are as follows and the totals as shown for and against the measure are full, true and
correct:

Qualified

Landowner Votes

Vofes Cast YES NO

Improvement Area 1

BALLOT MEASURE:   Shall the measure pursuant to which ( i) the City of
Lathrop ( the" City") levy a special tax solely on lands within Improvement Area No. 4 of
the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities)  ( the  " CFD"),  in accordance with the rate and method for such

improvement area contained in the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District
and Five Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of
Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District (" Formation Resolution"), commencing

in or after the City's fiscal year 2018- 19, to pay for the public facilities specified in the
Formation Resolution and to pay the costs of the City in administering the CFD; shall
the annual appropriations limit of Improvement Area No. 4 be established in the amount
of$ 6, 565, 000; and shall the City issue bonds (" bonds") for Improvement Area No. 4 in

the maximum aggregate principal amount of$ 6, 565,000 with interest at a rate or rates

not to exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such
bonds on behalf of such Improvement Area, the proceeds of which bonds will be used

to refinance the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds and
related expenses be adopted?

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND this day of
2018.

By:
City Clerk

EXHIBIT A

387



CANVASS AND STATEMENT OF RESULT OF ELECTION

Improvement Area No. 5 of

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)   

I hereby certify that on November 19,  2018 I canvassed the returns of the special
election held on November 19,  2018 in Improvement Area No.  5 of the City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) and the total
number of ballots cast in said District and the total number of votes cast for and against the
measure are as follows and the totals as shown for and against the measure are full, true and
correct:  

Qualified

Landowner Votes

Votes Cast YES NO

Improvement Area 1

BALLOT MEASURE:  Shall the measure pursuant to which ( i) the City of Lathrop
the" City") levy a special tax solely on lands within Improvement Area No. 5 of the City of

Lathrop Community Facilities Distriot No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)
the " CFD"),  in accordance with the rate and method for such improvement area

contained in the Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and Five
Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain Public
Facilities in and for Such District (" Formation Resolution"), commencing in or after the
City' s fiscal year 2018- 19, to pay for the public facilities specified in the Formation
Resolution and to pay the costs of the City in administering the CFD; shall the annual
appropriations limit of Improvement Area No.  5 be established in the amount of

4, 970, 000; and shall the City issue bonds (" bonds") for Improvement Area No. 5 in the

maximum aggregate principal amount of$ 4, 970, 000 with interest at a rate or rates not to

exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such bonds on
behalf of such Improvement Area, the proceeds of which bonds will be used to refinance

the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds and related
expenses be adopted?

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND this day of
2018.

By:
City Clerk

EXHIBIT A

388



i
i Attachment 5

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY

FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1 ( CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC

PLAN FACILITIES)

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2018, pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities
Act of 1982, as amended, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with
Section 53311, of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the City Council ( the " Council") of

the City of Lathrop ( the " City") adopted a resolution entitled " Resolution of Intention to Form a

Community Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas Therein and to Levy a Special Tax in
the District to Finance Public Facilities" ( the " Resolution of Intention"), stating its intention to
form ( i) " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Facilities) ( the " CFD"), ( ii) " Improvement Area 1 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"  (" Improvement Area 1"),  ( iii)

Improvement Area 2 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 2"), ( iv) " Improvement Area 3 of the City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"

Improvement Area 3"), ( v) " Improvement Area 4 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 4"), and ( vi)

Improvement Area 5 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"  (" Improvement Area 5"  and together,  the  " Improvement

Areas");

WHEREAS, notice was published as required by the Act relative to the intention of the
Council to form the CFD and Improvement Areas, to provide for certain public facilities and to
incur bonded indebtedness for the CFD and Improvement Areas;

WHEREAS, the Council has held noticed public hearings as required by the Act relative
to ( i) the determination to proceed with the formation of the CFD and Improvement Areas and
the rate and method of apportionment of the special tax to be levied within each Improvement
Area to finance a portion of the costs of the public facilities and ( ii) the issuance of bonded
indebtedness and other debt for each Improvement Area;

WHEREAS, at said hearing all persons desiring to be heard on all matters pertaining to
the formation of the CFD and Improvement Areas and the levy of said special taxes were heard,
substantial evidence was presented and considered by the Council and a full and fair hearing
was held;

WHEREAS, subsequent to the hearing, the Council adopted its Resolution No.
entitled " Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas and to
Levy a Special Tax to Finance the Acquisition and Construction of Certain Public Facilities in
and for Such District" ( the " Resolution of Formation"), its Resolution Determining the Necessity
to Incur Bonded Indebtedness for a Community Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas
Therein" ( the " Resolution Determining Necessity") and its Resolution Calling Special Election for
a Community Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas Therein"  ( the  " Election

Resolution"), which resolutions defined the public facilities to be financed by the CFD ( the

389



Facilities"), established the CFD and each Improvement Area, authorized the levy of a special
tax within each Improvement Area, determined the necessity to incur bonded indebtedness in
each Improvement Area and called an election within each Improvement Area on the

propositions of incurring indebtedness, levying a special tax, and establishing an appropriations
limit within each Improvement Area, respectively; and

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2018 a special election was held with respect to each

Improvement Area at which the eligible landowner- electors of each Improvement Area approved

such propositions by the two- thirds vote required by the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

LATHROP, as follows:  .

Section 1.  By the passage of this Ordinance the Council hereby authorizes and levies
special taxes within Improvement Area 1,  Improvement Area 2,  Improvement Area 3,

Improvement Area 4, and Improvement Area 5 pursuant to the Act. With respect to each

Improvement Area, the City shall levy the special taxes at the rate and in accordance with the
formula  ( for each Improvement Area,  the respective  " Rate and Method")  set forth in the

Resolution of Formation, which Resolution of Formation is by this reference incorporated herein.       
The special taxes are hereby authorized to be levied commencing in fiscal year 2018- 19 and in
each fiscal year thereafter for the period provided in applicable Rate and Method,  as

contemplated by the Resolution of Formation and the Resolution of Necessity, and all costs of
administering the CFD.

Section 2.  The Finance Director of the City is hereby authorized and directed each
fiscal year to determine the specific special tax rate and amount to be levied for the next

ensuing fiscal year for each parcel of real property within each Improvement Area in the manner
and as provided in the Resolution of Formation.

Section 3.   Except as provided in the Rate and Method, properties or entities of the

State, federal or local. governments shall be exempt from any levy of the special taxes.  In no

event shall the special taxes be levied on any parcel within each Improvement Area in excess of
the maximum tax specified in the Resolution of Formation.

Section 4.  All of the collections of the special tax shall be used as provided for in the

Act and in the Resolution of Formation including, but not limited to, the payment of principal and
interest on bonds issued by the City for each Improvement Area  ( the  " Bonds"),  the

replenishment of the reserve fund for the Bonds, the payment of the costs of the Facilities, the

payment of the costs of the City in administering the CFD, and the costs of collecting and
administering the special tax.

Section 5.  The special . taxes shall be collected in the same manner as ordinary ad
valorem taxes are collected and shall have the same lien priority, and be subject to the same
penalties and the same procedure and sale in cases of delinquency as provided for ad valorem
taxes; provided, however, that special taxes may be directly billed by the City and/ or the Council
may provide for other appropriate methods of collection by resolutions of the Council.   In

addition, the provisions of Section 53356. 1 of the Act shall apply to delinquent special tax
payments.  If the special taxes are to be collected in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem
taxes are collected, the Finance Director of the City is hereby authorized and directed to provide
all necessary information to the auditor/ tax collector of the County of San Joaquin in order to
effect proper billing and collection of the special tax, or take such other appropriate action, so

2

390



that the special tax shall be included on the secured property tax roll of the County of San
Joaquin for fiscal year 2018- 19 and for each fiscal year thereafter until the Bonds are paid in full

or such longer period of time provided in the Rate and Method.

Section 6.  If for any reason any portion of this Ordinance is found to be invalid, or if the
special tax is found inapplicable to any particular parcel within an Improvement Area, by a court
of competent jurisdiction, the balance of this Ordinance and the application of the special tax to

the remaining parcels within such Improvement Area shall not be affected.

Section 7. The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk shall cause the same
to be published within fifteen ( 15) days after its passage at least once in a newspaper of general

circulation published and circulated in the City.

Section 8. This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days from the date of final passage.

3

391



The foregoing Ordinance was adopted this
19th day of November, 2018 by the following

vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete,- City Attorney

4

392



Attachment 6

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTFIORIZING THE ISSUi4NCE OF SPECIAL TAX BONDS

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF EACH IMPROVEMENT AREA OF A COMMUfdITY

FACILITIES DISTRICT, APPROVING AND DIRECTING THE EXECUTION OF

INDENTURES, i4PPROVING SALE OF SUCH BONDS, AND APPROVING
OTHER RELATED DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

WIiERE 4, on June 6, 2006, the City Council ( the " Council") of the City of Lathrop ( the
City") adopted Resolution No.  06- 2164, entitled " A Resolution of Formation of Community

Facilities District and to Levy Special Tax in Community Facilities District No. 2006- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure)" which established the City' s Community Facilities
District No. 2006- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure) ( the " 2006 CFD")

under the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended ( the " Act"), Chapter 2. 5 of

Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at Section 53311, of the California Government

Code,  and,  pursuant to a vote of the then qualified electors of the 2006 CFD, the City is
authorized to levy a Special Tax therein and issued its City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2006- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure) Special Tax Bonds,
Series 2006  ( the " 2006 Bonds") on behalf of the 2006 CFD for the purpose of financing
improvements of benefit to land in the 2006 CFD; and

WHEREAS, the land in a portion of the 2006 CFD has been acquired by Saybrook
CLSP,  LLC,  a Delaware limited liability company and Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC,  a

Delaware limited liability company ( together, the " Landowners"), and the Landowners have

requested that the special tax obligation of the 2006 CFD be deemed prepaid upon participation

by the Landowners in two new community facilities districts which the City has established for
the purpose of refinancing the 2006 Bonds, all pursuant to a " Restructuring Agreement for the
Community Facilities District No. 2006- 1" ( the " Restructuring Agreement") by and among the
City, the 2006 Trustee and the Landowners, which the parties thereto have determined is a
mutually beneficial resolution of the delinquency issues pertaining to the CFD and which the
parties expect will meet the needs of the current development plan of land within the two new

community facilities districts; and

WHEREAS,  pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement the Council has established
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD")

and Improvement Area No. 1, No. 2, No. 3, No. 4 and No. 5 thereof ( each an " Improvement

Area"), and authorized the levy of special taxes upon the land within the District and bonds
secured by said special taxes in each Improvement Area in the maximum principal amount of
not to exceed: $ 13, 630, 000 for Improvement Area 1, $ 8, 945, 000 for Improvement Area 2,

16, 625, 000 for Improvement Area 3, $ 6, 565, 000 for Improvement Area 4, and $ 4,970, 000 for

Improvement Area 5; and

WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to approve the issuance of bonds for each
respective Improvement Area designated ( i) " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.

393



2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area No. 1 2018 Special Tax

Bonds," ( ii) " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities)  Improvement Area No.  2 2018 Special Tax Bonds,"  ( iii)  " City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement
Area No. 3 2018 Special Tax Bonds," ( iv) " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area No. 4 2018 Special Tax

Bonds," and ( v) " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area No. 5 2018 Special Tax Bonds ( collectively, the
Bonds"); and

WFIEREAS, there has been submitted to the City Council a form of Bond Indenture to
be applicable to Bonds of each Improvement Area ( each, an " Indenture") providing for the
issuance of the respective Bonds of the City for the District and respective Improvement Area,
and the City Council, with the aid of City staff, has reviewed the form of Indenture and found it
to be in proper order, and now desires to approve the Indenture and the issuance of the Bonds

for the District and respective Improvement Area; and

UVHEREAS, the City proposes to sell the Bonds in a private placement pursuant to the
terms of the Restructuring Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it appears that each of said documents and instruments which are now

before this meeting is in appropriate form and is an appropriate document or instrument to be
executed and delivered for the purpose intended; and

WHEREAS, all conditions, things and acts required to exist, to have happened and to

have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds as contemplated by this
Resolution and the documents referred to herein exist,  have happened and have been

perFormed in due time, form and manner as required by the laws of the State of California,
including the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED as follows:

1. Pursuant to the Act, this Resolution and the Indentures, special tax bonds of the

City for the each Improvement Area designated as " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area No. [ ] 2018 Special

Tax Bonds " in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed: $ 13, 630, 000 for Improvement

Area 1, $ 8, 945, 000 for Improvement Area 2, $ 16, 625, 000 for Improvement Area 3, $ 6, 565, 000

for Improvement Area 4, and $ 4,970, 000 for Improvement Area 5 are hereby authorized to be
issued.  The Bonds shall be executed in the form set forth in and otherwise as provided in the

Indentures.

In furtherance of the issuance of the Bonds, the City Council hereby makes the following
findings and determinations:  ( i) it is prudent in the management and development of the City
and the CFD to issue the Bonds for the purpose of providing moneys for the refinancing of
facilities authorized to be financed by the CFD and the Improvement Areas, which facilities were
originally financed with the 2006 Bonds, ( ii) the Bonds and the CFD are in compliance with the

City's Goals and Policies for Mello Roos Financings, in light of the circumstances surrounding
the 2006 Bonds, and ( iii) the Council has not concluded that the value of the real property within
each Improvement Area subject to the special tax to pay debt service on the respective series
of Bonds is at least three times the proposed principal amount of such Bonds and the principal

2_

394



amount of bonds anticipated to be issued by the City's Community Facilities District No. 2018-2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Special Tax Bonds, however the Council finds that the

sale of the Bonds for each Improvement Area shall proceed notwithstanding the absence of

such determination for public policy reasons and due to special circumstances, all related to the
need to refinance the 2006 Bonds due to significant delinquencies in the payment of the special

taxes of the 2006 CFD and the 2006 Bonds and the opportunity to refinance the 2006 Bonds in
a manner which allows for development in the CFD to proceed.

2.       The City Council hereby approves the Indenture in the form presented to the City
Council at this meeting, which form is approved for Bonds applicable to each Improvement
Area.   The Finance Director, the City Manager, the City Attorney or such other person or
persons as either of them may designate ( each, an " Authorized Officer") are each hereby
authorized and directed to execute a separate Indenture for each Improvement Area, for and in

the name and on behalf of the City and the District, in such form, together with any additions
thereto or changes therein deemed necessary or advisable by the Authorized Officer executing
such document upon consultation with the City' s Bond Counsel.  The City Council hereby
authorizes the delivery and performance by the City of the Indentures.

3.       The City hereby covenants, for the benefit of the Bondowners, to commence and
diligently pursue to completion any foreclosure action regarding delinquent installments of any
amount levied as a special tax for the payment of interest or principal of the Bonds, said

foreclosure action to be commenced and pursued as more completely set forth in the
Indentures.

4.       The Bonds, when executed, shall be delivered to the Trustee appointed in the

Indenture for authentication. The Trustee is hereby requested and directed to authenticate each
series of the Bonds by executing the Trustee' s certificate of authentication and registration
appearing thereon, and to deliver the Bonds, when duly executed and authenticated, to the
purchaser in accordance with the Restructuring Agreement and written instructions executed on
behalf of the City by one or more of the Authorized Officers, which instructions such officers are
each hereby authorized, for and in the name and on behalf of the City, to execute and deliver to
the Trustee.   Such instructions shall provide for the delivery of the Bonds to the purchaser
thereof, upon receipt of consideration for the purchase price therefor.

5.       All actions heretofore taken by the officers and agents of the City with respect to
the establishment of the District and the sale and issuance of the Bonds are hereby approved,
confirmed and ratified, and the proper officers of the City are each hereby authorized and
directed to do any and all things and take any and all actions and execute any and all
certificates,  agreements and other documents,  which they,  or any of them,  may deem
necessary or advisable in order to consummate the lawful issuance and delivery of the Bonds in
accordance with this Resolution, and any certificate, agreement, and other document described
in the documents herein approved.  Any document herein approved and executed and delivered
by any one of the Authorized Officers shall be a valid and binding agreement of the City.

6.       This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

3-

395



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and adopted by
the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the 19t'' day of November, 2018, by
the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

4-

396



i
Attachment 7

Jones Hall Draft 11. 13. 18

BONDINDENTURE

Between

CITY OF LATHROP

and

UMB, National Association,

as Trustee

Dated as of December 1, 2018

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1

2018 SPECIAL TAX BONDS

397



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section1. 1.     Definitions .................................................................................................... 3

ARTICLE II

GENERAL AUTHORIZATION AND BOND TERMS

Section 2. 1.    Amount, Issuance, Purpose and Nature of Bonds...................................... 11

Section 2. 2.     Limited Obligation....................................................................................... 11

Section 2. 3.     Equality of Bonds and Pledge of Net Taxes................................................ 11

Section 2. 4.     Description of Bonds; Interest Rates........................................................... 12

Section 2. 5.     Place and Form of Payment....................................................................... 12

Section2. 6.     Form of Bonds............................................................................................ 13

Section 2. 7.     Execution and Authentication ..................................................................... 14

Section2. 8.     Bond Register............................................................................................. 14

Section 2. 9.     Registration of Exchange or Transfer......................................................... 14

Section 2. 10.   Mutilated, Lost, Destroyed or Stolen Bonds................................................ 15

Section 2. 11.   Validity of Bonds.......................................:................................................. 15

Section 2. 12.   Book- Entry Only System............................................................................. 15

ARTICLE III

CREATION OF FUNDS AND APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

Section 3. 1.    Creation of Funds; Application of Proceeds and Other Moneys................... 17

Section 3. 2.    Deposits to and Disbursements from Special Tax Fund............................... 18

Section 3. 3.   Administrative Expense Account of the Special Tax Fund........................... 18

Section 3. 4.    Interest Account and Principal Account of the Special Tax Fund................. 18

Section 3. 5.    Redemption Account of the Special Tax Fund............................................. 19

Section 3. 6.   Administrative Expense Reserve Fund........................................................ 22

Section3. 7.    Reserve Fund.............................................................................................. 19

Section3. 8.    Surplus Fund............................................................................................... 22

Section 3. 9.    Investments................................................................................................. 23

Section 3. 10.  Valuation and Disposition of Investments....................................:............... 24

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF BONDS

Section 4. 1.     Redemption of Bonds................................................................................. 25

Section 4. 2.    Selection of Bonds for Redemption ............................................................ 26

Section 4. 3.     Notice of Redemption................................................................................. 26

Section 4. 4.     Partial Redemption of Bonds...................................................................... 27

Section 4. 5.     Effect of Notice and Availability of Redemption Money............................... 27

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS AND WARRANTY

Section5. 1.    Warranty..................................................................................................... 28

Section5. 2.     Covenants.................................................................................................. 28

i

398



ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENTS TO INDENTURE

Section 6. 1.    Supplemental Indentures or Orders Not Requiring Bondowner Consent.... 32

Section 6. 2.    Supplemental Indentures or Orders Requiring Bondowner Consent........... 32

Section 6. 3.     Notation of Bonds; Delivery of Amended Bonds......................................... 33

ARTICLE VII

TRUSTEE

Section7. 1.    Trustee....................................................................................................... 34

Section 7. 2.     Removal of Trustee.................................................................................... 35

Section 7. 3.     Resignation of Trustee ............................................................................... 35

Section 7. 4.     Liability of Trustee...................................................................................... 35

Section 7. 5.     Merger or Consolidation ............................................................................. 37

ARTICLE VIII

EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES

Section 8. 1.     Events of Default........................................................................................ 38

Section 8. 2.     Remedies of Owners.................................................................................. 38

Section 8. 3.    Application of Revenues and Other Funds After Default............................. 39

Section 8. 4.     Power of Trustee to Control Proceedings................................................... 39.

Section 8. 5.    Appointment of Receivers........................................................................... 40

Section8. 6.     Non- Waiver................................................................................................ 40

Section 8. 7.     Limitations on Rights and Remedies of Owners ......................................... 40

Section 8. 8.    Termination of Proceedings........................................................................ 41

ARTICLE IX

DEFEASANCE; NO ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS

Section9. 1.     Defeasance................................................................................................ 42

Section 9. 2.     No Additional Indebtedness Except Refunding Bonds................................ 43

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10. 1.   Cancellation of Bonds................................................................................. 44

Section 10. 2.   Execution of Documents and Proof of Ownership....................................... 44

Section 10. 3.   Unclaimed Moneys..................................................................................... 44

Section 10. 4.   Provisions Constitute Contract.................................................................... 45

Section 10. 5.   Future Contracts......................................................................................... 45

Section 10. 6.   Further Assurances.................................................................................... 45

Section 10. 7.   Severability................................................................................................. 45

Section10. 8.   Notices....................................................................................................... 45

EXHIBIT A FORM OF 2018 SPECIAL TAX BOND A- 1

ii

399



BONDINDENTURE

THIS BOND INDENTURE  ( this  " Indenture")  is made and entered into as of

1, 2018, by and between the City of Lathrop, a municipal corporation and
general law city organized and existing under and by virtue of the Constitution and laws of the
State of California ( the " City"), for and on behalf of the City' s Community Facilities District No.
2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area No. 1 (" Improvement Area

No. 1"), and UMB, National Association ( the " Trustee"), and governs the terms of the City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)
Improvement Area No. 1 2018 Special Tax Bonds ( the" Bonds").

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on June 6, 2006, the City Council of the City adopted Resolution No. 06-
2164, entitled " A Resolution of Formation of Community Facilities District and to Levy Special
Tax in Community Facilities District No.  2006- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase I
Infrastructure)" which established the City' s Community Facilities District No. 2006- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Phase I Infrastructure) ( the " 2006 CFD") under the provisions of the Mello-

Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5, Part•1, Division 2, Title
5, of the Government Code of the State of Califomia ( the " Act"), and, pursuant to a vote of the

then qualified electors of the 2006 CFD, the City is authorized to levy and has levied special
taxes and incurred bonded indebtedness for the purpose of financing improvements of benefit to
land in the 2006 CFD; and

WHEREAS, in 2006 the City issued on behalf of the 2006 CFD its $ 50, 000, 000 principal
amount of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2006- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure) Special Tax Bonds Series 2006 ( the " 2006 Bonds") payable from

the special taxes levied on taxable property within the 2006 CFD; and

WHEREAS, due to the non- payment of special taxes of the 2006 CFD and default in

payment of the 2006 Bonds, two owners holding a large portion of the land within the 2006 CFD
have entered into a Restructuring Agreement dated as of August 13, 2018 with, among others,
the City (the " Restructuring Agreement") and has caused all holders of the 2006 Bonds who are

not affiliated with such owner to be paid in full; and

WHEREAS, the terms of the Restructuring Agreement provide that the City terminate
the special tax of the 2006 CFD and release the special tax lien on all parcels of land within the

2006 CFD and replace it with the special tax of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities), which includes Improvement Area No. 1

and its four other improvement areas ( together, the " CFD 2018- 1") and, within the same

boundary as CFD 2018- 1, the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018-2 ( Central
Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD" or " CFD 2018- 2"), each of which will encompass

certain parcels originally in the 2006 CFD, all pursuant to the terms of the Restructuring
Agreement, in order to meet the needs of the current development plan of land within CFD

2018- 1 and CFD 2018- 2; and

WHEREAS,  at the request of the owner of all the land in CFD 2018- 1,  the City
established CFD 2018- 1 in order to refinance costs of public infrastructure necessary or
incidental to such development and financed by the 2006 CFD, to facilitate the prepayment,
waiver and termination of all of the special tax on parcels within the 2006 CFD ( whether

1

400



delinquent or otherwise, and including all penalties and interest thereon),  certain of which

parcels are included in CFD 2018- 1;    

WHEREAS, the City Council formed CFD 2018- 1 under the provisions of the Act and the
City Council, as the legislative body with respect to CFD 2018- 1, is authorized under the Act to
levy special taxes to facilitate prepayment of the special taxes of the 2006 CFD and thereby
refinance the costs of facilities financed by the 2006 CFD and to authorize the issuance of up to

13, 630, 000 of bonds secured by special taxes in Improvement Area No. 1 under the Act; and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Act, on November 19, 2018, the City Council of
the City adopted its Resolution No. the " Resolution"), which resolution, among

other matters, authorized the issuance of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area No. 1 2018 Special Tax
Bonds the " Bonds") to provide moneys for the refinancing of a portion of the improvements
financed by the 2006 CFD and provided that said issuance would be in accordance with the Act
and this Agreement, and authorized the execution hereof;

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest and for the benefit of the City, CFD 2018- 1, the
persons responsible for the paymerit of special taxes and the Owners of the Bonds that the City
enter into this Indenture to provide for the issuance of the Bonds, the disbursement of proceeds

of the Bonds, the disposition of the special taxes securing the Bonds authorized to be issued
hereunder and the administration and payment of the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that all things necessary to cause the Bonds, when
authenticated by the City for Improvement Area No. 1 and issued as in the Act, the Resolution
and this Indenture provided to be legal, valid and binding and special obligations of the City for
Improvement Area No. 1 in accordance with their terms, and all things necessary to cause the
creation, authorization, execution and delivery of this Indenture and the creation, authorization,
execution and issuance of the Bonds, subject to the terms hereof, have in all respects been duly
authorized.

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to establish the terms and conditions upon and subject to

which the Bonds are to be issued, and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual

covenants contained herein and of the purchase and acceptance of the Bonds by the Owners
thereof, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the
City does hereby covenant and agree, for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds as follows:

2

401



ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 1. 1.  Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall
have the following meanings:

Account" means any account created pursuant to this Indenture.

AcY' means the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Sections
53311 et seq. of the California Govemment Code. 

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following: 

a) the expenses directly related to the administration of Improvement Area No.
1, including, but not limited to, the costs of computing the Special Taxes and preparing
the annual Special Tax collection schedules ( whether by the City or a designee thereof
or both); the costs of collecting the Special Taxes ( whether by the County, the City or
otherwise); the costs of remitting the Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs associated
with preparing Special Tax disclosure statements and responding to the public inquiries
regarding the Special Taxes; and the costs of the City, Improvement Area No. 1 or any
designee thereof related to an appeal of the Special Tax;

b) the costs of the Trustee ( including its legal counsel) in the discharge of the
duties of the Trustee pertaining to the Bonds required under this Indenture and any
Supplemental Indenture;

c) any amounts required to be rebated to the federal government; and

d) all other costs and expenses of the City ( including, but not limited to, an
allocable share of the salaries of the City staff directly related to the foregoing,  a
proportionate amount of City general administrative overhead related to the foregoing,
and amounts advanced by the City for any administrative purpose of Improvement Area
No. 1, including costs related to prepayments of Special Taxes, recordings related to
such prepayments and satisfaction of Special Taxes, amounts advanced to ensure

maintenance of tax exemption, and the costs of prosecuting foreclosure of delinquent
Special Taxes,  which amounts advanced are subject to reimbursement from other

sources, including proceeds of foreclosure) and the Trustee incurred in connection with
the discharge of their respective duties hereunder and in any way related to the
administration of Improvement Area No. 1 and all actual costs and expenses incurred in

connection with the administration of the Bonds,  including any costs related to any
dispute, litigation, settlement or defense of any matter related to Improvement Area No.
1.

Administrative Expenses Cap" means, as to Administrative Expenses paid from the levy
of Special Taxes for fiscal years 2018- 19 and 2019-20, $ 15, 000 each year; for subsequent fiscal

years, there is no cap.

Administrative Expense Reserve Fund"  means the fund by that name established
pursuant to Section 3. 6 hereof.

3

402



Administrative Expense Reserve Fund Improvement Area 1 AccounY'  means the

account by that name established in the Administrative Expense Reserve Fund established
pursuant to Section 3. 1 hereof.

Administrative Expense Reserve Fund Other Improvement Areas AccounY' means the

account by that name established in the Administrative Expense Reserve Fund established
pursuant to Section 3. 1 hereof.

Administrative Reserve Improvement Area 1 Requirement"  means the amount of

40, 000.

Administrative Reserve Requirement" means the amount of$ 200, 000.

Annual Debt Service" means the principal amount of any Outstanding Bonds payable in
a Bond Year either at maturity or pursuant to a Sinking Fund Payment and any interest payable
on any Outstanding Bonds in such Bond Year, if the Bonds are retired as scheduled.

Authorized Investments" means any of the following which at the time of investment
are legal investments under the laws of the State of California for the moneys proposed to be

invested therein ( the Trustee is entitled to rely upon the investment direction of the City as a
determined such investments are legal investments), but only to the extent that the same are
acquired at Fair Market Value:

a)  Federal Securities;

b)  any of the following direct or indirect obligations of the following
agencies of the United States of America: ( i) direct obligations of the Export-

Import Bank; ( ii) certificates of beneficial ownership issued by the Farmers Home
Administration;  ( iii)  participation certificates issued by the General Services
Administration; ( iv) mortgage- backed bonds or pass- through obligations issued

and guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association, the Federal
National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or

the Federal Housing Administration; ( v) project notes issued by the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development; and ( vi) public housing notes
and bonds guaranteed by the United States of America;

c)  interest-bearing demand or time deposits ( including certificates of
deposit) or deposit accounts in federal or state chartered savings and loan

associations or in federal or State of California banks ( including the Fiscal Agent
and its affiliates), provided that ( i) the unsecured short- term obligations of such

commercial bank or savings and loan association will be rated in the highest

short- term rating category by any Rating Agency or ( ii) such demand or time
deposits will be fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation;

d)  commercial paper rated at the time of purchase in the highest short-

term rating category by any Rating Agency, issued by corporations which are
organized and operating within the United States of America, and which matures
not more than 180 days following the date of investment therein;

4

403



e)  bankers acceptances, consisting of bills of exchange or time drafts
drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank whose short- term obligations are
rated in the highest short-term rating category by any Rating Agency or whose
long- term obligations are rated A or better by each such Rating Agency, which
mature not more than 270 days following the date of investment therein;

obligations the interest on which is excludable from gross income

pursuant to Section 103 of the Tax Code and which are either ( a) rated A or

better by any Rating Agency or ( b) fully secured as to the payment of principal
and interest by Federal Securities;

g)  obligations issued by any corporation organized and operating within
the United States of America having assets in excess of Five Hundred Million
Dollars ($ 500, 000, 000), which obligations are rated A or better by any Rating
Agency;

h)  money market funds ( including money market funds for which the
Fiscal Agent, its affiliates or subsidiaries provide investment advisory or other
management services) which invest in Federal Securities or which are rated in

the highest rating category by any Rating Agency;

i)   any investment agreement,   repurchase agreement or other

investment instrument which represents the general unsecured obligations of a

bank,  investment banking firm or other financial institution whose long- term
obligations are rated at the time of the delivery of the investment agreement,
repurchase agreement or other investment instrument A or better by any Rating
Agency;

j)   shares in a California common law trust established pursuant to

Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the Government Code of the State of Califomia

that invests exclusively in investments permitted by Section 53601 of Title 5,
Division 2, Chapter 4 of the Califomia Govemment Code, as it may be amended
California Asset Management Program);

k)  the Local Agency Investment Fund of the State, created pursuant to
Section 16429. 1 of the Califomia Government Code; and

I)       any other lawful investment for City funds.

Authorized Representative of the City" means the City Manager, the City Finance
Director, City Attorney or any other officer or employee authorized by the City Council of the City
or by an Authorized Representative of the City to undertake the action referenced in this
Indenture as required to be undertaken by an Authorized Representative of the City.

Bond Counsel" means Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, and its successors;

or any other attomey at law or firm of attorneys selected by the City, of nationally recognized
standing in matters pertaining to the federal tax exemption of interest on bonds issued by states
and political subdivisions, and duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of any state
of the United States of America.

5

404



Bond Register" means the books which the Trustee shall keep or cause to be kept on
which the registration and transfer of the Bonds shall be recorded.

Bondowner" or " Owner" means the person or persons in whose name or names any
Bond is registered.

Bonds" means the $      City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area No. 1 2018 Special Tax
Bonds.

Bond Year" means the twelve- month period commencing on September 2 of each year
and ending on September 1 of the following year, except that the first Bond Year for the Bonds
shall begin on the Delivery Date and end on the first September 1 which is not more than 12
months after the Delivery Date.

Business Day" means a day which is not a Saturday or Sunday or a day of the year on
which banks in New York, New York, Los Angeles, California, or the city where the Principal
Office of the Trustee is located, are not required or authorized to remain closed.

Certificate of an Authorized Representative" means a written certificate or warrant

request executed by an Authorized Representative of the City.

CFD 2018- 1" or "CFD" means City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities), including the improvement areas therein, established

pursuant to the Act and the Resolution of Formation.

CFD 2018-2" means City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018-2 ( Central
Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) established pursuant to the Act and a Resolution of Formation
for such district.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

Closing Date" means the date upon which there is a physical delivery of the Bonds in
exchange for the amount representing the purchase price of the Bonds by the first purchaser
of the Bonds from the City.

Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as in effect on the date of issuance of

the Bonds or ( except as otherwise referenced herein) as it may be amended to apply to
obligations issued on the Closing Date, together with applicable temporary and final regulations
promulgated, and applicable official guidance published, under the Code.

Delivery Date" means the date on which the Bonds are issued and delivered to the
initial purchasers thereof.

Depository"  means DTC or any other Securities Depository acting as Depository
pursuant to Section 2. 12.

Finance Director" means the official of the City, or such official' s designee, who acts in
the capacity as the chief financial officer of the City, including the controller or other financial
officer.

6

405



DTC" means the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors
and assigns.

Fair Market Value" means, with respect to any investment, the price at which a willing
buyer would purchase such investment from a willing seller in a bona fide,  arm' s length
transaction ( determined as of the date the contract to purchase or sell the investment becomes

binding) if the investment is traded on an established securities market ( within the meaning of
Section 1273 of the Code) and, otherwise, the term " Fair Market Value" means the acquisition

price in a bona fide arm' s length transaction ( as described above) if ( i) the investment is a

certificate of deposit that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations under the Code,

ii) the investment is an agreement with specifically negotiated withdrawal or reinvestment
provisions and a specifically negotiated interest rate ( for example, a guaranteed investment
contract,  a forward supply contract or other investment agreement)  that is acquired in

accordance with applicable regulations under the Code, ( iii) the investment is a United States

Treasury Security - State and Local Government Series that is acquired in accordance with

applicable regulations of the United States Bureau of Public Debt, or ( iv) any commingled
investment fund in which the City, the Authority and related parties do not own more than a ten
percent ( 10%) beneficial interest therein if the return paid by the fund is without regard to the
source of the investment.

Federal Securities" means any of the following:

a)      Cash ( insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation).

b)      Obligations of, or obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by,
the U. S. or any agency or instrumentality thereof, when such obligations are backed by
the full faith and credit of the U. S. including:

U. S. treasury obligations
All direct or fully guaranteed obligations
Farmers Home Administration

General Services Administration

Guaranteed Title XI financing
Govemment National Mortgage Association ( GNMA)

State and Local Govemment Series

Fiscal Year" means the period beginning on July 1 of each year and ending on the next
following June 30.

Gross Taxes" means the proceeds of the Special Taxes received by the City, including
any scheduled payments and any prepayments thereof, interest thereon and proceeds of the
redemption or sale of property sold as a result of foreclosure of the lien of the Special Taxes to
the amount of said lien and interest thereon.   " Gross Taxes" does not include any penalties
collected in connection with delinquent Special Taxes.

Independent Financial Consultant"  means a financial consultant or firm of such

consultants generally recognized to be well qualified in the financial consulting field, appointed
and paid by the City, who, or each of whom:

1)      is in fact independent and not under the domination of the City;

7

406



2)      does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, in the City; and

3)      is not connected with the City as a member, officer or employee of the
City, but who may be regularly retained to make annual or other reports to the City.

Information Services" means " EMMA" or the " Electronic Municipal Market Access"

system of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board; or, in accordance with then- current
guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission,  such other services providing

information with respect to called bonds as the City may designate in a Certificate of an
Authorized Representative delivered to the Trustee.

Indenture"  means this Bond Indenture,  together with any Supplemental Indenture
approved pursuant to Article 6 hereof.

Improvement Area" means each improvement area of CFD 2018- 1 as set forth in the

Resolution of Formation,  being Improvement Area No.   1,  Improvement Area No.  2,

Improvement Area No. 3, Improvement Area No. 4 and Improvement Area No. 5.

Improvement Area No. 1" means Improvement Area No. 1 of CFD 2018- 1 established

pursuant to the Act and the Resolution of Formation.

Interest Payment Date" means each March 1 and September 1, commencing March 1,
2019; provided, however, that, if any such day is not a Business Day, interest up to the Interest
Payment Date will be paid on the Business Day next preceding such date.

LLA" means Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

Moody' s" means Moody' s Investors Ser.vice, its successors and assigns.

Net Taxes" means Gross Taxes minus the amount set aside to pay Administrative
Expenses ( up to the Administrative Expenses Cap in any year in which the Administrative
Expenses Cap is applicable) and the amount needed, if any, to replenish the Administrative
Expense Reserve Fund Improvement Area 1 Account to the Administrative Expense Reserve

Fund Improvement Area 1 Requirement.

Nominee" shall mean ( a) initially, Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and ( b) any other
nominee of the Depository designated pursuant to Section 2. 12 hereof.

Ordinance" means any ordinance of the City levying the Special Taxes, including but
not limited to Ordinance No.    adopted on November 19, 2018.

Original Purchaser"  means Lathrop Acquisition,  LLC,  a Delaware limited liability
company or any if its affiliates or subsidiaries.

Other Improvement Areas" means Improvement Area No. 2, Improvement Area No. 3,

Improvement Area No. 4 and Improvement Area No. 5 of CFD 2018- 1.

Outstanding" or " Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds theretofore issued by the City,
except:

8

407



1)      Bonds theretofore cancelled or surrendered for cancellation in

accordance with Section 10. 1 hereof;

2)      Bonds for payment or redemption of which monies shall have been

theretofore deposited in trust ( whether upon or prior to the maturity or the redemption
date of such Bonds), provided that, if such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to the

maturity thereof, notice of such redemption shall have been given as provided in this
Indenture; and

3)      Bonds which have been surrendered to the Trustee for transfer or

exchange pursuant to Section 2. 9 hereof or for which a replacement has been issued

pursuant to Section 2. 10 hereof.

Participants" or " DTC Participants" means those for whom the Depository holds Bonds
as securities depository as described in Section 2. 12.

Person"  means natural persons,  firms,  corporations,  partnerships,  limited liability
companies, associations, trusts, public bodies and other entities.

Prepayments" means any amounts paid by the City to the Trustee and designated by
the City as a prepayment of Special Taxes for one or more parcels in Improvement Area No. 1
made in accordance with the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes for

Improvement Area No. 1 attached to the Resolution of Formation.

Principal Office of the Trustee" means the corporate trust office of the Trustee located in

Minneapolis, Minnesota, or such other office or offices as the Trustee may designate from time
to time, or the office of any successor Trustee where it principally conducts its business of
serving as trustee under indentures pu suant to which municipal or governmental obligations
are issued.

Record Date" means the fifteenth day of the month preceding an Interest Payment
Date, regardless of whether such day is a Business Day.

Reserve Fund" means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section 3. 1
hereof.

Reserve Requirement" means the amount of$

Resolution of Formation" means Resolution No.     adopted by the City Council
of the City on November 19, 2018, establishing CFD 2018- 1 for the purpose of providing for the
refinancing of certain public facilities in and for CFD 2018- 1.

Restructuring Agreement" means the Restructuring Agreement, dated as of August 13,
2018 and entered into by and between the City, Saybrook CLSP, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, LLA, Lathrop Acquisition LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and UMB,
National Association,  in its capacity as 2006 Trustee under the 2006 Indenture, and any
amendments thereto.

Saybrook Reimbursement Amount" means the amount of$ 40,000.

9

408



Securities Depositories" means The Depository Tr.ust Company, New York, New York;
and, in accordance with then current guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission,

such other addresses and/ or such other securities depositories as the City may designate in a
Certificate of an Authorized Representative delivered to the Trustee.       

Sinking Fund Payment" means the annual payment to be deposited in the Redemption
Account to redeem a portion of the Term Bonds in accordance with the schedule set forth in
Section 4. 1( c) hereof.

Special Tax Fund" means the fund by that name created and established pursuant to
Section 3. 1 hereof.

Special Taxes" means the taxes authorized to be levied by the City on property within
Improvement Area No. 1 in accordance with the Ordinance, the Resolution of Formation, the Act

and the voter approval obtained at the November 19, 2018 election in Improvement Area No. 1.

Standard & Poor' s" means Standard & Poor' s Ratings Group, a division of McGraw- Hill,
its successors and assigns.

Supplemental Indenture"   means any supplemental indenture amending or

supplementing this Indenture.

Surplus Fund" means the fund by that name created and established pursuant to
Section 3. 1 hereof.

Term Bonds" means the Bonds subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.

Trustee" means UMB, National Association, a national banking association organized
and existing under the laws of the United States of America, with a principal corporate trust
office in Minneapolis, Minnesota, and its successors or assigns, or any other bank or trust    .
company which may at any time be substituted in its place as provided in Sections 7.2 or 7.3
and any successor thereto.

2006 Indenture" means the Indenture, dated September 1, 2006, between the City and
the 2006 Trustee, as such was supplemented and amended subsequent to the initial execution

as so supplemented and amended).

2006 Trustee " means UMB, National Association, in its capacity as successor trustee
under the 2006 Indenture.

10

409



ARTICLE II

GENERAL AUTHORIZATION AND BOND TERMS

Section 2. 1.  Amount, Issuance, Purpose and Nature of Bonds.  Under and pursuant to

the Act,  the Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of Million Dollars

shall be issued for the purpose of implementing certain of the terms of
the Restructuring Agreement with respect to the issuance of bonds for Improvement Area No. 1
to refinance a portion of the financing provided by the 2006 CFD.

Section 2. 2.  Limited Obliaation.  Neither the faitf and credit nor the taxing power of the
City, the State of Califomia or any political subdivision thereof other than the City is pledged to
the payment of the Bonds.  Except for the Special Taxes, no other taxes are pledged to the

payment of the Bonds.   The Bonds are not general obligations of the City, but are limited
obligations of the City payable solely from certain amounts deposited by the City in the Special
Tax Fund ( exclusive of the Administrative Expense Account) and the Reserve Fund, as more

fully described herein.  The City' s limited obligation to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds from amounts in the Special Tax Fund ( exclusive of the Administrative

Expense Account) and the Reserve Fund is absolute and unconditional, free of deductions and

without any abatement, offset, recoupment, diminution or set- off whatsoever.  No Owner of the

Bonds may compel the exercise of the taxing power by the City ( except as pertains to the
Special Taxes) or the forfeiture of any of its property. The principal of and interest on the Bonds
and premium, if any, upon the redemption thereof, if any, are not a debt of the City, the State of
California or any of its political subdivisions within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory
limitation or restriction.   The Bonds are not a legal or equitable pledge,  charge,  lien,  or

encumbrance upon any of the City' s property, or upon any of its income, receipts or revenues,
except the Net Taxes and other amounts in the Special Tax Fund  ( exclusive of the

Administrative Expense Account) and the Reserve Fund which are, under the terms of this

Indenture and the Act, set aside for the payment of the Bonds and interest thereon and neither

the members of the City Council of the City nor any persons executing the Bonds are liable
personally on the Bonds by reason of their issuance.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Indenture, the City shall not be
required to advance any money derived from any source of income other than the Net Taxes for
the payment of the interest on or the principal of the Bonds, or for the perFormance of any
covenants contained herein.   The City may, however, advance funds for any such purpose,
provided that such funds are derived from a source legally available for such purpose.

Section 2. 3.  Equalitv of Bonds and Pledqe of Net Taxes.  Pursuant to the Act and this

Indenture, the Bonds shall be equally payable from the Net Taxes and other amounts in the
Special Tax Fund ( exclusive of the Administrative Expense Account) and the Reserve Fund,

without priority for number, date of the Bonds, date of sale, date of execution, or date of
delivery, and the payment of the interest on, principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds
upon the redemption thereof, shall be exclusively paid from the Net Taxes and other amounts in
the Special Tax Fund ( exclusive of the Administrative Expense Account) and the Reserve Fund,

which are hereby set aside for the payment of the Bonds.  Amounts in the Special Tax Fund

other than the Administrative Expense Account therein) and the Reserve Fund shall constitute

a trust fund held for the benefit of the Owners to be applied to the payment of the interest on

and principal of the Bonds and so long as any of the Bonds or interest thereon remain
Outstanding shall not be used for any other purpose, except as permitted by this Indenture or

11

410



any Supplemental Indenture.  Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Indenture to the
contrary, Net Taxes deposited in the Rebate Fund and the Surplus Fund shall no longer be
considered to be pledged to the Bonds, and none of the Rebate Fund, the Surplus Fund,

Administrative Expense Account of the Special Tax Fund or the Administrative Expense

Reserve Fund shall be construed as a trust fund held for the benefit of the Owners.

Nothing in this Indenture or any Supplemental Indenture shall preclude the redemption
prior to maturity of any Bonds subject to call and redemption and payment of said Bonds from
proceeds of refunding bonds issued .under the Act as the same now exists or as hereafter
amended, or under any other law of the State of California.

Section 2. 4.   Description of Bonds;  Interest Rates.   The Bonds shall be issued in

certificated form in denominations of$ 5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds of each
issue shall be numbered as desired by the Trustee.

The Bonds shall be designated  " CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES

DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1 ( CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES) IMPROVEMENT

AREA NO. 1 2018 SPECIAL TAX BONDS." The Bonds shall be dated as of their Delivery Date
and shall mature and be payable on September 1 in the years and in the aggregate principal

amounts and shall be subject to and shall bear interest at the rates set forth in the table below,

payable on each Interest Payment Date:

Maturity Date
September 11 Principal Interest Rate

Interest shall be payable on each Bond from the date established in accordance with

Section 2. 5 below on each Interest Payment Date thereafter until the principal sum of that Bond

has been paid; provided, however, that if at the maturity date of any Bond funds are available
for the payment or redemption thereof in full, in accordance with the terms of this Indenture,
such Bonds shall then cease to bear interest.  Interest due on the Bonds shall be calculated on

the basis of a 360- day year comprised of twelve 30-day months.

Section 2. 5.   Place and Form of Pavment.   The Bonds shall be payable both as to

principal and interest, and as to any premiums upon the redemption thereof, in lawful money of
the United States of America.   The principal of the Bonds and any premiums due upon the
redemption thereof shall be payable upon presentation and surrender thereof at the Principal
Office of the Trustee, or at the designated office of any successor Trustee.   Interest on any
Bond shall be payable from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication
of that Bond, unless ( i) such date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date in which event

interest shall be payable from such date of authentication, ( ii) the date of authentication is after

a Record Date but prior to the immediately succeeding Interest Payment Date, in which event
interest shall be payable from the Interest Payment Date immediately succeeding the date of

12

411



authentication, or ( iii) the date of authentication is prior to the close of business on the first

Record Date occurring after the issuance of such Bond, in which event interest shall be payable
from the dated date of such Bond; provided, however, that if at the time of authentication of

such Bond, interest is in default, interest on that Bond shall be payable from the last Interest

Payment Date to which the interest has 6een paid or made available for payment or, if no

interest has been paid or made available for payment on that Bond, interest on that Bond shall

be payable from its dated date.  Interest on any Bond. shall be paid to the person whose name
shall appear in the Bond Register as the Owner of such Bond as of the close of business on the

Record Date.  Such interest shall be paid by check of the Trustee mailed by first class mail,
postage prepaid, to such Bondowner at his or her address as it appears on the Bond Register.

In addition, upon a request in writing received 6y the Trustee on or before the applicable Record
Date from an Owner of$ 1, 000, 000 or more in principal amount of the Bonds, payment shall be

made on the Interest Payment Date by wire transfer in immediately available funds to an
account designated by such Owner; provided that so long as any Bonds are in book- entry form,
payments with respect to such Bonds shall be made by wire transfer or such other method
acceptable to the Trustee to the Depository.

In accordance with Sections 53344. 1 and 53356. 8 of the Act, the Bonds shall be

permitted to be tendered for special taxes and the interest and penalties thereon, in the manner

determined by the City.

Section 2. 6.  Form of Bonds. The Bonds and the certificate of authentication shall be

substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, which forms are hereby approved and
adopted as the forms of such Bonds and of the certificate of authentication.

The Bonds shall initially be issued in certificated form. Notwithstanding any provision in
this Indenture to the contrary, so long as all of the Bonds are owned by or on behalf of the
Original Purchaser, upon the request of the Original Purchaser, the City shall use reasonable
efforts to enable the Bonds to convert to book entry form as provided in Section 2. 12, with all
costs associated therewith payable by the Original Purchaser.

Until definitive Bonds shall be prepared, the City may cause to be executed and
delivered in lieu of such definitive Bonds temporary bonds in fully registered form, subject to the
same provisions, limitations and conditions as are applicable in the case of definitive Bonds,
except that they may be in any denominations authorized by the City.   Until exchanged for

definitive Bonds, any temporary bond shall be entitled and subject to the same benefits and
provisions of this Indenture as definitive Bonds.   If the City issues temporary Bonds, it shall
execute and furnish definitive Bonds, as applicable, without unnecessary delay and thereupon
any temporary Bond may be surrendered to the Trustee at its office, without expense to the
Owner, in exchange for a definitive Bond of the same issue, maturity, interest rate and principal
amount in any authorized denomination.    All temporary Bonds so surrendered shall be
cancelled by the Trustee and shall not be reissued.

As set forth in a certificate of the Original Purchaser delivered in connection with the

issuance of the Bonds, the Original Purchaser is purchasing the Bonds for its own account,
without a view to immediate distribution or sale thereof, however the Original Purchaser retains
the right at any time to dispose of the Bonds in accordance with the terms hereof.  In the event

that the Original Purchaser disposes of the Bonds, the Original Purchaser understands that it

has the sole responsibility for disclosure to subsequent investors purchasing from the Original
Purchaser for all matters relating to the Bonds and, to the extent applicable, for complying with
the provisions of any applicable federal and state securities laws and all rules and regulations

13

412



promulgated pursuant thereto, and the City has no obligations in that regard, nor shall any
disclosure obligations related to the Bonds or the CFD be implied or imposed upon the City
without its express written consent.

Section 2. 7.  Execution and Authentication.  The Bonds shall be signed on behalf of the

City by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and by the manual or facsimile signature
of the City Clerk, or any duly appointed deputy City Clerk, in their capacity as officers of the City.
In case any one or more of the officers who shall have signed or sealed any of the Bonds shall
cease to be such officer before the Bonds so signed and sealed have been authenticated and

delivered by the Trustee ( including new Bonds delivered pursuant to the provisions hereof with
reference to the transfer and exchange of Bonds or to lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated

Bonds), such Bonds shall nevertheless be valid and may be authenticated and delivered as
herein provided, and may be issued as if the person who signed or sealed such Bonds had not
ceased to hold such office.

Only the Bonds as shall bear thereon such certificate of authentication in the form set
forth in Exhibit A attached hereto shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Indenture,
and no Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose until such certificate of authentication
shall have been duly executed by the Trustee.

Section 2. 8.  Bond Reqister.  The Trustee will keep or cause to be kept, at its office,
sufficient books for the registration and transfer of the Bonds which shall upon reasonable prior

notice be open to inspection by the City and the Bondowners during all regular business hours,
and,  subject to the limitations set forth in Section 2. 9 below,  upon presentation for such

purpose, the Trustee shall, under such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, register or
transfer or cause to be transferred on said Bond Register, Bonds as herein provided.

The City and the Trustee may treat the Owner of any Bond whose name appears on the
Bond Register as the absolute Owner of that Bond for any and all purposes, and the City and
the Trustee shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  The City and the Trustee may
rely on the address of the Bondowner as it appears in the Bond Register for any and all
purposes.   It shall be the duty of the Bondowner to give written notice to the Trustee of any
change in the Bondowner' s address so that the Bond Register may be revised accordingly.

Section 2. 9.  Reqistration of Exchanqe or Transfer.  Subject to the limitations set forth in

the following paragraph, the registration of any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be
transferred upon the Bond Register by the person in whose name it is registered, in person or
by his or her duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of such Bond for cancellation at the office
of the Trustee, accompanied by delivery of written instrument of transfer in a form acceptable to
the Trustee and duly executed by the Bondowner or his or her duly authorized attorney.

Bonds may be exchanged at the office of the Trustee for a like aggregate principal
amount of Bonds for other authorized denominations of the same maturity and issue; however
for so long as the Bond is in certificated form, the Owner shall provide at least 15 days' notice
so as to permit the Issuer to execute such new Bond prior to authentication by the Trustee.  The
Trustee shall not collect from the Owner any charge for any new Bond issued upon any
exchange or transfer, but shall require the Bondowner requesting such exchange or transfer to
pay any tax or other govemmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or  _
transfer. Whenever any Bonds shall be surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange, the
City shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of the
same issue and maturity, for a like aggregate principal amount; provided that the Trustee shall

14

413



not be required to register transfers or make exchanges of( i) Bonds for a period of 15 days next

preceding any selection of the Bonds to be redeemed, or( ii) any Bonds chosen for redemption.

Section 2. 10.  Mutilated, Lost. Destroved or Stolen Bonds.  If any Bond shall become
mutilated, the City shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of
like tenor, date, issue and maturity in exchange and substitution for the Bond so mutilated, but
only upon surrender to the Trustee of the Bond so mutilated.   Every mutilated Bond so
surrendered to the Trustee shall be cancelled by the Trustee pursuant to Section 10. 1 hereof.  If
any Bond shall be lost, destroyed or stolen, evidence of such loss, destruction or theft may be
submitted to the Trustee and,  if such evidence is satisfactory to the Trustee and,  if any
indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee shall be given, the City shall execute and the Trustee shall
authenticate and deliver, a new Bond, as applicable, of like tenor, maturity and issue, numbered
and dated as the Trustee shall determine in lieu of and in substitution for the Bond so lost,

destroyed or stolen.   Any Bond issued in lieu of any Bond alleged to be mutilated,  ( ost,

destroyed or stolen, shall be equally and proportionately entitled to the benefits hereof with all
other Bonds issued hereunder.   The Trustee shall not treat both the original Bond and any
replacement Bond as being Outstanding for the purpose of determining the principal amount of  
Bonds which may be executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder or for the purpose of
determining , any percentage of Bonds Outstanding hereunder,  but both the original and

replacement Bond shall be treated as one and the same.  Notwithstanding any other provision
of this Section, in lieu of delivering a new Bond which has been mutilated, lost, destroyed or
stolen, and which has matured, the Trustee may make payment with respect to such Bonds

Section 2. 11.  Validitv of Bonds.  The validity of the authorization and issuance of the
Bonds shall not be affected in any way by any defect in any proceedings taken by the City for
Improvement Area No. 1, and the recital contained in the Bonds that the same are issued

pursuant to the Act and other applicable laws of the State shall be conclusive evidence of their

validity and of the regularity of their issuance.

Section 2. 12.  Book- Entrv Onlv Svstem. The Bonds shall not initially be issued in book-
entry form or through the facilities of DTC.  So long as the Bonds are held solely by or on
behalf of the Original Purchaser, the Original Purchaser may request that the Bonds become
DTC eligible and converted or reissued to book-entry form, in which case DTC shall act as the
Depository for the Bonds and the provisions of this Section 2. 12 shall be applicable.  In such

case, and per DTC requirements one Bond for each maturity of the Bonds shall be executed,
authenticated, and delivered as set forth herein as a separate fully registered certificate ( in
printed or typewritten form).  Upon execution, authentication, and delivery, the ownership of
the DTC eligible Bonds shall be registered in the Bond Register kept by the Trustee for the
Bonds in the name of Cede & Co, as nominee of DTC or such Nominee as DTC shall appoint

in writing.

The Authorized Representative of the City is hereby authorized to take any and all
actions as may be necessary and not inconsistent with this Indenture to qualify the Bonds for
the Depository' s book- entry system,  including the execution of the Depository' s required
representation letter.  The Trustee shall have no responsibility for making the Bonds " DTC   ,
eligible" or obtaining CUSIPs for the Bonds.  In the event the Bonds are converted to book-

entry only, the Trustee shall act only as a FRST Agent for such Bonds.

With respect to Bonds registered in the Bond Register in the name of the Nominee, the

Trustee shall not have any responsibility or obligation to any broker- dealer, bank, or other
financial institution for which DTC holds Bonds as Depository from time to time ( the " DTC
Participants") or to any person for which a DTC Participant acquires an interest in the Bonds

15

414



the " Beneficial Owners").  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the Trustee
shall not have any responsibility or obligation with respect to ( i) the accuracy of the records of
DTC, the Nominee, or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the
Bonds, ( ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant, any Beneficial Owner, or any other person,
other than DTC, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption or
mandatory tender, ( iii) the selection by the Depository of the beneficial interests in the Bonds to
be redeemed in the event the City elects to redeem the Bonds in pait, ( iv) the payment to any
DTC Participant, any Beneficial Owner, or any other person, other than DTC, of any amount       ,
with respect to the principal of or interest on the Bonds, or ( v). any consent given or other
action taken by the Depository as Owner of the Bonds.

The Trustee may treat as and deem DTC to be the absolute Owner of each Bond for
which DTC is acting as Depository for the purpose of payment of the principal of and interest
on such Bonds, for the purpose of giving notices of prepayment and other matters with respect
to such Bonds, for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Bonds, and for all
purposes whatsoever.  The Trustee shall pay all principal of and interest on the Bonds only to
the Owners as shown on the Bond Register, and all such payments shall be valid and effective

to fully satisfy and discharge all obligations with respect to the principal of and interest on the
Bonds to the extent of the sums or sums so paid.  

No person other than an Owne, as shown on the Bond Register, shall receive a

physical Bond.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that DTC
has determined to substitute a new Nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the

transfer provisions in Section 2. 9 hereof, references to " Cede & Co." in this Section 2. 12 shall

refer to such new Nominee of DTC.

DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds at
any time by giving written notice to the Trustee and the City during any time that the Bonds are
Outstanding, and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law.
The City may terminate the services of DTC with respect to the Bonds if it determines that DTC
is unable to discharge its responsibilities with respect to the Bonds or that continuation of the

system of book-entry transfers through DTC is not in the best interest of the Beneficial Owners,
and the City shall mail notice of such termination to the Trustee.

Upon the termination of the services of DTC as- provided in the previous paragraph,

and if no substitute Depository can be found which is willing and able to undertake such
functions upon reasonable or customary terms, or if the City determines that it is in the best
interest the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, the
Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Bond Register of the Trustee in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in whatever name or
name the Owners shall designate at that time, in accordance with Section 2. 9.

To the extent that the Beneficial Owners are designated as the transferee by the
Owners, in accordance with Section 2. 9, the Bonds will be delivered to such Beneficial Owners

as soon as practicable.

16

415



ARTICLE III

CREATION OF FUNDS AND APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

Section 3. 1. Creation of Funds: Application of Proceeds and Other Monevs.

a)      Creation of Funds.  There is hereby created and established and shall be
maintained by the Trustee the following funds and accounts:

1)      The Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1 Special Tax Fund  ( the

Special Tax Fund")  ( in which there shall be established and created an Interest

Account, a Principal Account, a Redemption Account and an Administrative Expense

Account);

2)      The Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 Improvement Area No. 1
Reserve Fund ( the " Reserve Fund");

3)      The Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1 Administrative Expense
Reserve Fund ( the " Administrative Expense Reserve Fund") ( in which there shall be

established and created an Administrative Expense Reserve Fund Improvement Area 1

Account and an Other Improvement Areas Account or each Other Improvement Area in

the CFD);

4)      The Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 Surplus Fund ( the " Surplus
Fund").

The amounts on deposit in the foregoing funds, accounts and subaccounts shall be held
by the Trustee and the Trustee shall invest and disburse the amounts in such funds, accounts
and subaccounts in accordance with the provisions of this Article 3 and shall disburse
investment earnings thereon in accordance with the provisions of Section 3. 9 hereof.

b)      Application of Funds Received on ClosinQ Date. On or before the Closing Date
the City shall cause to be deposited with the Trustee the amount of$    and the

Trustee shall forthwith set aside, pay over and deposit such proceeds on the Closing Date as
follows:

i)       [ Deposit in the Reserve Fund $     equaling the initial deposit
towards the Reserve Requirement;]

ii)      [ Deposit in the Administrative Expense Account of the Special Tax Fund
the amount of$     equaling the first year Administrative
Expenses amount];

iii)      Deposit in the Administrative Expense Reserve Fund $ 200, 000, with

40, 000 of such amount deposited into the Administrative Expense

Reserve Fund Improvement Area 1 Account and $ 160, 000 of such

amount deposited into the Other Improvement Areas Account

subaccounts created under Section 3. 6( a) for Improvement Areas 2- 5 of

the CFD;

17

416



iv)      Deposit in the Interest Account of the Special Tax Fund $

The Trustee may, in its discretion, establish a temporary fund or account in its books and
records to facilitate such transfers.

Section 3. 2.  Deposits to and Disbursements from Special Tax Fund.

a)      Except for the portion of any Prepayment to be deposited to the Redemption
Account as specified in a Certificate of an Authorized Representative of the City, the Trustee
shall, on each date on which the Special Taxes are received from the City ( pursuant to Section
5. 2( a)), deposit the Special Taxes in the Special Tax Fund to be held in trust for the Owners.
The Trustee shall transfer the Special Taxes on deposit in the Special Tax Fund on the dates

and in the amounts set forth in the following Sections of this Article III, in the following order of
priority, to:

1)      the Administrative Expense Account of the Special Tax Fund in an

amount not to exceed the Administrative Expenses Cap, if applicable for that year;

2)      the Interest Account of the Special Tax Fund;

3)      the Principal Account of the Special Tax Fund;
1

4)      the Redemption Account of the Special Tax Fund;

5)      the Administrative Expense Reserve Fund Improvement Area 1 Account,

to the extent amounts are needed therein to restore the balance therein to the

Administrative Reserve Improvement Area 1 Requirement;

6)      the Administrative Expense Reserve Fund Improvement Area 1 Account

in an amount not to exceed the Saybrook Reimbursement Amount not previously
funded;

7)      the Reserve Fund, in the amount needed, if any, to restore the Reserve
Fund to the Reserve Requirement; and

8)      the Surplus Fund.

Section 3. 3.  Administrative Exqense Account of the Special Tax Fund.  The Trustee

shall transfer from the Special Tax Fund and deposit in the Administrative Expense Account of

the Special Tax Fund on or before each September 1 and March 1 of each year an amount

equal to one- half of the annual Administrative Expenses amount, which annual amount shall be

specified by the City. to the Trustee and which amount shall not exceed the Administrative
Expenses Cap in any year the Administrative Expenses Cap is applicable.

Section 3. 4.   Interest Account and Princiqal Account of the Special Tax Fund.   The

principal of and interest due on the Bonds until maturity,  other than principal due upon
redemption, shall be paid by the Trustee from the Principal Account and the Interest Account of
the Special Tax Fund, respectively.  For the purpose of assuring that the payment of principal of
and interest on the Bonds will be made when due, after making the transfer required by Section
3. 3, at least five Business Days prior to each March 1 and September 1, the Trustee shall

transfer from the Special Tax Fund, first to the Interest Account and then to the Principal

18

417



Account, the amount required to pay interest on and principal of the Bonds on the immediately
succeeding March 1 or September 1; provided, however, that to the extent that deposits have
been made in the Interest Account or the Principal Account from the proceeds of the sale of an

issue of the Bonds or otherwise, the transfer from the Special Tax Fund need not be made to

the extent moneys are otherwise available.

Section 3. 5.  Redemption Account of the Special Tax Fund.

a)      With respect to each September 1 on which a Sinking Fund Payment is due,
after the deposits have been made to the Administrative Expense Account, the Interest Account

and the Principal Account of the Special Tax Fund as required by Sections 3.3 and 3.4 hereof,
the Trustee shall next transfer into the Redemption Account of the Special Tax Fund from the

Special Tax Fund the amount needed to make the balance in the Redemption Account five

Business Days prior to each September 1 equal to the Sinking Fund Payment due on any
Outstanding Bonds on such September 1.  Moneys so deposited in the Redemption Account

sh all be used and applied by the Trustee to call and redeem Term Bonds in accordance with the
Sinking Fund Payment schedule set forth in Section 4. 1( c) hereof.

b)      After making the deposits to the Administrative Expense Account, the Interest
Account and the Principal Account of the Special Tax Fund pursuant to Sections 3. 3 and 3. 4

above and to the Redemption Account for Sinking Fund Payments then due pursuant to
subparagraph ( a) of this Section, and in accordance with the City' s election to call Bonds for
optional redemption as set forth in Section 4. 1( a) hereof, the Trustee shall transfer from the

Special Tax Fund and deposit in the Redemption Account moneys available for the purpose and

sufficient to pay the principal and premiums, if any, payable on the Bonds called for optional
redemption;  provided,  however,  that amounts in the Special Tax Fund  ( other than the

Administrative Expense Account therein) may be applied to optionally redeem Bonds only if
immediately following such redemption the amount in the Reserve Fund will equal the Reserve
Requirement.

c)      Prepayments of Special Taxes deposited to the Redemption Account shall be

applied on the redemption date established pursuant to Section 4. 1( b) hereof for the use of such

Prepayments to the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be
redeemed with such Prepayments.

d)      Moneys set aside in the Redemption Account shall be used solely for the
purpose of redeeming Bonds and shall be applied on or after the redemption date to the
payment of principal of, premium, if any, on the Bonds to be redeemed upon presentation and
surrender of such Bonds and in the case of an optional redemption or an extraordinary
redemption from Prepayments to pay the interest thereon; provided, however, that in lieu or
partially in lieu of such call and redemption, moneys deposited in the Redemption Account,
other than Prepayments,  may be used to purchase Outstanding Bonds in the manner
hereinafter provided.  Purchases of Outstanding Bonds may be made by the City at public or
private sale as and when and at such prices as the City may in its discretion determine but only
at prices ( including brokerage or other expenses) not more than par plus accrued interest and
premium, if any.  Any accrued interest payable upon the purchase of Bonds may be paid from
the amount reserved in the Interest Account of the Special Tax Fund for the payment of interest

on the next following Interest Payment Date.

Section 3. 6. Administrative Expense Reserve Fund Accounts.

19

418



i

a)      Establishment of Accounts and Deposit Amounts. Moneys in the Administrative

Expense Reserve Fund Improvement Area 1 Account and Other Improvement Areas Account

shall be held in trust by the Trustee for the benefit of the City.

b)      ( i) Deqosits to the Improvement Area 1 Account. The Improvement Area 1

Account shall initially be funded in the amount of the Administrative Reserve Improvement
Area 1 Requirement as set forth in Section 3. 1( b)( iii); moneys in the Other Improvement Areas

Account shall initially be funded into a subaccount to be created for each of Improvement
Areas 2- 5 of the CFD, in the amount of $ 40, 000 per subaccount as set forth in Section

3. 1( b)( iii).

Pursuant to the Improvement Area No. 1 Rate and Method, the City shall levy the
Maximum Tax each year until the Saybrook Reimbursement Amount for Improvement Area

No. 1 has been paid in full and shall transfer to the Trustee all such amounts for deposit into
the Special Tax Fund in accordance with this Article III.

After making the deposits required to be made in the foregoing Section 3. 4( a) ( 1)-( 4) of

this Article III, as soon as practicable after each September 1, and in any event prior to each
September 15, the Trustee shall transfer from the Special Tax Fund to the Improvement Area

1 Account in the following order of priority, ( i) first, the amount, if any, needed to cause the
balance in the Improvement Area 1 Account to equal the Administrative Reserve Improvement

Area 1 Requirement,  and  ( ii) second,  as follows:  ( a) on or before March 1,  2019 and

September 1, 2019, the amount of$ 13, 750, and ( b) on or before March 1, 2020, September 1,

2020, $ 6,250, [[[ for FOR IA 5— it will be $ 8750 for each of March, 2019, September 2019,

March 2020 and September 2020 and then $ 2500 for March 1 and September 1, 2021]]].

ii) Deposits to the Other Improvement Areas Account. Deposits to the Other

Improvement Areas Account shall be as directed by the City in a Certificate of an Authorized
Representative of the City delivered to the Trustee, as needed to maintain the Administrative
Expense Reserve Fund in the amount of the Administrative Expense Reserve Fund

Requirement for each subaccount,  all in accordance with the rate and method of

apportionment applicable to and bond indentures governing bonds of the Other Improvement
Areas.

c)      Use of Fund. Moneys in the Administrative Expense Reserve Fund shall be

withdrawn by the Trustee as directed by the City in a Certificate of an Authorized
Representative of the City delivered to the Trustee, which withdrawal shall be for the purpose
of paying the following in the event that amounts levied for and on deposit in the Administrative
Expense Account are otherwise insufficient: ( i) the fees and expenses of any attorneys or
consultants employed by the City in connection with litigation involving CFD 2018- 1 ( including
all the Improvement Areas) and/ or CFD 2018- 2,  including, without limitation,  foreclosure

litigation, ( ii) the costs of publication of notices to owners of the Bonds and/ or bonds issued for

CFD 2018- 2, ( iii) any and all actual costs and expenses incurred by the City in connection with
a default arising under the Bonds or bonds issued for CFD 2018- 2, and ( iv) any litigation
arising from or relating to the sale of Bonds by the first Bondowner or an affiliate of the first
Bondowner to any unaffiliated third- party. The Certificate of an Authorized Representative of
the City delivered to the Trustee directing the draw on the Administrative Expense Reserve
Fund shall specify the amount to be drawn from the Improvement Area 1 Account and from the
Other Improvement Areas Account and the Trustee shall have no obligation to verify the use of
any such amounts drawn by the City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if on any September 15th
or March 15th the amount in the Improvement Area 1 Account exceeds the Administrative

20

419



Reserve Improvement Area 1 Requirement, such excess amount shall be withdrawn by the
Trustee ( unless the Trustee has been directed otherwise by the City) and paid to LLA as a
reimbursement of funds advanced to the Improvement Area 1 Account pursuant to the

Restructuring Agreement, subject to the following limitation: this disbursement shall terminate
when the cumulative reimbursement paid totals the Saybrook Reimbursement Amount.

d)      ( i) Reqlenishment of Draws on the Improvement Area 1 Account.  If at any time
the amount in the Improvement Area 1 Account is less than the Administrative Reserve

Improvement Area 1 Requirement, City shall cause the Special Tax to be levied from time to
time in the amount needed to cause the balance in the Improvement Area 1 Account to equal

the Administrative Reserve Improvement Area 1 Requirement.

ii) Replenishment of Draws on the Other Improvement Areas Account. The City shall
cause the Special Tax to be levied from time to time in the Other Improvement Areas in an

amount determined by the City appropriate to maintain the balance in the Other Improvement
Areas Account in an amount equal to the Other Improvement Areas Administrative Expense

Reserve Requirement and in accordance with the rate and method of apportionment

applicable to and any bond indentures goveming bonds of such Other Improvement Areas.

e)      Closinq of Fund. In the fiscal year prior to year of final maturity of the Bonds,
upon direction by the City to the Trustee all moneys in the Improvement Area 1 Account shall
be transferred to the Special Tax Fund and all moneys in the Other Improvement Areas

Account shall be transferred as directed by the City and in accordance with the bond
indentures governing bonds of such Other Improvement Areas.

Section 3.7. Reserve Fund.

a)      Establishment of Fund. After making the deposits required to be made in the
foregoing Section 3. 4( a) ( 1)-( 6) of this Article III, the Trustee shall transfer from the Special Tax

Fund to the Reserve Fund the remaining amount in the Special Tax Fund, but only to the
extent such deposit does not cause the balance in the Reserve Fund to exceed the Reserve

Requirement.

Moneys in the Reserve Fund shall be held in trust by the Trustee for fhe benefit of the
Owners of the Bonds as a reserve for the payment of principal of, and interest on, the Bonds

and shall be subject to a lien in favor of the Owners of the Bonds.

b)      Use of Fund.    Except as otherwise provided in this Section,  all amounts

deposited in the Reserve Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the
purpose of making transfers to the Special Tax Fund in the event of any deficiency within five
days prior to any Interest Payment Date of the amount required for payment of the principal of, 
and interest on, the Bonds on such Interest Payment Date.  Whenever transfer is made from

the Reserve Fund to the Special Tax Fund due to a deficiency in the Special Tax Fund, the
Trustee shall provide written notice thereof to the Finance Director.

Notwithstanding the foregoing use of the Reserve Fund for payment of the Bonds, in
the event moneys in the Administrative Expense Reserve Fund are insufficient for the costs

incurred or to be incurred to carry out the purposes for which such fund was established, the
City may, after receiving written consent of holders of at least 25% of the principal amount of

Bonds then outstanding, direct the Trustee to cause the transfer of all or any portion of the

21

420



amount in the Reserve Fund to the Administrative Expense Reserve Fund, whereupon such

transferred moneys shall be used in accordance with the authorized uses for such fund.

c)      Transfer of Excess of Reserve Reauirement.  Whenever, on the Business Day
prior to any Interest Payment Date, the amount in the Reserve Fund exceeds the then
applicable Reserve Requirement, the Trustee shall provide written notice to the Finance

Director of the amount of the excess and,  following any transfer required pursuant to
Section 3. 7(d) below, shall transfer an amount equal to the excess from the Reserve Fund to

the Special Tax Fund to be used for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds

in accordance with Section 3.4. In the event of a prepayment of Special Taxes, an Authorized

Representative of the City or person or entity administering the CFD shall provide notice to the
Trustee of the amount, if any, which shall be withdrawn from the Reserve Fund and transferred
to the Redemption Account and applied by the Trustee to the corresponding redemption of
Bonds.

d)      Transfer for Rebate Pumoses.  Investment earnings on amounts in the Reserve

Fund may be withdrawn from the Reserve Fund upon direction of the City for purposes of
making payment to the federal govemment to comply with Section 5. 2.(f).

e)      Transfer When Balance Exceeds Outstandinq Bonds. Whenever the balance in

the Reserve Fund exceeds the amount required to redeem or pay the Outstanding Bonds,
including interest accrued to the date of payment or redemption, and premium, if any, and after
making any transfer required under Section 3.7( d) above and upon receipt of a Certificate of
an Authorized Representative directing it to do so, the Trustee shall transfer the amount in the
Reserve Fund to the Special Tax Fund to be applied, on the next succeeding Interest Payment
Date to the payment and redemption, in accordance with Section 4. 1 as applicable, of all of the

Outstanding Bonds.  In the event that the amount so transferred from the Reserve Fund to the

Special Tax Fund exceeds the amount required to pay and redeem the Outstanding Bonds,
the balance in the Reserve Fund shall be transferred to the City, after payment of any amounts
due the Trustee hereunder, to be used for any lawful purpose of Improvement Area No. 1.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no amounts shall be transferred from the Reserve Fund
pursuant to this Section 3. 7( e) until after the calculation, pursuant to Section 5. 2( f)(iii), of any
amounts due to the federal government following payment of the Bonds and withdrawal of any
such amount under Section 3. 7( d) for purposes of making such payment to the federal
government, and payment of any fees and expenses due to the Trustee.

f)       Investment.  Moneys in the Reserve Fund shall be invested and deposited in
accordance with Section 3. 9.  Interest eamings and profits resulting from such investment and
deposit shall be retained in the Reserve Fund to be used and disbursed as provided in this
Section 3. 6.

Section 3. 8.   Surplus Fund.   After making the deposits required to be made in the

foregoing Sections of this Article III, as soon as practicable after each September 1, and in any
event prior to each September 15, the Trustee shall transfer all remaining amounts in the
Special Tax Fund to the Surplus Fund. 

Moneys deposited in the Surplus Fund will be transferred by the Trustee annually on or
before September 15th of each year, in the following order as follows:

22

421



i) to the Interest Account, the Principal Account or the Redemption Account of

the Special Tax Fund to pay the principal of,  including Sinking Fund Payments,
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when next due in the event the Trustee has
been notified that moneys to be available in the Special Tax Fund are reasonably

expected by the City to be insufficient therefor,

ii) to the Reserve Fund in order to replenish the Reserve Fund to the Reserve

Requirement,

iii) in the event the Trustee has been notified that moneys to be available in the

Administrative Expense Account of the Special Tax Fund and/ or the Administrative

Expense Reserve Fund are reasonably expected by the City to be insufficient to pay
expected Administrative Expenses,  to the Administrative Expense Account of the

Special Tax Fund in an amount as directed by the City,

iv) to the Interest Account of the Special Tax Fund to pay the interest on the
Bonds when next due.

Section 3. 9.  Investments.  Moneys held in any of the funds, account and subaccounts
under this Indenture shall be invested at the written direction of the City in accordance with the
limitations set forth below only in Authorized Investments which shall be deemed at all times to
be a part of such funds, accounts and subaccounts.  Any loss resulting from such Authorized
Investments shall be credited or charged to the fund, account or subaccount from which sucfi

investment was made, and any investment earnings on amounts deposited in the Special Tax
Fund and the Surplus Fund, and each account therein, shall be deposited in those respective

funds and accounts.

a)      Moneys in the Interest Account, the Principal Account, Redemption Account of

the Special Tax Fund shall be invested only in Authorized Investments which will by their terms
mature, or in the case of an investment agreement are available for withdrawal without penalty,
on such dates so as to ensure the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the
Bonds as the same become due.  Moneys in the Reserve Fund and Administrative Expense

Reserve Fund shall be invested only in Authorized Investments which will by their terms be
available for withdrawal without penalty in a timely manner to facilitate the uses for which the
fund is established.

b)      The Trustee shall not be responsible for investing any funds except in
accordance with written instructions from the City.

0

The Trustee shall sell, or present for redemption, any Authorized Investment whenever it
may be necessary to do so in order to provide moneys to meet any payment or transfer to such
Funds and Accounts or from such Funds and Accounts.  For the purpose of determining at any
given time the balance in any such Funds and Accounts, any such investments constituting a
part of such Funds and Accounts shall be valued at their cost.   In making any valuations
hereunder, the Trustee may utilize such computerized securities pricing services as may be
available to it,  including,  without limitation,  those available through its regular accounting
system, and conclusively rely thereon.   Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the
Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss from investments, sales or transfers undertaken in
accordance with the provisions of this Indenture.

23

422



The Trustee or an affiliate may act as principal or agent in the making or disposing of
any investment.   The Trustee may sell at the best market price obtainable, or present for
redemption, any Authorized Investment so purchased whenever it shall be necessary to provide
moneys to meet any required payment, transfer, withdrawal or disbursement from the fund or
account to which such Authorized Investment is credited, and, the Trustee shall not be liable or

responsible for any loss resulting from such investment.  For investment purposes, the Trustee

may commingle the funds and accounts established hereunder, but shall account for each
separately.

The City acknowledges that, to the extent regulations of the Comptroller of the Currency
or other applicable regulatory entity grant the City the right to receive brokerage confirmations of
security transactions as they occur, the City specifically waives receipt of such confirmations to
the extent permitted by law.   The Trustee will furnish the City periodic cash transaction
statements which include detail for all investment transactions made by the Trustee hereunder.

Section 3. 10. Valuation and Disposition of Investments.

a)      Except as otherwise provided in subsection  ( b)  of this Section,  the City
covenants that all investments of amounts deposited in any fund or account created by or
pursuant to this Indenture, or otherwise containing gross proceeds of the Bonds ( within the
meaning of section 148 of the Code), shall be acquired, disposed of, and valued ( by the City, as
of the date that valuation is required by this Indenture or the Code) at Fair Market Value.

b)      Investments in funds or accounts ( or portions thereofl that are subject to a yield
restriction under applicable provisions of the Code shall be valued by the Gity at their present
value (within the meaning of section 148 of the Code).

24

423



ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF BONDS

Section 4. 1.  Redemqtion of Bonds.

a)      Optional Redemption. 

The Bonds maturing on or after September 1, 2028 are subject to optional redemption
prior to maturity as a whole, or in part on a pro rata basis among maturities, on any Interest
Payment Date on or after September 1, 2027, from any available moneys of the City, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest
to the redemption date, without premium.

In the event the City elects to redeem Bonds as provided above, the City shall give
written notice to the Trustee of its election to so redeem, the redemption date and the principal

amount of the Bonds to be redeemed.  The notice to the Trustee shall be given at least 45 days

prior to the redemption date, or by such later date as is acceptable to the Trustee, in its sole
discretion.

The provisions of Section 3. 5( d) shall govern the City' s right to use moneys in the
Redemption Account to purchase Bonds rather than redeem Bonds.

b)      Extraordinarv Redemqtion from Prepavments.

The Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption as a whole, or in part on a pro rata
basis among maturities, on any Interest Payment Date, and shall be redeemed by the Trustee,
from Prepayments deposited to the Redemption Account pursuant to Section 3. 5 at the

following redemption prices,. expressed as a percentage of the principal amount to be

redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption date:

Redemption Date Redemption Price

March 1,  through March 1,       103%

September 1,  and March 1,     102

September 1,  and March 1,     101
September 1,  and thereafter 100

In the event of any Prepayment by the City, the City shall give written notice to the
Trustee of its election to so redeem, the redemption date and the principal amount of the Bonds

to be redeemed.   The notice to the Trustee shall be given at least 45 days prior to the

redemption date, or by such later date as is acceptable to the Trustee, in its sole discretion.

The provisions of Section 3. 5( d) shall govern the City's right to use moneys in the
Redemption Account to purchase Bonds rather than redeem Bonds.

c)      Mandatorv Sinkina Fund Redemption. The Term Bonds maturing September 1,
and September 1,  are subject to mandatory sinking payment redemption in part

on September 1,    and September 1,  respectively and on each September 1
thereafter to maturity, by lot, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount

25

424



thereof to be redeemed, without premium, in the aggregate respective principal amounts as set

forth in the following tables:

Term Bonds Maturing

Mandatory
Redemption Date Sinking Fund

September 1) Pavment

Term Bonds Maturing

Mandatory
Redemption Date Sinking Fund

September 11 Pavment

The amounts in the foregoing tables shall be reduced pro rata at the direction of the
City in a Certificate of an Authorized Representative, in order to maintain substantially level
debt service, as a result of any prior partial redemption of the Bonds pursuant to Section 4. 1( a)
or( b) above.

The provisions of Section 3.5(d) shall govern the City's right to use moneys in the
Redemption Account to purchase Bonds rather than redeem Bonds.      

Section 4. 2.   Selection of Bonds for Redemption.   If fewer than all of the Bonds

Outstanding are to be redeemed, the portion of any Bond of a denomination of more than
5, 000 to be redeemed shall be in the principal amount of$ 5, 000 or an integral multiple thereof.

In selecting portions of such Bonds for redemption, the Trustee shall treat such Bonds, as
applicable, as representing that number of Bonds of$ 5, 000 denominations which is obtained by
dividing the principal amount of such Bonds to be redeemed in part by$ 5, 000 and Bonds to be
redeemed shall be allocated on a pro rata basis among maturities.  The Trustee shall promptly
notify the City in writing of the Bonds,  or portions thereof,  selected for redemption.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the Bonds are book entry only, such redemption
procedure shall be subject to DTC' s operational procedures.

Section 4. 3.  Notice of Redemption.  The Trustee shall cause notice of any redemption
to be mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, at least thirty ( 30) days but not more than sixty
60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the respective registered Owners of any

Bonds designated for redemption, at their addresses appearing on the Bond Register in the

Principal Office of the Trustee; but such mailing shall not be a condition precedent to such
redemption and failure to mail or to receive any such notice, or any defect therein, shall not

26

425



affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of such Bonds.  The actual receipt by
the Owner of any Bond of notice of such redemption shall not be a condition precedent to
redemption, and neither the failure to receive nor any defect in such notice shall affect the
validity of the proceedings for the redemption of such Bonds, or the cessation of interest on the
redemption date.  A certificate by the Trustee that notice of such redemption has been given as
herein provided shall be conclusive as against all parties and the Owner shall not be entitled to

show that he or she failed to receive notice of such redemption.

Any such optional redemption notice may specify that redemption on the specified date
will be conditional and subject to receipt by the City of moneys sufficient to cause such optional
redemption and may be rescinded in the event insufficient moneys are available, and neither the
City nor the Trustee shall have any liability to the Owners or any other party as a result of its
failure to redeem the Bonds as a result of insufficient moneys.

Upon the payment of the redemption price of any Bonds being redeemed, each check or
other transfer of funds issued for such purpose shall to the extent applicable and practicable

bear the CUSIP number identifying,  if applicable, by issue and maturity, the Bonds being
redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer.

Section 4.4.  Partial Redemption of Bonds.  Upon surrender of any Bond to be redeemed
in part only, at the request of the Bondowner the City shall execute and the Trustee shall
authenticate and deliver to the Bondowner, at the expense of the City, a new Bond or Bonds of
authorized denominations equal in aggregate principal amount to the unredeemed portion of the

Bonds surrendered, with the same interest rate and the same maturity.

Section 4. 5.    Effect of Notice and Availabilitv of Redemption Monev.    Notice of

redemption having been duly given,  as provided in Section 4. 3 hereof,  and the amount

necessary for the redemption having been made available for that purpose and being available
therefor on the date fixed for such redemption:

a)      The Bonds, or portions thereof, designated for redemption shall, on the date fixed

for redemption, become due and payable at the redemption price thereof as provided in this

Indenture, anything in this Indenture or in the Bonds to the contrary notwithstanding;

b)      Upon presentation and surrender thereof at the office of the Trustee,  the
redemption price of such Bonds shall' be paid to the Owners thereof;

c)      As of the redemption date the Bonds, or portions thereof so designated for

redemption shall be deemed to be no longer Outstanding and such Bonds, or portions thereof,
shall cease to bear further interest; and

d)      As of the date fixed for redemption no Owner of any of the Bonds or portions
thereof so designated for redemption shall be entitled to any of the benefits of this Indenture or
any Supplemental Indenture, or to any other rights, except with respect to payment of the
redemption price and interest accrued to the redemption date from the amounts so made

available.   

27

426



ARTICLE V

COVENANTS AND WARRANTY

Section 5. 1.   Warrantv.   The City shall preserve and protect the security pledged
hereunder to the Bonds against all claims and demands of all persons.

Section 5. 2.    Covenants.    So long as any of the Bonds issued hereunder are
Outstanding and unpaid, the City makes the following covenants with the Bondowners under the
provisions of the Act and this Indenture ( to be performed by the City or its proper officers,
agents or employees), which covenants are necessary and desirable to secure the Bonds and
tend to make them more marketable; provided, however, that said covenants do not require the

City to expend any funds or moneys other than the Special Taxes and other amounts deposited
to the Special Tax Fund, Reserve Fund, Administrative Expense Account and Administrative

Expenses Reserve Fund.

a)      Punctual Pavment; Aqainst Encumbrances.   The City covenants that it will
receive all Special Taxes in trust for the Owners and will instruct the Finance Director to deposit

all Special Taxes with the Trustee upon receipt by the City, and the City shall have no beneficial
right or interest in the amounts so deposited except as provided by this Indenture.  All such

Special Taxes shall be disbursed, allocated and applied solely to the uses and purposes set
forth herein, and shall be accounted for separately and apart from all other money, funds,
accounts or other resources of the City.

The City covenants that it will duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal
of, premium, if any, and interest on every Bond issued hereunder on the date, at the place and
in the manner set forth in the Bonds and in accordance with this Indenture to the extent that Net

Taxes and other amounts pledged hereunder are available therefor, and that the payments into

the Funds and Accounts created hereunder will be made, all in strict conformity with the terms
of the Bonds, and this Indenture, and that it will faithfully observe and perform all of the
conditions, covenants and requirements of this Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures and

of the Bonds issued hereunder.

The City will not mortgage or otherwise encumber, pledge or place any charge upon any
of the Net Taxes except as provided in this Indenture, and will not issue any obligation or
security having a lien or charge upon the Net Taxes superior to or on a parity with the Bonds,
other than bonds issued to refund all or a portion of the Bonds.  Nothing herein shall prevent the
City from issuing or incurring indebtedness which is payable from a pledge of Net Taxes which
is subordinate in all respects to the pledge of Net Taxes to repay the Bonds.

b)      Levv of Special Tax. The City shall comply with all requirements of the Act so as
to assure the timely collection of Gross Taxes, including without limitation, the enforcement of
delinquent Special Taxes.

i)       Processing. On or within five ( 5) Business Days of each June 1, the

Trustee shall provide the Finance Director with a notice stating the amount then on
deposit in the Special Tax Fund and the other funds and accounts held by the Trustee
under the Indenture, whether or not amounts need to be deposited into the Reserve

Fund to increase the amounts on deposit therein to the Reserve Requirement, and

informing the City that the Special Taxes need to be levied under the Ordinance as

28

427



necessary to provide for the Special Tax Requirement ( as defined in clause ( iii) below).
The receipt of or failure to receive such notice by the Finance Director shall in no way
affect the obligations of the Finance Director under the following two paragraphs and the
Trustee shall not be liable for failure to provide such notice to the Finance Director.

Upon receipt of such notice, the Finance Director shall communicate with the County
Auditor to ascertain the relevant parcels on which the Special Taxes are to be levied,

taking into account any parcel splits or combinations during the preceding and then
current year.  

ii)      Levy. The Finance Director shall effect the levy of the Special Taxes each
Fiscal Year in accordance with the Ordinance by each August 1 that the Bonds are
Outstanding, or otherwise such that the computation of the levy is complete before the
final date on which Auditor will accept the transmission of the Special Tax amounts for

the parcels within Improvement Area No. 1 for inclusion on the next real property tax roll;
provided, that nothing herein shall prevent the Finance Director from hand- billing any
parcels in any Fiscal Year.  Upon the completion of the computation of the amounts of

the levy, the Finance Director shall prepare or cause to be prepared, and shall transmit
to the Auditor, such data as the Auditor requires to include the levy of the Special Taxes
on the next real property tax roll; provided, that nothing herein shall prevent the Finance
Director from hand- billing any parcels at any time for any Fiscal Year.

iii)      Computafion. The Finance Director shall cause to be fixed and levied the

amount of Special Taxes within Improvement Area No.  1 in an amount sufficient,

together with other amounts on deposit in the Special Tax Fund and available for such

purpose, to pay the " Special Tax Requirement" as defined in the Rate and Method of
Apportionment of Special Taxes then in effect for Improvement Area No. 1, taking into
account the balances in such funds and in the Special Tax Fund. The Special Taxes so

levied shall not exceed the authorized amounts as provided in the proceedings under the

Resolution of Formation.

iv)      Collection. The Special Taxes shall be payable and be collected in the

same manner and at the same time and in the same installment as the general tazes on

real property are payable, and have the same priority, become delinquent at the same
time and in the same proportionate amounts and bear the same proportionate penalties

and interest after delinquency as do the ad valorem taxes on real property.

c)      Commence Foreclosure Proceedinqs.  Under the Act,  the Finance Director

hereby, with and for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds, covenants that it will annually on or
before September 1 of each year review the public records of the County of San Joaquin
relating to the collection of the Special Tax in order to determine the amount of the Special Tax
collected in the prior Fiscal Year.  The Finance Director shall notify the City Attorney of any
delinquency on any taxable parcel in the CFD of which the Finance Director is aware, and the
City Attorney or a designee shall, not later than October 1, ( i) notify the owner of the parcel( s)
which are delinquent that proceedings for foreclosure of the parcel( s) shall commence if the

delinquency is not paid by December 1, and ( ii) if the One- Time Special Tax A described in the
Rate and Method of Apportionment for CFD 2018-2 has not previously been paid for any
delinquent parcel, notify the owner of the parcel( s) which are delinquent that if such delinquent
amount for CFD 2018- 1 is not paid by December 1, the levy of the One- Time Special Tax B
described in the Rate and Method of Apportionment for CFD 2018- 2 with respect such parcel( s)

is deemed to be levied as of such December 1 in such amounts determined in accordance with

the Rate and Method of Apportionments for CFD 2018- 2.

29

428



On or about December 15, if the delinquent Special Taxes for Improvement Area No. 1

and, if applicable, the then due One- Time Special Tax B described in the Rate and Method of

Apportionment for CFD 2018- 2 are not paid, the City Attorney shall commence, or cause to be
commenced, collection actions preparatory to the filing of a complaint for foreclosure, and, not
later than four months thereafter, cause to be commenced court proceedings for foreclosure.

The City Attorney is hereby authorized to employ special counsel to conduct any such
foreclosure proceedings, the cost of which shall be an expense of Improvement Area No. 1

and/ or CFD 2018- 2 in appropriate proportions as determined by the City Attomey.

d)      Pavment of Claims.  The City will pay and discharge any and all lawful claims for
labor, materials or supplies which, if unpaid, might become a lien or charge upon the Net Taxes

or other funds in the Special Tax Fund ( other than the Administrative Expense Account), or

which might impair the security of the Bonds then Outstanding; provided that nothing herein
contained shall require the City to make any such payments so long as the City in good faith
shall contest the validity of any such claims.

e)      Books and Accounts. The City will keep proper books of records and accounts of
CFD 2018- 1 and each Improvement Area therein, separate from all other records and accounts

of the City, in which complete and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the
levy of the Special Tax and the deposits to the Special Tax Fund.  Such books of records and

accounts shall at all times during business hours be subject to the inspection of the Trustee or
of the Owners of not less than 10% of the principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or
their representatives authorized in writing.

f)       Tax Covenants. The City covenants as follows:

i)       Private Activity Bond Limitation. The City shall assure that the proceeds
of the Bonds are not so used as to cause the Bonds to satisfy the private business tests
of section 141( b) of the Code or the private loan financing test of section 141( c) of the
Code.

ii)      Federal Guarantee Prohibition.   The City shall not take any action or
permit or suffer any action to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause any of
the Bonds to be " federally guaranteed" within the meaning of section 149( b) of the Code.

iii)       Rebate Requirement. The City shall take any and all actions necessary
to assure compliance with section 148( of the Code, relating to the rebate of excess
investment eamings, if any, to the federal govemment, to the extent that such section is
applicable to the Bonds.

iv)       No Arbitrage. The City shall not take, or permit or suffer to be taken by
the Trustee or otherwise, any action with respect to the proceeds of the Bonds which, if
such action had been reasonably expected to have been taken, or had been deliberately
and intentionally taken, on the date of issuance of the Bonds would have caused the
Bonds to be" arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of section 148 of the Code.

v)       Mainfenance of Tax-Exemption. The City shall take all actions necessary
to assure the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from the gross income of the Owners of

30

429



the Bonds to the same extent as such interest is permitted to be excluded from gross

income under the Code as in effect on the date of issuance of the Bonds.

g)      Continuina Disclosure. The Original Purchaser of the Bonds or an affiliate of such
owner is the owner of all the land in the CFD as of the date of issuance of the Bonds. The

Original Purchaser and the City have determined and agreed that no Official Statement or
Private Placement Memorandum will be prepared in connection with the purchase by the
Original Purchaser. The City shall not have any obligation to provide any disclosure to a
subsequent purchaser of the Bonds or to provide any continuing disclosure such as would be
required by Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2- 12 in connection with underwritten
bonds, or to provide any other form of disclosure- as customarily provided or otherwise required
to be provided to bondholders pursuant to any law or regulation applicable to bonds sold by an
underwriter, nor shall the City be required to evaluate or comment on any form of disclosure
provided to any subsequent purchaser of the Bonds from any owner of Bonds.

h)      State Reportina Requirements.   The following requirements shall apply to the
Bonds:

i)   Annual Reporting.    Not later than October 30 of each calendar year,

beginning with the October 30 first succeeding the date of the Bonds, and in each
calendar year thereafter until the October 30 following the final maturity of the Bonds, the
Finance Director shall cause the following information to be supplied to CDIAC: ( i) the

principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding; ( ii) the balance in the Reserve Fund; ( iii) the

amount of any capitalized interest funded from the proceeds of the Bonds and the
amount thereof used for paymenf of the Bonds;  ( iv)  the number of parcels in

Improvement Area No. 1 which are delinquent in the payment of Special Taxes, the

amount of each delinquency, the length of time delinquent and when foreclosure was
commenced for each delinquent parcel; ( v) that no new improvement fund moneys were

funded from the Bonds; and ( vi) the assessed value of all parcels in Improvement Area

No. 1 subject to the levy of the Special Taxes as shown in most recent equalized roll.
The annual reporting shall be made using such form or forms as may be prescribed by
CDIAC.

ii)  Other Reporting.  If at any time the Trustee fails to pay principal and interest
due on any scheduled payment date for the Bonds, or if funds are withdrawn from the
Reserve Fund to pay principal and interest on the Bonds, the Trustee shall notify the
Finance Director of such failure or withdrawal in writing.   The Finance Director shall

notify CDIAC and the Original Purchaser of the Bonds of such failure or withdrawal
within 10 days of such failure or withdrawal.

iii) Amendment. The reporting requirements of this clause ( h) shall be amended
from time to time, without action by the City or the Trustee, to reflect any amendments to
Section 53359. 5( b) or Section 53359. 5( c) of the Act.  The Finance Director shall provide

the Trustee with a copy of any such amendment.

iv)     No Liability.  None of the City and its officers, agents and employees, the
Finance Director or the Trustee shall be liable for any inadvertent error in reporting the
information required by this clause ( h).

31

430



ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENTS TO INDENTURE

Section 6. 1.   Supqlemental Indentures or Orders Not Reauirinq Bondowner Consent.

The City may from time to time, and at any time, without notice to or consent of any of the
Bondowners, adopt Supplemental Indentures for any of the following purposes:

a)      to cure any ambiguity, to correct or supplement any provisions herein which may
be inconsistent with any other provision herein, or to make any other provision with respect to
matters or questions arising under this Indenture or in any additional resolution or order,
provided that such action is not materially adverse to the interests of the Bondowners;

b)      to add to the covenants and agreements of and the limitations and the

restrictions upon the City contained in this Indenture, other covenants, agreements, limitations
and restrictions to be observed by the City which are not contrary to or inconsistent with this
Indenture as theretofore in effect or which further secure Bond payments;

c)      to modify, amend or supplement this Indenture in such manner as to permit the
qualification hereof under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or any similar federal
statute hereafter in effect, and to add such other terms, conditions and provisions as may be
permitted by said act or similar federal statute, and which shall not materially adversely affect
the interests of the Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding; or

d)      to modify, alter or amend the rate and method of apportionment of the Special
Taxes in any manner so long as such changes do not reduce the maximum Special Taxes that
may be levied in each year on property within Improvement Area No. 1 to an amount which is
less than 110% of the principal and interest due in each corresponding future Bond Year with
respect to the Bonds Outstanding as of the date of such amendment; or

e)      to modify, alter, amend or supplement this Indenture in any other respect which
is not materially adverse to the Bondowners; or

f) .     to make such additions, deletions or modifications as may be necessary or
desirable to assure exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the Bonds.

Section 6. 2.    Supplemental Indentures or Orders Requirinq Bondowner Consent.
Exclusive of the Supplemental Indentures described in Section 6. 1, the Owners of not less than

a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding shall have the right to
consent to and approve the adoption by the City of such Supplemental Indentures as shall be
deemed necessary or desirable by the City for the purpose of waiving, modifying, altering,
amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular; any of the terms or provisions contained in
this Indenture;  provided,  however,  that nothing herein shall permit,  or be construed as

permitting, ( a) an extension of the maturity date of the principal, or the payment date of interest
on, any Bond without the consent of the Owner of Bond( s) which may be adversely impacted,
b) a reduction in the principal amount of, or redemption premium on, any Bond or the rate of

interest thereon without the consent of the Owner of Bond( s) which may be adversely impacted,
c) a preference or priority of any Bond pver any other Bond without the consent of the Owner of

such Bond( s) agreeing to a lower or reduced preference of priority, or ( d) a reduction in the
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds the Owners of which are required to consent to such

Supplemental Indenture, without the consent of the Owners of all Bonds then Outstanding.

32

431



If at any time the City shall desire to adopt a Supplemental Indenture, which pursuant to
the terms of this Section shall require the consent of the Bondowners, the City shall so notify the
Trustee and shall deliver to the Trustee a copy of the proposed Supplemental Indenture.  The

Trustee shall, at the expense of the City, cause notice of the proposed Supplemental Indenture
to be mailed, by first class mail, postage prepaid, to all Bondowners at their addresses as they
appear in the Bond Register.   Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed
Supplemental Indenture and shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the office of the Trustee
for inspection by all Bondowners.  The failure of any Bondowners to receive such notice shall
not affect the validity of such Supplemental Indenture when consented to and approved by the
Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding as
required by this Section. Whenever at any time within one year after the date of the first mailing
of such notice, the Trustee shall receive an instrument or instruments purporting to be executed
by the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds
Outstanding,  which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed Supplemental

Indenture described in such notice, and shall specifically consent to and approve the adoption
thereof by the City substantially in the form of the copy referred to in such notice as on file with
the Trustee, such proposed Supplemental Indenture, when duly adopted by the City, shall
thereafter become a part of the proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds.   In determining
whether the Owners of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds have
consented to the adoption of any Supplemental Indenture, Bonds which are owned by the City
or by any person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under the direct or indirect
common control with the City, shall be disregarded and shall be treated as though they were not
Outstanding for the purpose of any such determination.

Upon the adoption of any Supplemental Indenture in accordance with Section 6. 1 or 6. 2
hereof, and the receipt of consent to any such Supplemental Indenture from the Owners of not
less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds in instances where
such consent is required pursuant to the provisions of this section and receipt by the Trustee of
an opinion of counsel that such amendments are permitted hereby this Indenture shall be, and
shall be deemed to be, modified and amended in accordance therewith, and the respective

rights, duties and obligations under this Indenture of the City and all Owners of Outstanding
Bonds shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced hereunder, subject in all respects

to such modifications and amendments.

Section 6. 3.  Notation of Bonds; Deliverv of Amended Bonds.  After the effective date of

any action taken as hereinabove provided, the City may determine that the Bonds may bear a
notation, by endorsement in form approved by the City, as to such action, and in that case upon
demand of the Owner of any Outstanding Bond at such effective date and presentation of his
Bond for the purpose at the office of the Trustee or at such additional offices as the Trustee may
select and designate for that purpose, a suitable notation as to' such action shall be made on

such Bonds.  If the City shall so determine, new Bonds so modified as, in the opinion of the City,
shall be necessary to conform to such action shall be prepared and executed, and in that case
upon demand of the Owner of any Outstanding Bond at such effective 'date such new Bonds
shall be exchanged at tlie office of the Trustee or at such additional offices as the Trustee may
select and designate for that purpose, without cost to each Owner of Outstanding Bonds, upon
surrender of such Outstanding Bonds.

ARTICLE VII

TRUSTEE

33

432



Section 7. 1.  Trustee.  UMB, National Association, shall be the Trustee for the Bonds

unless and until another Trustee is appointed by the City hereunder. The City may, at any time,
appoint a successor Trustee satisfying the requirements of Section 7. 2 below for the purpose of
receiving all money which the City is required to deposit with the Trustee hereunder and to
allocate, use and apply the same as provided in this Indenture.

The Trustee hereby accepts the trusts imposed upon it hereby, and agrees to perform
said trusts, but only upon and subject to the following express terms and conditions.   The

Trustee, prior to the occurrence of an event of default and after curing of all events of default
which may have occurred, undertakes to perform such duties and only such duties as are
specifically set forth herein, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this
Indenture against the Trustee.  In case an event of default has occurred ( which has not been

cured or waived), the Trustee may exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it hereby,
and shall use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise, as a prudent person would

exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of such person' s own affairs.

The Trustee is hereby authorized to and shall mail by first class mail, postage prepaid, or
wire transfer in accordance with Section 2. 5 above, interest payments to the Bondowners, to

select Bonds for redemption, and to maintain the Bond Register.   The Trustee is hereby
authorized to pay the principal of the Bonds and premium, if any, when the same are duly
presented to it for payment at maturity or on call and redemption, to provide for the registration
of transfer and exchange of Bonds presented to it for such purposes, to provide for the  .

cancellation of Bonds all as provided in this Indenture, and to provide for the authentication of

Bonds, and shall perform all other duties assigned to or imposed on it as provided in this

Indenture. The Trustee shall keep accurate records of all funds administered by it and all Bonds
paid, discharged and cancelled by it.

The Trustee is hereby authorized to redeem the Bonds when duly presented for
payment at maturity, or on redemption prior to maturity.  The Trustee shall cancel all Bonds

upon payment thereof in accordance with the provisions of Section 10. 1 hereof.

The City shall from time to time, `subject to any agreement between the City and the
Trustee then in force, pay to the Trustee, but only from funds of the CFD and not from any other
source,  compensation for its services,  reimburse the Trustee for all its advances and

expenditures, including, but not limited to, advances to and fees and expenses of independent
accountants and/ or counsel employed by it in the exercise and performance of its powers and
duties hereunder, and indemnify and save the Trustee, its officers, directors, employees and
agents, harmless against costs, claims, expenses and liabilities, including, without limitation,
fees and expenses of its attorneys,  not arising from its own gross negligence or willful
misconduct which it may incur in the exercise and performance of its powers and duties
hereunder. No provision in this Indenture will require the Trustee to risk or expend its own funds

or otherwise incur any financial liability hereunder unless indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it
against such liability or risk is provided to it.  The Trustee will not be liable for any action taken
or omitted to be taken by it in accordance with the direction of a majority ( or any lesser amount
that may direct the Trustee in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture) of the Owners of
the principal amount of Bonds Outstanding relating to the time, method and place of conducting
any proceeding or remedy available to the Trustee under this Indenture. The Trustee is granted
a first priority lien on the Administrative Expense Account of the Special Tax Fund held under
this Indenture for payment of obligations of the CFD to the Trustee under this paragraph. The

34

433



foregoing obligation of the City to indemnify the Trustee shall survive the removal or resignation
of the Trustee or the discharge of the Bonds.

Section 7. 2.  Removal of Trustee.  The City may at any time at its sole discretion or
shall, upon the direction from the Owners of a majority of the Outstanding Bonds, remove the
Trustee initially appointed, and any successor thereto, by delivering to the Trustee a written
notice of its decision to remove the Trustee and may appoint a successor or successors thereto;
provided that any such successor shall be a bank or trust company having a combined capital
exclusive of borrowed capital) and surplus of at least $ 75, 000, 000, and subject to supervision

or examination by federal or state authority.   If any bank or trust company appointed as a
successor publishes a report of condition at least annually,  pursuant to law or to the

requirements of any supervising or examining authority above referred to, then for the purposes
of this section the combined capital and surplus of such bank or trust company shall be deemed
to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition so

published.  Any removal of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee shall become
effective only upon acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee and notice being sent
by the successor Trustee to the Bondowners of the successor Trustee' s identity and address.

Section 7. 3.   Resiqnation of Trustee.  The Trustee may at any time resign by giving
written notice to the City and by giving to the Owners notice of such resignation, which notice
shall be mailed to the Owners at their addresses appearing in the Bond Register maintained by
the Trustee.   Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the City shall promptly appoint a
successor Trustee satisfying the criteria in Section 7. 2 above by an instrument in writing.  Any
resignation or removal of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee shall become

effective only upon accepfance of appointment by the successor Trustee.

Section 7.4.  Liabilitv of Trustee.  The recitals of fact and all promises, covenants and

agreements contained herein and in the Bonds shall be taken as statements,  promises,

covenants and agreements of the City, and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for the
correctness of the same and makes no representations as to the validity or sufficiency of this
Indenture,  the Bonds,  and shall incur no responsibility in respect thereof,  other than in
connection with its duties or obligations specifically set forth herein, in the Bonds, or in the
certificate of authentication assigned to or imposed upon the Trustee.  The Trustee shall be

under no responsibility or duty with respect to the issuance of the Bonds for value.  The Trustee
shall not be liable in connection with the performance of its duties hereunder, except for its own
negligence or willful misconduct. The permissive right of the Trustee to do things enumerated in

this Indenture shall not be construed as a duty and the Trustee shall not be answerable for other
than its negligence or willful misconduct.

The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon any notice, resolution, request, consent,
order,  certificate,  facsimile transmission,  electronic mail,  report,  Bond or other paper or

document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper
party or parties.  The Trustee may consult with counsel, who may be counsel to the City, with
regard to legal questions,  and the opinion of such counsel shall be full and complete

authorization and protection in respect of any action taken or suffered hereunder in good faith
and in accordance therewith.

The Trustee shall not be bound to recognize any person as the Owner of a Bond unless
and until such Bond is submitted for inspection, if required, and his title thereto satisfactorily
established, if disputed.

35

434



Whenever in the administration of its duties under this Indenture the Trustee shall deem

it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or suffering any
action hereunder, such matter ( unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically
prescribed) may, in the absence of bad faith on the part of the Trustee, be deemed to be
conclusively proved and established by a written certificate of the City, and such certificate shall
be full warrant to the Trustee for any action taken or suffered under the provisions of this
Indenture upon the faith thereof, but in its discretion the Trustee may, in lieu thereof, accept
other evidence of such matter or may require such additional evidence as to it may seem
reasonable.

The Trustee shall have no duty or obligation whatsoever to enforce the collection of
Special Taxes or other funds to be deposited with it hereunder, or as to the correctness of any
amounts received, but its liability shall be limited to the proper accounting for such funds as it
shall actually receive.  No provision in this Bond Indenture shall require the Trustee to expend or
risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of any of its duties
hereunder, or in the exercise of its rights or powers.

The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any default or event of default
until an officer at the Principal Office of the Trustee responsible for the administration of its

duties hereunder shall have actual knowledge thereof or the Trustee shall have received written

notice thereof at the Principal Office of the Trustee.

The Trustee shall not be considered in breach of or in default in its obligations hereunder
or progress in respect thereto in the event of enforced delay (" unavoidable delay") in the

performance of such obligations due to unforeseeable causes beyond its control and without its

fault or negligence, including, but not limited to, Acts of God or of the public enemy or terrorists,
acts of a government, acts of the other party, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions,
strikes, freight embargoes, earthquakes, explosion, mob violence, riot, inability to procure or
general sabotage or rationing of labor, equipment, facilities, sources of energy, material or
supplies in the open market, litigation or arbitration involving a party or others relating to zoning
or other governmental action or inaction pertaining to CFD 2018- 1,  malicious mischief,

condemnation, and unusually severe weather or delays of suppliers or subcontractors due to
such causes or any similar event and/ or occurrences beyond the control of the Trustee.

The Trustee agrees to accept and act upon facsimile transmission of written instructions
and/ or directions pursuant to this Indenture provided, however, that: ( a) subsequent to such

facsimile transmission of written instructions and/ or directions the Trustee shall forthwith receive

the originally executed instructions and/ or directions, ( b) such originally executed instructions
and/ or directions shall be signed by a person as may be designated and authorized to sign for
the party signing such instructions and/ or directions, and ( c) the Trustee shall have received a
current incumbency certificate containing the specimen signature of such designated person.

The Trustee shall not be responsible for the recording or re- recording, filing or re- filing of
this Indenture, or any supplement or amendment thereto, or the filing of financing statements, or
for the validity of the execution by the City of this Indenture, or of any supplemental indentures
or instruments of further assurance, or for the sufficiency of the security for the Bonds issued
hereunder or intended to be secured hereby, or for the value or title of the property herein
conveyed or otherwise as to the maintenance of the security hereof.

The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use or application by the City of any of the
Bonds or the proceeds thereof or for the use or application of any money paid over by the

36

435



Trustee in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture.   The Trustee may become the
owner of Bonds secured hereby with the same rights it would haye if not Trustee.

Before taking any action under this Indenture relating to an event of default or in
connection with its duties under this Indenture other than making payments of principal and
interest on the Bonds as they become due or causing an acceleration of the Bonds whenever
required by the Indenture, the Trustee may require that a satisfactory indemnity bond be
furnished for the reimbursement of all expenses to which it may be put and to protect it against
all liability, including, but not limited to, any liability arising directly or indirectly under any federal,
state or local statute, rule, law or ordinance related to the protection of the environment or

hazardous substances and except liability which is adjudicated to have resulted from its
negligence or willful default in connection with any action so taken.

Section 7. 5.   Meraer or Consolidation.  Any company into which the Trustee may be
merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any
merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company to which the
Trustee may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business, shall be the
successor to the Trustee without the execution or filing of any paper or further act, anything
herein to the contrary notwithstanding.

37

436



ARTICLE VIII

EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES

Section 8. 1.  Events of Default.  Any one or more of the following events shall constitute
an " event of default":

a)      Default in the due and punctual payment of the principal of or redemption

premium, if any, on any Bond when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at
maturity as therein expressed, by declaration or otherwise;

b)      Default in the due and punctual payment of the interest on any Bond when and
as the same shall become due and payable; or

c)      Except as described in ( a) or ( b), default shall be made by the City in the
observance of any of the agreements, conditions or covenants on its part contained in this
Indenture, the Bonds, and such default shall have continued for a period of 30 days after the

City shall have been given notice in writing of such default by the Trustee or the Owners of 25%
in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds.

The Trustee agrees to give notice to the Owners immediately upon the occurrence of an
event of default under ( a) or ( b) above and within 30 days of the Trustee' s knowledge of an

event of default under( c) above.

Section 8. 2.   Remedies of Owners.   Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the

Trustee may pursue any available remedy at law or in equity to enforce the payment of the
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Outstanding Bonds, and to enforce any rights of
the Trustee under or with respect to this Indenture, including:

a)      By mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in equity to enforce the
Trustee' s rights against the City and any of the members, officers and employees of the City,
and to compel the City or any such members, officers or employees to perform and carry out
their duties under the Act and their agreements with the Owners as provided in this Indenture;

b)      By suit in equity to enjoin any actions or things which are unlawful or violate the
rights of the Owners; or

c)      By a suit in equity to require the City and its members, officers and employees to
account as the trustee of an express trust.

If an event of default shall have occurred and be continuing and if requested so to do by
the Owners of at least twenty- five percent ( 25%) in aggregate principal amount Outstanding
Bonds if the Trustee and is indemnified to its satisfaction as set forth in Section 7. 4 hereof, the

Trustee shall be obligated to exercise such one or more of the rights and powers conferred by
this Article 8, as the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most expedient in the
interests of the Owners of the Bonds; provided, however, that the Trustee shall have the right to

decline to comply with any such request if the Trustee shall be advised by counsel ( who may be
its own counsel) that the action so requested may not lawfully be taken or the Trustee in good
faith shall determine that such action would be unjustly prejudicial to the owners of Bonds not

38

437



parties to such request.  Nothing herein shall require the Trustee to expend its own funds in the
exercise of remedies.

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee or to the Owners is
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy.  Every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall
be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing, at law or in
equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard
to any other remedy conferred by the Act or any other law.

Section 8. 3.   Application of Revenues and Other Funds After Default.   All amounts

received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken by the Trustee under the
provisions of this Indenture relating to the Bonds shall be applied by the Trustee in the following
order upon presentation of the several Bonds:

First, to the payment of the fees, costs and expenses of the Trustee in declaring such
event of default and in carrying out the provisions of this Article 8,  including reasonable
compensation to its agents, attorneys and counsel, and to the payment of all other outstanding
fees and expenses of the Trustee; and

Second, to the payment of the whole amount of interest on and principal of the Bonds

then due and unpaid, with interest on overdue installments of principal and interest to the extent

permitted by law at the net effective rate of interest then borne by the Outstanding Bonds;
provided, however, that in the event such amounts shall be insufficient to pay in full the full
amount of such interest and principal, then such amounts shall be applied in the following order
of priority: 

a)      first to the payment of all installments of interest on the Bonds then due and

unpaid on a pro rata basis based on the total amount then due and owing,

b)      second, to the payment of all installments of principal, including Sinking Fund
Payments, of the Bonds then due and unpaid on a pro rata basis based on the total amount

then due and owing, and

c)      third, to the payment of interest on overdue installments of principal and interest

on the Bonds on a pro rata basis based on the total amount then due and owing.

Section 8. 4.  Power of Trustee to Control Proceedinas.  In the event that the Trustee,

upon the happening of an event of default, shall have taken any action, by judicial proceedings
or otherwise, pursuant to its duties hereunder, whether upon its own discretion or upon the

request of the Owners of twenty- five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds

then Outstanding, it shall have full power, in the exercise of its discretion for the best interests of
the Owners of the Bonds,  with respect to the continuance,  discontinuance,  withdrawal,

compromise, settlement or other disposal of such action; provided, however, that the Trustee

shall not,  unless there no longer continues an event of default,  discontinue,  withdraw,

compromise or settle, or otherwise dispose of any litigation pending at law or in equity, if at the
time there has been filed with it a written request signed by the Owners of twenty- five percent
25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds hereunder opposing such

discontinuance, withdrawal, compromise, settlement or other such litigation.  Any suit, action or
proceeding which any Owner of Bonds shall have the right to bring to enforce any right or
remedy hereunder may be brought by the Trustee for the equal benefit and protection of all
Owners of Bonds similarly situated and the Trustee is hereby appointed ( and the successive

39

438



respective Owners of the Bonds issued hereunder, by taking and holding the same, shall be
conclusively deemed so to have appointed it) the true and lawful attorney in fact of the
respective Owners of the Bonds for the purposes of bringing any such suit, action or proceeding
and to do and perform any and all acts and things for and on behalf of the respective Owners of
the Bonds as a class or classes, as may be necessary or advisable in the opinion of the Trustee
as such attorney- in- fact.

Section 8. 5.  Appointment of Receivers.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default

hereunder, and upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial proceedings to
enforce the rights of the Trustee and of the Owners of the Bonds under this Indenture, the

Trustee shall be entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of the

Net Taxes and other amounts pledged hereunder, pending such proceedings, with such powers
as the court making such appointment shall confer.

Section 8. 6.   Non- Waiver.   Nothing in this Article 8 or in any other provision of this
Indenture, or in the Bonds, shall affect or impair the obligation of the City,.which is absolute and
unconditional, to pay the principal of,  premium,  if any,  and interest on the Bonds to the
respective Owners of the Bonds at the respective dates of maturity, as herein provided, out of
the Net Taxes and other moneys herein pledged for such payment. A waiver of any default or

breach of duty or contract by the Trustee or any Owners shall not affect any subsequent default
or breach of duty or contract, or impair any rights or remedies on any such subsequent default
or breach.  No delay or omission of the Trustee or any Owner of any of the Bonds to exercise
any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be
construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein; and every power and
remedy conferred upon the Trustee or the Owners by the Act or by this Article 8 may be
enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as shall be deemed expedient by the
Trustee or the Owners, as the case' may be. 

Section 8. 7.  Limitations on Riqhts and Remedies of Owners.  No Owner of any Bond
issued hereunder shall have the right to institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in
equity, for any remedy under or upon this Indenture,  unless  ( a) such Owner shall have

previously given to the Trustee written notice of the occurrence of an Event of Default; ( b) the

Owners of twenty- five percent ( 25°/ a) in aggregate principal amount of all the Bonds then

Outstanding shall have made written request upon the Trustee to exercise the powers
hereinbefore granted or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name; ( c) said

Owners shall have tendered to the Trustee indemnity reasonably acceptable to the Trustee
against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request; and

d) the Trustee shall have refused or omitted to comply with such request for a period of sixty
60) days after such written request shall have been received by, and said tender of indemnity

shall have been made to, the Trustee.

Such notification,  request, tender of indemnity and refusal or omission are hereby
declared, in every case, to be conditions precedent to the exercise by any Owner of Bonds of
any remedy hereunder; it being understood and intended that no one or more Owners of Bonds
shall have any right in any manner whatever by his or their action to enforce any right under this
Indenture, except in the manner herein provided, and that all proceedings at law or in equity to
enforce any provision of this Indenture shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner
herein provided and for the equal benefit of all Owners of the Outstanding Bonds.

The right of any Owner of any Bond to receive payment of the principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on such Bond as herein provided or to institute suit for the enforcement of any

40

439



such payment, shall not be impaired or affected without the written consent of such Owner,

notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section or any other provision of this Indenture.

Section 8. 8.  Termination of Proceedinqs.  In case the Trustee shall have proceeded to

enforce any right under this Indenture by the appointment of a receiver or otherwise, and such
proceedings shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been
determined adversely, then and in every such case, the City, the Trustee and the Owners shall
be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, with regard to the
property subject to this Indenture, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Trustee shall
continue as if no such proceedings had been taken.

41

440



ARTICLE IX

DEFEASANCE; NO ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS

Section 9. 1.   Defeasance.   If the City shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall
otherwise be paid, to the Owner of an Outstanding Bond the interest due thereon and the
principal thereof,  at the times and in the manner stipulated in this Indenture or any
Supplemental Indenture, then the Owner of such Bond shall cease to be entitled to the pledge

of Net Taxes,  and,  other than as set forth below,  all covenants,  agreements and other

obligations of the City to the Owner of such Bond under this Indenture shall thereupon cease,
terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied.  In the event of a defeasance of all

Outstanding Bonds pursuant to this Section, the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the City all
such instruments as may be desirable to evidence such discharge and satisfaction, and the
Trustee shall pay over or deliver to the City' s general fund all money or securities held by it
pursuant to this Indenture which are not required for the payment of the principal of, premium, if

any, and interest due on such Bonds.

Any Outstanding Bond shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning
expressed in the first paragraph of this Section if such Bond is paid in any one or more of the
following ways:

a)      by paying or causing to be paid the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on
such Bond, as and when the same become due and payable;

b)      by irrevocably depositing with the Trustee, at or before maturity, money which is
fully sufficient to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bond, as and when
the same shall become due and payable; or

c)      by depositing with the Trustee or another escrow bank appointed by the City,
Federal Securities, in such amount as will be sufficient, together with the interest to accrue
thereon, to pay and discharge the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bond, as
and when the same shall become due and payable;

then, at the election of the City, and notwithstanding that any Outstanding Bonds shall not have
been surrendered for payment,  all obligations of the City under this Indenture and any
Supplemental Indenture with respect to such Bond shall cease and terminate, except for the

obligation of the Trustee to pay or cause to be paid to the Owners of any such Bond not so
surrendered and paid, all sums due thereon.   Notice of such election shall be filed with the

Trustee not fewer than ten days prior to the proposed defeasance date, or such shorter period

of time as may be acceptable to the Trustee.  In connection with a defeasance under subsection

c) above, there shall be provided to the City a verification report from an independent nationally
recognized certified public accountant stating its opinion as to the sufficiency of the moneys or
securities deposited with the Trustee or the escrow bank to pay and discharge the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on all Outstanding Bonds to be defeased in accordance with this
Section, as and when the same shall become due and payable, and an opinion of Bond

Counsel ( which may rely upon the opinion of the certified public accountant) to the effect that
the Bonds being defeased have been legally defeased in accordance with this Indenture and
any applicable Supplemental Indenture.

42

441



Upon a defeasance, the Trustee, upon request of the City, shall release the rights of the
Owners of such Bonds which have been defeased under this Indenture and any Supplemental
Indenture and execute and deliver to the City all such instruments as may be desirable to
evidence such release, discharge and satisfaction.  In the case of a defeasance hereunder of all

Outstanding Bonds, the Trustee shall pay over or deliver to the City any funds held by the
Trustee at the time of a defeasance, which are not required for the purpose of paying and
discharging the principal of or interest on the Bonds when due.  The Trustee shall, at the written
direction of the City, mail, first class, postage prepaid, a notice to the Bondowners whose Bonds
have been defeased, in the form directed by the City, stating that the defeasance has occurred.

Defeasance shall be accomplished only with an irrevocable deposit in escrow of cash or
certain investments referred to in this section.  Further substitutions of securities in the escrow

are not permitted. The deposit in the escrow must be sufficient, without reinvestment, to pay all
principal and interest as scheduled on the Bonds, and premium, if any, to and including the date
of redemption. Any security used for defeasance must provide for the timely payment of
principal and interest and cannot be callable or prepayable prior to maturity or earlier

redemption of the rated debt ( excluding securities that do not have a fixed par value and/ or
whose terms do not promise a fixed dollar amount at maturity or call date).

Section 9. 2.  No Additional Indebtedness Except Refundinq Bonds.  The City shall not
issue bonds or additional debt payable from the Net Taxes and secured by a lien and charge
upon the accounts and funds pledged to the owners of the Outstanding Bonds equal to the lien
and charge securing the Outstanding Bonds, except bonds or other obligations may be issued
on a parity with the Bonds to refund all or any portion of the Bonds.

43

442



ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10. 1.  Cancellation of Bonds.  All Bonds surrendered to the Trustee for payment

upon maturity or for redemption shall be upon payment therefor, and any Bond purchased by
the City as authorized herein or otherwise received by the City or the CFD via a tender of Bonds
in satisfaction of the payment of Special Taxes as permitted by the Act and delivered to the
Trustee for such purpose shall be, cancelled forthwith and shall not be reissued.  The Trustee

shall destroy such Bonds, as provided by law, and, upon request of the City, furnish to the City a
certificate of such destruction.

Section 10. 2.  Execution of Documents and Proof of Ownership.  Any request, direction,
consent, revocation of consent, or other instrument in writing required or permitted by this
Indenture to be signed or executed by Bondowners may be in any number of concurrent
instruments of similar tenor may be signed or executed by such Owners in person or by their
attorneys appointed by an instrument in writing for that purpose, or by the bank, trust company
or other depository for such Bonds.  Proof of the execution of any such instrument, or of any
instrument appointing any such attorney, and of the ownership of Bonds shall be sufficient for
the purposes of this Indenture ( except as otherwise herein provided), if made in the following
manner:

a)      The fact and date of the execution by any Owner or his or her attorney of any
such instrument and of any instrument appointing any such attomey, may be proved by a
signature guarantee. of any bank or trust company located within the United States of America.
Where any such instrument is executed by an officer of a corporation or association or a
member of a partnership on behalf of such corporation,  association or partnership,  such
signature guarantee shall also constitute sufficient proof of his authority.

b)      As to any Bond, the person in whose name the same shall be registered in the
Bond Register shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes,

and payment of or on account of the principal of any such Bond, and the interest thereon, shall
be made only to or upon the order of the registered Owner thereof or his or her legal
representative.   All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the
liability upon such Bond and the interest thereon to the extent of the sum or sums to be paid.
Neither the City nor the Trustee shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Nothing contained in this Indenture shall be construed as limiting the Trustee or the City
to such proof, it being intended that the Trustee or the City may accept any other evidence of
the matters herein stated which the Trustee or the City may deem sufficient.  Any request or
consent of the Owner of any Bond shall bind every future Owner of the same Bond in respect of
anything done or suffered to be done by the Trustee or the City in pursuance of such request or
consent.

Section 10. 3.    Unclaimed Monevs.    Anything in this Indenture to the contrary
notwithstanding, any money held by the Trustee or the Trustee in trust for the payment and
discharge of any of the Outstanding Bonds which remain unclaimed for two years after the date
when such Outstanding Bonds have become due and payable, if such money was held by the
Trustee or the Trustee at such date, or for two years after the date of deposit of such money if
deposited with the Trustee after the date when such Outstanding Bonds become due and
payable, shall be repaid by the Trustee to the City, as its absolute property and free from trust,
and the Trustee shall thereupon be released and discharged with respect thereto and the

44

443



Owners shall look only to the City for the payment of such Outstanding Bonds; provided,
however, that, before being required to make any such payment to the City, the Trustee at the
written request of the City or the Trustee shall, at the expense of the City, cause to be mailed by
first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the registered Owners of such Outstanding Bonds at their
addresses as they appear on the Bond Register of the Trustee a notice that said money
remains unclaimed and that, after a date named in said notice, which date shall not be fewer

than 30 days after the date of the mailing of such notice, the balance of such money then
unclaimed will be retumed to the City.

Section 10. 4.   Provisions Constitute Contract.   The provisions of this Indenture shall

constitute a contract between the City and the Bondowners and the provisions hereof shall be
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

In case any suit, action or proceeding to enforce any right or exercise any remedy shall
be brought or taken and, should said suit, action or proceeding be abandoned, or be determined
adversely to the Bondowners or the Trustee, then the City, the Trustee and the Bondowners
shall be restored to their former positions,  rights and remedies as if such suit, action or

proceeding had not been brought or taken.

After the issuance and delivery of the Bonds this Indenture shall be irrepealable, but
shall be subject to modifications to the extent and in the manner provided in this Indenture, but

to no greater extent and in no other manner.

Section 10. 5.  Future Contracts.  Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to restrict or
prohibit the City from making contracts or creating bonded or other indebtedness payable from a
pledge of the Net Taxes, which is subordinate to the pledge hereunder, or which is payable from

the. general fund of the City or from taxes or any source other than the Net Taxes and other
amounts pledged hereunder.

Section 10. 6.  Further Assurances.  The City will adopt, make, execute and deliver any
and all such further resolutions, instruments and assurances as may be reasonably necessary
or proper to carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance of this Indenture, and for the
better assuring and confirming unto the Owners of the Bonds the rights and benefits provided in
this Indenture.

Section 10. 7.   Severabilitv.   If any covenant, agreement or provision, or any portion
thereof, contained in this Indenture, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, is
held to be unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Indenture and the

application of any such covenant, agreement or provision, or portion thereof, to other persons or
circumstances, shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected thereby, and this Indenture,
the Bonds issued pursuant hereto shall remain valid and the Bondowners shall retain all valid

rights and benefits accorded to them under the laws of the State of California.

Section 10. 8.  Notices.  Any notices required to be given to the City with respect to the
Bonds or this Indenture shall be mailed, first class, postage prepaid, or personally delivered to
the Finance Director of the City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, California 95330,
and all notices to the Trustee in its capacity as Trustee shall be mailed, first class, postage
prepaid, or personally delivered to the Trustee, at 1.

45

444



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CITY OF LATHROP, for and on behalf of its Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area No. 1,
has caused this Bond Indenture to be signed by an authorized officer and its City Clerk, and
UMB, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, in token of its acceptance of the trust created hereunder, has

caused this Bond Indenture to be signed in its.corporate name by its officers identified below, all
as of the day and year first above written.

CITY OF LATHROP, for and on behalf of its

Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1,
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

Improvement Area No. 1

By:
City Manager

ATTEST:

City Clerk

UMB,    NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,    as

Trustee

By:    1

Its:     Authorized Officer .

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   

David T. Fama, Bond Counsel

46

445



EXHIBIT A

FORM OF SPECIAL TAX BOND

R- 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1 2018 SPECIAL TAX BOND

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE:  DATED DATE:  CUSIP:

SEPTEMBER 1,

REGISTERED OWNER:

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:       AND NO/ 100 DOLLARS

THE CITY OF LATHROP ( the " City"), for and on behalf of City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area No. 1

Improvement Area No. 1"), FOR VALUE RECEIVED, hereby promises to pay, solely from
certain amounts held under the Indenture ( as hereinafter defined), to the Registered Owner

named above, or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date set forth above, unless redeemed
prior thereto as hereinafter provided, the Principal Amount set forth above, and to pay interest
on such Principal Amount from the Interest Payment Date  ( as hereinafter defined)  next

preceding the date of authentication hereof, unless ( i) the date of authentication is an Interest
Payment Date in which event interest shall be payable from such date of authentication, ( ii) the

date of authentication is after a Record Date ( as hereinafter defined) but prior to the immediately
succeeding Interest Payment Date, in which event interest shall be payable from the Interest
Payment Date immediately succeeding the date of authentication,  or  ( iii)  the date of

authentication is prior to the close of business on the first Record Date in which event interest

shall be payable from the Dated Date set forth above.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if at the
time of authentication of this Bond interest is in default, interest on this Bond shall be payable

from the last Interest Payment Date to which the interest has been paid or made available for

payment or, if no interest has been paid or made available for payment, interest on this Bond

shall be payable from the Dated Date set forth above.  Interest will be paid semiannually on
March 1 and September 1 ( each an " Interest Payment Date"), commencing March 1, 2019, at
the Interest Rate set forth above, until the Principal Amount hereof is paid or made available for
payment.

The principal of this Bond and premium, if any, is payable to the Registered Owner
hereof in lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this
Bond at the Principal Office of the Trustee ( as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture),

initially UMB, National Association ( the " Trustee").  Interest on this Bond shall be paid by check
of the Trustee mailed, by first class mail, postage prepaid, or in certain circumstances described
in the Indenture by wire transfer to an account within the United States of America, to the

A- 1

446



Registered Owner hereof as of the close of business on the fifteenth day of the month preceding
the month in which the Interest Payment Date occurs ( the " Record Date") at such Registered

Owner' s address as it appears on the Bond Register maintained by the Trustee.

This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of " City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement Area No. 1 2018
Special Tax Bonds" ( the " Bonds") issued in the aggregate principal amount of Million

Dollars ($    pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982,
as amended, being Sections 53311, et seq., of the Califomia Government Code ( the " Act") for

the purpose of refinancing outstanding special tax bonds of the City.  The issuance of the Bonds
and the terms and conditions thereof are provided for by a resolution adopted by the City
Council of the City acting in its capacity as the legislative body of Improvement Area No. 1 ( the
Legislative Body") on November 19, 2018 and a Bond Indenture executed in connection

therewith  ( the  " Indenture"),  and this reference incorporates the Indenture herein,  and by
acceptance hereof the Registered Owner of this Bond assents to said terms and conditions.

The Indenture is adopted under and this Bond is issued under, and both are to be construed in

accordance with, the laws of the State of Califomia.

Pursuant to the Act and the Indenture, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on
this Bond are payable solely from the Net Taxes, which means the portion of the annual special
taxes authorized under the Act to be levied and collected within Improvement Area No. 1 and

received by the City ( referred to as the Gross Taxes),  minus amounts set aside to pay
Administrative Expenses, and certain other amounts pledged to the repayment of the Bonds as

set forth in the Indenture. Any amounts for the payment hereof shall be limited to the Net Taxes
and other amounts deposited to the Special Tax Fund ( other than the Administrative Expense

Account therein) established under the Indenture, except to the extent that other provision for

paymenf has been made by the Legislative Body, as may be permitted by law.  The City has
covenanted for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds that under certain circumstances

described in the Indenture it will commence and diligently pursue to completion appropriate
foreclosure proceedings in the event of delinquencies of Special Tax installments levied for

payment of principal and interest on the Bonds.

The Bonds maturing on or after September 1, 2028 are subject to optional redemption
prior to maturity as a whole, or in part on a pro rata basis among maturities, on any Interest
Payment Date on or after September 1, 2027, from any available moneys of the City, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest

to the redemption date, without premium.

In the event the City elects to redeem Bonds as provided above, the City shall give
written notice to the Trustee of its election to so redeem, the redemption date and the principal

amount of the Bonds to be redeemed.  The notice to the Trustee shall be given at least 30 days

prior to the redemption date, or by such later date as is acceptable to the Trustee, in its sole
discretion.

The Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption as a whole, or in part on a pro rata
basis among maturities, on any Interest Payment Date, and shall be redeemed by the Trustee,
from Prepayments deposited to the Redemption Account at the following redemption prices,
expressed as a percentage of the principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued
interest to the redemption date:

A-2

447



Redemption Date Redemption Price

March 1,  through March 1,       103%

September 1,  and March 1,     102

September 1,  and March 1,     101

September 1,  and thereafter 100

The Term Bonds maturing September 1,    and September 1,  are subject

to mandatory sinking payment redemption in part on September 1,   and September 1,

respectively and on each September 1 thereafter to maturity, by lot, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, without premium, in the

aggregate respective principal amounts as set forth in the following tables:

Term Bonds Maturing

Mandatory
Redemption Date Sinking Fund

Seatember 11 Pavment

Term Bonds Maturing

Mandatory
Redemption Date Sinking Fund

ISeptember 1)     Pavment

The amounts in the foregoing tables shall be reduced pro rata at the direction of the
City in order to maintain substantially level debt senrice,  as a result of any prior partial
redemption of the Bonds.

In lieu of applying amounts in the Redemption Account to redeem Bonds, an Authorized
Representative of the City may instruct the Trustee to apply such amounts to purchase Bonds
as set forth in the Indenture.

Notice of redemption with respect to the Bonds to be redeemed shall be given to the

registered owners thereof not fewer than 30 days prior to the redemption date by first class mail,
postage prepaid, to the addresses set forth in the Bond Register.   Neither a failure of the

Registered Owner hereof to receive such notice nor any defect therein will affect the validity of
the proceedings for redemption.  All Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption will
cease to accrue interest on the specified redemption date;  provided that funds for the
redemption are on deposit with the Trustee on the redemption date.  Thereafter, the registered

A- 3

448



owners of such Bonds shall have no rights except to receive payment of the redemption price

upon the surrender of the Bonds.

This Bond shall be registered in the name of the Registered Owner hereof, as to both

principal and interest, and the City and the Trustee may treat the Registered Owner hereof as
the absolute owner for all purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Bonds are issuable only in fully registered form in the denomination of$ 5, 000 or any
integral multiple thereof and may be exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds
of other authorized denominations of the same issue and maturity, all as more fully set forth in
the Indenture.  This Bond is transferable by the Registered Owner hereof, in person or by his
attorney duly authorized in writing, at the Principal Office of the Trustee, but only in the manner,
subject to the limitations and upon payment of the charges provided in the Indenture, upon

surrender and cancellation of this Bond.   Upon such transfer,  a new registered Bond of

authorized denomination or denominations for the same aggregate principal amount of the

same issue and maturity_will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor.

The Trustee shall not be required to register transfers or make exchanges of ( i) any
Bonds for a period of 15 days next preceding any selection of the Bonds to be redeemed, or( ii)
any Bonds chosen for redemption.

The rights and obligations of the City and of the registered owners of the Bonds may be
amended at any time, and in certain cases without notice to or the consent of the registered
owners, to the extent and upon the terms provided in the Indenture.

THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY OR Improvement

Area No. 1 FOR WHICH THE CITY OR Improvement Area No. 1 IS OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR

PLEDGE, OR HAS LEVIED OR PLEDGED, GENERAL OR SPECIAL TAXES, OTHER THAN

THE SPECIAL TAXES REFERENCED HEREIN.  THE BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS

OF THE CITY PAYABLE FROM THE PORTION OF THE SPECIAL TAXES AND OTHER

AMOUNTS PLEDGED UNDER THE INDENTURE BUT ARE NOT A DEBT OF THE CITY, THE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY OF ITS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS WITHIN THE

MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION.

The original sa/e of this Bond was pursuant to a private placement and no Official

Sfatement or Private Placement Memorandum has been prepared in connecfion with this

Bond. The Cify has no obligation to provide any disclosure to a subsequent purchaser of
this Bond or to provide any continuing disclosure as required by Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 15c2- 12 in connection with underwritten bonds,  or to

provide any other form of disclosure as cusfomarily provided or otherwise required to be
provided fo bondholders pursuant fo any law or regulation, nor shall the City be reguired
to evaluate or comment on any form of disclosure provided by others to any subsequent
purchaser of this Bond.

This Bond shall not become valid or obligatory for any purpose until the certificate of
authentication and registration hereon endorsed shall have been dated and signed by the
Trustee.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND DECLARED that all acts; conditions and

things required by law to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of
this Bond do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as

required by law, and that the amount; of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the

A-4

449



City, does not exceed any debt limit prescribed by the laws or Constitution of the State of
California.

A- 5

450



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Lathrop, for and on behalf of its City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) Improvement
Area No. 1 has caused this Bond to be dated as of 2018, to be signed on

behalf of the City by the Finance Director by his facsimile signature and attested by the facsimile
signature of the City Clerk.

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

FORM OF TRUSTEE' S CERTIFICATE

OF AUTHENTICATION AND REGISTRATION]

This is one of the Bonds described in the within- defined Indenture.

Dated:    2018

UMB,    NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,    as

Trustee

By:
Its:     Authorized Officer

A- 6

451



FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

For value received the undersigned do( es) hereby sell, assign and transfer unto

whose tax identification number is

the within- mentioned registered Bond and hereby irrevocably constitute( s) and appoint( s)

attorney to transfer the same on the books of the Trustee with full power of substitution in the
premises.

Dated:

Signature guaranteed:

NOTE:   Signature( s) must be guaranteed by NOTE:  The signatures( s) on this Assignment

an eligible guarantor institution. must correspond with the name( s) as

written on the face of the within Bond

in every particular without alteration
or enlargement or any change

whatsoever.

A-7

452



i
Attachment 8

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT REPORT

On August 13, 2018, pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as
amended, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311, of the
California Government Code ( the " Act"), the City Council ( the " Council") of the City of Lathrop
the  " City")  adopted a resolution entitled  " Resolution of Intent to Establish a Community

Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas Therein and Levy a Special Tax" ( Resolution No.

18- 4438,  the  " Resolution of Intention"),  stating its intention to form  ( i)  " City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD"),

ii) " Improvement Area 1 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central
Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 1"), ( iii) " Improvement Area 2 of the City
of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"

Improvement Area 2"), ( iv) " Improvement Area 3 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"  (" Improvement Area 3"),  ( v)

Improvement Area 4 of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 4"), and ( vi) " Improvement Area 5 of the

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Facilities)" (" Improvement Area 5" and together, the " Improvement Areas"). In the Resolution of

Intention,  the Council expressly ordered the preparation of a written Community Facilities
District Report ( the " Report") in accordance with the Act.

The Resolution of Intention ordering the Report directs that the Report generally contain
the following:

1.       A brief description of the Facilities by type which will be required to adequately
meet the needs of the CFD; and

2.       An estimate of the fair and reasonable cost of the Facilities.

For particulars,  reference is made to the Resolution of Intention for the CFD,  as

previously approved and adopted by the Council.

DESCRIPTION OF FACILITIES.  The Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 ( the
Act") authorizes the creation of a Community Facilities District to finance public facilities, within

or of benefit to the land in the district and/or to pay a special tax obligation and thereby provide
redemption of indebtedness secured by such special tax.  The CFD is proposed to be formed to
pay the special tax obligation of the City' s Community Facilities D'istrict No. 2006- 1  ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure) ( the " 2006 CFD") and thereby provide redemption
of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2006- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Phase 1 Infrastructure) Special Tax Bonds, Series 2006 ( the "2006 Bonds").

The facilities authorized for the 2006 CFD and related costs that were financed in whole
or in part pursuant to the proceedings for the formation of the 2006 CFD included roadways and

related improvements, wastewater system facilities and related improvements, potable water

system facilities and related improvements,   drainage system facilities and related

improvements, recycled water system facilities and related improvements, park and open space

facilities,  habitat mitigation improvements and other public facilities necessary to meet

A- 1

453



development requirements. The facilities authorized for the 2006 CFD which were financed by
the 2006 Bonds have been completed.

In addition to the above purposes,  the CFD may pay or provide financing for all
administrative costs as allowed by the Act, including but not limited to costs associated with the
creation of the CFD, issuance of bonds, determination of the amount of taxes, collection of
taxes, payment of taxes, all " Administrative Expenses" as set forth in the Rate and Method of
Apportionment of Special Tax for each Improvement Area and all costs otherwise incurred to

carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD.

COST ESTIMATE: The cost estimate for the Facilities attributable to each Improvement
Area are as follows: $ 13, 630, 000 for Improvement Area 1, $ 8, 945,000 for Improvement Area 2,  

16, 625; 000 for Improvement Area 3, $ 6, 565, 000 for Improvement Area 4, and $ 4, 970, 000 for

Improvement Area 5.

Dated as of November 19, 2018.

By:
inan irector

A- 2

454



Attachment 9

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO FORM A
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT AND TO LEVY A SPECIAL TAX TO REFINANCE THE

COST OF CERTAIN PUBLIC FACILITIES IN AND FOR SUCH DISTRICT

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

WHEREAS, on August 13, 2018, pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of
1982, as amended, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311,
of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the City Council ( the " Council") of the City of
Lathrop ( the " City") adopted a resolution entitled " Resolution of Intent to Establish a Community
Facilities District and Levy a Special Tax" ( Resolution No. 18- 4440, the" Resolution of Intention"),

stating its intention to form ( i) " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central
Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the" CFD"); and

WHEREAS, the Resolution of Intention, incorporating a map of the proposed boundaries
of the CFD and stating the facilities to be provided ( the " Facilities" as set forth in the list attached
hereto as Exhibit A),  the cost of providing such facilities,  and the rate and method of

apportionment of the special tax to be levied within the CFD to pay the principal and interest on
bonds proposed to be issued for the CFD is on file with the City Clerk and the provisions fhereof
are incorporated herein by this reference as if fully set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, on this date, the Council held a noticed public hearing as required by the Act
and the Resolution of Intention relative to the proposed formation of the CFD;

WHEREAS, at the hearing all interested persons desiring to be heard on all matters
pertaining to the formation of the CFD, the facilities to be financed thereby and the levy of said
special tax were heard and a full and fair hearing was held; and

WHEREAS, at the hearing all interested persons desiring to be heard on all matters
pertaining to the formation of the CFD, the facilities to be provided therein, and the levy of said
special tax were heard and a full and fair hearing was held; and

WHEREAS, at the hearing evidence was presented to the Council on said matters before
it, including a report caused to be prepared by a designated official of the City ( the " Report") as

to the facilities to be provided through the CFD and the costs thereof, a copy of which is on file
with the City Clerk, and the Council at the conclusion of said hearing is fully advised in the
premises;

WHEREAS, the special tax proposed to be levied in the CFD to pay for the proposed
facilities to be provided therein, as set forth in the formula in Exhibits B hereto, has not been

eliminated by protest by fifty percent ( 50%) or more of the registered voters residing within the

territory of the CFD or the owners of one- half ( 1/ 2) or more of the area of land within any of the
CFD and not exempt from the special tax; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

1-

455



1.       Recitals Correct. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2. No Majority Protest.  The proposed special tax to be levied within the CFD has
not been precluded by majority protest pursuant to section 53324 of the Act.

3. Prior Proceedings Valid. All prior proceedings taken by the Council in connection
with the establishment of the CFD and the levy of the special tax have been duly considered and
are hereby found and determined to be valid and in conformity with the Act.

4.       Name of CFD. The community facilities district designated  " City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)" of the City is
hereby established pursuant to the Act.

5.       Boundary of CFD.. The boundaries of the CFD, are as set forth in the map of the
CFD heretofore recorded in the San Joaquin County Recorder' s Office October 31, 2018, at Book
6 of Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts at Page 140, as Document No. 2018-
120651.

6. Description of Facilities. The type of public facilities proposed to be financed by
the CFD and pursuant to the Act shall consist of those items listed as facilities ( the " Facilities") in

Exhibit A hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.

7.       Special Tax.

a. Except to the extent that funds are otherwise available to the CFD to pay
for the Facilities and/ or the principal and interest as it becomes due on bonds of the CFD
issued to finance the Facilities, a special tax( the" Special Tax") sufficient to pay the costs
thereof, secured by the recordation of a continuing lien against all non- exempt real
property in the CFD, is intended to be levied annually within the CFD, and collected in the
same manner as ordinary ad valorem taxes are collected and shall have the same lien
priority, and be subject to the same penalties ahd the same procedure and sale in cases
of delinquency as provided for ad valorem taxes; provided, however, that special taxes
may be directly billed by the City and/ or the Council may provide for other appropriate
methods of collection by resolution of the Council.  In addition, the provisions of Section

53356. 1 of the Act shall apply to delinquent special tax payments.

b.       The proposed rate and method of apportionment of the Special Tax among
the parcels of real property within the CFD, in sufficient detail to allow each landowner
within the proposed CFD to estimate the maximum amount such owner will have to pay,
are shown in Exhibit B attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.

c. In the case of any Special Tax to pay for the Facilities and to be levied
against any parcel used for private residential purposes: ( i) the maximum special tax shall

be specified as a dollar amount which shall be calculated and thereby established not later
than the date on which the parcel is first subject to the tax because of its use for private

residential purposes and which amount shall not be increased over time over two percent

per year; ( ii) the tax year after which no further Special Tax subject to this sentence shall

be levied or collected shall be as set forth in Exhibit B hereto;  and  ( iii) under no

circumstances will the Special Tax levied against any parcel subject to this sentence be
increased as a consequence of delinquency or default by the owner of any other parcel

2-

456



within the CFD by more than ten percent.  For the purposes hereof, a parcel is used for

private residential purposes" not later than the date on which an occupancy permit for
private residential use is issued.

8.       Increased Demands.  It is hereby found and determined that the Facilities are
necessary to meet increased demands placed upon local agencies as the result of development      
occurring in the CFD.

9. Responsible Official. The office of the Finance Director of the City of Lathrop,
City Hall, 390 Towne Center Drive, Lathrop, California 95330 ( 209- 941- 7329) is designated as
the office responsible for preparing annually a current roll of special tax levy obligations by
assessor's parcel number, estimating future special tax levies and for establishing procedures to
promptly respond to inquiries regarding estimates of future special tax levies.  The City may
contract with private consultants to provide this service in lieu of the Finance Director.

10.      Tax Lien. Upon recordation of a notice of special tax lien pursuant to Section

3114. 5 of the Streets and Highways Code of California, a continuing lien to secure each levy of
the special tax shall attach to all nonexempt real property in each respective Improvement Area
and this lien shall continue in force and effect until the special tax obligation is prepaid and

permanently satisfied and the lien canceled in accordance with law or until collection of the tax by
the City ceases.

11.     Appropriations Limit. In accordance with the Act, the annual appropriations limit,

as defined by subdivision ( h) of Section 8 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution, of the
CFD is hereby preliminarily established at $ 27,500, 000 and said appropriations limit shall be
submitted to the voters of the CFD as hereafter provided.   The proposition establishing said
annual appropriations limit shall become effective if approved by the qualified electors voting
thereon and shall be adjusted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act.

12.      Election. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the proposition of the levy of the
Special Tax and the proposition of the establishment of the appropriations limit specified above

shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the CFD at an election the time, place and conditions

of which election shall be as specified by a separate resolution of this Council.  The qualified

electors for the election to be held in these proceedings shall be the landowners owning land     
within the District.   The City Council will conduct the election by mailed ballot and hereby     '
designates the City Clerk as the official to conduct the mailed- ballot election.

13.      Callable Bonds and Tender. Any bonds issued in these proceedings shall be
callable in accordance with the provisions of the Act and as more specifically to be set forth in any
resolution providing for the form, execution and issuance of bonds. In accordance with Sections
53344. 1 and 53356. 8 of the Act, bonds issued for the CFD shall be permitted to be tendered for

special taxes and the interest and penalties thereon, as specified in the documents setting forth
the rights of the bondholders.

14.      Prior Proceedings Valid. This City Council now finds and determines that all
proceedings up to and including the adoption of this Resolution were and are valid and in
conformity with the requirements of the Act: This determination and finding is final and conclusive
in accordance with Government Code Section 53325. 1.

15.      Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

3-

457



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and adopted by the
City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the 19th day of November, 2018, by the
following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

EXHIBIT A- List of Authorized Facilities

EXHIBIT B— Rate and Method of Apportionment

4-

458



EXHIBIT A

List of Authorized Facilities

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT IVO. 2018- 2

Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facili#ies)

The Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)( the

CFD") shall include the following facilities:

The Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 ( the " Act") authorizes the creation of a

Community Facilities District to finance public facilities, within or of benefit to the land in the district
and/ or to pay a special tax obligation and thereby provide redemption of indebtedness secured
by such special tax.  The CFD is proposed to be formed to pay the special tax obligation of the
City's Community Facilities District No.  2006- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1
Infrastructure)( the" 2006 CFD") and thereby provide redemption of the City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District No. 2006- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure) Special Tax
Bonds, Series 2006 ( the" 2006 Bonds").

The facilities authorized for the 2006 CFD and related costs that were financed in whole

or in part pursuant to the proceedings for the formation of the 2006 CFD included roadways and

related improvements, wastewater system facilities and related improvements, potable water

system facilities and related improvements, drainage system facilities and related improvements,

recycled water system facilities and related improvements, park and open space facilities, habitat

mitigation improvements and other public facilities necessary to meet development requirements.

In addition to the above purposes,  the CFD may pay or provide financing for all
administrative costs as allowed by the Act, including but not limited to costs associated with the
creation of the CFD, issuance of bonds, determination of the amount of taxes, collection of taxes,

payment of taxes,  all  " Administrative Expenses"  as set forth in the Rate and Method of

Apportionment of Special Tax for the CFD and all costs otherwise incurred to carry out the
authorized purposes of the CFD.

459



EXHIBIT 

Rate and Method of pportionment of Special Tax

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 2

Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

ATTACH RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

FOR THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT]

460



CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 2

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAXES

Special Taxes applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in the City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) shall be levied and collected
according to the tax liability determined by the City or its designee through the application of the
appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Property, as described below. All of the property in CFD
No. 2018- 2, unless exempted by law or by the provisions of Section F below, shall be taxed for
the purposes, to the extent, and in the manner herein provided, including properly subsequently
annexed to CFD No. 2018- 2 unless a separate Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax

is adopted for the annexation area.

A.      DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

Acre" or " Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor' s Parcel as shown on an Assessor' s

Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor' s Parcel Map, the land area shown on
the applicable Final Map or other parcel map recorded at the County Recorder' s Office.

Act" means the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5,
commencing with Section 53311), Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following: the fees and expenses of any
fiscal agent or trustee ( including any fees or expenses of its counsel) employed in connection
with any One- Time Special Tax Bonds, and the expenses of the City in carrying out its duties
with respect to CFD No. 2018- 2 and the One-Time Special Tax Bonds related thereto, including,
but not limited to, the levy and collection of One- Time Special Taxes, the fees and expenses of
its counsel, amounts needed to pay rebate to the federal government with respect to One- Time
Special Tax Bonds, costs associated with complying with continuing disclosure requirements
with respect to the One- Time Special Tax Bonds and the One-Time Special Taxes, costs of

recording any notices to evidence payment of the One- Time Special Taxes, and all other costs
and expenses of the City and County in any way related to administration of the CFD including
any costs related to any dispute, litigation, settlement, or defense of any matter related to the
CFD.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by the City to administer the One- Time
Special Taxes according to this RMA.

Airspace Parcel" means a parcel with an assigned Assessor' s Parcel, number that constitutes

vertical space of an underlying land Parcel.

Lathrop CFD No. 2018 2 1 August 8, 2018

461



Assessor' s Parcel" or " Parcel" means a lot or parcel, including an Airspace Parcel, shown on
a County Assessor' s Parcel Map with an assigned County Assessor' s Parcel number.

Assessor' s Parcel Map" means an official map of the. County Assessor designating Parcels by
Assessor' s Parcel number.

Association Property" means any property within CFD No. 2018- 2 that is owned by a
homeowners' association or property owners' association, excluding such property that is under
the pad or footprint of a residential nnit or building.

CFD" or " CFD No. 2018- 2" means the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation for CFD No. 2018- 2

was adopted by the City Council.

CFD No. 2018- 1" means the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities).      

CFD No. 2018- 1 Bonds" means bonds or other debt ( as defined in the Act), whether in one or

more series, which are secured_ by special tax revenues generated from any of the improvement
areas within CFD No. 2018- 1.

City". means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the Gity of Lathrop.

County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Defaulted Parcel" means any Parcel of Taxable Property that is delinquent in payment of one
or more installments of CFD No. 2018- 1 special taxes at the time of an Event of Default.

Event of Default" means; as to any Parcel, failure of sueh Parcel to pay any special tax of CFD
No. 2018- 1 when due.

Final Levy Date" means the date that is 60 days prior to 10 years from the date of issuance of
the GFD No. 2018- 2 Bonds.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Indenture" means the bond indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or

other instrument pursuant to which One- Time Special Tax Bonds, are issued, as modified,

amended,  and/ or supplemented from time to time,.  and any instrument replacing or
supplementing the same.

Master Developer" means Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC and any related entities, successors,
or assigns.

Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 2 2 August 8, 2018

462



Net Proceeds" means, for a Parcel of Taxable Property, the sales price of such Parcel pursuant
to a purchase/ sale agreement between the Master Developer and an unrelated entity, less the sum
of ( i) broker commissions paid to an entity unrelated to the seller, ( ii) pro-rated ad valorem

taxes,  ( iii) escrow fees and closing costs, ( iv) the amount required to clear encumbrances

recorded on title prior to CFD Formation, excluding non-monetary easements, agreements,
covenants and restrictions customarily running with the land, as approved by the Administrator,
v) for the first 601 Residential Lots sold in the CFD, $ 6, 527. 19 per Residential Lot on such

Parcel and( vi) a share of Administrative Expenses, as detennined by the Administrator.

GOne- Time Special Tax" means either the One- Time Special Tax A or One- Time Special Tax

B.

One- Time Special Taxes" means both the One- Time Special Tax A and One- Time Special

Tax B.

One- Time Special Tax A" means a special tax that is ( i) levied at close of escrow of a sale of a

Parcel of Taxable Property pursuant to Sections C. 1 and D. 1 below, and ( ii).used to pay One-
Time Special Tax Bonds.

One- Time Special Tax B" means a special tax that is ( i) levied upon the occurrence of an

Event of Default pursuant to Sections C. 2 and D.2 lielow, and( ii) used to pay One- Time Special
Tax Bonds.

One- Time Special Tax Bonds" means bonds or other debt ( as defined in the Act), whether in

one or more series, which are at least partially secured by revenues from the One- Time Special
Taxes.

Outstanding One- Time Special Tax Bonds" means all Previously Issued One- Time Special
Tax Bonds which remain outstanding, with the following exception: if a One- Time Special Tax
has been paid by an Assessor' s Parcel, and a portion of the One- Time Special Tax will be used to
redeem principal of the One- Time Special Tax Bonds ( as determined by the Administrator), that

anticipated redemption of principal shall not be counted in the total amount of Outstanding One-
Time Special Tax Bonds.       

Previously Issued One- Time Special Tax Bonds" means all One- Time Special Tax Bonds

that have been issued prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default.

Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 2018- 2 that is owned
by or irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, State of California, County,
City, or other local governments or public agencies. For purposes of this RMA, all Association
Property shall also be categorized as Public Properly.

Residential Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and riumbered on a recorded

Final Map, on which a building pernut has been or is permitted to be issued for construction of a
residential unit without further subdivision of the lot and for which no further subdivision of the

lot is anticipated pursuant to an approved tentative map. For the purposes of this RMA, a
Residential Lot may also be an individual residential lot that is anticipated to be created on a
Parcel of Taxable Property in the future.

Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 2 3 August 8, 2018

463



RMA" means this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes.

Taxable Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels within CFD No. 2018- 2 that ( i) are
not exempt from the One- Time Special Taxes pursuant to law or Section F below, ( ii) were

owned by the Master Developer at CFD Formation, ( iii) have been sold or are expected to be

sold to an entity that is unrelated to the Master Developer, and ( iv) have not previously paid a
One- Time Special Tax, all as determined by the City.

S.      DATA FOR ADMINISTRATION OF SPECIAL TAXES

1.       One- Time Special Tax A

Upon notification of a pending sale of Taxable Property, the Administrator shall identify ( i) the
current Assessor' s Parcel numbers for the Taxable Properly being sold, and( ii) the Net Proceeds
anticipated to be generated from each Parcel.  The Administrator may rely upon any reasonable
source of information to make the determinations required in this Section B. 1, including, but not
limited to: the Master Developer or escrow agent involved in a sale of Taxable Property or the
City.

2.       One-Time Special Tax B

On an ongoing basis, the Adininistrator shall monitor payments of the Series 2018- 1 Bonds to
deternune whether an Event of Default has occurred.   Upon the occurrence of an Event of

Default or on the Final Levy Date, the Administrator shall identify ( i) the current Assessor' s
Parcel Numbers and Acreage of each Defaulted Parcel, ( ii) the total Acreage of Taxable Property
remaining in CFD No. 2018- 2, which shall not include the Acreage of any Parcel or portion
thereof that previously paid a One- Time Special Tax, and ( iii) the amount of Outstanding One-
Time Special Tax Bonds.    The Adininistrator may rely upon any reasonable source of
information to make the determinations required in this Section B. 2, including, but not limited
to: the trustee( s) of the CFD No. 2018- 1 Bonds, the City, or the County Tax Collector' s Office.

C.      ONE- TIME SPECIAL TAXE5

1.       One- Time Special Tax A

The One- Time Special Tax A for a Parcel of Taxable Property in CFD No. 2018- 2 shall be equal
to the Net Proceeds from the sale of the Parcel.

2.       One- Time Special Tax S

As of the date of the most recent Event of Default and on the Final Levy Date, the One- Time
Special Tax B for each Defaulted Parcel shall be determined by application of the following
steps:

Lathrop CFD No. 2018 2 4 August 8, 2018

464



Step 1:     Deternune the total Acreage of tHe Dèfaulted Parcel.

Step 2:     Divide the Acreage deternuned in Step 1 by the total Acreage of Taxable
Property remaining in CFD No. 2018- 2.

Step 3:     Multiply the quotient computed pursuant to Step 2 by the Outstanding One-
Time Special Tax Bonds.

Step 4:     Determine the total amount of Administrative Expenses to be collected. If the

One- Time Special Tax B is being levied simultaneously on more than one
Defaulted Parcel, this amount shall be divided between each Defaulted Parcel

based on the relative Acreage of each Defaulted Parcel.

Step 5:     The One-Time Special Tax B is equal to the sum of the amounts computed

pursuant to Steps 3 and 4.

D.      METHOD OF LEVY OF THE ONE-TIME SPECIAL TAXES

1.       One-Time Special Tax A

Upon riotification of a pending sale of one or more Parcels of Taxable Property,  the

Administrator shall determine the Net Proceeds anticipated to be generated from each Parcel.

The One- Time Special Tax A shall then be levied separately on each Parcel to be sold.

2.       One- Time Special Tax B

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Administrator shall defernune which Parcels of

Taxable Property are Defaulted Parcels.   The One- Time Special Tax B shall then be levied

separately on each Defaulted Parcel.

On the Final Levy Date, the Administrator shall deternune which Parcels of Taxable Property
have not previously paid a One- Time Special Tax. The One- Time Special Tax B shall then be
levied separately on each such Parcel.

E.       MANNER OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAXES

1.       One- Time Special Tax A

The One- Time Special Tax A shall be levied at the close of escrow of a sale of a Parcel of

Taxable Property and shall be due and payable immediately.  Upon payment in full of the One-

Time Special Tax A for a given Parcel, the Administrator shall record, or cause to be recorded, a

Notice of Cancellation of Special Tax Lien against the Parcel to reflect the discharge of the

Parcel' s obligation to pay both the One- Time Special Tax A and the One- Time Special Tax B.

Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 2 S August 8, 2018

465



2.       One- Time Special Tax B

The One-Time Special Tax B shall be levied at the time of an Event of Default and upon the

Final Levy Date, as soon as the deternunations required in Sections C. 2 and D. 2 above can be
made.  The One- Time Special Tax B shall be levied by means of a One- Time Special Tax B bill
sent directly to the owner of the Parcel via overnight mail, with a copy sent to the City.  The

One- Time Special Tax B bill shall be due and payable 30 days from the date of delivery.  The

One-Time. Special Tax B shall have the same priority and bear the same penalties and interest
after delinquency as do ad valorem property taxes.  Upon payment in full of a One-Time Special
Tax B for a given Parcel, the Administrator shall record a Notice of Cancellation of Special Tax

Lien against the Parcel to reflect the discharge of the Parcel' s obligation to pay both the One-
Time Special Tax A and the One- Time Special Tax B.

F.       EXEMPTIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this RMA, the One-Time Special Taxes shall not be
levied on Public Property in CFD No. 2018- 2.  In addition, neither of the One- Time Special

Taxes shall be levied on Parcels, or portions of Parcels, that have already paid one of the One-
Time Special Taxes in a previous land sale or Event of Default.

I.       Ile1TERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

The City may, by resolution or ordinance, interpret, clarify, and/ or revise this RMA to conect
any inconsistency, vagueness, or ambiguity as it relates to the One- Time Special Taxes, method
of apportionment, classification of properties, or any definition applicable to the CFD, as long as
such correction does not materially affect the levy and collection of the One- Time Special Taxes
and any security for the One- Time Special Tax Bonds.  The City, upon the request of an owner
of land within the CFD which is Taxable Property, may also amend this RMA in any
manner acceptable to the City, by resolution or ordinance following a public hearing, upon the
affirmative vote of such owner to such amendment and without the vote of owners of any other

land within the CFD, provided such amendment only affects such owner' s land and does not
reduce the One- Time Special Taxes that can be collected from the Parcel.

Lathrop CFD No. 2018- 2.  6 August 8, 2018

466



Attachment 10

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP DETERMINING

NECESSITY TO INCUR BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

WITHIN A COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

RESOLVED by the City Council ( the " Council") of the City of Lathrop ( the " City"), County
of San Joaquin, State of California, that:

WHEREAS,  on August 13,  2018, this Council adopted Resolution No 18- 4440 ( the

Resolution of Intention") with respect to Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD"), of the City pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities
Act of 1982, as amended, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section
53311, of the California Government Code ( the "AcY');

WHEREAS, on August 13, 2018, this Council also adopted Resolution No 18- 4441 ( the
Resolution of Intention to Incur Indebtedness") stating its intention to incur bonded indebtedness

within the boundaries of the CFD for the purpose of financing the costs of certain facilities
specified in the Resolution of Intention;

WHEREAS, this Council has held a noticed public hearing as required by the Act about
the determination to proceed with the formation of the CFD, the provision of certain defined

facilities ( the" Facilities") by the CFD and the rate and method of apportionment of the special tax
to be levied within the CFD to pay the principal and interest on the proposed bonded indebtedness
in the CFD and the administrative costs of the City relative to the CFD;

WHEREAS, subsequent to the public hearing, this Council adopted a resolution entitled
Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance. the

Cost of Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District" ( the " Resolution of Formation") for the

CFD;

WHEREAS, this Council has also held a noticed public hearing as required by the Act
relative to the matters material to the questions set forth in the Resolution of Intention to Incur

Indebtedness; and

WHEREAS, no written protests with respect to the matters material to the questions set

forth in the Resolution of Intention to Incur Indebtedness have been filed with the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

1. Recitals Correct. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2. Necessity. This Council deems it necessary to incur bonded indebtedness in the
maximum aggregate principal amount of $ 27, 500, 000 within the boundaries of the CFD for the

purpose of financing the costs of a portion of the Facilities, as provided in the Resolution of
Intention and the Resolution of Formation including, but not limited to, the costs of issuing and

467



selling bonds or other forms of debt as defined in the Act ( collectively, the " Bonds") to finance a

portion of the Facilities and the costs of the City in establishing and administering the CFD.

3. Entire CFD Liable.  The whole of the CFD shall pay for the Bonds through the
levy of the special tax.  The tax is to be apportioned in accordance with the formula set forth in

Exhibit" B" to the Resolution of Formation.

4. Bonds. The Bonds in the maximum amount of$ 27, 500, 000 are hereby authorized
subject to voter approval.  Bonds subject to this limit shall only include indebtedness evidenced
by bonds or notes and shall not include bonds described in Section 53364. 2( e) of the Act. The
bonds for the CFD may be issued in one or more series and mature and bear interest at such rate
or rates, payable in such manner as the City determines, all as this City Council or its designee
shall determine, at the time or times of sale of such bonds; provided, however, that the interest

rate or rates shall not to exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by applicable law at the time
of sale of the bonds and the bonds or any series thereof shall have a maximum term of not to
exceed 40 years.

5. Election.   The proposition of authorizing issuance of the Bonds and incurring
bonded indebtedness therefor shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the CFD and shall be

consolidated with elections on the proposition of levying special taxes within the CFD and the
establishment of an appropriations limit for the CFD pursuant to Section 53353. 5 of the Act. The

time, place and further particulars and conditions of such election shall be as specified by separate
resolution of this Council.

6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

2

468



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and adopted by the
City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the

19th day of November, 2018, by the
following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

3

469



r

I
I Attachment 11
l

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP CALLING SPECIAL
ELECTION

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2018-2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

RESOLVED by the City Council ( the " Council") of the City of Lathrop ( the " City"), County
of San Joaquin, State of California, that:

WHEREAS,  this Council has adopted a resolution entitled  " Resolution to Form a

Community Facilities District and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain Public
Facilities in and for Such District" ( the " Resolution of Formation"), ordering the formation of City' s
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD"),

defining the public facilities ( the " Facilities") to be provided by the CFD, authorizing the levy of a
special tax on property within the CFD and preliminarily establishing an appropriations limit for
the CFD, all pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1
of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311, of the California Government Code ( the
Act")•

WHEREAS, this Council has also adopted a resolution entitled "A Resolution Determining
the Necessity to Incur Bonded Indebtedness Within A Community Facilities District"  ( the

Resolution of Necessity"),  determining the necessity to incur bonded indebtedness in the
maximum aggregate principal amount of $ 27, 500, 000 upon the security of the special tax to be
levied within the CFD pursuant to the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution of Formation and the Resolution

of Necessity, the propositions of the levy of the special tax, the establishment of the appropriations
limit and the incurring of the bonded indebtedness shall be submitted to the qualified electors of
the CFD as required by the provisions of the Act.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

1. Issues Submitted.  Pursuant to Sections 53326, 53351 and 53325. 7 of the Act,

the issues of the levy of the special tax,  the incurring of bonded indebtedness and the
establishment of the appropriations limit shall be submitted to the qualified electors ( as defined

below) of the CFD at an election called therefor as provided below.

2. Qualified Electors.  This Council hereby finds that fewer than 12 persons have
been registered to vote within the territory of the CFD for each of the ninety ( 90) days preceding
the close of the public hearings heretofore conducted and concluded by this Council for the
purposes of these proceedings.  Accordingly, and pursuant to Section 53326 of the Act, this
Council finds that, for these proceedings, the qualified electors are the landowners within the CFD

and that the vote shall be by such landowners or their authorized representatives, each having
one vote for each acre or portion thereof such landowner owns in the CFD as of the close of the

public hearings.

470



3.       Conduct of Election.  The Council acknowledges receipt of waivers of certain

election formalities from the owners of all the land in the CFD and hereby calls a special election
to consider the measures described in section 1 above, which election shall be held on November

19, 2018, and the results thereof canvassed at the meeting of this Council on November 19, 2018.
The City Clerk is hereby designated as the official to conduct the election and to receive all ballots
until the close of business on the election date. The City Clerk is hereby designated as the official
to conduct the election and to receive all ballots until 7: 00 p. m. on the election date.  It is hereby
acknowledged that the City Clerk has on file the Resolution of Formation, a certified map of the
boundary of the CFD, and a sufficient description to allow the City Clerk to determine the electors
of the CFD. Pursuant to Section 53327 of the Act, the election shall be conducted by messenger
or mail- delivered ballot pursuant to Section 4000 of the California Elections Code, except as

modified by waivers of the electors, and except that Sections 53326 and 53327 of the Act shall
govern for purposes of determining the date of election and other election matters.

4. Ballot.  The Council finds that a single landowner owns all of the land within the

CFD. As authorized by Section 53353. 5 of the Act, the three propositions described in Section 1
above shall be combined into a single ballot measure, the form of which is attached hereto as

Exhibit " A" and by this reference incorporated herein and the form of ballot is hereby approved.
The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to cause a ballot, in substantially the form of
Exhibit" A," to be delivered to the qualified elector of the CFD. The ballot shall indicate the number

of votes to be voted by the landowner. The Council hereby finds that the provisions of Section
53327 and 53327. 5 of the Act requiring that each ballot be accompanied by all supplies and
written instructions necessary for the use and return of the ballot and the envelope to be used to
return the ballot shall be enclosed with the ballot,  return postage prepaid,  and containing

representations and requirements as to certain election procedures are for the protection of the

qualified electors of each Improvement Area and there is on file with the City Clerk a written waiver
such procedures and requirements executed by all of the qualified electors of each Improvement
Area, all electors of which have requested formation of the Improvement Areas and levy of special
taxes.  Accordingly, the Council finds and determines that the qualified electors have been fully
apprised of and have agreed to the conduct of the election without such procedures and

requirements, and have thereby been fully protected in these proceedings upon distribution and
return of the ballots in the manner deemed appropriate by the City and all of the electors.

5.       Waivers. This Council hereby further finds that the provisions of Section 53326 of
the Act requiring a minimum of 90 days following the adoption of the Resolution of Formation to
elapse before the special election are for the protection of the qualified electors of the CFD. There

is on file with the Clerk a written waiver executed by all of the qualified electors of the CFD allowing
for a shortening of the time for the special election to expedite the process of formation of the
CFD and waiving any requirement for notice, analysis and arguments in connection with the
election. Accordingly, this Council finds and determines that the qualified electors have been fully
apprised of and have agreed to the shortened time for the election and waiver of analysis and

arguments, and have thereby been fully protected in these proceedings.  This Council also finds
and determines that the City Clerk has concurred in the shortened time for the election. Analysis
and arguments with respect to the ballot measures are hereby waived, as provided in Section
53327 of the Act.

6.       Accountability. The Council hereby finds that the proposed issuance of bonds
and other debt for the CFD constitutes a " local bond measure" within the meaning of Sections
53410, et seq. of the California Government Code.  As a result, the bond measure shall provide

accountability measures that include: ( a) the specific purpose of the bonds; ( b) any proceeds
received from the sale of any bonds and other debt shall be applied only to the purposes; ( c) the

2-

471



proceeds of any bonds and other debt shall be deposited into special accounts to be created
therefor as part of the issuance of the bonds; and ( d) the City shall cause a report to be prepared
annually under Section 53411 of the Government Code.

Under Section 50075. 1 of the Government Code, the following accountability provisions
shall apply to the special taxes: ( a) the provision and/ or acquisition of the Facilities, the payment

of debt service on the bonds and other debt and the incidental costs thereof, all as defined in the

Resolution of Formation, shall constitute the specific single purpose; ( b) the proceeds of the

special tax shall be applied only to the specific purposes identified in ( a) above; ( c) there shall be

created special account( s) or funds( s) into which the proceeds shall be deposited; and ( d) there

shall be caused to be prepared an annual audit and report of the CFD.

7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.      

3-

472



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and adopted by the
City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the

19th

day of November, 2018, by the
following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

4-

473



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF LA THROP

Comrv unity Facili#ies Distric# No. 2018- 2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

SPECIAL ELECTION ALLOT

Mailed- Ballot Election)

Number of Votes:

Property Owner:

This ballot is for a special, landowner election. You must return this ballot to the office of the City
Clerk of the City of Lathrop no later than the hour of 7: 00 p. m. on November 19, 2018, either by
mail or in person. The City Clerk' s office is located at City Hall, 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop,
California.

To vote, mark a cross( X) on the voting line after the word " YES" or after the word " NO". All marks

otherwise made are forbidden.  All distinguishing marks are forbidden and make the ballot void.
If you wrongly mark, tear, or deface this ballot, return it to the City Clerk of the City of Lathrop and
obtain another.

The amount of money raised annually and the rate and duration of the tax to be levied by this
measure can be determined by application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment.

AN " X" OR OTHER MARK WILL CAST ALL VOTES ASSIGNED TO THIS BALL. OT, OR THE

VOTER MAY WRITE NUMBERS IN THE SPACES PROVIDED.

BALLOT AIIEASURE:  Shall the measure pursuant to which the City of Lathrop
shall ( i)  incur an indebtedness and issue bonds in the maximum aggregate

principal amount of not to exceed $ 27, 500, 000 with interest at a rate or rates not

to exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the time of sale of such
bonds on behalf of the Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities)( the" CFD"), the proceeds of which bonds will be used to

refinance the cost of certain facilities and pay for the costs of issuing the bonds
and related expenses; ( ii) levy a special tax payable solely from lands within the
CFD upon lands within the CFD according to the rate and method of
apportionment for the CFD adopted by the City Council to pay for the principal
and interest upon such bonds, the costs of the City in administering the CFD,
and the costs of refinancing certain facilities; and ( iii) establish the initial annual
appropriations limit of the CFD in the amount of$ 27, 500, 000 be adopted?

YES:

NO:

By execution in the space provided below, you also confirm your written waiver of the time limit
pertaining to the conduct of the election and any requirement for analysis and arguments with
respect to the ballot measure.

A- 1

474



Number of Votes:

Property Owner:

Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company

By: Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC, its
managing member

By:
Jeffrey M. Wilson

A- 2

475



i

Attachment 12

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP DECLARING

RESULTS OF SPECIAL ELECTION AND DIRECTING RECORDING OF NOTICE OF

SPECIAL TAX LIEN

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

RESOLVED by the City Council ( the " Council") of the City of Lathrop ( the " City"), County
of San Joaquin, State of California, that:

WHEREAS,  this Council has adopted a resolution entitled  " Resolution to Form a

Community Facilities District and to Levy a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain Public
Facilities in and for Such District" ( the" Resolution of Formation"), ordering the formation of City' s
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD"),

authorizing the levy of a special tax on property within the CFD and preliminarily establishing an
appropriations limit for the CFD, all pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982,
Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311, of the California
Government Code ( the" Act").

WHEREAS, this Council has also adopted a resolution entitled " A Resolution Determining
the Necessity to Incur Bonded Indebtedness for a Community Facilities District" ( the " Resolution

of Necessity"),  determining the necessity to incur bonded indebtedness in the maximum
aggregate principal amount of$ 27, 500, 000 upon the security of the special tax to be levied within
the CFD pursuant to the Act; and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Resolution of Formation and the Resolution

Necessity and pursuant to " A Resolution Calling Special Election" ( the " Election Resolution")

heretofore adopted by this Council the propositions of the levy of the special tax, the establishment
of the appropriations limit and the incurring of the bonded indebtedness were submitted to the
qualified electors of the CFD as required by the provisions of the Act.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Election Resolution, which are by this reference
incorporated herein, the special election has been held and the City Clerk has on file a Canvass
and Statement of Results of Election, ( the" Canvass") a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit
A; and

WHEREAS, this Council has reviewed the Canvass, finds it appropriate and wishes to

complete its proceedings for the CFD.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are all true and correct.

2. Issues Presented. . The issues presented at the special election were the levy of
a special tax within the CFD, the incurring of a bonded indebtedness in the maximum aggregate
principal amount of $ 27, 500,000,  and the approval of an annual appropriations limit of not to

exceed $ 27, 500, 000, all pursuant to the Resolution of Formation and the Resolution of Necessity.

476



3. Canvass and Issues Approved. The Council hereby approves the Canvass and
finds that it shall be a permanent part of the record of its proceedings for the CFD. Pursuant to

the Canvass, the issues presented at the special election were approved by the qualified electors
of the CFD by more than two- thirds ( 2/ 3) of the votes cast at the special election.

4. Proceedings Approved.   Pursuant to the voter approval, the CFD is hereby
declared to be fully formed with the authority to levy the special taxes, to incur the approved
bonded indebtedness and to have the established appropriations limit, all as heretofore provided

in these proceedings and in the Act It is hereby found that all prior proceedings and actions taken
by this Council with respect to the CFD were valid and in conformity with the Act.

5. Notice of Tax Lien.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to complete, execute and
cause to be recorded in the office of the County Recorder of the County of San Joaquin a notice
of special tax lien in the form required by the Act, such recording to occur no later than fifteen ( 15)
days following adoption of this resolution by the Council.

6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

2-

477



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and adopted by the
City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the 19t'' day of November, 2018, by the
following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

3-

478



EXHIBIT A

CANVASS AND STATEMENT OF RESULT OF ELECTION

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2018-2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

I hereby certify that on November 19, 2018, I canvassed the returns of the election held
on November 19, 2018 in the Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities) of the City of Lathrop and the total number of ballots cast in said District and the
total number of votes cast for and against the measure are as follows and the totals as shown for
and against the measure are full, true and correct:

Qualified

Landowner Votes

Votes Cast YES NO

City of Lathrop, Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 2

Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)
Special Tax Election

BALLOT MEASURE

BALLOT MEASURE:  Shall the measure pursuant to which Number of votes

the City of Lathrop shall ( i)  incur an indebtedness and issue YES

bonds in the maximum aggregate principal amount of not to

exceed $ 27, 500, 000 with interest at a rate or rates not to

exceed the maximum interest rate permitted by law at the
time of sale of such bonds on behalf of the Community Number of votes

Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan NO

Facilities) ( the " CFD"), the proceeds of which bonds will be

used to refinance the cost of certain facilities and pay for the
costs of issuing the bonds and related expenses; ( ii) levy a
special tax payable solely from lands within the CFD upon
lands within the CFD according to the rate and method of
apportionment for the CFD adopted by the City Council to pay
for the principal and interest upon such bonds, the costs of

the City in administering the CFD, and the costs of refinancing
certain facilities; and ( iii) establish the. initial annual

appropriations limit of the CFD in the amount of$ 27, 500, 000

be adopted?

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND on

By:
City Clerk

479



j Attachment i3

ORDIId/ NCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAYHI OP

LEVYINi3 SPECIAL TAXES 1iVITHIN CITY OF Li4THROP COMMUNITY

FACILITIES DI TFtICT NO. 2018- 2 ( CENTRAL Li4THROP SPECIFIC

PLAN FACILITIES)

WF9EREAS, on August 13, 2018, pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of
1982, as amended, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing wifh Section
53311, of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the City Council ( the " Council") of the City
of Lathrop  ( the  " City")  adopted a resolution entitled  " Resolution of Intention to Form a

Community Facilities District Therein and to Levy a Special Tax in the District to Finance the
Acquisition and Construction of Certain Public Facilities Public Facilities" ( the " Resolution of

Intention"), stating its intention to form ( i) " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018-
2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD");

WHEREAS, notice was published as required by the Act relative to the intention of the
Council to form the CFD, to provide for certain public facilities and to incur bonded indebtedness

for the CFD;   

WHEREAS, the Council has held noticed public hearings as required by the Act relative
to ( i) the determination to proceed with the formation of the CFD and the rate and method of

apportionment of the special tax to be levied within the CFD to finance a portion of the costs of

the public facilities and ( ii) the issuance of bonded indebtedness and other debt for the CFD;

WHEREe4S, at said hearing all persons desiring to be heard on all matters pertaining to
the formation of the CFD and the levy of said special taxes were heard, substantial evidence
was presented and considered by the Council and a full and fair hearing was held;

WFlERE 4S, subsequent to the hearing, the Council adopted its Resolution No. 18-
entitled " Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and to Levy a Special Tax to
Refinance the Cost of Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District" ( the " Resolution of

Formation"),  its Resolution Determining the Necessity to Incur Bonded Indebtedness for a
Community Facilities DistricY'  ( the  " Resolution Determining Necessity")  and its Resolution

Calling Special Election for a Community Facilities District" ( the " Election Resolution"), which

resolutions defined the public facilities to be financed by the CFD ( the " Facilities"), established

the CFD, authorized the levy of a special tax within the CFD, determined the necessity to incur
bonded indebtedness for the CFD, and called an election within the CFD on the propositions of

incurring indebtedness, levying a special tax, and establishing an appropriations limit within the
CFD; and

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2018 a special election was held with respect to the CFD

at which the eligible landowner- electors of the CFD approved such propositions by the two-
thirds vote required by the Act.

480



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LATHROP, as follows:

Section 1.  By the passage of this Ordinance the Council hereby authorizes and levies
special taxes within the CFD pursuant to the Act. The City shall levy the special taxes at the rate
and in accordance with the formula ( the " Rate and Method") set forth in the Resolution of

Formation, which Resolution of Formation is by this reference incorporated herein. The special
taxes are hereby authorized to be levied commencing in fiscal year 2018-29 and in each fiscal
year thereafter for the period provided in applicable Rate and Method, as contemplated by the
Resolution of Formation and the Resolution of Necessity, and all costs of administering the
CFD.

Section 2.  The Finance Director of the City is hereby authorized and directed each
fiscal year to determine the specific special tax rate and amount to be levied for the next

ensuing fiscal year for each parcel of real property within the CFD in the manner and as
provided in the Resolution of Formation.

Section 3.   Except as provided in the Rate and Method, properties or entities of the
State, federal or local governments shall be exempt from any levy of the special taxes.  In no

event shall the special taxes be levied on any parcel within the CFD in excess of the maximum
tax specified in the Resolution of Formation.

Section 4.  All of the collections of the special tax shall be used as provided for in the

Act and in the Resolution of Formation including, but not limited to, the payment of principal and
interest on bonds issued by the City for the CFD ( the " Bonds"), the replenishment of the reserve

fund for the Bonds, the payment of the costs of the Facilities, the payment of the costs of the

City in administering the CFD, and the costs of collecting and administering the special tax.

Section 5.  The special taxes shall be collected in the manner as ordinary ad valorem

taxes are collected and shall have the same lien priority, and be subject to the same penalties
and the same procedure and sale in cases of delinquency as provided for ad valorem taxes;
provided, however, that special taxes may be directly billed by the City and/ or the Council may
provide for other appropriate methods of collection by resolutions of the Council.  In addition, the

provisions of Section 53356. 1 of the Act shall apply to delinquent special tax payments.  The

Finance Director of the City is hereby authorized bill and collect the special tax until the Bonds
are paid in full or such longer period of time provided in the Rate and Method.

Section 6.  If for any reason any portion of this Ordinance is found to be invalid, or if the
special tax is found inapplicable to any particular parcel within the CFD, by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the balance of this Ordinance and the application of the special tax to the remaining
parcels within the CFD shall not be affected.

Section 7. The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk shall cause the same
to be published within fifteen ( 15) days after its passage at least once in a newspaper of general

circulation published and circulated in the City.

Section 8.  This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days from the date of final passage.

2

481



The foregoing Ordinance was adopted this
19th

day of November, 2018 by the following
vote:

AYES:  

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salva or Navarrete, City Attorney

3

482



Attachment 14

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF SPECIAL TAX BONDS

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF A COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT,
APPROVING AND DIRECTING THE EXECUTION OF AN INDENTURE,

APPROVING SALE OF SUCH BONDS, AND APPROVING OTHER RELATED
DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS

CITY OF LATHROP    

Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

WHEREAS, on June 6, 2006, the City Council ( the " Council") of the City of Lathrop ( the
City") adopted Resolution No.  06- 2164, entitled " A Resolution of Formation of Community

Facilities District and to Levy Special Tax in Community Facilities District No. 2006- 1 ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure)" which established the City's Community Facilities
District No. 2006- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure) ( the " 2006 CFD")

under the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended ( the " Act"), Chapter 2. 5 of

Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at Section 53311, of the California Government
Code,  and, pursuant to a vote of the then qualified electors of the 2006 CFD, the City is
authorized to levy a Special Tax therein and issued its City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2006- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure) Special Tax Bonds,
Series 2006 ( the " 2006 Bonds") on behalf of the 2006 CFD for the purpose of financing
improvements of benefit to land in the 2006 CFD; and

WHEREAS, the land in a portion of the 2006 CFD has been acquired by Saybrook
CLSP,  LLC,  a Delaware limited liability company and Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC,  a

Delaware limited liability company ( together, the " Landowners"), and the Landowners have

requested that the special tax obligation of the 2006 CFD be deemed prepaid upon participation

by the Landowners in two new community facilities districts to be established for the purpose of
refinancing the 2006 Bonds, all pursuant to a " Restructuring Agreement for the Community
Facilities District No. 2006- 1" ( the " Restructuring Agreement") by and among the City, the 2006
Trustee and the Landowners, which the parties thereto have determined is a mutually beneficial
resolution of the delinquency issues pertaining to the CFD and which the parties expect will
meet the needs of the current development plan of land within the two new community facilities
districts; and

WHEREAS,  pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement the Council has established
Community Facilities District No.  2018- 2  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)  ( the

D'istrict"), and authorized the levy of special taxes upon the land within the District and bonds
secured by said special taxes in the maximum principal amount of not to exceed $ 27, 500, 000;

and

WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to approve the issuance of bonds for the
District,  contemplated to be issued as a single term bond designated  " City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) 2018 Special
Tax Bond ( the " Bond"); and

483



WHEREAS, there has been submitted to the City Council a form of Bond Indenture to
the " Indenture") providing for the issuance the Bond of the City for the District, and the City

Council, with the aid of City staff, has reviewed the form of Indenture and found it to be in
proper order, and now desires to approve the Indenture and the issuance of the Bond for the
District; and

WHEREAS, the City proposes to sell the Bond in a private placement pursuant to the
terms of the Restructuring Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it appears that each of said documents and instruments which are now

before this meeting is in appropriate form and is an appropriate document or instrument to be
executed and delivered for the purpose intended; and

WHEREAS, all conditions, things and acts required to exist, to have happened and to

have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds as contemplated by this
Resolution and the documents referred to herein exist,  have happened and have been

performed in due time, form and manner as required by the laws of the State of California,
including the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

1. Pursuant to the Act, this Resolution and the Indenture, special tax bonds of the

City for the District designated as " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) 2018 Special Tax Bond" in a principal amount not to

exceed $ 27, 500, 000 are hereby authorized to be issued.  The Bond shall be executed in the

form set forth in and otherwise as provided in the Indenture.

In furtherance of the issuance of the Bond, the City Council hereby makes the following
findings and determinations:  ( i) it is prudent in the management and development of the City
and the District to issue the Bond for the purpose of providing moneys for the refinancing of
facilities authorized to be financed by the District and originally financed with the 2006 Bonds,

ii) the Bond and the District are in compliance with the City' s Goals and Policies for Mello Roos
Financings, and ( iii) the Council has not concluded that the value of the real property within the
CFD subject to the special tax to pay debt service on the respective series of Bonds is at least
three times the proposed principal amount of such Bonds and the principal amount of bonds

anticipated to be issued by the City' s Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities) Special Tax Bonds, however the Council finds that the sale of the

Bonds shall proceed notwithstanding the absence of such determination for public policy
reasons and due to special circumstances, all related to the need to refinance the 2006 Bonds

due to significant delinquencies in the payment of the special taxes of the 2006 CFD and the

2006 Bonds and the opportunity to refinance the 2006 Bonds in a manner which allows for
development in the CFD to proceed.

2.       The City Council hereby approves the Indenture in the form presented to the City
Council at this meeting.   The Finance Director, the City Manager, the City Attorney or such
other person or persons as either of them may designate ( each, an " Authorized Officer") are

each hereby authorized and directed to execute the Indenture, for and in the name and on
behalf of the City and the District, in such form, together with any additions thereto or changes
therein deemed necessary or advisable by the Authorized Officer executing such document

2-  

484



upon consultation with the City' s Bond Counsel. The City Council hereby authorizes the delivery
and performance by the City of the Indenture.

3.       The City hereby covenants, for the benefit of the Bondowners, to commence and
diligently pursue to completion any foreclosure action regarding delinquent installments of any
amount levied as a special tax for the payment of interest or principal of the Bond,  said

foreclosure action to be commenced and pursued as more completely set forth in the Indenture.

4.       The Bond, when executed, shall be delivered to the Trustee appointed in the

Indenture for authentication.  The Trustee is hereby requested and directed to authenticate the
Bond by executing the Trustee' s certificate of authentication and registration appearing thereon,
and to deliver the Bond, when duly executed and authenticated, to the purchaser in accordance
with the Restructuring Agreement and written instructions executed on behalf of the City by one
or more of the Authorized Officers, which instructions such officers are each hereby authorized,
for and in the name and on behalf of the City, to execute and deliver to the Trustee.   Such

instructions shall provide for the delivery of the Bond to the purchaser thereof, upon receipt of
consideration for the purchase price therefor.

5:       All actions heretofore taken by the officers and agents of the City with respect to
the establishment of the District and the sale and issuance of the Bond are hereby approved,
confirmed and ratified, and the proper officers of the City are each hereby authorized and
directed to do any and all things and take any and all actions and execute any and all
certificates,  agreements and other documents,  which they,  or any of them,  may deem
necessary or advisable in order to consummate the lawful issuance and delivery of the Bond in
accordance with this Resolution, and any certificate, agreement, and other document described
in the documents herein approved.  Any document herein approved and executed and delivered
by any one of the Authorized Officers shall be a valid and binding agreement of the City.

6.       This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

3-

485



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and adopted by
the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the 19th

day of November, 2018, by
the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

4-

486



r

Attachment 15

Jones Hall Draft 11. 13. 18

BONDINDENTURE

Between

CITY OF LATHROP

and

UMB, National Association,
as Trustee

Dated as of 1, 2018

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 2

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)

2018 SPECIAL TAX BOND

487



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section1. 1. Definitions..................................................................................................................... 3

ARTICLE II

GENERAL AUTHORIZATION AND BOND TERMS

Section 2. 1. Amount, Issuance, Purpose and Nature of Bond........................................................... 8

Section 2. 2. Type and Nature of Bond.............................................................................................. 8

Section 2. 3. Equality of Bond and Pledge of Net Taxes..................................................................... 8

Section 2. 4. Description of Bond; Interest Rates............................................................................... 9

Section 2. 5. Place and Form of Payment.......................................................................................... 9

Section2. 6. Form of Bond................................................................................................................ 9

Section 2. 7. Execution and Authentication............................................................:......................... 10

Section2. 8. Bond Register............................................................................................................. 10

Section 2. 9. Registration of Exchange or Transfer.......................................................................... 10

Section 2. 10. Mutilated, Lost, Destroyed or Stolen Bond................................................................. 11

Section 2. 11. Validity of Bond......................................................................................................... 11

Section 2. 12. Book- Entry Only System........................................................................................... 11

Section 2. 13. Ownership bv Ori4inal Bondowner 11

ARTICLE III

CREATION OF FUNDS AND APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

Section 3. 1. Creation of Funds; Application of Proceeds and Other Moneys.................................... 14

Section 3. 2. Deposits to and Disbursements from Special Tax Fund............................................... 14

Section3. 3. Surplus Fund .............................................................................................................. 14

Section3. 4. Investments................................................................................................................ 14

Section 3. 5. Valuation and Disposition of Investments.................................................................... 15

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION

Section 4. 1. Redemption of Bond ................................................................................................... 16

Section 4. 2. Partial Redemption...................................................................................................... 16

Section 4.3. Notice of Redemption.................................................................................................. 16

Section 4. 4. Partial Redemption of Bond......................................................................................... 17

Section 4. 5. Effect of Notice and Availability of Redemption Money................................................. 17

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS AND WARRANTY

Section5. 1. Warranty........................:............................................................................................ 18

Section5. 2. Covenants................................................................................................................... 18

ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENTS TO INDENTURE

Section 6. 1. Supplemental Indentures or Orders Not Requiring Bondowner Consent...................... 22

Section 6. 2. Supplemental Indentures or Orders Requiring Bondowner Consent............................. 22

Section 6. 3. Notation of Bond; Delivery of Amended Bond.............................................................. 23

ARTICLE VII

TRUSTEE

Section 7. 1 Trustee 24

Section 7. 2. Removal of Trustee..................................................................................................... 25

Section 7. 3. Resignation of Trustee................................................................................................ 25

Section 7. 4. Liability of Trustee....................................................................................................... 25

Section 7. 5. Merger or Consolidation.....................................................:........................................ 26

ARTICLE VIII

EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES

Section 8. 1. Events of Default......................................................................................................... 27

Section 8. 2. Remedies of Owners................................................................................................... 27

i

488



Section 8. 3. Application of Revenues and Other Funds After Default.............................................. 28

Section 8. 4. Power of Trustee to Control Proceedings.................................................................... 28

Section 8. 5. Appointment of Receivers........................................................................................... 29

Section8. 6. Non- Waiver...............................................................................................:................. 29

Section 8. 7. Limitations on Rights and Remedies of Owners......:.................................................... 29

Section 8. 8. Termination of Proceedings......................................................................................... 29

ARTICLE IX

DEFEASANCE; NO ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS

Section 9. 1. Defeasance..............................................................................................................:.. 31

Section 9. 2. No Additional Indebtedness Except Refunding Bond................................................... 32

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10. 1. Cancellation of Bond...........................................

Section 10. 2. Execution of Documents and Proof of Ownership...................................................... 33

Section 10. 3. Unclaimed Moneys.................................................................................................... 33

Section 10.4. Provisions Constitute Contract.................................................................................. 34

Section 10. 5. Future Contracts....................................................................................................... 34

Section 10. 6. Further Assurances................................................................................................... 34

Section10. 7. Severability............................................................................................................... 34

Section10. 8. Notices.........................................................................:............................................ 34

EXHIBIT A FORM OF 2018 SPECIAL TAX BOND A- 1

a

ii

489



BONDINDENTURE

THIS BOND INDENTURE  ( this  " Indenture")  is made and entered into as of

1, 2018, by and between the City of Lathrop, a municipal corporation and
general law city organized and existing under and by virtue of the Constitution and laws of the
State of California ( the " City"), for and on behalf of the City' s Community Facilities District No.
2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD"), and UMB, National Association

the " Trustee"), and governs the terms of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) 2018 Special Tax Bond ( the " Bond").

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on June 6, 2006, the City Council of the City adopted Resolution No. 06-
2164, entitled " A Resolution of Formation of Community Facilities District and to Levy Special
Tax in Community Facilities District No.  2006- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase I
Infrastructure)" which established the City's Community Facilities District No. 2006- 1 ( Central     ,

Lathrop Specific Plan Phase I Infrastructure) ( the " 2006 CFD") under the provisions of the Mello-

Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5, Part 1, Division 2, Title
5, of the Government Code of the State of Califomia ( the " Act"), and, pursuant to a vote of the

then qualified electors of the 2006 CFD, the City is authorized to levy and has levied special
taxes and incurred bonded indebtedness for the purpose of financing improvements of benefit to
land in the 2006 CFD; and

WHEREAS, in 2006 the City issued on behalf of the 2006 CFD its$ 50, 000, 000 principal
amount of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2006- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure) Special Tax Bonds Series 2006 ( the " 2006 Bonds") payable from

the special taxes levied on taxable property within the 2006 CFD; and

WHEREAS, due to the non- payment of special taxes of the 2006 CFD and default in

payment of the 2006 Bonds, finro owners holding a large portion of the land within the 2006 CFD
have entered into a Restructuring Agreement dated as of August 13, 2018 with, among others,
the City (the " Restructuring Agreement") and has caused all holders of the 2006 Bonds who are

not affiliated with such owner to be paid in full; and

WHEREAS, the terms of the Restructuring Agreement provide that the City terminate
the special tax of the 2006 CFD and release the special tax lien on all parcels of land within the

2006 CFD and replace it with the special tax of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities), which includes Improvement Area No. 1

and its four other improvement areas ( together, the " CFD 2018- 1") and, within the same

boundary as CFD 2018- 1, the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018-2 ( Central
Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD" or " CFD 2018- 2"), each of which will encompass

certain parcels originally in the 2006 CFD, all pursuant to the terms of the Restructuring
Agreement, in order to facilitate the prepayment, waiver and termination of all of the special tax

on parcels within the 2006 CFD ( whether delinquent or otherwise, and including all penalties
and interest thereon) and meet the needs of the current development plan of land within CFD

2018- 1 and CFD 2018- 2; and

WHEREAS, the City Council formed the CFD under the provisions of the Act and the
City Council, as the legislative body with respect to the CFD, is authorized under the Act to levy
special taxes to facilitate prepayment of the special taxes of the 2006 CFD and thereby

1

490



refinance the costs of facilities financed by the 2006 CFD and to authorize the issuance of up to
of bonds secured by special taxes in the CFD under the Act; and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Act, on November 19, 2018, the City Council of
the City adopted its Resolution No. the " Resolution"), which resolution, among

other matters, authorized the issuance of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No.
2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) 2018 Special Tax Bond ( the " Bond") to provide

moneys for the refinancing of a portion of the improvements financed by the 2006 CFD and
provided that said issuance would be in accordance with the Act and this Indenture,  and

authorized the execution hereof;

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest and for the benefit of the City, the CFD, the
persons responsible for the payment of special taxes and the Owners of the Bond that the City
enter into this Indenture to provide for the issuance of the Bond, the disbursement of proceeds

of the Bond, the disposition of the special taxes securing the Bond authorized to be issued
hereunder and the administration and payment of the Bond; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined that all things necessary to cause the Bond, when
authenticated by the. City for the CFD and issued as in the Act, the Resolution and this
Indenture provided to be legal, valid and binding and special obligations of the City for the CFD
in accordance with their terms, and all things necessary to cause the creation, authorization,
execution and delivery of this Indenture and the creation, authorization, execution and issuance
of the Bond, subject to the terms hereof, have in all respects been duly authorized.

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to establish the terms and conditions upon and subject to

which the Bond is to be issued, and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual

covenants contained herein and of the purchase and acceptance of the Bond by the Owners
thereof, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the
City does hereby covenant and agree, for the benefit of the Owners of the Bond as follows:

2   '

491



ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 1. 1.  Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall
have the following meanings:

Account" means any account created pursuant to this Indenture.

Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Sections
53311 et seq. of the California Govemment Code.     

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following:

a) the expenses directly related to the administration of the CFD, including, but
not limited to, the costs of computing the Special Taxes and preparing any Special Tax
collection schedules ( whether by the City or a designee thereof or both); the costs of

collecting the Special Taxes ( whether by the County, the City or otherwise); the costs of

remitting the Special Taxes to the Trustee; the costs associated with preparing Special
Tax disclosure statements and responding to the public inquiries regarding the Special
Taxes; and the costs of the City, the CFD or any designee thereof related to an appeal
of the Special Tax;

b) the costs of the Trustee ( including its legal counsel) in the discharge of the
duties of the Trustee pertaining to the Bond required under this Indenture and any
Supplemental lndenture;

c) any amounts required to be rebated to the federal government; and

d) all other costs and expenses of the City ( including, but not limited to, an
allocable share of the salaries of the City staff directly related to the foregoing,  a
proportionate amount of City general administrative overhead related to the foregoing,
and amounts advanced by the City for any administrative purpose of the CFD, including
amounts advanced to ensure maintenance of tax exemption,  and the costs of

prosecuting foreclosure of delinquent Special Taxes, which amounts advanced are
subject to reimbursement from other sources, including proceeds of foreclosure) and the
Trustee incurred in connection with the discharge of their respective duties hereunder

and in any way related to the administration of the CFD and all actual costs and
expenses incurred in connection with the administration of the Bond, including any costs
related to any dispute, litigation, settlement or defense of any matter related to the
District.

Authorized Representative of the City" means the City Manager, the City Finance
Director, City Attorney or any other officer or employee authorized by the City Council of the City
or by an Authorized Representative of the City to undertake the action referenced in this
Indenture as required to be undertaken, by an Authorized Representative of the City.

Bond Counsel" means Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, and its successors;

or any other attomey at law or firm of attorneys selected by the City, of nationally recognized
standing in matters pertaining to the federal tax exemption of interest on bonds issued by states

3

492



and political subdivisions, and duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of any state
of the United States of America.

Bond Register" means the books which the Trustee shall keep or cause to be kept on
which the registration and transfer of the Bond shall be recorded.

Bondowner" or " Owner" means the person or persons in whose name or names any
Bond is registered.

Bond" means the $ City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018-2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) 2018 Special Tax Bond.

Bond Year" means the twelve month period commencing on September 2 of each year
and ending on September 1 of the following year, except that the first Bond Year for the Bond
shall begin on the Delivery Date and end on the first September 1 which is not more than 12
months after the Delivery Date.

Business Day" means a day which is not a Saturday or Sunday or a day of the year on
which banks in New York, New York, Los Angeles, California, or the city where the corporate
trust office of the Trustee is located, are not required or authorized to remain closed.

Certificate of an Authorized Representative" means a written certificate or warrant

request executed by an Authorized Representative of the City.

CFD," " CFD 2018-2" or " District" means City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) established pursuant to the Act and the
Resolution of Formation.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

Closing Date" means the date upon which there is a physical delivery of the Bond to
the Original Bondowner according to the terms of the Restructuring Agreement.

Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as in effect on the date of issuance of

the Bond or ( except as otherwise referenced herein) as it may be amended to apply to
obligations issued on the Closing Date, together with applicable temporary and final regulations
promulgated, and applicable official guidance published, under the Code.

Delivery Date" means the date reflected on the Bond and designated by the City as the
date on which the Bond is issued and delivered to the Original Bondowner.

Depository"  means DTC or any other Securities Depository acting as Depository
pursuant to Section 2. 12.

Finance Director" means the official of the City, or such official' s designee, who acts in
the capacity as the chief financial officer of the City, including the treasurer, controller or other
financial officer.

DTC" means the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors
and assigns. 

4

493



Fair Market Value" means, with respect to any investment, the price at which a willing
buyer would purchase such investment from a willing seller in a bona fide,  arm' s length
transaction ( determined as of the date the contract to purchase or sell the investment becomes

binding) if the investment is traded on an established securities market ( within the meaning of
Section 1273 of the Code) and, otherwise, the term " Fair Market Value" means the acquisition
price in a bona fide arm' s length transaction ( as described above) if ( i) the investment is a
certificate of deposit that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations under the Code,

ii) the investment is an agreement with specifically negotiated withdrawal or reinvestment
provisions and a specifically negotiated interest rate ( for example, a guaranteed investment
contract,  a forward supply contract or other investment agreement)  that is acquired in

accordance with applicable regulations under the Code, ( iii) the investment is a United States

Treasury Security - State and Local Government Series that is acquired in accordance with

applicable regulations of the United States Bureau of Public Debt, or ( iv) any commingled

investment fund in which the City and related parties do not own more than a ten percent ( 10%)
beneficial interest therein if the retum paid by the fund is without regard to the source of the
investment.

Federal Securities" means any of the following:

a)      Cash ( insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation).

b)      Obligations of, or obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by,
the U. S. or any agency or instrumentality thereof, when such obligations are backed by
the full faith and credit of the U: S. including:

U. S. treasury obligations
All direct or fully guaranteed obligations
Farmers Home Adminisfration

General Services Administrafion

Guaranteed Title XI financing
Govemment National Mortgage Association ( GNMA)

State and Local Govemment Series

Fiscal Year" means the period beginning on July 1 of eacti year and ending on the next
following June 30.

Gross Taxes" means the proceeds of the Special Taxes received by the City as
payment of Special Taxes pursuant to the Rate and Method, and proceeds of the redemption or

sale of property sold as a result of foreclosure of the lien of the Special Taxes to the amount of
said lien and interest thereon.   " Gross Taxes" does not include any penalties collected in
connection with delinquent Special Taxes.

Indenture"  means this Bond Indenture,  together with any Supplemental Indenture
approved pursuant to Article 6 hereof.

Maturity Date" means December[ • ], 2028.

Net Taxes" means Gross Taxes minus the amount set aside to pay the Administrative
Expenses.

5

494



Nominee" shall mean ( a) initially, Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and ( b) any other
nominee of the Depository designated pursuant to Section 2. 12 hereof.

One-Time Special Tax A" means the One-Time Special Tax A described in the Rate
and Method.

One- Time Special Tax B" means the One- Time Special Tax B described in the Rate

and Method.

Ordinance" means any ordinance of the City levying the Special Taxes, including but
not limited to Ordinance No.     adopted on 2018.       '

Original Bondowner"  means Lathrop Acquisition,  LLC,  a Delaware limited liability
company.

Outstanding" or " Outstanding Bond" means the Bond theretofore issued by the City,
except:

1)      The Bond theretofore cancelled or surrendered for cancellation in

accordance with Section 10. 1 hereof;

2)      The Bond for payment or redemption of which monies shall have been

theretofore deposited in trust ( whether upon or prior to the maturity or the redemption
date of such Bond), provided that, if such Bond is to be redeemed prior to the maturity
thereof, notice of such redemption shall have been given as provided in this Indenture;

and

3)      The Bond has been surrendered to the Trustee for transfer or exchange

pursuant to Section 2. 9 hereof or for which a replacement has been issued pursuant to
Section 2. 10 hereof.     

Participants" those for whom the Depository holds the Bond as securities depository.

Payment Date" means ( i) the Maturity Date, and ( ii) prior to the Maturity Date, each date
which is designated by. the City or the Trustee as an optional or mandatory redemption date,
provided if such date is not a Business Day, interest up to the Payment Date will be paid on the
Business Day next preceding such date.

Person"  means natural persons,  firms,  corporations,  partnerships,  limited liability
companies, associations, trusts, public bodies and other entities.

Principal Office of the Trustee" means the corporate trust office of the Trustee located in

provided that for purposes of payment,  redemption, transfer,  exchange,

surrender and cancellation of the Bond, such term means the corporate trust office of the

Trustee in or such other office or offices as the Trustee may designate from
time to time, or the office of any successor Trustee where it principally conducts its business of
serving as trustee under indentures pursuant to which municipal or governmental obligations
are issued.

Rate and Method" means the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes

applicable to CFD 2018- 2, a copy of which as originally adopted is attached hereto.

6

495



Record Date"  means the fifteenth day of the month preceding a Payment Date,
regardless of whether such day is a Business Day.

Resolution of Formation" means Resolution No.     adopted by the City Council
of the City on November 19, 2018, establishing the CFD for the purpose of providing for the
refinancing of certain public facilities in and for such CFD.

Restructuring Agreement" means the Restructuring Agreement, dated as of August 13,
2018 and entered into by and befinreen the City and Saybrook CLSP, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Lathrop
Acquisition LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and UMB, National Association, in its
capacity as 2006 Trustee under the 2006 Indenture, and any amendments thereto.

Securities Depositories" means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York;
and, in accordance with then current guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission,

such other addresses and/ or such other securities depositories as the City may designate in a    
Certificate of an Authorized Representative delivered to the Trustee.

Special Tax Fund" means the fund by that name created and established pursuanf to
Section 3. 1 hereof.   

Special Taxes" means the taxes authorized to be levied by the City on property within
the CFD in accordance with the Ordinance, the Resolution of Formation, the Rate and Method,

the Act and the voter approval obtained at the November 19, 2018 election in the CFD.

Supplemental Indenture"   means any supplemental indenture amending or

supplementing this Indenture.

Surplus Fund" means the fund by that name created and established pursuant to
Section 3. 1 hereof.

Trustee" means UMB, National Association, a national banking association organized
and existing under the laws of the United States of America, at a principal corporate trust office
in and its successors or assigns, or any other bank or trust company
which may at any time be substituted in its place as provided in Sections 7, 2 or 7. 3 and any
successor thereto.

2006 Indenture" means the Indenture, dated September 1, 2006, between the City and
the 2006 Trustee, as such was supplemented and amended subsequent to the initial execution

as so supplemented and amended).

2006 Trustee " means UMB, National Association, in its capacity as trustee under the
2006 Bond Indenture.

7

496



ARTICLE II

GENERAL AUTHORIZATION AND BOND TERMS

Section 2. 1.  Amount, Issuance, Purqose and Nature of Bond.  Under and pursuant to

the Act, a single term Bond in the aggregate principal amount of Million Dollars

shall be issued for the purpose of refinancing in part the 2006 Bonds
according to certain of the terms of the Restructuring Agreement.

Section 2. 2.  Limited Obliqation.  Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the

City, the State of Califomia or any political subdivision thereof other than the City is pledged to
the payment of the Bond.   Except for the Special Taxes, no other taxes are pledged to the

payment of the Bond. The Bond is not a general obligation of the City, but is a limited obligation
of the City payable solely from certain amounts deposited by the City in the Special Tax Fund,
as more fully described herein.  The City' s limited obligation to pay the principal of, and interest
on the Bond from amounts in the Special Tax Fund is absolute and unconditional, free of

deductions and without any abatement, offset, recoupment, diminution or set- off whatsoever.
No Owner of the Bond may compel the exercise of the taxing power by the City ( except as
pertains to the Special Taxes) or the forfeiture of any of its property.   The principal of and

interest on the Bond upon the redemption thereof, are not a debt of the City, the State of
California or any of its political subdivisions within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory
limitation or restriction.    The Bond is not a legal or equitable pledge,  charge,  lien,  or

encumbrance upon any of the City's property, or upon any of its income, receipts or revenues,
except the Net Taxes and other amounts in the Special Tax Fund which are, under the terms of

this Indenture and the Act, set aside for the payment of the Bond and interest thereon and

neither the members of the City Council of the City nor any persons executing the Bond are
liable personally on the Bond by reason of their issuance.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Indenture, the City shall not be
required to advance any money derived from any source of income other than the Net Taxes for
the payment of the interest on or the principal of the Bond, or for the performance of any
covenants contained herein.   The City may, however, advance funds for any such purpose,
provided that such funds are derived from a source legally available for such purpose.

Section 2. 3.  Pledae of Net Taxes.  Pursuant to the Act and this Indenture, the Bond

shall be payable exclusively from the Net Taxes and other amounts in the Special Tax Fund (,
which are hereby set aside for the payment of the Bond. Amounts in the Special Tax Fund shall
constitute a trust fund held for the benefit of the Owners to be applied to the payment of the
interest on and principal of the Bond and so long as any of the Bond or interest thereon remain
Outstanding shall not be used for any other purpose, except as permitted by this Indenture or
any Supplemental Indenture. Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Indenture to the
contrary, Net Taxes, if any, needed to be used by the City to assure compliance with section
148(f) of the Code, relating to the rebate of excess investment eamings, if any, to the federal
government shall no longer be considered to be pledged to the Bond.

Nothing in this Indenture or any Supplemental Indenture shall preclude the redemption
prior to maturity of the Bond when it is subject to call and redemption and payment from
proceeds of refunding bonds issued under the Act as the same now exists or as hereafter
amended, or under any other law of the State of California.

8

497



Section 2. 4.    Descriqtion of Bond;  Interest Rates.    The Bond, shall be issued in

certificated form in denominations of $ 100, 000 or any integral multiple of$ 1 in excess thereof.

The Bond shall be numbered as desired by the Trustee.

The Bond shall be designated  " CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES

DISTRICT NO. 2018- 2 ( CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES) 2018 SPECIAL

TAX BOND." The Bond shall be dated as of the Delivery Date and shall mature and be payable
on the Maturity Date if not paid prior to the Maturity Date from optional or mandatory
redemptions pursuant to Section 4. 1.

Interest shall be payable on the Bond from the date established in accordance with

Section 2.5 below on each Payment Date thereafter until the principal sum of that Bond has
been paid.  Interest due on the Bond shall be calculated at a rate of per annum on the

basis of a 360- day year comprised of twelve 30- day months.

Section 2. 5.   Place and Form of Pavment.   The Bond shall be payable both as to

principal and interest in lawful money of the United States of America. The principal of the Bond
shall be payable upon presentation and surrender thereof at the Principal Office of the Trustee,
or at the designated office of any successor Trustee.  Interest on the Bond shall be payable

from the date of authentication of the Bond.  Interest on the Bond shall be paid to the persons

whose name shall appear in the Bond Register as the Owners of such Bond as of the close of

business on the Record Date.  Such interest shall be paid by check of the Trustee mailed by
first class mail, postage prepaid, to such Bondowners at his or her address as it appears on the
Bond Register.  In addition, upon a request in writing received by the Trustee on or before the
applicable Record Date from an Owner of$ 1, 000, 000 or more in principal amount of the Bond,

payment shall be made on the Payment Date by wire transfer in immediately available funds to
an account designated by such Owner; provided that so long as the Bond is in book-entry form,
payments with respect to the Bond shall be made by wire transfer or such other method
acceptable to the Trustee to the Depository.

In accordance with Sections 53344. 1 and 53356. 8 of the Act, the the City reserves to
itself, the right and authority to allow any interested owner of property within the CFD, subject to
the provisions of those Sections and the Act and to those conditions as the City may impose,
and any applicable prepayment penalties as prescribed herein, to tender to the City in full
payment or part payment of any installment of the Special Taxes or the interest or penalties
thereon which may be due or delinquent any Bond secured thereby, the Bond to be taken at par
and credit to. be given for the accrued interest shown thereby computed to the date of tender.

Section 2. 6.   Form of Bond. The Bond and the certificate of authentication shall be

substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, which form is hereby approved and
adopted as the form of the Bond and of the certificate of authentication.

The Bond shall initially be issued in certificated form. Notwithstanding any provision in
this Indenture to the contrary, the City may, in its sole discretion at any time, elect to obtain a
CUSIP number and/ or convert the Bond to book entry form as provided in Section 2. 12.

The Original Bondowner is purchasing the Bond for its own account, without a view to
immediate distribution or sale thereof, however the Original Bondowner retains the right at any
time to dispose of the Bond in accordance with the terms hereof.  In the event that the Original

Bondowner disposes of the Bond, the Original Bondowner understands that it has the sole

responsibility for disclosure to subsequent investors purchasing from the Original Bondowner for
all matters relating to the Bond and, to the extent applicable, for complying with the provisions of

g

498



any applicable federal and state securities laws and all rules and regulations promulgated
pursuant thereto, and the City has no obligations in that regard,  nor shall any disclosure
obligations related to the Bond or the CFD be implied or imposed upon the City without its
express written consent.

Section 2. 7.  Execution and Authentication.  The Bond shall be signed on behalf of the

City by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and by the manual or facsimile signature
of the City Clerk, or any duly appointed deputy City Clerk, in their capacity as officers of the City.
In case any one or more of the officers who shall have signed or sealed any of the Bond shall
cease to be such officer before the Bond so signed and sealed have been authenticated and

delivered by the Trustee ( including a new Bond delivered pursuant to the provisions hereof with
reference to the transfer and exchange of the Bond or any lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated
Bond), such Bond shall nevertheless be valid and may be authenticated and delivered as herein
provided, and may be issued as if the person who signed or sealed such Bond had not ceased
to hold such office.

Only a Bond bearing thereon such certificate of authentication in the form set forth in
Exhibit A attached hereto shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Indenture, and no
Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose until such certificate of authentication shall
have been duly executed by the Trustee.

Section 2. 8.  Bond Reaister.  The Trustee will keep or cause to be kept, at its office,
sufficient books for the registration and transfer of the Bond which shall upon reasonable prior

notice be open to inspection by the City during all regular business hours, and, subject to the
limitations set forth in Section 2. 9 below, upon presentation for such purpose, the Trustee shall,

under such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, register or transfer or cause to be
transferred on said Bond Register, the Bond as herein provided.

The City and the Trustee may treat the Owners of the Bond whose names appear on the
Bond Register as the absolute Owners of that Bond for any and all purposes, and the City and
the Trustee shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  The City and the Trustee may
rely on the address of the Bondowners as it appears in the Bond Register for any and all
purposes.  It shall be the duty of the Bondowners to give written notice to the Trustee of any
change in the Bondowners' address so that the Bond Register may be revised accordingly.

Section 2. 9.  Reqistration of Exchanqe or Transfer.  Subject to the limitations set forth in

the following paragraph, the registration of any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be
transferred upon the Bond Register by the person in uvhose, name it is registered, in person or
by his or her duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of such Bond for cancellation at the office
of the Trustee, accompanied by delivery of written instrument of transfer in a form acceptable to
the Trustee and duly executed by the Bondowner or his or her duly authorized attorney.

The Bond may be exchanged at the office of the Trustee for a like aggregate principal
amount of Bond for other authorized denominations of the same maturity and issue; however for
so long as the Bond is in certificated form, the Owner shall provide at least 15 days' notice so as
to permit the Issuer to execute such new Bond prior to authentication by the Trustee. The
Trustee shall not collect from the Owner any charge for any new Bond issued upon any
exchange or transfer, but shall require the Bondowner requesting such exchange or transfer to
pay any tax or other govemmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or
transfer.  Whenever any Bond shall be surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange, the
City shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bond of the
same issue and maturity, for a like aggregate principal amount; provided that the Trustee shall

10

499



not be required to register transfers or make exchanges of( i) Bond for a period of 15 days next

preceding any selection of the Bond to be redeemed, or (ii) any Bond chosen for redemption.

Section 2. 10.   Mutilated, Lost, Destroved or Stolen Bond.   If any Bond shall become
mutilated, the City shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of
like tenor, date, issue and maturity in exchange and substitution for the Bond so mutilated, but
only upon surrender to the Trustee of the Bond so mutilated.   Every mutilated Bond so
surrendered to the Trustee shall be cancelled by the Trustee pursuant to Section 10. 1 hereof.  If
any Bond shall be lost, destroyed or stolen, evidence of such loss, destruction or theft may be
submitted to the Trustee and,  if such evidence is satisfactory to the Trustee and,  if any
indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee shall be given, the City shall execute and the Trustee shall
authenticate and deliver, a new Bond, as applicable, of like tenor, maturity and issue, numbered
and dated as the Trustee shall determine in lieu of and in substitution for the Bond so lost,
destroyed or stolen.  The Trustee shall not treat both the original Bond and any replacement
Bond as being Outstanding for the purpose of determining the prihcipal amount of Bond which
may be executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder or for the purpose of determining any
percentage of Bond Outstanding hereunder, but both the original and replacement Bond shall
be treated as one and the same.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, in lieu of
delivering a new Bond which has. been mutilated, lost, destroyed or stolen, and which has
matured, the Trustee may make payment with respect to such Bond

Section 2. 11.  Validitv of Bond.  The validity of the authorization and issuance of the
Bond shall not be affected in any way by any defect in any proceedings taken by the City for the
CFD, and the recital contained in the Bond that the same is issued pursuant to the Act and other

applicable laws of the State shall be conclusive evidence of their validity and of the regularity of
its issuance.

Section 2. 12.  Book- Entrv Onlv Svstem.  The Bond shall not initially be issued in book-
entry form or through the facilities of DTC.  So long as the Bond is held solely by or on behalf
of the Original Bondowner, the Original Bondowner may request that the Bond become DTC
eligible and converted or reissued to book-entry form, in which case DTC shall act as the
Depository for the Bond and the provisions of this Section 2. 12 shall be applicable.  In such

case, and per DTC requirements one Bond for each maturity of the Bond shall be executed,
authenticated, and delivered as set forth herein as a. separate fully registered certificate ( in
printed or typewritten form).  Upon execution;. authentication, and delivery, the ownership of
the DTC eligible Bond shall be registered in the Bond Register kept by the Trustee for the
Bond in the name of Cede & Co, as nominee of DTC or such Nominee as DTC shall appoint in

writing.

Each Authorized Representative of the City is hereby authorized to take any and all
actions as may be necessary and not inconsistent with this Indenture to qualify the Bond for
the Depository's book-entry system,  including the execution of the Depository's required
representation letter.   The Trustee shall have no responsibility for making the Bond " DTC

eligible" or obtaining a CUSIP for the Bond.  In the event the Bond is converted to book- entry
only, the Trustee shall act only as a FAST Agent for the Bond.

With respect to a Bond registered in the Bond Register in the name of the Nominee, the

Trustee shall not have any responsibility or obligation to any broker-dealer, bank, or other
financial institution for which DTC holds the Bond as Depository from time to time ( the " DTC
Participants") or to any person for which a DTC Participant acquires an interest in the Bond
the " Beneficial Owners").  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the Trustee

shall not have any responsibility or obligation with respect to ( i) the accuracy of the records of

11

500



DTC, the Nominee, or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Bond,
ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant, any Beneficial Owner, or any other person, other than

DTC, of any notice with respect to the Bond, including any notice of redemption or mandatory
tender,  ( iii) the selection by the Depository of the beneficial interests in the Bond to be
redeemed in the- event the City elects to redeem the Bond in part, ( iv) the payment to any DTC
Participant, any Beneficial Owner, or any other person, other than DTC, of any amount with
respect to the principal of or interest on the Bond, or ( v) any consent given or other action

taken by the Depository as Owner of the Bond.

The Trustee may treat as and deem DTC to be the absolute Owner of the Bond for
which DTC is acting as Depository for the purpose of payment of the principal of and interest
on such Bond, for the purpose of giving notices of prepayment and other matters with respect
to such Bond, for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Bond, and for all
purposes whatsoever.  The Trustee shall pay all principal of and interest on the Bond only to
the Owners as shown on the Bond Register, and all such payments shall be valid and effective

to fully satisfy and discharge all obligations with respect to the principal of and interest on the
Bond to the extent of the sums or sums so paid.

No person other than an Owner, as shown on the Bond Register, shall receive a

physical Bond.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that DTC
has determined to substitute a new Nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the

transfer provisions in Section 2. 9 hereof, references to " Cede & Co." in this Section 2. 12 shall

refer to such new Nominee of DTC.

DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bond at
any time by giving written notice to the Trustee and the City during any time that the Bond are
Outstanding, and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law.
The City may terminate the services of DTC with respect to the Bond if it determines that DTC
is unable to discharge its responsibilities with respect to the Bond or that continuation of the

system of book- entry transfers through DTC is not in the best interest of the Beneficial Owners,
and the City shall mail notice of such termination to the Trustee.

Upon the termination of the services of DTC as provided in the previous paragraph,

and if no substitute Depository can be found which is willing and able to undertake such
functions upon reasonable or customary terms, or if the City determines that it is in the best
interest the Beneficial Owners of the Bond that they be able to obtain certificated Bond, the
Bond shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Bond Register of the Trustee in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in whatever name or name
the Owners shall designate at that time, in accordance with Section 2. 9.

To the extent that the Beneficial Owners are designated as the transferee by ' the
Owners, in accordance with Section 2. 9, the Bond will be delivered to such Beneficial Owners

as soon as practicable.

Section 2. 13.  Ownership by Original Bondowner.  Notwithstanding anything herein to
the contrary, so long as the Bond is owned by the Original Bondowner or a single Owner ( i) the
Trustee shall pay principal of and interest on the Bond when due by wire transfer in immediately
available funds to the Owner in accordance with wire transfer instructions on file with the

Trustee as shall be filed by the Owner with the Trustee from time to time; provided if the date for
payment is not a Business Day, then such payment shall be made on the Business Day
immediately following said payment date, ( ii) payments of principal on the Bonds shall be made
without the requirement for presentation and surrender of the Bond by the Owner, and ( iii) the

12

501



Trustee shall not be required to give notice to the Owner of any redemption of the Bond
pursuant to Section 4. 1.

13

502



ARTICLE III

CREATION OF FUNDS AND APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

Section 3. 1. Creation of Funds; Application of Proceeds and Other Monevs.

a)      Creation of Funds.  There is hereby created and established and shall be
maintained by the Trustee the following funds and accounts:

1)      The Community Facilities District No.  2018- 2 Special Tax Fund  ( the

Special Tax Fund"); and

2)      The Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 Surplus Fund ( the " Surplus
Fund").

The amounts on deposit in the foregoing funds, accounts and subaccounts shall be held
by the Trustee and the Trustee shall invest and disburse the amounts in such funds, accounts
and subaccounts in accordance with the provisions of this Article 3 and shall disburse

investment earnings thereon in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.4 hereof.

b)      Application of Funds Received on Closinq Date. No funds are anticipated to be

deposited with the Trustee on or before the Closing Date.

Section 3. 2. Deposits to and Disbursements from Special Tax Fund.

a)      All Net Taxes received by the Trustee from or on behalf of the City shall be
deposited in the Special Tax Fund and withdrawn by the Trustee in accordance with direction
from the City in a Certificate of an Authorized Representative for payment of principal and
interest on the Bond from moneys received from the City upon receipt by the City of the One-
Time Special Tax A or One- Time Special Tax B and available for payment on the Maturity Date
or prior to the Maturity Date on a date designated for optional or mandatory redemption of the
Bond.

b)      Moneys in the Special Tax Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of a
mandatory redemption of a portion of the Bond or pursuant to receipt of the City's election to call
the Bond for redemption as set forth in Section 4. 1 hereof, or payment of the Bond on the

Maturity Date, as directed by the City, and shall be applied by the Trustee on the redemption
date or on the Maturity Date, as applicable, to the payment of principal of and interest on the
Bond to be redeemed upon presentation and surrender of such Bond.

Section 3. 3.  Surplus Fund.   Upon payment in full of all principal and interest on the

Bond, the Trustee shall transfer all remaining amounts in the Special Tax Fund to the Surplus
Fund. Moneys deposited in the Surplus Fund shall be transferred by the Trustee upon request
received by the Trustee in a Certificate of an Authorized Representative of the City, to the City
and are not pledged to the repayment of the Bond.

Section 3. 4.  Investments.  Moneys held in any of the Funds, Accounts and Subaccounts
under this Indenture shall be invested as directed by the City. In the event no direction from the
City is received by the Trustee,  such moneys shall be invested in money market funds
including money market funds for which the Trustee,  its affiliates or subsidiaries provide

14

503



investment advisory or other management services) until such time as direction is given by the
City to invest otherwise.

The Trustee or an affiliate may act as principal or agent in the making or disposing of
any investment. The Trustee may sell at the best market price obtainable, or present for
redemption, any Authorized Investment so purchased whenever it shall be necessary to provide
moneys to meet any required payment, transfer, withdrawal or disbursement from the fund or
account to which such Authorized Investment is credited, and, subject to the provisions of

Section 7. 4, the Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any loss resulting from such
investment.   For investment purposes, the Trustee may commingle the funds and accounts
established hereunder, but shall account for each separately.

The City acknowledges that, to the extent regulations of the Comptroller of the Currency
or other applicable regulatory entity grant the City the right to receive brokerage confirmations of
security transactions as they occur, the City specifically waives receipt of such confirmations to
the extent permitted by law.  The Trustee will furnish the City periodic cash transaction
statements which include detail for all investment transactions made by the Trustee hereunder.

Section 3. 5. Valuation of Investments.

a)      Except as otherwise provided in subsection  ( b)  of this Section,  the City
covenants that all investments of amounts deposited in any fund or account created by or
pursuant to this Indenture, or otherwise containing gross proceeds of the Bond ( within the
meaning of section 148 of the Code), shall be acquired, disposed of, and valued ( by the City, as
of the date that valuation is required by this Indenture or the Code) at Fair Market Value.

b)      Investments in funds or accounts ( or portions thereofl that are subject to a yield
restriction under applicable provisions of the Code shall be valued by the City at their present
value ( within the meaning of section 148 of the Code).

15

504



ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION

Section 4. 1.  Redemption of Bond.

a)      Periodic Mandatorv Redemptions and Final Maturitv Date.  The Bond is issued

with a single Maturity Date and subject to optional and mandatory redemptions at any time and
from time to time prior to the Maturity Date as set forth below. In the event the City elects to
redeem the Bond as provided below, the City shall give written notice to the Trustee of its
election to so redeem, the redemption date and the principal amount of the Bond to be
redeemed.  The notice to the Trustee shall be given at least ( i) 10 days prior to the redemption

date for any optional redemption; and ( ii) [ 5] days p ior to redemption for any mandatory
redemption, or, in each case, by such later date as is acceptable to the Trustee, in its sole
discretion.

b)      Optional Redemqtion,  The Bond is subject to optional redemption prior to

maturity as a whole, or in part, on any date from any available moneys of the City, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest

to the redemption date, without pcemium.

c)      Mandatorv Redemption. The Bond is subject to mandatory redemption at any
time and from time to time prior to the Maturity Date ( i) upon the sale of a parcel in the District,
or ( ii) upon a default and foreclosure sale, in each case at a redemption price equal to the

principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption date, without

premium. Certain sales of a parcel in the CFD will trigger the levy of a one- time Special Tax
which shall become due upon fhe sale of the parcel, all in accordance with the Rate and
Method.  The Special Tax can also be triggered through a foreclosure proceeding or in
contemplation of the Maturity Date, in both instances in accordance with the Rate and Method.

Section 4.2.  Partial Redemption.  If less than the full amount of the Outstanding amount
of the Bond is to be redeemed, the portion to be redeemed shall be as directed by the City in a
written direction. Notwithstanding 4he foregoing, in the event the Bond is book entry only, such
redemption procedure shall be subject to DTC' s operational procedures.

Section 4. 3.  Notice of Redemption.  The Trustee shall cause notice of any redemption
to be mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, at least three ( 3) days prior to the date fixed for
redemption, to the registered Owners of the Bond, at such owner's address appearing on the
Bond registration books in the Principal Office of the Trustee; but such mailing shall not be a
condition precedent to such redemption and failure to mail or to receive any such notice, or any
defect therein, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of such Bond.
The actual receipt by the Owners of notice of such redemption shall not be a condition
precedent to redemption, and neither the failure to receive nor any defect in such notice shall
affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of such Bond, or the cessation of
interest on the redemption date. A certificate by the Trustee that notice of such redemption has
been given as herein provided shall be conclusive as against all parties and the Owners shall

not be entitled to show that he or she failed to receive notice of such redemption.

Any such redemption notice may specify that redemption on the specified date will be
conditional and subject to receipt by the City of moneys sufficient to cause such redemption and

16

505



may be rescinded in the event insufficient moneys are available, and neither the City nor the
Trustee shall have any liability to the Owners or any other party as a result of its failure to
redeem the Bond as a result of insufficient moneys.

Upon the payment of the redemption price, each check or other transfer of funds issued

for such purpose shall to the extent applicable and practicable bear the CUSIP number ( if

applicable) identifying the Bond amount being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or
other transfer.

Section 4. 4.  Partial Redemption of Bond.  Upon surrender of any Bond to be redeemed

in part only, at the request of the Bondowner the City shall execute and the Trustee shall
authenticate and deliver to the Bondowner, at the expense of the City, a new Bond of authorized
denominations equal in aggregate principal amount to the unredeemed portion of the Bond

surrendered, with the same interest rate and the same maturity.

Section 4. 5.    Effect of Notice and Availabilitv of Redemqtion Monev.    Notice of

redemption having been duly given,  as provided in Section 4.3 hereof,  and the amount

necessary for the redemption having been made available for that purpose and being available
therefor on the date fixed for such redemption:

a)      The Bond, or portions thereof, designated for redemption shall, on the date fixed

for redemption, become due and payable at the redemption price thereof as provided in this

Indenture, anything in this Indenture or in the Bond to the contrary notwithstanding;

b)      Upon presentation and surrender thereof at the office of the Trustee,  the

redemption price of such Bond shall be paid to the Owners thereof;

c)      As of the redemption date the Bond,  or portions thereof so designated for

redemption shall be deemed to be no longer Outstanding and such Bond, or portions thereof,
shall cease to bear further interest; and

d)      As of the date fixed for redemption no Owner of any of the Bond or portions
thereof so designated for redemption shall be entitled to any of the benefits of this Indenture or
any Supplemental Indenture, or to any other rights, except with respect to payment of the
redemption price and interest accrued to the redemption date from the amounts so made
available. 

r

506



ARTICLE V

COVENANTS AND WARRANTY

Section 5. 1.   Warrantv.   The City shall preserve and protect the security pledged
hereunder to the Bond against all claims and demands of all persons.

Section 5. 2.   Covenants. ' So long as the Bond issued hereunder is Outstanding and
unpaid, the City makes the following covenants with the Bondowners under the provisions of the
Act and this Indenture ( to be performed by the City or its proper officers, agents or employees),
which covenants are necessary and desirable to secure the Bond and tend to make it more
marketable; provided, however, that said covenants do not require the City to expend any funds
or moneys other than the Special Taxes and other amounts deposited to the Special Tax Fund:

a)      Punctual Pavment; Aaainst Encumbrances.   The City covenants that it will
receive all Special Taxes in trust for the Owners and will instruct the Finance Director to deposit

all Net Taxes with the Trustee upon receipt by City, and the City shall have no beneficial right or
interest in the amounts so deposited except as provided by this Indenture.  All such Net Taxes

shall be disbursed, allocated and applied solely to the uses and purposes set forth herein, and
shall be accounted for separately and apart from all other money, funds, accounts or other
resources of the City.

The City covenants that it will duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal of
and interest on the Bond thereon on the date, at the place and in the manner set forth in the

Bond and in accordance with this Indenture _to the extent that Net Taxes and other amounts

pledged hereunder are available therefor, and that the payments into the Funds and Accounts

created hereunder will be made, all in strict conformity with the terms of the Bond, and this
Indenture, and that it will faithfully observe and perform all of the conditions, covenants and
requirements of this Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures and of the Bond issued

hereunder.

Although the Special Tax will constitute a lien on parcels in the District in accordance

with the Rate and Method, it does not constitute a personal indebtedness of the owners of such

property. The Bond is payable only from the Net Taxes, and tfie Rate and Method provides that
Special Taxes will be only equal to proceeds generated from the sale or foreclosure of parcels
in the District.  There is no assurance that the proceeds of the sale or foreclosure of all parcels

in the District will generate sufficient amounts to pay all principal and interest on the Bond. As of
result of this unknown result, the Bond has a substantial risk of nonpayment. The City has not
made any investigation into the appropriateness of investment in the Bond and makes no
representations as to the sufficiency of the Special Taxes, including any proceeds of foreclosure
for non=payment of Special Taxes, for payment in full of the Bond. The City has no obligation to
provide any disclosure to a subsequent purchaser of the Bond or to provide any continuing
disclosure or any other form of disclosure as customarily provided or otherwise required to be
provided to bondholders pursuant to any law or regulation, nor shall the City be required to
evaluate or comment on any form of disclosure provided to any subsequent purchaser of the
Bond.

The City will not mortgage or otherwise encumber, pledge or place any charge upon any
of the Net Taxes except as provided in this Indenture, and will not issue any obligation or

18

507



security having a lien or charge upon the Net Taxes superior to or on a parity with the Bond,
other than bonds issued to refund all or a portion of the Bond.

b)      Levv of Special Tax. The City shall comply with all requirements of the Act so as
to assure the timely collection of Gross Taxes, including without limitation, the enforcement of
delinquent Special Taxes.

i)       L:evy. The Finance Director shall effect the levy of the Special Taxes in
accordance with the Ordinance while the Bond is outstanding.  Upon the completion of

the computation of the amount of the levy, the Finance Director shall prepare or cause to
be prepared, and shall transmit to the Trustee notice of the expected redemption of the

Bond from moneys expected to be received from the One-Time Special Tax A or One-

Time Special Tax B and available for mandatory redemption of the Bond pursuant to
Section 4. 1( c), or notice of the levy for payment of the Bond upon the Maturity Date from
moneys expected to be received from the One- Time Special Tax B described in the Rate

and Method and expected to be available for payment of principal and interest on the

Bond on the Maturity Date.

ii)      Computation. The Finance Director shall cause to be fixed and levied the

amount of Special Taxes within the CFD in accordance with the Rate and Method. The

Special Taxes so levied shall not exceed the authorized amounts as provided in the
proceedings under the Resolution of Formation.

iii)      Collection. The Special Taxes shall be hand- billed by the City from time to
time as they become payable pursuant to the Rate and Method, and be payable to and
collected by the City, and have the same priority, become delinquent at the same time
and in the same proportionate amounts and bear the same proportionate penalties and

interest after delinquency as do the ad valorem taxes on real property.

c)      Commence Foreclosure Proceedinqs. The Finance Director hereby, with and for
the benefit of the Owners of the Bond, covenants that it will notify the City Attorney of any
delinquency on any taxable parcel in the CFD of which the Finance Director is aware has not
paid the Special Tax when due, and the City Attorney or a designee shall promptly notify the
owner of the parcel which is delinquent that proceedings for foreclosure of the parcel( s) shall

commence if the delinquency is not paid within 30 days of such notification.  The City Attorney
shall commence, or cause to be commenced, collection actions preparatory to the filing of a
complaint for foreclosure, and, not later than four months thereafter, cause to be commenced

court proceedings for foreclosure. The City Attorney is hereby authorized to employ special
counsel to conduct any such foreclosure proceedings, the cost of which may be payable from
the Administratiye Expense Reserve Fund held by the trustee for CFD 2018- 1.

d)      Pavment of Claims.  The City will pay and discharge any and all lawful claims for
labor, materials or supplies which, if unpaid, might become a lien or charge upon the. Net Taxes

or other funds in the Special Tax Fund, or which might impair the security of the Bond then
Outstanding; provided that nothing herein contained shall require the City to make any such
payments so long as the City in good faith shall contest the validity of any such claims.

e)      Books and Accounts. The City will keep proper books of records and accounts of
the CFD, separate from all other records and accounts of the City, in which complete and
correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the levy of the Special Tax and the
deposits to the Special Tax Fund.  Such books of records and accounts shall at all times during

19

508



business hours be subject to the inspection of the Trustee or of the Owners of not less than
10% of the principal amount of the Bond then Outstanding or their representatives authorized in
writing.

f)       Tax Covenants. The City covenants as follows:

i)       Private Activity Bond Limitation. The City shall assure that the proceeds
of the Bond are not so used as to cause the Bond to satisfy the private business tests of
section 141( b) of the Code or the private loan financing test of section 141( c) of the
Code.

ii)      Federal Guarantee Prohibition.   The City shall not take any action or
permit or suffer any action fo be taken if the result of the same would be to cause the
Bond to be "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of section 149( b) of the Code.

iii)      ReBate Requirement. The City shall take any and all actions necessary to
assure compliance with section 148(f) of the Code, relating to the rebate of excess
investment earnings, if any, to the federal govemment, to the extent that such section is
applicable to the Bond.

iv)     No Arbitrage. The City shall not take, or permit or suffer to be taken by
the Trustee or otherwise, any action with respect to the proceeds of the Bond which, if
such action had been reasonably expected to have been taken, or had been deliberately
and intentionally taken, on the date of issuance of the Bond would have caused the
Bond to be an " arbitrage bond" within the meaning of section 148 of the Code.

v)      Maintenance of Tax-Exemption. The City shall take all actions necessary
to assure the exclusion of interest on the Bond from the gross income of the Owners of

the Bond to the same extent as such interest is permitted to be excluded from gross
income under the Code as in effect on the date of issuance of the Bond.

g)      Continuina Disclosure. The Original Bondowner of the Bond or an affiliate of such
owner is the owner of all the land in the District as of the date of issuance of the Bond. The

Original Bondowner and the City have determined and agreed that no Official Statement or
Private Placement Memorandum is necessary or will be prepared in connection with the
purchase of the Bond by the Original Bondowner. The City shall not have any obligation to
provide any disclosure to a subsequent purchaser of the Bond or to provide any continuing
disclosure as required by Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2- 12 in connection
with underwritten bonds, or to provide any other form of disclosure as customarily provided or
otherwise required to be provided to bondholders pursuant to any law or regulation, nor shall the
City be required to evaluate or comment on any form of disclosure provided to any subsequent
purchaser of the Bond.

h)      State Reportinq Requirements.   The following requirements shall apply to the
Bond, in addition to those requirements under the preceding clause ( I):

i)   Annua/ Reporting.    Not later than October 30 of each calendar year,

beginning with the October 30 first succeeding the date of the Bond, and in each
calendar year thereafter until the October 30 following the final maturity of the Bond, the
Finance Director shall cause the following information to be supplied to CDIAC: ( i) the

principal amount of the Bond Outstanding; ( ii) the balance in the reserve fund, if any; ( iii)

20

509



the amount of any capitalized interest funded from the proceeds of the Bond and the
amount thereof used for payment of the Bond; ( iv) the number of parcels in the CFD

which are delinquent in the payment of Special Taxes, the amount of each delinquency,
the length of time delinquent and when foreclosure was commenced for each delinquent
parcel; ( v) that no new improvement fund moneys were funded from the Bond; and ( vi)

the. assessed value of all parcels in the CFD subject to the levy of the Special Taxes as
shown in most recent equalized roll.  The annual reporting shall be made using such
form or forms as may be prescribed by CDIAC.

ii)  Other Reporting.  If at any time the Trustee fails to pay principal and interest
due on any scheduled payment date for the Bond, or if funds are withdrawn from the
reserve fund, if any, to pay principal and interest on the Bond, the Trustee shall notify the
Finance Director of such failure or withdrawal in writing.   The Finance Director shall

notify CDIAC and the Owner of the Bond of such failure or withdrawal within 10 days of
such failure or withdrawal.

iii) Amendment. The reporting requirements of this clause ( h) shall be amended
from time to time, without action by the City or the Trustee, to reflect any amendments to
Section 53359. 5(b) or Section 53359. 5( c) of the Act.  The Finance Director shall provide

the Trustee with a copy of any such amendment.

iv)     No Liability.  None of the City and its officers, agents and employees, the
Finance Director or the Trustee shall be liable for any inadvertent error in reporting the
information required by this clause (h).

21

510



ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENTS TO INDENTURE

Section 6. 1.   Supplemental Indentures or Orders Not Requirinq Bondowner Consent.

The City may from time to time, and at any time, without notice to or consent of any of the
Bondowners, adopt Supplemental Indentures for any of the following purposes:

a)      to cure any ambiguity, to correct or supplement any provisions herein which may
be inconsistent with any other provision herein, or to make any other provision with respect to
matters or questions arising under this Indenture or in any additional resolution or order,
provided that such action is not materially adverse to the interests of the Bondowners;

b)      to add to the covenants and agreements of and the limitations and the

restrictions upon the City contained in this Indenture, other covenants, agreements, limitations
and restrictions to be observed by the City which are not contrary to or inconsistent with this
Indenture as theretofore in effect or which further secure Bond payments;

c)      to modify, amend or supplement this Indenture in such manner as to permit the
qualification hereof under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or any similar federal
statute hereafter in effect, and to add such other terms, conditions and provisions as may be
permitted by said act or similar federal statute, and which shall not materially adversely affect
the interests of the Owners of the Bond then Outstanding; or

d)      to modify, alter, amend or supplement this Indenture in any other respect which
is not materially adverse to the Bontlowners; or

e)      to make such additions,  deletions or modifications as may be necessary or
desirable to assure exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the Bond.

Section 6. 2.    Supplemental Indentures or Orders Requirinq Bondowner Consent.

Exclusive of the Supplemental Indentures described in Section 6. 1, the Owners of not less than

a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bond Outstanding shall have the right to consent
to and approve the adoption by the City of such Supplemental Indentures as shall be deemed
necessary or desirable by the City for the purpose of waiving, modifying, altering, amending,
adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in this
Indenture; provided, however, that nothing herein shall permit, or be construed as permitting, ( a)

an extension of the maturity date of the principal, or the payment date of interest on, any Bond,
b) a reduction in the principal amount of the Bond or the rate of interest thereon,  ( c) a

preference or priority among Bond amounts Outstanding, or ( d) a reduction in the aggregate
principal amount of the Bond, without the consent of the Owner of the Bond.

If at any time the City shall desire to adopt a Supplemental Indenture, which pursuant to
the terms of this Section shall require the consent of the Bondowner, the City shall so notify the
Trustee and shall deliver to the Trustee a copy of the proposed Supplemental Indenture.  Upon

consent to and approval of the Supplemental Indenture by the Bondowner, such proposed
Supplemental Indenture, when duly adopted by the City, shall thereafter become a part of the
proceedings for the terms of the Bond, and this Indenture shall be, and shall be deemed to be,

modified and amended in accordance therewith,  and the respective rights,  duties and

obligations under this Indenture of the City and all Owner of the Bond shall thereafter be
determined, exercised and enforced hereunder, subject in all respects to such modifications and

amendments.

22

511



Section 6. 3.  Notation of Bond; Deliverv of Amended Bond.  After the effective date of

any action taken as hereinabove provided, the City may determine that the Bond may bear a
notation, by endorsement in form approved by the City, as to such action, and in that case upon
demand of the Owner of any Outstanding Bond at such effective date and presentation of his
Bond for the purpose at the office of the Trustee or at such additional offices as the Trustee may
select and designate for that purpose, a suitable notation as to such action shall be made on

such Bond or a new Bond modified to conform to such action shall be prepared and executed

and the previous Band shall be exchanged at the office of the Trustee or at such additional

offices as the Trustee may select and designate for that purpose, without cost to each Owner of
Outstanding Bond, upon surrender of such Outstanding Bond.

23

512



ARTICLE VII

TRUSTEE

Section 7. 1.  Trustee.   UMB, National Association, shall be the Trustee for the Bond.

unless and until another Trustee is appointed by the City hereunder. The City may, at any time,
appoint a successor Trustee satisfying the requirements of Section 7.2 below for the purpose of
receiving all money which the City is required to deposit with the Trustee hereunder and to
allocate, use and apply the same as provided in this Indenture.

The Trustee hereby accepts the trusts imposed upon it hereby, and agrees to perform
said trusts, but only upon and subject to the following express terms and conditions.   The

Trustee, prior to the occurrence of an event of default and after curing of all events of default
which may have occurred, undertakes to perform such duties and only such duties as are
specifically set forth herein, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this
Indenture against the Trustee.  In case an event of default has occurred ( which has not been

cured or waived), the Trustee may exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it hereby,
and shall use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise, as a prudent person would

exercise or use under the circumstan,ces in the conduct of such person' s own affairs.

The Trustee is hereby authorized to and shall mail by first class mail, postage prepaid, or
wire transfer in accordance with Section 2. 5 above, interest payments to the Bondowners, and

to maintain the Bond Register.  The Trustee is hereby authorized to pay the principal of the
Bond when the same is duly presented to it for payment at maturity or on call and redemption,
to provide for the registration of transfer and exchange of the Bond presented to it for such

purposes, to provide for the cancellation of the Bond all as provided in this Indenture, and to

provide for the authentication of the Bond, and shall perform all other duties assigned to or

imposed on it as provided in this Indenture.  The Trustee shall keep accurate records of all
funds administered by it and all Bond payments, discharges and cancellations made by it.

The Trustee is hereby authorized to redeem the Bond when duly presented for payment
at maturity, or on redemption prior to maturity.   The Trustee shall cancel the Bond upon

payment thereof in accordance with the provisions of Section 9. 1 hereof.

The City shall from time to time, subject to any agreement between the City and the
Trustee then in force, pay to the Trustee, but only from funds of the CFD and not from any other
source,  compensation for . its services,  reimburse the Trustee for all its advances and

expenditures, including, but not limited to, advances to and fees and expenses of independent
accountants and/ or counsel employed by it in the exercise and performance of its powers and
duties hereunder, and indemnify and save the Trustee, its officers, directors, employees and
agents, harmless against costs, claims, expenses and liabilities, including, without limitation,
fees and expenses of its attorneys,  not arising from its own gross negligence or willful
misconduct which it may incur in the exercise and performance of its powers and duties
hereunder. No provision in this Indenture will require the Trustee to risk or expend its own funds

or otherwise incur any financial liability hereunder unless indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it
against such liability or risk is provided to it.  The Trustee will not be liable for any action taken
or omitted to be taken by it in accordance with the direction of a majority ( or any lesser amount
that may direct the Trustee in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture) of the Owners of
the principal amount of the Bond Outstanding relating to the time,  method and place of
conducting any proceeding or remedy available to the Trustee under this Indenture. The

24

513



foregoing obligation of the City to indemnify the Trustee shall survive the removal or resignation  _
of the Trustee or the discharge of the Bond.

Section 7. 2.   Removal of Trustee.  The City may at any time at its sole discretion or
shall, upon the direction from the Owners of a majority of the Outstanding Bonds, remove the
Trustee initially appointed, and any successor thereto, by delivering to the Trustee a written
notice of its decision to remove the Trustee and may appoint a successor or successors thereto;
provided that any such successor shall be a bank or trust company having a combined capital
exclusive of borrowed capital) and surplus of at least $ 75, 000, 000, and subject to supervision

or examination by federal or state authority.  Any removal shall become effective only upon
acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee.  If any bank or trust company appointed
as a successor publishes a report of condition at least annually, pursuant to law or to the
requirements of any supervising or examining authority above referred to, then for the purposes
of this section the combined capital and surplus of such bank or trust company shall be deemed
to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition so

published.  Any removal of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee shall become
effective only upon acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee and notice being sent
by the successor Trustee to the Bondowner of the successor Trustee' s identity and address.

Section 7. 3.   Resiqnation of Trustee.  The Trustee may at any time resign by giving
written notice to the City and by giving to the Owners notice of such resignation, which notice
shall be mailed to the Owners at their addresses appearing in the registration books in the o ce
of the Trustee.   Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the City shall promptly appoint a
successor Trustee satisfying the criteria in Section 7. 2 above by an instrument in writing.  Any
resignation or removal of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee shall become

effective only upon acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee.

Section 7. 4.  Liabilitv of Trustee.  The recitals of fact and all promises, covenants and

agreements contained herein and in the Bond shall be taken as statements,  promises,

covenants and agreements of the City, and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for the
correctness of the same and makes no representations as to the validity or sufficiency of this
Indenture, the Bond, and shall incur no responsibility in respect thereof, other than in connection
with its duties or obligations specifically set forth herein, in the Bond, or in the certificate of
authentication assigned to or imposed upon the Trustee.   The Trustee shall be under no

responsibility or duty with respect to the issuance of the Bond for value.  The Trustee shall not

be liable in connection with the performance of its duties hereunder,  except for its own

negligence or willful misconduct.

The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon any notice, resolution, request, consent,
order,  certificate,  facsimile transmission,  electronic mail,  report,  bond or other paper or

document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper
party or parties.  The Trustee may consult with counsel, who may be counsel to the City, with
regard to legal questions,  and the opinion of such counsel shall be full and complete

authorization and protection in respect of any action taken or suffered hereunder in good faith
and in accordance therewith.

The Trustee shall not be bound to recognize any person as the Owner of a Bond unless
and until such Bond is submitted for inspection, if required, and his title thereto satisfactorily
established, if disputed.

25

514



Whenever in the administration of its duties under this Indenture the Trustee shall deem

it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or suffering any
action hereunder, such matter ( unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically

prescribed) may, in the absence of bad faith on the part of the Trustee, be deemed to be
conclusively proved and established by a written certificate of the City, and such certificate shall
be full warrant to the Trustee for any action taken or suffered under the provisions of this
Indenture upon the faith thereof, but in its discretion the Trustee may, in lieu thereof, accept
other evidence of such matter or may require such additional evidence as to it may seem
reasonable.  .

The Trustee shall have no duty or obligation whatsoever to enforce the collection of
Special Taxes or other funds to be deposited with it hereunder, or as to the correctness of any

amounts received, but its liability shall be limited to the proper accounting for such funds as it
shall actually receive.  No provision in this Indenture shall require the Trustee to expend or risk

its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of any of its duties
hereunder, or in the exercise of its rights or powers.

The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any default or event of default
until an officer at the Trustee' s corporate trust office responsible for the administration of its
duties hereunder shall have actual knowledge thereof or the Trustee shall have received written

notice thereof at its corporate trust office.

The Trustee shall not be considered in breach of or in default in its obligations hereunder
or progress in respect thereto in the event of enforced delay (" unavoidable delay") in the

performance of such obligations due to unforeseeable causes beyond its control and without its

fault or negligence, including, but not limited to, Acts of God or of the public enemy or terrorists,
acts of a government, acts of the other party, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions,
strikes, freight embargoes, earthquakes, explosion, mob violence, riot, inability to procure or
general sabotage or rationing of labor, equipment, facilities, sources of energy,  material or
supplies in the open market, litigation or arbitration involving a party or others relating to zoning
or other govemmental action or inaction pertaining to the CFD,   malicious mischief,

condemnation, and unusually severe weather or delays of suppliers or subcontractors due to
such causes or any similar event and/or occu[ rences beyond the control of the Trustee.

The Trustee agrees to accept and act upon facsimile transmission of written instructions

and/ or directions pursuant to this Indenture provided, however, that: ( a) subsequent to such

facsimile transmission of written instructions and/ or.directions the Trustee shall forthwith receive

the originally executed instructions and/ or directions, ( b) such originally executed instructions
and/ or directions shall be signed by a person as may be designated and authorized to sign for
the party signing such instructions and/ or directions, and ( c) the Trustee shall have received a
current incumbency certificate containing the specimen signature of such designated person.

Section 7. 5.   Meraer or Consolidation.  Any company into which the Trustee may be
merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any
merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company to which the
Trustee may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business, shall be the
successor to the Trustee without the execution or filing of any paper or further act, anything
herein to the contrary notwithstanding.

26

515



ARTICLE VIII

EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES

Section 8. 1.  Events of Default.  Any one or more of the following events shall constitute
an." event of defaulY':

a)      Default in the due and punctual payment of the principal of the Bond when and

as the same shall become due and payable, whether at maturity as therein expressed, by
declaration or otherwise;

b)      Default in the due and punctual payment of the interest on the Bond when and as

the same shall become due and payable; or

c)      Except as described in ( a) or ( b), default shall be made by the City in the
observance of any of the agreements, conditions or covenants on its part contained in this
Indenture, the Bond, and such default shall have continued for a period of 30 days after.the City
shall have been given notice in writing of such default by the Trustee or the Owners of 25% in

aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bond.

The Trustee agrees to give notice to the Owners immediately upon the occurrence of an
event of default under ( a) or ( b) above and within 30 days of the Trustee' s knowledge of an

event of default under( c) above.

Section 8. 2.  Remedies of Owners.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the

Trustee may pursue any available remedy at law or in equity to enforce the payment of the
principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bond, and to enforce any rights of the Trustee under
or with respect to this Indenture, including:

a)      By mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in equity to enforce his rights
against the City and any of the members, officers and employees of the City, and to compel the
City or any such members, officers or employees to perform and carry out their duties under the
Act and their agreements with the Owners as provided in this Indenture;

b)      By suit in equity to enjoin any actions or things which are unlawful or violate the
rights of the Owners; or

c)      By a suit in equity to require the City and its members, officers and employees to
account as the trustee of an express trust.

If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and if requested so to do by
the Owners of at least twenty- five percent ( 25%)  in aggregate principal amount of the

Outstanding Bond and is indemnified to its satisfaction, the Trustee shall be obligated to
exercise such one or more of the rights and powers conferred by this Article 8, as the Trustee,
being advised by counsel, shall deem most expedient in the interests of the Owners of the
Bond.

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee or to the Owners is
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy.  Every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall
be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing, at law or in

27

516



equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard
to any other remedy conferred by the Act or any other law.

Section 8. 3.   Application of Revenues and Other Funds After Default.   All amounts

received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken by the Trustee under the
provisions of this Indenture relating to the Bond shall be applied by the Trustee in the following
order upon presentation of the Bond:

First, to the payment of the fees, costs and expenses of the Trustee in declaring such
Event of Default and in carrying out the provisions of this Article 8,  including reasonable
compensation to its agents, attorneys and counsel, and to the payment of all other outstanding
fees and expenses of the Trustee; and

Second, to the payment of the whole amount of interest on and principal of the Bond

then due and unpaid, with interest on overdue installments of principal and interest to the extent

permitted by law at the net effective rate of interest then borne by the Outstanding Bond;
provided, however, that in the event such amounts shall be insufficient to pay in full the full
amount of such interest and principal, then such amounts shall be applied in the following order
of priority:

a)      first to the payment of all installments of interest on the Bond then due and

unpaid on a pro rata basis based on the total amount then due and owing,

b)      second, to the payment of all installments of principal of the Bond then due and

unpaid on a pro rata basis based on the total amount then due and owing, and

c)      third, to the payment of interest on overdue installments of principal and interest

on the Bond on a pro rata basis based on the total amount then due and owing.

Section 8. 4.  Power of Trustee to Control Proceedinqs.  In the event that the Trustee,

upon the happening of an Event of Default, shall have taken any action, by judicial proceedings
or otherwise, pursuant to its duties hereunder, whether upon its own discretion or upon the

request of the Owners of twenty- five percent ( 25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bond

then Outstanding, it shall have full power, in the exercise of its discretion for the best interests of
the Owners of the Bond,  with respect to the continuance,  discontinuance,  withdrawal,

compromise, settlement or other disposal of such action; provided, however, that the Trustee

shall not,  unless there no longer continues an Event of Default,  discontinue,  withdraw,

com romise or settle, or otherwise dispose of any litigation pending at law or in equity, if at the
time there has been filed with it a written request signed by the Owners of twenty-five percent
25%)  in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bond hereunder opposing such

discontinuance, withdrawal, compromise, settlement or other such litigation.  Any suit, action or
proceeding which any Owner of the Bond shall have the right to bring to enforce any right or
remedy hereunder may be brought by the Trustee for the equal benefit and protection of all
Owners of the Bond similarly situated and the Trustee is hereby appointed ( and the successive
respective Owners of the Bond issued hereunder, by taking and holding the same, shall be
conclusively deemed so to have appointed it) the true and lawful attorney in fact of the
respective Owners of the Bond for the purposes of bringing any such suit, action or proceeding
and to do and perform any and all acts and things for and on behalf of the respective Owners of
the Bond as a class or classes, as may be necessary or advisable in the opinion of the Trustee
as such attorney- in- fact.

28 . .

517



Section 8. 5.  Appointment of Receivers.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default

hereunder, and upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial proceedings to
enforce the rights of the Trustee and of the Owners of the Bond under this Indenture, the
Trustee shall be entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of the

Net Taxes and other amounts pledged hereunder, pending such proceedings, with such powers
as the court making such appointment shall confer.   •

Section 8. 6.   Non- Waiver.   Nothing in this Article 8 or in any other provision of this
Indenture, or in the Bond, shall affect or impair the obligation of the City, which is absolute and
unconditional, to pay the interest on and principal of the Bond to the respective Owners of the
Bond at the respective dates of maturity, as herein provided, out of the Net Taxes and other
moneys herein pledged for such payment.

A waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Trustee or any Owners shall
not affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract, or impair any rights or remedies
on any such subsequent default or breach.  No delay or omission of the Trustee or any Owner
of any of the Bond to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any
such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence
therein; and every power and remedy conferred upon the Trustee or the Owners by the Act or
by this Article 8 may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as shall be
deemed expedient by the Trustee or the Owners, as the case may be.

Section 8. 7.  Limitations on RiQhts and Remedies of Owners.  No Owner of the Bond

issued hereunder shall have the right to institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in
equity, for any remedy under or upon this Indenture,  unless  ( a) such Owner shall have

previously given to the Trustee written notice of the occurrence of an Event of Default; ( b) the

Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bond then Outstanding shall have
made written request upon the Trustee to exercise the powers hereinbefore granted or to

institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name; ( c) said Owners shall have tendered to

the Trustee indemnity reasonably acceptable to the Trustee against the costs, expenses and
liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request; and ( d) the Trustee shall have refused

or omitted to comply with such request for a period of sixty (60) days after such written request
shall have been_ received by, and said tender of indemnity shall have been made to, the
Trustee.

Such notification,  request, tender of indemnity and refusal or omission are hereby
declared, in every case, to be conditions precedent to the exercise by any Owner of the Bond of
any remedy hereunder; it being understood and intended that no one or more Owner of the
Bond shall have any right in any manner whatever by his or their action to enforce any right
under this Indenture, except in the manner herein provided, and that all proceedings at law or in

equity to enforce any provision of this Indenture shall be instituted, had and maintained in the
manner herein provided and for the equal benefit of all Owners of the Outstanding Bond.

The right of any Owner of the Bond to receive payment of the principal of and interest on
such Bond as herein provided or to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment, shall
not be impaired or affected without the written consent of such Owner, notwithstanding the
foregoing provisions of this Section or any other provision of this Indenture.

Section 8. 8.  Termination of Proceedinqs.  In case the Trustee shall have proceeded to

enforce any right under this Indenture by the appointment of a receiver or otherwise, and such
proceedings shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been

29

518



determined adversely, then and in every such case, the City, the Trustee and the Owners shall
be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, with regard to the
property subject to this Indenture, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Trustee shall
continue as if no such proceedings had been taken.

30

519



ARTICLE IX

DEFEASANCE; NO ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS

Section 9. 1.   Defeasance.   If the City shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall
otherwise be paid, to the Owner of an Outstanding Bond the interest due thereon and the
principal thereof,  at the times and in the manner stipulated in this Indenture or any
Supplemental Indenture, then the Owner of such Bond shall cease to be entitled to the pledge

of Net Taxes,  and,  other than as set forth below,  all covenants,  agreements and other

obligations of the City to the Owner of such. Bond under this Indenture shall thereupon cease,
terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied.  In the event of a defeasance of all

Outstanding Bond pursuant to this Section, the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the City all
such instruments as may be desirable to evidence such discharge and satisfaction, and the
Trustee shall pay over or deliver to the City' s general fund all money or securities held by it
pursuant to this Indenture which are not required for the payment of the principal of and interest
due on such Bond.

Any Outstanding Bond shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning
expressed in the first paragraph of this Section if such Bond is paid in any one or more of the
following ways:

a)      by paying or causing to be paid the principal of and interest on such Bond, as
and when the same become due and payable;

b)      by depositing with the Trustee,  in trust, at or before maturity, money which,
together with the amounts then on deposit in the Special Tax Fund and available for such

purpose, is fully sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such Bond, as and when the
same shall become due and payable; or

c)      by depositing with the Trustee or another escrow bank appointed by the City, in
trust, Federal Securities, in which the City may lawfully invest its money, in such amount as will
be sufficient, together with the interest to accrue thereon and moneys then on deposit in the

Special Tax Fund and available for such purpose, together with the interest to accrue thereon,

to pay and discharge the principal of and interest on such Bond, as and when the same shall
become due and payable;

then, at the election of the City, and notwithstanding that any Outstanding Bond shall not have
been surrendered for payment,  all obligations of the City under this Indenture and any
Supplemental Indenture with respect to such Bond shall cease and terminate, except for the

obligation of the Trustee to pay or cause to be paid to the Owners of any such Bond not so
surrendered and paid, all sums due thereon.   Notice of such election shall be filed with the

Trustee not fewer than ten days prior to the proposed defeasance date, or such shorter period

of time as may be acceptable to the Trustee.  In connection with a defeasance under ( b) or ( c)

above, there shall be provided to the City a verification report from an independent nationally
recognized certified public accountant stating its opinion as to the sufficiency of the moneys or
securities deposited with the Trustee or the escrow bank to pay and discharge the principal of
and interest on all Outstanding Bond to be defeased in accordance with this Section, as and
when the same shall become due and payable, and an opinion of Bond Counsel ( which may
rely upon the opinion of the certified public accountant) to the effect that the Bonds being

31

520



defeased have been legally defeased in accordance with this Indenture and any applicable
Supplemental Indenture.

Upon a defeasance, the Trustee, upon request of the City, shall release the rights of the
Owners of such Bond which have been defeased under this Indenture and any Supplemental
Indenture and execute and deliver to the City all, such instruments as may be desirable to
evidence such release, discharge and satisfaction.  In the case of a defeasance hereunder of all

Outstanding Bonds, the Trustee shall pay over or deliver to the City a,ny funds held by the
Trustee at the time of a defeasance, which are not required for the purpose of paying and

discharging the principal of or interest on the Bonds when due, such funds to be used in
accordance with the Act and the Resolution of Formation.  The Trustee shall, at the w"ritten

direction of the City, mail, first class, postage prepaid, a notice to the Bondowner whose Bonds
have been defeased, in the form directed by the City, stating that the defeasance has occurred.

Any defeasance accomplished by the deposit of Federal Securities may only be
accomplished with an irrevocable deposit in escrow of certain investments referred to in this

section.  Further substitutions of securities in the escrow are not permitted.  The deposit in the

escrow must be sufficient, without reinvestment, to pay all principal and interest as schedule on
the Bonds to and including the date of redemption. Any security used for defeasance must
provide for the timely payment of principal and interest and cannot be callable or prepayable
prior to maturity or earlier redemption of the rated debt ( excluding securities that do not have a
fixed par value and/ or whose terms do not promise a fixed dollar amount at maturity or call
date).

Section 9. 2.  No Additional Indebtedness Except Refundinq Bond.  The City shall not
issue bonds or additional debt payable from the Net Taxes and other amounts deposited in the

Special Tax Fund and secured by a lien and charge upon such amounts equal to the lien and
charge securing the Outstanding Bonds, except bonds or other obligations may be issued on a
parity with the Bond to refund all or any portion of the Bond..

32

521



ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10. 1.  Cancellation of Bond.  The Bond surrendered to the Trustee for payment

upon maturity or for redemption shall be upon payment therefor, and any Bond purchased by
the City as authorized herein or otherwise received by the City or the CFD via a tender of the
Bond in satisfaction of the payment of Special Taxes as permitted by the Act and delivered to
the Trustee for such purpose shall be, cancelled forthwith and shall not be reissued.   The

Trustee shall destroy such Bond, as provided by law, and, upon request of the City, fumish to
the City a certificate of such destruction. 

Section 10. 2.  Execution of Documents and Proof of Ownershiq.  Any request, direction,
consent, revocation of consent, or other instrument in writing required or permitted by this
Indenture to be signed or executed by Bondowners may be in any number of concurrent
instruments of similar tenor may be signed or executed by such Owners in person or by their
attorneys appointed by an instrument in writing for that purpose, or by the bank, trust company
or other depository for such Bond.  Proof of the execution of any such instrument, or of any
instrument appointing any such attorney, and of the ownership of the Bond shall be sufficient for
the purposes of this Indenture ( except as otherwise herein provided), if made in the following
manner:

a)      The fact and date of the execution by any Owner or his or her attorney of any
such instrument and of any instrument appointing any such attomey, may be proved by a
signature guarantee of any bank or trust company located within the United States of America.
Where any such instrument is executed by an officer of a corporation or association or a
member of a partnership on behalf of such corporation,  association or partnership,  such
signature guarantee shall also constitute sufficient proof of his authority.

b)      Any person in whose name the Bond shall be registered in the Bond Register
shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of

or on account of the principal of any such Bond, and the interest thereon, shall be made only to
or upon the order of the registered Owner thereof or his or her legal representative.  All such

payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond and
the interest thereon to the extent of the sum or sums to be paid.   Neither the City nor the
Trustee shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Nothing contained in this Indenture shall be construed as limiting the Trustee or the City
to such proof, it being intended that the Trustee or the City may accept any other evidence of
the matters herein stated which the Trustee or the City may deem sufficient.  Any request or
consent of the Owner of the Bond shall bind every future Owner of the same Bond in respect of
anything done or sufFered to be done by the Trustee or the City in pursuance of such request or
consent.

Section 10. 3.    Unclaimed Monevs.    Anything in this Indenture to the contrary
notwithstanding, any money held by the Trustee or the Trustee in trust for the payment and
discharge of any of the Outstanding Bond which remain unclaimed for two years after the date
when such Outstanding Bond have become due and payable, if such money was held by the
Trustee or the Trustee at such date, or for two years after the date of deposit of such money if
deposited with the Trustee or the Trustee after the date when such Outstanding Bond become
due and payable, shall be repaid by the Trustee or the Trustee to the City, as its absolute
property and free from trust, and the Trustee or the Trustee shall thereupon be released and

33

522



discharged with respect thereto and the Owners shall look only to the City for the payment of
such Outstanding Bond; provided, however, that, before being required to make any such
payment to the City, the Trustee at the written request of the City or the Trustee shall, at the
expense of the City, cause to be mailed by first- class mail, postage prepaid, to the registered
Owners of such Outstanding Bond at their addresses as they appear on the registration books
of the Trustee a notice that said money remains unclaimed and that, after a date named in said
notice, which date shall not be fewer than 30 days after the date of the mailing of such notice,
the balance of such money then unclaimed will be retumed to the City.

Section 10. 4.   Provisions Constitute Contract.   The provisions of this Indenture shall

constitute a contract between the City and the Bondowners and the provisions hereof shall be
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

In case any suit, action or proceeding to enforce any right or exercise any remedy shall
be brought or taken and, should said suit, action or proceeding be abandoned, or be determined
adversely to the Bondowners or the Trustee, then the City, the Trustee and the Bondowners
shall be restored to their former positions,  rights and remedies as if such suit,  action or

proceeding had not been brought or taken.

After the issuance and delivery of the Bond this Indenture shall be irrepealable, but shall
be subject to modifications to the extent and in the manner provided in this Indenture, but to no

greater extent and in no other manner.

Section 10. 5.  Future Contracts.  Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to restrict or
prohibit the City from making contracts or creating bonded or other indebtedness payable from
the general fund of the City or from taxes or any source other than the Net Taxes and other
amounts pledged hereunder.

Section 10. 6.  Further Assurances.  The City will adopt, make, execute and deliver any
and all such further resolutions, instruments and assurances as may be reasonably necessary
or proper to carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance of this Indenture, and for the
better assuring and confirming unto the Owners of the Bond the rights and benefits provided in
this Indenture.

Section 10.7.   Severabilitv.   If any covenant, agreement or provision, or any portion
thereof, contained in this Indenture, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, is
held to be unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Indenture and the

application of any such covenant, agreement or provision, or portion thereof, to other persons or
circumstances, shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected thereby, and this Indenture,
the Bond issued pursuant hereto shall remain valid and the Bondowners shall retain all valid

rights and benefits accorded to them under the laws of the State of Galifornia.

Section 10. 8.  Notices.  Any notices required to be given to the City with respect to the
Bond or this Indenture shall be mailed, first class, postage prepaid, or personally delivered to
the Finance Director of the City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, California 95330,
and all notices to the Trustee in its capacity as Trustee shall be mailed, first class, postage
prepaid, or personally delivered to the Trustee, at

34

523



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CITY OF LATHROP, for and on behaif of its Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities), has caused this Bond

Indenture to be signed by an authorized officer and its City Clerk,  and UMB,  NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION, in token of its acceptance of the trust created hereunder, has caused this Bond

Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by its officers identified below, all as of the day and
year first above written.

CITY OF LATHROP, for and on behalf of its

Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2,
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

By:
City Manager

ATTEST:

City Clerk

UMB, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as

Trustee

By:
Its:     Authorized Officer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

David T. Fama, Bond Counsel

35

524



EXWIBIT A

FORiVI OF SPECIAL TAX BOIVD

R- 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2018- 2

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)

2018 SPECIAL TAX BOND

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE:  DATED DATE:  CUSIP:

December

2028

REGISTERED OWNER:

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:       AND NO/ 100 DOLLARS

INVESTMEIVT IN THIS OND REPRESENTS A HIGH DEGREE OF SPECULATIVE RISK.

Investmenf in this Bond involves risks that may not be appropriate for some investors.  This Bond
is payable only from the levy of Special Taxes of the named Communidy Facilities
District, net of certain administrative expenses, and fhe Specia/ Taxes will only be equal
to proceeds generated from the sa/ e or forec/ osure of parcels in fhe District.  There is no

assurance that the proceeds of the sale or foreclosure of all parce/ s in fhe Districg will

generafe sufficient amounfs to pay all principal ancl interest on fhe Bond; accordingly the
Bond have a substantial risk of nonpayment. The Cify has not made any invesfigafion
info fhe appropriateness of investment in the Bond and makes no representations as to

the su ciency of the Special Taxes, inclualing any proceeds of foreclosure for non-
payment of Special Taxes, for payment in fuU of fhe ond. The original sa/ e of this Bond

was pursuant to a private placement and no Official Sfa ernent oe- Private Placement

n/lemorandum has been or will be prepared in connecgion with this Bond, Tfae Cify has no
obligation fo provide any disclosure fo a subsequent purchaser of fhis Bond or to
provide any continuing disclosure as required by Securities and Exchange Commission
Rule 15c2-92 in connection wifh underwriften bonds, or to provide any other form of
disc/osure as customarily provided or otherwise required to be provided to bondholders
pursuant fo any law or regulafion, nor shall fhe City be required to evaluate or comrr ent
on any form of disclosure provided by others fo any subsequent purchaser of this Bond.
Alfhough fhe Special Tax will cor stitute a liere on parcels in the Districf, it does not

consfifute a persona/ indebtedness of fhe owners of such properfy.

THE CITY OF LATHROP ( the " City"), for and on behalf of City of Lathrop Community
Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD" or " District"),

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, hereby promises to pay, solely from certain amounts held under the
Indenture ( as hereinafter defined), to the registered Owner named above, or registered assigns,

on the Maturity Date set forth above, unless redeemed prior thereto as hereinafter provided, the

C- 1

525



Principal Amount set forth above, and to pay interest on such Principal Amount from the date of
authentication hereof. Interest will be paid on the Maturity Date, or on an optional or mandatory
redemption date referred to below, at the Interest Rate set forth above,  until the Principal

Amount hereof is paid or made available for payment.

The principal of this Bond is payable to the registered Owner hereof in lawful money of
the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the Principal

Office of the Trustee ( as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture), initially UMB, National
Association ( the " Trustee").  Interest on this Bond shall be paid by check of the Trustee mailed,
by first class mail, postage prepaid, or in certain circumstances described in the Indenture by
wire transfer to an account within the United States of America, to the registered Owner hereof

as of the close of business on the fifteenth day of the month preceding the month in which the
Payment Date occurs ( the " Record Date") at such registered Owner' s address as it appears on

the registration books maintained by the Trustee.

This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of " City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2018-2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) 2018 Special Tax Bond" ( the

Bond")   issued in the aggregate principal amount of Million Dollars

pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended,
being Sections 53311, et seq., of the California Government Code ( the "AcY') for the purpose of
refinancing outstanding special tax bonds of the City.  The issuance of the Bond and the terms
and conditions thereof are provided for by a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City
acting in its capacity as the legislative body of CFD ( the " Legislative Body") on 2018

and a Bond Indenture executed in connection therewith ( the " Indenture"), and this reference

incorporates the Indenture herein, and by acceptance hereof the registered Owner of this Bond
assents to said terms and conditions.  The Indenture is adopted under and this Bond is issued

under, and both are to be construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of California.

Pursuant to the Act and the Indenture, the principal of and interest on this Bond is

payable solely from the Net Taxes, which means the portion of the annual special taxes
authorized under the Act to be levied and collected within CFD and received by the City
referred to as the Gross Taxes), minus amounts set aside to pay Administrative Expenses, and

certain other amounts pledged to the repayment of the Bond as set forth in the Indenture.  Any
amounts for the payment hereof shall be limited to the Net Taxes and other amounts deposited

to the Special Tax Fund established under the Indenture, except to the extent that other

provision for payment has been made by the Legislative Body, as may be permitted by law.
The City has covenanted for the benefit of the owners of the Bond that it will commence and
diligently pursue to completion appropriate foreclosure proceedings in the event of

delinquencies of Special Tax installments levied for payment of principal and interest on the

Bond.

The Bond is subject to optional redemption prior to maturity as a whole, or in part, on
any date from any available moneys of the City, at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount to be redeemed,  together with accrued interest to the redemption date,  without

premium.

The Bond is subject to mandatory redemption at any time and from time to time prior to
the Maturity Date upon the sale of a parcel in the District, at a redemption price equal to the
principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption date, without.

premium. Such sale will trigger the levy of a one-time Special Tax which shall become due upon   
the sale of the parcel, all in accordance with the Rate and Method. The Special Tax can also be

G2

526



triggered through a foreclosure proceeding or in contemplation of the Maturity Date, in both
instances in accordance with the Rate and Method.

Notice of redemption with respect to the Bond to be redeemed shall be given to the

registered owners thereof not fewer than 10 days prior to the redemption date by first class mail,
postage prepaid, to the addresses set forth in the registration books.  Neither a failure of the

registered Owner hereof to receive such notice nor any defect therein will affect the validity of
the proceedings for redemption. All Bond or portions thereof so called for redemption will cease

to accrue interest on the specified redemption date; provided that funds for the redemption are

on deposit with the Trustee on the redemption date.  Thereafter, the registered owners of such

Bond shall have no rights except to receive payment of the redemption price upon the surrender

of the Bond. Any such redemption notice will be conditional and subject to receipt by the City of
moneys sufficient to cause such redemption and may be rescinded in the event insufficient
moneys are available, and neither the City nor the Trustee shall have any liability to the Owners
or any other party as a result of its failure to redeem this Bond in full or in part as a result of
insufficient moneys.

This Bond shall be registered in the name of the registered Owner hereof, as to both

principal and interest, and the City and the Trustee may treat the registered Owner hereof as
the absolute owner for all purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Bond is issuable only in fully registered form in the denomination of$ 100, 000 or any
integral multiple of $ 1 in excess thereof and may be exchanged for a like aggregate principal
amount of Bond of other authorized denominations of the same issue and maturity, all as more

fully set forth in the Indenture.  This Bond is transferable by the registered Owner hereof, in
person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing, at the Principal Office of the Trustee, but
only in the manner, subject to the limitations and upon payment of the charges provided in the
Indenture, upon surrender and cancellation of this Bond.  Upon such transfer, a new registered

Bond of authorized denomination or denominations for the same aggregate principal amount of

the same issue and maturity will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor.

The Trustee shall not be required to register transfers or make exchanges of ( i) any
Bond for a period of 15 days next preceding any selection of the Bond to be redeemed, or ( ii)
any Bond chosen for redemption.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, so long as the Bond is owned by the
Original Bondowner or a single Owner ( i) the Trustee shall pay principal of and interest on the
Bond when due by wire transfer in immediately available funds to the Owner in accordance with
wire transfer instructions on file with the Trustee as shall be filed by the Owner with the Trustee
from time to time; provided if the date for payment is not a Business Day, then such payment
shall be made on the Business Day immediately following said payment date, ( ii) payments of

principal on the Bonds shall be made without the requirement for presentation and surrender of

the Bond by the Owner, and ( iii) the Trustee shall not be required to give notice to the Owner of
any redemption of the Bond pursuant to the Indenture.

The rights and obligations of, the City and of the registered owners of the Bond may be
amended at any time, and in certain cases without notice to or the consent of the registered
owners, to the extent and upon the terms provided in the Indenture.

THE BOND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION OF THE CITY OR CFD FOR

WHICH THE CITY OR CFD IS OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR PLEDGE, OR HAS LEVIED OR
PLEDGED,  GENERAL OR SPECIAL TAXES,  OTHER THAN THE SPECIAL TAXES

C- 3

527



REFERENCED HEREIN.  THE BOND IS A LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE CITY PAYABLE

FROM THE PORTION OF THE SPECIAL TAXES AND OTHER AMOUNTS PLEDGED UNDER

THE INDENTURE BUT IS NOT A DEBT OF THE CITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY

OF ITS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR

STATUTORY LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION.

This Bond shall not become valid or obligatory for any purpose until the certificate of
authentication and registration hereon endorsed shall have been dated and signed by the
Trustee.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND DECLARED that all acts, conditions and

things required by law to exist, happen and be pertormed precedent to and in the issuance of
this Bond do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as

required by law, and that the amount of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the
City, does not exceed any debt limit prescribed by the laws or Constitution of the State of
California.

C- 4

528



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Lathrop, for and on behalf of its City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)  has caused

this Bond to be dated as of 2018, to be signed on behalf of the City by the
Finance Director by his facsimile signature and attested by the facsimile signature of the City
Clerk.

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

FORM OF TRUSTEE' S CERTIFICATE

OF AUTHENTICATION AND REGISTRATION]

This is one of the Bond described in the within- defined Indenture.

Dated:    2018

UMB,    NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,    as

Trustee

By:
Its:     Authorized Officer

G5

529



FORM OF ASSIGNMENTj

For value received the undersigned do( es) hereby sell, assign and transfer unto

whose tax identification number is

the within- mentioned registered Bond and hereby irrevocably constitute( s) and appoint( s)

attorney to transfer the same on the books of the Trustee with full power of substitution in the
premises.

Dated:

Signature guaranteed:

NOTE:  Signature( s) must be guaranteed by an eligible NOTE:   The signatures( s) on this Assignment must

guarantor institution.   correspond with the name( s) as written on the

face of the within Bond in every particular
without alteration or enlargement or any
change whatsoever.

C- 6

530



I Attachment 16   

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2
Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT REPORT

On August 13, 2018, pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as
amended, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311, of the
California Government Code ( the" AcY'), the City Council ( the" Council") of the City of Lathrop( the
City") adopted a resolution entitled " Resolution of Intent to Establish a Community Facilities

District and Levy a Special Tax" ( Resolution No. 18- 4440, the " Resolution of Intention"), stating
its intention to form ( i) " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities) ( the " CFD"). In the Resolution of Intention, the Council expressly ordered
the preparation of a written Community Facilities District Report( the" Report") in accordance with

the Act.

The Resolution of Intention ordering the Report directs that the Report generally contain
the following:

1.       A brief description of the Facilities by type which will be required to adequately
meet the needs of the CFD; and

2.       An estimate of the fair and reasonable cost of the Facilities.

For particulars, reference is made to the Resolution of Intention for the CFD, as previously
approved and adopted by the Council.

DESCRIPTION OF FACILITIES.  The Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 ( the
Act") authorizes the creation of a Community Facilities District to finance public facilities, within

or of benefit to the land in the district and/ or to pay a special tax obligation and thereby provide
redemption of indebtedness secured by such special tax.  The CFD is proposed to be formed to
pay the special tax obligation of the City' s Community Facilities District No. 2006- 1  ( Central

Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1 Infrastructure) ( the " 2006 CFD") and thereby provide redemption
of the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2006- 1 ( Central_ Lathrop Specific Plan
Phase 1 Infrastructure) Special Tax Bonds, Series 2006 ( the " 2006 Bonds").

The facilities authorized for the 2006 CFD and related costs that were financed in whole

or in part pursuant to the proceedings for the formation of the 2006 CFD included roadways and

related improvements, wastewater system facilities and related improvements, potable water

system facilities and related improvements, drainage system facilities and related improvements,       

recycled water system facilities and related improvements, park and open space facilities, habitat

mitigation improvements and other public facilities necessary to meet development requirements.
The facilities authorized for the 2006 CFD which were financed by the 2006 Bonds have been
completed.

In addition to the above purposes,  the CFD may pay or provide financing for all
administrative costs as allowed by the Act, including but not limited to costs associated with the
creation of the CFD, issuance of bonds, determination of the amount of taxes, collection of taxes,

payment of taxes,  all  " Administrative Expenses"  as set forth in the Rate and Method of

A- 1

531



Apportionment of Special Tax for the CFD and all costs otherwise incurred to carry out the
authorized purposes of the CFD.

COST ESTIIVIATE.  The cost estimate for the Facilities is $ 27, 500, 000.

Dated as of November 19, 2018.

By:    U
City   '    irector

A-2

532



ITEM 5. 2

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:      PUBLIC HEARING   ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)   TO

CONSIDER UNMET TRANSIT NEEDS FOR

FY 19- 20

RECOMMENDATION:    City Council to Consider the Following:

1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  Council to Consider Unmet Transit Needs

within the City of Lathrop  ( Transportation

Development Act Requirements for Transit

Funds)

SUMMARY:

State law, as presented in the Transportation Development Act ( TDA), requires the

San Joaquin Council of Governments  ( SJCOG)  to ensure that reasonable transit

needs are met before Local Transportation Funds ( LTF) are allocated for non- transit

purposes, such as street and roadway projects.

If such need exists,  a jurisdiction must expend TDA funds to first meet those

needs.  If no such need exists, the jurisdiction has the option of using these funds
for streets and roadway improvements and repairs.   Last year' s Unmet Transit

Needs Report indicated that the City of Lathrop had no unmet transit needs that
were reasonable to meet.

Per TDA requirements,  in order to continue receiving TDA- derived funds,  the

jurisdiction must hold a public hearing to assess its Unmet Transit Needs.   The

purpose of tonight' s public hearing is to solicit comments from the public on the
unmet transit needs that may exist within the City and that might be reasonable to
meet.

BACKGROUND:

The TDA has two funding components:  Local Transportation Funds ( LTF) and State

Transit Assistance Funds  ( STA).   According to the 1970 census,  counties with

populations under' S00, 000 have the option of using some or all of their LTF for
roads and streets if an unmet needs process is completed, as long as there are no
unmet transit needs that are reasonable to meet.  If any such needs are found, the
jurisdiction must expend TDA funds to meet those needs before any monies may be
spent for road and street purposes.  TDA requires the jurisdiction to hold a public

hearing on " unmet transit needs" in order to continue receiving TDA derived funds.

533



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

NOVEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER UNMET TRANSIT

NEEDS

The LTF and the STA can be used for three purposes; the funds must be used in the

order listed:

1) Transit Projects

2) Road and Street Projects

3) Pedestrian and Bicycle Projects

Examples of projects funded through TDA funds in the City include the Citywide
Road Maintenance and Repair Program, Citywide Traffic Calming, Citywide Sidewalk
Repair Program,    Lathrop Road Grade Separation,    and Thomsen Road

Improvements.

The primary use of these funds is for transit related items;  therefore, in order to

continue receiving TDA funds, the City must meet current needs related to transit.
Last year,  there were no unmet transit needs that were reasonable to meet;

therefore, the City of Lathrop continued with the same level of service currently
offered at that time.

The purpose of tonight' s public hearing is to solicit comments from the public on the
unmet transit needs that may exist within the City and that might be reasonable to
meet.  The information obtained will be verified by SJCOG and can be used to direct
changes if found necessary.   For example,  in order to meet a reasonable need, a

change in stops or schedule times could be made for the existing Regional Transit
District ( RTD) systems operated by San Joaquin County.

Any public or Council Member comments that may be offered during the Public 
Hearing will be forwarded to SJCOG staff to be included, along with comments from
throughout the County,   in SJCOG' s Annual Report entitled,   Analysis and

Determination of Unmet Transit Needs for Fiscal Year."

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Per TDA requirements, in order to continue TDA- derived funds, the City must hold a
public hearing to assess the City' s unmet transit needs.

CITY COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

This agenda item promotes Community Values by soliciting comments from the
public on the unmet. transit needs that may exist within the City and by having
SJCOG evaluate those comments.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None at this time.       

534



CITY MAfVAGER' S REPORT Page 3

NOiiEM EIt 19, 2018 CITI( COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISIiED IVOTICE) TO COMSIDEF UNMET TRANSIT

NEEDS

APPRO// LS:

f

10—Z` — l

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

a/

Cari Ja Date

Financ irector

O ' 3 r- ( g

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

6l''! o
en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

535



536



ITEM 6. 1
CITY IvIANAGER' S REPORT

NOi EM ER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       Ma4YOR' S REFEIZRi4l.

RECOMMEIVDATION;     Appointment of One   ( 1)   Merv ber to the Senior

Advisory Commission with Term Expiring 7une 30,
2019, Due to llnexpired Terrn Vacancy.

ENIOIt ADVISORY COMMISSION - LMC C!-fIAPTER 2. 24

Existing Date of  „       Reappointrt ent Term Expiration
Commissioner s Ap ointment Date Date

Patricia Bennett 08/ 15/ 16 N/ A 06/ 30/ 19

APPLICAMTS FOR CONSIDERATIOIV:

1.  Robert Long

537



o-_ v___.._--------

CT 3 . 20i8 R 1 D

COle ili ISSIOl T/ COlM' A       CA C l 2016

s c      o c
r pplyin for: , S/_,///   /' l T/ ISD D G'i I 1Sl1 i

Special Requirements:

Youth Arlvisory Con: missio r.Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to ] 8 years of age to serve on this commission
Seitior Arlvisory Con mission: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered voter to serve on this commission.
Pla tning a id Parks& Recreatio t Commi.ssions: Must be a Lathrop resident and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

PLEASE PRINT OlZ TYPE THE FOLLOVVING IIVFORMATION:

I

Name: U.;(,      7

Address:      i y: l i b    Zip:     

Telephone ( home)      Telephone ( work)

Telephone ( cell) Telephone ( other)

Email: -     Resident of the City of Lathrop:          years

a

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yes Noa

Background Information:

Are you related to a current City Employee?  

If yes, give name and relationship

mployment/ Volunteer Information:

I

L
L..       V V

r ! (/

Organi ation Date

i  : -  1  i-,   --= 1  =
LOCQI[ Oi'7 POSIIIOii S

P/," 1  U2 oSizS   u n

Responsibilities/ accomplishments: l?L, f,'f r/v./` z/', Q.,

a  . 6 c G-     - . . 1 s yS      m o i 
OI' gQYlIZQIlOi9 Dnie

Tlfi  S n// c C r I-      J'/ L- i  i v- 1Z
Localion P ition( s

5. O l    6 

Responsibilities/ accomplishments:  r-,'L  r--S  /..!

Y'- S 1'    ((   J C n l'' l O 1 l77 y'S

538



Community Activities that you have been involved with (feel free to attach additional pages)

Narrre of Organization Position/ Responsibilities Dates

N'crme of Or•ganization Position/ Responsibilities%,4cconiplishments Dates

Speciat Awards or Recognitions you have received:

Eclucational Information:

Educationallnstitution Degi•eeiDiploma Fielcl Year

Edzrcationallnstitufion Degree/ Dip/ ornn Field Year

Additional Information ( Please provide any other information which you feel would be z sefi l to the City Council in
yeviewing yoa application.)

P J I/;, ' / T hC/ l/   1./   Tl'   Lr l  Z! t./     f  Th

lr '.'   C y v v%.  / f  ''=i LC_./  '   C:f a(  l i C.' ft/ z S a l=

1/',//- 7  t LL    ' til z` 7'l h  :S ll  C.r l 1/' iT}

Please sign and date you appl cation and submit to the Office of the City Clerk at the address below..

Signature
V

Date

Parent/Guardian Signature( Requi eclfor Youth Advisory Candidates only)

City Clerk
City of L,athrop

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
539



540



I7' EM 6. 2   ,

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

NOVEMBER 19, 201 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

ITEM:       MAYOR' S REFERRAL

RECOMMENDATIOM:     Appointment of One  ( 1)  Member to the Planning
Commission with Term Expiring ) une 30, 2019, Due

to Unexpired Term Vacancy
i

PLANNING COMNIISSION - LMC CHAPTER 2. 12

Existing`         Date of      ; . Reappointment Term Expiration

Comr is§ ioner s A ointment Date Date

Mac Freeman 07/ 10/ 07 06/ 15/ 15 06/ 30/ 19

APPLICANTS FOR CONSIDERATION:

1.  Christopher Mateo

2.  Irene Espinoza

3.  Ajit Singh Sandhu

4.  Diana Radonic, MBA

5.  Christine Mendes

6.  Ash Ralmilay

541



3r

COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATI011

q 1` ' 1_f",  A 12 201
Applying for; Plannin9 commisioner

aC
SAecial Requirements:

Youth Advisory Con: r: ission: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years of age to serve on this commission
Senior Advisory Cof iniission: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered voter to serve on this commission.
Planni: g and Par•ks& Recreation Com riissions: Must be a Lathrop resident and a registered voter to serve on t}iis commission.

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

Name: Christopher Mateo

Addres .    Cl,: Lathrop Zlp: 
95330

Telephone ( home)      Telephone ( work)

Telephone ( cell)  Telephone ( other)

Email: Resident of the City of Lathrop:    years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yes   No a

Background Information:

Are you related to a current City Employee? No

If yes, give name and relationship

Employment/ Volunteer Information: 

Councilmember

Orga iization Date

City of Lathrop 2008- 2012

Location Posi tion( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments:

Organization Date

Location Position( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments: 

542



Cornmunity Ac ivities that you have been involved with( feel fi-ee to attach additional pages)

Narne of Or•ganization Posiliorl/ Responsibilities Dates

Nan: e of Organization Position/ Responsibilities/ Accom lisliments Dntes

Special Awards or Recognitions you have received:

Educational Information:

San Jose State University BS Economics 1987

Edi catiorac llnstitution Degree/ Diploma Field Year

Educationallnstitc tion Degree/ Diploma Field Year

Additional Info' mation ( Please pr•ovide arry other• i iformation which yot feel wot ld be z sefiil to tlae City Council i t
reviewing you applicratio i.)

Please sign and d te you applicution and subfriit to the Office of the City Clerk at the address below..

r, ;   . March 9, 2018

Signature Date

Parent/ Guardian Signahu e( Regciir•edfor• Youth Adviso y Candidates only)

City Clerk
City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

543



07: 40: 47 p. m. 03- 16- Y078 2

RECEIVEp
MAR 1 y Zp

Ca VIMISS ON/ OM1V''' E APP AT- 
LERK

A plyxa g or:  

Specis l Redu rctt ents:

Ynulh Advisory Comnussinn: Must be A. mthrpp rosidcnl; betWeen 13 to 18 ycars of age to serva on L'his co' lmission
SenYorAdvtsory Commissio: Must be 50 ycars of age or over and a rogistexed votar to servo on ihis commissibt].
Pla rrx r.g ut111 Pre' ks 8c Recreatinn Comm' ssfnnc: Must be s LA#h o resident t1d R re ietered voter to serve on tb s commissiott.

PLEA.S P NNT OR'' X.F`'' Y E FOLLOWi,N'G INFOItlV A AON:

Name:     

AddreSs:  ity:       - Zip; y

Telephone( homc)     Te ephane ( work)

Telephone{ oel) e ephqne( oth r)

Finai(;     esident of the City of J athrop: ___,__ ye, rs   

Dv you have Transportation ta attend the Corr missi n mectings and' w ctions7 Xe4 NoCih

Background m' ox nnation:

A,r yau relatcd to A. current City Employee?      

f yes, giv namc and re(atior,ship

m loyment/ Yolonteer Informat a:

c    U  1 v a v
Q g n i a t' a       D ie

1
LncQtion Posltton{ s

Responsibilities/ accomplishrrxe ts:

u U Q.

0 1        
gmiizution Date

J,pcatron Posttdo t( s)

Responsib ilitics/accomplishments:

544



D7: 40: 47 p. m. 03- 76- 2U78 3

Commu xty Actiivities that yau havc bean involved with( feel frea to attach addii;ional pages)

V A

h

V 1 G Y

Name , f Organ: atior     Po,.11ion/ espoi sihflitres         Dates

C'
k

U b U r,Y rt4-       

Nan: e of Org ni ation P sidion/ Respo 7sibx ifies/ Accnmplishtttert s Dates Y

Special A'vard or Iiecog xtians yotx bavc received:   

Educatxonal Informaation:

1   ,    y

V      YV'aO
Educa iona! lnsti ion Degree/ D loma Field Yeat

Edarcdiional hrstixutron Degree/. Dtpinma Field YEa'

Additio a nfurrn tion ( Please provide any other i rforma ion whic:lx yoic fee! would be useful tq the City Cour cil t
reviewing JJou appl.lcatian.)     

y

U4

U r  '       

j      `    -    p   CQS

li   , o ti      n.        t i s
lea se si.gt   d date yvu nppl.ica rnn a d submit to 11 e Of Ge n, he Cr̀.y C'lerk rat the add ess beluw..

Signa ra Date

parent/GuArdi in Signaffirc( Reg'uPredfa 3 074 f;LiV. sory Candrdates only)

iiy leXl

City o athrop

390 Tawne Cel fire Drive

o, cA g 3a

545



J
E     '

r  _       

1  i o Ld itJ

COMMISSION/ COMMITTEE APPLICATI; ON
C CL RK

APplYing for:  1 q, s . r,-.. r   '-- M ss ti c n

Special Repuirements:  L   --'+'' 1' V   S S'  

Youth Advisory Commission: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years of a e to serve on this comm.ission
SeniorAdvisory Commission: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered voter to serve on tIus commission.
Planning and Parks& Recrealion Commissions: Must be a Lathrog resident and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATIUN•

Name:       fi J            ! "      l  .. 1        

Address. City:      lTj P Zip: '.

Telephone( home)     elephone( work)

Telephone( cell) Telephone ( other)

Email:   Resident of the City of Lathrop:_ years

a

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yes l'  No

Background Information:

Are you related to a current City Employee?_ 

If yes, give name and relationship -

EmpIoyment/Volunfeer Information:

L.rO p,,-   - e,-   - v n   C r S• Ce
Organzzahon

Date

c-1 7 U' Z   ? _. i Q/ L '  ,, f 1M rti c.. 3      ] S O   - 
Locatzon

Positzon( s)qS3S
Responsibilities/ ac omplishments:    o 1j p  „ ;  „-,.,   --  

a v,."_Q̀M C'st    ,    -- 8.-,.: r. I  ' C'   l`'      

P  `I' C

Organization
Date

Location
Position( s}

Responsibilities/ accomplishments:

546



Cosnmunity Activities that you have been involved with ( feel free to attach additional pages)

C   --`,,.-
f'= a.` i 

Q, 2 {-- a 7
11Tame of Organization PasitionlResponsibil4 ies Dates

f    , s-  —   iti
t-v- Y    .

C--   ' A-„—,, L '[.' L,. Y
d         5. .:C--`--, 1, rr.,    

Name of Organiza , on Position esponszbilities/Accorrtplishme: fs Dates

c-^- L l JLi n   c-`'   

Special A vards or Recognitions you have received:        `'«'' ""
Ssi c,

p l

s',' .'      
l .     .,  

Educational Information:      

i C .     t 9    -  . d-. 1e. 6 tn i s s^-    . 7IEducanonall tzon Degree/Diploma Field Year

S            1 " 1        1' c: -- c u c.          
7

Educational Institution DegreelDiplo Field Year

Additional Information (Please provide any other information wliich you feel would be t sefctl to the Ciry Cot ncil in
reviewing you application.)

C          1

C.   :     ' e 1   '  ; C a T       .•

Q r'tr' v.--,  :     
t     1       ,. 2

w- Ly.,-_
r   

Please sign and date you application and submit to the Office of the C ty Clerk at the address below..

o    2 C (
Signature

Date

Parent/ Guardian Signatare( Required for YouthAdvisory Candidates orzly)

City Clerk

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 9533Q

547



COMMISSION/ COMMITTEE APPLIC      ` y` 

EJ a `' r'•

Applying for:    f
n'

e°
s z': l,` H P

r ecial Recauflrement§:      
r     C      / j    €s`,    ,  ,' S OF ij'`:

Youth Advisory Commission: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years of age to serve on this commission
Senior Advisory Commission: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered voter to serve on this commission.  
Planning and Parks& Recreation Commissions: Must be a Lathrop resident and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

Name:  C 1 G  c 0 L        l I i4x

Address: _    City:   L, p   Zip:    '/,s^ 3

Telephone ( home) Telephone( work)

Telephone ( cell)   Telephone ( other)

Email: Resident of the City of Lathrop:  rq   years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yes  No

Background Information:

Are you related to a current City Employee?   ,/ f}

If yes, give name and relationship     / t//-

I

Employment/ Volunteer Information:

Gu Drdli_ /' ea l '   r r: 7`4    4/'. G i;. s a vI  —    GG' O hT

Organization Date

70 7  S' i   s Dc C    Tm. Cr'di«  4'/ cie v

Location Position( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments:   hS/-      G G— i. 1s

1.t CG1 .   ,/ lt( fiS.    
e /'

l 7 v
1 .

b 2l/'/( 7 f7/ S G2U    — 02 . 3
Org nization Date

I l S c      i P r i .S /, S   
T

Location Po ttion( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments:  h Q/ C' ,, d iS/ y d   '! 7„S a

SiLG/' l//   /.' f''/'I IGL'     /   ICt_; s Dv.    , oiY> O d P D/'O 9/'Ph-i

1.    .    ,<   . s     , C,. ly

a lf - e'`' s,

548



Coareanunity Activities that you have been involved with( feel free to attach additional pages)

va  " YI o.-  ecti`/ h r ,  o, i' so 9'9S-   o o
N e of Organization Position/ Responsibilities Dates

0/ lSC ltc 7, n,        r./ L- e'   9'/ SS a  rS i- v o2G2 o — '-- r    .

Name of Organization Position/ Responsibilities/ Accomplish ent     Dates

Special Awards or Itecognitions you have received:    GfYIS-    rz r'-      

L P. z  c e , t c .

Education l Ia fo* msatio a:

o f'  x r            , s` ss Q', s r   007
Educationall itzrti n Degree iploma Field Year

e S o       Y4/      /     97
ucat onal In  ' artion Degree/ Diploma Field Year

Additional Information ( Please provide any other information which you feel would be arsefitl to the City Council in
reviewing yoz application.)

J ve%. r" e A iSSiO S / scGi     -   !  r G/

e'     f r hS r   l 2lJ/.

t/1     0 h
r

rl 1 C  /

i z '         

C SS

r,      . y  /`  E'? iC   ,C,1/J'i'C   //. l'1 CD,l/ L':
v

Please sign and daPe you application and submit to the Office of the C'ity Clerk at the adclress below.. 

lG.'      c    ,   -     s d'' Ol
Signature Date

ParentlGuardian Signature( Required for Yoirth Advisory Candidates only)

City Clerk
City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

549



COMIVIISSION/ COMMITTEE APPLICA'I'ION

Lathrop Planning CommisionApplying for.       
4 v 2 1

S ecial Requirements:

Youth Advisory Commission: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years of age to serve this c mmisslon-

Senior Advisory Commission: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered voter to serve on this commission.
Planning and Parks& Recreation Conamissions: Must be a Lathrop resident and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE T IE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

Name: Christine Mendes

Address:      City: 
Manteca

Zlp: 
95337

Telephone ( home) Telephone ( work)

Telephone ( cell)       Telephone ( other)

EmaiL Resident of the City of Lathrop: 
7

years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yes x-I No f

Background Information:

Are you related to a current City Employee? No

If yes, give name and relationship

Employment/Volunteer Information:

Retired 12/ 31/ 2016

Organization Date

Locatiosa Position( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments: Gardening, grandchildren, actively review City of Lathrop Planning and

Development through the City of Lathrop website, newspaper articles and attending meetings

Owner of Curves 11/ 1/ 01 thru 12l31/ 16

Organization Date

Lathrop, Manteca, Central Stockton, Weston Ranch CEO and Owner

Location Position( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments: 
Human Resources for 24+ employees, Payroll, Accounts Receivable and

Payable, Advertising, Coaching members,. active small business owner

550



Copnrnunity Activities that you have been involved with( feel free to attach additional pages)

Lathrop Parade Attendee/ Entrant

Name of Organization Position/ Responsibilities Dates

Super Store Industries Senior Buyer 6/ 91 thru 2/ 02

Name of Organization Position/ Responsibilities/ Accomplishnzents Dates

Special Awards or Recognitions you have received: Owner of the Year Curves International Western
Region 2003 and 2005, Board Member of the Frozen Food Council

ducational Information:

East Union High School Diploma 1970

Ediccationallnstitution Degree/ Diploma Field Year

Some College Nutrition Kinesiology

Edtacational Ltstitt tion Degree/ Diploma Field Year

Additiotxal Information ( Please provide any other infor•mation which yozc feel woacld be asseful to the City Council in
r-eviewirig you applicatioja.)

Dale Carnigee Public Speaking 12 week course 1996

Ken Blanchard Leadership Course 2006

Zig Ziglar Leadership Course 2007

John Maxwell Leadership Course 2008

Please sign c nd date you application and submit to the Office of the City Clerk at the address below..

ll  -  ''
Signature Date

ParendGuardian Signature( Required fo Youth Advisory Cm2didates only)

City Clerk
City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
551



a-

COlVIMISSIOl T/ COldIlV.ITTEE APPI,ICATIOI T   :`  `; .:.      .

Applying fo':  P anning commissio     t.

Special Requirements:

Youth Advisory Commission: Must be a Lathrop resident between 13 to 18 years of age to serve on this commission
Senior Advisory Cammission: Must be 50 years of age or over and a registered voter to serve on this commission.
Pluf ning und Parks& Recreation Commissio rs: Must be a Lathrop resident and a registered voter to serve on this commission.

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE THE FOLI,OWING INFOIt1VIATI01 1:

Name: Ash Ralmilay

Address:   City: Lathrop Zlp: 
95330

Telephone ( home)      Telephone( work)

Telephone ( cell) Telephone ( other)

Email:   Resident of the City of Lathrop: 
2

years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Yes   No d

Background Information:

Are you related to a current City Employee? 
No

If yes, give name and relationship

Employment/ Volunteer Information: 

HomeSmart PV and Associates 2017 - Present

Organization Date

301 Banner Ct, Ste 3, Modesto, CA 95361 Realtor

Location Position( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments: 
Guide and assist sellers and buyers in selling/ purchasing property for the

right price under the best terms. Intermediate negotiation processes, consult clients on market conditions.

Allison James Estates & Homes 2015 - 2017

Organization Date

210 S Sierra Ave Ste 6, Oakdale, CA 95361 Realtor

Location Position( s)

Responsibilities/ accomplishments: 
Guide and assist sellers and buyers in selling/ purchasing property for the

right price under the best terms. Intermediate negotiation processes, consult clients on market conditions.    

552



Continue... Community Activities ( additional page) 

Lathrop Run Committee Member/ Plan and execute Lathrop Run 2K, 5K or 10K 2012- 2103

Name of Organization Position/ Responsibilities/ Accomplishments Dates

Lions Clubs International Member/ Help and support local community 2011- Present

Name of Organization Position/ Responsibilities/ Accomplishments Dates

553



Community Activities that you have been involved with( feel free to attach additional pages)

Parks & Recreation - City of Lathrop Commissioner/ Chair 2010- 2013, 2014- 2016

Name of Organiz etion Positia/ Respatsibilities Dates

Renaming Committee Member/ Rename - East Lathrop Community Complex 2012- 2013

Name o' Organization Position/ Responsibilities/ Accomplishments Dates

Special Awards or Recognitions you have received: 
Master Club Achiever in 2015 and 2016 at Central

Valley Association of Realtors, recognized as one of the 10 Best Real Estate Agents in client satisfaction in 2017 by
American Institute of Real Estate Agents.

Educational Information:      

Punjab University Bachelor of Science Engineering 1984

Educationallnstitution Degree/Diploma Field Yenr

Eclucationnllnstitution Degree/ Diploma Field Year

Additional Information (Please provide anv other i fof-nication which youfeel wot lcl be irsefztl to the Crty Coacncil in

reviewing yozc application.)

I would very much like to continue to be involved in community services in Lathrop as a volunteer.

My previous experiences with the city of Lathrop will help me to better serve the community and the Planning
Commission. I have 8+ year of experience in real estate and 20+ years of experience in the semi- conductor

industry/ contract manufacturing, focused on engineering, management, and consistent success in achieving revenue,

cost, productivity, and goals. I would like to see the city of Lathrop thrive and contribute to its growth, and like Lathrop

to continue to improve for the betterment of the citizens.

Pleczse sign and c cate you application and s cbmit to the Office of the City Clerk at the uddress below..

l:

y;   t C   
Signature Date

Parent/ Guardian Signature( Rec aeiredf'or Yoa th Advisory Candidates onlv)

City Clerk
City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

554


	2018-11-19 City Council Special Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2018-11-19 Item 4.2 Approval of Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of October 8, 2018
	2018-11-19 Item 4.3 Treasurer's Report September 2018
	2018-11-19 Item 4.4 Delinquent Utility Turn Offs
	2018-11-19 Item 4.5 Funding for a Maintenance Worker I_II in the Public Works Department
	2018-11-19 Item 4.6 Christmas Parade Temporary Street Closure
	2018-11-19 Item 4.7 Accept Improvemens for 5th Street Sidewalk Improvement Project PS 15-19
	2018-11-19 Item 4.8 Accept Improvements for Mossdale Lighting CIP PK 18-10 from T&S Intermodal Maintenance, Inc
	2018-11-19 Item 4.9 Resolution of Intention to Vacate a Portion of Madruga Road to South Lathrop Land, L.L.C
	2018-11-19 Item 4.10 Approval of FM & SIA for 89 Lots in Tract 3999 Village BB within Lakeside East District of R.I
	2018-11-19 Item 4.11 Approval of FM & SIA for 103 Lots in Tract 4001 Village AA within Lakeside East District of R.I
	2018-11-19 Item 4.12 Community Facilities District Annual Bond Accountability Report for FY 2017-18
	2018-11-19 Item 5.1 Public Hearing (Published Notice to Consider Proposed CFD Nos. 2018-1 & 2018-2 (CLSP)
	2018-11-19 Item 5.2 Public Hearing (Published Notice) to Consider Unmet Transit Needs for FY 19-20
	2018-11-19 Item 6.1 Mayor's Referral Appoint of One (1) Member to the Senior Advisory Commission Due to Unexpired Term Vacancy
	2018-11-19 Item 6.2 Mayor's Referral Appointment of One (1) Member to the Planning Commission Due to Unexpired Term Vacancy



